
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 27, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett / 854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on items related the Program Year 
2011 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) for 
the Community Development Block Grant provided by HUD: 
 

A. Receive a summary of the annual performance report;  
 

B. Approve the draft of the Program Year 2011 Consolidated Annual 
Performance Evaluation Report to post for public comment. 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5301), the federal government, through 
the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), sponsors 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), a program that provides 
annual grants to cities and counties to develop viable urban communities 
by providing decent housing, a suitable living environment, and by 
expanding economic opportunities for low and moderate income persons. 
Since 2006, Travis County has received CDBG funds from HUD on an 
annual basis.  As a CDBG urban entitlement, Travis County must compile 
and publish a report detailing the use of CDBG funds and associated 
progress and accomplishments for every program year.  HUD calls this 
annual report the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER).   
 
The CAPER describes the County’s CDBG housing and community 
development activities as well as the County’s overall housing and 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 2



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

community development efforts.  This year’s CAPER corresponds to 
activities conducted during the 2011 program year spanning October 1, 
2011 to September 30, 2012. 
 
Please see the attached draft of the CAPER and a PowerPoint 
presentation for a summary of the 2011 program year. 
 
On October 30, 2012, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved a 
15-day public comment period spanning from November 30, 2012, through 
December 14, 2012, as well as a public hearing on December 4, 2012.  
Notice of the comment period and public hearing was provided in 
newspapers of general circulation, through postal and electronic mailings, 
on the County’s website, Facebook, Twitter and the seven Travis County 
Community Centers.   
 
Final approval of the CAPER by the Travis County Commissioners Court is 
anticipated to occur on December 18.  The CAPER is due to HUD no later 
than December 30, 2012. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends approval of the attached draft of the PY 2011 CAPER 
for public comment.   
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
When HUD awards CDBG funds to cities and counties, there is a mandate 
for CDBG entitlements to address the County’s housing, economic and 
community development needs of the low to- moderate income population. 
Given that often times the CDBG resources provided are limited, 
entitlements are expected to work in collaboration with other local funds to 
tackle the multiple community needs and ensure CDBG funds fall within the 
jurisdiction’s broader efforts. This is the reason why the CAPER documents 
both CDBG projects as well as the County’s efforts as a whole in the 
relevant areas.  

 
As part of the mandate from Congress to administer the CDBG program, 
HUD determines annually whether each CDBG entitlement is carrying out 
its activities “in a timely manner”. HUD conducts an analysis of each 
entitlement’s timeliness of spending 10 months into each grant year.  The 
threshold for compliance with timeliness is having no more than 1.5 times 
the current year’s allocation unspent.  In PY11, Travis County’s timeliness 

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

ratio was 2.38 for its August 2011 timeliness test. The Program has 
submitted a work out plan that demonstrates compliance by next year, 
which HUD has been approved.  At the end of the program year, the ratio 
was 2.21. 
  
During PY11, spending occurred in 5 different projects benefitting 592 
people and progress was made in moving forward with the remaining two. 
Of the funds available to the five activities, $307,359.59 was spent, per 
HUD’s data management system called IDIS and more than $308,000 was 
leveraged. This does not include the dollars spent on the CDBG-R project.    
 
The CAPER also outlines the completion of the Plainview Estates project 
which was funded by CDBG-Recovery Act funds.  The project provided 
connections to 20 homes benefitting 66 low to moderate income people.  
92% of the funds were spent.  Left over funds were not significant enough 
to complete another project and will be returned to the Treasury.   
 
The reports in Attachment C of the CAPER include data from HUD’s 
database. Due to the length of these reports, they will only be included in 
the final CAPER with the exception of the CDBG Financial Summary 
Report.  
 
In addition, the County’s fiscal year has not closed at the time of this draft 
report; therefore, all General Fund references will be updated in the final 
report.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
No budget impacts are anticipated by this item. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
None. 

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


  

TRAVIS COUNTY 

CDBG  
 

PY11 CONSOLIDATED 

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 

EVALUATION REPORT 

 

 

 
DRAFT 

10.1.2011 TO 9.30.2012 

PY 2011 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: 
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 

CDBG Office 
 
 
 
County Executive 
Sherri E. Fleming 
 
CDBG Office 
Christy Copeland Moffett 
Martha Brown 
Morgan Chee 
 
Travis County Auditor’s Office 
Janice Cohoon 
 
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources 
Lee Turner 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Acknowledgements 
Special thanks to the following people for 
providing information to assist staff in the 
completion of this report. 
 
Health and Human Services and Veterans Service Staff 
Courtney Bissonnet Lucas 
LaDonna Brazell 
Judy Cortez 
San Juana Gonzales 
Jane Prince-Maclean 
Lisa Sindermann 
Jill Smith  
 
Travis County Housing Services 
Lance Pearson 
 
Travis County Housing Authority 
Craig Alter 
 
Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
Andrea Shields 
 

 

Questions or Comments?  
 
For questions or for more information, please contact the CDBG Office at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX  
ACTION PLAN 



 

 

 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX 
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

 
Samuel T. Biscoe 

Travis County Judge 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Sarah Eckhardt 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct Two 
 

Ron Davis 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct One 
 

Karen Huber 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct Three 

Margaret Gomez 
County Commissioner, 

Precinct Four 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                     Table of Contents 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Acronyms ................................................................................................................................................................. 4 
 
Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................. 5 
Executive Summary .................................................................................................................................................. 7 
Recovery Act Funds .................................................................................................................................................. 11 
Substantial Amendments ......................................................................................................................................... 11 
 
SECTION I: GENERAL QUESTIONS ..................................................................................................................................... 14 
Status of Projects ..................................................................................................................................................... 14 
CDBG-Recovery ........................................................................................................................................................ 26 
Geographic Distribution of Projects .......................................................................................................................... 28 
Geographic Distribution of Projects and Racial Concentrations ................................................................................. 29 
Performance Evaluation of Projects .......................................................................................................................... 35 
Expenditures and Leveraged Resources for PY 2011 ................................................................................................. 40 
Expenditures Per Project .......................................................................................................................................... 41 
Timely Spending of Funds ......................................................................................................................................... 42 
Managing the Process .............................................................................................................................................. 43 

Monitoring ............................................................................................................................................................... 48 
Institutional Structure and Coordination ................................................................................................................... 51 
Public Engagement ................................................................................................................................................... 54 
Evaluation of the CDBG Program .............................................................................................................................. 55 
 
SECTION II: HOUSING AND SERVICES FOR THE HOMELESS ...................................................................................................... 57 
Housing Investments ................................................................................................................................................ 57 
Overview of Housing Services Supported by Travis County ....................................................................................... 60 
Barriers to Affordable Housing ................................................................................................................................. 62 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice ........................................................................................................................ 65 
Homelessness .......................................................................................................................................................... 69 
HOME/American Dream Down Payment Initiative .................................................................................................... 71 
Emergency Shelter Grant.......................................................................................................................................... 71 

Addressing “Worst Case” Housing Needs .................................................................................................................. 71 
 
SECTION III: NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ACTIONS ........................................................................ 72 
Non-Housing Community Development Investments ................................................................................................ 72 
Overview of Travis County CDBG Investments in Community Development .............................................................. 73 
Anti-Poverty Strategy ............................................................................................................................................... 75 
Non-Homeless Special Needs ................................................................................................................................... 76 
Lead-Based Paint ...................................................................................................................................................... 77 
Specific HOPWA Objectives ...................................................................................................................................... 78 

 
APPENDICES ............................................................................................................................................................ 79 
Appendix A:  ............................................................................................................................................................. 79 
Appendix B:  ............................................................................................................................................................. 83 

 

 
   



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Acronyms 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   4 

ACRONYMS 
 
Throughout this report, the reader will note the following acronyms: 
 

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act 

AI Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 

AP Action Plan 

CAPER Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report  

CDBG   Community Development Block Grant 

CFR Code of Federal Regulation 

Con-Plan Consolidated Plan (governs CDBG Programs) 

CPD Community Planning and Development (part of HUD) 

CPP Citizen Participation Plan 

EA Environmental Assessment 

ESG  Emergency Shelter Grant 

FHA Federal Housing Administration (part of HUD) 

FSS Family Support Services (a Travis County Social Service Program) 

FTEs Full Time Equivalents 

HACT Housing Authority of Travis County 

HHS/VS Travis County Department of Health & Human Service and Veteran Services 

HOME  HOME Investment Partnership Program (HUD’s Program) 

HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HUD’s Program) 

the Accounting Software used by Travis County 

HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

IDIS Integrated Disbursement Information System (HUD’s Financial Management System)) 

LMA Low Mod Area of Benefit 

LMC Low Mod Clientele 

LMH Low Mod Housing 

LMI Low- and Moderate-Income (80% or below median household income) 

LMJ Low Mod Jobs 

MFI Median Family Income 

OMB Office of Management and Budget 

PY Program Year 

PY11 Program Year 2011 

RFP Request for Proposals 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RFS Request for Services 

TC Travis County 

TCHFC Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 

TxDOT Texas Department of Transportation  

TNR Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources 

URA Uniform Relocation Act 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Introduction 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   5 

 

 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) initiative is a federal grant program administered by 

the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The program provides annual grants 

to cities and counties to carry out a variety of community development activities aimed at revitalizing 

neighborhoods, improving affordable housing options, and providing improved community facilities 

and services.  

 

Based on its population, in 2006, Travis County qualified as an urban county, a federal designation 

which afforded the County the opportunity to apply for CDBG funds. That year, Travis County applied 

for and received CDBG funds for the first time and has continued to receive funding for the past six 

years. The County’s annual allocation is based on a HUD-designed formula that takes into account the 

county’s population size, poverty rate, housing overcrowding, and age of housing.  

 

Usage of CDBG funds must meet a variety of parameters set nationally by HUD and locally by the 

County. Federal regulation requires that a minimum of 70% of the CDBG funds focus on projects for 

low- to moderate-income residents. Additionally, Travis County’s allocation specifically targets 

residents living in the unincorporated areas of the county and to be eligible, the activities must meet 

one of the following HUD national objectives: 

 

 Benefit low- and moderate-income persons; 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight; or 

 Address other community development needs that present a serious and immediate threat to 

the health and welfare of the community. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

The administration of the CDBG program follows a cycle that includes the drafting of a Consolidated 

Plan (Con-Plan), an Action Plan (AP), and a Consolidated Annual Evaluation and Performance Report 

(CAPER). The current Con-Plan identifies the County’s community and housing needs and outlines the 

strategies to address those needs over a three-year period. The Action Plan defines the specific 

activities to be undertaken during each program year (PY) to address the priorities established in the 

Con-Plan. The CAPER is conducted annually to assess yearly accomplishments.   

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Introduction 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   6 

The following figure is a simplified visual representation of the CDBG cycle. As shown, citizen 

participation has a central role in setting the priorities to be addressed and defining projects to tackle 

identified needs. 

 

 

Figure 1: CDBG Cycle 

 

 
 

 

The Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) is the lead 

agency designated by the County for the grant administration of the CDBG program and the single 

point of contact with HUD. 

  

Public 
Engagement 

Consolidated 

 Plan 

Annual Action 
Plan 

Substantial 
Amendments 

Annual 
Report 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Introduction 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   7 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

As a CDBG urban entitlement, Travis County must compile and publish a report detailing the use of 

CDBG funds and associated progress and accomplishments for every program year.  HUD calls this 

annual report the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER).  

 

Specifically, the CAPER describes the County’s CDBG housing and community development activities as 

well the County’s overall housing and community development efforts. This specific document 

corresponds to activities conducted during Program Year 2011 (PY11) spanning October 1, 2011 to 

September 30, 2012. 

 

The CAPER is written to provide HUD with required CDBG information and provide the public an 

update of the progress made in this initiative. As a result of serving two audiences, the report follows 

the federal reporting requirements while also presenting information in a format meant to be easily 

understood by County departments, service providers and residents. The report includes specific 

outcome performance measures as delineated by HUD’s 2005 Community Planning and Development 

Outcome Performance Measurement System. 

 

Summary of Resources and Distribution of Funds 

 

The Program Year 2011 Action Plan detailed the proposed use of program funds for a single fiscal year 

from October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2012.  PY11 allocated funds were used along with 

remaining funds from prior years.  The following table represents use of funds for PY 2011 by project, 

including reallocated and unexpended funds from previous years, benefit in PY11 and status.   

 

The following table presents a list of the projects implemented in PY11. 

 

Figure 2: Progress of CDBG Projects as of September 30, 2012 

Activities 

Expected 
Benefit/ 
Served in 

PY11 

Budgeted 
PY 11 
Funds 

Prior Year funds 
available for PY11 

(includes 
substantial 

amendments) 

Amount Spent 
in Prior Years 

Amount Spent 
in PY11 

Status 

Production of New 
Owner Housing Units 
Via land acquisition 
and infrastructure 
development  

31/2 
 Housing 

Units 
$0 $4 $1,062,544.90  $0 

Continuing: Property 
acquired October 2010 & 
July 2011. Two houses 
are complete and 
occupied.  The remaining 
houses are scheduled to 
be completed in 2014.     



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Introduction 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   8 

Activities 

Expected 
Benefit/ 
Served in 

PY11 

Budgeted 
PY 11 
Funds 

Prior Year funds 
available for PY11 

(includes 
substantial 

amendments) 

Amount Spent 
in Prior Years 

Amount Spent 
in PY11 

Status 

Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 
Minor home repair up 
to $24,999 
 

35/0 
 Housing 

Units 
$368,636 $464,071.96 $0 $0 

Continuing:  A Request-
for-Services (RFS) to hire 
a subrecipient to 
administer the program 
is complete and was 
released in October 
2012. The program is 
scheduled to begin by 
January 2013.     

Homebuyer 
Assistance: 
Direct Homeownership 
Assistance through 
Down Payment 
Assistance and Shared 
Appreciation Gap 
Financing 

63/0 $0 $794,945 $0 $0 

Continuing:  A 
subrecipient was 
identified and a contract 
executed in September 
2012. The program will 
launch in the first quarter 
of PY12. 

Street Improvements: 
Lake Oak Estates  

126/0 $145,000 $0 $0 $54,192.80 

Continuing: This is a 
phased project.  During 
PY11, a design consultant 
was selected, and at 
close of year design 
services and 
environmental review 
were underway. 

Street Improvements: 
Lava Lane 
 

N/A 
(see note) 

$0 $10,552.19 $ $10,552.19 

Completed:  This project 
was completed in PY10 
and reported as final in 
the PY10 CAPER.  This 
was a straggler invoice 
that was paid in PY11.  

Public Services, Other: 
Family Support 
Services (FFS) Social 
Work Services 
Expansion –Travis 
County HHS/VS 
Program 

500/391 $118,500 $0 $0 $89,468.77 

 
Completed 
 
09/30/12 
 
 
 

Administration & 
Planning: CDBG 

N/A $158,000 $0 $0 $153,145.83 

 
Completed 
 
09/30/12 

Total $790,136 $1,259,020.96 $1,062,544.90 $307,359.59  

 
CDBG Recovery Act funds were available to spend in PY11.  The funds were required to be spent by 

September 30, 2012.  Figure 3 shows the final year of expenses for the project. 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Introduction 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   9 

Figure 3: Progress of CDBG-R Project as of September 30, 2012 

Activities 

Expected 
Benefit/ 
Served 
in PY11 

CDBG-R 
Funds  

 
Amount 

Available in 
PY11 

 

Amount Spent 
in Prior Years 

Amount 
Spent in 

PY11 
Status 

Home 
Rehabilitation   
Water 
Connections for 
Plainview Estates 
 

39/20 
 Housing 

Units 
$226,300 $142,201.84 $84,098.16 $117,692 

Completed: All 
properties that were 
income eligible and 
wanted a connection 
were connected.   
 

Total $226,300 $142,201.84 $84,098.16 $117,692  

 

Timely Spending of Funds  

 

As part of the mandate from Congress to administer the CDBG program, each year HUD determines 

whether each CDBG entitlement is carrying out its activities “in a timely manner.” HUD conducts an 

analysis of each entitlement’s timeliness of spending 10 months into each grant year. For Travis 

County, occurs every August. The threshold for compliance with timeliness is having no more than 1.5 

times the current year’s allocation unspent. The Program did not achieve timeliness with a ratio of 2.38 

for its August 2011 timeliness test. The Program has submitted a work out plan that demonstrates 

compliance by next year, to HUD which has been approved.  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Public Participation  

 

During PY11, the public had ample opportunity to participate in the development of the PY12 Action 

Plan. During the months of February and March 2012, the public had an opportunity to identify the 

needs of the unincorporated areas by: 

 

1) Attending one of five public hearings, 

2) Turning in a Participation Form, or  

3) Turning in a Project Proposal form.   

 

Public Hearings and Participation Forms 

 

The purpose of the hearings and participation forms was to obtain the public’s input on the community 

development, housing, and public service needs, as well as potential project ideas to address those 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Introduction 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   10 

needs. The first hearing, held at the Travis County Commissioners Court (TCCC), followed a traditional 

hearing format, while those held in each of the precincts had an information session followed by 

facilitated discussion.  The hearings were held according to the following schedule:  

 

Figure 4: Locations and Dates of Public Hearings Held to Collect Information for the   

PY12 Action Plan  

Locations of Hearings Dates/Times of Public hearings 

Community-Wide Hearing  
Travis County Commissioners Court, 
Granger Building  

Tuesday, February 21, 2012 9:00 am  

Precinct 1  Eastside Service Center  Wednesday, February 22, 2012 6:30 pm  

Precinct 2  Steiner Ranch Community Center Saturday, February 25, 2012 9:00 am  

Precinct 3  West Rural Community Center, Oak Hill  Monday, February 27, 2012 6:30 pm  

Precinct 4  
South Rural Community Center,  
Del Valle  

Thursday, February 23, 2012 6:30 pm  

 

The public that could not participate in public hearings had the choice of providing their input by filling 

out a Participation Form or a Project Proposal Form. These forms were provided to interested parties 

upon request and were available in both English and Spanish on the Travis County CDBG website. 

 

Every year during the development of the Annual Action Plan, a 30-day public comment period is held 

to receive comments on the proposed uses of CDBG funds. The comment period includes two public 

hearings held at the Travis County Commissioners Court.  For the development of the PY12 Action Plan 

the 30-day public comment period was held from June 18, 2012 to July 17, 2012 and the two public 

hearings occurred on June 26, 2012 and July 10, 2012.  

 

The public comment period was advertised on the County’s website and in newspapers of general 

circulation during the week of May 28th. In addition, notifications by mail and e-mail were sent to 

service providers, to citizens who attended public hearings in the past, to the community liaison 

departments of school districts, and to neighborhood associations.  The announcements were available 

in English and Spanish. 

 

In addition, as part of the development of the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (AI), 

public meetings were held at two separate sites on consecutive evenings to solicit comment on fair 

housing issues. The meetings were held on June 12, 2012 at the Oak Hill Community Center and on 

June 13, 2012 at the Del Valle Community Center. Public notices announcing the meeting were 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Introduction 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   11 

distributed in English and Spanish among social service providers and posted in well-trafficked public 

locations. Translators were available at both meetings. 

 

RECOVERY ACT FUNDS 
 

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ("Recovery Act") was signed into law by 

President Obama on February 17, 2009. The Recovery Act awards $1 billion in CDBG Recovery (CDBG-

R) funds to be distributed to cities, counties, insular areas and states, of which $10 million has been 

reserved by the U.S. Department of Housing (HUD) for its administrative costs and $10 million of which 

will be awarded to Indian tribes.  Recipients of the remaining $980 million of CDBG-R funds were the 

approximately 1,200 jurisdictions that received CDBG funding in Fiscal Year 2008.   

 

Travis County, as an entitlement jurisdiction that received CDBG funding in Fiscal Year 2008, qualified 

to apply for $226,300 in CDBG-R funds. As is the case with the regular CDBG funds, these funds must 

benefit Travis County low- to moderate-income residents who live in the unincorporated areas of the 

county.  

 

One project was selected.  The Plainview Estates Water Connection project assisted low to moderate 

income residents connect to a permanent water source.   During PY 2011, the CDBG-R project was 

completed and assisted 20 homes connect to water.   

 

SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENTS 
 
When any changes are made to projects, CDBG staff must analyze whether or not a substantial 

amendment needs to occur.  According to Travis County’s Citizen Participation Plan as required by HUD 

rules, a substantial amendment is required if any of the changes represent 1) a change in the location 

or beneficiaries of a project proposed under the Consolidated Plan or Action Plan, 2) a change in the 

scope of the project by more than 25%, or 3) a change in the funding of a new project that was not 

originally subject. 

 

In PY11, Travis County made substantial amendments to PY06, PY08, PY09, and PY10, and to the 2011-

2013 Consolidated Plan.  The public comment period and public hearings for the Substantial 

Amendments coincided with public comment for the PY12 Action Plan. The amendments were 

approved by TCCC on August 7, 2012.   

 
 

 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Introduction 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   12 

Amendment to PY06, PY08, PY09, and PY10 Action Plans:  Project Savings 

 

Over the last five years, several projects had cost savings and those funds were reallocated to another 

purpose.  The chart below summarizes the project savings.  Project savings is defined as funds available 

after a project’s completion.   

 

Figure 5: Project Savings  

Original Project Project Savings 

PY06 Lava Lane  $423.86 

PY10 Lava Lane $129,685.02 

PY09 Administration and Planning $1,106.23 

PY10 Administration and Planning $28,593.65 

PY10 Social Work Expansion $3,920.52 

PY08 Land Acquisition – Phase 2 $2,355.68 

PY09 Land Acquisition – Phase 2 $29,751.00 

PY09 YFAC Flex Fund  $32,100.00 

TOTAL $227,935.96 

 
 

Amendment to PY09 Action Plan: Deletion of Youth and Family Assessment Center (YFAC) Flex Fund 
Expansion Project 
 
The YFAC program is an internal Travis County HHS/VS program that assists high-risk children by 

improving their school performance and preventing them from falling into the juvenile justice system, 

through traditional services such as therapy and nontraditional services like parent coaching.  In the 

PY09 Action Plan, an expansion of the program was approved as a CDBG project with $32,100 in funds.  

This project was not implemented. Given the relatively small amount of funding for this project, other 

CDBG projects with larger funding amounts were given higher priority to ensure for timely spending of 

funds.  Additionally, this project represents an expansion of an existing program that is funded through 

General Funds, so clients are currently able to access these services in other ways and deletion of the 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Introduction 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   13 

CDBG funds did not impact service provision. Because other projects better meet the strategic goals for 

the CDBG program, this project was deleted from PY09 Action Plan and the funds reprogrammed. 

 

Reallocation of Funds 

 

The project savings in the PY06-PY10 Action Plans and the funds from the deletion of the above 

mentioned public service project were reallocated to Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation.   

 

 

Amendment to the PY2011-2013 Consolidated Plan 

 

Every three years, urban counties receiving CDBG funds must re-affirm their urban county entitlement 

status. In PY10, Travis County renewed its status for 2012-2014.  As part of the qualification process, 

Travis County chose to invite non-entitlement cities and villages to participate in the Travis County 

CDBG program.  The Village of Webberville elected to join the Urban County, and a Cooperative 

Agreement was approved by TCCC in July 2011. Beginning in PY2012 the Village of Webberville will be 

part of the CDBG Program service area. 

 

The addition of the Village of Webberville does not change the analysis of community needs or the 

identification of strategic directions for PY2011-2013.  This amendment acknowledges the inclusion of 

the Village of Webberville and the eligibility of projects to be located there.   



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   14 

 

 
 
 

GENERAL QUESTIONS 
 
 
 

 
 

 

STATUS OF PROJECTS 
 

 

PROJECT 1:   

OWNER HOUSING – PRODUCTION OF NEW UNITS 
 

Activity: Land Acquisition  

IDIS Activity Numbers: 7 for PY06, 10 for PY07, 26 for PY08, and 33 for PY10 

 

    

Dedication of first house for the project           Dedication of second house for the project 

 

Project Description 

 

Parcels or one large tract of land in unincorporated Travis County were acquired to build affordable 

single-family housing of which 17 units will be dedicated to low-income families (25-50% Median 

Family Income) and 14 units will be dedicated to moderate-income families (up to 80% Median Family 

Income).  Financing for the lots is available to homeowners as a 10-year forgivable loan.  Single-family 

housing is defined as a one- to four-family residence.  Public hearings were held to inform the public of 

the location(s) prior to the purchase of the land.   

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   15 

Austin Habitat for Humanity, a local nonprofit, will secure funding for the construction of homes on the 

acquired property.  Thirty-one units of affordable housing will be created.  The number of individuals 

impacted will vary depending upon the families selected for the housing units.   

 

Project Status and Progress to Date 

 

 Two houses were completed during PY11 and are currently occupied.       

 

Performance Measure 

 

Affordability for the purpose of creating decent housing. 

 

 

 

  

     
 
 

  

  
 
 

 
 

    

 Activity 
Con-Plan 
Priority 

Funds 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended during  

PY 11 

Total CDBG 
funds 

Expended 

Amended 
Goal/ 
Actual 

Owner 
Housing 

High 
CDBG 

Private 
Prior Years: 
$1,062,548.90 

$282,342 $0 $1,062,544.90 
31/2  

Housing Units 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   16 

PROJECT 2:   

HOMEOWNER REHABILITATION 
Activity: Home Repair 

IDIS Activity Numbers: 16 for PY08, 21 for PY09, and 36 for PY11 

 
Project Description 

 

This project will fund home repair and weatherization services to low- and moderate-income 

homeowners in the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  The program seeks to improve the energy 

efficiency, physical living conditions, and safety in owner-occupied homes. Services will be provided by 

a nonprofit, designated subrecipient and identified through a formal application process in which it 

demonstrates the ability to provide services and adhere to federal guidelines. The program will target 

households at or below 80 percent of the median family income. A maximum of $24,999 of CDBG 

assistance per year will be provided to a homebuyer for a single home in the form of a 5-year 

forgivable loan. 

 

Project Status and Progress to Date 

 

 A Tier One environmental was drafted.   

 At close of PY11 a Request-for-Services (RFS) to identify a subrecipient for administration of the 

program is in the final stages of internal Travis County review. 

 The project is anticipated to launch in January 2013, and will begin providing service to those 

who qualify on the waiting list.    

 

Performance Measure 

 

Improving the quality of owner housing. 

 

Activity 
Con-
Plan 

Priority 

Funds 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended 

during  
PY 11 

Total CDBG 
funds 

Expended 

Amended 
Goal/ 
Actual 

Home 
Rehabilitation 

High 
CDBG 

 

Prior Years*: 
$464,071.96 

PY11 $368,636 
$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

35/0  
Housing Units 

* Substantial Amendment in June 2012 reallocated funds from prior year project savings and from deletion of YFAC Flex Fund project.   



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   17 

 PROJECT 3:   

LAKE OAK ESTATES 
 
Activity: Street Improvements  

IDIS Activity Numbers: 35 for PY11 

 
Project Description: 
 

 

The Lake Oak Estates Neighborhood 

completed a primary survey in March 2011 

and was identified as a low- to moderate- 

income area. The roads in the unincorporated 

areas of Lake Oak Estates do not meet Travis 

County standards; therefore, the substandard 

roads cannot be accepted into the Travis 

County road maintenance program.   

 

 

 

The street improvement scope of work may include, 

but is not limited to: 1) design services, 2) land 

surveying services, 3) geo-technical services, 4) 

drainage design services, 5) utility location and 

relocation coordination services, 6) environmental 

review and related regulatory permits, 7) acquisition 

of right-of-way and easements, and 8) construction. 

 

 

 

 

The project will take place in three phases and include the improvement to sections of Cavalier Canyon 

Drive, Bowling Lane, Covenant Canyon Trail, Holly Lane and related cross streets.  The first phase, 

funded with PY11 grant funds, included: 1) design services, 2) land surveying services, 3) geo-technical 

services, 4) drainage design services, 5) utility location and relocation coordination services, 6) 

Facing Northwest on Holly Lane 

Facing Southeast on Bowling Lane 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   18 

environmental review and related regulatory permits, and 7) project management time. The 

improvements impact 126 people, of which, 85.7% are considered low to moderate income based on 

the primary survey.     

 

Project Status and Progress to Date 

 

 A Request-for-Qualifications (RFQ) process took place in PY11 and an Architectural and 

Engineering firm was selected to administer the design phase of the program.   

 In July of 2011 a Notice to Proceed was issued to the chosen firm. 

 At close of PY11, design is underway. 

 At close of PY11, draft environmental report has been completed and is awaiting Travis County 

review. 

 

Performance Measure 

 

Accessibility for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment. 

 

Activity 
Con-Plan 
Priority 

Funds 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
 Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended 

during 
PY 11 

Total CDBG 
Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Street 
Improvements 

High CDBG 
PY11: 

$145,000 
NA $54,192.80 $54,192.80 

126/0 
People 

 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   19 

PROJECT 4:   

HOMEBUYER ASSISTANCE 
 

Activity: Direct Homeownership Assistance through Down Payment Assistance and Shared 

Appreciation Gap Financing 

IDIS Activity Number: 31 for PY09 and 28 for PY10 

 
Project description 

  

In an effort to make housing affordable to “first-time home purchasing” families whose annual 

household income is at or below 80 percent of the Area Median Income (AMI), the Travis County 

Affordable Housing Ownership Program will make Shared Appreciation Gap Financing and Down 

payment Assistance loans available. The project will be administered by a designated subrecipient. All 

program income will be reinvested into the Homebuyer Assistance program. 

 

Shared Appreciation Gap Financing 

 

Households earning 80% or less of the AMI may obtain up to $30,000 to reduce the sales price to an 

amount affordable to the household. Actual assistance amount will be calculated based on actual 

family need. The loan is a 0% interest, 30-year note with no required annual or monthly payments. 

Upon resale, refinancing, lease, or other transfer of title, the loan must be repaid in full plus a 

percentage of the property’s appreciation value. 

 

Down Payment Assistance 

 

Households earning 80 percent or less of the area Median Family Income (MFI) may obtain up to 

$8,000 to cover down payment and reasonable closing costs. The loan is a 0% interest, 5-year note 

with no required annual or monthly payments. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each 

year of homeownership. The loan is fully forgiven at the end of 5 years. A minimum household 

investment of $500 is required. 

 

All households who are interested in receiving financial assistance through the Travis County 

Affordable Housing Ownership Program are required to participate in a minimum of eight (8) hours of 

HUD-certified housing counseling.  

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   20 

Project Status and Progress to Date 

 

 A Request-for-Services (RFS) process took place in PY11 and a subrecipient was selected to 

administer the program.   

 The subrecipient contract was approved on September 11, 2012. 

 At close of PY11, Travis County and the subrecipient are finalizing all program processes and 

forms, and the program will begin accepting applications in early PY12.  

 

Performance Measure 

 

Availability for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment. 

 

Activity 
Con-Plan 
Priority 

Fund Sources 
CDBG 

Funding 
Leveraged 

Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended during 

PY 11 

Total 
CDBG 
Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Homebuyer 
Assistance 

High CDBG 
Prior Years: 
$794,945 

N/A $0 $0 

 
63/0 

Households 
 
 

 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   21 

PROJECT 5:   

PUBLIC SERVICES, OTHER 
 

Activity: HHS/VS Family Support Services (FFS) Division Social Work Services Expansion 

IDIS Activity Number: 34 for PY11 

 
Project Description 

 

This program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service (HHS/VS) 

expansion of existing services.  In PY11, the program was redesigned to expand social work services by 

increasing to the equivalent of one-and-a-half social workers resulting in additional capacity to provide 

case management, information and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention, and outreach 

in all four precincts of the unincorporated areas.  The 1.5 full time equivalents (FTEs) partially funded 

eight social workers who work at a Travis County HHS/VS facility; however, to reduce transportation 

barriers, the social workers provide the majority of service provision through home visits.  Additionally, 

part of the funds will be used for operating expenses such as items necessary to provide home-based 

services, and mileage and training, among other related expenses.   

 

Project Status and Progress to Date 

 

 Outreach to a total of 422 agencies, school districts, churches, and neighborhood associations 

during PY11 to inform community members about the social work services available. 

 391 people benefitted from services provided during PY11. Services included case 

management, referrals, non-clinical counseling, and crisis intervention.  

 7 clients received assistance through the Youth and Family Assessment Center program.   

 35 clients were assisted with Travis County or State funded rent or utility assistance programs. 

 A map is included below to show the number and distribution of clients served by the program 

in PY11. 

 While the program did not meet the anticipated 500 clients, it was Year 1 of a program design 

change, and the outreach became a key component to gaining access to underserved clients.   

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                         Page    |   22 

  

Map 1: 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   23 

Performance Measure 
 
Availability for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment. 

 

Activity 
Con-Plan 
Priority 

Fund 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged  
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended 

during 
PY 11 

Total CDBG 
Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Public 
Services 

High 
 

CDBG 
 

 
PY11: 

$118,500 
 

 
$26,650.93* 

 
$89,468.77 $89,468.77 

500/391 
People 

*Leveraged funding comes from Travis County General Fund rent and utility assistance, Flexible Youth 
Funding and State pass through funds for utility and rental assistance.  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   24 

PROJECT 6:   

PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Activity: Administration 

IDIS Activity Number: 37 for PY11 

  
Project Description 
 

The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with the grant 

including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, membership, and other business 

related expenses.  Additionally, the funds will pay for a portion of the salary for the CDBG Planner and 

a portion of the salary of a Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 

Senior Engineer who acts as a project manager for CDBG-funded street and water supply improvement 

projects.  The TNR Senior Engineer also coordinates the preparation of project scopes, eligibility, cost 

estimates, and project design.  
 

Project Status and Progress to Date 

 

 During PY11, CDBG staff provided technical assistance to one neighborhood to enable them to 

conduct a primary survey; 

 Through a Request for Services (RFS) process a consultant was hired to undertake a county-

wide Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (AI); 

 The first draft of the AI was delivered for County review;  

 Through an RFS process a nonprofit was contracted to administer the Homebuyer Assistance 

Program and the RFS process for the Home Rehabilitation project was finalized for release;  

 Staff provided significant amounts of technical assistance and training to contractors, internal 

departments and subrecipients; 

 The PY 10 CAPER and PY12 Action Plan were completed on time; 

 Staff assisted the Research and Planning Department of HHS/VS in drafting two reports: Travis 

County Snapshot from the American Community Survey and an annual Community Impact 

Report; 

 Staff participated in homeless and housing planning through a variety of groups including the 

steering committee for a regional Opportunity Mapping project, the Continuum of Care 

Independent Review Team and the Hunger and Homeless Awareness Week Committee. 

   

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   25 

Performance Measure 

 

N/A 

 

Activity 
Con-Plan 
Priority 

Fund 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged  
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended during 

PY 11 

Total CDBG 
Funds Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Planning High 
CDBG 
Travis 

County 
$158,000  

To be added 
to the final 

report* 
$153,145.83 $153,145.83 N/A 

* Leveraged funding is in the form of general fund dollars.  The FY12 year has not closed yet at time of 
publishing the draft.  The leveraged funding will be added to the final report after year end close.  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   26 

CDBG-RECOVERY 
 

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ("Recovery Act") was signed into law by 

President Obama on February 17, 2009. The Recovery Act awards $1 billion in CDBG Recovery (CDBG-

R) funds to be distributed to cities, counties, insular areas and states, of which $10 million has been 

reserved by the U.S. Department of Housing (HUD) for its administrative costs and $10 million of which 

will be awarded to Indian tribes.  Recipients of the remaining $980 million of CDBG-R funds were the 

approximately 1,200 jurisdictions that received CDBG funding in Fiscal Year 2008.   

 

Travis County, as an entitlement jurisdiction that received CDBG funding in Fiscal Year 2008, qualified 

to apply for $226,300 in CDBG-R funds. As is the case with the regular CDBG funds, these funds must 

benefit Travis County low- to moderate-income residents who live in the unincorporated areas of the 

county. In addition, the CDBG-R funds must meet at least one of the objectives of the Recovery Act by 

stimulating the economy through measures that modernize the Nation’s infrastructure, improve 

energy efficiency, or expand educational opportunities and access to health care. 

 

The application for funds was conducted through a modified Substantial Amendment process in May 

2009 and submitted in June 2009.     

 

PROJECT 7:   

PLAINVIEW WATER CONNECTION PROJECT 
 

Activity: Home Rehabilitation 
IDIS Activity Number: 20 for PY 11 

 
Project Description 

 
This project involves the service connection of approximately 39 houses (approximately 140 

individuals) to public water infrastructure for the first time. The homes are located in Plain View 

Estates, a primarily low- to moderate-income neighborhood located in the unincorporated areas of 

Eastern Travis County that has experienced water shortages in the residents’ personal wells resulting in 

some residents having to truck in water. Connections were only provided to income eligible low- to 

moderate-income homeowners at or below 80% of the Area Median Family Income as defined by HUD. 

 

The project includes design, engineering, surveying, environmental review, construction and related 

costs for project management and eligibility determination. Work was completed by a design 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   27 

consultant and construction contractor, and the project was managed by the Travis County 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department, CDBG Senior Engineer. 

 

 

      
American Recovery and              South view from Plain View Drive           West view of Plain View Drive 

               Reinvestment Act Sign 

 

Project Status and Progress to Date 

 

 During 2011, an Environmental Assessment was completed and certified by the Travis County 

Commissioners Court and signed by the Travis County Judge. 

 A construction contract was issued to Keystone Construction of Austin, Texas to install the 

water services lines and connect the houses to the existing water distribution system. 

 20 households (66 individuals) were approved as income eligible for the project.   

 Of the possible 39 homes to be assisted, 20 were approved for connection.  The remaining 19 

were already connected, did not want service or did not qualify. 

 Water service is being supplied by SouthWest Water Company. 

 
 

Activity 
Con-Plan 
Priority 

Funds 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
 Funding 

CDBG-R funds 
Expended 

during 
PY 11 

Total CDBG-
R Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Home 
Rehabilitation 

High CDBG-R $226,300 $0 $117,692 
 
$201,790.16 

 

39 
households/20 

households  

 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   28 

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS 
 
To date, Travis County has not had any consortium cities participating in the use of CDBG funds; 

therefore, all services and planning efforts have been focused on the unincorporated areas of the 

county.  In June 2011, the Village of Webberville joined Travis County’s Urban County; therefore, 

beginning in PY12 the Village of Webberville will be considered part of the CDBG service area.   

 

Travis County’s CDBG program does not have any designated target areas. Refer to the table below for 

specific descriptions of geographic distribution for each one of the CDBG projects.  For a map of the 

project locations and racial and ethnic concentrations, please refer to the maps below.  

 

Figure 6: Geographic Distribution of Grant Activity for the Program Year 2011  

Project Location/ Census Tract 

 Production of New Owner Housing Units: 
via Land acquisition  

Precinct 1, Census Tract:  22.05 Block Group: 4 

 Street Improvements: Lake Oak Estates Precinct 4, Census Tract:  17.42, Block Group: 2 

 Public Services, Other: Family Support 
Services Social Work Services Expansion 

Various eligible households in the unincorporated areas of Travis 
County. Specifically residents in the following zip codes were served 
in PY11: 78610, 78612, 78613, 78615, 78617, 78621, 78641, 78645, 
78652, 78653, 76854, 78660, 78664, 78719, 78724, 78725, 78728, 
78734, 78736, 78737, 78739, 78744, 78747, 78754  

 Housing Rehabilitation  Households residing in the unincorporated areas of the County 

 Homebuyer Assistance 
Households purchasing homes in the unincorporated areas of the 
County 

 
  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   29 

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS & RACIAL CONCENTRATION 

 
This section outlines the projects in relation to the racial and ethnic concentrations in the areas where 

they are located.  The table below demonstrates the racial breakout of persons served by projects 

implemented during PY11 and the maps identify where each of the street improvements, land 

acquisition, and public service projects are located.   

 

Figure 7: PY11 Project Beneficiaries by Race and Ethnicity 

Project 

Ethnicity Race 
Total 

People 
Benefited 

 
Hispanic 

Non-
Hispanic 

Amer. 
Indian or 
Alaskan 
Native 

Asian/ 
Pac. 

Islander 

Black or 
African 

American 
White 

Other/ 
Multi 
Race 

 Public 
Services, 
Other – FFS 
Services* 

125 266 2 0 61 318 10 391 

 Lake Oak 
Estates 

88 38 0 0 0 29 97 126 

 Plain View 
Estates 

65 1 0 0 1 24 41 66 

 Land 
Acquisition* 

9 0 0 0 0 9 0 9 

Total 287 305 2 0 62 380 148 592 

*Data gathered from the PY11 performance report submitted by service providers. 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                          Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                         Page    |   30 

 

Map 2: 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   31 

 

Map 3: 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   32 

 

Map 4: 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   33 

 

Map 5: 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   34 

 

Map 6: 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX           Page    |   35 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF PROJECTS 
 
Compliance with CDBG National Objectives 

  

The use of CDBG funds requires selecting eligible projects that meet one of the three national 

objectives prescribed by HUD.  These are: 

 

1) benefitting low/moderate income (LMI) persons;  

2) addressing slum or blighted areas; and  

3) addressing an urgent need.  

 

All of the projects implemented during the Program Year 2011 met the national HUD objective of 

benefiting low/moderate income persons, thereby complying with the additional HUD requirement of 

spending 70% of CDBG funds on LMI persons.  The CDBG Financial Summary for Program Year 2011 

Report located in Appendix C shows that 100% of the PY11 expenditures benefitted low to moderate 

income persons. 

 

For an activity to qualify as meeting the LMI national objective, grantees must certify they are following 

one of four qualifying categories: area of benefit activities, limited clientele activities, housing 

activities, and job creation or retention activities. A low-to-moderate (low-mod) area of benefit (LMA) 

activity is one that benefits all residents in a particular area, where at least 45.14% (based on an 

exception criteria) of the residents are LMI persons. A limited clientele (LMC) activity is one where 51% 

of the beneficiaries have to be LMI persons.  Low-mod housing (LMH) applies to activities that aim to 

provide or improve permanent residential structures, which upon completion will be occupied by LMI 

households.  A low-mod job (LMJ) creation activity is one designed to create or retain permanent jobs, 

at least 51% of which will be made available to or held by LMI persons. 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   36 

 

 

Map 7: Map 7: 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX           Page    |   37 

The following table summarizes the category under which each project qualifies to meet the LMI 

national objective as well as the specific number of clients served in each target income area. In the 

cases of projects where no individuals have received services yet, a check mark identifies the 

anticipated income targets for the clients that will benefit from that project.   

 

Figure 8: PY11 Beneficiaries By Income 

Project 
National 
Objective 

 
Low to Moderate Income Target 

 

Above 
Moderate 

Income 
(Above 80% 

MFI) 

 

Total People 
Benefited Very Low 

 (<30% MFI) 

Low  
(30.1 to 

50% MFI) 

Moderate  
(50.1 to 

80% MFI) 

 Land Acquisition 
for Affordable 
Housing 
Development 

Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
(LMH) 

√ 4 5 N/A 9 

 Home 
Rehabilitation 

Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
(LMH) 

√ √ 

 
√ 

N/A 0 

 Street 
Improvements 
Lake Oak Estates 

Low/Moderate 
Income Area 
Benefit* (LMA) 

53 38 17 18 126 

 Homebuyer 
Assistance via 
Direct 
Homeownership 
Assistance 

Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
(LMH) 

√ √ 

 
 

√ N/A 0 

 Public Services, 
Other – FFS 
Services 

 

Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele (LMC) 

309 69 13 N/A 391 

 Plainview Estates^ 
Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
(LMH) 

31 6 29 N/A 66 

Total persons served  393 117 64 18 592 

MFI = Median Family Income as defined by HUD Area Benefit 
*Road Improvement projects qualify as a Low-Mod Area of Benefit through an Exception Rule Provision or Upper Quartile 
Criterion permitted by HUD. Travis County’s exception rule is 45.14%.  To learn more about the Exception rule visit the 
following site: http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/lawsregs/notices/2005/05-06.pdf. The Lake Oak Estates neighborhood 
conducted a primary survey that indicated 85.7% of respondents were below 80% MFI.    
^ The Plainview Estates Project was funded with CDBG-R funds.   
Note: A checkmark indicates anticipated income levels of project beneficiaries.  

http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/lawsregs/notices/2005/05-06.pdf


PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   38 

Compliance with CONPLAN Goals 

 

CDBG projects must also fit within one of the high priority project categories approved by Travis 

County Commissioners Court for the 2011-2013 planning period. The following list summarizes those 

high priorities identified and the corresponding projects implemented during PY11.  

 

Figure 9: High Priorities in the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan and  

Projects Implemented in PY11 

High Priorities  Projects  

Housing Gilbert Lane Land Acquisition; Home Buyer Assistance; Home Repair 

Infrastructure Street Improvements: Lake Oak Estates 

Community Services Public Services: Social Work Expansion 

 

Assessment of Goals and Objectives 

 

This section articulates the CDBG accomplishments for PY11 as they relate to the goals and objectives, 

spending, overall performance and effective grant management. A total of 592 people benefited from 

the projects completed under the first year of the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan.   

 

It is important to note that in many cases the impact of the projects will not be captured for a number 

of years, given some of the projects will take 12-60 months to implement and complete. For example, 

the production of new owner housing units will not be completed until 2016. Even though CDBG funds 

are only expected to support the acquisition of the land, the performance indicator will not be 

achieved until the houses are fully constructed and qualifying households have purchased the homes.   

 

Figure 10: Summary of Specific Objectives (HUD Table 1 C) 

Project Title 
Specific 

Objectives 
Sources of 

Funds 
Performance Indicators Year Target # Actual # 

Percent 
Completed 

SL-1 Availability/Accessibility of Living Environment  (Outcome/Objective) 

Street Improvements: 
Lake Oak Estates 

Improve 
quality of 

public 
improvement 

for lower 
income 
persons 

CDBG 

 Number of people who 
will benefit from improved 
road 

2011 0 0 0 

2012 126 N/A N/A 

2013 126 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 126 0 0 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   39 

Project Title 
Specific 

Objectives 
Sources of 

Funds 
Performance Indicators Year Target # Actual # 

Percent 
Completed 

SL-1 Availability/Accessibility of Living Environment  (Outcome/Objective) 

Family Support 
Services Social Work 
Services Expansion 

Improve the 
availability of 
services for 

low/mod 
income 
persons 

 
CDBG 

Number of people with 
expanded access to service 

2011 500 391 78%* 

2012 500 N/A N/A 

2013 500 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 1500 391 26% 

 
Homeowner 
Rehabilitation:  
Plainview Estates 
 

Improve the 
quality of 

owner housing 
CDBG-R 

Number of households who 
will benefit 

2011 39 20 51%* 

2012 N/A N/A N/A 

2013 N/A N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 39 20 100% 

Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 

Improve the 
quality of 
owner housing 

CDBG 
Number of housing units 
rehabilitated 

2011 20 0 0 

2012 8 N/A N/A 

2013 7 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 35 0 0% 

DH-2 Affordability of Decent Housing  (Outcome/Objective) 

Owner Housing -
Production of New Units: 
Land Acquisition 

Owner Housing CDBG 

Number of housing units 
constructed 

2011 6 2 33% 

2012 6 N/A N/A 

2013 6 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 18 2 11% 

Homebuyer Assistance Owner Housing CDBG 

Number of households who 
will benefit 

2011 20 0 0 

2012 15 N/A N/A 

2013 4 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 39 0 0% 

*The project is complete.   
 
The coding system used in the Outcome/Objective rows in the table above follows the numbering 

system established in the Community Planning and Development Outcome Performance Measurement 

System.  The outcome/objective numbers stand for the following: 

 

Figure 11: Numbering System for Outcome and Objective Coding 

Objective 
Outcome 

Availability/Accessibility Affordability Sustainability 

Decent Housing DH-1 DH-2 DH-3 

Suitable Living Environment SL-1 SL-2 SL-3 

Economic Opportunity EO-1 EO-2 EO-3 

 
 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   40 

EXPENDITURES AND LEVERAGED RESOURCES FOR PROGRAM YEAR 
2011 
 
Overall Expenditures 

 

During PY11, spending occurred in 5 different projects and progress was made in moving forward with 

the remaining 2. Of the funds available to the 5 activities, $307,359.59 was spent, per HUD’s data 

management system called IDIS.  

 

Figure 12: CDBG PY11 Summary Financial Report from IDIS 

CDBG Program Year 2011 Summary Financial Report 

Carryover from PY10 1,269,571.85 

PY11 CDBG Entitlement Grant $790,136 

Total CDBG Funds Available for PY11 2,059,707.85 

PY11 Funds Committed 2,059,707.85 

PY11 Funds Expended 307,359.59 

Carryover to PY12 1,752,348.26 

HUD Timeliness Ratio 2.21 

 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   41 

EXPENDITURES PER PROJECT 
 

The following figure summarizes the budgeted funding, the expended funds and the percent expended 

for each of the projects. 

 

Figure 13:  Summary of PY11 Expenditures by Project 

Activities PY 11 Budgeted Funding Available 
Expended 

during PY 11 
Percent 

Expended 
PY11 Cap 

Percentages 

Production of New Owner 
Housing Units Via land acquisition 
and infrastructure development  

Prior Year’s Funding: $4 
PY11: $0 

$0 99.9% N/A 

Homeowner Rehabilitation 
Minor home repair up to $24,999 
 

Prior Year’s Funding: $464,071.96 
PY11: $368,636 

$0 0% N/A 

Homebuyer Assistance: 
Direct Homeownership Assistance 
through Down Payment Assistance 
and Shared Appreciation Gap 
Financing 

Prior Year’s Funding: $794,945 
PY11: $0 

$0 0% N/A 

Street Improvements: Lake Oak 
Estates  

$145,000 $54,192.80 37% N/A 

Public Services, Other: Family 
Support Services (FFS) Social Work 
Services Expansion –Travis County 
HHS/VS Program 

$118,500 $89,468.77 11.32% 11.32% 

Administration & Planning: CDBG $158,000 $153,145.83 19.38% 19.38% 

Plainview Prior Year CDBG-R funding: $226,300  $201,790.16 92% N/A 

 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   42 

TIMELY SPENDING OF FUNDS 
 
As part of the mandate from Congress to administer the CDBG program, each year HUD determines 

whether each CDBG entitlement is carrying out its activities “in a timely manner.” HUD conducts an 

analysis of each entitlement’s timeliness of spending 10 months into each grant year. For Travis 

County, occurs every August. The threshold for compliance with timeliness is having no more than 1.5 

times the current year’s allocation unspent. The Program did not achieve timeliness with a ratio of 2.38 

for its August 2011 timeliness test. The Program has submitted a work out plan that demonstrates 

compliance by next year, which HUD has been approved.  

 

Leveraging Resources 

 

Although no matching requirements are mandated for CDBG, during the reporting period, Travis 

County was successful in using HUD’s CDBG funds to leverage additional funds from public sources.  

The following table summarizes the amount of dollars leveraged: 

 

Figure 14: PY11 Leveraged Resources 

Project/Activity  
Leveraged 

Partners 
Committed 

Leveraged Resources 
Spent during   

PY 2011 

Family Support Services Social 
Work Services Expansion 

 General Fund rent and 
utility assistance 

programs 
TBD $8,457.87 

State rent and utility 
assistance programs 

TBD $9,921.81 

Youth and Family 
Assessment Center 
(flexible funding) 

TBD $8,271.25 

Administration and Planning of 
CDBG 

Travis County General 
Fund 

TBD 
To be added to the 

final report* 

Land Acquisition:  Gilbert Lane Private funds TBD $282,342 

Total Leveraged Funding $308,992.93^ 

* Leveraged funding is in the form of general fund dollars.  The FY12 year has not closed yet at time of publishing the draft.  
The leveraged funding will be added to the final report after year end close.  
^The total will be updated in the final report. 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   43 

MANAGING THE PROCESS 
 
Comprehensive Planning 

 

The Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service (HHS/VS) Department has a Research 

and Planning (R&P) Division tasked with much of the comprehensive planning for the department, 

both internally and externally with community partners.  The R&P Division focuses on different issue 

areas including basic needs, workforce development, child and youth services (with particular 

emphasis on early childhood education), public health (particularly HIV/AIDS), behavioral health, and 

efforts to organize the community around support for the elderly and immigrants.  Additionally, the 

R&P Division provides information services to inform decision making in the HHS/VS Department and 

across the community.  These services include:  an annual report of community trends and statistics 

based on the American Community Survey, periodic surveys of community-based organizations, and 

focused research and analysis upon request. 

 

CDBG makes requests of the R&P Division for technical assistance, as needed, to assist with data 

collection, resource development, and planning in the areas related to housing, homelessness and 

community development.  This collaborative effort increases capacity and reduces duplication of 

planning efforts for the Department.   

 

During PY11, CDBG staff collaborated with R&P staff on data verification and review of the Travis 

County Snapshot from the American Community Survey, an annual summary of Travis County’s social, 

housing, and economic characteristics, based on the results from the U.S. Census Bureau’s American 

Community Survey.  Additionally, CDBG staff drafted portions relating to housing and homelessness for 

the Community Impact Report, an annual report that provides performance data, client data, and other 

information about the social service investments of the Travis County HHS/VS Department. 

 

Over the Program Year 2011, CDBG staff has also participated in the following comprehensive planning 

efforts: 

 

Homelessness 

 

CDBG staff represents HHS/VS in the Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO).  This 

membership provides staff the opportunity to be involved in the issue area, to advocate for the 

homeless population found in the unincorporated areas, to identify service strategies, and to ensure 

identified pockets of homeless persons in the unincorporated areas are included in the annual 

homeless count.  CDBG staff participated in the Independent Review Team for the Continuum of Care 

applications.   The County Executive of the HHS/VS Department was chair of ECHO’s Membership 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   44 

Council and the Finance Committee for the Permanent Supportive Housing.  Additionally, CDBG staff 

was involved in ECHO's Education and Outreach Work Group.  Staff members on this 

workgroup contributed to the planning of ECHO's annual Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week 

to be held in November 2012.  Furthermore, a Social Worker funded through CDBG participated in 

ECHO’s Housing Committee and Permanent Supportive Housing work.  Staff also participated in the 

annual Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week in November 2011, a mapping of VA voucher 

process and the Point in Time Homeless Count in January 2012.   

 

Resource Development 

 

The Research and Planning Division has a staff person dedicated to monitoring and reviewing grant 

opportunities.  Over the last program year, CDBG and R&P staff kept one another informed about 

federal, State, and local funding streams and new funds available through various systems  

 

Affordable Housing 

 

CDBG staff attended several meetings over the last Program Year related to affordable housing with 

the bulk of its participation occurring with the Community Action Network’s (CAN) housing planning 

group.  During PY11, staff participated in meetings with other regional entities to discuss more 

coordinated planning in the county as well as the five-county region.  Additionally, the County met with 

City of Austin staff to discuss a joint Housing Market Study for the next Consolidated Plan period.  A 

timeline was established to help identify funding needs and deadlines.   

 

Opportunity Mapping 

 

CDBG staff participated in the steering committee for the update to the Opportunity Maps for the 5-

county region composed of Bastrop, Caldwell, Hays, Travis and Williamson counties.  The central 

premise of opportunity mapping is that residents of a metropolitan area are situated within an 

interconnected web of opportunities that shape their quality of life.  The maps use a variety of 

indicators relating to education, economics, transportation, health, and neighborhood quality, to show 

the level of opportunity to which people in different parts of the region have access. The first set of 

maps was created in 2007 and the updates will be complete by late 2012. The initiative is being led by 

the nonprofit Green Doors, and the maps are being created by the Kirwan Institute.    The completed 

maps will be used by a variety of stakeholders to help site projects and make other planning decisions.  

A final report will be provided during PY12.    

 

 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   45 

Analysis of Impediments 

 

Travis County contracted with the firm Mullin & Lonergan to undertake an AI for the County.  As part of 

the research for the AI, the consultants held two community forums, and conducted onsite interviews 

and focus groups with a wide variety of stakeholders, both internal and external to the County.  At  

close of Program Year 2011, the consultants have delivered the first draft of the AI for Travis County 

review.  The final draft of the document is anticipated to be presented to the Commissioners Court in 

the second quarter of PY12, with a public comment period to follow.   

 

Foreclosures  

 

During the Program Year, CDBG purchased county-wide foreclosure data.  This data was presented in 

the PY12 Action Plan.  CDBG anticipates continuing to work collaboratively through participatory 

research in this area to ensure a consistent message on the issue. 

 

 

Board, Commission and Association Involvement 

 

Staff from different divisions of the HHS/VS department, including CDBG and R&P, are currently 

involved in numerous boards, commissions, associations, and councils, not only to further the 

understanding of the relationship between the community and the needs of its most vulnerable 

residents, but also to be a resource to the community, offering data and analysis, grant-writing skills, 

contacts with influential businesses, community and government leaders, and knowledge of 

government-funded program opportunities. 

 

Compliance with Certifications 

 

Travis County carried out all planned actions described in the HUD–approved Consolidated Plan, 

including: 

 

 Pursuing all resources indicated in the Consolidated Plan.  Resources include leveraged dollars 

for grant administration, homes built on acquired land, and public services. 

 Travis County provided requested certifications of consistency for HUD programs in a fair and 

impartial manner. 

 Travis County did not hinder the Consolidated Plan implementation through any action or 

willful inaction. 

 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   46 

Anti-Displacement and Relocation 

 

Consistent with the goals and objectives of 24 CFR Part 570.606, Travis County commits to making all 

reasonable efforts to ensure activities undertaken with federal funds will not cause unnecessary 

displacement or relocation of persons (families, individuals, businesses, nonprofit organizations and 

farms).  

 

Travis County’s policy on displacement, at present, is to not fund projects that displace persons.  Travis 

County did not demolish real property with PY11 funds.   The rehabilitation work that occurred was 

conducted in such a manner that no one was displaced .  

 

Specific Activities 

 

HUD requires reporting on certain types of activities funded by CDBG.  Below is the list of responses to 

the required questions.   

 

 Low/Mod Job Activities: Travis County did not undertake any low/mod job activities during 

the reporting year.  

 

 Low/Mod Limited Clientele Activities: The Social Work Services Expansion project is 

currently being implemented successfully. Please refer to the table title “Benefit to Low and 

Moderate Income Persons by Project” to see the breakdown of clients by income level. 

 

 Housing Rehabilitation: Travis County funded two housing rehabilitation activities during 

PY11.  One project was funded with CDBG-R funds and one was funded with CDBGR funds.   

CDBG-R: 

Twenty units were connected to a permanent source of water, and the project spent 

$201,790.16 on the project with CDBG-R funds.  During PY11, $117,692 was spent. No 

other funds were used for this project. 

CDBG: 

No units were rehabilitated with CDBG funds this year.  The program was delayed and is 

anticipated to begin in January 2013. 

 

 Neighborhood Revitalization Strategies: Travis County does not currently have any HUD-

approved neighborhood revitalization strategy areas. 

 

 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   47 

Fiscal Related Items 

 

HUD requires reporting on certain types of fiscal-related items funded by CDBG.  Below is the list of 

responses to the required questions.   

 

 Program Income: Travis County did not receive any program income during the 2011 

program year. 

 

 Prior Period Adjustments: Travis County did not have any prior period adjustments for the 

2011 program year. 

 

 Loans and Other Receivables:  Travis County retains a promissory note and deed of trust 

with Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc. on 29 lots related to the Gilbert Lane Land 

Acquisition project.  This loan is in place to ensure that the required units are built per the 

subrecipient agreement.  No payments are required and no interest is accrued.  During PY 

11, two homes were built and occupied by qualifying families; therefore, the County 

released the lien on two of the 31 lots acquired in PY10.   A restrictive covenant was 

executed with the two homeowners to outline program requirements for the 0% interest, 

10 year forgivable loan on the land.   

 

 Lump Sum Agreements: Travis County did not use any lump sum agreements during the 

2011 program year. 

 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   48 

MONITORING 
 

As the lead agency for the development and implementation of the Consolidated Plan, the Travis 

County HHS&VS Department implements standard policies and procedures for monitoring CDBG 

programs.  These monitoring activities ensure compliance with program regulations and compliance 

with financial requirements. Federal guidelines include: OMB A-110, OMB A-122, 24 CFR Part 570.603 

(CDBG Labor Standards), 570.901-906 (CDBG) and the Davis Bacon Act and Contract Work Hours and 

Safety Standards Act (CDBG). 

 

HHS/VS provides contract administration for community development activities in conjunction with the 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department, including but not limited to contract negotiations, 

compliance monitoring, and payment and contract closeout.  

 

Frequency and Results of Monitoring Activity 

 

Sub-recipients 

 

Sub-recipient agreements will be used to conduct housing, community development and public service 

activities. The sub-recipient agreement will be the foundation for programmatic monitoring. Sub-recipients 

will be monitored for programmatic compliance on-site or remotely in the following manner:  

 

1.  All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by financial 

services and the Auditor’s Office.  

2. All new sub-recipients will be desk audited monthly and monitored semi-annually until no 

findings occur.  

3.  After four consecutive semi-annual monitoring reports with no findings annual visits will occur.  

 

Financial monitoring will be completed as necessary and as directed by the sub-recipient fiscal performance 

and the external monitoring needs of the Travis County Auditor’s office. Programmatic and fiscal 

monitoring may not occur concurrently. 

 

Contractors 

 

Contractors may be used to provide some housing, community development and public services. 

Contractors submit periodic reimbursement requests that document and verify expenditures. The contract 

agreement will be used as the primary basis for monitoring. The following steps are an integral part of the 

monitoring process for each contract:  

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   49 

1.  On-site or remote reviews at an established periodic interval (prior to project commencement) 

will occur to ensure compliance with terms of the contract, HUD guidelines, state/local building 

and construction standards, and review of engineering plans and specifications.  

2. If a contractor is found to be out of compliance, a notice is sent stating their contractual 

obligation and required action. Failure to comply may result in loss of current and/or future 

contracts as well as a hold on any payments.  

3.  All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by financial 

services and the Auditor’s Office.  

 
Internal Travis County Departments 

 

For CDBG funded projects implemented by Travis County Departments, the CDBG office has instituted 

controls at key points of the project implementation process to ensure program compliance.  The 

CDBG office: 

 

 Meets with each project manager and relevant project-related staff at regular intervals 

throughout the implementation period to review project status, implementation, effectiveness 

of programs, and compliance issues. 

 Reviews any request for purchase prior to HHS/VS department approval. 

 Reviews all Request for Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Request for Services, Invitations 

for BID and contracts prior to the release by the Purchasing Department.  

 Requests technical assistance from HUD, as needed, on behalf of each project. 

 Reviews the results of project environmental reviews, and submits the appropriate paperwork 

to HUD. 

 Verifies and documents target area, and service area eligibility, monitoring documentation on a 

quarterly basis.  

 Reviews CDBG project expenditures on a monthly basis before draw-downs are made.   

 

CDBG staff completed a variety of monitoring tasks for each project.   

 

Street Improvements: Lake Oak Estates 

 

 Reviewed and approved the RFQ and participated on the interview panel for the selection 

committee. 

 Participated in the mandatory pre-bid and pre-award meeting to ensure compliance with grant 

requirements. 

 Kept in communication with the project manager. 

 Tracked invoices determine how long they were taking to get through the system.     



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   50 

 Reviewed environmental documents as needed.   

 Reviewed draws prior to requesting reimbursement from IDIS. 

 

Home Rehabilitation:  Plainview Estates Water Connection Project 

 

 Reviewed and approved the IFB prior to release. 

 Participated in the mandatory pre-bid and pre-award meeting to ensure compliance with grant 

requirements. 

 Reviewed Davis Bacon and reporting compliance. 

 Communicated with Project Manager regularly. 

 Communicated with Purchasing Office as needed to discuss the flow of invoices. 

 Tracked invoices determine how long they were taking to get through the system and to assure 

that all invoices were paid prior to the September 30th deadline. 

 

Land Acquisition Project with Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc. (AHFH) 

 

 At the end of the PY10, major staffing changes occurred with loss of the Executive Director, 

Family Services Manager and Associate Director.   

 In October 2011, CDBG and Auditor’s Office staff conducted a friendly technical assistance visit 

instead of a full monitoring to review the one house completed and orient the new staff to 

program requirements. 

 Staff reviewed policies and procedures, financials and program eligibility. 

 Due to the nature of the visit, no findings were made, however, CDBG staff worked with AHFH 

and developed required forms to improve program compliance and created a more substantial 

review process for each house prior to release of the lien. 

 Both houses closed in PY 2011 received a desk review of eligibility, sales contract and program 

agreements prior to release of lien. 

 During the program year, staff reviewed the performance reports and pro formas provided for 

each house, and will work to adjust the forms after consultation with AHFH.   

 Staff provided information about Fair Housing training and updates to AHFH regarding 

affirmative marketing to align with HUD’s specific comments about gay, lesbian and 

transgendered populations. AHFH provided an updated affirmative marketing plan to show 

compliance with the changes.         

 

Public Services, Other: Family Support Services Social Work Services Expansion 

 

 Provided technical assistance and worked out service delivery issues as needed throughout the 

year. 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   51 

 Reviewed quarterly performance reports. 

 Reviewed and approved all Authorizations to Purchase prior to submission to financial services.  

 Reviewed almost 100% of all social work files.  Of the files reviewed, no files were determined 

ineligible.  The file review went into PY12 and identified training needs around eligibility and 

proof of residence documentation, and a discussion about file order. 

 

Homebuyer Assistance Program:  Down Payment Assistance and Shared Appreciation Gap Financing 

 

 Created a Subrecipient manual to help with program compliance. 

 

Results of Monitoring Efforts  

As a result of the monitoring efforts made, staff was able to identify and address potential issues 

surrounding compliance with different projects.  No activities were determined to be ineligible, 

however, improvements to program weaknesses were made.  Due to the lessons learned with the Land 

Acquisition project, required program forms and subrecipient manuals were created for the 

Homebuyer Assistance and Home Rehabilitation programs.  Other manuals will be created in PY12 for 

most of the other projects.   

 

INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURE AND COORDINATION 
 

Effective implementation of the PY12 Action Plan will involve a variety of key stakeholders.  

Coordination and collaboration within the Travis County departments and between agencies will be 

instrumental in meeting community needs effectively.  The departments within Travis County 

anticipated to be involved in the implementation of projects are described below. 

 

Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department 
 

The HHS/VS Department is the lead county agency responsible for the administration of the County’s 

CDBG funding.  This Department has the primary responsibility of assessing community needs, 

developing the Consolidated Plan and annual Action Plans, managing project activities in conjunction 

with other county departments and community partners, administering the finances, and monitoring 

and reporting.  The CDBG office is located in the Office of the County Executive within HHS/VS.  The 

Department reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court for oversight authority. 

 

The CDBG office works with the Research and Planning Division (R&P) within HHS/VS in the areas of 

community planning, data collection, and resource development.  The CDBG office will continue to 

keep R&P informed about HUD funding streams and continue to work collaboratively identifying and 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   52 

sharing relevant data to ensure a consistent message on emerging issues such as changing housing 

needs and foreclosure.   

 

Additionally, the Family Support Services (FSS) Division of HHS/VS is the project manager for a CDBG 

public service project.  FSS also manages the seven Travis County Community Centers which provide a 

key access point for the public to access CDBG information. The CDBG office works closely with the 

Division to ensure the public’s access to CDBG documents and encourage outreach and public 

engagement through the Centers. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court 

 

The Commissioners Court is made up of four elected commissioners, one to represent each county 

precinct, and the County Judge who serves as the presiding officer. As a group, the Commissioners and 

County Judge are the chief policy-making and governing body of the county government. The 

Commissioner’s Court makes all final decisions about CDBG fund allocations. 

 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

 

The Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) and the CDBG office work closely to 

coordinate environmental review functions, project planning, project implementation and GIS 

mapping. Additionally, over the last year, TNR’s planning division and CDBG staff have begun to work 

more collaboratively to ensure consistent messaging regarding housing, transportation and community 

development.   TNR and CDBG employees have been trained in HUD environmental regulations.  This 

cross training of both departments allows for quality review and peer consultation.  Finally, the CDBG 

office and the CDBG funded Senior Engineer coordinate the preparation of project scopes, eligibility, 

cost estimates, and project design. The Senior Engineer also plays an active role in the implementation 

of CDBG & CDBG-R projects that are managed by TNR such as the street improvement projects for Lake 

Oak Estates and the Plain View Estates water connection project. 

 

County Attorney’s Office 

 

The County Attorney is an elected official and the County Attorney’s Office creates and reviews legal 

agreements as well as provides legal advice and consultation for the Department.  They have created 

templates to assist with CDBG procurement actions, related consultant services, construction 

documents, and templates for sub-recipient agreements.   

 

 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   53 

Purchasing Office 

 

The Purchasing Office manages the CDBG procurement processes for commodities, professional 

services and construction. Expertise in the area of federal standards has been created within the 

Office.  The Office ensures compliance with required labor standards and submits related reports to 

the CDBG office. The Purchasing Office reports to the Purchasing Board, which was established by the 

Travis County Commissioner’s Court.    

 

Coordination  

 

The Travis County CDBG office anticipates coordinating with a variety of local nonprofits and 

governmental entities activities related to grant management and community planning. The following 

list provides some examples of the type of engagements the CDBG office built during PY11:  

 

 Partnerships with local Community Housing and Development Organizations (CHDOs), 

nonprofits, and other community development and housing providers to explore options for 

community development and public service projects and leverage other federal, state, local and 

private funding.  

 

 Coordination of planning efforts with the Travis County Housing Authority and Travis County 

Housing Finance Corporation for the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice. 

 

 Engagement of other municipalities in Travis County for future collaboration in the areas of 

community development and housing activities.  

 

 Coordination of planning efforts with different entities in the Austin metropolitan region such 

as of the City of Austin and other cities in the county, for areas such as combining future efforts 

in the development of documents such as comprehensive Analysis of Impediments to Fair 

Housing Choice and a comprehensive Housing Market Study for the county/region.  

 

 Consultation with other entitlement counties and cities to exchange models for CDBG grant 

management and project implementation;  

 

Consortium Member Cities 

 

Every three years, urban counties receiving CDBG funds must re-affirm their urban county entitlement 

status. In PY10, Travis County renewed its status for 2012-2014.  As part of the qualification process, 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   54 

Travis County chose to invite non-entitlement cities and villages to participate in the Travis County 

CDBG program.  The Village of Webberville elected to join the Urban County, and a Cooperative 

Agreement was approved by TCCC in July, 2011.       

 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 
 
Travis County implements a citizen participation process based upon 24 CFR Part 91.105 and the 

Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) approved by Travis County Commissioners Court on April 11, 2006 and 

it was amended on July 20, 2010.  The approved CPP identifies the strategies and structure to fully 

engage the community.   

 

PY 2012 Action Plan 

 

During the month of February 2012, the County held five public hearings specifically to solicit input for 

the use of CDBG funds.  In addition, during the months of June and July, Travis County held two public 

hearings and a 30-day public comment period to solicit final comment on the proposed uses of CDBG 

funds.  For a detailed version of the public participation activities and comments received please refer 

to the PY12 Action Plan. 

 

PY 2011 CAPER 

 

During the week of November 12, 2012, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing the 

availability of the PY 2011 CAPER, the public comment period and the public hearing at Travis County 

Commissioners Court.  The notice appeared in several area newspapers that target the unincorporated 

areas of Travis County.  A copy of the notice may be found in Appendix B in English (Attachment A) and 

Spanish (Attachment B).  Public notices were also posted at the seven Travis County Community 

Centers, on the Travis County Website, Facebook and Twitter pages.  Email and postal mail notices 

were provided to people who attended public hearings previously or who requested to be on the 

notification list. 

 

Travis County HHS/VS drafted the CAPER and presented it to the Travis County Commissioners Court 

on November 27, 2012.  After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the CAPER will be 

posted for public review and written comments prior to approval by the Travis County Commissioners 

Court.   

 

The comment period will be held from November 30, 2012 to December 14, 2012.  Additionally, a 

public hearing will be held at Travis County Commissioners Court on December 4, 2012.   The public 

will have the opportunity to submit comments on the CAPER in writing via email, postal mail, or 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   55 

verbally at the public hearing. The draft CAPER was posted on the Travis County CDBG website 

(www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG), and copies of the full document were available for review at the seven 

Travis County Community Centers.   

 

Summary of Citizen Comments on the CAPER 

 

Comments will be added to the final draft of the CAPER.  

 

Response to Comments 

 

Responses will be added to the final draft of the CAPER.  

 

EVALUATION OF THE CDBG PROGRAM 
 
Strengths  

 

During the 2011 Program Year, staff continued to work with Departments, evaluate systems, identify 

weaknesses and work on improvements to address areas of concern.   The program excels in providing 

quality planning and detailed program guidance.  This year, staff spent a large amount of time giving 

technical assistance to struggling programs.   

 

Additionally, each County Department involved with CDBG projects continues to be extremely 

cooperative in communicating status of projects, issues, challenges and resolutions to problems.  This 

level of cooperation allows compliance to be more easily achieved.   

 

In PY 11, the program also made great strides in Fair Housing.  Staff were able to work with the 

Consultant to find other tasks the Program was undertaking to be considered fair housing activities as 

well as to go through the process of conducting the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice.   

 

Challenges   

 

The largest challenge for the Program continues to be resources – both financial and time.  This year 

there were some staffing challenges with a couple County Departments causing some items to sit for 

an extended period of time with slow to no movement.  Additionally, the County went live with a new 

financial and procurement management system in June 2012.  This switch had an impact on the County 

and its operations including delays and new processes that had to be developed.  Finally, CDBG staff 

spent a large amount of time providing technical assistance and support to projects this year which 

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG


PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   56 

impeded the Program’s ability to move as quickly with the Homebuyer Assistance and Home 

Rehabilitation projects. 

 

Goals for Improvement                          

 

Staff has identified the following goals for improvement: 

 

1. Continue to look for training opportunities to support knowledge gain to increase grant 

management skills and CDBG knowledge for County staff. 

2. Collaborate with County staff to work through issues with the new financial system. 

3. Create workflows that allow ample time for County processes and reduce project 

implementation delays by starting project readiness in August.   

4. Request prioritization of CDBG projects with other Departments to help with timeliness. 

5. Provide better training for subrecipients and contractors to increase compliance. 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   57 

 

 
 
 

HOUSING AND SERVICES FOR THE HOMELESS 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 HOUSING INVESTMENTS 
 

Two housing units were completed during the reporting period as part of the CDBG land acquisition 

project.  Refer to the Status of Projects section of this report to learn more about the specifics of the 

project.  

 

The tables below summarize the number of homeowner and renter households at various income 

levels in unincorporated Travis County with housing problems, and the assistance goals of the CDBG 

program over the planning period.    

 

Figure 15: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Owner Households 

  
  

Percent of 
Households 

Number of 
Households* 

Priority 
Need 

Goals 

Carryover from 
previous years 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Very Low 
Income 
Household  

84% 1,782 High 10 3 3 3 

Low Income 
Household  

72% 1,618 High 27 3 3 3 

Moderate 
Income 
Household  

56% 2,451 Medium 52 1 6 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   58 

 

Figure 16: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Renter Households 

 
 

 
Percent of 

Households 

 
Number of 

Households* 

Priority 
Need 

Goals 

Carryover from 
previous years 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Very Low 
Income 

Household 
85% 5,736 Medium 0 0 0 0 

Low 
Income 

Household 
86% 4,374 Medium 0 0 0 0 

Moderate 
Income 

Household 
40% 2,706 Low 0 0 0 0 

*The number of households with a housing need was calculated based on the total number of households with a housing problem (see 
figure 3.23 in section 3 of the 2011-2013 Con-Plan.)  Because this number was only available for all of Travis County, in order to estimate 
the need for the unincorporated areas alone, the total number of renter households with a housing problem at each income level was 
multiplied by the approximate percentage of population in Travis County that lives in the unincorporated area (17 percent.)    

 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   59 

OVERVIEW OF HOUSING SERVICES SUPPORTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

In addition to CDBG, Travis County addresses the housing needs of its residents through diverse 

strategies that include the support of homeless and emergency shelters; transitional, public, assisted, 

and rental housing; first-time homebuyer programs and owner-occupied assistance programs. These 

services are either directly delivered by county departments, affiliate entities or by contracted not-for-

profit agencies. The following chart is a visual representation of the different departments/affiliate 

entities of the County working on a variety of housing services. 

 

 
 
Travis County HHS/VS Housing Services 

  

The Travis County Housing Services Division performs weatherization and home repairs on houses 

occupied by county residents to improve energy efficiency, the physical living conditions, and safety in 

these homes. Funding for services comes from the Texas Department of Housing and Community 

Affairs, the City of Austin and the Travis County General Fund. This division is also working with 

weatherization and home repair service funds received through the American Recovery and 

Reinvestment Act.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 17: Travis County Departments Providing Housing Services 

Health and Human Services 
& Veteran Services 

Department  

Travis County  
Housing Finance 

Corporation  

Housing Authority of 
Travis County  

Community 
Services – 
Housing 
Division 

CDBG Program  Family 
Support 
Services  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   60 

In the reporting period, a total of 2,945 county residents received energy saving and home repair 

assistance.  The assistance was distributed in the following manner:1  

 

 1,190 low-income homeowners and renters were helped to meet energy savings through the 

state-funded Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) and a state-funded grant 

from the Department of Energy. 

 1,341 low-income homeowners and renters were helped to meet energy savings through the 

federally funded ARRA Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) administered by the State of 

Texas. 

 279 low income homeowners and renters were assisted through the state-funded 

Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP), which replaces or repairs energy using 

devices such as refrigerators, air conditioners and heating systems. This activity aims to 

improve energy efficiency and reduce heating and cooling costs.   

 135 low-income homeowners and renters were assisted with home repair through General 

Fund dollars. 

 

Travis County HHS/VS Family Support Services Division 

 

The Family Support Services (FSS) Division provides rent and mortgage assistance for 30-day housing 

stabilization as well as utility assistance. Funding for services comes from the Travis County General 

Fund, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Comprehensive Energy Assistance 

Program and a variety of local electric and gas utility providers.  

 

Other Travis County HHS/VS Divisions 

 

Other HHS/VS Divisions provide emergency rent or utility assistance on a smaller scale than FSS.  These 

dollars are usually a part of a comprehensive case management program with strategic use of funds for 

families in need. 

 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation  

 

Through the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (TCHFC), Travis County is engaged in a number 

of efforts to foster and maintain affordable housing. The Corporation provides single-family home 

ownership (including down-payment assistance) opportunities to first-time homebuyers who meet 

certain income requirements. The Corporation also issues tax-exempt bonds to finance the 

                                         
1 Please note that some individuals may be counted in multiple categories due to receipt of assistance from any combination of these 
four programs. 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   61 

construction or acquisition of multi-family apartments that must provide rental units to certain low and 

moderate-income families.  

 

TCHFC continues to collaborate with FSS to implement a Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) 

program funded through the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs to provide rental 

assistance and case management for up to 24 months for certain low income households.  

 

Twenty households received Tenant Based Rental Assistance during the past year.  $120,486.00 has 

been spent for rent and utilities assistance.   

 

TCHFC assisted in the acquisition and rehabilitation of a large affordable apartment complex (Argosy 

Apartments owned by a nonprofit housing entity) through a bond issue.  The bond issue allowed for 

the apartments to be purchased and improved, as well as providing affordable housing for Travis 

County citizens. 

 

 

The Housing Authority of Travis County 

 

The Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) manages three public housing sites, a Section 8 Housing 

Choice Voucher Program and, three Shelter Plus Care Projects.  

 

The three public housing sites have a total of 105 housing units and are located within the City of 

Austin. Additionally, HATC manages 33 units of Senior Housing in Manor, and 16 duplex units in Del 

Valle. The Housing Authority's affiliated entity, Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, is the general 

partner in three tax credit multifamily properties, including 208 units of Senior Housing in Pflugerville, 

70 units of senior housing in Austin, and a 192 unit family property in Austin. The Shelter Plus Care 

projects provide rental assistance for homeless people with chronic disabilities in the Austin-Travis 

County area. The program utilizes integrated rental housing and flexible and intensive support services 

to promote community tenure and independence.  

 

In the City of Austin and the unincorporated areas, HATC administers the Section 8 Housing Choice 

Voucher Program, assisting very low income, disabled and elderly families or individuals. During the 

program year, HATC set aside 22 vouchers for homeless individuals who will receive services through 

Travis County Criminal Justice planning received from the Department of Justice to create more 

Permanent Supportive Housing opportunities.   

 

The CDBG program will continue to support HATC’s efforts to provide homeownership and affordable 

housing opportunities to low-income residents. CDBG staff has worked with HATC staff to locate sites 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   62 

in the unincorporated areas that are appropriate for rehabilitation or development. Though no sites 

have been identified yet, staff will continue to work collaboratively to find opportunities to work 

together.  

 

BARRIERS TO AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 

In the PY11 – PY13 Consolidated Plan, eight barriers to affordable housing were outlined. These 

barriers were identified through the needs assessment, housing market analysis, provider forum and 

surveys, consultations and public hearings. 

 

Lack of Funding for Affordable Housing  

 

Funding for affordable housing requires many different products to achieve the desired affordability 

levels needed in a community. Funding mechanisms including the HOME Investment Program, tax 

credits, CDBG, FHA loans, and down-payment assistance – just to name a few – are key to increasing 

the affordable housing stock. Currently, Travis County does not receive a HOME formula allocation, 

which is a major funding source for many entitlement communities to develop affordable housing. Add 

to that shaky tax credit values, dwindling CDBG funds, and the tightened lending market, and one will 

find that developers of single family homes and multi-family housing have experienced difficulty 

maintaining previous development levels. It is traditionally these types of mechanisms that created the 

opportunity for affordable units and long term affordability. The reduction in access to funding along 

with a growing percentage of people with a cost burden and an ever widening gap of affordable rental 

units needed in the County, creates a significant barrier to affordable housing.  

 

During the reporting period, the Program advocated for HUD funded programs, to remain fully funded 

to ensure the greatest access to funds, through its work with the National Association for County 

Community and Economic Development as well as through letters from the Travis County 

Commissioners Court to the county’s Senators and US. Representatives.  Unfortunately, CDBG funds 

were cut approximately 16.1% for PY 2011.   

 

Land Costs  

 

Land values in rural Travis County have steadily increased over the past decade. Though this trend has 

slowed with the decline of the housing market, land values in western Travis County remain strong 

enough to discourage the development of much-needed affordable housing.  

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   63 

During the reporting period, a sub-recipient build two homes on land purchased in PY 2012 for 

affordable single family home development in a desirable development area approximately 9 miles 

from Downtown Austin and across the street from a brand new elementary school.   

 

Tight Credit Market  

 

In the wake of the recession and collapse of the housing market, banks have significantly tightened 

credit requirements. While these tighter requirements were put in place to correct sub-prime lending 

practices that contributed to the foreclosure crisis, they also make it more difficult for some qualified 

buyers—particularly lower income homebuyers—to purchase a home or refinance an existing loan. 

This credit market also impacts a developer’s ability to borrow funds to create rental housing. The 

Housing Market Study above highlights the marked reduction in permits in Travis County, and points to 

the difficulty that developers are experiencing to create new market rate rental housing – much less 

affordable units.  

 

The CDBG Program has funded over $790,000 for homebuyer assistance programs that will allow for 

households, who qualify for a convention loan, but lack the funds to provide a down payment or who 

have a substantial gap to make the home affordable, the opportunity to request up to $38,000 of 

assistance.  During PY11, a sub recipient was identified to administer the project.  At the close of the 

program year, Travis County and the sub recipient are finalizing all details of the project and the sub 

recipient will begin accepting program applications early in PY12.    

 

Building Codes, Zoning Provisions, Growth Restrictions and Fees  

 

Currently, Travis County does not have any building codes, zoning provisions or growth restrictions in 

the unincorporated areas. This is largely a function of state statutes that place significant limits on the 

authority of counties to regulate or restrict development. While less restrictions, codes and provisions 

initially increase affordable development, it also increases the likelihood for substandard housing and 

other unsuitable living conditions throughout the unincorporated areas.  

 

During the reporting period, no changes have been made, however, the County now collects and 

maintains the inspection reports for new subdivisions for those living in the unincorporated areas.   

 

Environmental Regulations  

 

Several state and federal regulations exist to protect the environment including the Endangered 

Species Act, the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System and the Wetland regulations. Texas 

rules include regulations for the installation of septic systems and for development over the Edwards 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   64 

Aquifer. These regulations may increase costs for development, affecting affordability especially in the 

Western parts of Travis County where endangered species habitat and the Edward Aquifer are located.  

 

During the reporting period, no actions were taken. 

 

Other factors affecting affordability 

 

Though housing affordability is traditionally evaluated by the percentage of income required for 

housing costs, policy makers and planners are increasingly considering the impact that housing location 

has on the overall affordability for a household. This is a particularly useful framework for considering 

affordability in the unincorporated areas of Travis County, where housing prices may be lower but 

other factors may be considerably more expensive.  

 

 Transportation  

Transportation costs are a major component of household expenditures. Residents of the 

unincorporated areas generally must travel farther for work, school and shopping, and have 

less access to public transit options. As a result, it is likely that residents of the unincorporated 

areas have higher transportation costs than residents of more densely developed urban 

neighborhoods.  

 

 Infrastructure  

Many parts of the unincorporated areas lack existing water and wastewater infrastructure 

and/or maintained. The costs of installing necessary infrastructure would make a property 

unaffordable to an individual or an affordable housing nonprofit developer.  

 

 Utility Costs  

The cost of utilities in the unincorporated areas varies, depending on the provider of the service 

in a given area. Based on input received through the social work program and resident 

engagement, monthly utility bills often represent a burden to very low-income households.  

 

During the program year, the public service project referred clients to utility assistance programs, 

infrastructure was improved through the use of grant funds and water connections are being paid for 

using CDBG-R funds for a community.    

 

 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   65 

IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE 
 

HUD has a commitment to eliminate racial and ethnic segregation, physical and other barriers to 

persons with disabilities, and other discriminatory practices in the provision of housing. HUD extends 

the responsibility of affirmatively furthering fair housing to local jurisdictions through a variety of 

regulations and program requirements.  

 

As an entitlement county receiving CDBG funds from HUD, Travis County must fulfill its fair housing 

responsibilities by developing an Analysis of Impediments (AI) to Fair Housing Choice and by taking 

actions to overcome the identified impediments. Given the County’s limited history administering the 

grant (since October 2006), the complexities of conducting a thorough analysis, and the limited staff 

resources, the CDBG office of Travis County developed a preliminary analysis to lay the foundation for 

a more comprehensive analysis to be conducted by a consultant.  

 

The City of Austin conducted an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, published in February, 

2005. Since much of the analysis conducted by the city used county level data, the impediments 

identified in this analysis can be expected to be true for other areas of the county, including the 

unincorporated areas. The identified impediments are the following: 

 

 Lack of accessible housing to meet the need of the disabled community throughout the county  

 Lack of affordable housing  

 Discrimination of minorities in housing rental and sales market  

 Misconception by property managers concerning family occupancy standards  

 Predatory lending practices  

 Disparity in lending practices  

 Failure of mortgage lenders to offer products and services to very low income and minority 

census tracts people  

 Insufficient financial literacy education  

 Insufficient income to afford housing  

 

In addition to the City of Austin’s study, 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan allowed the County to lay the 

foundation for a robust AI with the key issues identified in the unincorporated areas which include 

population shifts, foreclosures, and lack of housing for specific populations. 

 

During the reporting period, Travis County contracted with the firm Mullin & Lonergan  with General 

Fund dollars totaling over $60,000 to undertake an AI for the County.  As part of the research for the 

AI, the consultants held two community forums, as well as on site interviews and focus groups with a 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   66 

wide variety of stakeholders, both internal and external to the County.  At close of program year, the 

consultants have delivered the first draft of the AI for Travis County review.  The final draft of the 

document is anticipated to be presented to the Commissioners Court in the second quarter of PY12, 

with a public comment period to follow.   

 

During PY11, all CDBG staff participated in trainings sponsored by the National Fair Housing Alliance 

(NFHA), either through classroom training or web-based training.  Additionally, during the month of 

April the CDBG Office participated in Fair Housing Month by distributing information through a variety 

of outlets including: placement of a banner on the main Travis County website with links to more 

information; creation of a fair housing information sheet titled “10 Things You Can Do to Promote Fair 

Housing” that was distributed throughout the department; links to fair housing information and a 

video on the CDBG website; and information on Travis County’s TV Channel.  Posters with general 

information about fair housing in English and Spanish were placed in all Travis County Community 

Centers, the offices of the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation, and the Housing Authority of 

Travis County.  Finally, a notice with information on who to contact if you have experienced housing 

discrimination was placed in all of the Community Centers and outside of the CDBG offices.   

 

Travis County Social Service Contracts in the amount of $XX went towards legal aid and tenants’ 

council services to provide fair housing resources for a total of 10,069 clients in the 2011 program 

year.2  

 

Literacy / Workforce Development / Job Training3 

 

Through Social Service contracts, Travis County funds nonprofits that provide literacy and workforce 

education services throughout the county.  As this issue closely aligns with CDBG’s current service area 

priorities, this is the first year that the CDBG office has decided to include more detailed information 

on these services within the CAPER.4 Travis County Social Service Contracts in the amount of $XX went 

towards literacy, job training and workforce development programs to provide employment resources 

for a total of 22,646 clients in the 2011 program year. Of these clients, approximately 1,899 were 

enrolled in job training programs.5 

 

                                         
2Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp 
3 Ibid. 
4 Due to changes in funding priorities for social service contracts throughout fiscal year 2011-2012 some numbers may not accurately 
reflect the exact number of clients served based on inconsistent reporting requirements. 
5 Ibid. 

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   67 

Equality of Access to Services 

 

In the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan, CDBG established that access to a variety of services were key in 

restricting fair housing choice.  Due to the proximity to services, often times people living in the 

unincorporated areas access services less frequently than those living in the urban core.  This may 

occur for a variety of reasons, however, to provide the best access possible, the Department funds the  

CDBG Social Work Expansion Program.  During the program year, a program design occurred, which 

increased funding, to allow for the equivalent of 1.5 FTEs, thereby expanding both the geographical 

range and increasing the number of residents in the unincorporated areas that were able to be served 

by the program. The difference in the amount and geographical location of clients served by the 

program is shown in the map below. 

 

Food Deserts/Food Poverty6 
 
Through Social Service contracts, Travis County funds nonprofits that provide meal services throughout 

the county to increase access. As this issue closely aligns with CDBG’s current service area priorities, 

this is the first year that the CDBG office has decided to include more detailed information on these 

services within the CAPER.7 Travis County Social Service Contracts in the amount of XX went towards 

literacy, job training and workforce development programs to provide meal equivalents for a total of 

5,096,260 clients in the 2011 program year.8  

 

Travis County’s CDBG program contributed to food desert education and advocacy in the 

unincorporated areas of the county by working with Austin’s Colony, an unincorporated housing 

development, to address the needs of its community garden project.  Travis County continues to work 

with the community to further opportunities for sustainable food sources in the unincorporated areas 

of the county. 

                                         
6 Due to changes in funding priorities for social service contracts throughout fiscal year 2011-2012 some numbers may not accurately 
reflect the exact number of clients served based on inconsistent reporting requirements. 
7 Ibid. 
8 Due to the nature of this cluster of service providers, some of the agencies within this category overlap in providing meal equivalents.  
Therefore client numbers may appear higher than they actually are. 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                                                                         Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   68 

 

Map 8: 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   69 

HOMELESSNESS  
 

Planning Efforts to End Homelessness 

 

Travis County is a member of the Ending Chronic Homelessness (ECHO) Coalition whose mission is to 

identify specific strategies and oversee ongoing planning and implementation of a plan to end chronic 

homelessness in Austin and Travis County. The coalition is comprised of four committees or work 

groups: Housing, Continuum of Care (CoC), Outreach and Education, Data, and the 100,000 Homes 

Campaign. These committees in turn have subcommittees. Regular monthly meetings for each 

committee/subcommittee are held, and plenary meetings for all ECHO members are held quarterly.  In 

PY11, Travis County granted ECHO $50,000 to provide administrative and operating support to the 

newly formed nonprofit to administer homelessness prevention services within the County. 

  

Travis County CDBG staff joined ECHO’s Planning and Evaluation Committee during PY07 and since 

then has participated in a number of subcommittees including the Count and Survey sub-committee in 

charge of the annual homeless count, and the Independent Review Team that reviews and ranks CoC 

applications and provides feedback to contracting agencies as well as the Housing Committee and 

Membership Council. Refer to the section on HUD Continuum of CARE (CoC) Funding for further details 

on CoC. 

 
Homeless Services9   

 

During the 2011 program year, Travis County did not target the use of CDBG funds toward homeless 

efforts.  However, Travis County invested $XX in general fund dollars via contracts with social service 

providers targeting the homeless persons in conjunction with the Austin/Travis County ESG grant 

administration and the Austin/Travis County Plan to End Chronic Homelessness.  Services provided 

include: 

 

 1,045 unduplicated clients received case 

management 

 96 adults and children were placed in 

transitional housing 

 61 unduplicated clients received 

supportive housing 

 110,991 bed/nights were offered for 

emergency shelter. 

 4,114 adults and children received shelter  

                                         
9 Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp 

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   70 

Homelessness Prevention 

 

A variety of homelessness prevention efforts are made through the Travis County General Fund and 

other grant sources.  HHS/VS invests funds through its Family Support Services Division (FSS) to address 

housing stability issues including rent, mortgage and utility assistance.  During the reporting period, FSS 

provided over $ XX of General Fund and grant assistance dollars to provide: 

 

 7,169 individuals with emergency rent/mortgage payments to stabilize housing for 30 days. 

 17,744 individuals with utilities to resolve an energy crisis and maintain housing. 

 

HHS/VS invests $ XX through social service contracts focusing on housing stability.10  Services provided 

include: 

 

 997 unduplicated clients received homelessness prevention services;11 

 209 households with Rent/Utility Assistance;12 

 84,102 hot meals provided.   

 

HUD Continuum of CARE (CoC) Funding 

 

Continuum of Care is a funding mechanism by which HUD awards through a national competition 

grants for the Supportive Housing Program (SHP), Shelter Plus Care (S+C) and the Section 8 Moderate 

Rehabilitation Single-Room Occupancy (SRO) Program to states, localities and nonprofit organizations.  

 

The SHP program provides funding for the development of transitional housing for homeless 

individuals with disabilities. The S+C program provides rental assistance for homeless people with 

chronic disabilities (usually severe mental illness, HIV/AIDS, and chronic drug and/or alcohol 

dependency). All grantees are required to match their federal funding for rental assistance with equal 

funding for supportive services. The SRO program provides project-based rent subsidies for occupants 

of single-room occupancy facilities that have undergone moderate rehabilitation. 

 

The Austin/Travis County received approximately $ 5 million in HUD Continuum of Care (CoC) funding. 

Part of the funding will focus on projects that qualify as part of the SHP program while the other part 

                                         
10

 Many other service providers assist residents in Travis County with housing stability issues.  However, reporting is limited due to a shift 
in funding priorities during fiscal years 2011-2012.  Therefore, reporting for Program Year 2011 only includes data from one service 
provider in this category. 
11 For a portion of program year 2011, several service provision schedules were shifted due to organizational changes.  This number only 

represents data from one program operating  from June to September of 2012. 
12 The services represented in this category were discontinued during the PY11 due to organizational changes.  Therefore, this number 
only represents numbers of households from Quarter 4 of calendar year 2011.   



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   71 

will target projects under the S+C programs. Additionally, the CoC received a Samaritan bonus to 

increase funds for permanent supportive housing.   
 

HOME/ AMERICAN DREAM DOWN PAYMENT INITIATIVE (ADDI) 
 

Travis County does not receive HOME or ADDI funds at this time.   
 

EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT  
 
Travis County does not receive Emergency Shelter Grant funds at this time.   
 

ADDRESSING “WORST CASE” HOUSING NEEDS  
 

Addressing the housing needs of persons with disabilities and households who live at or below 50% of 

the Median Family Income (MFI) is critical to ensuring a viable community.  HUD defines households 

with worst case needs as unassisted renters with incomes below 50% of the local area median 

incomes, who pay more than half of their income for housing or live in severely substandard housing.   

 

CDBG Efforts 

 

The implementation of the FSS Social Work program this year provided data to demonstrate the 

housing needs. More than half of the households served thus far identified having a housing problem 

(either in need of housing or requiring major housing repairs).  CDBG has funded home rehabilitation, 

homebuyer assistance and land acquisition to support affordable housing development to reduce the 

cost burden for households at or below 80% MFI.   

 

Travis County Efforts   

 

The County addresses worst case housing needs in a variety of ways including targeted investments to 

low income persons. The Travis County Housing Services performs weatherization and home repairs on 

houses occupied by county residents to improve energy efficiency, the physical living conditions, and 

safety in these homes.  As pointed out in an earlier section of this report, during  PY11 a total of 2,945 

county residents received energy saving weatherization and emergency repair assistance.   
 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   72 

 

 

NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AND OTHER ACTIONS 
 

 
 

 

 

NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENTS 
 

Non-Housing Community Development projects include infrastructure, public facilities and public 
service projects. Out of these three categories Travis County identified infrastructure and community 
services as high priorities for the 2011-2013 Consolidated Planning period. The table below 
summarizes the non-housing community development gaps in funding, as well as the assistance goals 
of the CDBG program over the planning period.     
 

Figure 18: Non-Housing Community Development Activities 

  
  

 
Needs 

 
Gap 

Priority 
Need 

Goals 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Infrastructure $26,000,000 $26,000,000 High $145,000 $280,000 $380,000 

Community  
Services* 

$3,000,000 $3,000,000 High $118,500 $118,500 $118,500 

Public Buildings & 
Facilities 

$15,000,000 $15,000,000 Medium $0 $0 $0 

Business & Jobs $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Medium $0 $0 $0 

*Includes expanding service to Populations with Specialized Needs/Services 

 

 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   73 

OVERVIEW OF TRAVIS COUNTY CDBG INVESTMENTS IN COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

Figure 19: Overview of Travis County CDBG Investment in Community Development   

Community Development Needs/Projects Priority Need Level CDBG Investments 

Infrastructure 

Water Improvements PY06  
Northridge Acres 

High $ 200,000 

Street Improvements PY 06 
Apache Shores 

High $ 305,000 

Street Improvements PY 07 
Apache Shores 

High $ 500,000 

Street Improvements PY 06  
Lava Lane 

High $ 83,659 

Street Improvements PY 09 
Lava Lane 

High $ 60,000 

Street Improvements PY 10 
Lava Lane 

High $ 400,000 

Street Improvements PY 11 
Lake Oak Estates 

High $ 145,000 

Total Infrastructure $ 1,693,659 

Community Service 

Other Public Service Needs PY 07  High $ 64,000 

Other Public Service Needs PY 08  High $ 64,877 

Other Public Service Needs PY 09  High $ 35,000 

Other Public Service Needs PY 10  High $69,295 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   74 

Community Development Needs/Projects Priority Need Level CDBG Investments 

Other Public Service Needs PY 10 High $ 118,500 

Total Community Service $ 351,672 

Public Buildings & Facilities Medium $ 0 

Business & Jobs Medium  $ 0 

 
 
In addition to CDBG investments, the County’s infrastructure department, Transportation and Natural 

Resources, conducts community development activities in the form of public parks, bridge and 

drainage projects, storm water management, road maintenance, on-site sewage facilities, 

transportation planning, and various other projects, approximately totaling over $50 million. 

 

Water and Wastewater Needs 

 

Since the inception of the CDBG Program, there has been strong interest in water and wastewater 

projects from residents in the unincorporated areas.  To date, the Travis County CDBG office has 

received public requests for water infrastructure projects that taken together would cost $16,000,000 

to implement and requests for wastewater infrastructure projects that would cost a total of 

$8,000,000 to implement.  A higher percentage of these requests have come from neighborhoods on 

the eastern side of the county.  Due to funding constraints, no water infrastructure projects are 

currently funded through the CDBG program; however, CDBG-R funds are currently allocated to a 

water connection project.  The project was completed during the program year.   

 

Transportation13 

 

Travis County’s HHS/VS provides services to populations through direct services as well as social service 

contracts and inter-local agreements with other governmental organizations.  Travis County HHS/VS 

invests in different programs to address community development needs. Transportation is one of 

                                         
13 Travis County HHS/VS has invested in multiple agencies providing transportation services through social service contract dollars for 
many years.  However, due to shifts in funding priorities and reporting requirements, this category only captures performance data for 
one service provider for PY 2011. 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   75 

many social service contracts that Travis County invests in to improve access and ensure inclusion.  In 

program year 2011, $XX went towards service providers working to create improved access through 

18,125 trips provided for 1,005 individuals. 

 

ANTI-POVERTY STRATEGY 
 

Travis County’s lead agency for administering CDBG funds is the Health and Human Services & 

Veterans Service Department. Addressing poverty is at the heart of the mission of the Department, 

whose mission is “to work in partnership with the community to promote full development of 

individual, family, neighborhood, and community potential.” The vision of HHS/VS is “optimizing self-

sufficiency for families and individuals in safe and healthy communities.” Both the mission and vision of 

HHS/VS are essentially aimed at preventing and ameliorating conditions of poverty in Travis County. 

 

Annually, over $XX million is invested in alleviating the conditions which contribute to poverty by 

stabilizing housing, providing comprehensive case management, and increasing opportunity through 

workforce development and youth and child programs – just to name a few. Furthermore, the CDBG 

program has invested in expansion of an internal social work program to serve over 391 people to link 

them to services to improve self-sufficiency and quality of life; while investments in housing will be 

made to reduce cost burden and to improve access to safe and decent housing. 

 

Travis County operates a number of anti-poverty programs that assist individuals and families on 

multiple fronts in transitioning from crisis to self-sufficiency. The County carries out its anti-poverty 

programs both through the direct delivery of services managed by HHS/VS and by purchasing services 

from private and not-for-profit agencies in the community – referenced above. In addition to the 

provision of direct services, Travis County continually assesses the poverty and basic needs of county 

residents, works with stakeholders in facilitating anti-poverty efforts, and supports public policy 

initiatives that prevent and ameliorate conditions of poverty. 

 

Overall, the needs of the residents in the unincorporated areas have not been studied in depth and 

quantified as much as those that live within the city limits. The work of the social services program and 

collaborative planning will continue to identify those needs and will serve as a starting point for a more 

thorough needs assessment.  

 

 

 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   76 

NON-HOMELESS SPECIAL NEEDS 
 

HUD identifies non-homeless special needs populations as elderly, frail elderly, those with severe 

mental illness, the developmentally disabled, the physically disabled, persons with alcohol and other 

drug addictions, victims of domestic violence, and persons living with HIV/AIDS.   

 

Travis County’s HHS/VS provides services to special needs populations through direct services as well 

as social service contracts and inter-local agreements with other governmental organizations.  Travis 

County HHS/VS invests in different programs to address public health, substance abuse, indigent 

health, and mental health needs. Additionally, CDBG funded programs will be marketed to populations 

with specialized needs and services to ensure inclusion and improve access. 

 

Services for Elderly & Frail Elderly14 

 

Travis County funded $XX dollars worth of services to the elderly and frail elderly through social service 

contracts during the reporting period.  Services provided include case management, in-home care 

services, meals and bill payer services.  In-home services include assistance with personal hygiene tasks 

as well as housekeeping, while bill payer services included assistance with finances and money 

managements.  There were: 

 

4,217 unduplicated clients served 1,471 unduplicated clients received case 

management services  

574,316 prepared meals provided 1,557 individuals received in-home services. 

 

Services for Persons with Physical Disabilities or Developmental Delays15 

 

Through social service contract investments during the reporting period, Travis County funded XX 

dollars worth of services for persons with physical disabilities and developmental delays.  Services 

centered around employment and job-readiness, case management, early childhood intervention, 

basic needs assistance, and social/recreational opportunities.  A total of 4,999 unduplicated children 

                                         
14 Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp. 
15 Ibid. 

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   77 

and adults were served during the reporting period.  Amongst the total number of clients, 2,356 case 

management hours were recorded. 

 

Services for Victims of Domestic Violence16 

 

Travis County funded XX dollars worth of services for persons experiencing abuse, neglect, domestic 

violence, and sexual assault through social service contract investments during the reporting period.  

Services centered around advocacy, crisis management, emergency shelter, transitional housing and 

counseling.  Approximately 48,782 days of shelter and 2,891 unduplicated adults and children received 

services during the reporting period. 

 

Services for Persons Living with HIV/AIDS17 

 

In PY11 Travis County funded XX dollars worth of services for persons living with HIV/AIDS (PWLA) 

through social service contract investments.  Services centered around advocacy, crisis management, 

emergency shelter, transitional housing, and counseling.  A total of 1,458 persons received services 

including case management, medical care retention, client advocacy, medication adherence assistance, 

food pantry assistance, nutritional counseling, home health, prevention and support groups.  

Additionally, Travis County provided other services through public health inter-local agreements. 

 

LEAD-BASED PAINT 
 

During PY11, the CDBG office continued to develop a lead-based paint procedures manual for guiding 

the implementation of the home rehabilitation project. Prior to contracting for the owner occupied 

home repair program, the County will finish the manual and follow its guidelines to comply with the 

Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (Title X) and subsequent changes in 

September, 1999.  Activities supported with Travis County CDBG funds must be in full compliance with 

the Lead Safe Housing Rule (24 CFR Part 35) of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD). The CDBG program has created guidelines to ensure that the necessary steps for 

notification, identification and treatment of Lead Based Paint are followed, for owner occupied 

rehabilitation projects, homebuyer assistance projects and other projects as appropriate. 
 

                                         
16 Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp. 
17 Ibid. 

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   78 

HHS/VS Housing Services Division, which receives funds through State grant funds and the Travis 

County General Fund, provides limited lead-based paint remediation on houses built before 1978 

where small holes in the wall or similar acts that could cause additional possible lead exposure are 

made.  The lead safe practices are used to ensure client and worker safety.  Areas disturbed are sealed 

and all loose contaminates are removed.  The Housing Services Division does not have a complete lead 

abatement process nor does it have a formal lead based paint remediation program; however, they do 

perform Lead Safe work as prescribed by the EPA in conjunction with their WAP and Home Repair 

Programs.  Housing Services is an EPA Certified Lead Safe Firm who employs EPA Certified Lead Safe 

Renovators and complies with lead safe practices when working on homes built prior to 1978.  

 

SPECIFIC HOPWA OBJECTIVES 
 

Travis County does not receive HOPWA funds at this time.  
  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Appendix A :: Public Engagement 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   79 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment A: Public Comment Advertisements 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Appendix A :: Public Engagement 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   80 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Appendix A :: Public Engagement 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   81 

  



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Appendix A :: Public Engagement 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   82 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B: Summary of Public Comments 
 

To be added to final draft.  
 

 
 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                             Appendix B :: IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   83 

 
 
 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Attachment A: CDBG Financial Summary Report (CO4PR26) 

 

  



PR26 - CDBG Financial Summary Report

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Community Planning and Development

Integrated Disbursement and Information System

 DATE:

 TIME:

 PAGE: 1

10:45

11-16-12

Program Year 2011

TRAVIS COUNTY , TX

Metrics
Grantee
Program Year
PART I:   SUMMARY OF CDBG RESOURCES
01  UNEXPENDED CDBG FUNDS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR
02  ENTITLEMENT GRANT
03  SURPLUS URBAN RENEWAL
04  SECTION 108 GUARANTEED LOAN FUNDS
05  CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM INCOME
06  RETURNS
07  ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL AVAILABLE
08  TOTAL AVAILABLE (SUM, LINES 01-07)
PART II:  SUMMARY OF CDBG EXPENDITURES
09  DISBURSEMENTS OTHER THAN SECTION 108 REPAYMENTS AND PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION
10  ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL AMOUNT SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT
11  AMOUNT SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT (LINE 09 + LINE 10)
12  DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION
13  DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR SECTION 108 REPAYMENTS
14  ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL EXPENDITURES
15  TOTAL EXPENDITURES (SUM, LINES 11-14)
16  UNEXPENDED BALANCE (LINE 08 - LINE 15)
PART III: LOWMOD BENEFIT THIS REPORTING PERIOD
17  EXPENDED FOR LOW/MOD HOUSING IN SPECIAL AREAS
18  EXPENDED FOR LOW/MOD MULTI-UNIT HOUSING
19  DISBURSED FOR OTHER LOW/MOD ACTIVITIES
20  ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL LOW/MOD CREDIT
21  TOTAL LOW/MOD CREDIT (SUM, LINES 17-20)
22  PERCENT LOW/MOD CREDIT (LINE 21/LINE 11)
LOW/MOD BENEFIT FOR MULTI-YEAR CERTIFICATIONS
23  PROGRAM YEARS(PY) COVERED IN CERTIFICATION
24  CUMULATIVE NET EXPENDITURES SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT CALCULATION
25  CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES BENEFITING LOW/MOD PERSONS
26  PERCENT BENEFIT TO LOW/MOD PERSONS (LINE 25/LINE 24)
PART IV:  PUBLIC SERVICE (PS) CAP CALCULATIONS
27  DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR PUBLIC SERVICES
28  PS UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF CURRENT PROGRAM YEAR
29  PS UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR
30  ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PS OBLIGATIONS
31  TOTAL PS OBLIGATIONS (LINE 27 + LINE 28 - LINE 29 + LINE 30)
32  ENTITLEMENT GRANT
33  PRIOR YEAR PROGRAM INCOME
34  ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL SUBJECT TO PS CAP
35  TOTAL SUBJECT TO PS CAP (SUM, LINES 32-34)
36  PERCENT FUNDS OBLIGATED FOR PS ACTIVITIES (LINE 31/LINE 35)
PART V:   PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION (PA) CAP
37  DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION
38  PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF CURRENT PROGRAM YEAR
39  PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR
40  ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS
41  TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS (LINE 37 + LINE 38 - LINE 39 +LINE 40)
42  ENTITLEMENT GRANT
43  CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM INCOME
44  ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL SUBJECT TO PA CAP
45  TOTAL SUBJECT TO PA CAP (SUM, LINES 42-44)
46  PERCENT FUNDS OBLIGATED FOR PA ACTIVITIES (LINE 41/LINE 45)

TRAVIS COUNTY , TX
2,011.00

 
1,269,571.85

790,136.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

2,059,707.85
 

154,213.76
0.00

154,213.76
153,145.83

0.00
0.00

307,359.59
1,752,348.26

 
0.00
0.00

154,213.76
0.00

154,213.76
100.00%

 
PY: 2011 PY:  PY: 

0.00
0.00

0.00%
 

89,468.77
0.00
0.00
0.00

89,468.77
790,136.00

0.00
0.00

790,136.00
11.32%

 
153,145.83

0.00
0.00
0.00

153,145.83
790,136.00

0.00
0.00

790,136.00
19.38%

cheem
Typewritten Text
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________Travis County, TX														           Page     |     84

cheem
Typewritten Text

cheem
Typewritten Text



PR26 - CDBG Financial Summary Report

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Community Planning and Development

Integrated Disbursement and Information System

 DATE:

 TIME:

 PAGE: 2

10:45

11-16-12

Program Year 2011

TRAVIS COUNTY , TX

LINE 17 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES TO CONSIDER IN DETERMINING THE AMOUNT TO ENTER ON LINE 17

Report returned no data.

LINE 18 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES TO CONSIDER IN DETERMINING THE AMOUNT TO ENTER ON LINE 18

Report returned no data.

LINE 19 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 19

Plan Year IDIS Project IDIS Activity Voucher
Number Activity Name Matrix

Code
National
Objective Drawn Amount

2010
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
Total

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2

27
34
34
34
34
34
34
34
34
34
35
35
35
35
35
35
35
35
35
35

5377046
5377046
5406255
5419095
5428210
5446417
5457725
5465085
5485804
5492530
5377046
5406255
5419095
5428210
5446417
5457725
5465085
5485804
5492530
5497890

PY 10 Lava Lane - Phase 3
PY11 FSS Social Work Services Expansion
PY11 FSS Social Work Services Expansion
PY11 FSS Social Work Services Expansion
PY11 FSS Social Work Services Expansion
PY11 FSS Social Work Services Expansion
PY11 FSS Social Work Services Expansion
PY11 FSS Social Work Services Expansion
PY11 FSS Social Work Services Expansion
PY11 FSS Social Work Services Expansion
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements
PY11 Lake Oak Estates Street Improvements

03K
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
03K
03K
03K
03K
03K
03K
03K
03K
03K
03K

LMA
LMC
LMC
LMC
LMC
LMC
LMC
LMC
LMC
LMC
LMA
LMA
LMA
LMA
LMA
LMA
LMA
LMA
LMA
LMA

$10,552.19
$4,717.61
$5,917.75
$4,556.63
$5,152.96

$12,808.64
$11,501.67
$11,029.97
$12,893.30
$20,890.24
$3,594.66
$3,996.28
$1,492.44
$2,450.43
$2,183.30
$2,286.13
$2,111.80
$2,570.37
$3,737.04

$29,770.35

$154,213.76

cheem
Typewritten Text
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________Travis County, TX														           Page     |     85



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                             Appendix B :: IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   86 

 

 

 

 

 
APPENDIX B 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
Attachment B: Program Year 2011 Summary of Accomplishments (CO4PR23) 

 
 
 
 

To be added to final draft.  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix B :: IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   87 

 

 
 

 
APPENDIX B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment C: Summary of Consolidated Plan Projects (PR06) 

 
 
 
 
 

To be added to final draft.  

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix B :: IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   1 

 

 
 

 
APPENDIX B 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
Attachment D: CDBG Activity Summary Report for Program Year 2011 (CO4PR03) 

 
 
 

To be added to final draft.  

 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 27, 2012 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  David A. Salazar 854-4107 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Sherri E. Fleming,  
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Receive Update on Children’s Optimal Health and Take Appropriate Action. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Since the inception of Children’s Optimal Health, the Travis County has 
partnered with other local government entities and community-based 
organizations in coordinating efforts to reach the goal of improved access 
to and delivery of health resources and social services to eligible residents 
of Travis County. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff seeks direction from the Court in continuing to support the efforts of 
Children’s Optimal Health and its partner agencies as doing so would help 
in streamlining the County’s community investments in the areas of social 
services and public health. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Children’s Optimal Health enables the community to visualize the health of 
its neighborhoods, identify assets and needs, unearth and nurture 
opportunities for collaborative change, as well as monitor outcomes over 
time through GIS mapping and related analysis applied to public and 
privately held datasets. 
 
The work accomplished by the Children’s Optimal Health allows its partners 
to improve operations, create relevant policy, identify areas for research, 
and mobilize the community regarding important issues of children’s health, 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 3



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

including childhood obesity, behavioral and mental health, housing and 
homelessness, early education and afterschool care. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
There is currently no fiscal impact regarding this agenda item. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney 



1 
 

 

www.childrensoptimalhealth.org 

Maps speak a universal language and offer a valuable communication tool.  The methods used by 

Children’s Optimal Health (COH) have taken this tool to a new and exciting level of specificity that 

enhances the ability for health and service providers to more effectively target limited funds.  

In early 2008, thirteen lead community agencies and institutions in Austin, TX came together as Charter 

Members of Children's Optimal Health (COH). Five of the organizations committed initial funding, while 

others committed data, time, and their knowledge surrounding the health of Central Texas 

children/youth. These Board members reflect the diverse organizations that impact outcomes for 

children including healthcare, housing, education, economic development, and social/emotional 

development; thus, enhancing our ability to look at a broader definition of health.  Further, this 

collaborative approach allows us to take a closer look at the social determinants and disparities in access 

to healthcare and social services creating significant barriers to the health and well‐being of children and 

youth.  The purpose of these efforts is to: 

 Improve operations 

• Impact policy 

• Encourage research 

• Mobilize the community 

 

COH maps proprietary, de‐identified, legally compliant data acquired through Data Sharing Agreements 

with over 14 Austin area education & health entities.  For the Obesity Project, the first maps reflected 

the health status of Austin Independent School District (AISD) middle school students by neighborhoods 

of residence based on BMI and cardiovascular health measures.    The ability to use individual residence 

data allows COH to create neighborhood level maps and enables the identification of “hot spots” as 

opposed to the diffused image that results from somewhat limited data provided by zip code and other 

public data.  Once concentrations, also known as "hot spots," are identified, it is possible to create drill‐

down maps that take a closer look at contributing factors.  Community asset data (such as food, schools, 

parks, healthcare, and transportation), demographic data (such as socio‐economic status and 

race/ethnicity), and other community characteristic data (such as crime rates) can be overlaid giving a 

fuller picture of both positive and negative contributing factors.  All maps are approved by an expert 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) made up of physicians, school officials, direct service providers, 

researchers and academics, and the data owners. 

 

Once projects are completed, a community summit is held to present the information to the community 

and engage action partners in the planning process for prevention and intervention for the 

neighborhoods of need.  Summits bring experts, parents, educators, health and social service providers, 

neighborhood advocacy groups, and others together to find solutions through policy and environmental 

changes.  Nine have been held with two more in the planning stages. 



2 
 

 
 

COH is unique.  Our organization: 

 Is a trusted data holder (for appropriate use and for HIPAA and FERPA compliance), COH, 
through Data Sharing Agreements (DSAs), and knows how to protect data from misuse. 

 Has developed effective processes to analyze and display complex spatial data. 

 By combining data from multiple sources and sectors, can leverage data for our community’s 
benefit in ways no single member organization can.  The insights gathered by analyzing data 
from multiple sources can also help individual organizations improve their effectiveness in the 
delivery of services that significantly improve the health outlook for children and youth. 
 

Other projects include Behavioral Health, Transportation Related Child Injury, Young Children by 

Physical and Social Environment, and Hays Consolidated ISD Obesity among others.  COH has now 

gained access to data to further allow expansion projects to other school districts, as well as an asthma 

project and is anticipating dental and prenatal outcome projects while expanding on the behavioral 

health, child injury, and obesity mapping. 

The maps provide a data driven picture easily understood by all.  They have been utilized to stimulate 

targeted action, to support service providers with information to attract funding, and with time‐ series 

mapping, to evaluate interventions once they occur.   

GIS mapping has become a popular and useful technique in looking singularly at an area of need.  

However, the level of data used and usefulness of the resulting images are critical to providing a level of 

understanding that is not generally available.  Our collaboration results in breadth, depth, and quality 

that is cross‐cutting across contributors to health and well‐being, as well as across service providers.  

COH is proud to have an active collaboration of community partners that are joined in making informed 

decisions that result in improvements in child health. 

 

Contact: 

Maureen Britton 

President/Executive Director 

1206 West 38th Street, Suite 4220 

Austin, TX  78705 

(512) 324‐5981 

mbritton@childrensoptimalhealth.org 

www.childrensoptimalhealth.org 

 

 



 

 
 
 

COH Board Membership 
 

*Robert I. Bonar, Jr., DHA, Board Chair 
 Seton Family of Hospitals, President/CEO 
 Dell Children’s Medical Center, CEO 
 rbonar@seton.org 
 
*William Sage, MD, JD, Board Vice-Chair 
 University of Texas at Austin, Vice Provost for Health Affairs 
 wsage@law.utexas.edu 
 
Susan Dawson, Board Community Vice-Chair 
 E3 Alliance, Executive Director 
 sdawson@e3alliance.org 
 
Ellen Balthazar, Board Secretary 
 Early Childhood, At Large - Community Representative 
 ellenpbalthazar@gmail.com 
 
*Pete Perialas, Treasurer 
 Lone Star Circle of Care, President and CEO 
 pperialas@lscctx.org 
 
*Bobbie Barker 

St. David’s Foundation, Vice President – Grants and Community Programs 
  bbarker@stdavidsfoundation.org 

 
*Trish Young, CPA 
 Central Health,  President and CEO 
 Trish.Young@centralhealth.net 
 
 Meria Carstarphen, PhD 
 Austin Independent School District, Superintendent 
 superintendent@austinisd.org 
 
*Carlos Rivera 

City of Austin, Director, Health & Human Services 
 Carlos.Rivera@austintexas.gov 
 
Veronica Macon, Vice President of Community Development District II 
 Housing Authority of the City of Austin 
 veronicam@hacanet.org 
 
Susan McDowell 
 Lifeworks, Executive Director 
 Susan.McDowell@lifeworksaustin.org 

Visible changes for a healthy future. 



 
 
 
*Jeff Thomas 

HEB Grocery Company, Senior Vice President and General Manager/Central 
Texas 
thomas.jeff@heb.com 

 
Suki Steinhauser, Executive Director 
 Communities in Schools of Central Texas 
 ssteinhauser@ciscentraltexas.org 

 
*Sustaining Members 
 
 
 
Non-member Consultants 
 
Stephen Pont, Dell Children’s Medical Center 
Travis County, Sherri Fleming 
Seton Healthcare Family, Ashton Cumberbatch 
Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce, Drew Scheberle 
University of Texas/ School of Public Health, Steve Kelder    

 
 



 
 

www.childrensoptimalhealth.org 
2106 West 38th St., Ste. 4220 • Austin, TX  78705 • Phone:  512-324-5980 

 

Visible changes for a healthy future. 

COMPLETED PROJEJCTS 
(Short Summary) 
 

Young Children Volume II – United Way Capital 
Area Success by 6 Partnership 
Project Partner(s): United Way Capital Area Success by 
6, UCLA Center for Healthier Children, Families and 
Communities. 
Question/Topic: Are there neighborhoods where very 
young children are identified with developmental 
vulnerabilities? 
Summit: Presented at United Way Capital Area Success 
by 6 Data Dive and Summit 
Online: Yes 

Central Texas Afterschool Network, Partners in 
Improving Child Well‐being 
Project Partner(s): Central Texas Afterschool Network 
and Safe Schools/Healthy Students – Austin Community 
Collaboration to Enhance Student Success (ACCESS) 
Question/Topic: Where are the afterschool resources 
for children in 17 targeted Central Texas Zip Codes? 
Summit: Presented at CTAN Breakfast of Champion’s 
October 2011 
Online: Yes 

Child and Youth Behavioral Health, 2009‐2010 
Project Partner(s): Safe Schools/Healthy Students – 
Austin Community Collaboration to Enhance Student 
Success (ACCESS) and AISD 
Question/Topic: What is the behavioral health status of 
children and youth in the Austin area? 
Reports: School and Community Safety, Student 
Disciplinary Actions, Student Substance Use, and Clinical 
and Community Supports 
Summit: May 2011 
Online: Yes 
Continuation: Originating at the Summit, community 
stakeholders have formed a Child and Youth Behavioral 
Health Clinical Advisory Group. 

Transportation Related Child Injury, 2007‐2009 
Project Partner: Dell Children’s Medical Center 
Question/Topic(s): Motor Vehicle Crashes Involving 
Children, Child Passenger Safety: Restraint Use and 
Resources, and Child Pedestrian and Cyclist Injuries 
Summit: February, 2012 
Online: Yes 
 
 
 

Child Obesity by Neighborhood, 2007‐2010 
Project Partners:  Austin Independent School District; 
Hays Consolidated Independent School District; 
Manor Independent School District 
Question/Topic: Where are the ISD students 
(Elementary, Middle and High School) who are at risk 
for obesity and related health problems? 
Summits: Dove Springs Neighborhood March 2011 and 
February 2009 Community Wide 
May 2012 Hays CISD 
Online:  Child Obesity by Neighborhoods and Middle 
School s‐ 2009, 2010, and 2011, Hays CISD ‐2011 
Continuation: COH is pursuing data sharing agreements 
(DSAs) will surrounding ISDs and a funding source to 
create a picture of Child Obesity in Central Texas. 
Update:  DSAs have been signed with Pflugerville ISD 
and Del Valle ISD. 

Housing Authority of the City of Austin, 2009‐2010 
Academic Success, Absenteeism, and Fitness 
Survey of AISD students per HACA Facility  
Project Partner(s): City of Austin Housing Authority 
Question/Topics: How do students living in HACA 
facilities compare to their peers (other AISD students) 
on academic performance, absenteeism, and fitness? 
Online: Yes, Aggregate Report 

Young Children, by Physical and Social 
Environment, 2007‐2008 
Project Partner:  Safe Schools/Healthy Students – 
Austin Community Collaboration to Enhance Student 
Success (ACCESS) 
Question/Topic:  What does the physical and social 
environment look like for Austin’s youngest children 
and their families? 
Summit: September 2010 
Online: Yes 
Continuation: United Way has funded an extension of 
this project in partnership with UCLA to further 
investigate the environment for young children in 
Manor ISD and Quail Creek/St. Johns Neighborhood and 
incorporate data on WIC Clinic locations and services. 

Access to Healthcare, 2008 
Identification of Central Health’s target population 
(un/under‐insured) 

Behavioral Health, 2012 
What is the co‐morbidity for mental illness and 
substance abuse and the geographic distribution? 
Project Partner: Central Health 
Online: No 



CHILDREN’S OPTIMAL HEALTH

Maureen Britton, Executive Director

Susan Millea, Ph.D. Community GIS Facilitator



MISSION
COH enables communities to visualize the health of 
their neighborhoods, identify assets and needs, 
unearth and nurture opportunities for collaborative 
change and monitor outcomes over time through GIS 
mapping and related analysis applied to public and 
privately held data sets.

• Improve Operations
• Inform Policy
• Encourage Research
• Mobilize the Community



COH Board and Consultants

Board Members
• Seton Healthcare Family*
• St. David’s Foundation*
• Lone Star Circle of Care*
• Central Health*
• Austin ISD*
• University of Texas at Austin*
• H‐E‐B* 
• City of Austin*
• Housing Authority of the City of 

Austin
• Communities in Schools
• E3 Alliance
• Lifeworks
• Early Childhood Representative

Consultants (non‐voting)
• UT School Public Health at Austin

• Greater Austin Chamber of 
Commerce

• Travis County

*Denotes ongoing financial support.



Travis County

• Formative Stages

• Business Formation

• TUUNA (Texas Uniform Unincorporated 
Nonprofit Association)

• Current consultants

History of Involvement



Projects

• Child Obesity, Central Texas School Districts, 2007‐2012

• Student Mobility, 2012

• Child/Youth Behavioral Health, 2011 

– Safety, Mental Health, Substance Use

• Housing, 2010

• Child Injury‐Transportation Related, 2011

• Young Children/Early Care and Education, 2010‐2011

• Out of School Time Programming, 2011



Transportation Related Child Injury

• Multiple datasets enhance our understanding 
and improve prevention planning

– Data from Dell Children’s Medical Center and 
Austin Police Department

• City of Austin Resolution

• Children’s Optimal Health Workgroup

– Subcommittees on public policy, education, 
engineering, enforcement, and data sharing



Transportation Related Child Injury



Using Maps for 
Local Action



Out of School 
Time Services

• Multiple school 
districts within Travis 
County
• Combine with maps 
depicting youth 
indicators (i.e., 
obesity, academic 
success) to target 
need.



Student Mobility

• Joint Subcommittees

– City of Austin, Travis County, and AISD

• Children’s Optimal Health and 

• AISD Department of Research and Evaluation

– Funded through the ACCESS grant



How many students are mobile during 
the school year?

81.4%

18.6%

82.8%

17.2%

5.7%

0.0%

25.0%

50.0%

75.0%

100.0%

Proportion of AISD Students by Type
School Year 2010‐11, N= 91,693

Residentially Stable/Mobile Campus Stable/Mobile
Residential and Campus 

Mobile

27,671

17,075 15,810 5,214

30.2%



Economic Disadvantage and Mobility

24%

8%

21%

10%
8%

1%

Economically Disadvantaged Students
(N=62,197)

Non‐Economically Disadvantaged Students
(N=29,514)

Mobility Status by Economic Disadvantage Status

Residentially Mobile Campus Mobile Residentially Mobile and Campus Mobile

3 times as likely to be residentially mobile

2 times as likely to be campus mobile

8 times as likely to be both

2/3 of AISD Students are Economically Disadvantaged



Red= >50% Moved Homes
16,973 Students

Red= >50% Campus Mobile
15,810 Students



Central Texas 
School District 

Mapping



Use of COH’s Work

• Joint Subcommittees (COA, Travis County, AISD)

• Austin, Del Valle, Manor, and Hays Consolidated ISDs

• City of Austin

• Travis County‐Child and Family Services 

• Success by Six

• Central Health Strategic Planning

• HACA

• Multiple Direct Service Providers and Funders



Thank You for Your Time
Questions?



zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 4





































zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 5

































































































































zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 6























zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 7

































zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 8











zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 9































AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 13, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Nancy Barchus, 854-9764 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 5 to Contract No. 
4400000094 (H.T.E. Contract No. 10T00142NB), Garratt Callahan 
Company for additional water treatment services to the SMART 
facility. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This Contract approved by Commissioners Court on August 24, 2010, 
requires the vendor to provide Water Treatment Services to Travis 
County. 

Modification No. 5 adds additional Water Treatment Services to the 
contract for Travis County Adult Probation SMART Facility at 3404 FM 
973, Del Valle, TX 78617. 

Modification No. 4, approved by the Purchasing Agent on August 22, 
2012, extended the contract for an additional year. 

Modification No. 3, approved by the Purchasing Agent on August 13, 
2011, extended the contract for an additional year. 

Modification No. 2, approved by the Commissioner Court on March 22, 
2011, added additional Water Treatment Services to the contract for 
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department. 

Modification No. 1, approved by the Commissioners Court on August 24, 
2010, deleted items 36 and 37 of Group A, potable water well at 1310 
FM 1626 and removed the TECQ certification only required form 
servicing of potable water.  This modification also added water treatment 
services to the Travis County Correctional Complex 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 10



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 

 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 5 months $15,168.64 has been 
spent against this contract. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: $24.00/Month, $288.00/Year    

Modification Type:  Bilateral   

Modification Period: Duration of the contract  

 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: N/A 

  Funding Account(s):  1140090001 

  Comments: 

 

   

    

 

 

 
 
 



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 1ffI’00l42NB (4400000694) Water Treatment Systems Semces

PAGE 1 OF I PAGE

ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: Nancy Barchus DATE PREPARED:
700 LAVACA, SUITE 800 TEL. NO: (512) 854-9764 October 8 2012
AUSTIN, TX 78701 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL

Garratt Callahan Company 5 CONTRACT:

Attn: Mr. Tim Schuller
August 10, 2010

700 Washington Square Drive

Leander, TX 78641
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: SqX 9.2011 thni S,t8, 2012 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: Se9, 2012 thiough Sent 8. 2013

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: Current Modified Amount

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as
heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

The purpose of this modification is to add the following Water Treatment System Services for the Facilities Department
to the SMART Facility at 3404 S. FM 973, Del Valle, TX 78617:

One Hot Water Loop @ $12.00 per month ( $144.00 per year)

One Chill Water Loop @ $12.00 per month ($144.00 per year)

Note to Vendor:

I X Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

II DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

LEGAL BUSINE NAME: (IQJ!ti CI4tJ AfrIJ CyYj9 D DBA

BY: J)/\
.,1Lji:’a__-

‘CORPORAT1ON

SIG IJRE C] OTHER

BY:________________ DATE:
PRINTNA1’dE

TITLE C>j lo-
ITS DIJLYUTHOR1ZD AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY TEXAS DATE

,,

BY:
CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.MPO TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAViS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:__________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE



FACILITIES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
Roger A. El Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director \z.;;;

1010 Lavaca Street, Suite 400 • P.O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767 • Phone: (512) 854-9661 • Fax: (512) 854-9226

MEMORANDUM FMD Project: SVCOT-24-12F-XM
File: 801

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., Purchasing Agent i/? /
Roger A. El Khoury, M.S., P.E.,

October 17, 2012 U
SUBJECT: Water Treatment Services

Contract Modification Number Two, Garratt Callahan Company
Contract Number 4400000094

This Contract Modification Number 5 is for changes to the service contract, by adding
monthly water treatment services for one Chilled System Treatment and Heating Treatment to
SMART Facility Building B, as described in the attached documentation. This Contract
Modification will increase the contract by $960.00 per year. Facilities Management Department
(FMD) has reviewed and negotiated the cost of this Contract Modification and has determined
that the cost is fair and reasonable.

Funds for this Contract Modification are in Cost Center 1140090001. Facilities Management
Department recommends approval.

In accordance with the procedure to secure the approval of this Contract Modification, this
request is being forwarded along with the supporting documents for your approval. If approved,
please issue a ftilly executed Contract Modification Number Two to Garratt Callahan Company.
Please call Rony at extension 44781 ifyou have any questions.

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

ATTACHMENT:
Ganatt Callahan Co. Proposal, Dated 10/12/12

COPY TO:
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO
Lloyd Evans, Maintenance Division Director, FMD
Rony Aouad, Service Contract Manager, FMD
Nancy Barchus, Purchasing Agent Assistant, Purchasing Office



C3 GarraU
CAL LAHAN

Water Treatment Expertise Since 1904

October 12, 2012
Travis County Facilities Department
PURCHASING OFFICE
700 LAVACA, SUITE 800
AUSTIN, TX 78701

Attn: Nancy Barchus — PURCHASING AGENT
Rony Aouad — Service Contract Manager

Subject: Addition of SMART Building to the contract

For The chilled system at the Smart building is different than any closed loop in Travis
County due to the Thermal Storage tank.

I need to budget a biocide treatment CC 315 and CC 12-L closed loop inhibitor to treat the
30,000 gallon Thermal Storage tank.

Budget $ 60.00 per month for Smart chilled treatment.
Hot ioop $ 20.00 per month for Smart Heating treatment & testing.

Alternately, the extra needed chemicals can be purchased off TXMAS and the following is
for monthly site visits, testing and reporting:

Add the following Water Treatment System Services for the Facilities
Department to the SMART Facility at 3404 5. FM 973, Del Valie, TX 78617:

One Hot Water Loop @ $12.00 per month ($144.00 per year)

One Chill Water Loop @ $12.00 per month ($144.00 per year)

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call: 512-673-7696.

Sincerely,

Tim Schuller
Sr. Account Manager
512 — 673-7696 cell;
866-771-2565 Fax;
tschuller@g-c.com

Water Treatment Expertise Since 1904

f3721 Welch Road, Farmers Bianch, TX 75244 972.661.5006 Fax.972 980 0822j



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Michael Long, 854 4850; Marvin Brice, 854 
9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe  

Agenda Language:  Approve contract awards for Drug and Alcohol 
Testing Services, RFS# 1208-005-ML, to the following: 

A)   Arcpoint Labs of Austin 

B)   Phamatech Laboratories 

C)   Source 1 Solutions 

D)   Promed Medical Care Center 

E)   Concentra Health Services, Inc 

F)   Proresults  
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

Travis County has maintained an average of (5) five contracts which have 
been providing the departments with drug and alcohol testing services. The 
Purchasing Office issued a Request for Services, 1208-005-ML, for Drug 
and Alcohol Testing Services on September 19th, 2012. Six proposals were 
received and opened on October 17, 2012 then reviewed by an evaluation 
team consisting of representatives from Pretrial Services, Criminal Court, 
Juvenile Probation, Sheriff’s Office,  Domestic Relations Office, Child 
Protective Services/HHS, Human Resources Management Department and 
Family Drug Treatment Court. It is the Evaluation Committee’s 
recommendation that these six (6) contracts be awarded to establish a pool 
of qualified providers to meet the county department needs. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 11



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

By awarding these contracts, Travis County will be able to use the new 
providers and take advantage of multiple location flexibility. These 
contracts will be used on an as needed basis by Pretrial Services, Criminal 
Court, Juvenile Probation, Sheriff’s Office, Domestic Relations Office, Child 
Protective Services/HHS, Human Resources Management Department and 
Family Drug Treatment Court.  
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: Estimated quantity “As Needed”   

Contract Type:  Professional Service  

Contract Period: Commence upon execution and continue through 
September 30, 2013  

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent:  19  Responses Received: 6  

HUB Information: N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: N/A  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 

  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 
notified. 

  Comments:   

 
  Funding Account(s): Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: NA 

Cost Center-G/L no’(s): Pretrial-1420010001, HRMD-1110050001,           
Juvenile Probation - 1420010001, DRO - 1450460001, Family Drug 
Court – 1220010001, Sheriff - 1370750001 

 

 

 
 
 



JAMES N. SYLVESTER PHYLLIS CLAiR
Chief Deputy Major - Law Enforcement

DARREN WNG
Major - Corrections

MARK SAWA
Major. Administration & Support

MEMORANDUM

TO: Mike Long
Purchasing Agent Assistant

FROM: >4 Unda Hollis

£17! .Accountant Assodate

ThROUGH: Maria Wedhorn
Financial Analyst

DATE: November 09, 2012

SUBJECr: Drug Testing Contracts

The Travis County Sheriff’s Office recommends that the Travis County Purchasing Department
Award the Drug Testing Contracts to all six of the Vendors that submitted proposals.

ARCpoint Labs of Austin
Concentra
Phamätech Laboratories and Diagnostics
Pro Med Medical Care Centers
ProResults Drug and DNA Testing
Sourcel Solutions

Expenditures will continue to be funded within General Fund Cost Center: 1370750001

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 854-5219.

*
Safety Integrity. Tradition ofService

GREG HAMILTON
TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF

P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

(512) 854-9770
www.tcsheriff.org



Travis County Pretrial Services
a division ofthe Adult Probation Department

509 West 11th Street, Room 1.800
OF

Austin, TX 78701
512-854-9381

Irma Guerrero, Division Director 512-854-9018 Fax

Memorandum

TO: Mike Long, Purchasing Office

FROM: Larry Spacek, Pretrial Services

RE: Award UA Providers

Date: November11, 2012

Pretrial Services agrees with awarding to all six UA providers.



Human*nt

1010 Lavaca P.O. Box 1748 . Austin, Texas 78767 • (512) 85491651 FAX(512) 854-9757

Date:

Subject:

November 1, 2012

Mike Long, Purchasing Agent

John Brady, Risk & Safety Specialist, Sr, HRMD Risk Mgt. Division

William Paterson, Risk & Safety Manager, HRMD

Drug & Alcohol Testing Contract Awards

Risk Management, HRMD has reviewed the 6 proposal submissions for providing drug &
alcohol sample collection and testing. The Risk Management, HRMD recommends that all 6
of the candidates (ArcPoint Labs, Source 1, ProMed, Concentra, ProResults and Phamatech)
be awarded Travis County contracts for proposed services.

To:

CC:

If there are any questions regarding this recommendation please contact me at 854-9586.



NOV—07—2012 12:47 TRAVIS CO GALS 512 854 9818 P.001/001

ESTELA P. MEDINA
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer °“

DOAL
Relations

TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION
DOMESTIC RELATIONS OFFICE

November 7, 2012

Michael E. Long, CPPB
Travis County Purchasing Office
Purchasing Assistant UI

RECOMMENDATION LEflER:
Drug and Alcohol Testing Services

Travis County Domestic Relations Office is in agreement to issuing awards to all six (6) Drug
and Alcohol Testing service provider.

Thank You,

RosI P1 e
Mat Manager, Family Court Services

1010 LAVACA STREET P.O. BOX 1495 AUSTIN TEXAS 78767 PHONE: (512) 854-9696 FAX: (512) 854-0294

TOTAL P.001



DARLENE BYRNE
Supervising Judge

(512) 854-9313

TEXANNA DAVIS
Presiding Judge

(512) 854-7000

Travis County Family Drug Treatment
Court

WAVIS COUNTY COUR11-IOUSE
P.O. BOX 1748

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78767
FAX: (512) 854-5907

KATY GALlAGHER-PARKER
SInffAUorswy
(512) 854—4915

RENE R. SALINAS
Cciurl OpcrnIions Offirr

(512) 854-9870

MICHELLE KIMBROUGH
Caurl Cnønli.igth,r

(512) 854-8876

MEMORANDUM

,27 )Th4Y7
?chelle
Family Drug Treatment Court Coordinator
Evaluation Committee Member

TO: Mike Long
Travis County Purchasing Department

FROM: Michelle Kinibrough
Travis County Family Drug Treatment Court Coordinator

DATE: 11/6/2012

RE: Travis County Drug Testing Contracts

As an Evaluation Committee Member, I recommend that the Purchasing Department awardcontracts to all of the six providers who have submitted a proposal lbr drug and alcohol testingservices. I recommend that contracts be awarded to ARCpoint Labs of Austin, Concentra,Phaniatech Laboratoiies and Diagnostics, Pro Med Medical Care Centers, ProResuLts Drugand DNATesting, and Source 1 Solutions. If there are any questions regarding thisrecommendation, I can be reached at niichc1lc.kinibroughco.travis.tx.us or (512) 854-8876.

Date

1



TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT

ESTELA P. MEDINA ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer COURT SERVICES

PROBATION SERVICES
RESIDENTIAL SERVICES

UBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES
OMESTIC RELATIONS OFFICE

JUVENILE JUSTICE
ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION

PROGRAM

TO: Cyd Grimes
Purchasing Agent

FROM: .. P GD
Estela P. Medina
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer

DATE: November , 2012

RE: RFS #1208-005-ML for Alcohol and Drug Testing

Travis County Juvenile Probation. has reviewed the bids submitted for the Alcohol and Drug Testing. The
department recommends awarding the Bids to the following pooi of service providers:

ArcPoint Labs, Source, ProMed, Concentra, Proresults, and Phamatech. All the products meet the
specifications requested by our department.

The following details the GL accounts and Cost centers for funding information purposes.

General Ledger Account 511090 Substance Abuse Screening
Cost Center 1450060001 HR (staff screening)
Cost Center 1450460001 DRO (DRO Family Court Services)
Cost Center 1450240001 Probation
Internal Order 100611 (SAMHSA Drug Court grant)

If you need additional information in order to proceed, please do not hesitate to contact me.

cc: Barbara Swift
Emmitt Hayes
Scot Doyal
Sylvia Mendoza

2515 South Congress Avenue 4. Austin, Texas 78704 4 (512) 854-7000 Fax: (512) 854-7097



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
A

 

 

 

 

 

 

Trav

ROFE
AGRE

CONCE

DRUG 

CON

vis Co

ESSION
EMEN

BE

TRAVI

ENTRA H

AND AL

NTRACT

ounty 

NAL S
NT/CO
ETWEEN

IS COUN

AND 

HEALTH
 

FOR 

LCOHOL
 

T NO. 44

Purc

SERV
ONTR

NTY 

H SERVI

L SERVI

40000119

hasin

VICES 
RACT 

ICES 

ICES 

95 

ng Off

 

fice 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

1.0 Definitions......................................................................................................pg. 1 
2.0 Term ...............................................................................................................pg. 1 
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities  ........................................................................pg. 2 
4.0 Compensation, Billing and Payment ..............................................................pg. 3 
5.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access .............................................................pg. 5 
6.0 Modifications/Amendments  ..........................................................................pg. 6 
7.0 Other Provisions.............................................................................................pg. 6 
            Approvals .......................................................................................................pg. 11 
 

 
Attachments 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Services & Performance Measures…………………… pg. 12  
Attachment B – Fee Schedule……………………………………………………   pg. 36 
Attachment C – Insurance Requirements………………………………………….pg. 40 
Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit including: ………………………………….......pg. 43 
 Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons………………………………pg. 44 
 Exhibit 2 – Disclosure ……………………………………………………. .pg. 46 
Attachment E – Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
                          Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts……………………  pg. 47 

 Attachment F – Proposal ……………………………………………………… …pg. 49 
  



    
 

 

II.  DEFINITIONS 
 

1.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

 In this Agreement, 
 

1.1 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court.  
 

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.  
  

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor. 
 

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and/or Contractor.  
 

 1.5   “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean: 

 

 1.5.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more 

than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or property 

interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

 

 1.5.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, or goods or otherwise creating or having in 

existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

 

but does not include: 

 

  1.5.3 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a “Key Contracting Person” at a  posted, 

published, or marked price available to the general public; 

 

1.5.4 Any financial services product sold to a “Key Contracting Person” for personal, family or 

household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated and individuals 

with similar risks as determined by “Contractor” in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 

1.5.5 A transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 

“Contractor” if “Contractor” is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or other 

representative of  “Contractor” who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have 

known about the Contract. 

 

 1.6 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavit   

 attached to this Contract and marked Attachment D. 

  

2.0 TERM 
 

2.1 Initial Term.  The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by 

all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2013, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.   

 

2.2 Renewal Term(s).  Option to Extend: County may unilaterally extend this Contract for (i) two  (2) 

additional one (1) year periods and (ii) three (3) additional one (1) month periods (individually, an 

“Option to Extend” and collectively, the “Options to Extend”), and all provisions of this Contract, 

except the term, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  County shall exercise an Option to 

Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the then current term.  The total term of 

this Contractshall not exceed thirty-nine (39) months.  County shall have the right to exercise all or a 

portion of the Option to Extend in any combination it deems necessary. 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 1



    
 

 

2.3  Termination.  COUNTY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving CONTRACTOR  

written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination. 

 

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
 3.1 Scope of Services.  CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and 

activities described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is 

expressly incorporated herein and made a part hereof.   

 

 3.2 Ethical Standards.  CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary 

powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and her best professional 

judgment. 

  

3.3 Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is prohibited 

from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the CONTRACTOR’S 

obligations under this Agreement.   

  

 3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities 

pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans 

with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933].   

 

3.5  Legal Compliance.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws, 

rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the 

performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently 

delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector. 

 

3.7   Insurance Requirements  CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in 

Attachment C, "Insurance Requirements", which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part 

hereof. 

 

3.8  Federal Funds.  CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 

will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to 

influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal 

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 

cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual 

information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES and may rely on all factual information supplied by the TRAVIS 

COUNTY DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES in response to these requests.   However TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any 

elected official of County for any other purpose than conveying factual information. 

 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 2



3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has 
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services 
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS 
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done 
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the 
services in CONTRACTOR'S proposal. 

4.0 COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT 

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the 
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR's compliance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the 
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof. 

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: As needed Basis 
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None. 

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any 
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY'S satisfaction and given COUNTY'S 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY'S obligation to make any payment to 
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and 
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR' S profession. 

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the 
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of 
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code 

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall invoice County on a monthly basis for services rendered 
pursuant to this Contract. Each invoice shall include the following information: 

4.4.1 the contract Reference Number; 
4.4.2 the client reference Number, (client name) 
4.4.3 type of service in accordance with Attach. B. 
4.4.4 the total amount being requested 
4.4.5 date of collection 

Original invoices shall be sent to: 	 See Part II, Section D, for the list of County 

Department addresses. 


4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to 
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to 
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days 
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with 
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30) 
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to 
CONTRACTOR 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 3



4.6 CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue 
Form W-9 Request for Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 

with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of status in 
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable. 

4.7 Notwithstanding anything to the the 
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment taxes at the time invOlcmg, 

hereby any to made hereunder to the 
Assessor-Collector the payment of said delinquent taxes. 

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt. 

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of Local Government Code, notice of 
indebtedness been filed with County Auditor or County evidencing the 
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not 

drawn on a COUNTY fund in of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or of 
CONTRACTOR until: 

4.8.1.1 the County notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the IS 

outstanding; and 
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid. 

includes delinquent and indebtedness arising from 
agreements with the COUNTY. 

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply funds COUNTY owes 

balance of debt for which notice is made under 

statement that 

the outstanding 


4.9 Certification under this 

"Government-wide and Suspension." CONTRACTOR, signing this Contract, 
hereby certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its principles: 

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or 

rpF'_'N~"'" period preceding Contract convicted of or had a civil 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction or records, making false statements, or 

stolen property; 

(c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly by a governmental entity 
(Federal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 

period preceding Contract one or more transactions 
for cause or default. 

4.8.1.1 if 
amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may 

outstanding 
includes a 

applied to 

for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, 

judgment rendered 

(d) have not within a 
or local) 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 4



Where CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 6.9, CONTRACTOR 
shall provide an explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's 
consideration and evaluation with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract 
by County. 

4.10 Exemption From County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the 
requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services or meets other requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 

4.11 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by 
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement. 

4.12 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and 
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of 
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice 
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS 

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of 
records and other information relating to Parent Coaching & Assessments Services in accordance with 
the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical 
standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client 
information. Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR 
agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY'S monitoring 
and evaluation duties in any way. 

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shaH make 
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and 
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any liotigation 
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR 
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost 
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

5.3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and 
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and 
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their 
authorized representatives. 

5.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement including 
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries, 
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR will become property of the 
COUNTY. 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 5



6.0 AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS 


6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this 
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY A TT ACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of 
this Agreement or any attachment to it to the County Department with a copy to the Purchasing Agent. 

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has 
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County 
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOVT CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, 
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve 
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise CONTRACTOR as to 
such authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may 
submit any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the 
Purchasing Agent to sign the Amendment. 

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS: 

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, 
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT 
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY 
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING 
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS 
CONTRACT. 

7.2 Warrants. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable copyrights, patents, 
licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials used in this 
Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any infringement of those 
rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this Agreement. Consultant 
shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes 
of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees for 
damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 
existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement. 

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an 
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against 
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being 
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that 
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or 
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, 
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against 
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 6



 
herein.  Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent 
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions. 

 
7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may, 
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold 
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein. 

 
7.5 Non-Waiver of Default 
 
 7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of 

any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist. 
 
 7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment, 

act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it.  Any 
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy 
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or 
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

  
7.6     Forfeiture of Contract   If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person 
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business 
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to 
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and 
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value 
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this  Agreement, provided, however, that this 
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics 
Policy. 

 
7.7 Entire Agreement.  All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement related 
to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this Agreement have 
been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies and procedures approved 
by Commissioners Court for County.   Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations 
not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect. 

 
7.7.1 Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a 
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance 
with all the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

7.7.1.1            Attachment A – Scope of Services  
7.7.1.2            Attachment B – Fee Schedule 
7.7.1.3  Attachment C – Insurance Requirements 
7.7.1.4  Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit 
7.7.1.5  Attachment E -  Debarment 
7.7.1.6  Attachment F -  Proposal 

 
7.8 Notices: 
 

7.8.1 Written Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by 
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given 
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom 
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 7



postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the 
party at the address herein specified. 

 
7.8.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be: 
 

     Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.; CPPO (or her successor) 
     Travis County Purchasing Agent 
     P. O. Box 1748 
     Austin, Texas 78767 
 

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
  
    Travis County Departments 

 
7.8.3 Contractor Address.  The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this 

Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be: 
 
      Concentra 
      9333 Research Blvd, Ste 400 
      Austin, TX 78759  

 
7.9 Change of Address.  Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice 
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8.  Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen 
(15) days of the change. 

 
7.10 Authority: The Department designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement.  The Department designee shall have complete authority to 
interpret and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S 
services.  The Department designee may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive 
information. 
 
7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent.   When the CONTRACTOR and/or County 
have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract, the CONTRACTOR or 
County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing  Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with written 
notice of the dispute.  Such notice shall contain a specific written description of  the issues involved as well as 
the CONTRACTOR's requested resolution of the dispute and any other relevant information which 
CONTRACTOR desires to include.  As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing 
Agent will act as the County representative in any further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in 
relation to the described dispute.  Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or 
correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not issued  by or to the Purchasing Agent is void.  
If the CONTRACTOR does not agree with any document, notice  or correspondence relating to the 
dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the CONTRACTOR must submit a 
written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Department designee within ten (10) calendar days 
after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  The 
Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the final resolution of the dispute to the CONTRACTOR within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of  dispute by the Purchasing Agent.  If this final resolution 
does not resolve the dispute to the CONTRACTOR's  satisfaction, CONTRACTOR may submit a written 
Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The  Purchasing Agent will 
provide a copy of such response to the Department designee. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within 
ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the  unsatisfactory  final resolution. CONTRACTOR then has the 
right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the  Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on 
the Commissioners Court agenda.  

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 8



that 

an 
COUNTY, or gam any against 

7.15.2 =::.:..-:=-:...== 

7.12 CONTRACTOR is not satisfied with the of the dispute pursuant to 
Section 7.11, CONTRACTOR notify the mediation is acceptable to both 

will not 

the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties to use the Dispute Resolution 
as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in CIV. PRAC. 

AND Section 154.023. both Parties are satisfied with the 
a final and binding of the All 

mediation shall confidential as described TEX. ClV. 
154.073, unless in writing, to waive confidentiality. 

7.13 CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with 
staff and CONTRACTORs as reasonable and necessary and as required by the 
Departments/Offices. 

14 The parties 
CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, operating solely 
of rights, obligations and liabilities to him as 

shall not considered an employee 
COUNTY pursuant to COUNTY'S personnel policies. 

agreement and of any of terms or provisions, as well as 
shall governed by laws of the State of 

7.15 validity of 
the parties 

7.15.1 
by a court of 

invalidate, or nullify the 
the 

1<'"'1"",,",, provision, or 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or 

of this but the 

All obligations under this Agreement shall performable in 
any litigation concerning Agreement shall in City of 

7.15.3 party may any of the rights or duties created by Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR 

no agent, or representative of COUNTY has any authority to 
part of this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court. 

7 .16 Notwithstanding any prOVIsIOn this Agreement, this 
binding upon and inure to benefit of COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and 

executors, 
sublet, or transfer his 

of the other party hereto. 

COUNTY nor the 

shall 

7. I 7 a part it is that 
CONTRACTOR is free to provide outside as it sees fit at those times which 
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is understood COUNTY is free to have more 
than one contractor providing the type of included this Agreement. 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 9



fTrPPtTIPnT on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and 
or they have duly 

7.18 Conditions covenants of this which by their terms are performable 
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or 
end and remain fully performable. 

7. I 9 Interpretational Guidelines 

When period of is stated this time 
day and include last of period. If the last day 

COUNTY has declared a holiday for 
computation. 

7.19.2 Words any gender in this Agreement shall construed to 
include any other gender and words in either number shall construed to include the other 
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise. 

shall computed to exclude the 
of any 
employees, these 

on a Saturday, Sunday or a day 
shall be omitted 

this 
by that "',",""VA 

If by Chapter 176, Local Government Code, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and 
the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., 
Austin, Texas 78751. The CONTRACTOR shall update this Questionnaire by September 1 each 

the duration this Contract, as required by Chapter I of the Local Government Code. In addition, 
if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the CONTRACTOR 

submit an updated Questionnaire. CONTRACTOR should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to a Questionnaire on the official County Internet website. 

on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or 

by CONTRACTOR to this on behalf 
CONTRACTOR to bind CONTRACTOR validly and to all 
provisions this 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 10



------- Samuel T. Biscoe 

be ",,,,,,boor! by both •
This will in duplicate 

Contractor Travis County 

By: By: 
Name and Title (Printed) County 

Approved as to Legal Fonn By: 
Assistant County Attorney 

Funds Verified By: 
County Auditor 

Approved by 
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO, Agent 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 11



A TTACHMENT A 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SECTION A- TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS-ALCOHOL TESTING 

CONTRACTOR MUST: 

1.1 	 Provide trained breath alcohol technician(s) (BAT) to conduct evidential breath 
testing (EBT), including random selection for EBT, in compliance with 
Department of Transportation (DOT) regulations and 49 CFR, Parts 40 and 382, 
as amended. 

1.2 	 Use EBT devices which are listed on the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA) Conforming Products List (CPL) and meet the 
requirements for confirmation testing. 

1.3 	 Provide in-clinic facilities that afford visual and aural privacy to the individual 
being tested, sufficient to prevent unauthorized persons from seeing or hearing 
test results and ensure that individuals tested at the specified Travis County on
site locations listed in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 2.17 are afforded similar 
pnvacy. 

1.4 	 Provide all necessary equipment, personnel, and materials for EBT at the 
Contractor's location where testing is conducted and at the specified Travis 
County on-site testing locations. 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 12



PART II - SECTION B - TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS - DRUG TESTING 


1.0 
provided for this contract, the quality of all services rendered under it must confonn to 
the highest standards in the relevant profession, trade or field of endeavor. All 
must be rendered or supervised directly individuals fully qualified the relevant 
profession, or field, and holding any required by law or regulation. 
regulations under which this is to be performed are provided (taken from the 
Department of Health and Human (DHHS) "Mandatory Guidelines for Federal 
Workplace Program," the ofTransportation (DOT) 
"Mandatory Guidelines Commercial Driver's (CDL)", as published and 
"1-'\.,,,,,...,,-, In this document are to as "DHHS 
Guidelines" and "DOT " 

TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS 
following definitions are adopted: 

2.1 	 ALIQUOT - A portion a specimen used testing. 

A group consisting of samples, calibrators, controls, and blind quality 
that is run in the same time frame under the identical 

the and instruments. 

2.3 	 is a metabolite of that is identified and quantified 
Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry 	(GC/MS) confirmation test 
metabolites. 

of 

BATCH -
control 

2.4 CALIBRATORS -
drug and drug metabolites 

CHAfN-OF-CUSTODY FORM - An approved DHHS or DOT external chain-of
custody document that tracks the handling and of forensic 
speCImen of collection to final disposition and includes 
documenting printed name that clear and original of 
person, purpose for handling or transfer specimens or aliquots for 
into whose custody IS 

2.6 	 CONFIRMATORY - A second analytical procedure to identify 
presence of a drug or metabolite which is independent of the initial test 
and which uses a different technique and chemical principle from that the 

test order to ensure reliability and accuracy. (At this time GC/MS or 
LCIMS are only confinnation method for marijuana, 
opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine.) 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 13



listed in Section 6.0. 

human 
precision and 

amounts of drug or drug metabolites spiked into a 
which are used to validate calibration of an instrument, 
of the and of the technician. 

- Delta-9-Tetrahydrocannabinol-9Carboxylic Acid is a metabolite delta-
9-tetrahydrocannabinol major psychoactive compound of marijuana) that is 
identified and in the GC/MS confirmation test manJuana 
metabolites. 

2.9 - An immunoassay 	 "negative" urine 
from 	 and positive specimens 

may use the Enzyme Multiple Immuno Technique. 

2.10 	 (3) standard deviations more than the mean 
result analyzing at least 12 negative unne and 
standard deviation of values for 

2.11 	 LIMIT QUANTITATION - The mean of the of 
12 unne and calculating the standard deviation 
for each specimen. 

2 	 MRO - A review officer who is a licensed physician responsible for 
receiving laboratory results generated by Travis County drug testing 
who knowledge of substance abuse disorders appropriate medical 
training to and evaluate test with medical history and 

biomedical information person who provided the 

INITIAL 

for further testing 

at 

other 

2.13 	 drug alcohol screens for County 
Sheriff's Travis County Drug Diversion not required by, or 
conducted DHHS or DOT guidelines. Non-DOT includes Non

pre-employment Drug Diversion Court Non-
DOT Pretrial Testing and HHSD/CPS. 

2.14 	 NON-DOT PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING - A test for 10 specified 
and/or metabolites. These tests will be administered before employment in 

safety-sensitive positions 	 the County Sheriff's The 
drugs to tested and their respective presumptive cut-off levels are 

2.15 NON-DOT DRUG DIVERSION COURT TESTING - These tests are of two 
Type each 5 specified drugs and/or their metabolites. Type I 

the Type I and Type II tests will as a condition of probation 
p'!",,·....,,·rI adjudication as ordered by Travis County Drug Diversion 

drugs to tested for and their respective presumptive cut-off 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 14



for both Type I and Type II tests are listed in Section 6.0. (on fee schedule items 7 
& 8). 

2.16 	 NON-DOT PRETRIAL SERVICES TESTING - These tests are of two types, 
Type I and Type II, each for five (5) specified drugs and/or their metabolites. 
Both the Type I and Type II tests will be administered as condition of pretrial 
releases ordered by the Travis County Pretrial Services department. The specific 
drugs to be tested for an their respective presumptive cut-off levels for both Type 
I and Type II tests are listed in section 6.0 (on fee schedule items 12 & 13) 

2.17 	 SECRETARY - The Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Secretary of 
Transportation in regards to issues which affect their respective drug testing 
programs. The Secretary may designate an individual from a recognized 
organization (to include a Contractor) to act on herlhis behalf in the 
implementation of these DOT or DHHS Guidelines. 

2.18 	 TRAVIS COUNTY ON-SITE TESTING LOCATIONS - Random drug and 
alcohol screening tests will be regularly conducted by the Contractor at the 
following Travis County locations: 

2.18.1 	 TNR Satellite One Office - 9301 Jolumy Morris Road, Austin, TX 78724 

2.18.2 	TNR Westside Service Center - 1405 FM 620 North, Austin, TX 78732 

2.18.3 	TNR Satellite Four Office - 5412 Lockhart Highway, Austin, TX 78744 

2.18.4 Travis County Jail- 1000 San Antonio Street, Austin, TX 78701 

2.18.5 Travis County Correctional Complex - 3614 Bill Price Road, Del Valle, 
TX 78617 

3.0 	 SCOPE OF WORK: 

3.1 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform the initial test for the detection of marijuana metabolites and cocaine 
metabolites on all urine specimens submitted, and additionally perform the initial 
test for opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines on individually requested 
specimens. 

3.2 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform GC/MS confirmation tests on all specimens that are screened positive by 
the initial test. 

3.3 	 The Contractor must provide a method for identifying interfering substances 
which prevent the initial test, such as contaminants, adulterants, or other masking 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 15



agents; and provide any special testing necessary to support the laboratory's 
results. 

3.4 	 The Contractor must conduct additional GC/MS testing to identify 6 
methamphetamine and Dextros and Levo when consistent with DHHS and/or 
DOT guidelines. 

3.5 	 All laboratory analysis will be provided in accordance with all DOT regulations 
and the DHHS procedures and 49CFR, Parts 40 and 382. 

3.6 	 Urinalysis will be conducted with an initial test to eliminate negative unne 
specimens from further analysis. 

3.7 Positive initial test results will be confirmed by conducting GCIMS method of 
analysis. 

3.8 	 The initial test and positive confirmatory test will be done by the same laboratory. 
Where a Travis County employee requests additional testing following a positive 
confirmatory test, such testing on another aliquot will be conducted by a different 
laboratory, certified by the DHHS, and as directed by the MRO. 

3.9 	 Remaining aliquots must be retained in frozen storage for 60 days after the date 
on which the laboratory acquires it. 

3.10 	 The Contractor must provide an MRO. 

3.11 	 Contractor will provide a scientific method for random selection of County 
commercial drivers for drug and alcohol testing. Data for input into the random 
selection data base will be provided by the County. Random lists must be 
generated and distributed to the County at least monthly or on a more frequent 
basis as requested. 

3.12 	 Contractor must provide to the County copies of records, and databases developed 
and maintained by the Contractor as part of the activities under the contract and 
must deliver them to the County quarterly or upon request. The records and 
databases must be provided both in paper form and in Excel electronic format. 

3.13 	 Contractor and subcontractors must accommodate the identification procedures 
required by the various county departments utilizing the Contractor services to 
verify identity of the person that gives the specimen. 

3.14 	 The Contractor is required to maintain and use a system of safeguarding County 
records which identify County personnel and any other information received in 
the performance of this contract, to ensure the highest level of privacy for County 
employees. Contractor shall provide all services required in a manner that would 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 16



comply with the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.c. 552a and Section 503 of Public Law 100
71, if Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws. 

The Contractor and its employees shall not hold any discussion or release any 
information or data pertaining to the Travis County Alcohol and Drug Testing 
Program without the prior written approval of the Coordinator. This restriction 
applies to all releases of information to the public, industry, or government 
organizations. 

3.15 	 The principal and other key personnel responsible for the project and named in 
the Contractor's proposal may not be removed from the program or have their 
time substantially decreased without prior approval of the County. Replacement 
personnel must have equivalent qualifications to the persons named and are 
subject to approval by the County. 

3.16 	 Contractor must, upon request, pick up urine specimens collected by the Travis 
County Sheriffs Office within two hours of a request at 1000 San Antonio Street, 
Austin, Texas 78701. 

3.17 	 THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT AND 
THE JUVENILE DRUG COURT will require Confirmation Test only. Initial 
screens are provided by the Departments personnel. Chain of custody procedures 
and forms must be provided to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT. THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT personnel will adhere to the Chain of Custody 
Procedures and deliver specimen to the Contractor for confirmation testing. 

Contractor shall report results to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT within 72 hours of delivery, by fax which must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 
the results and a certified copy ofthe chain of custody form. 

The Family Drug Treatment Court will occasionally require a Confirmation 
Test only. 

3.18 	 CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and 
each invoice shall contain the name of each Client served by CONTRACTOR, 
the type of Service provided by CONTRACTOR, the total tests provided by 
CONTRACTOR, the hourly fee assessed for each Service provided by 
CONTRACTOR (expert witness), the name of the Provider and the total amount 
of payment requested for each Client. Each invoice submitted by 
CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR's 
representative. A list of County Departments which invoices should be sent 
can be found in Part II, Section D, Attachment D. 

4.0 	 PROCEDURE MANUAL 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 17



4.1 	 The laboratory must have a procedure manual which includes the principles of 
each test; preparation of reagents, calibrators and controls; methods used to 
determine limit of detection, limit of quantization, and linearity; calibration 
procedures; derivation of results; linearity of methods; cutoff values, mechanisms 
for reporting results; controls; criteria for unacceptable specimens and results; 
remedial actions to be taken when the test systems are outside of acceptable 
limits; reagents and their expiration dates; and references. Copies of all 
procedures and dates on which they are in effect must be maintained as part of the 
manual. 

4.2 	 Laboratory calibrators and controls must be prepared with pure drug reference 
standards, whenever possible from two different sources, or from at least two 
different lot numbers. The labels on these reagents must contain the following 
information: preparer; content; concentration; date when received, opened, 
prepared; content and concentration; and expiration date. The analytical data used 
to certify calibrators, controls, and human negative urine must be available for 
inspection. 

4.3 	 Instruments and equipment: 

4.3.1 	 Volumetric pipettes and measuring devices must be calibrated and 
certified for accuracy or be checked by gravimetric, colorimetric, or other 
verification procedure. Automatic pipettes and dilutors must be checked 
for accuracy and reproducibility before being placed in service and 
checked periodically after that. 

4.3.2 	 There must be written procedures for certification of new instruments, 
procedures for instrument set-up and normal operation, a schedule for 
checking critical operating characteristics for all instruments, tolerance 
limits for acceptable function checks, and instructions for major trouble 
shooting and repair. Contractor must maintain records on preventive 
maintenance and make these records available upon request. 

4.4 	 There must be written procedures for the actions, remedial and otherwise, to be 
taken when systems are out of acceptable limits, or discrepancies or errors are 
detected. There must be documentation in the form of Memorandum for the 
Record that these procedures are followed and that all necessary corrective 
actions are taken. 

4.5 	 The laboratory must have at least one qualified, experienced, and established 
forensic toxicologist to provide expert testimony in Travis County legal, 
administrative or disciplinary proceedings involving urinalysis cases. 

5.0 	 SPECIFIC TESTING Specimens submitted must be initially tested for THC, BZE, 
opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines. When conducting either initial or confirmatory 
tests, every batch must contain an appropriate number of standards for calibrating the 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 18



instrumentation and a minimum of 10 percent controls. Both internal blind quality control 
and external blind performance test samples must be true blind samples and not 
discernible to laboratory analysts. 

6.0 	 INITIAL DRUG TEST PROCEDURES 

6.1 	 For the DOT program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the DOT program must be screened 
for the following 5 drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Cannabinoids (THC) 50 nglml 
Benzodiazephines (BZE) 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.2 	 For the Non-DOT pre-employment testing program, all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT pre-employment testing program must be screened for the following 10 
drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further 
confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug 
metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Methadone 300 nglml 
Ethanol 10 ngldl 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 19



The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.3 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT Program) Direct Observation 
testing - Type I program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court 
Type I testing program must be screened for the following 4 drugs and the results 
are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if 
the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above 
the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS 	or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.4 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT program) and the Juvenile 
Probation Department, pirect Observation testing - Type II program, all 
specimens must be screened using approved immunoassays that meet the 
requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following 8 drugs and the results are considered 
presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen 
shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the 
statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 20



6.6 

by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, ..... P'I'TH1.n 

drug(s) andlor 

The at which a """un"", occurs is subject to the 
DHHS or the as """",n,r..", in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these at other ""'"£'''''' 

the Non-DOT Juvenile and other miscellaneous Travis County 
Unobserved testing all specimens must be approved 
immunoassays meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 

commercial distribution. All initial tests must conducted 

custody 


under Non-DOT 
Unobserved testing program must screened for the following 8 
Ethanol and results are considered presumptive positive and subject to Mu~h"... 

confirmation testing specimen shows the presence 
metabolite(s) at or above statistically determined indicated below: 

1,000 nglml 
200 
200 

Cocaine 300 
Opiates nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

Non-Dot 

initial 

must be 
of the Food and 

Type I program, all 
that meet the 

distribution. 
tests must under procedures, as 

specified DHHS guidelines stated in Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under Non-DOT Type I testing 

must be following 
results are considered positive and subject to further 
testing the specimen the presence drugs (s) andlor drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 


300 

300 


Cannabinoids (THC) nglml 

and Ethanol the 

6.7 For the Non-Dot Pretrial Services Unobserved testing - Type II program, all 
must be approved meet 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 21



requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in PART II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Pretrial Services - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following four (4) drugs and Ethanol and the 
results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation 
testing if the specimen shows the presence of drugs (s) and/or drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

6.8 	 For the Non-DOT Countywide Unobserved testing - all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT Countywide Unobserved testing program must be screened for the following 
8 drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

7.0 	 CONFIRMATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

7.1 	 All confirmation testing must be performed usmg GC/MS, applying the 
procedures for each drug and/or metabolite(s) outlined in this section. All 
confirmation testing must be by quantitative analysis. Concentrations that exceed 
the linear region of the standard curve value may be diluted. If diluted, the 
dilution factor must be considered when calculating the actual drug content of the 
specimen. If the specimen is not diluted, the concentration of the specimen will 
be the actual determined value of the specimen. Limit of detection should be 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 22



7.3 

determined for GC/MS instrument. The limit of quantization should be 
determined for each GC/MS instrument. 

The Cannabinoids confirmation test must meet the additional following 

1 The target compound is 

7.2.2 A deuterated with a confirmed by the 
laboratory is the internal standard, and 

on a forensically accepted technique 
of in a concentration than or 

The run must include two blind 
n'-"'<oPt"'P 

on the GC/MS test. 
quality control specimens, one negative and one positive. 

(BZE) confirmation test employed must meet the 

.1 target compound is 

.2 	 A BZE with certified purity confirmed the laboratory 
is the internal standard, and 

.3 	 A positive is based on a forensically accepted GC/MS technique 
which indicates a concentration greater or 
equal to 150 ng/ml on the run must include two blind 
quality control one other positive. 

7.4 	 The amphetamines confirmation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.4.1 The compounds for amphetamines are amphetamine, 
methamphetamine, or both, 

7.4.2 	 A deuterated amphetamine and deuterated methamphetamine with 
purity confirmed by the laboratory is the standard, and 

A positive report is on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates the of amphetamine and/or methamphetamine at 
a concentration greater than, or equal 500 Any 
methamphetamine positive must indicate the of 
amphetamine greater than, or to, 200 ng/ml. Any methamphetamine 
positive sample must be to identify and quantitative the & L 

np'EU""'" and 
run must include two blind quality control one 

other 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 23



opiates confinnation test employed must meet following7.5 

1 	 target compound for are morphine and codeine, 

A deuterated morphine and codeine with certified purity 
confinned the laboratory is the standard, and 

7.5.3 positive report i,s based on a forensically accepted 
indicates presence morphine and/or 

concentration of 300 nglml or Any positive a 
concentration equal to or greater than 4,000 nglml must also be to 
detennine presence of 6-Monoaceytalmorphine at a concentration 
10 nglml or The run must two blind quality control 

one and the positive. 

7.6 	 phencyclidine (PCP) confinnation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.6.1 compound is PCP (Parent Drug), 

A deuterated phencyclidine analog with certified con finned the 
laboratory is internal standard, and 

7.6.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates of a concentration to 
or than 25 The run must include two blind quality control 
specimens, one negative the other positive. 

Barbiturates confinnation test employed 

7.8 	 Cocaine confinnation test employed 

Propoxyphene confinnation test employed 

Testing procedures for the DOT testing must follow the 
requirements specified in II, Section Paragraph 1.0. If exists 
between these requirements and the DOT Regulations as published in the 

Register, guidance in DOTs Regulations governs. 

8.0 
Contractor must be 

maintain certification in accordance with the applicable DHHS and DOT 
the Federal ,n,.... ' ...",...... 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 24



maintain 
maintain quality control testing; 

validity, reliability, accuracy, 

9.0 

management of drug 
overall 

9.1 	 The laboratory must have a qualified individual to assume professional, 
organizational, educational, and administrative responsibility 	 the laboratory's 

facility who is the 

individual must be ill for day-to-day 
laboratory even where another individual has 

an entire multi- specialty laboratory. 

9.3 must ensure that are personnel with adequate 
'"''',-,,,...... ''' to supervise and conduct work of drug 

laboratory. He or she must ensure the continued competency of laboratory 
personnel by documenting 	 training, work 

'and their 

9.4 	 individual must ensure the laboratory has a procedure manual which is 
complete, up-to-date, available for personnel performing tests, and followed by 
those personnel. procedure manual must be reviewed, signed, dated by 
this responsible individual whenever procedures are first placed into use or 
changed or a new individual assumes responsibility for management of the 
drug testing laboratory. of all procedures dates on which they are in 

must be maintained. 

9.5 	 This individual must maintain a 

test and test system. 

9.6 	 This individual must take all remedial actions to maintain satisfactory 
operation and performance of the laboratory in response to quality control 

not being within performance specifications, errors in result reporting or 
in analysis of results. This individual must ensure that 
sample results are not reported until all corrective actions have been and he 
or she can assure that test results provided are accurate reliable. 

9.7 obtain specimens under the Type I or Type II Programs for 
Diversion testing contractor is responsible for the 

collection of the urine The contractor must ensure that any 
factors any attempts on part of the being to 

manipulate the test do not contaminate the specimens. lab staff is used 
to observe individuals urine specimens, must have the necessary 

and 	 integrity of the urine tests. At a minimum, 
following 	 for the of and reporting 
testing 

reporting of all 
all and 

of 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 25



9.7.1 	 For storage of urinalysis supplies, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.1.1 store al1 urinalysis supplies in a secure area with access limited to 
employees involved in the collection process; and 

9.7.1.2 prevent client access to the secure storage areas. 

9.7.2 For observation of urine specimens, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.2.1 secure the collection area; 

9.7.2.2 provide gender appropriate 	 staff who shall be present in the 
lavatory to observe individuals giving the urine specimens; and 

9.7.2.3 ensure that the staff observing individuals giving urine specimens 
have adequate training to safeguard the collection process from 
fraudulent attempts to alter the urine specimens and/or 
envirorunental factors that would affect the validity of the test 
results. 

10.0 	 TEST VALIDATION The laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have a 
designated certifying scientist who reviews al1 pertinent data and quality control results to 
attest to the validity of the laboratory's test reports. A laboratory may designate more 
than one person as a certifying scientist. The certifying scientist(s) may be any employee 
who is qualified to be responsible for day-to-day management or operation of the drug 
testing laboratory. 

11.0 	 DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS AND SUPERVISION OF ANALYSTS The 
laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have an individual to be responsible for day
to-day operations and to supervise the technical analysts. This individual must have at 
least a bachelor's degree in the chemical or biological sciences or medical teclmology or 
equivalent. This individual must have training and experience in the theory and practice 
of all methods and procedures used in the laboratory, a thorough understanding of quality 
control practices and procedures; a thorough understanding of the review, interpretation, 
and reporting of test results; knowledge of chain-of-custody procedures; and experience 
providing prompt remedial actions to be taken in response to test results out of acceptable 
range or detecting aberrant test or quality control results. 

12.0 	 OTHER PERSONNEL Other teclmicians or non teclmical staff must have the 
necessary training and skills for the tasks assigned. 

13.0 	 WITNESSES 

13.1 	 Contractor persolU1el may be required to appear personally at administrative 
hearings to explain their laboratory procedures. The Contractor must have at least 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 26



one person available in each of the following categories on a full-time basis to 
testify at administrative hearings: 

13.l.1 	 Category A: An expert in forensic toxicology drug testing issues who is 
capable of discussing Contractor's laboratory procedures and who has the 
following minimum qualifications: 

13.l.l.1 	 Certification as a laboratory director by the State In 

forensic or clinical laboratory toxicology; or 

13 .1.l.2 A Ph.D. in one of the natural sciences with an adequate 
undergraduate education In biology, chemistry, 
pharmacology, or toxicology, 

13.1.1.3 	 Training and experience comparable to a Ph.D. in one of 
the natural sciences, such as a medical or scientific degree 
with additional training and laboratory/research experience 
in biology, chemistry, and pharmacology or toxicology, 

13.1.1.4 	 Appropriate experience in analytical forensic toxicology 
including experience with the analysis of biological 
material for drugs of abuse, and 

13.1.1.5 	 Appropriate training and/or experience In forensic 
applications of analytical toxicology, e.g., publications, 
court testimony, research concerning analytical toxicology 
of drugs of abuse, or other factors which qualify the 
individual as an expert witness in forensic toxicology. 

13.1 .2 Category B: A person fully knowledgeable on the procedural aspects of 
urine drug testing at the Contractor's laboratory. 

13.1.3 	 Category C: A processing technician who is a qualified and trained 
laboratory technician that handles testing of Travis County specimens on a 
day-to-day basis. 

14.0 	 TRAINING The laboratory must have a manual and maintain records reflecting the 
training and certification of personnel, describing the procedures for initial and annual 
certifications. Procedures must also be in place which describe the decertification 
process and any remedial training required for recertification. 

15.0 	 FILES Laboratory personnel files must include resume of training and experience; 
certification or license, if any; references; job descriptions, records of performance 
evaluation and advancement; incident reports; and results of tests which establish 
employee competency for the position he or she holds, such as test for color blindness, if 
appropriate. ' 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 27



16.0 

16.1 

Any testing used by Contractor this contract must 
have a quality assurance which all the 
process including but not limited to specimen acquisition, accessioning, 
ali quoting, chain-of-custody, and reporting of results, initial and 
confirmatory testing, and validation analytical procedures. Quality assurance 
procedures must be implemented, and reviewed to monitor the conduct 
of each the process of for 

16.2 LABORATORY QUALITY CONTROL REQUIREMENTS INITIAL 

16.2.1 analytical run of specimens to screened must include: 

16.2.1.1 Urine certified to contain no drug, 

16.2.1.2 specimens fortified with known standards, and 

1 1.3 controls with drug or at or near 
presumptive positive level. 

In addition, with batch samples a 
must be included to ensure and the linearity 

number of "....uu.... 

the assay 
over in the area cutoff. acceptable 
are obtained for known standards, those values will be used to 
calculate sample data. Implementation procedures to ensure that 
carryover not contaminate the testing an individual's specimen 
must be documented. A minimum of 10 percent of all test samples must 

quality control Laboratory blind quality control 
prepared from spiked urine specimens determined concentration must 
be included in each run and should appear as normal samples to laboratory 
analysts. percent of run, with minimum of at least one 
sample, must the laboratory's own blind quality control samples. 

CONFIRMATION TEST: 

run for the GC/MS will contain no more than and The 
run must contain a minimum of urine quality control specimens: one 
certified standard at concentration, one certified sample at 40% of cut
off, one negative specimen, and one positive 
specimen at or near the cutoff. Two of the four must 
blind. The and of must periodically 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 28



documented. Implementation of procedures to ensure that carryover does not 
contaminate the testing of an individual's specimen must also be documented. 
The calibrators must quantitative wi~hin 10% of the target value when the 
calibrators are certified, as required by DHHS and DOT guidelines. The 
concentration of all quality control specimens must assay within + or - 20% of 
their certified value. For only the Electron Impace GC/MS methods, the retention 
time of the drug must be within 2% of the extracted sample at the cutoff 
concentration and the ion ratios must be within + or - 20% of the extracted sample 
at the 	cutoff. The calculated concentration of the negative quality control 
specimens must not exceed the established limit of detection of the instrument for 
the drug being tested. All quality control samples must be within the acceptable 
range and meet all chromatographic criteria with all ion ratios within + or - 20% 
before reporting any sample results in that run. The chromatography of an 
internal standard from the negative specimen must meet the retention time and ion 
ratio requirements. 

17.0 	 SPECIMEN HANDLING AND RECEIVING REQUIREMENTS 

17.1 	 The Contractor must utilize an appropriate system to ship the specimens, if 
required . If not shipped via the U.S. Postal Service, then the Contractor must 
ensure that there is sufficient security to ensure the physical security and integrity 
of the specimen, the chain-of-custody, and shipping container. 

17.2 	 The Contractor must provide specimen kits containing a kit box, urine specimen 
container, specimen bottle seal, protective seal, label, sealable plastic bag to hold 
the container, and foam insert. The urine containers must hold 100 mI., be made 
of inert materials that will not absorb or adsorb drugs, or drug metabolites, and 
meet DHHS and DOT standards. The cap liner must be made of inert material 
that will not absorb or adsorb drugs or drug metabolites from the specimen. The 
containers' temperature strip must be inside (unless prohibited by DHHS or DOT 
regulation) and be occluded. The occlusion must show tampering and allow for 
ready viewing by authorized persOlU1eI. The shipping containers must at least 
meet U.S. Postal Service standards and be pre-addressed and prepaid for shipment 
to the Contractor's laboratory. The Contractor must ship with the specimen kits at 
least one chain-of-custody forms for each specimen kit. 

17.3 	 Upon receipt of specimens, the Contractor must record the condition of the 
shipping container, including information about damage in shipment, evidence of 
suspected specimen tampering, or other unusual conditions. The Contractor must 
compare information on specimen bottles to the information on the accompanying 
chain-of-custody forms. Records must be kept of the individuals that perform 
these checks. A Discrepancy Report must be generated, in accordance with Part 
II, Section B, Paragraph 21.3, and must be used to record discrepancies and 
provided to the office that collected the specimen. 

18.0 	 SECURITY OF LABORATORY AND SPECIMENS 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 29



18.1 	 The identity and integrity of the urine specimens must be maintained within the 
laboratory. All specimens must be maintained in a secure area with limited and 
controlled access throughout all phases of processing and storage from receipt to 
final disposal. 

18.2 	 Drug testing laboratories must be secure at all times. They must have in place 
sufficient security measures to control access to the premises and to ensure that no 
unauthorized personnel handle specimens or gain access to the laboratory 
processes or to areas where records are stored. Access to these secured areas 
must be limited to specifically authorized individuals whose authorization is 
documented. With the exception of personnel authorized to conduct inspections 
on behalf of Federal agencies for which the laboratory is engaged in urine testing 
or on behalf of the Secretary, any person not employed by the Contractor must be 
escorted at all times. Documentation of individuals accessing these areas, dates, 
and time of entry and purpose of entry must be maintained and kept available for 
audit. 

18.3 	 Laboratories must use chain-of-custody procedures to maintain control and 
accountability of specimens from receipt through the following processes: 

18.3.1 	 completion of testing, 

18.3.2 reporting results, 

18.3.3 during storage, and 

18.3.4 final disposition. 

18.4 	 The date and purpose must be documented on a chain-of-custody form each time 
a specimen is handled or transferred, and every individual in the chain must be 
identified. Accordingly, authorized technicians must be responsible for each 
urine specimen or aliquot in their possession and must sign and complete chain
of-custody forms for these specimens or aliquots as they are received. 

19.0 	 RETENTION OF SPECIMENS 

19.1 	 Specimens that do not receive an initial test within 7 days of arrival at the 
laboratory must be placed in secure refrigeration units. Temperatures must not 
exceed 6 degrees centigrade. An emergency power generator must be available in 
case of prolonged power failure to maintain the stability and integrity of 
specimens. 

19.2 	 All positive specimens must be placed in a limited access long-term, frozen 
storage area for a minimum of one year, and temperature must be maintained at 
20 degrees centigrade. Within this one year period Travis County may request the 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 30



laboratory to retain the specimen for an additional period of time; but, if no such 
request is received the Contractor must provide a list of those specimens and 
request permission of the Alcohol and Drug Testing Program Coordinator (the 
"Coordinator") to destroy the specimens. The Coordinator shall approve 
destruction if there is no pending litigation. If there is a legal challenge, the 
Contractor is required to maintain the specimens for an indefinite period. 

20.0 	 DRUG TEST RESULTS REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

20.1 	 The report must identify the drugs/metabolites tested for, whether positive or 
negative, and the presumptive positive level for each, the base specimen number 
assigned; the Contractor's laboratory number, and the test subject's Social Security 
number. The report must include a certified copy of the original chain-of-custody 
and must be signed by the certifying scientist. The results (positive and negative) 
for all specimens submitted on the same chain-of-custody form must be reported 
back to the MRO at the same time. 

20.2 	 The laboratory must report as negative all specimens which are negative on the 
initial test or negative on the confirmatory test. Only specimens confirmed 
positive for a specific drug or class of drug are reported positive for that specific 
drug. 

20.3 	 The MRO may request quantization of test results from the laboratory, and the 
laboratory must provide quantization of test results. 

20.4 	 Results must be transmitted in a secured manner so as to ensure confidentiality of 
the information. If the County approves a manner as one that is sufficiently 
secure, the laboratory may transmit results to the MRO by various electronic 
means. Results cannot be provided by telephone under any circumstances. The 
laboratory must ensure the security of the data transmission and limit access to 
any data transmission, storage, and retrieval system. 

20.5 	 The laboratory must send only to the MRO a certified copy of the original chain
of-custody form signed by the individual responsible for day-to-day management 
of the drug testing laboratory or the individual for attesting to the validity of the 
test results. 

20.6 	 The Contractor shall report to Travis County, by fax, Non-DOT negative or 
positive results of initial tests within twenty-four (24) hours from the date of 
collection. Fax notification of negative and positive initial test results must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing a certified copy of the chain-of
custody form. 

The Contractor shall provide to Travis County Pretrial Services a list of all 
Pretrial Services clients (individuals) who at the end of the business day did not appear at 
the collection facility to submit a sample as referred by the agency. 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 31



response to 
longer due to circumstances which are nfr,,",,'''' 

Fax notification of positive initial test must 

p.m. 

shall report to 
hours from if collection is 

72 (seventy-two) hours 4:00 p.m. by fax. 
notification of negative initial test results must followed with notification via 

regular mail containing the certification of the negative results and a certified 
copy the chain-of custody form. 

"',...>,.,.",.. shall to County confirmatory 

tests within 72 (seventy-two) and 96 (ninety-six) 

collection fax, on the 

cases reporting 


federal regulations. 
followed notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 

positive results a certified of chain-of custody form. 

21.0 

21.1 	 In appropriate DHHS and/or DOT Guidelines, 
must send to County (listed on 
monthly summary report. Initial and confirmation data must be included from 
test results reported within that month. Normally this summary must be 
forwarded by registered mail not more than 14 calendar days the end the 
month covered by the summary. following 
information: 

21.1.1 Initial test reports must include following information: 

21 1.1.1 	 Number of 

21.1.1 	 Number 

21.1.1.3 	 of manJuana 
metabolites, cocaine metabolites, opiate metabolites, 
phencyclidine, and amphetamines 

21.1 	 Confilmatory rpY"'T1rC must the following information: 

21.1 	 Number of OJ"..... uu"u.;} received for confirmation, and 

21.1 	 of confirmed for: 
metabolite, cocaine metabolite, morphine, codeine, 
phencyclidine, amphetamine, and methamphetamine. 

a 

and 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 32



21.2 	 On a monthly basis the Contractor must supply to the Travis County Coordinator, 
the following information on specimens completed since the last report: 

21.2.1 	 Identification number, 

21.2.2 Laboratory Accession Number, 

21.2.3 	Date Specimen Received in Laboratory, 

21.2.4 Drugs Screened For, 

21.2.5 Confirmation Tests Conducted, 

21.2.6 Final Report (Positive or Negative), 

21.2.7 Date Report Sent to Travis County, and 

21.2.8 Specimen Turnaround Time. 

21.3 	 No later than the 10th working day after the end of the calendar month, the 
Contractor must submit a discrepancy report to Travis County 
Departments/Offices (listed on Attachment 5) with the following data: 

21.3.1 	 Reporting Month; 

21.3.2 For each 	 submitting location sending specimens during the reporting 
month, the total number of specimens received; and 

21.3.3 	 For each department submitting specimens during the reporting month, the 
total number of specimens discarded, broken down into the following 
categories: 

BU - Box unsealed or no signature or date on box seal 
NHHS - No DHHS chain-of-custody-form 
DOT - No DOT chain-of-custody form 
ISSN - Incomplete social security number 
ISPN - Incomplete base specimen number 
NCOC - No chain-of-custody form 
QNS - Volume in bottle is less than 30 ml 
LSSN 	- Social Security number on specimen label does not match the 

social security on the chain-of-custody form 
LAX - Laboratory Accident 

22.0 	 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR DHHS AND DOT DRUG TESTING 
PROGRAM 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 33



must be accounted 
(listed on 

Attachment 5). 

23.0 

24.0 	 Unless otherwise instructed by the DHHS in writing, all 
to a given urine specimen must be retained by the drug testing 

laboratory a minimum 2 years. Upon request from Travis County, the 
must provide any information or documents pertaining to procedures used at its 
laboratory for performance of contract. of procedures chain-of
custody, protocols, quality control, procedures manual 
County reserves the to Contractor to a procedure 
is not consistent with current DHHS or DOT 

reporting. 

25.0 	 GENERAL LITIGATION SUPPORT Depositions and interrogatories of Contractor 
personnel must by Contractor in conjunction with performed 
under this contract when requested by Travis County. County will endeavor, 
where feasible to limit these requests to written interrogatories. Contractor must 
establish procedures to insure timely and appropriate responses to requests for litigation 
support packages, discovery requests, and other inquiries. Where testimony is required in 
support drug testing the Contractor must provide witnesses as required. The 

must also provide expert testimony in support information contained in the 
Litigation Support Package, when requested. 

26.0 

26.1 	 Contractor must provide within ten (l0) business documentary 
in form a litigation support to used by County at an 
administrative proceeding in conjunction with testing performed under this 
contract. 

litigation support IJ~~'''~'_'' must consist of the following: 

26.2.1 	 Certification and authentication by appropriate laboratory 
containedhaving custody of the original documents that the 

the litigation support package are true and accurate copies of the 
documents maintained by laboratory as part regularly 

26.2.2 Laboratory Report form; 

26.2.3 Explanatory Affidavit, to include test 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 34



26.2.4 All data from 	 initial test results including all standards controls run 
with the 

All data including chromatographs and quantization 
GC/MS including and run with 

26.2.6 Copies all chain-of-custody documents; and 

26.2.7 Summary qualifications 	 all personnel who appear on the chain-of
custody documents. 

the 

27.0 

Contractor must provide containers to transport all from Travis 
County. must provide transportation to the 
laboratory. 

The must provide all U.S. Postal approved packaging material 
for the transportation unne other of transportation is 
chosen, appropriate packaging material must provided by the Contractor. 
The shipping costs First Class shipping of the specimens from the to the 
laboratory shall prepaid by the Contractor. 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 35



ATTACHMENT B 


4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 36



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 37



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 38



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 39



ATTACHMENT C 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have, 
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of 
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards.  Depending on 
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate 
insurance options shall be imposed as follows: 
 
I.  General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors' Insurance.   
 
The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities 
pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning 
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and  subcontractor(s): 
 
 A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the 
duration of the Contract. 
 
 B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating 
of B+ VIII or higher. 
 
 C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier.   A copy of the Certificate of 
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract. 
 
 D. Certificates of Insurance  shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent  within ten (10) working days  of execution of the contract by both 
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first.  The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis 
County contract number and all endorsements by number. 
 

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall 
be considered primary for all claims. 
 

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. 
 

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements. 
 

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and 
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded. 
 

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during  any term of this 
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.  
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention.  All deductibles and 
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance. 
 

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit 
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s). 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 40



3. ~,~~~~~ 
of 

H. Specific Requirements 

A. 

1. 	 Coverage be with outlined Texas Workers' 
Compensation Act. 

2. Employers' Liability limits are: 

$500,000 bodily injury each accident 

$500,000 bodily injury disease 

$500,000 policy limit 


shall to of Texas and include following 
County City of Austin: 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) day of Cancellation (Form 420601) 

B. 

1. Minimum 
$500,000* 
$1,000,000 

and B a 

2. 	 The shall contain or be endorsed as 
a. 	 Blanket contractual liability this Contract 
b. 	 Independent Contractor 

3. 	 The Policy shaH include following endorsements favor Travis County 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Form 2404) 

Thirty (30) Notice of Cancellation 


c. 	 Travis County named as additional insured 

c. 

for is provided, coverage all and 
hired 

any form of 
shall maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence 

1. 

2. 	 Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor ofTravis County 
a. 	 Waiver Subrogation (Form 2046A) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) Notice Cancellation (Form 0202A) 
c. 	 as additional insured (Form IB) 

t Alternative Insurance Requirement 
NO transportation of any is provided, and use of a motor is strictly limited to to 

from work or work evidence Personal Policy coverage with limits of 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 41



$ 100,000/$300,000/$50,000 
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance 

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance 

1. Coverage shall be provided with a mImmum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000 
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and 
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services 
under this Contract. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of 
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of 
coverage and the extended reporting dates. 

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor's professional liability insurance 
shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their 
insurance policy. 

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance 

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than 
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the 
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first. 
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract 
expires or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date. 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 42



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 43

http:Affiant:------lB~IJ..~~:.Jl


November 2, 2012 

CURRENT 
Name of Individual Name of Business 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe 


Executive Assistant .......................................... "....... Bro\Vn 

Executive Assistant ............................................ " ..... Melissa Velasquez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Josie Z. Zavala 

Executive Assistant... ... " .... " .............. " ...... " .... " ... " ... Cheryl Aker 


Precinct I .......................................... Ron Davis 

Precinct 1 Annie Davis 


Executive Assistant. ............................................... " .. Deone Wilhite 

Executive Assistant. ................................................... Felicitas Chavez 


Precinct 2 ......................................... Sarah Eckhardt 

Precinct 2 .... " .............. " ..... Kurt Sauer 


Executive Assistant ... " ........ " .................................... Loretta Farb 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Joe Hon 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Peter Einhorn 


Precinct 3 .......................................... Karen Huber 

Precinct 3 
 Leonard Huber 


Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Garry Brown 

Executive Assistant. .. " ... "." ... " .................................. Julie Wheeler* 

Executive Assistant. ............................... " .... "."",, ..... Jacob Cottingham 

COmnliS!HOller Precinct 4 ...... " ........... " .. " ................. Margaret Gomez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Edith Moreida 

Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Norma Guerra 

County Treasurer ....................................................... Dolores Ortega-Carter 

County Auditor ......................................................... Nicki Riley* 

County Administrative ............................. Vacant 

County & Leslie Browder* 


l::m:efj~.en<:y Services .................... Danny Hobby 
l::xlecultlvle, HealthlHuman Services ............... Sherri E. Fleming 

Justice & Public 
TNR ........................................... Steven M. Manilla, P.E.* 


............... Jefferies 

............................... EI Khoury, M.S., P.E. 


Interim ChiefInformation Officer.............. ........... .... Acevedo 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Rod Bro\VTI 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Walter Lagrone 


Steve Capelle 

Executive ....................... James Collins 


Land Use Division ...................................... Tom Nuckols 

Land Use Division ..................................... Julie Joe 

Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore 

Transactions Division ................................ John Hille 

Transactions Division ................................ Vacant 


Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Elizabeth Winn 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Mary Etta Gerhardt 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Barbara Wilson 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Jim Connolly 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Tenley Aldredge 

Director, Health Services Division ............................ Beth Devery 

Attorney, Health Services Division ........................... Pre rna Gregerson 


...................................................... Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 


Records & Communications ........ Steven Hn'lh"ra 

............................................ David Escamilla 

Seton 

Daffer McDaniel, LLP 

Retired 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 44



Assistant Purchasing Agent .. .. .... ....... .......... .... .... ..... Marvin Brice, CPPB 

Assistant Purchasing Agent .......... ... .......... ........ ..... ... Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ....... ..... ... ......... ...... CW Bruner, CTP 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ... ..... ........ ..... .. .. .... ... Lee Perry 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. .... ... ..... ......... ..... Jason Walker 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ... ... .. .. ..... ..... ... ..... .. .... Richard Villareal 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... .. .. .. ... .. ........ ......... Patrick Strittmatter* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ .. .. .. ... .. ...... .. ....... Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....... ....... .... ......... .... ... Scott Wilson, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .. .. .. ..... ... ........ .......... Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ....... ................... Loren Breland, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ ...... ....... .. ........... John E. Pena, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ................................ Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ..... ... .. .......... ...... Angel Gomez* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ... ..... ..... ... ............. Shannon Pleasant, CTPM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ... ... .... .... .... ................ David Walch 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .................. ........ Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ....... ... ........... ........ Nancy Barchus, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ................. .. ...... .. ....... Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .... .... .................. Sydney Ceder* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. ..... ...... .. ... .... ..... Vacant 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .......... .......................... Jayne Rybak, CTP* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 11.. .. ... .... ................. .. .. .... L. Wade Laursen* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .. ... .. .. ............ ..... ... .. ..... Sam Francis* 

HUB Coordinator ...... ........... ... .. ..... .. ..... .... ............. .. . Sylvia Lopez 

HUB Specialist... ........ ..... ................. .. .. .. ...... .. ........ .. . Betty Chapa 

HUB Specialist ..... ... .. ..... .. .. .......... ... .. ..... ..... .. ..... ..... .. Jerome Guerrero 

Purchasing Business Analyst.. ............ .. .. .. .......... ... .... Scott Worthington 

Purchasing Business Analyst .. ......... .. ........ .. .............. Jennifer Francis 


FORMER EMPLOYEES 

Name ofIndividual 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ......... .. .... .... .. ......... Diana Gonzalez .................... ...... ... ... .. ........ 12116112 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. .. ....................... Elizabeth Corey, C.P .M.......... .. ... ...... ......... 03114113 

Attorney, Transactions Division .. .. . .. ......... ..... .. ......... Tamara Annstrong .................. .. ..... .. ........... 03/30113 

Executive Assistant... ..... ... ............. .. .......... .. ............. Lori Duarte ....................................... .. .... ... 06115113 

ChiefInforma tion Officer. .... ........... .. .. ..... .. ...... .. ...... Joe Harlow .................. ................ .. ............. 07/31113 

County Auditor ........... .. .... .. .................................... Susan Spataro, CPA .................................... 08/31113 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... ... .... .... .... .. ........... George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P ....... .. ...... 09/26/ 13 


* - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 45



2 
DISCLOSURE 

acknowledges Offeror is doing or has business the 365 day 
period immediately to the date on which contract is with the following key 
contracting persons and warrants that are the only key contracting persons: 

no one IS warrants Offeror is not doing and has not done 
business during 365 day immediately prior to on which Request for 

response is made with any key contracting person. 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 46



ATTACHMENT E 


4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 47



shall not 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY 

EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 


Federal Executive Order 12549 Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has 
a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary 
exclusion. Each covered contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors. 

In this certification "contractor" refers to both contractor and subcontractor; "contract" refers to both contract and subcontract. 

By and submitting this celrtilllcllti4~n, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms: 

1. 	 The certification herein below is a material of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous in addition 
to other remedies available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including 
and/or debarment. 

2. 	 The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any 
time the potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason 
of changed circumstances. 

3. 	 The words "covered contract," " "suspended," " "participant," " "principle," "proposal," and 
excluded," as used in this certification have based upon materials in the Definitions and 


sections of federal rules Executive Order 12549. 

4. 	 The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it 

enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
palrtl(:lp,atU)n in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travi" 

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? __YES 

5. 	 The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, 	 Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts "without 

in all covered subcontracts"; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts. 
6. 	 A contractor may upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, or 

VOluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a 
minimum, obtain certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each subcontract's initiation and upon each renewal. 

7. 	 Nothing contained in all the shall be construed to establishment of a system of records in order to render in 
good faith the certification required by this certification document The knowledge and information of a contractor is not 

to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the 
8. 	 for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract 

a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, 
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency andlor Travis County may 
pursue available andlor debarment. 

course of business 

or voluntarily excluded from palrtlclp,ltIo!n 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING UI:..D&:run "'''''''J'l,.INELIGIBILlTY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION 
FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement to the covered contractor/potential contractor: 

D 111e contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is 
debarred, proposed for debarment, declared or voluntarily excluded from 

any federal or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County. 

The contractor is unable to to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, 
the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make 
certification. Attach the explanation(s) to this certification. 

Name of Contractor 	 Vendor 1.0. or Social Security No. 

of Authorized Representative Date 	 Name & Title of Authorized 

4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 48



ATTACHMENT F 


PROPOSAL 


4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 49



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 50



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 51



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 52



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 53



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 54



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 55



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 56



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 57



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 58



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 59



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 60



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 61



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 62



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 63



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 64



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 65



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 66



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 67



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 68



4400001195 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 68



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
A

 

 

 

 

P

 

 

Trav

ROFE
AGRE

PROMED

DRUG 

CON

vis Co

ESSION
EMEN

BE

TRAVI

D MEDIC

AND AL

NTRACT

ounty 

NAL S
NT/CO
ETWEEN

IS COUN

AND 

CAL CA
 

FOR 

LCOHOL
 

T NO. 44

Purc

SERV
ONTR

NTY 

ARE CEN

L SERVI

40000119

hasin

VICES 
RACT 

NTERS 

ICES 

92 

ng Off

 

fice 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

1.0 Definitions......................................................................................................pg. 1 
2.0 Term ...............................................................................................................pg. 1 
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities  ........................................................................pg. 2 
4.0 Compensation, Billing and Payment ..............................................................pg. 3 
5.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access .............................................................pg. 5 
6.0 Modifications/Amendments  ..........................................................................pg. 6 
7.0 Other Provisions.............................................................................................pg. 6 
            Approvals .......................................................................................................pg. 11 
 

 
Attachments 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Services & Performance Measures…………………… pg. 12  
Attachment B – Fee Schedule……………………………………………………   pg. 36 
Attachment C – Insurance Requirements………………………………………….pg. 40 
Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit including: ………………………………….......pg. 43 
 Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons………………………………pg. 44 
 Exhibit 2 – Disclosure ……………………………………………………. .pg. 46 
Attachment E – Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
                          Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts……………………  pg. 47 

 Attachment F – Proposal ……………………………………………………… …pg. 49 
  



    
 

 

II.  DEFINITIONS 
 

1.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

 In this Agreement, 
 

1.1 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court.  
 

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.  
  

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor. 
 

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and/or Contractor.  
 

 1.5   “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean: 

 

 1.5.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more 

than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or property 

interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

 

 1.5.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, or goods or otherwise creating or having in 

existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

 

but does not include: 

 

  1.5.3 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a “Key Contracting Person” at a  posted, 

published, or marked price available to the general public; 

 

1.5.4 Any financial services product sold to a “Key Contracting Person” for personal, family or 

household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated and individuals 

with similar risks as determined by “Contractor” in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 

1.5.5 A transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 

“Contractor” if “Contractor” is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or other 

representative of  “Contractor” who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have 

known about the Contract. 

 

 1.6 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavit   

 attached to this Contract and marked Attachment D. 

  

2.0 TERM 
 

2.1 Initial Term.  The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by 

all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2013, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.   

 

2.2 Renewal Term(s).  Option to Extend: County may unilaterally extend this Contract for (i) two  (2) 

additional one (1) year periods and (ii) three (3) additional one (1) month periods (individually, an 

“Option to Extend” and collectively, the “Options to Extend”), and all provisions of this Contract, 

except the term, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  County shall exercise an Option to 

Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the then current term.  The total term of 

this Contractshall not exceed thirty-nine (39) months.  County shall have the right to exercise all or a 

portion of the Option to Extend in any combination it deems necessary. 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 1



    
 

 

2.3  Termination.  COUNTY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving CONTRACTOR  

written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination. 

 

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
 3.1 Scope of Services.  CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and 

activities described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is 

expressly incorporated herein and made a part hereof.   

 

 3.2 Ethical Standards.  CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary 

powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and her best professional 

judgment. 

  

3.3 Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is prohibited 

from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the CONTRACTOR’S 

obligations under this Agreement.   

  

 3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities 

pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans 

with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933].   

 

3.5  Legal Compliance.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws, 

rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the 

performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently 

delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector. 

 

3.7   Insurance Requirements  CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in 

Attachment C, "Insurance Requirements", which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part 

hereof. 

 

3.8  Federal Funds.  CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 

will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to 

influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal 

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 

cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual 

information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES and may rely on all factual information supplied by the TRAVIS 

COUNTY DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES in response to these requests.   However TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any 

elected official of County for any other purpose than conveying factual information. 

 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 2



3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has 
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services 
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS 
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done 
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the 
services in CONTRACTOR'S proposal. 

4.0 COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT 

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the 
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR's compliance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the 
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof. 

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: As needed Basis 
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None. 

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any 
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY'S satisfaction and given COUNTY'S 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY'S obligation to make any payment to 
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and 
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR' S profession. 

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the 
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of 
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code 

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall invoice County on a monthly basis for services rendered 
pursuant to this Contract. Each invoice shall include the following information: 

4.4.1 the contract Reference Number; 
4.4.2 the client reference Number, (client name) 
4.4.3 type of service in accordance with Attach. B. 
4.4.4 the total amount being requested 
4.4.5 date of collection 

Original invoices shall be sent to: 	 See Part II, Section D, for the list of County 

Department addresses. 


4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to 
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to 
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days 
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with 
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30) 
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to 
CONTRACTOR 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 3



4.6 CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue 
Form W-9 Request for Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 

with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of status in 
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable. 

4.7 Notwithstanding anything to the the 
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment taxes at the time invOlcmg, 

hereby any to made hereunder to the 
Assessor-Collector the payment of said delinquent taxes. 

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt. 

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of Local Government Code, notice of 
indebtedness been filed with County Auditor or County evidencing the 
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not 

drawn on a COUNTY fund in of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or of 
CONTRACTOR until: 

4.8.1.1 the County notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the IS 

outstanding; and 
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid. 

includes delinquent and indebtedness arising from 
agreements with the COUNTY. 

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply funds COUNTY owes 

balance of debt for which notice is made under 

statement that 

the outstanding 


4.9 Certification under this 

"Government-wide and Suspension." CONTRACTOR, signing this Contract, 
hereby certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its principles: 

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or 

rpF'_'N~"'" period preceding Contract convicted of or had a civil 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction or records, making false statements, or 

stolen property; 

(c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly by a governmental entity 
(Federal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 

period preceding Contract one or more transactions 
for cause or default. 

4.8.1.1 if 
amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may 

outstanding 
includes a 

applied to 

for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, 

judgment rendered 

(d) have not within a 
or local) 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 4



Where CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 6.9, CONTRACTOR 
shall provide an explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's 
consideration and evaluation with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract 
by County. 

4.10 Exemption From County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the 
requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services or meets other requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 

4.11 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by 
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement. 

4.12 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and 
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of 
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice 
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS 

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of 
records and other information relating to Parent Coaching & Assessments Services in accordance with 
the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical 
standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client 
information. Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR 
agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY'S monitoring 
and evaluation duties in any way. 

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shaH make 
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and 
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any liotigation 
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR 
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost 
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

5.3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and 
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and 
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their 
authorized representatives. 

5.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement including 
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries, 
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR will become property of the 
COUNTY. 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 5



6.0 AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS 


6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this 
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY A TT ACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of 
this Agreement or any attachment to it to the County Department with a copy to the Purchasing Agent. 

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has 
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County 
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOVT CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, 
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve 
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise CONTRACTOR as to 
such authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may 
submit any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the 
Purchasing Agent to sign the Amendment. 

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS: 

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, 
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT 
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY 
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING 
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS 
CONTRACT. 

7.2 Warrants. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable copyrights, patents, 
licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials used in this 
Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any infringement of those 
rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this Agreement. Consultant 
shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes 
of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees for 
damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 
existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement. 

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an 
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against 
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being 
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that 
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or 
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, 
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against 
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 6



 
herein.  Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent 
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions. 

 
7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may, 
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold 
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein. 

 
7.5 Non-Waiver of Default 
 
 7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of 

any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist. 
 
 7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment, 

act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it.  Any 
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy 
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or 
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

  
7.6     Forfeiture of Contract   If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person 
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business 
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to 
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and 
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value 
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this  Agreement, provided, however, that this 
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics 
Policy. 

 
7.7 Entire Agreement.  All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement related 
to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this Agreement have 
been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies and procedures approved 
by Commissioners Court for County.   Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations 
not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect. 

 
7.7.1 Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a 
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance 
with all the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

7.7.1.1            Attachment A – Scope of Services  
7.7.1.2            Attachment B – Fee Schedule 
7.7.1.3  Attachment C – Insurance Requirements 
7.7.1.4  Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit 
7.7.1.5  Attachment E -  Debarment 
7.7.1.6  Attachment F -  Proposal 

 
7.8 Notices: 
 

7.8.1 Written Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by 
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given 
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom 
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 7



postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the 
party at the address herein specified. 

 
7.8.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be: 
 

     Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.; CPPO (or her successor) 
     Travis County Purchasing Agent 
     P. O. Box 1748 
     Austin, Texas 78767 
 

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
  
    Travis County Departments 

 
7.8.3 Contractor Address.  The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this 

Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be: 
 
      ProMed Medical Care Centers 
      2000 W. Anderson Lane 
      Austin, TX 78757 

 
7.9 Change of Address.  Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice 
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8.  Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen 
(15) days of the change. 

 
7.10 Authority: The Department designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement.  The Department designee shall have complete authority to 
interpret and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S 
services.  The Department designee may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive 
information. 
 
7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent.   When the CONTRACTOR and/or County 
have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract, the CONTRACTOR or 
County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing  Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with written 
notice of the dispute.  Such notice shall contain a specific written description of  the issues involved as well as 
the CONTRACTOR's requested resolution of the dispute and any other relevant information which 
CONTRACTOR desires to include.  As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing 
Agent will act as the County representative in any further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in 
relation to the described dispute.  Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or 
correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not issued  by or to the Purchasing Agent is void.  
If the CONTRACTOR does not agree with any document, notice  or correspondence relating to the 
dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the CONTRACTOR must submit a 
written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Department designee within ten (10) calendar days 
after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  The 
Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the final resolution of the dispute to the CONTRACTOR within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of  dispute by the Purchasing Agent.  If this final resolution 
does not resolve the dispute to the CONTRACTOR's  satisfaction, CONTRACTOR may submit a written 
Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The  Purchasing Agent will 
provide a copy of such response to the Department designee. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within 
ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the  unsatisfactory  final resolution. CONTRACTOR then has the 
right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the  Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on 
the Commissioners Court agenda.  

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 8



that 

an 
COUNTY, or gam any against 

7.15.2 =::.:..-:=-:...== 

7.12 CONTRACTOR is not satisfied with the of the dispute pursuant to 
Section 7.11, CONTRACTOR notify the mediation is acceptable to both 

will not 

the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties to use the Dispute Resolution 
as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in CIV. PRAC. 

AND Section 154.023. both Parties are satisfied with the 
a final and binding of the All 

mediation shall confidential as described TEX. ClV. 
154.073, unless in writing, to waive confidentiality. 

7.13 CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with 
staff and CONTRACTORs as reasonable and necessary and as required by the 
Departments/Offices. 

14 The parties 
CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, operating solely 
of rights, obligations and liabilities to him as 

shall not considered an employee 
COUNTY pursuant to COUNTY'S personnel policies. 

agreement and of any of terms or provisions, as well as 
shall governed by laws of the State of 

7.15 validity of 
the parties 

7.15.1 
by a court of 

invalidate, or nullify the 
the 

1<'"'1"",,",, provision, or 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or 

of this but the 

All obligations under this Agreement shall performable in 
any litigation concerning Agreement shall in City of 

7.15.3 party may any of the rights or duties created by Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR 

no agent, or representative of COUNTY has any authority to 
part of this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court. 

7 .16 Notwithstanding any prOVIsIOn this Agreement, this 
binding upon and inure to benefit of COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and 

executors, 
sublet, or transfer his 

of the other party hereto. 

COUNTY nor the 

shall 

7. I 7 a part it is that 
CONTRACTOR is free to provide outside as it sees fit at those times which 
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is understood COUNTY is free to have more 
than one contractor providing the type of included this Agreement. 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 9



fTrPPtTIPnT on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and 
or they have duly 

7.18 Conditions covenants of this which by their terms are performable 
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or 
end and remain fully performable. 

7. I 9 Interpretational Guidelines 

When period of is stated this time 
day and include last of period. If the last day 

COUNTY has declared a holiday for 
computation. 

7.19.2 Words any gender in this Agreement shall construed to 
include any other gender and words in either number shall construed to include the other 
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise. 

shall computed to exclude the 
of any 
employees, these 

on a Saturday, Sunday or a day 
shall be omitted 

this 
by that "',",""VA 

If by Chapter 176, Local Government Code, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and 
the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., 
Austin, Texas 78751. The CONTRACTOR shall update this Questionnaire by September 1 each 

the duration this Contract, as required by Chapter I of the Local Government Code. In addition, 
if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the CONTRACTOR 

submit an updated Questionnaire. CONTRACTOR should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to a Questionnaire on the official County Internet website. 

on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or 

by CONTRACTOR to this on behalf 
CONTRACTOR to bind CONTRACTOR validly and to all 
provisions this 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 10



------- Samuel T. Biscoe 

be ",,,,,,boor! by both •
This will in duplicate 

Contractor Travis County 

By: By: 
Name and Title (Printed) County 

Approved as to Legal Fonn By: 
Assistant County Attorney 

Funds Verified By: 
County Auditor 

Approved by 
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO, Agent 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 11



A TTACHMENT A 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SECTION A- TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS-ALCOHOL TESTING 

CONTRACTOR MUST: 

1.1 	 Provide trained breath alcohol technician(s) (BAT) to conduct evidential breath 
testing (EBT), including random selection for EBT, in compliance with 
Department of Transportation (DOT) regulations and 49 CFR, Parts 40 and 382, 
as amended. 

1.2 	 Use EBT devices which are listed on the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA) Conforming Products List (CPL) and meet the 
requirements for confirmation testing. 

1.3 	 Provide in-clinic facilities that afford visual and aural privacy to the individual 
being tested, sufficient to prevent unauthorized persons from seeing or hearing 
test results and ensure that individuals tested at the specified Travis County on
site locations listed in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 2.17 are afforded similar 
pnvacy. 

1.4 	 Provide all necessary equipment, personnel, and materials for EBT at the 
Contractor's location where testing is conducted and at the specified Travis 
County on-site testing locations. 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 12



PART II - SECTION B - TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS - DRUG TESTING 


1.0 
provided for this contract, the quality of all services rendered under it must confonn to 
the highest standards in the relevant profession, trade or field of endeavor. All 
must be rendered or supervised directly individuals fully qualified the relevant 
profession, or field, and holding any required by law or regulation. 
regulations under which this is to be performed are provided (taken from the 
Department of Health and Human (DHHS) "Mandatory Guidelines for Federal 
Workplace Program," the ofTransportation (DOT) 
"Mandatory Guidelines Commercial Driver's (CDL)", as published and 
"1-'\.,,,,,...,,-, In this document are to as "DHHS 
Guidelines" and "DOT " 

TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS 
following definitions are adopted: 

2.1 	 ALIQUOT - A portion a specimen used testing. 

A group consisting of samples, calibrators, controls, and blind quality 
that is run in the same time frame under the identical 

the and instruments. 

2.3 	 is a metabolite of that is identified and quantified 
Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry 	(GC/MS) confirmation test 
metabolites. 

of 

BATCH -
control 

2.4 CALIBRATORS -
drug and drug metabolites 

CHAfN-OF-CUSTODY FORM - An approved DHHS or DOT external chain-of
custody document that tracks the handling and of forensic 
speCImen of collection to final disposition and includes 
documenting printed name that clear and original of 
person, purpose for handling or transfer specimens or aliquots for 
into whose custody IS 

2.6 	 CONFIRMATORY - A second analytical procedure to identify 
presence of a drug or metabolite which is independent of the initial test 
and which uses a different technique and chemical principle from that the 

test order to ensure reliability and accuracy. (At this time GC/MS or 
LCIMS are only confinnation method for marijuana, 
opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine.) 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 13



listed in Section 6.0. 

human 
precision and 

amounts of drug or drug metabolites spiked into a 
which are used to validate calibration of an instrument, 
of the and of the technician. 

- Delta-9-Tetrahydrocannabinol-9Carboxylic Acid is a metabolite delta-
9-tetrahydrocannabinol major psychoactive compound of marijuana) that is 
identified and in the GC/MS confirmation test manJuana 
metabolites. 

2.9 - An immunoassay 	 "negative" urine 
from 	 and positive specimens 

may use the Enzyme Multiple Immuno Technique. 

2.10 	 (3) standard deviations more than the mean 
result analyzing at least 12 negative unne and 
standard deviation of values for 

2.11 	 LIMIT QUANTITATION - The mean of the of 
12 unne and calculating the standard deviation 
for each specimen. 

2 	 MRO - A review officer who is a licensed physician responsible for 
receiving laboratory results generated by Travis County drug testing 
who knowledge of substance abuse disorders appropriate medical 
training to and evaluate test with medical history and 

biomedical information person who provided the 

INITIAL 

for further testing 

at 

other 

2.13 	 drug alcohol screens for County 
Sheriff's Travis County Drug Diversion not required by, or 
conducted DHHS or DOT guidelines. Non-DOT includes Non

pre-employment Drug Diversion Court Non-
DOT Pretrial Testing and HHSD/CPS. 

2.14 	 NON-DOT PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING - A test for 10 specified 
and/or metabolites. These tests will be administered before employment in 

safety-sensitive positions 	 the County Sheriff's The 
drugs to tested and their respective presumptive cut-off levels are 

2.15 NON-DOT DRUG DIVERSION COURT TESTING - These tests are of two 
Type each 5 specified drugs and/or their metabolites. Type I 

the Type I and Type II tests will as a condition of probation 
p'!",,·....,,·rI adjudication as ordered by Travis County Drug Diversion 

drugs to tested for and their respective presumptive cut-off 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 14



for both Type I and Type II tests are listed in Section 6.0. (on fee schedule items 7 
& 8). 

2.16 	 NON-DOT PRETRIAL SERVICES TESTING - These tests are of two types, 
Type I and Type II, each for five (5) specified drugs and/or their metabolites. 
Both the Type I and Type II tests will be administered as condition of pretrial 
releases ordered by the Travis County Pretrial Services department. The specific 
drugs to be tested for an their respective presumptive cut-off levels for both Type 
I and Type II tests are listed in section 6.0 (on fee schedule items 12 & 13) 

2.17 	 SECRETARY - The Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Secretary of 
Transportation in regards to issues which affect their respective drug testing 
programs. The Secretary may designate an individual from a recognized 
organization (to include a Contractor) to act on herlhis behalf in the 
implementation of these DOT or DHHS Guidelines. 

2.18 	 TRAVIS COUNTY ON-SITE TESTING LOCATIONS - Random drug and 
alcohol screening tests will be regularly conducted by the Contractor at the 
following Travis County locations: 

2.18.1 	 TNR Satellite One Office - 9301 Jolumy Morris Road, Austin, TX 78724 

2.18.2 	TNR Westside Service Center - 1405 FM 620 North, Austin, TX 78732 

2.18.3 	TNR Satellite Four Office - 5412 Lockhart Highway, Austin, TX 78744 

2.18.4 Travis County Jail- 1000 San Antonio Street, Austin, TX 78701 

2.18.5 Travis County Correctional Complex - 3614 Bill Price Road, Del Valle, 
TX 78617 

3.0 	 SCOPE OF WORK: 

3.1 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform the initial test for the detection of marijuana metabolites and cocaine 
metabolites on all urine specimens submitted, and additionally perform the initial 
test for opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines on individually requested 
specimens. 

3.2 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform GC/MS confirmation tests on all specimens that are screened positive by 
the initial test. 

3.3 	 The Contractor must provide a method for identifying interfering substances 
which prevent the initial test, such as contaminants, adulterants, or other masking 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 15



agents; and provide any special testing necessary to support the laboratory's 
results. 

3.4 	 The Contractor must conduct additional GC/MS testing to identify 6 
methamphetamine and Dextros and Levo when consistent with DHHS and/or 
DOT guidelines. 

3.5 	 All laboratory analysis will be provided in accordance with all DOT regulations 
and the DHHS procedures and 49CFR, Parts 40 and 382. 

3.6 	 Urinalysis will be conducted with an initial test to eliminate negative unne 
specimens from further analysis. 

3.7 Positive initial test results will be confirmed by conducting GCIMS method of 
analysis. 

3.8 	 The initial test and positive confirmatory test will be done by the same laboratory. 
Where a Travis County employee requests additional testing following a positive 
confirmatory test, such testing on another aliquot will be conducted by a different 
laboratory, certified by the DHHS, and as directed by the MRO. 

3.9 	 Remaining aliquots must be retained in frozen storage for 60 days after the date 
on which the laboratory acquires it. 

3.10 	 The Contractor must provide an MRO. 

3.11 	 Contractor will provide a scientific method for random selection of County 
commercial drivers for drug and alcohol testing. Data for input into the random 
selection data base will be provided by the County. Random lists must be 
generated and distributed to the County at least monthly or on a more frequent 
basis as requested. 

3.12 	 Contractor must provide to the County copies of records, and databases developed 
and maintained by the Contractor as part of the activities under the contract and 
must deliver them to the County quarterly or upon request. The records and 
databases must be provided both in paper form and in Excel electronic format. 

3.13 	 Contractor and subcontractors must accommodate the identification procedures 
required by the various county departments utilizing the Contractor services to 
verify identity of the person that gives the specimen. 

3.14 	 The Contractor is required to maintain and use a system of safeguarding County 
records which identify County personnel and any other information received in 
the performance of this contract, to ensure the highest level of privacy for County 
employees. Contractor shall provide all services required in a manner that would 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 16



comply with the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.c. 552a and Section 503 of Public Law 100
71, if Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws. 

The Contractor and its employees shall not hold any discussion or release any 
information or data pertaining to the Travis County Alcohol and Drug Testing 
Program without the prior written approval of the Coordinator. This restriction 
applies to all releases of information to the public, industry, or government 
organizations. 

3.15 	 The principal and other key personnel responsible for the project and named in 
the Contractor's proposal may not be removed from the program or have their 
time substantially decreased without prior approval of the County. Replacement 
personnel must have equivalent qualifications to the persons named and are 
subject to approval by the County. 

3.16 	 Contractor must, upon request, pick up urine specimens collected by the Travis 
County Sheriffs Office within two hours of a request at 1000 San Antonio Street, 
Austin, Texas 78701. 

3.17 	 THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT AND 
THE JUVENILE DRUG COURT will require Confirmation Test only. Initial 
screens are provided by the Departments personnel. Chain of custody procedures 
and forms must be provided to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT. THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT personnel will adhere to the Chain of Custody 
Procedures and deliver specimen to the Contractor for confirmation testing. 

Contractor shall report results to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT within 72 hours of delivery, by fax which must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 
the results and a certified copy ofthe chain of custody form. 

The Family Drug Treatment Court will occasionally require a Confirmation 
Test only. 

3.18 	 CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and 
each invoice shall contain the name of each Client served by CONTRACTOR, 
the type of Service provided by CONTRACTOR, the total tests provided by 
CONTRACTOR, the hourly fee assessed for each Service provided by 
CONTRACTOR (expert witness), the name of the Provider and the total amount 
of payment requested for each Client. Each invoice submitted by 
CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR's 
representative. A list of County Departments which invoices should be sent 
can be found in Part II, Section D, Attachment D. 

4.0 	 PROCEDURE MANUAL 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 17



4.1 	 The laboratory must have a procedure manual which includes the principles of 
each test; preparation of reagents, calibrators and controls; methods used to 
determine limit of detection, limit of quantization, and linearity; calibration 
procedures; derivation of results; linearity of methods; cutoff values, mechanisms 
for reporting results; controls; criteria for unacceptable specimens and results; 
remedial actions to be taken when the test systems are outside of acceptable 
limits; reagents and their expiration dates; and references. Copies of all 
procedures and dates on which they are in effect must be maintained as part of the 
manual. 

4.2 	 Laboratory calibrators and controls must be prepared with pure drug reference 
standards, whenever possible from two different sources, or from at least two 
different lot numbers. The labels on these reagents must contain the following 
information: preparer; content; concentration; date when received, opened, 
prepared; content and concentration; and expiration date. The analytical data used 
to certify calibrators, controls, and human negative urine must be available for 
inspection. 

4.3 	 Instruments and equipment: 

4.3.1 	 Volumetric pipettes and measuring devices must be calibrated and 
certified for accuracy or be checked by gravimetric, colorimetric, or other 
verification procedure. Automatic pipettes and dilutors must be checked 
for accuracy and reproducibility before being placed in service and 
checked periodically after that. 

4.3.2 	 There must be written procedures for certification of new instruments, 
procedures for instrument set-up and normal operation, a schedule for 
checking critical operating characteristics for all instruments, tolerance 
limits for acceptable function checks, and instructions for major trouble 
shooting and repair. Contractor must maintain records on preventive 
maintenance and make these records available upon request. 

4.4 	 There must be written procedures for the actions, remedial and otherwise, to be 
taken when systems are out of acceptable limits, or discrepancies or errors are 
detected. There must be documentation in the form of Memorandum for the 
Record that these procedures are followed and that all necessary corrective 
actions are taken. 

4.5 	 The laboratory must have at least one qualified, experienced, and established 
forensic toxicologist to provide expert testimony in Travis County legal, 
administrative or disciplinary proceedings involving urinalysis cases. 

5.0 	 SPECIFIC TESTING Specimens submitted must be initially tested for THC, BZE, 
opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines. When conducting either initial or confirmatory 
tests, every batch must contain an appropriate number of standards for calibrating the 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 18



instrumentation and a minimum of 10 percent controls. Both internal blind quality control 
and external blind performance test samples must be true blind samples and not 
discernible to laboratory analysts. 

6.0 	 INITIAL DRUG TEST PROCEDURES 

6.1 	 For the DOT program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the DOT program must be screened 
for the following 5 drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Cannabinoids (THC) 50 nglml 
Benzodiazephines (BZE) 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.2 	 For the Non-DOT pre-employment testing program, all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT pre-employment testing program must be screened for the following 10 
drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further 
confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug 
metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Methadone 300 nglml 
Ethanol 10 ngldl 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 19



The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.3 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT Program) Direct Observation 
testing - Type I program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court 
Type I testing program must be screened for the following 4 drugs and the results 
are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if 
the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above 
the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS 	or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.4 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT program) and the Juvenile 
Probation Department, pirect Observation testing - Type II program, all 
specimens must be screened using approved immunoassays that meet the 
requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following 8 drugs and the results are considered 
presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen 
shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the 
statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 20



6.6 

by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, ..... P'I'TH1.n 

drug(s) andlor 

The at which a """un"", occurs is subject to the 
DHHS or the as """",n,r..", in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these at other ""'"£'''''' 

the Non-DOT Juvenile and other miscellaneous Travis County 
Unobserved testing all specimens must be approved 
immunoassays meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 

commercial distribution. All initial tests must conducted 

custody 


under Non-DOT 
Unobserved testing program must screened for the following 8 
Ethanol and results are considered presumptive positive and subject to Mu~h"... 

confirmation testing specimen shows the presence 
metabolite(s) at or above statistically determined indicated below: 

1,000 nglml 
200 
200 

Cocaine 300 
Opiates nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

Non-Dot 

initial 

must be 
of the Food and 

Type I program, all 
that meet the 

distribution. 
tests must under procedures, as 

specified DHHS guidelines stated in Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under Non-DOT Type I testing 

must be following 
results are considered positive and subject to further 
testing the specimen the presence drugs (s) andlor drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 


300 

300 


Cannabinoids (THC) nglml 

and Ethanol the 

6.7 For the Non-Dot Pretrial Services Unobserved testing - Type II program, all 
must be approved meet 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 21



requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in PART II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Pretrial Services - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following four (4) drugs and Ethanol and the 
results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation 
testing if the specimen shows the presence of drugs (s) and/or drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

6.8 	 For the Non-DOT Countywide Unobserved testing - all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT Countywide Unobserved testing program must be screened for the following 
8 drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

7.0 	 CONFIRMATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

7.1 	 All confirmation testing must be performed usmg GC/MS, applying the 
procedures for each drug and/or metabolite(s) outlined in this section. All 
confirmation testing must be by quantitative analysis. Concentrations that exceed 
the linear region of the standard curve value may be diluted. If diluted, the 
dilution factor must be considered when calculating the actual drug content of the 
specimen. If the specimen is not diluted, the concentration of the specimen will 
be the actual determined value of the specimen. Limit of detection should be 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 22



7.3 

determined for GC/MS instrument. The limit of quantization should be 
determined for each GC/MS instrument. 

The Cannabinoids confirmation test must meet the additional following 

1 The target compound is 

7.2.2 A deuterated with a confirmed by the 
laboratory is the internal standard, and 

on a forensically accepted technique 
of in a concentration than or 

The run must include two blind 
n'-"'<oPt"'P 

on the GC/MS test. 
quality control specimens, one negative and one positive. 

(BZE) confirmation test employed must meet the 

.1 target compound is 

.2 	 A BZE with certified purity confirmed the laboratory 
is the internal standard, and 

.3 	 A positive is based on a forensically accepted GC/MS technique 
which indicates a concentration greater or 
equal to 150 ng/ml on the run must include two blind 
quality control one other positive. 

7.4 	 The amphetamines confirmation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.4.1 The compounds for amphetamines are amphetamine, 
methamphetamine, or both, 

7.4.2 	 A deuterated amphetamine and deuterated methamphetamine with 
purity confirmed by the laboratory is the standard, and 

A positive report is on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates the of amphetamine and/or methamphetamine at 
a concentration greater than, or equal 500 Any 
methamphetamine positive must indicate the of 
amphetamine greater than, or to, 200 ng/ml. Any methamphetamine 
positive sample must be to identify and quantitative the & L 

np'EU""'" and 
run must include two blind quality control one 

other 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 23



opiates confinnation test employed must meet following7.5 

1 	 target compound for are morphine and codeine, 

A deuterated morphine and codeine with certified purity 
confinned the laboratory is the standard, and 

7.5.3 positive report i,s based on a forensically accepted 
indicates presence morphine and/or 

concentration of 300 nglml or Any positive a 
concentration equal to or greater than 4,000 nglml must also be to 
detennine presence of 6-Monoaceytalmorphine at a concentration 
10 nglml or The run must two blind quality control 

one and the positive. 

7.6 	 phencyclidine (PCP) confinnation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.6.1 compound is PCP (Parent Drug), 

A deuterated phencyclidine analog with certified con finned the 
laboratory is internal standard, and 

7.6.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates of a concentration to 
or than 25 The run must include two blind quality control 
specimens, one negative the other positive. 

Barbiturates confinnation test employed 

7.8 	 Cocaine confinnation test employed 

Propoxyphene confinnation test employed 

Testing procedures for the DOT testing must follow the 
requirements specified in II, Section Paragraph 1.0. If exists 
between these requirements and the DOT Regulations as published in the 

Register, guidance in DOTs Regulations governs. 

8.0 
Contractor must be 

maintain certification in accordance with the applicable DHHS and DOT 
the Federal ,n,.... ' ...",...... 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 24



maintain 
maintain quality control testing; 

validity, reliability, accuracy, 

9.0 

management of drug 
overall 

9.1 	 The laboratory must have a qualified individual to assume professional, 
organizational, educational, and administrative responsibility 	 the laboratory's 

facility who is the 

individual must be ill for day-to-day 
laboratory even where another individual has 

an entire multi- specialty laboratory. 

9.3 must ensure that are personnel with adequate 
'"''',-,,,...... ''' to supervise and conduct work of drug 

laboratory. He or she must ensure the continued competency of laboratory 
personnel by documenting 	 training, work 

'and their 

9.4 	 individual must ensure the laboratory has a procedure manual which is 
complete, up-to-date, available for personnel performing tests, and followed by 
those personnel. procedure manual must be reviewed, signed, dated by 
this responsible individual whenever procedures are first placed into use or 
changed or a new individual assumes responsibility for management of the 
drug testing laboratory. of all procedures dates on which they are in 

must be maintained. 

9.5 	 This individual must maintain a 

test and test system. 

9.6 	 This individual must take all remedial actions to maintain satisfactory 
operation and performance of the laboratory in response to quality control 

not being within performance specifications, errors in result reporting or 
in analysis of results. This individual must ensure that 
sample results are not reported until all corrective actions have been and he 
or she can assure that test results provided are accurate reliable. 

9.7 obtain specimens under the Type I or Type II Programs for 
Diversion testing contractor is responsible for the 

collection of the urine The contractor must ensure that any 
factors any attempts on part of the being to 

manipulate the test do not contaminate the specimens. lab staff is used 
to observe individuals urine specimens, must have the necessary 

and 	 integrity of the urine tests. At a minimum, 
following 	 for the of and reporting 
testing 

reporting of all 
all and 

of 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 25



9.7.1 	 For storage of urinalysis supplies, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.1.1 store al1 urinalysis supplies in a secure area with access limited to 
employees involved in the collection process; and 

9.7.1.2 prevent client access to the secure storage areas. 

9.7.2 For observation of urine specimens, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.2.1 secure the collection area; 

9.7.2.2 provide gender appropriate 	 staff who shall be present in the 
lavatory to observe individuals giving the urine specimens; and 

9.7.2.3 ensure that the staff observing individuals giving urine specimens 
have adequate training to safeguard the collection process from 
fraudulent attempts to alter the urine specimens and/or 
envirorunental factors that would affect the validity of the test 
results. 

10.0 	 TEST VALIDATION The laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have a 
designated certifying scientist who reviews al1 pertinent data and quality control results to 
attest to the validity of the laboratory's test reports. A laboratory may designate more 
than one person as a certifying scientist. The certifying scientist(s) may be any employee 
who is qualified to be responsible for day-to-day management or operation of the drug 
testing laboratory. 

11.0 	 DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS AND SUPERVISION OF ANALYSTS The 
laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have an individual to be responsible for day
to-day operations and to supervise the technical analysts. This individual must have at 
least a bachelor's degree in the chemical or biological sciences or medical teclmology or 
equivalent. This individual must have training and experience in the theory and practice 
of all methods and procedures used in the laboratory, a thorough understanding of quality 
control practices and procedures; a thorough understanding of the review, interpretation, 
and reporting of test results; knowledge of chain-of-custody procedures; and experience 
providing prompt remedial actions to be taken in response to test results out of acceptable 
range or detecting aberrant test or quality control results. 

12.0 	 OTHER PERSONNEL Other teclmicians or non teclmical staff must have the 
necessary training and skills for the tasks assigned. 

13.0 	 WITNESSES 

13.1 	 Contractor persolU1el may be required to appear personally at administrative 
hearings to explain their laboratory procedures. The Contractor must have at least 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 26



one person available in each of the following categories on a full-time basis to 
testify at administrative hearings: 

13.l.1 	 Category A: An expert in forensic toxicology drug testing issues who is 
capable of discussing Contractor's laboratory procedures and who has the 
following minimum qualifications: 

13.l.l.1 	 Certification as a laboratory director by the State In 

forensic or clinical laboratory toxicology; or 

13 .1.l.2 A Ph.D. in one of the natural sciences with an adequate 
undergraduate education In biology, chemistry, 
pharmacology, or toxicology, 

13.1.1.3 	 Training and experience comparable to a Ph.D. in one of 
the natural sciences, such as a medical or scientific degree 
with additional training and laboratory/research experience 
in biology, chemistry, and pharmacology or toxicology, 

13.1.1.4 	 Appropriate experience in analytical forensic toxicology 
including experience with the analysis of biological 
material for drugs of abuse, and 

13.1.1.5 	 Appropriate training and/or experience In forensic 
applications of analytical toxicology, e.g., publications, 
court testimony, research concerning analytical toxicology 
of drugs of abuse, or other factors which qualify the 
individual as an expert witness in forensic toxicology. 

13.1 .2 Category B: A person fully knowledgeable on the procedural aspects of 
urine drug testing at the Contractor's laboratory. 

13.1.3 	 Category C: A processing technician who is a qualified and trained 
laboratory technician that handles testing of Travis County specimens on a 
day-to-day basis. 

14.0 	 TRAINING The laboratory must have a manual and maintain records reflecting the 
training and certification of personnel, describing the procedures for initial and annual 
certifications. Procedures must also be in place which describe the decertification 
process and any remedial training required for recertification. 

15.0 	 FILES Laboratory personnel files must include resume of training and experience; 
certification or license, if any; references; job descriptions, records of performance 
evaluation and advancement; incident reports; and results of tests which establish 
employee competency for the position he or she holds, such as test for color blindness, if 
appropriate. ' 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 27



16.0 

16.1 

Any testing used by Contractor this contract must 
have a quality assurance which all the 
process including but not limited to specimen acquisition, accessioning, 
ali quoting, chain-of-custody, and reporting of results, initial and 
confirmatory testing, and validation analytical procedures. Quality assurance 
procedures must be implemented, and reviewed to monitor the conduct 
of each the process of for 

16.2 LABORATORY QUALITY CONTROL REQUIREMENTS INITIAL 

16.2.1 analytical run of specimens to screened must include: 

16.2.1.1 Urine certified to contain no drug, 

16.2.1.2 specimens fortified with known standards, and 

1 1.3 controls with drug or at or near 
presumptive positive level. 

In addition, with batch samples a 
must be included to ensure and the linearity 

number of "....uu.... 

the assay 
over in the area cutoff. acceptable 
are obtained for known standards, those values will be used to 
calculate sample data. Implementation procedures to ensure that 
carryover not contaminate the testing an individual's specimen 
must be documented. A minimum of 10 percent of all test samples must 

quality control Laboratory blind quality control 
prepared from spiked urine specimens determined concentration must 
be included in each run and should appear as normal samples to laboratory 
analysts. percent of run, with minimum of at least one 
sample, must the laboratory's own blind quality control samples. 

CONFIRMATION TEST: 

run for the GC/MS will contain no more than and The 
run must contain a minimum of urine quality control specimens: one 
certified standard at concentration, one certified sample at 40% of cut
off, one negative specimen, and one positive 
specimen at or near the cutoff. Two of the four must 
blind. The and of must periodically 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 28



documented. Implementation of procedures to ensure that carryover does not 
contaminate the testing of an individual's specimen must also be documented. 
The calibrators must quantitative wi~hin 10% of the target value when the 
calibrators are certified, as required by DHHS and DOT guidelines. The 
concentration of all quality control specimens must assay within + or - 20% of 
their certified value. For only the Electron Impace GC/MS methods, the retention 
time of the drug must be within 2% of the extracted sample at the cutoff 
concentration and the ion ratios must be within + or - 20% of the extracted sample 
at the 	cutoff. The calculated concentration of the negative quality control 
specimens must not exceed the established limit of detection of the instrument for 
the drug being tested. All quality control samples must be within the acceptable 
range and meet all chromatographic criteria with all ion ratios within + or - 20% 
before reporting any sample results in that run. The chromatography of an 
internal standard from the negative specimen must meet the retention time and ion 
ratio requirements. 

17.0 	 SPECIMEN HANDLING AND RECEIVING REQUIREMENTS 

17.1 	 The Contractor must utilize an appropriate system to ship the specimens, if 
required . If not shipped via the U.S. Postal Service, then the Contractor must 
ensure that there is sufficient security to ensure the physical security and integrity 
of the specimen, the chain-of-custody, and shipping container. 

17.2 	 The Contractor must provide specimen kits containing a kit box, urine specimen 
container, specimen bottle seal, protective seal, label, sealable plastic bag to hold 
the container, and foam insert. The urine containers must hold 100 mI., be made 
of inert materials that will not absorb or adsorb drugs, or drug metabolites, and 
meet DHHS and DOT standards. The cap liner must be made of inert material 
that will not absorb or adsorb drugs or drug metabolites from the specimen. The 
containers' temperature strip must be inside (unless prohibited by DHHS or DOT 
regulation) and be occluded. The occlusion must show tampering and allow for 
ready viewing by authorized persOlU1eI. The shipping containers must at least 
meet U.S. Postal Service standards and be pre-addressed and prepaid for shipment 
to the Contractor's laboratory. The Contractor must ship with the specimen kits at 
least one chain-of-custody forms for each specimen kit. 

17.3 	 Upon receipt of specimens, the Contractor must record the condition of the 
shipping container, including information about damage in shipment, evidence of 
suspected specimen tampering, or other unusual conditions. The Contractor must 
compare information on specimen bottles to the information on the accompanying 
chain-of-custody forms. Records must be kept of the individuals that perform 
these checks. A Discrepancy Report must be generated, in accordance with Part 
II, Section B, Paragraph 21.3, and must be used to record discrepancies and 
provided to the office that collected the specimen. 

18.0 	 SECURITY OF LABORATORY AND SPECIMENS 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 29



18.1 	 The identity and integrity of the urine specimens must be maintained within the 
laboratory. All specimens must be maintained in a secure area with limited and 
controlled access throughout all phases of processing and storage from receipt to 
final disposal. 

18.2 	 Drug testing laboratories must be secure at all times. They must have in place 
sufficient security measures to control access to the premises and to ensure that no 
unauthorized personnel handle specimens or gain access to the laboratory 
processes or to areas where records are stored. Access to these secured areas 
must be limited to specifically authorized individuals whose authorization is 
documented. With the exception of personnel authorized to conduct inspections 
on behalf of Federal agencies for which the laboratory is engaged in urine testing 
or on behalf of the Secretary, any person not employed by the Contractor must be 
escorted at all times. Documentation of individuals accessing these areas, dates, 
and time of entry and purpose of entry must be maintained and kept available for 
audit. 

18.3 	 Laboratories must use chain-of-custody procedures to maintain control and 
accountability of specimens from receipt through the following processes: 

18.3.1 	 completion of testing, 

18.3.2 reporting results, 

18.3.3 during storage, and 

18.3.4 final disposition. 

18.4 	 The date and purpose must be documented on a chain-of-custody form each time 
a specimen is handled or transferred, and every individual in the chain must be 
identified. Accordingly, authorized technicians must be responsible for each 
urine specimen or aliquot in their possession and must sign and complete chain
of-custody forms for these specimens or aliquots as they are received. 

19.0 	 RETENTION OF SPECIMENS 

19.1 	 Specimens that do not receive an initial test within 7 days of arrival at the 
laboratory must be placed in secure refrigeration units. Temperatures must not 
exceed 6 degrees centigrade. An emergency power generator must be available in 
case of prolonged power failure to maintain the stability and integrity of 
specimens. 

19.2 	 All positive specimens must be placed in a limited access long-term, frozen 
storage area for a minimum of one year, and temperature must be maintained at 
20 degrees centigrade. Within this one year period Travis County may request the 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 30



laboratory to retain the specimen for an additional period of time; but, if no such 
request is received the Contractor must provide a list of those specimens and 
request permission of the Alcohol and Drug Testing Program Coordinator (the 
"Coordinator") to destroy the specimens. The Coordinator shall approve 
destruction if there is no pending litigation. If there is a legal challenge, the 
Contractor is required to maintain the specimens for an indefinite period. 

20.0 	 DRUG TEST RESULTS REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

20.1 	 The report must identify the drugs/metabolites tested for, whether positive or 
negative, and the presumptive positive level for each, the base specimen number 
assigned; the Contractor's laboratory number, and the test subject's Social Security 
number. The report must include a certified copy of the original chain-of-custody 
and must be signed by the certifying scientist. The results (positive and negative) 
for all specimens submitted on the same chain-of-custody form must be reported 
back to the MRO at the same time. 

20.2 	 The laboratory must report as negative all specimens which are negative on the 
initial test or negative on the confirmatory test. Only specimens confirmed 
positive for a specific drug or class of drug are reported positive for that specific 
drug. 

20.3 	 The MRO may request quantization of test results from the laboratory, and the 
laboratory must provide quantization of test results. 

20.4 	 Results must be transmitted in a secured manner so as to ensure confidentiality of 
the information. If the County approves a manner as one that is sufficiently 
secure, the laboratory may transmit results to the MRO by various electronic 
means. Results cannot be provided by telephone under any circumstances. The 
laboratory must ensure the security of the data transmission and limit access to 
any data transmission, storage, and retrieval system. 

20.5 	 The laboratory must send only to the MRO a certified copy of the original chain
of-custody form signed by the individual responsible for day-to-day management 
of the drug testing laboratory or the individual for attesting to the validity of the 
test results. 

20.6 	 The Contractor shall report to Travis County, by fax, Non-DOT negative or 
positive results of initial tests within twenty-four (24) hours from the date of 
collection. Fax notification of negative and positive initial test results must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing a certified copy of the chain-of
custody form. 

The Contractor shall provide to Travis County Pretrial Services a list of all 
Pretrial Services clients (individuals) who at the end of the business day did not appear at 
the collection facility to submit a sample as referred by the agency. 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 31



response to 
longer due to circumstances which are nfr,,",,'''' 

Fax notification of positive initial test must 

p.m. 

shall report to 
hours from if collection is 

72 (seventy-two) hours 4:00 p.m. by fax. 
notification of negative initial test results must followed with notification via 

regular mail containing the certification of the negative results and a certified 
copy the chain-of custody form. 

"',...>,.,.",.. shall to County confirmatory 

tests within 72 (seventy-two) and 96 (ninety-six) 

collection fax, on the 

cases reporting 


federal regulations. 
followed notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 

positive results a certified of chain-of custody form. 

21.0 

21.1 	 In appropriate DHHS and/or DOT Guidelines, 
must send to County (listed on 
monthly summary report. Initial and confirmation data must be included from 
test results reported within that month. Normally this summary must be 
forwarded by registered mail not more than 14 calendar days the end the 
month covered by the summary. following 
information: 

21.1.1 Initial test reports must include following information: 

21 1.1.1 	 Number of 

21.1.1 	 Number 

21.1.1.3 	 of manJuana 
metabolites, cocaine metabolites, opiate metabolites, 
phencyclidine, and amphetamines 

21.1 	 Confilmatory rpY"'T1rC must the following information: 

21.1 	 Number of OJ"..... uu"u.;} received for confirmation, and 

21.1 	 of confirmed for: 
metabolite, cocaine metabolite, morphine, codeine, 
phencyclidine, amphetamine, and methamphetamine. 

a 

and 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 32



21.2 	 On a monthly basis the Contractor must supply to the Travis County Coordinator, 
the following information on specimens completed since the last report: 

21.2.1 	 Identification number, 

21.2.2 Laboratory Accession Number, 

21.2.3 	Date Specimen Received in Laboratory, 

21.2.4 Drugs Screened For, 

21.2.5 Confirmation Tests Conducted, 

21.2.6 Final Report (Positive or Negative), 

21.2.7 Date Report Sent to Travis County, and 

21.2.8 Specimen Turnaround Time. 

21.3 	 No later than the 10th working day after the end of the calendar month, the 
Contractor must submit a discrepancy report to Travis County 
Departments/Offices (listed on Attachment 5) with the following data: 

21.3.1 	 Reporting Month; 

21.3.2 For each 	 submitting location sending specimens during the reporting 
month, the total number of specimens received; and 

21.3.3 	 For each department submitting specimens during the reporting month, the 
total number of specimens discarded, broken down into the following 
categories: 

BU - Box unsealed or no signature or date on box seal 
NHHS - No DHHS chain-of-custody-form 
DOT - No DOT chain-of-custody form 
ISSN - Incomplete social security number 
ISPN - Incomplete base specimen number 
NCOC - No chain-of-custody form 
QNS - Volume in bottle is less than 30 ml 
LSSN 	- Social Security number on specimen label does not match the 

social security on the chain-of-custody form 
LAX - Laboratory Accident 

22.0 	 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR DHHS AND DOT DRUG TESTING 
PROGRAM 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 33



must be accounted 
(listed on 

Attachment 5). 

23.0 

24.0 	 Unless otherwise instructed by the DHHS in writing, all 
to a given urine specimen must be retained by the drug testing 

laboratory a minimum 2 years. Upon request from Travis County, the 
must provide any information or documents pertaining to procedures used at its 
laboratory for performance of contract. of procedures chain-of
custody, protocols, quality control, procedures manual 
County reserves the to Contractor to a procedure 
is not consistent with current DHHS or DOT 

reporting. 

25.0 	 GENERAL LITIGATION SUPPORT Depositions and interrogatories of Contractor 
personnel must by Contractor in conjunction with performed 
under this contract when requested by Travis County. County will endeavor, 
where feasible to limit these requests to written interrogatories. Contractor must 
establish procedures to insure timely and appropriate responses to requests for litigation 
support packages, discovery requests, and other inquiries. Where testimony is required in 
support drug testing the Contractor must provide witnesses as required. The 

must also provide expert testimony in support information contained in the 
Litigation Support Package, when requested. 

26.0 

26.1 	 Contractor must provide within ten (l0) business documentary 
in form a litigation support to used by County at an 
administrative proceeding in conjunction with testing performed under this 
contract. 

litigation support IJ~~'''~'_'' must consist of the following: 

26.2.1 	 Certification and authentication by appropriate laboratory 
containedhaving custody of the original documents that the 

the litigation support package are true and accurate copies of the 
documents maintained by laboratory as part regularly 

26.2.2 Laboratory Report form; 

26.2.3 Explanatory Affidavit, to include test 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 34



26.2.4 All data from 	 initial test results including all standards controls run 
with the 

All data including chromatographs and quantization 
GC/MS including and run with 

26.2.6 Copies all chain-of-custody documents; and 

26.2.7 Summary qualifications 	 all personnel who appear on the chain-of
custody documents. 

the 

27.0 

Contractor must provide containers to transport all from Travis 
County. must provide transportation to the 
laboratory. 

The must provide all U.S. Postal approved packaging material 
for the transportation unne other of transportation is 
chosen, appropriate packaging material must provided by the Contractor. 
The shipping costs First Class shipping of the specimens from the to the 
laboratory shall prepaid by the Contractor. 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 35



ATTACHMENT B 


4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 36



Travis Couniy

PART II. SECTION C. FEE SCHEDULE

DOT Testine UNOBSERVED

I,n Qlinip:
1. Split sample urine drug screen (Cannabinoids, Benzodiazepines,

Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines)

2. Breath alcohol test

On Site:

3. Split sampie urine drug screen (Cannabinoids, Benzodiazepines,
Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines)

4. Breath alcohol test

NPN-DOT (fe-Emplgvment Testine

5. (Amphetamines, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines,
Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene,
Methadone and Ethanol)

6. Provider Travels to County
to perform testing (fee per visit)

NON-DOT (DiEct) OBSERVED Drue Diversion,Court "SHORT" Proeram

Bic 1208-005-lvlL

RFS#1208-005-ML

Cost ner Test/Servipe

$ Z1 . DD

-NIA

7. TIPE I - (Amphetamines, Cannabinoids Cocaine,
Opiates)

8. TyPq,II - (Amphetamines, Methadoue
(Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates,
Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene

NON-DOT Counfvwide UN-OBSERYED

, 3I . urO (p\ r,i-: 56 tj \
pf horf W {,l)t\L'&* )

$ R4. DD

7k cD

10. Expedited **"1r"!o:o*rJ ..&r+ii 
-Te3-[" *y u*t].f-v- $ \ aq , ryD - G'?i'j.

/r rwphve- fer-sr,rlt ultr.i^'Ahr,ur.>) tJ J 
on -r --._ _iI 1. Expedii6d Results (within 24 hours) $ fh m.+ n{T"i{ vc.- rLJ vL H 5

u{e se,'r* u'*ith,n ;ii heur 

" ;! 
sr*c,*,. is c&r(er*".t fuh;L 4r*,fil*Tl4^

9. Drugs plus Alcohol (Amphetamines, $

Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates,
Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene, Methadone plus Ethanol)

p.44Sep 19, 2A12 10:17:23 AM CDT

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 37



Travis County

NON-pOT UNppSERVEn

12. TYBE I - Amphetamines, Cannabinoids, Cocaine, Opiates
and Ethanol

13, TYPE II -(Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cannabinoids,
Opiates, Ethanol)

HHSD/Child lrotgctive Services Testins OBSERVED

I 4. (Amphetamines, Cocaines, Opiates, Cannabinoids,
Benzodiazepines, Barbiturates, Phencyclidine, Phropoxyphene,
2"d (GL[\4S) and another LAB and MRO, Ethanol)

NIISCELLANEOUS TEPTIryG

15. Eye Scanning (PassPoint or equal)

16. Hair Testing

17. Oral Fluid Testing

18. Nail Testing

19. Drug Patch

20. ETGiETS Testing

21. I{2lSpice Tesring

22. Bath Salt Testing

23. Ambien Testing

goNFTRMATTON TESTTNG

21. Amphetamine Confirmation Test (GCA{S)

22. Barbiturate Confirmation Test (GC/T\{S)

23, Benzodiazepines (BZE) Confirmation Test (GCA{S)

24. Cocaine Confirmation Test (GC/lvIS)

Bid 1208-005-liiL

RFS#I208-005-ML

$ ,a.qo _

$ ie. uO

$ 6L'ob

\5$

15, cO

s Lr:O , O(--,

* NIA

$

$

s*fnSu&.\

tk $ NI /A *C.o(1ach'''rt o"{y

\1 $d*4-
rts ruiA
1{srtin

2^D

nl,fl

&)
\-td)

$

$

ird

Sep 19, 2012 10:17:23 AM CDT

s inc['.aAo.L

p.45

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 38



Travis County

25. Opiate Confirmation Test (GC/I,[S)

26. Phencyclidine Confirmation Test (GC/N{S)

27. Cannabinoids (THC) Confirmation Test (GCA4S)

28 Phropoxyphene Confirmation Test (GCA,{S)

29. Ethanol (Alcohol)

30. 2nd (GCA,IS) & another LAB and MRO

TRAYEL TO PERFORM ON.CALL TESTING

Bid 1208-005-I*41

RFS#r208-005-ML

i^ ci vtrlt,d

incJ utct{ c[

in cinded

i n cl.",,ctef

s ol'00 , t-fl

$

$

$

s

31. Between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday
through Friday (non Holiday weekdays) or Holidays
and weekends 24 hour emsrgency on-site response

EXPERT WITNESS

32. Expert Witness (Hourly Rate)

MISCELLAI\EOUS REOUIREMENTS FOR (SHORT PROGRAM"

33. SPANISH Speaking Interpreter on-site while Testing Center Open $ N0 Ct vtrarq - Pr:, ffUJ.

ff:#s$fi;B1*rilr;H?:il'r0 
6:00 (fortheshon !.. lpuxrs'r. svczr"ri3

i.rkr freler: lzloa,rll
34. Notification via daily sign-in sheets faxed to the following two Da r-,.. -\ \ U6"^ M -I- 

)
Departments ONLY: sHoRT ProgramlDrug Diversion court 1ar* _bn* 1.l,r+^,tlry
And Pretrial Services Program. Daily cost for each department I w I ' r' 

V 
tv '

Aa*-i>gr** t* A luz<l'rvr5

Whenever open, will have both the required qurlified man and required qualified woman for direct observed
testing on their respective counterparts? W yes I No

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Adminishation (SAMHSA) Certified Laboratory used?

Vv* fl No

Location, contact person, ne number and of all available clinics and hours of service at each

'AiL

-,vl+

p. 46Sep 19,2012 10:17:23Afsl CDT

44

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 39



ATTACHMENT C 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have, 
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of 
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards.  Depending on 
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate 
insurance options shall be imposed as follows: 
 
I.  General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors' Insurance.   
 
The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities 
pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning 
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and  subcontractor(s): 
 
 A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the 
duration of the Contract. 
 
 B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating 
of B+ VIII or higher. 
 
 C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier.   A copy of the Certificate of 
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract. 
 
 D. Certificates of Insurance  shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent  within ten (10) working days  of execution of the contract by both 
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first.  The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis 
County contract number and all endorsements by number. 
 

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall 
be considered primary for all claims. 
 

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. 
 

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements. 
 

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and 
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded. 
 

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during  any term of this 
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.  
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention.  All deductibles and 
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance. 
 

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit 
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s). 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 40



3. ~,~~~~~ 
of 

H. Specific Requirements 

A. 

1. 	 Coverage be with outlined Texas Workers' 
Compensation Act. 

2. Employers' Liability limits are: 

$500,000 bodily injury each accident 

$500,000 bodily injury disease 

$500,000 policy limit 


shall to of Texas and include following 
County City of Austin: 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) day of Cancellation (Form 420601) 

B. 

1. Minimum 
$500,000* 
$1,000,000 

and B a 

2. 	 The shall contain or be endorsed as 
a. 	 Blanket contractual liability this Contract 
b. 	 Independent Contractor 

3. 	 The Policy shaH include following endorsements favor Travis County 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Form 2404) 

Thirty (30) Notice of Cancellation 


c. 	 Travis County named as additional insured 

c. 

for is provided, coverage all and 
hired 

any form of 
shall maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence 

1. 

2. 	 Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor ofTravis County 
a. 	 Waiver Subrogation (Form 2046A) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) Notice Cancellation (Form 0202A) 
c. 	 as additional insured (Form IB) 

t Alternative Insurance Requirement 
NO transportation of any is provided, and use of a motor is strictly limited to to 

from work or work evidence Personal Policy coverage with limits of 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 41



$ 100,000/$300,000/$50,000 
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance 

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance 

1. Coverage shall be provided with a mImmum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000 
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and 
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services 
under this Contract. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of 
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of 
coverage and the extended reporting dates. 

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor's professional liability insurance 
shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their 
insurance policy. 

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance 

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than 
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the 
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first. 
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract 
expires or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date. 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 42



STATE OF TEXAS)
cor-rNTY oF TRAVTS)

Date: tO

Name of Affiant:
Title of Affiant:

Travis County

ATTACHMENT 1

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Bid 1208-005-r.,41

RFS# 1208-005-ML

lnMti. Mad. .-l Ca;^u fu^kr

this Request for

whom Offeror is
before the date of

Business Name of Offeror: SSo
County of Offeror:

Affiant is authorized by Offeror to make this affidavit for Offeror.
Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.
Affiant can read the English language.
Offeror has received the list of key contracting persons associated with
Services which is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit A.
Affiant has personally read Exhibit A to this Affidavit.
Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit A with
doing business or has done business during the 365 day period immediately
this affidavit whose name is not disclosed in Exhibit B.

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

6.

SUBSCRIBED AND SwoRN To before me by A,rf h u L ,ot,.eo

-t.i .:1".,r
i .:'j ,j . -""-i -

j_',".

,i

i

,2ov

Notary Public, State of Texas

My commission expires:

M

p.s

Affiant on oath swears that the following

Signature of Affiant

Typed or printed name of notary

Sep 19, 2012 fi 17:23 Al.J CDT

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 43

http:Affiant:------lB~IJ..~~:.Jl


November 2, 2012 

CURRENT 
Name of Individual Name of Business 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe 


Executive Assistant .......................................... "....... Bro\Vn 

Executive Assistant ............................................ " ..... Melissa Velasquez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Josie Z. Zavala 

Executive Assistant... ... " .... " .............. " ...... " .... " ... " ... Cheryl Aker 


Precinct I .......................................... Ron Davis 

Precinct 1 Annie Davis 


Executive Assistant. ............................................... " .. Deone Wilhite 

Executive Assistant. ................................................... Felicitas Chavez 


Precinct 2 ......................................... Sarah Eckhardt 

Precinct 2 .... " .............. " ..... Kurt Sauer 


Executive Assistant ... " ........ " .................................... Loretta Farb 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Joe Hon 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Peter Einhorn 


Precinct 3 .......................................... Karen Huber 

Precinct 3 
 Leonard Huber 


Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Garry Brown 

Executive Assistant. .. " ... "." ... " .................................. Julie Wheeler* 

Executive Assistant. ............................... " .... "."",, ..... Jacob Cottingham 

COmnliS!HOller Precinct 4 ...... " ........... " .. " ................. Margaret Gomez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Edith Moreida 

Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Norma Guerra 

County Treasurer ....................................................... Dolores Ortega-Carter 

County Auditor ......................................................... Nicki Riley* 

County Administrative ............................. Vacant 

County & Leslie Browder* 


l::m:efj~.en<:y Services .................... Danny Hobby 
l::xlecultlvle, HealthlHuman Services ............... Sherri E. Fleming 

Justice & Public 
TNR ........................................... Steven M. Manilla, P.E.* 


............... Jefferies 

............................... EI Khoury, M.S., P.E. 


Interim ChiefInformation Officer.............. ........... .... Acevedo 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Rod Bro\VTI 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Walter Lagrone 


Steve Capelle 

Executive ....................... James Collins 


Land Use Division ...................................... Tom Nuckols 

Land Use Division ..................................... Julie Joe 

Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore 

Transactions Division ................................ John Hille 

Transactions Division ................................ Vacant 


Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Elizabeth Winn 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Mary Etta Gerhardt 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Barbara Wilson 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Jim Connolly 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Tenley Aldredge 

Director, Health Services Division ............................ Beth Devery 

Attorney, Health Services Division ........................... Pre rna Gregerson 


...................................................... Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 


Records & Communications ........ Steven Hn'lh"ra 

............................................ David Escamilla 

Seton 

Daffer McDaniel, LLP 

Retired 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 44



Assistant Purchasing Agent .. .. .... ....... .......... .... .... ..... Marvin Brice, CPPB 

Assistant Purchasing Agent .......... ... .......... ........ ..... ... Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ....... ..... ... ......... ...... CW Bruner, CTP 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ... ..... ........ ..... .. .. .... ... Lee Perry 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. .... ... ..... ......... ..... Jason Walker 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ... ... .. .. ..... ..... ... ..... .. .... Richard Villareal 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... .. .. .. ... .. ........ ......... Patrick Strittmatter* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ .. .. .. ... .. ...... .. ....... Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....... ....... .... ......... .... ... Scott Wilson, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .. .. .. ..... ... ........ .......... Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ....... ................... Loren Breland, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ ...... ....... .. ........... John E. Pena, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ................................ Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ..... ... .. .......... ...... Angel Gomez* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ... ..... ..... ... ............. Shannon Pleasant, CTPM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ... ... .... .... .... ................ David Walch 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .................. ........ Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ....... ... ........... ........ Nancy Barchus, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ................. .. ...... .. ....... Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .... .... .................. Sydney Ceder* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. ..... ...... .. ... .... ..... Vacant 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .......... .......................... Jayne Rybak, CTP* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 11.. .. ... .... ................. .. .. .... L. Wade Laursen* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .. ... .. .. ............ ..... ... .. ..... Sam Francis* 

HUB Coordinator ...... ........... ... .. ..... .. ..... .... ............. .. . Sylvia Lopez 

HUB Specialist... ........ ..... ................. .. .. .. ...... .. ........ .. . Betty Chapa 

HUB Specialist ..... ... .. ..... .. .. .......... ... .. ..... ..... .. ..... ..... .. Jerome Guerrero 

Purchasing Business Analyst.. ............ .. .. .. .......... ... .... Scott Worthington 

Purchasing Business Analyst .. ......... .. ........ .. .............. Jennifer Francis 


FORMER EMPLOYEES 

Name ofIndividual 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ......... .. .... .... .. ......... Diana Gonzalez .................... ...... ... ... .. ........ 12116112 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. .. ....................... Elizabeth Corey, C.P .M.......... .. ... ...... ......... 03114113 

Attorney, Transactions Division .. .. . .. ......... ..... .. ......... Tamara Annstrong .................. .. ..... .. ........... 03/30113 

Executive Assistant... ..... ... ............. .. .......... .. ............. Lori Duarte ....................................... .. .... ... 06115113 

ChiefInforma tion Officer. .... ........... .. .. ..... .. ...... .. ...... Joe Harlow .................. ................ .. ............. 07/31113 

County Auditor ........... .. .... .. .................................... Susan Spataro, CPA .................................... 08/31113 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... ... .... .... .... .. ........... George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P ....... .. ...... 09/26/ 13 


* - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 45



2 
DISCLOSURE 

acknowledges Offeror is doing or has business the 365 day 
period immediately to the date on which contract is with the following key 
contracting persons and warrants that are the only key contracting persons: 

no one IS warrants Offeror is not doing and has not done 
business during 365 day immediately prior to on which Request for 

response is made with any key contracting person. 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 46



ATTACHMENT E 


4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 47



shall not 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY 

EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 


Federal Executive Order 12549 Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has 
a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary 
exclusion. Each covered contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors. 

In this certification "contractor" refers to both contractor and subcontractor; "contract" refers to both contract and subcontract. 

By and submitting this celrtilllcllti4~n, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms: 

1. 	 The certification herein below is a material of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous in addition 
to other remedies available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including 
and/or debarment. 

2. 	 The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any 
time the potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason 
of changed circumstances. 

3. 	 The words "covered contract," " "suspended," " "participant," " "principle," "proposal," and 
excluded," as used in this certification have based upon materials in the Definitions and 


sections of federal rules Executive Order 12549. 

4. 	 The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it 

enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
palrtl(:lp,atU)n in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travi" 

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? __YES 

5. 	 The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, 	 Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts "without 

in all covered subcontracts"; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts. 
6. 	 A contractor may upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, or 

VOluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a 
minimum, obtain certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each subcontract's initiation and upon each renewal. 

7. 	 Nothing contained in all the shall be construed to establishment of a system of records in order to render in 
good faith the certification required by this certification document The knowledge and information of a contractor is not 

to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the 
8. 	 for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract 

a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, 
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency andlor Travis County may 
pursue available andlor debarment. 

course of business 

or voluntarily excluded from palrtlclp,ltIo!n 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING UI:..D&:run "'''''''J'l,.INELIGIBILlTY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION 
FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement to the covered contractor/potential contractor: 

D 111e contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is 
debarred, proposed for debarment, declared or voluntarily excluded from 

any federal or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County. 

The contractor is unable to to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, 
the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make 
certification. Attach the explanation(s) to this certification. 

Name of Contractor 	 Vendor 1.0. or Social Security No. 

of Authorized Representative Date 	 Name & Title of Authorized 

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 48



ATTACHMENT F 


PROPOSAL 


4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 49



RFS # 1208-005-ML

Drug and Alcohol Testing Services for Travis County

Offeror Name: MEC Associates of Austin, LLC; dba: Pro Med Medical Care Centers

Offeror Contact: Amber Lively
2000 W Anderson Ln

Austin, TX78757
PH:5!2-459-4367

Email : amber@ promedaustin.com

Date of proposal: 7O/t7ltz

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 50



Pro Med Medical Care Center
2000 W Anderson Ln
Austin, TX78757

October 2,2012

Travis County Purchasing Office
700 Lavaca, 8th Floor
Austin, TX 78701

Dear Purchasing Agent and Travis County representatives:

Pro Med Medical Care Centers is submitting the attached bid for RFS 1208-005-ML to
provide drug screen and alcohol services for Travis County. Pro Med Medical Care
Center has provided drug screen and alcohol services to companies since 1977 andis
dedicated to providing timely services without compromising the quality and efficiency
in services needed for Travis County.

There are three Pro Med Medical Care Centers conveniently spread across the Austin
area that can perform the DOT and NonDOT drug screens and alcohol tests seven days a
week with our extended hours including holiday hours as listed in. All collectors are
SAMSHA certified to perform drug screen collections and breath alcohol tests. We use
Clinical Reference Laboratory, a NIDA/SAMSHA certified laboratory for all Travis
County drug screens.

Sincerely,

Amber Lively
Account Manager

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 51



RFS# 1208-005-ML

2.3.1Pro Med has three clinics with DOT certified collectors who will be performing drug screen and/or
alcohol services for Travis County. There will always be someone on staff for same-sex witnessed

collections and Spanish speaking interpreters as needed. We have contacts at each clinic for specific

needs or issues as they arise.

Pro Med Clinics have 3 MRO on staff for positive drug screen results. Dr. Casey Cochran has been Pro

Med's MRO for over 25 years and Cathy Bradford is the MRO assistant who has been in her position for
15 years and with Pro Med for over 20 years.

2.3.2 Pro Med Medical Care Center has been providing drug and alcohol testing services for 35 years to
clients in the greater Austin area. Pro Med Clinics setup individual protocols for each Travis County

division allowing for specific instructions, billing, and reporting methods for each unique needs. We have

provided drug screen and alcohol services to clients that have the same or similar needs

2.3.3 Pro Med Medical Care Center does not intend to subcontract any of the work under Scope of
Services to another company.

2.4 Otferor References: See attached Reference Sheet

2.5 Description of Offeror: Pro Med Medical Care Center

There are three Pro Med Medical Care Centers conveniently spread across the Austin area that can

perform the drug and alcohol tests for RFS# 1208-005-ML seven days a week with our extended hours,

including some holiday hours. (See below for addresses and corresponding hours of operation). There

are male and female SAMSHA certified collectors for allcollections needed as wellas bilingualstaff for
translation when needed.

Pro Med Medical Care Center Pro Med Medical Care Center Pro Med Medical Care Center
13831 U.S. Hwy 183 N 2000 W.AndersonLane 3801 S. LamarBlvd
Austin, TX 78750 Austin, TX 78757 Austin, TX 78704
Ph: 5121250-0424 Ph:5121459-4367 Ph:5121447-9661
Fx:5121219-0192 Fx:5121459-8353 Fx:512-444-6852

Hours : Hours: Hours:
Monday-Friday, 8am- 1 Opm Monday-Friday, 8am- l0pm Monday-Friday, 8am- 10pm
Saturday, 9am-9pm Saturday, 9am-5pm Saturday, 9am-9pm
Sunday,9am-5pm Sunday, Closed Sunday,9am-5pm

Pro Med Medical Care Center has xx staffemployees at all three locations that can perform the
drug screen and alcohol services to Travis County. We will provide copies of applicable licenses
and certifications for collectors on an as needed basis.

2.6 Offeror Representative:
Amber Lively, Account Manager

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 52



2000 WAnderson Ln
Austin, TX78757
Ph 512-459-4367
Email: amber@promedaustin.com , additional email: clientservices@promedaustin.com

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 53



TRAVIS COUNTY
PURCHASING OFFICE
REFERENCE SHEET

Please Complete and Return This Form with the quote

RFS: 1208-005-ML

OFFEROR'S NAME: PRO MED MEDICAL CARE CENTER DATE: l0ll0ll2

Pro Med Medical Care Clinics has provided DOT and NonDOT drug and alcohol services since 1977. The
following are references of companies that we provide drug and alcohol services for:

1. Austin American Statesman
PO BOX 670
Austin, TX78767
Contact: Rudy Estrada, 912-2540

2. Del Valle ISD
7701 Burleson Rd
Austin, Tx 78744
Gloria Fernandez, 386-3 1 5 I

3. Champion Site Prep
455 Hwy 195

Georgetown, TX 78628
Christy Hammon, 512-863 -3453

4. Dynamic Materials
3317 N HWY 620
Austin, Tx 78734
Contact: Peggy Fullmer, 327-2043

5. Austin Radiological Association
6101 W Courtyard Dr, Bldg 5
Austin, Tx 78765
Contact: Tom Ratcliff, Ph: 512/795-5100

Pro Med Medical Care Center MRO for Travis Countv:
o Dr. Casev Cochran, D.0., P.A.: Dr. Cochran has been a MRO for 25 years
o Dr. Rashad Saeed, D.O.. P.A.
o Dr. MacConnell. M.D., P.A.

Reference Sheet

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 54



Travis Couniy

PART II. SECTION C. FEE SCHEDULE

DOT Testine UNOBSERVED

I,n Qlinip:
1. Split sample urine drug screen (Cannabinoids, Benzodiazepines,

Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines)

2. Breath alcohol test

On Site:

3. Split sampie urine drug screen (Cannabinoids, Benzodiazepines,
Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines)

4. Breath alcohol test

NPN-DOT (fe-Emplgvment Testine

5. (Amphetamines, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines,
Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene,
Methadone and Ethanol)

6. Provider Travels to County
to perform testing (fee per visit)

NON-DOT (DiEct) OBSERVED Drue Diversion,Court "SHORT" Proeram

Bic 1208-005-lvlL

RFS#1208-005-ML

Cost ner Test/Servipe

$ Z1 . DD

-NIA

7. TIPE I - (Amphetamines, Cannabinoids Cocaine,
Opiates)

8. TyPq,II - (Amphetamines, Methadoue
(Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates,
Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene

NON-DOT Counfvwide UN-OBSERYED

, 3I . urO (p\ r,i-: 56 tj \
pf horf W {,l)t\L'&* )

$ R4. DD

7k cD

10. Expedited **"1r"!o:o*rJ ..&r+ii 
-Te3-[" *y u*t].f-v- $ \ aq , ryD - G'?i'j.

/r rwphve- fer-sr,rlt ultr.i^'Ahr,ur.>) tJ J 
on -r --._ _iI 1. Expedii6d Results (within 24 hours) $ fh m.+ n{T"i{ vc.- rLJ vL H 5

u{e se,'r* u'*ith,n ;ii heur 

" ;! 
sr*c,*,. is c&r(er*".t fuh;L 4r*,fil*Tl4^

9. Drugs plus Alcohol (Amphetamines, $

Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates,
Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene, Methadone plus Ethanol)

p.44Sep 19, 2A12 10:17:23 AM CDT

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 55



Travis County

NON-pOT UNppSERVEn

12. TYBE I - Amphetamines, Cannabinoids, Cocaine, Opiates
and Ethanol

13, TYPE II -(Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cannabinoids,
Opiates, Ethanol)

HHSD/Child lrotgctive Services Testins OBSERVED

I 4. (Amphetamines, Cocaines, Opiates, Cannabinoids,
Benzodiazepines, Barbiturates, Phencyclidine, Phropoxyphene,
2"d (GL[\4S) and another LAB and MRO, Ethanol)

NIISCELLANEOUS TEPTIryG

15. Eye Scanning (PassPoint or equal)

16. Hair Testing

17. Oral Fluid Testing

18. Nail Testing

19. Drug Patch

20. ETGiETS Testing

21. I{2lSpice Tesring

22. Bath Salt Testing

23. Ambien Testing

goNFTRMATTON TESTTNG

21. Amphetamine Confirmation Test (GCA{S)

22. Barbiturate Confirmation Test (GC/T\{S)

23, Benzodiazepines (BZE) Confirmation Test (GCA{S)

24. Cocaine Confirmation Test (GC/lvIS)

Bid 1208-005-liiL

RFS#I208-005-ML

$ ,a.qo _

$ ie. uO

$ 6L'ob

\5$

15, cO

s Lr:O , O(--,

* NIA

$

$

s*fnSu&.\

tk $ NI /A *C.o(1ach'''rt o"{y

\1 $d*4-
rts ruiA
1{srtin

2^D

nl,fl

&)
\-td)

$

$

ird

Sep 19, 2012 10:17:23 AM CDT

s inc['.aAo.L

p.45

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 56



Travis County

25. Opiate Confirmation Test (GC/I,[S)

26. Phencyclidine Confirmation Test (GC/N{S)

27. Cannabinoids (THC) Confirmation Test (GCA4S)

28 Phropoxyphene Confirmation Test (GCA,{S)

29. Ethanol (Alcohol)

30. 2nd (GCA,IS) & another LAB and MRO

TRAYEL TO PERFORM ON.CALL TESTING

Bid 1208-005-I*41

RFS#r208-005-ML

i^ ci vtrlt,d

incJ utct{ c[

in cinded

i n cl.",,ctef

s ol'00 , t-fl

$

$

$

s

31. Between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday
through Friday (non Holiday weekdays) or Holidays
and weekends 24 hour emsrgency on-site response

EXPERT WITNESS

32. Expert Witness (Hourly Rate)

MISCELLAI\EOUS REOUIREMENTS FOR (SHORT PROGRAM"

33. SPANISH Speaking Interpreter on-site while Testing Center Open $ N0 Ct vtrarq - Pr:, ffUJ.

ff:#s$fi;B1*rilr;H?:il'r0 
6:00 (fortheshon !.. lpuxrs'r. svczr"ri3

i.rkr freler: lzloa,rll
34. Notification via daily sign-in sheets faxed to the following two Da r-,.. -\ \ U6"^ M -I- 

)
Departments ONLY: sHoRT ProgramlDrug Diversion court 1ar* _bn* 1.l,r+^,tlry
And Pretrial Services Program. Daily cost for each department I w I ' r' 

V 
tv '

Aa*-i>gr** t* A luz<l'rvr5

Whenever open, will have both the required qurlified man and required qualified woman for direct observed
testing on their respective counterparts? W yes I No

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Adminishation (SAMHSA) Certified Laboratory used?

Vv* fl No

Location, contact person, ne number and of all available clinics and hours of service at each

'AiL

-,vl+

p. 46Sep 19,2012 10:17:23Afsl CDT

44

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 57



Travis Countlr Bic 1208-005-l\,{L

RFS#1208-005-ML

kinds of identiflcation client must bring:

List method of renortins to client:
€tqnr,,l , Env "Wl/i\

List corporate ofrice Address: ?CO fnLA ff\dj ea\ LA,f e etnniz_

Sep .'f 9, 2A12 1Ai7:23 AM CDT

45

p47

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 58



RFS#L208-005-ML

Pro Med Clinic Locations, Hours, and Contacts for Fee Schedule

Pro Med Medical Care Center Pro Med Medical Care Center Pro Med Medical Care Center
13831 U.S. Hwy 183 N 2000 W. Anderson Lane 3801 S. Lamar Blvd
Austin, TX 78750 Austin, TX 78757 Austin, TX 78704
Ph:5121250-0424 Ph:512/459-4367 Ph:5121447-9661
Fx:5121219-0192 Fr 5121459-8353 Fx:512-444-6852

Hours : Hours: Hours:
Monday-Friday, 8am-lOpm Monday-Friday, 8am-l0pm Monday-Friday, 8am-10pm
Saturday, 9am-9pm Saturday, 9am-5pm Saturday,9am-9pm
Sunday,9am-5pm Sunday, Closed Sunday,9am-5pm
Contact: jL Rodriquez Contact: Cathy Bradford Contact: Lori Dieter

For all clinics you can also contact Amber Lively at 512-459-4367 or email: amber@promedaustin.com

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 59



STATE OF TEXAS)
cor-rNTY oF TRAVTS)

Date: tO

Name of Affiant:
Title of Affiant:

Travis County

ATTACHMENT 1

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Bid 1208-005-r.,41

RFS# 1208-005-ML

lnMti. Mad. .-l Ca;^u fu^kr

this Request for

whom Offeror is
before the date of

Business Name of Offeror: SSo
County of Offeror:

Affiant is authorized by Offeror to make this affidavit for Offeror.
Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.
Affiant can read the English language.
Offeror has received the list of key contracting persons associated with
Services which is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit A.
Affiant has personally read Exhibit A to this Affidavit.
Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit A with
doing business or has done business during the 365 day period immediately
this affidavit whose name is not disclosed in Exhibit B.

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

6.

SUBSCRIBED AND SwoRN To before me by A,rf h u L ,ot,.eo

-t.i .:1".,r
i .:'j ,j . -""-i -

j_',".

,i

i

,2ov

Notary Public, State of Texas

My commission expires:

M

p.s

Affiant on oath swears that the following

Signature of Affiant

Typed or printed name of notary

Sep 19, 2012 fi 17:23 Al.J CDT

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 60



Travis County Bid 1 2CE-005-LrL

RFS#1208-00s-ML

HlsroRlcALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSTNESS (HUB) PROGRAM SUBCONTRACTING DECLARATION

The HUB Program policies and Mlnority and Woman-Owned Business subcontracting goals shall be applicable to the eligible procu
spent in the areas of Construction, Commodities, Services, and Professional Services.

OverallMBE Goal: 3.5% Sub-goals:
0.3% African-American

2.5% Hispanic

0.7% Asian/Native-American

0verallWBE Goal: 6.2%

OverallMBE Goal: 13.7% Sub-goals:
1.7% African-American

9.7% Hispanic

2. 3% Asian/l,,lative-American

OverallWBE Goal: 13.8%

OverallMBE Goal: 14.1% Subgoals:
2.5% African-American

9.9% Hispanic
'1.7% Asian/Native-American

OverallWBE Goal: 15.0%

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES OverallMBE Goal; 15,8% Sub-goals:
1.9% African-American

9.0% Hispanic

4. 970 Asian/Native-American

OverallWBE Goal: 15.8%

BIDDER AND SOLICITATION INFORMATION

Bidder Company Name; HLt ASSc C'ialeS u(trl\ ,{-L State of Texas VID#:

0\ S \-rl(rnrtr B\..d city' ,{usirn ZiR Code:1tr1

Phone No.: rrt1_ t#q 4"4t",.
Solicitation #: t1b.1_ OO 

r>

ls your companpa certified HUB?

E Yer E4o lndicate Gender & Ethnicity:

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable):

Definitions:

rueol,ldbbfftdryMnd#drlirbffirmisg@flld6Etoi{mrgrflf6oed&i,lheEf&r$r',{6fiEErserpdete

receiving contracts in accordance with the HUB Program policies and the Minority and Woman-owned Business (MMBE) goals adopted
Travis
County Commissioners Court. Travis County encourages all Bidders to register as a County vendor through the County's online vendor
registration.

*Prime Contractors who are awarded contracts with the County are required to make a "Good Faith Effort" to subcontract with HUBs. This

SUBCONTRACTING INTENTIONS

Percentage to be subcontracted to Certified HUBs:

Total MBE Dollars: TotalWBE Dollars:

Check the box that applies to the Bidder:

dW. .r. able to fulfill all subcontracting opportunities with our own resources. lf circumstances necessitate the use of any subs, I

agree to seek

the timely authorization by the County and adhere to the submission of any required documentation. (Complete Sections 5, 6 and 8)

fl We plan to subcontract some or most of the opportunities of thilryoject and meet or exceed the set goals. (Complete Sections 3, 4, 6

and 8)

EWtpHlt r{[ip subconhactors on this project, but will not meet the set goals. (Complete Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 and 8)Sep i?,

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 61



ED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS (Duplicate as nec

Travis County exercises the right to verify subcontractors listed on this project. lt is the County's practice to consider ethnicity before

gender when distinguishing HUB certifications and calculating goal achievement.

Nofe: Io be considered "ceiifred' with the Slate of Texas, City of Austin orthe Texas tJnified Ceftificaton Program, please attach a cunent and

ceftificate. Subgoa/s are included to assM you in diversifying your subcontractors.

Sub Company Name: /\ n State of Texas VID#:

Address: City: State: Zip Code:

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail:

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work

ls your company a certified HUB?

D Yes E tto
lndicate Gender & Ethnicity:

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): E State of Texas (HUB) LJ City of Austin

(MMBE)

E Texas Unified Certification Program

(TUCP)(DBE)

Sub Company Name: A t+ State of Texas VID#:

Address: City: State: Zip Code:

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No,: E-mail:

Subconhact Amount: Percentage: Description of Work:

ls your company a certified HUB?

E Yes I trto
lndicate Gender & Ethnicity:

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): E State of Texas (HUB) U City of Austin

(MMBE)

f] Texas Unified Certification Program

(TUCP)(DBE)

Sub Company Name: Il k State of Texas VID#:

Address: City: State: Zip Code:

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail:

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work:

ls your company a certified HUB?

E yes E t'lo
lndicate Gender & EthnicitY:

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): D State of Texas (HUB) U City of Austin

(MMBE)

tl Texas Unified Certification Program

(TUCP)(DBE)

Sub Company Name: 
A LI State of Texas VID#:

Address: City: State: Zip Code:

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail:

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work:

ls your company a certified HUB?

nvesENo
lndicate Gender & EthnicitY:

Travis County Bid 1208-005-lllL

RFS#1208-00s-ML

p 15
Sep 19, 2012 1Q:17'.23 AM CDT

L3

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 62



t,
Travis County exercises the right to verify subcontractors listed on this project.

(Duplicate 
A:j?gE

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#'Rtr S*t 20g-005_MI
Address: City: State: Zip Code:

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail:

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work:

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#:

Address: City: State: Zip Code:

Contact: Phone No,: Fax No.: E-mail:

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Wod<:

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#:

Address: City: State: Zip Code:

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail:

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work:

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#:

Address: City: State: Zip Code:

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail:

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work:

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): E State of Texas (HUB) fl City of Austin

(M/VVBE)

[_l Texas Unified Certification Program

(TUCP) (DBE)

005-ML

NON.COMPLIANT FOR MEETING SET HUB GOALS CHECKLIST

lf you were unable to meet the set goals for this project, select the box by the response(s) that best fits your situation.

Ll All subs to be utilized are "Non-HUBs.' tr l-jlBs solicited did not respond.

n HUAs solicited were not competitive. E(Uer were unavailable for the following trade(s): \UrtrS .!nr

p16
Sep 19, 2012 10.17'.23 AM CDT

l4

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 63



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML

RFS#1208-00s-ML

p. 17

EEIIIEIIE DETERM|NATToN OF "GOOD FATTH EFFoRT" (cFE) CHECKLTST

The following checklist shall be completed by the Bidder and returned with the response. This list contains the minimum efforts that should be put forth by
theBidderwhenattemptingtoachieveorexceedtheHUBgoals. TheBiddermaygobeyondtheeffortslistedbelow. lf additional informationisneeded,
theBidderwill becontactedbytheHUBProgramStaff. Selecttheboxthatdescribesyourefforts.

! Divide the contract work into the smallest feasible portions to allow for maximum HUB Subcontractor participation, consistent with standard and prudent

industry practices.

I Notify HUBs of work that the prime contractor plans to subcontract, allowing sufficient time for effective participation?
The HUB Program encourages that three or more HUBs be notifled per scope ofwork and given no less than flve working days to respond.
(The notification should contain adequate information about the project i.e. plans, specifications, and scope of work; Bonding and insurance
requirements of the HUB subcontractor; and a point of contact within the Bidders organization.)

n lf a bid was requested from a HUB and then rejected, was a written rejection notice detailing the reasons why they were not selected issued?

lf yes, provide a copy of the rejection letter,

! Provide notices of opportunities to minority or women trade organizations or development centers to assist in identifying potential HUBs by disseminating

the information to their members/participants? lf yes, attach correspondence.

PaiOOer has (0)zero HUB participation. Provide an explanation fl6 Sox ln c{-t -b SvJo61,.*{td okJ -C!- *f,q><_ s?,t *u. S .

EIre|IEIE RESOURCES

TRADE ASSOCIAT]ONS PHONE (512) FAX E-mail/website

Asian Construction Trade 926-5400 926-541 0 www.acta-austin.com

Austin Black Contractors 467-6894 467-9808 www.abcatx.com

Austin Mekopolitan United Black Contractors 784-1 891 25s-1451 unism@sbcqlobal.net

Natl. Assoc. of Women in Construction

476-5534 476-8337

US Hispanic Cont. Assoc. de Austin

922-0507 374-1421 www.ushca-austin.com

CERTIFYING AGENCIES TRAVIS COUNTY RECOGNIZES

CERTIFYING AGENCIES

VENDOR DATABASE WEBSITES

State of Texas Centralized Master Bidders List www.cpa.state.tx. us/business.html CMBL includes certified
HUBs.

City of Austin Minority Vendor Database www.austintexas. gov/department/small-and-
minoritv-hrrsiness

Certifi ed Vendors Directory

Texas Unified Certification Proqram www.dot.state.tx.us/business I TUCP DBE Directory

Sep 19, 2012 fi.17:23 AM CDT

15

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 64



Travis County Eid 1208-005-ML

RFS#1208-005-ML

n 4QH. 'v

S:rcITTdNT.{ AFFIRMATION

As evidenced by my signature below, I certify that all the information provided is correct to the best of my knowledge. I am an authorized

representative of the Bidder listed in SECTION 1, and thatthe information and supporting documentation submitted with HUB Forms are correct and

true to the best of my knowledge.

Bidder understands and agrees that, if awarded any portion of the solicitation:

' The Bidder must either utilize Travis County HUB Programs Vendor Tracking System (VTS) to report payments to sub-

contractors on a monthly basis or submit monthly Payment Reports as requested by the HUB Program Coordinator.

. The Bidder must seek pre-approvalfrom the HUB Program Coordinator prior to making any modifications to their HUB Sub-

contracting Plan. The Bidder must complete a HUB Subcontractor/Subconsultant Change Form obtained from the HUB Program

Staff, Return form via fax to 512-854-9185 or email hubstaff@co.travis.tx.us.

. Travis County HUB Program Staff will perform a Good Faith Effort (GFE) Review, documenting the efforts put forth by the Bidder.

NameandTitle: llt* l,r* { l^-rVUtu,l Atr_ou,,L} l.{rrv ",Y"' I o, n

E-mailAddressr r^o,lr.,^/) nrnrunf L^sh n tnrlt^t sisnature: J)ln ta h t4 ; / t I a,,a ..'
Provide contact informatir5n for the ihdividual in your office who will handle invoicing for this project:

Nameandritle:4* hot i i,,/01,, I\r r,.,,r;rl fi.,Anrvq.,r
E-mail Address:- t -,Arnlno r r) O/T.nnP ) 

^U\+; 
/1 , (El /\

Phone No.: 6iA,Ar.At |bdtl c Fax No.: ht n" 4+"t 6 f ,4t
Please be reminded that Travis County is not party to your agreement executed with the subcontractors and subconsultants.

S6p 19, 2A12 1AJ7:23 AM CDT

t6

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 65



Travis County Bid 1208-005-tdL

RFS# 1208-00s-ML

EXHIBIT B
DISCLOSURE

Offeror acknowledges that Offeror is doing business or has done business during the 365 day period
immediately prior to the date on which this contact is made with the following key contacting persons and
warrants that these are the only such key contracting persons:

If no one is listed above, Offeror warrants that Offeror is not doing business and has not done business

during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date on which this Request for Services response is made

with any key contracting person.

Sep 19, 2A12 1A17:23 AM CDT

10

p.12

4400001192 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 65



RFS NUMBER S1208-005-ML, Professional Drug and Alcohol Testing Services

Issued September 19, 2012 and Closed October 17, 2012

ArcPoint Labs

Pro Med 

Medical 

Care Center

Concentra Medical 

Centers
Source 1 Solutions ProResults Pharmatech

DOT Testing UNOBSERVED

1
In Clinic - Split sample urine drug screen (CanN/Abinoids, Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, 

Amphetamines)
$25.50 $37.00 $47.00 $55.00 $47.00 $45.00

2 In Clinic - Breath alcohol test $22.00 $25.00 $26.00 $35.00 $27.00 $35.00

3
On Site - Split sample urine drug screen (CanN/Abinoids, Benzodiazepines, Opiates, Phencyclidine, 

Amphetamines)
$40.00 N/A 47.00 + onsite fee $75.00 $52.00 $125.00

4 On Site - Breath alcohol test $37.00 N/A 26.00 + onsite fee $45.00 $52.00 $125.00

NON-DOT Pre-Employment Testing

5
Amphetamines, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, CanN/Abinoids, 

Propoxyphene, Methadone and Ethanol)
$29.50 $32.00 $38.00 $41.00 $32.00 $45.00

6 Provider Travels to County to perform testing (fee per visit) $45.00

32.00 (plus 

$50/hr per 

collector 

35 /hr $75.00 $52.00 75.00/per visit

NON-DOT (Direct) OBSERVED Drug Diversion Court "SHORT" Program

7
TYPE I - Amphetamines, Methadone, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, 

CanN/Abinoids, Propoxyphene and Ethanol
$22.00 $24.00 $38.00 $40.00 $26.00 $55.00

8
TYPE II - (Amphetamines, Methadone, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, 

CanN/Abinoids and Propoxyphene)
$27.00 $24.00 $38.00 $40.00 $30.00 $60.00

NON-DOT UN-OBSERVED Countywide

9
Drugs, plus Alcohol (Amphetamines, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, 

CanN/Abinoids, Propoxyphene,  Methadone plus Ethanol)
$29.50 $32.00 $38.00 $41.00 $32.00 $55.00

10 Expedited Results (4 Hours) n/a

29.00  *see fee 

schedule for 

more 

information

N/A N/A see adendum N/A

11 Expedited Results (within 24 hours) no charge

*see fee 

schedule for 

addl info

N/A N/A see addendum N/A

NON-DOT UN-OBSERVED 

12 TYPE I - (Amphetamines, CanN/Abinoids, Cocaine, Opiates  and Ethanol) $22.00 32..00 $38.00 $41.00 $26.00 $45.00

13 TYPE II - (Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, CanN/Abinoids, Opiates  and Ethanol) $22.00 $32.00 $38.00 $41.00 $26.00 $45.00

HHSD/Child Protective Services  Testing OBSERVED

14
Amphetamines, Cocaine, Opiates, CanN/Abinoids, Benzodiazepines, Barbiturates, Phencyclidine, 

Phropoxyphene, 2nd (GL/MS) and another LAB and MRO, Ethanol
$32.00 $32.00 $38.00

41.00 *testing only 

$250.00 (2nd lab)
$32.00 $65.00

MISCELLANEOUS TESTING

15 Eye Scanning (PassPoint or equal)

Environmental Surface 

testing for drug 

production/consuption 

$85.00/room

N/A N/A N/A see addendum N/A

16 Hair Testing see fee schedule          N/A $80.00 $80.00 see addendum N/A

17 Oral Fluid Testing 6 panel $18.50 N/A N/A $36.00 $47.00 $55.00

18 Nail Testing see fee schedule          N/A N/A N/A see addendum N/A



RFS NUMBER S1208-005-ML, Professional Drug and Alcohol Testing Services

Issued September 19, 2012 and Closed October 17, 2012

ArcPoint Labs

Pro Med 

Medical 

Care Center

Concentra Medical 

Centers
Source 1 Solutions ProResults Pharmatech

19 Drug Patch $65.00 N/A N/A N/A see addendum N/A

20 ETG/ETS testing $40.00 $32.00 N/A $95.00 $52.00 $35.00

21 K2/Spice Testing see fee schedule          $45.00 N/A N/A $66.00 $50.00

22 Bath Salt Testing $63.00 $60.00 N/A $192.90 $81.00 $50.00

23 Ambien Testing $95.00 N/A N/A $55.00

189.00 (unless 

combined w/other 

standard testing then 

$69.00

N/A

CONFIRMATION TESTING 

23 Amphetamine  Confirmation Test (GC/MS) $24.00 included included $40.00 $30.50 $25.00

24 Barbiturate Confirmation Test (GC/MS) $24.00 included included $40.00 $28.50 $25.00

25 Benzodiazepines (BZE) Confirmation Test (GC/MS) $24.00 included included $40.00 $28.50 $25.00

26 Cocaine  Confirmation Test (GC/MS) $24.00 included included $40.00 $28.50 $25.00

27 Opiate Confirmation Test (GC/MS) $24.00 included included $40.00 $28.50 $25.00

28 Phencyclidine  Confirmation Test (GC/MS) $24.00 included included $40.00 $28.50 $25.00

29 CanN/Abinoids (THC)  Confirmation Test (GC/MS) $24.00 included included $40.00 $28.50 $25.00

30 Phropoxyphene  Confirmation Test (GC/MS) $24.00 included included $40.00 $28.50 $25.00

31 Ethanol (Alcohol) $24.00 included included $40.00 $28.50 $50.00

32 2nd (GC/MS) & another LAB and MRO $24.00 $200.00 $200.00 $250.00 $100.00 $150.00

TRAVEL TO PERFORM ON-CALL TESTING

33
Between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday through Friday (non Holiday weekdays) or Holidays and 

weekends 24 hour emergency on-site response
75/1st hr $50.00/2nd Hr N/A 250.00 (addl fees may apply N/A 100/hr 150.00/hourly

EXPERT WITNESS

34 Expert Witness (Hourly Rate) $300.00 $150.00 350.00 + expenses 350.00/ 3 hr min $125.00 100.00/hr

MISCELLANEOUS REQUIREMENTS FOR "SHORT PROGRAM"

35
SPANISH Speaking Interpreter on-site while Testing Center Open Per Hour Rate between the hours of 

7:00 - 6:00 (for the Short Program Only)
$15.00 NC no addl fee N/A see fee schedule 75.00/hr

36
Notification via daily sign-in sheets faxed to the following two departments ONLY:  Short Program /Drug 

Diversion Court and Pretrial Services Program.  Daily cost for each Department
no charge no addl fee N/A no charge 

MISCELLANEOUS QUESTIONS

Whenever open, will  have both the required qualified man and required qualified woman for direct 

observed testing on their respective counterparts? (YES or NO)

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Certified  Laboratory used? (YES 

or NO)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
A

 

 

 

 

 

 

Trav

ROFE
AGRE

ARC

DRUG 

CON

vis Co

ESSION
EMEN

BE

TRAVI

CPOINT L

AND AL

NTRACT

ounty 

NAL S
NT/CO
ETWEEN

IS COUN

AND 

LABS OF
 

FOR 

LCOHOL
 

T NO. 44

Purc

SERV
ONTR

NTY 

F AUSTI

L SERVI

40000119

hasin

VICES 
RACT 

IN 

ICES 

90 

ng Off

 

fice 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 


1.0 	 Definitions ..................................................................................................... pg. 1 

Term .............................................................................................................. 1 


3.0 	 Contractor's Responsibilities ....................................................................... pg. 2 

4.0 	 Compensation, Billing and Payment ............................................................. pg. 3 


Records, Confidentiality and ... .... ......... ........... .. .... .. .... ......... 5 

6.0 	 ......................................................................... pg. 6 

7.0 	 ............................................................................................ 6 


Approvals ...................................................................................................... pg. II 


Attachments 

Attachment - Scope of Services Performance Measures.......................... 12 


D - ..............................................pg.43 

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Persons ..................................... pg. 


Attachment E Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 

and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts ........................pg. 


Atttachment B Schedule. .................. .......................... . ............pg. 36 

Attachment C . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 


Exhibit 2 Disclosure.............................................................. 46 


Attachment F - Proposal.................................................................... 49 




    
 

 

II.  DEFINITIONS 
 

1.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

 In this Agreement, 
 

1.1 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court.  
 

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.  
  

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor. 
 

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and/or Contractor.  
 

 1.5   “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean: 

 

 1.5.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more 

than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or property 

interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

 

 1.5.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, or goods or otherwise creating or having in 

existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

 

but does not include: 

 

  1.5.3 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a “Key Contracting Person” at a  posted, 

published, or marked price available to the general public; 

 

1.5.4 Any financial services product sold to a “Key Contracting Person” for personal, family or 

household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated and individuals 

with similar risks as determined by “Contractor” in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 

1.5.5 A transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 

“Contractor” if “Contractor” is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or other 

representative of  “Contractor” who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have 

known about the Contract. 

 

 1.6 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavit   

 attached to this Contract and marked Attachment D. 

  

2.0 TERM 
 

2.1 Initial Term.  The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by 

all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2013, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.   

 

2.2 Renewal Term(s).  Option to Extend: County may unilaterally extend this Contract for (i) two  (2) 

additional one (1) year periods and (ii) three (3) additional one (1) month periods (individually, an 

“Option to Extend” and collectively, the “Options to Extend”),  and all provisions of this Contract, 

except for term, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  County shall exercise an Option to 

Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the then current term.  The total term of 

this Contract shall not exceed thirty-nine (39) months.  County shall have the right to exercise all or a 

portion of the Option to Extend in any combination it deems necessary. 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 1



    
 

 

2.3  Termination.  COUNTY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving CONTRACTOR  

written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination. 

 

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
 3.1 Scope of Services.  CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and 

activities described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is 

expressly incorporated herein and made a part hereof.   

 

 3.2 Ethical Standards.  CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary 

powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and her best professional 

judgment. 

  

3.3 Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is prohibited 

from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the CONTRACTOR’S 

obligations under this Agreement.   

  

 3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities 

pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans 

with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933].   

 

3.5  Legal Compliance.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws, 

rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the 

performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently 

delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector. 

 

3.7   Insurance Requirements  CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in 

Attachment C, "Insurance Requirements", which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part 

hereof. 

 

3.8  Federal Funds.  CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 

will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to 

influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal 

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 

cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual 

information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES and may rely on all factual information supplied by the TRAVIS 

COUNTY DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES in response to these requests.   However TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any 

elected official of County for any other purpose than conveying factual information. 

 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 2



3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the
services in CONTRACTOR’S proposal.

4.0 COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT

4.1 . For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR’s compliance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof.

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: As needed Basis
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None.

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY’S satisfaction and given COUNTY’S
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY’S obligation to make any payment to
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR’S profession.

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall invoice County on a monthly basis for services rendered
pursuant to this Contract, Each invoice shall include the following information:

4.4.1 the contract Reference Number;
4 4 2 the client reference Number, (client name)
4 4 3 type of service in accordance with Attach B
4 4 4 the total amount being requested
4 4 5 date of collection

Original invoices shall be sent to: See Part II, Section D, for the list of County
Department addresses.

4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overparment to
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30)
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to
CONTRACTOR

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 3



4.6 CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue 
Form W-9 Request for Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 

with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of status in 
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable. 

4.7 Notwithstanding anything to the the 
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment taxes at the time invOlcmg, 

hereby any to made hereunder to the 
Assessor-Collector the payment of said delinquent taxes. 

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt. 

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of Local Government Code, notice of 
indebtedness been filed with County Auditor or County evidencing the 
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not 

drawn on a COUNTY fund in of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or of 
CONTRACTOR until: 

4.8.1.1 the County notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the IS 

outstanding; and 
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid. 

includes delinquent and indebtedness arising from 
agreements with the COUNTY. 

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply funds COUNTY owes 

balance of debt for which notice is made under 

statement that 

the outstanding 


4.9 Certification under this 

"Government-wide and Suspension." CONTRACTOR, signing this Contract, 
hereby certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its principles: 

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or 

rpF'_'N~"'" period preceding Contract convicted of or had a civil 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction or records, making false statements, or 

stolen property; 

(c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly by a governmental entity 
(Federal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 

period preceding Contract one or more transactions 
for cause or default. 

4.8.1.1 if 
amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may 

outstanding 
includes a 

applied to 

for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, 

judgment rendered 

(d) have not within a 
or local) 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 4



Where CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 6.9, CONTRACTOR 
shall provide an explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's 
consideration and evaluation with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract 
by County. 

4.10 Exemption From County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the 
requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services or meets other requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 

4.11 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by 
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement. 

4.12 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and 
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of 
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice 
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS 

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of 
records and other information relating to Parent Coaching & Assessments Services in accordance with 
the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical 
standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client 
information. Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR 
agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY'S monitoring 
and evaluation duties in any way. 

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shaH make 
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and 
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any liotigation 
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR 
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost 
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

5.3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and 
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and 
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their 
authorized representatives. 

5.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement including 
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries, 
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR will become property of the 
COUNTY. 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 5



6.0 AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS 


6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this 
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY A TT ACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of 
this Agreement or any attachment to it to the County Department with a copy to the Purchasing Agent. 

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has 
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County 
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOVT CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, 
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve 
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise CONTRACTOR as to 
such authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may 
submit any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the 
Purchasing Agent to sign the Amendment. 

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS: 

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, 
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT 
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY 
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING 
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS 
CONTRACT. 

7.2 Warrants. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable copyrights, patents, 
licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials used in this 
Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any infringement of those 
rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this Agreement. Consultant 
shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes 
of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees for 
damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 
existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement. 

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an 
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against 
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being 
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that 
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or 
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, 
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against 
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 6



 
herein.  Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent 
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions. 

 
7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may, 
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold 
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein. 

 
7.5 Non-Waiver of Default 
 
 7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of 

any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist. 
 
 7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment, 

act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it.  Any 
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy 
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or 
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

  
7.6     Forfeiture of Contract   If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person 
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business 
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to 
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and 
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value 
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this  Agreement, provided, however, that this 
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics 
Policy. 

 
7.7 Entire Agreement.  All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement related 
to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this Agreement have 
been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies and procedures approved 
by Commissioners Court for County.   Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations 
not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect. 

 
7.7.1 Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a 
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance 
with all the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

7.7.1.1            Attachment A – Scope of Services  
7.7.1.2            Attachment B – Fee Schedule 
7.7.1.3  Attachment C – Insurance Requirements 
7.7.1.4  Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit 
7.7.1.5  Attachment E -  Debarment 
7.7.1.6  Attachment F -  Proposal 

 
7.8 Notices: 
 

7.8.1 Written Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by 
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given 
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom 
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 7



postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the 
party at the address herein specified. 

 
7.8.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be: 
 

     Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.; CPPO (or her successor) 
     Travis County Purchasing Agent 
     P. O. Box 1748 
     Austin, Texas 78767 
 

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
  
    Travis County Departments 

 
7.8.3 Contractor Address.  The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this 

Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be: 
 
      ARCpoint Labs of Austin 
      2900 Interstate 35 South, Ste 110 
      Austin, TX 78704 

 
7.9 Change of Address.  Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice 
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8.  Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen 
(15) days of the change. 

 
7.10 Authority: The Department designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement.  The Department designee shall have complete authority to 
interpret and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S 
services.  The Department designee may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive 
information. 
 
7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent.   When the CONTRACTOR and/or County 
have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract, the CONTRACTOR or 
County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing  Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with written 
notice of the dispute.  Such notice shall contain a specific written description of  the issues involved as well as 
the CONTRACTOR's requested resolution of the dispute and any other relevant information which 
CONTRACTOR desires to include.  As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing 
Agent will act as the County representative in any further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in 
relation to the described dispute.  Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or 
correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not issued  by or to the Purchasing Agent is void.  
If the CONTRACTOR does not agree with any document, notice  or correspondence relating to the 
dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the CONTRACTOR must submit a 
written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Department designee within ten (10) calendar days 
after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  The 
Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the final resolution of the dispute to the CONTRACTOR within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of  dispute by the Purchasing Agent.  If this final resolution 
does not resolve the dispute to the CONTRACTOR's  satisfaction, CONTRACTOR may submit a written 
Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The  Purchasing Agent will 
provide a copy of such response to the Department designee. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within 
ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the  unsatisfactory  final resolution. CONTRACTOR then has the 
right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the  Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on 
the Commissioners Court agenda.  

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 8



that 

an 
COUNTY, or gam any against 

7.15.2 =::.:..-:=-:...== 

7.12 CONTRACTOR is not satisfied with the of the dispute pursuant to 
Section 7.11, CONTRACTOR notify the mediation is acceptable to both 

will not 

the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties to use the Dispute Resolution 
as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in CIV. PRAC. 

AND Section 154.023. both Parties are satisfied with the 
a final and binding of the All 

mediation shall confidential as described TEX. ClV. 
154.073, unless in writing, to waive confidentiality. 

7.13 CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with 
staff and CONTRACTORs as reasonable and necessary and as required by the 
Departments/Offices. 

14 The parties 
CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, operating solely 
of rights, obligations and liabilities to him as 

shall not considered an employee 
COUNTY pursuant to COUNTY'S personnel policies. 

agreement and of any of terms or provisions, as well as 
shall governed by laws of the State of 

7.15 validity of 
the parties 

7.15.1 
by a court of 

invalidate, or nullify the 
the 

1<'"'1"",,",, provision, or 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or 

of this but the 

All obligations under this Agreement shall performable in 
any litigation concerning Agreement shall in City of 

7.15.3 party may any of the rights or duties created by Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR 

no agent, or representative of COUNTY has any authority to 
part of this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court. 

7 .16 Notwithstanding any prOVIsIOn this Agreement, this 
binding upon and inure to benefit of COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and 

executors, 
sublet, or transfer his 

of the other party hereto. 

COUNTY nor the 

shall 

7. I 7 a part it is that 
CONTRACTOR is free to provide outside as it sees fit at those times which 
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is understood COUNTY is free to have more 
than one contractor providing the type of included this Agreement. 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 9



fTrPPtTIPnT on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and 
or they have duly 

7.18 Conditions covenants of this which by their terms are performable 
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or 
end and remain fully performable. 

7. I 9 Interpretational Guidelines 

When period of is stated this time 
day and include last of period. If the last day 

COUNTY has declared a holiday for 
computation. 

7.19.2 Words any gender in this Agreement shall construed to 
include any other gender and words in either number shall construed to include the other 
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise. 

shall computed to exclude the 
of any 
employees, these 

on a Saturday, Sunday or a day 
shall be omitted 

this 
by that "',",""VA 

If by Chapter 176, Local Government Code, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and 
the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., 
Austin, Texas 78751. The CONTRACTOR shall update this Questionnaire by September 1 each 

the duration this Contract, as required by Chapter I of the Local Government Code. In addition, 
if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the CONTRACTOR 

submit an updated Questionnaire. CONTRACTOR should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to a Questionnaire on the official County Internet website. 

on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or 

by CONTRACTOR to this on behalf 
CONTRACTOR to bind CONTRACTOR validly and to all 
provisions this 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 10



This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both parties.

Approved as to Legal Form By:

Travis County

By: Samuel T. Biscoe

Assistant County Attorney

Funds Verified By:

Approved by Purchasing:

County Auditor

Cyd Grimes, C.PM., CPPO, Purchasing Agent

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 11

DUPLICATE ORIjNALS

By:
W(ne and Title (Printed)

Date:1/!

____

Travis County Judge

Date:



A TTACHMENT A 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SECTION A- TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS-ALCOHOL TESTING 

CONTRACTOR MUST: 

1.1 	 Provide trained breath alcohol technician(s) (BAT) to conduct evidential breath 
testing (EBT), including random selection for EBT, in compliance with 
Department of Transportation (DOT) regulations and 49 CFR, Parts 40 and 382, 
as amended. 

1.2 	 Use EBT devices which are listed on the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA) Conforming Products List (CPL) and meet the 
requirements for confirmation testing. 

1.3 	 Provide in-clinic facilities that afford visual and aural privacy to the individual 
being tested, sufficient to prevent unauthorized persons from seeing or hearing 
test results and ensure that individuals tested at the specified Travis County on
site locations listed in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 2.17 are afforded similar 
pnvacy. 

1.4 	 Provide all necessary equipment, personnel, and materials for EBT at the 
Contractor's location where testing is conducted and at the specified Travis 
County on-site testing locations. 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 12



PART II - SECTION B - TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS - DRUG TESTING 


1.0 
provided for this contract, the quality of all services rendered under it must confonn to 
the highest standards in the relevant profession, trade or field of endeavor. All 
must be rendered or supervised directly individuals fully qualified the relevant 
profession, or field, and holding any required by law or regulation. 
regulations under which this is to be performed are provided (taken from the 
Department of Health and Human (DHHS) "Mandatory Guidelines for Federal 
Workplace Program," the ofTransportation (DOT) 
"Mandatory Guidelines Commercial Driver's (CDL)", as published and 
"1-'\.,,,,,...,,-, In this document are to as "DHHS 
Guidelines" and "DOT " 

TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS 
following definitions are adopted: 

2.1 	 ALIQUOT - A portion a specimen used testing. 

A group consisting of samples, calibrators, controls, and blind quality 
that is run in the same time frame under the identical 

the and instruments. 

2.3 	 is a metabolite of that is identified and quantified 
Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry 	(GC/MS) confirmation test 
metabolites. 

of 

BATCH -
control 

2.4 CALIBRATORS -
drug and drug metabolites 

CHAfN-OF-CUSTODY FORM - An approved DHHS or DOT external chain-of
custody document that tracks the handling and of forensic 
speCImen of collection to final disposition and includes 
documenting printed name that clear and original of 
person, purpose for handling or transfer specimens or aliquots for 
into whose custody IS 

2.6 	 CONFIRMATORY - A second analytical procedure to identify 
presence of a drug or metabolite which is independent of the initial test 
and which uses a different technique and chemical principle from that the 

test order to ensure reliability and accuracy. (At this time GC/MS or 
LCIMS are only confinnation method for marijuana, 
opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine.) 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 13



listed in Section 6.0. 

human 
precision and 

amounts of drug or drug metabolites spiked into a 
which are used to validate calibration of an instrument, 
of the and of the technician. 

- Delta-9-Tetrahydrocannabinol-9Carboxylic Acid is a metabolite delta-
9-tetrahydrocannabinol major psychoactive compound of marijuana) that is 
identified and in the GC/MS confirmation test manJuana 
metabolites. 

2.9 - An immunoassay 	 "negative" urine 
from 	 and positive specimens 

may use the Enzyme Multiple Immuno Technique. 

2.10 	 (3) standard deviations more than the mean 
result analyzing at least 12 negative unne and 
standard deviation of values for 

2.11 	 LIMIT QUANTITATION - The mean of the of 
12 unne and calculating the standard deviation 
for each specimen. 

2 	 MRO - A review officer who is a licensed physician responsible for 
receiving laboratory results generated by Travis County drug testing 
who knowledge of substance abuse disorders appropriate medical 
training to and evaluate test with medical history and 

biomedical information person who provided the 

INITIAL 

for further testing 

at 

other 

2.13 	 drug alcohol screens for County 
Sheriff's Travis County Drug Diversion not required by, or 
conducted DHHS or DOT guidelines. Non-DOT includes Non

pre-employment Drug Diversion Court Non-
DOT Pretrial Testing and HHSD/CPS. 

2.14 	 NON-DOT PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING - A test for 10 specified 
and/or metabolites. These tests will be administered before employment in 

safety-sensitive positions 	 the County Sheriff's The 
drugs to tested and their respective presumptive cut-off levels are 

2.15 NON-DOT DRUG DIVERSION COURT TESTING - These tests are of two 
Type each 5 specified drugs and/or their metabolites. Type I 

the Type I and Type II tests will as a condition of probation 
p'!",,·....,,·rI adjudication as ordered by Travis County Drug Diversion 

drugs to tested for and their respective presumptive cut-off 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 14



for both Type I and Type II tests are listed in Section 6.0. (on fee schedule items 7 
& 8). 

2.16 	 NON-DOT PRETRIAL SERVICES TESTING - These tests are of two types, 
Type I and Type II, each for five (5) specified drugs and/or their metabolites. 
Both the Type I and Type II tests will be administered as condition of pretrial 
releases ordered by the Travis County Pretrial Services department. The specific 
drugs to be tested for an their respective presumptive cut-off levels for both Type 
I and Type II tests are listed in section 6.0 (on fee schedule items 12 & 13) 

2.17 	 SECRETARY - The Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Secretary of 
Transportation in regards to issues which affect their respective drug testing 
programs. The Secretary may designate an individual from a recognized 
organization (to include a Contractor) to act on herlhis behalf in the 
implementation of these DOT or DHHS Guidelines. 

2.18 	 TRAVIS COUNTY ON-SITE TESTING LOCATIONS - Random drug and 
alcohol screening tests will be regularly conducted by the Contractor at the 
following Travis County locations: 

2.18.1 	 TNR Satellite One Office - 9301 Jolumy Morris Road, Austin, TX 78724 

2.18.2 	TNR Westside Service Center - 1405 FM 620 North, Austin, TX 78732 

2.18.3 	TNR Satellite Four Office - 5412 Lockhart Highway, Austin, TX 78744 

2.18.4 Travis County Jail- 1000 San Antonio Street, Austin, TX 78701 

2.18.5 Travis County Correctional Complex - 3614 Bill Price Road, Del Valle, 
TX 78617 

3.0 	 SCOPE OF WORK: 

3.1 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform the initial test for the detection of marijuana metabolites and cocaine 
metabolites on all urine specimens submitted, and additionally perform the initial 
test for opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines on individually requested 
specimens. 

3.2 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform GC/MS confirmation tests on all specimens that are screened positive by 
the initial test. 

3.3 	 The Contractor must provide a method for identifying interfering substances 
which prevent the initial test, such as contaminants, adulterants, or other masking 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 15



agents; and provide any special testing necessary to support the laboratory's 
results. 

3.4 	 The Contractor must conduct additional GC/MS testing to identify 6 
methamphetamine and Dextros and Levo when consistent with DHHS and/or 
DOT guidelines. 

3.5 	 All laboratory analysis will be provided in accordance with all DOT regulations 
and the DHHS procedures and 49CFR, Parts 40 and 382. 

3.6 	 Urinalysis will be conducted with an initial test to eliminate negative unne 
specimens from further analysis. 

3.7 Positive initial test results will be confirmed by conducting GCIMS method of 
analysis. 

3.8 	 The initial test and positive confirmatory test will be done by the same laboratory. 
Where a Travis County employee requests additional testing following a positive 
confirmatory test, such testing on another aliquot will be conducted by a different 
laboratory, certified by the DHHS, and as directed by the MRO. 

3.9 	 Remaining aliquots must be retained in frozen storage for 60 days after the date 
on which the laboratory acquires it. 

3.10 	 The Contractor must provide an MRO. 

3.11 	 Contractor will provide a scientific method for random selection of County 
commercial drivers for drug and alcohol testing. Data for input into the random 
selection data base will be provided by the County. Random lists must be 
generated and distributed to the County at least monthly or on a more frequent 
basis as requested. 

3.12 	 Contractor must provide to the County copies of records, and databases developed 
and maintained by the Contractor as part of the activities under the contract and 
must deliver them to the County quarterly or upon request. The records and 
databases must be provided both in paper form and in Excel electronic format. 

3.13 	 Contractor and subcontractors must accommodate the identification procedures 
required by the various county departments utilizing the Contractor services to 
verify identity of the person that gives the specimen. 

3.14 	 The Contractor is required to maintain and use a system of safeguarding County 
records which identify County personnel and any other information received in 
the performance of this contract, to ensure the highest level of privacy for County 
employees. Contractor shall provide all services required in a manner that would 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 16



comply with the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.c. 552a and Section 503 of Public Law 100
71, if Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws. 

The Contractor and its employees shall not hold any discussion or release any 
information or data pertaining to the Travis County Alcohol and Drug Testing 
Program without the prior written approval of the Coordinator. This restriction 
applies to all releases of information to the public, industry, or government 
organizations. 

3.15 	 The principal and other key personnel responsible for the project and named in 
the Contractor's proposal may not be removed from the program or have their 
time substantially decreased without prior approval of the County. Replacement 
personnel must have equivalent qualifications to the persons named and are 
subject to approval by the County. 

3.16 	 Contractor must, upon request, pick up urine specimens collected by the Travis 
County Sheriffs Office within two hours of a request at 1000 San Antonio Street, 
Austin, Texas 78701. 

3.17 	 THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT AND 
THE JUVENILE DRUG COURT will require Confirmation Test only. Initial 
screens are provided by the Departments personnel. Chain of custody procedures 
and forms must be provided to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT. THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT personnel will adhere to the Chain of Custody 
Procedures and deliver specimen to the Contractor for confirmation testing. 

Contractor shall report results to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT within 72 hours of delivery, by fax which must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 
the results and a certified copy ofthe chain of custody form. 

The Family Drug Treatment Court will occasionally require a Confirmation 
Test only. 

3.18 	 CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and 
each invoice shall contain the name of each Client served by CONTRACTOR, 
the type of Service provided by CONTRACTOR, the total tests provided by 
CONTRACTOR, the hourly fee assessed for each Service provided by 
CONTRACTOR (expert witness), the name of the Provider and the total amount 
of payment requested for each Client. Each invoice submitted by 
CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR's 
representative. A list of County Departments which invoices should be sent 
can be found in Part II, Section D, Attachment D. 

4.0 	 PROCEDURE MANUAL 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 17



4.1 	 The laboratory must have a procedure manual which includes the principles of 
each test; preparation of reagents, calibrators and controls; methods used to 
determine limit of detection, limit of quantization, and linearity; calibration 
procedures; derivation of results; linearity of methods; cutoff values, mechanisms 
for reporting results; controls; criteria for unacceptable specimens and results; 
remedial actions to be taken when the test systems are outside of acceptable 
limits; reagents and their expiration dates; and references. Copies of all 
procedures and dates on which they are in effect must be maintained as part of the 
manual. 

4.2 	 Laboratory calibrators and controls must be prepared with pure drug reference 
standards, whenever possible from two different sources, or from at least two 
different lot numbers. The labels on these reagents must contain the following 
information: preparer; content; concentration; date when received, opened, 
prepared; content and concentration; and expiration date. The analytical data used 
to certify calibrators, controls, and human negative urine must be available for 
inspection. 

4.3 	 Instruments and equipment: 

4.3.1 	 Volumetric pipettes and measuring devices must be calibrated and 
certified for accuracy or be checked by gravimetric, colorimetric, or other 
verification procedure. Automatic pipettes and dilutors must be checked 
for accuracy and reproducibility before being placed in service and 
checked periodically after that. 

4.3.2 	 There must be written procedures for certification of new instruments, 
procedures for instrument set-up and normal operation, a schedule for 
checking critical operating characteristics for all instruments, tolerance 
limits for acceptable function checks, and instructions for major trouble 
shooting and repair. Contractor must maintain records on preventive 
maintenance and make these records available upon request. 

4.4 	 There must be written procedures for the actions, remedial and otherwise, to be 
taken when systems are out of acceptable limits, or discrepancies or errors are 
detected. There must be documentation in the form of Memorandum for the 
Record that these procedures are followed and that all necessary corrective 
actions are taken. 

4.5 	 The laboratory must have at least one qualified, experienced, and established 
forensic toxicologist to provide expert testimony in Travis County legal, 
administrative or disciplinary proceedings involving urinalysis cases. 

5.0 	 SPECIFIC TESTING Specimens submitted must be initially tested for THC, BZE, 
opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines. When conducting either initial or confirmatory 
tests, every batch must contain an appropriate number of standards for calibrating the 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 18



instrumentation and a minimum of 10 percent controls. Both internal blind quality control 
and external blind performance test samples must be true blind samples and not 
discernible to laboratory analysts. 

6.0 	 INITIAL DRUG TEST PROCEDURES 

6.1 	 For the DOT program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the DOT program must be screened 
for the following 5 drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Cannabinoids (THC) 50 nglml 
Benzodiazephines (BZE) 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.2 	 For the Non-DOT pre-employment testing program, all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT pre-employment testing program must be screened for the following 10 
drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further 
confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug 
metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Methadone 300 nglml 
Ethanol 10 ngldl 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 19



The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.3 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT Program) Direct Observation 
testing - Type I program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court 
Type I testing program must be screened for the following 4 drugs and the results 
are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if 
the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above 
the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS 	or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.4 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT program) and the Juvenile 
Probation Department, pirect Observation testing - Type II program, all 
specimens must be screened using approved immunoassays that meet the 
requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following 8 drugs and the results are considered 
presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen 
shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the 
statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 20



6.6 

by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, ..... P'I'TH1.n 

drug(s) andlor 

The at which a """un"", occurs is subject to the 
DHHS or the as """",n,r..", in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these at other ""'"£'''''' 

the Non-DOT Juvenile and other miscellaneous Travis County 
Unobserved testing all specimens must be approved 
immunoassays meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 

commercial distribution. All initial tests must conducted 

custody 


under Non-DOT 
Unobserved testing program must screened for the following 8 
Ethanol and results are considered presumptive positive and subject to Mu~h"... 

confirmation testing specimen shows the presence 
metabolite(s) at or above statistically determined indicated below: 

1,000 nglml 
200 
200 

Cocaine 300 
Opiates nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

Non-Dot 

initial 

must be 
of the Food and 

Type I program, all 
that meet the 

distribution. 
tests must under procedures, as 

specified DHHS guidelines stated in Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under Non-DOT Type I testing 

must be following 
results are considered positive and subject to further 
testing the specimen the presence drugs (s) andlor drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 


300 

300 


Cannabinoids (THC) nglml 

and Ethanol the 

6.7 For the Non-Dot Pretrial Services Unobserved testing - Type II program, all 
must be approved meet 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 21



requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in PART II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Pretrial Services - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following four (4) drugs and Ethanol and the 
results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation 
testing if the specimen shows the presence of drugs (s) and/or drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

6.8 	 For the Non-DOT Countywide Unobserved testing - all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT Countywide Unobserved testing program must be screened for the following 
8 drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

7.0 	 CONFIRMATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

7.1 	 All confirmation testing must be performed usmg GC/MS, applying the 
procedures for each drug and/or metabolite(s) outlined in this section. All 
confirmation testing must be by quantitative analysis. Concentrations that exceed 
the linear region of the standard curve value may be diluted. If diluted, the 
dilution factor must be considered when calculating the actual drug content of the 
specimen. If the specimen is not diluted, the concentration of the specimen will 
be the actual determined value of the specimen. Limit of detection should be 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 22



7.3 

determined for GC/MS instrument. The limit of quantization should be 
determined for each GC/MS instrument. 

The Cannabinoids confirmation test must meet the additional following 

1 The target compound is 

7.2.2 A deuterated with a confirmed by the 
laboratory is the internal standard, and 

on a forensically accepted technique 
of in a concentration than or 

The run must include two blind 
n'-"'<oPt"'P 

on the GC/MS test. 
quality control specimens, one negative and one positive. 

(BZE) confirmation test employed must meet the 

.1 target compound is 

.2 	 A BZE with certified purity confirmed the laboratory 
is the internal standard, and 

.3 	 A positive is based on a forensically accepted GC/MS technique 
which indicates a concentration greater or 
equal to 150 ng/ml on the run must include two blind 
quality control one other positive. 

7.4 	 The amphetamines confirmation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.4.1 The compounds for amphetamines are amphetamine, 
methamphetamine, or both, 

7.4.2 	 A deuterated amphetamine and deuterated methamphetamine with 
purity confirmed by the laboratory is the standard, and 

A positive report is on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates the of amphetamine and/or methamphetamine at 
a concentration greater than, or equal 500 Any 
methamphetamine positive must indicate the of 
amphetamine greater than, or to, 200 ng/ml. Any methamphetamine 
positive sample must be to identify and quantitative the & L 

np'EU""'" and 
run must include two blind quality control one 

other 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 23



opiates confinnation test employed must meet following7.5 

1 	 target compound for are morphine and codeine, 

A deuterated morphine and codeine with certified purity 
confinned the laboratory is the standard, and 

7.5.3 positive report i,s based on a forensically accepted 
indicates presence morphine and/or 

concentration of 300 nglml or Any positive a 
concentration equal to or greater than 4,000 nglml must also be to 
detennine presence of 6-Monoaceytalmorphine at a concentration 
10 nglml or The run must two blind quality control 

one and the positive. 

7.6 	 phencyclidine (PCP) confinnation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.6.1 compound is PCP (Parent Drug), 

A deuterated phencyclidine analog with certified con finned the 
laboratory is internal standard, and 

7.6.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates of a concentration to 
or than 25 The run must include two blind quality control 
specimens, one negative the other positive. 

Barbiturates confinnation test employed 

7.8 	 Cocaine confinnation test employed 

Propoxyphene confinnation test employed 

Testing procedures for the DOT testing must follow the 
requirements specified in II, Section Paragraph 1.0. If exists 
between these requirements and the DOT Regulations as published in the 

Register, guidance in DOTs Regulations governs. 

8.0 
Contractor must be 

maintain certification in accordance with the applicable DHHS and DOT 
the Federal ,n,.... ' ...",...... 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 24



maintain 
maintain quality control testing; 

validity, reliability, accuracy, 

9.0 

management of drug 
overall 

9.1 	 The laboratory must have a qualified individual to assume professional, 
organizational, educational, and administrative responsibility 	 the laboratory's 

facility who is the 

individual must be ill for day-to-day 
laboratory even where another individual has 

an entire multi- specialty laboratory. 

9.3 must ensure that are personnel with adequate 
'"''',-,,,...... ''' to supervise and conduct work of drug 

laboratory. He or she must ensure the continued competency of laboratory 
personnel by documenting 	 training, work 

'and their 

9.4 	 individual must ensure the laboratory has a procedure manual which is 
complete, up-to-date, available for personnel performing tests, and followed by 
those personnel. procedure manual must be reviewed, signed, dated by 
this responsible individual whenever procedures are first placed into use or 
changed or a new individual assumes responsibility for management of the 
drug testing laboratory. of all procedures dates on which they are in 

must be maintained. 

9.5 	 This individual must maintain a 

test and test system. 

9.6 	 This individual must take all remedial actions to maintain satisfactory 
operation and performance of the laboratory in response to quality control 

not being within performance specifications, errors in result reporting or 
in analysis of results. This individual must ensure that 
sample results are not reported until all corrective actions have been and he 
or she can assure that test results provided are accurate reliable. 

9.7 obtain specimens under the Type I or Type II Programs for 
Diversion testing contractor is responsible for the 

collection of the urine The contractor must ensure that any 
factors any attempts on part of the being to 

manipulate the test do not contaminate the specimens. lab staff is used 
to observe individuals urine specimens, must have the necessary 

and 	 integrity of the urine tests. At a minimum, 
following 	 for the of and reporting 
testing 

reporting of all 
all and 

of 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 25



9.7.1 	 For storage of urinalysis supplies, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.1.1 store al1 urinalysis supplies in a secure area with access limited to 
employees involved in the collection process; and 

9.7.1.2 prevent client access to the secure storage areas. 

9.7.2 For observation of urine specimens, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.2.1 secure the collection area; 

9.7.2.2 provide gender appropriate 	 staff who shall be present in the 
lavatory to observe individuals giving the urine specimens; and 

9.7.2.3 ensure that the staff observing individuals giving urine specimens 
have adequate training to safeguard the collection process from 
fraudulent attempts to alter the urine specimens and/or 
envirorunental factors that would affect the validity of the test 
results. 

10.0 	 TEST VALIDATION The laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have a 
designated certifying scientist who reviews al1 pertinent data and quality control results to 
attest to the validity of the laboratory's test reports. A laboratory may designate more 
than one person as a certifying scientist. The certifying scientist(s) may be any employee 
who is qualified to be responsible for day-to-day management or operation of the drug 
testing laboratory. 

11.0 	 DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS AND SUPERVISION OF ANALYSTS The 
laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have an individual to be responsible for day
to-day operations and to supervise the technical analysts. This individual must have at 
least a bachelor's degree in the chemical or biological sciences or medical teclmology or 
equivalent. This individual must have training and experience in the theory and practice 
of all methods and procedures used in the laboratory, a thorough understanding of quality 
control practices and procedures; a thorough understanding of the review, interpretation, 
and reporting of test results; knowledge of chain-of-custody procedures; and experience 
providing prompt remedial actions to be taken in response to test results out of acceptable 
range or detecting aberrant test or quality control results. 

12.0 	 OTHER PERSONNEL Other teclmicians or non teclmical staff must have the 
necessary training and skills for the tasks assigned. 

13.0 	 WITNESSES 

13.1 	 Contractor persolU1el may be required to appear personally at administrative 
hearings to explain their laboratory procedures. The Contractor must have at least 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 26



one person available in each of the following categories on a full-time basis to 
testify at administrative hearings: 

13.l.1 	 Category A: An expert in forensic toxicology drug testing issues who is 
capable of discussing Contractor's laboratory procedures and who has the 
following minimum qualifications: 

13.l.l.1 	 Certification as a laboratory director by the State In 

forensic or clinical laboratory toxicology; or 

13 .1.l.2 A Ph.D. in one of the natural sciences with an adequate 
undergraduate education In biology, chemistry, 
pharmacology, or toxicology, 

13.1.1.3 	 Training and experience comparable to a Ph.D. in one of 
the natural sciences, such as a medical or scientific degree 
with additional training and laboratory/research experience 
in biology, chemistry, and pharmacology or toxicology, 

13.1.1.4 	 Appropriate experience in analytical forensic toxicology 
including experience with the analysis of biological 
material for drugs of abuse, and 

13.1.1.5 	 Appropriate training and/or experience In forensic 
applications of analytical toxicology, e.g., publications, 
court testimony, research concerning analytical toxicology 
of drugs of abuse, or other factors which qualify the 
individual as an expert witness in forensic toxicology. 

13.1 .2 Category B: A person fully knowledgeable on the procedural aspects of 
urine drug testing at the Contractor's laboratory. 

13.1.3 	 Category C: A processing technician who is a qualified and trained 
laboratory technician that handles testing of Travis County specimens on a 
day-to-day basis. 

14.0 	 TRAINING The laboratory must have a manual and maintain records reflecting the 
training and certification of personnel, describing the procedures for initial and annual 
certifications. Procedures must also be in place which describe the decertification 
process and any remedial training required for recertification. 

15.0 	 FILES Laboratory personnel files must include resume of training and experience; 
certification or license, if any; references; job descriptions, records of performance 
evaluation and advancement; incident reports; and results of tests which establish 
employee competency for the position he or she holds, such as test for color blindness, if 
appropriate. ' 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 27



16.0 

16.1 

Any testing used by Contractor this contract must 
have a quality assurance which all the 
process including but not limited to specimen acquisition, accessioning, 
ali quoting, chain-of-custody, and reporting of results, initial and 
confirmatory testing, and validation analytical procedures. Quality assurance 
procedures must be implemented, and reviewed to monitor the conduct 
of each the process of for 

16.2 LABORATORY QUALITY CONTROL REQUIREMENTS INITIAL 

16.2.1 analytical run of specimens to screened must include: 

16.2.1.1 Urine certified to contain no drug, 

16.2.1.2 specimens fortified with known standards, and 

1 1.3 controls with drug or at or near 
presumptive positive level. 

In addition, with batch samples a 
must be included to ensure and the linearity 

number of "....uu.... 

the assay 
over in the area cutoff. acceptable 
are obtained for known standards, those values will be used to 
calculate sample data. Implementation procedures to ensure that 
carryover not contaminate the testing an individual's specimen 
must be documented. A minimum of 10 percent of all test samples must 

quality control Laboratory blind quality control 
prepared from spiked urine specimens determined concentration must 
be included in each run and should appear as normal samples to laboratory 
analysts. percent of run, with minimum of at least one 
sample, must the laboratory's own blind quality control samples. 

CONFIRMATION TEST: 

run for the GC/MS will contain no more than and The 
run must contain a minimum of urine quality control specimens: one 
certified standard at concentration, one certified sample at 40% of cut
off, one negative specimen, and one positive 
specimen at or near the cutoff. Two of the four must 
blind. The and of must periodically 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 28



documented. Implementation of procedures to ensure that carryover does not 
contaminate the testing of an individual's specimen must also be documented. 
The calibrators must quantitative wi~hin 10% of the target value when the 
calibrators are certified, as required by DHHS and DOT guidelines. The 
concentration of all quality control specimens must assay within + or - 20% of 
their certified value. For only the Electron Impace GC/MS methods, the retention 
time of the drug must be within 2% of the extracted sample at the cutoff 
concentration and the ion ratios must be within + or - 20% of the extracted sample 
at the 	cutoff. The calculated concentration of the negative quality control 
specimens must not exceed the established limit of detection of the instrument for 
the drug being tested. All quality control samples must be within the acceptable 
range and meet all chromatographic criteria with all ion ratios within + or - 20% 
before reporting any sample results in that run. The chromatography of an 
internal standard from the negative specimen must meet the retention time and ion 
ratio requirements. 

17.0 	 SPECIMEN HANDLING AND RECEIVING REQUIREMENTS 

17.1 	 The Contractor must utilize an appropriate system to ship the specimens, if 
required . If not shipped via the U.S. Postal Service, then the Contractor must 
ensure that there is sufficient security to ensure the physical security and integrity 
of the specimen, the chain-of-custody, and shipping container. 

17.2 	 The Contractor must provide specimen kits containing a kit box, urine specimen 
container, specimen bottle seal, protective seal, label, sealable plastic bag to hold 
the container, and foam insert. The urine containers must hold 100 mI., be made 
of inert materials that will not absorb or adsorb drugs, or drug metabolites, and 
meet DHHS and DOT standards. The cap liner must be made of inert material 
that will not absorb or adsorb drugs or drug metabolites from the specimen. The 
containers' temperature strip must be inside (unless prohibited by DHHS or DOT 
regulation) and be occluded. The occlusion must show tampering and allow for 
ready viewing by authorized persOlU1eI. The shipping containers must at least 
meet U.S. Postal Service standards and be pre-addressed and prepaid for shipment 
to the Contractor's laboratory. The Contractor must ship with the specimen kits at 
least one chain-of-custody forms for each specimen kit. 

17.3 	 Upon receipt of specimens, the Contractor must record the condition of the 
shipping container, including information about damage in shipment, evidence of 
suspected specimen tampering, or other unusual conditions. The Contractor must 
compare information on specimen bottles to the information on the accompanying 
chain-of-custody forms. Records must be kept of the individuals that perform 
these checks. A Discrepancy Report must be generated, in accordance with Part 
II, Section B, Paragraph 21.3, and must be used to record discrepancies and 
provided to the office that collected the specimen. 

18.0 	 SECURITY OF LABORATORY AND SPECIMENS 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 29



18.1 	 The identity and integrity of the urine specimens must be maintained within the 
laboratory. All specimens must be maintained in a secure area with limited and 
controlled access throughout all phases of processing and storage from receipt to 
final disposal. 

18.2 	 Drug testing laboratories must be secure at all times. They must have in place 
sufficient security measures to control access to the premises and to ensure that no 
unauthorized personnel handle specimens or gain access to the laboratory 
processes or to areas where records are stored. Access to these secured areas 
must be limited to specifically authorized individuals whose authorization is 
documented. With the exception of personnel authorized to conduct inspections 
on behalf of Federal agencies for which the laboratory is engaged in urine testing 
or on behalf of the Secretary, any person not employed by the Contractor must be 
escorted at all times. Documentation of individuals accessing these areas, dates, 
and time of entry and purpose of entry must be maintained and kept available for 
audit. 

18.3 	 Laboratories must use chain-of-custody procedures to maintain control and 
accountability of specimens from receipt through the following processes: 

18.3.1 	 completion of testing, 

18.3.2 reporting results, 

18.3.3 during storage, and 

18.3.4 final disposition. 

18.4 	 The date and purpose must be documented on a chain-of-custody form each time 
a specimen is handled or transferred, and every individual in the chain must be 
identified. Accordingly, authorized technicians must be responsible for each 
urine specimen or aliquot in their possession and must sign and complete chain
of-custody forms for these specimens or aliquots as they are received. 

19.0 	 RETENTION OF SPECIMENS 

19.1 	 Specimens that do not receive an initial test within 7 days of arrival at the 
laboratory must be placed in secure refrigeration units. Temperatures must not 
exceed 6 degrees centigrade. An emergency power generator must be available in 
case of prolonged power failure to maintain the stability and integrity of 
specimens. 

19.2 	 All positive specimens must be placed in a limited access long-term, frozen 
storage area for a minimum of one year, and temperature must be maintained at 
20 degrees centigrade. Within this one year period Travis County may request the 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 30



laboratory to retain the specimen for an additional period of time; but, if no such 
request is received the Contractor must provide a list of those specimens and 
request permission of the Alcohol and Drug Testing Program Coordinator (the 
"Coordinator") to destroy the specimens. The Coordinator shall approve 
destruction if there is no pending litigation. If there is a legal challenge, the 
Contractor is required to maintain the specimens for an indefinite period. 

20.0 	 DRUG TEST RESULTS REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

20.1 	 The report must identify the drugs/metabolites tested for, whether positive or 
negative, and the presumptive positive level for each, the base specimen number 
assigned; the Contractor's laboratory number, and the test subject's Social Security 
number. The report must include a certified copy of the original chain-of-custody 
and must be signed by the certifying scientist. The results (positive and negative) 
for all specimens submitted on the same chain-of-custody form must be reported 
back to the MRO at the same time. 

20.2 	 The laboratory must report as negative all specimens which are negative on the 
initial test or negative on the confirmatory test. Only specimens confirmed 
positive for a specific drug or class of drug are reported positive for that specific 
drug. 

20.3 	 The MRO may request quantization of test results from the laboratory, and the 
laboratory must provide quantization of test results. 

20.4 	 Results must be transmitted in a secured manner so as to ensure confidentiality of 
the information. If the County approves a manner as one that is sufficiently 
secure, the laboratory may transmit results to the MRO by various electronic 
means. Results cannot be provided by telephone under any circumstances. The 
laboratory must ensure the security of the data transmission and limit access to 
any data transmission, storage, and retrieval system. 

20.5 	 The laboratory must send only to the MRO a certified copy of the original chain
of-custody form signed by the individual responsible for day-to-day management 
of the drug testing laboratory or the individual for attesting to the validity of the 
test results. 

20.6 	 The Contractor shall report to Travis County, by fax, Non-DOT negative or 
positive results of initial tests within twenty-four (24) hours from the date of 
collection. Fax notification of negative and positive initial test results must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing a certified copy of the chain-of
custody form. 

The Contractor shall provide to Travis County Pretrial Services a list of all 
Pretrial Services clients (individuals) who at the end of the business day did not appear at 
the collection facility to submit a sample as referred by the agency. 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 31



response to 
longer due to circumstances which are nfr,,",,'''' 

Fax notification of positive initial test must 

p.m. 

shall report to 
hours from if collection is 

72 (seventy-two) hours 4:00 p.m. by fax. 
notification of negative initial test results must followed with notification via 

regular mail containing the certification of the negative results and a certified 
copy the chain-of custody form. 

"',...>,.,.",.. shall to County confirmatory 

tests within 72 (seventy-two) and 96 (ninety-six) 

collection fax, on the 

cases reporting 


federal regulations. 
followed notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 

positive results a certified of chain-of custody form. 

21.0 

21.1 	 In appropriate DHHS and/or DOT Guidelines, 
must send to County (listed on 
monthly summary report. Initial and confirmation data must be included from 
test results reported within that month. Normally this summary must be 
forwarded by registered mail not more than 14 calendar days the end the 
month covered by the summary. following 
information: 

21.1.1 Initial test reports must include following information: 

21 1.1.1 	 Number of 

21.1.1 	 Number 

21.1.1.3 	 of manJuana 
metabolites, cocaine metabolites, opiate metabolites, 
phencyclidine, and amphetamines 

21.1 	 Confilmatory rpY"'T1rC must the following information: 

21.1 	 Number of OJ"..... uu"u.;} received for confirmation, and 

21.1 	 of confirmed for: 
metabolite, cocaine metabolite, morphine, codeine, 
phencyclidine, amphetamine, and methamphetamine. 

a 

and 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 32



21.2 	 On a monthly basis the Contractor must supply to the Travis County Coordinator, 
the following information on specimens completed since the last report: 

21.2.1 	 Identification number, 

21.2.2 Laboratory Accession Number, 

21.2.3 	Date Specimen Received in Laboratory, 

21.2.4 Drugs Screened For, 

21.2.5 Confirmation Tests Conducted, 

21.2.6 Final Report (Positive or Negative), 

21.2.7 Date Report Sent to Travis County, and 

21.2.8 Specimen Turnaround Time. 

21.3 	 No later than the 10th working day after the end of the calendar month, the 
Contractor must submit a discrepancy report to Travis County 
Departments/Offices (listed on Attachment 5) with the following data: 

21.3.1 	 Reporting Month; 

21.3.2 For each 	 submitting location sending specimens during the reporting 
month, the total number of specimens received; and 

21.3.3 	 For each department submitting specimens during the reporting month, the 
total number of specimens discarded, broken down into the following 
categories: 

BU - Box unsealed or no signature or date on box seal 
NHHS - No DHHS chain-of-custody-form 
DOT - No DOT chain-of-custody form 
ISSN - Incomplete social security number 
ISPN - Incomplete base specimen number 
NCOC - No chain-of-custody form 
QNS - Volume in bottle is less than 30 ml 
LSSN 	- Social Security number on specimen label does not match the 

social security on the chain-of-custody form 
LAX - Laboratory Accident 

22.0 	 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR DHHS AND DOT DRUG TESTING 
PROGRAM 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 33



must be accounted 
(listed on 

Attachment 5). 

23.0 

24.0 	 Unless otherwise instructed by the DHHS in writing, all 
to a given urine specimen must be retained by the drug testing 

laboratory a minimum 2 years. Upon request from Travis County, the 
must provide any information or documents pertaining to procedures used at its 
laboratory for performance of contract. of procedures chain-of
custody, protocols, quality control, procedures manual 
County reserves the to Contractor to a procedure 
is not consistent with current DHHS or DOT 

reporting. 

25.0 	 GENERAL LITIGATION SUPPORT Depositions and interrogatories of Contractor 
personnel must by Contractor in conjunction with performed 
under this contract when requested by Travis County. County will endeavor, 
where feasible to limit these requests to written interrogatories. Contractor must 
establish procedures to insure timely and appropriate responses to requests for litigation 
support packages, discovery requests, and other inquiries. Where testimony is required in 
support drug testing the Contractor must provide witnesses as required. The 

must also provide expert testimony in support information contained in the 
Litigation Support Package, when requested. 

26.0 

26.1 	 Contractor must provide within ten (l0) business documentary 
in form a litigation support to used by County at an 
administrative proceeding in conjunction with testing performed under this 
contract. 

litigation support IJ~~'''~'_'' must consist of the following: 

26.2.1 	 Certification and authentication by appropriate laboratory 
containedhaving custody of the original documents that the 

the litigation support package are true and accurate copies of the 
documents maintained by laboratory as part regularly 

26.2.2 Laboratory Report form; 

26.2.3 Explanatory Affidavit, to include test 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 34



26.2.4 All data from 	 initial test results including all standards controls run 
with the 

All data including chromatographs and quantization 
GC/MS including and run with 

26.2.6 Copies all chain-of-custody documents; and 

26.2.7 Summary qualifications 	 all personnel who appear on the chain-of
custody documents. 

the 

27.0 

Contractor must provide containers to transport all from Travis 
County. must provide transportation to the 
laboratory. 

The must provide all U.S. Postal approved packaging material 
for the transportation unne other of transportation is 
chosen, appropriate packaging material must provided by the Contractor. 
The shipping costs First Class shipping of the specimens from the to the 
laboratory shall prepaid by the Contractor. 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 35



ATTACHMENT B 


4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 36



ARCpoint Labs of Austin response to RFS NO. 1208-005-ML 
DRUG and ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES 

PART II, SECTION C, FEE SCHEDULE 

DOT Testing UNOBSERVED Cost per Test/Service 

In Clinic: 

1. Split sample urine drug screen 

(Cannabinoids, Benzodiazepines, Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines) 

2. Breath alcohol test 

On Site: (minimum of 3 $5 discount per test over 3 tests at same location) 

3. Split sample urine drug screen 

(Cannabinoids, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines) 

4. Breath alcohol test 

NON-DOT Pre-Employment 

5. (Amphetamines, Barbiturates, Benzodlazepines, Cocaine, Opiates ~ 29.50 

Phencyclidine, (annablnoids, Propoxyphene, Methadone and Ethanol) 

per Visit) 6. Provider Travels to to perform 

NON-DOT (Direct) OBSERVED Drug Diversion Court "SHORT" Program 

7. TYPE I - (Amphetamines, Cannabinoids, Opiates) 

8. TYPE 11- (Amphetamines, Methadone, 

Phencyclidine, Cannablnoids, Propoxyphene) 

NON-DOT Countywide UN-OBSERVED 

9. plus Alcohol (Amphetamines, 

Opiates, Phencyclidine, Cannablnoids, Propoxyphene, Methadone plus Ethanol) 

10. Expedited Results (4 

11. Results (within 24 hours) 

NON-DOT UNOBSERVED 

and "''''..,·''' ....,.,112. TYPE I (Amphetamines, Cannabinoids, 

13. TYPE II (Barbiturates, (annabinoids, Opiates, 

14. (Amphetamines, 

HHSD/Chlld Protective Services Testing OBSERVED 

Barbiturates, pnlmc:vcl,lalrle Phropoxyphene, Ethanol, MRO service GCfMS 

Confi rmation) 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 37



ARCpoint Labs of Austin response to RFS NO. 1208-00S-ML 
DRUG and ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES 

MISCELLANEOUS TESTING 

15. Environmental testing for drug production/consumption 

16. Hair Testing (S-Panel) 


(S-Panel Opiates) 


(7-Panel) 


(12-Panel) 

17. Oral Fluid T~~,"__ (6-Panel) 

18. Nail Testing (5-Panel) 


(7-Panel) 


(9-Panel) 


19. Drug Patch 

20. Testing 

21. K2/Spice (Synthetic Marijuana) Testing (Instant) 


lab-Based of c\lnj~,",""i"'" Marijuana) 


22. Bath Salt Testing 

23. Amblen Testing 

CONFIRMATION TESTING 

21. Amphetamine Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 

22. Barbiturate Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 

23. Benzodiazepines (BZE) Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 

24. Cocaine Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 

25. Opiate Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 

26. Phencyclidine Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 

27. Cannabinoids (THe) Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 


28 Phropoxyphene Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 


29. Ethanol (Alcohol) 

30. 2nd (GC/MS) & another LAB and MRO 

$ 8S/room 

$ 67.00 

S 18.50 

$110.00 

S 17.00 

$ 95.00 

$ 24.00 

S24.00 

$ 24.00 

$ 24.00 

$ 58.00 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 38



ARCpoint Labs of Austin response to RFS NO. 1208-00S-ML 
DRUG and ALCOHOL TESTING 

TRAVEL TO PERFORM ON-CALL TESTING 

31. Between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday through Friday (non-Holiday 

weekdays) or Holidays and weekends 24 hour emergency on-site response 

EXPERT WITNESS 

32. Expert Witness (Hourly Rate) $ 3oo.00/Hour 

MISCELLANEOUS REQUIREMENTS FOR "SHORT PROGRAM" 

33. SPANISH Speaking Interpreter while Center Open $1S.00/hr 

Per Hour Rate oel:WE!en the of 7:00 - 6:00 (for Short 


Program/Drug Diversion Court Only) 


34. Notification via daily sign-in faxed to the following two 

departments ONLY: SHORT Program/Drug Diversion Court and Pretrial Services 

Prrlar;::II"n Daily cost for each department. 

Whenever open, will have both required qualified man and required qualified woman for direct 

observed on their respective counterparts? I!l Yes DNo 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMSHA) Certified laboratory Used? 

[!] Yes DNo 

location: ~~:12.!:!!:.!!..!:.iil2....:~!&....:ill!...tl~w.!.L""!"s:~W~::t...1~!.!A!!!.:..R!:!:l.Q!:m::...J.i!;!.£~g:~!:.£J2!!!.9::.i 

Location, contact person, number and address of all available clinics and hours of service at 

list kind of identification 

card or drivers license, employee badge for county employees, student identification card from a college 

List method of reporting to client: ===.:.!.-"'-"-==.:..;"'-'-"=-.!.:..:===-='-""'-'-'-=:...=.:..;=:...:...:"'-"'-'-""'-..:::::.!>.===->='-"-'=~ 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 39



ATTACHMENT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 


Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have, 
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of 
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on 
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate 
insurance options shall be imposed as follows: 

I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors' Insurance. 

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities 
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning 
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s): 

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the 
duration of the Contract. 

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating 
of B+ VIII or higher. 

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of 
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract. 

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both 
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis 
County contract number and all endorsements by number. 

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall 
be considered primary for all claims. 

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. 

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements. 

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and 
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded. 

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during any term of this 
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced. 
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and 
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates ofInsurance. 

J. Insurance coverage speci fied in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit 
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s). 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 40



3. ~,~~~~~ 
of 

H. Specific Requirements 

A. 

1. 	 Coverage be with outlined Texas Workers' 
Compensation Act. 

2. Employers' Liability limits are: 

$500,000 bodily injury each accident 

$500,000 bodily injury disease 

$500,000 policy limit 


shall to of Texas and include following 
County City of Austin: 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) day of Cancellation (Form 420601) 

B. 

1. Minimum 
$500,000* 
$1,000,000 

and B a 

2. 	 The shall contain or be endorsed as 
a. 	 Blanket contractual liability this Contract 
b. 	 Independent Contractor 

3. 	 The Policy shaH include following endorsements favor Travis County 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Form 2404) 

Thirty (30) Notice of Cancellation 


c. 	 Travis County named as additional insured 

c. 

for is provided, coverage all and 
hired 

any form of 
shall maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence 

1. 

2. 	 Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor ofTravis County 
a. 	 Waiver Subrogation (Form 2046A) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) Notice Cancellation (Form 0202A) 
c. 	 as additional insured (Form IB) 

t Alternative Insurance Requirement 
NO transportation of any is provided, and use of a motor is strictly limited to to 

from work or work evidence Personal Policy coverage with limits of 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 41



$ 100,000/$300,000/$50,000 
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance 

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance 

1. Coverage shall be provided with a mImmum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000 
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and 
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services 
under this Contract. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of 
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of 
coverage and the extended reporting dates. 

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor's professional liability insurance 
shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their 
insurance policy. 

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance 

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than 
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the 
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first. 
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract 
expires or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date. 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 42



__ 

ATTACHMENT l> 

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
STATE OF TEXAS} 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS} 

Date: 11 Ot+f2
Name of Mfiant: ~GHi {Z, ~~~ 
Title of Affiant:------lB~IJ..~~:.Jl.;.!..lo,J~.~:..:!."...L.+t--::------..__.-,______--~--
Business Name of~ror:C.A- I Ar!.,\ or AHA.sr,rJ 
County of Offeror:,~\~e~A.>L\Jl....:\s.,,----_______________ 
Affiant on oath swears that the fol1owing statements are true: 

1. 	 Mfiant is authorized by Offeror to make this affidavit for Offeror. 
2. 	 Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit. 
3. 	 Affiant can read the English language. 
4. 	 Offeror has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this Request for 

Services which is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit A. 
S. 	 Mfiant has personally read Exhibit A to this Mfidavit. 
6. 	 Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit A with whom Offeror is 

doing u ness or has done business during the 365 day period immediately before the date of 
thi vit whose name is not disclosed in Exhibit B. 

v 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by ~\~ ~ on ----<.J......V+/-'-id-....L...-_--', 20(1.,--· 

Notary Public, State ofTexas ".-. 	 RRIPA 
~ "'-:.~~~~i',, DAVID H. ZAMA 

c-==:~ .~ ~ f~'X.':-~ Notary Public. Stale of Texas 
---~~_-.l-----=O::--' ~ J.-,~!,,~ My Commission Expires 

_ <;'~~io;,""~$~ MOrch 31, 2013 
---  ~~."~/ln~\\\~~~~;.~~~~ 

Typed or printed name of notary 	 My commission expires: 

])0. J,cA Z.Wf'dfl'bh 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 43

http:Affiant:------lB~IJ..~~:.Jl


November 2, 2012 

CURRENT 
Name of Individual Name of Business 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe 


Executive Assistant .......................................... "....... Bro\Vn 

Executive Assistant ............................................ " ..... Melissa Velasquez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Josie Z. Zavala 

Executive Assistant... ... " .... " .............. " ...... " .... " ... " ... Cheryl Aker 


Precinct I .......................................... Ron Davis 

Precinct 1 Annie Davis 


Executive Assistant. ............................................... " .. Deone Wilhite 

Executive Assistant. ................................................... Felicitas Chavez 


Precinct 2 ......................................... Sarah Eckhardt 

Precinct 2 .... " .............. " ..... Kurt Sauer 


Executive Assistant ... " ........ " .................................... Loretta Farb 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Joe Hon 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Peter Einhorn 


Precinct 3 .......................................... Karen Huber 

Precinct 3 
 Leonard Huber 


Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Garry Brown 

Executive Assistant. .. " ... "." ... " .................................. Julie Wheeler* 

Executive Assistant. ............................... " .... "."",, ..... Jacob Cottingham 

COmnliS!HOller Precinct 4 ...... " ........... " .. " ................. Margaret Gomez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Edith Moreida 

Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Norma Guerra 

County Treasurer ....................................................... Dolores Ortega-Carter 

County Auditor ......................................................... Nicki Riley* 

County Administrative ............................. Vacant 

County & Leslie Browder* 


l::m:efj~.en<:y Services .................... Danny Hobby 
l::xlecultlvle, HealthlHuman Services ............... Sherri E. Fleming 

Justice & Public 
TNR ........................................... Steven M. Manilla, P.E.* 


............... Jefferies 

............................... EI Khoury, M.S., P.E. 


Interim ChiefInformation Officer.............. ........... .... Acevedo 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Rod Bro\VTI 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Walter Lagrone 


Steve Capelle 

Executive ....................... James Collins 


Land Use Division ...................................... Tom Nuckols 

Land Use Division ..................................... Julie Joe 

Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore 

Transactions Division ................................ John Hille 

Transactions Division ................................ Vacant 


Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Elizabeth Winn 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Mary Etta Gerhardt 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Barbara Wilson 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Jim Connolly 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Tenley Aldredge 

Director, Health Services Division ............................ Beth Devery 

Attorney, Health Services Division ........................... Pre rna Gregerson 


...................................................... Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 


Records & Communications ........ Steven Hn'lh"ra 

............................................ David Escamilla 

Seton 

Daffer McDaniel, LLP 

Retired 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 44



Assistant Purchasing Agent .. .. .... ....... .......... .... .... ..... Marvin Brice, CPPB 

Assistant Purchasing Agent .......... ... .......... ........ ..... ... Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ....... ..... ... ......... ...... CW Bruner, CTP 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ... ..... ........ ..... .. .. .... ... Lee Perry 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. .... ... ..... ......... ..... Jason Walker 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ... ... .. .. ..... ..... ... ..... .. .... Richard Villareal 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... .. .. .. ... .. ........ ......... Patrick Strittmatter* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ .. .. .. ... .. ...... .. ....... Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....... ....... .... ......... .... ... Scott Wilson, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .. .. .. ..... ... ........ .......... Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ....... ................... Loren Breland, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ ...... ....... .. ........... John E. Pena, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ................................ Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ..... ... .. .......... ...... Angel Gomez* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ... ..... ..... ... ............. Shannon Pleasant, CTPM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ... ... .... .... .... ................ David Walch 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .................. ........ Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ....... ... ........... ........ Nancy Barchus, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ................. .. ...... .. ....... Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .... .... .................. Sydney Ceder* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. ..... ...... .. ... .... ..... Vacant 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .......... .......................... Jayne Rybak, CTP* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 11.. .. ... .... ................. .. .. .... L. Wade Laursen* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .. ... .. .. ............ ..... ... .. ..... Sam Francis* 

HUB Coordinator ...... ........... ... .. ..... .. ..... .... ............. .. . Sylvia Lopez 

HUB Specialist... ........ ..... ................. .. .. .. ...... .. ........ .. . Betty Chapa 

HUB Specialist ..... ... .. ..... .. .. .......... ... .. ..... ..... .. ..... ..... .. Jerome Guerrero 

Purchasing Business Analyst.. ............ .. .. .. .......... ... .... Scott Worthington 

Purchasing Business Analyst .. ......... .. ........ .. .............. Jennifer Francis 


FORMER EMPLOYEES 

Name ofIndividual 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ......... .. .... .... .. ......... Diana Gonzalez .................... ...... ... ... .. ........ 12116112 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. .. ....................... Elizabeth Corey, C.P .M.......... .. ... ...... ......... 03114113 

Attorney, Transactions Division .. .. . .. ......... ..... .. ......... Tamara Annstrong .................. .. ..... .. ........... 03/30113 

Executive Assistant... ..... ... ............. .. .......... .. ............. Lori Duarte ....................................... .. .... ... 06115113 

ChiefInforma tion Officer. .... ........... .. .. ..... .. ...... .. ...... Joe Harlow .................. ................ .. ............. 07/31113 

County Auditor ........... .. .... .. .................................... Susan Spataro, CPA .................................... 08/31113 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... ... .... .... .... .. ........... George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P ....... .. ...... 09/26/ 13 


* - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 45



2 
DISCLOSURE 

acknowledges Offeror is doing or has business the 365 day 
period immediately to the date on which contract is with the following key 
contracting persons and warrants that are the only key contracting persons: 

no one IS warrants Offeror is not doing and has not done 
business during 365 day immediately prior to on which Request for 

response is made with any key contracting person. 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 46



ATTACHMENT E 


4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 47



shall not 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY 

EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 


Federal Executive Order 12549 Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has 
a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary 
exclusion. Each covered contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors. 

In this certification "contractor" refers to both contractor and subcontractor; "contract" refers to both contract and subcontract. 

By and submitting this celrtilllcllti4~n, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms: 

1. 	 The certification herein below is a material of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous in addition 
to other remedies available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including 
and/or debarment. 

2. 	 The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any 
time the potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason 
of changed circumstances. 

3. 	 The words "covered contract," " "suspended," " "participant," " "principle," "proposal," and 
excluded," as used in this certification have based upon materials in the Definitions and 


sections of federal rules Executive Order 12549. 

4. 	 The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it 

enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
palrtl(:lp,atU)n in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travi" 

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? __YES 

5. 	 The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, 	 Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts "without 

in all covered subcontracts"; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts. 
6. 	 A contractor may upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, or 

VOluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a 
minimum, obtain certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each subcontract's initiation and upon each renewal. 

7. 	 Nothing contained in all the shall be construed to establishment of a system of records in order to render in 
good faith the certification required by this certification document The knowledge and information of a contractor is not 

to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the 
8. 	 for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract 

a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, 
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency andlor Travis County may 
pursue available andlor debarment. 

course of business 

or voluntarily excluded from palrtlclp,ltIo!n 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING UI:..D&:run "'''''''J'l,.INELIGIBILlTY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION 
FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement to the covered contractor/potential contractor: 

D 111e contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is 
debarred, proposed for debarment, declared or voluntarily excluded from 

any federal or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County. 

The contractor is unable to to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, 
the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make 
certification. Attach the explanation(s) to this certification. 

Name of Contractor 	 Vendor 1.0. or Social Security No. 

of Authorized Representative Date 	 Name & Title of Authorized 

4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 48



ATTACHMENT F 


PROPOSAL 


4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 49



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 50



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 51



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 52



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 53



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 54



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 55



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 56



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 57



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 58



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 59



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 60



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 61



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 62



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 63



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 64



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 65



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 66



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 67



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 68



4400001190 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 69



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
A

 

 

 

 

PHAMA

 

 

Trav

ROFE
AGRE

ATECH 

DRUG 

CON

vis Co

ESSION
EMEN

BE

TRAVI

LABOR

AND AL

NTRACT

ounty 

NAL S
NT/CO
ETWEEN

IS COUN

AND 

RATORIE
 

FOR 

LCOHOL
 

T NO. 44

Purc

SERV
ONTR

NTY 

ES & DIA

L SERVI

40000119

hasin

VICES 
RACT 

AGNOST

ICES 

91 

ng Off

 

TICS 

fice 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

1.0 Definitions......................................................................................................pg. 1 
2.0 Term ...............................................................................................................pg. 1 
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities  ........................................................................pg. 2 
4.0 Compensation, Billing and Payment ..............................................................pg. 3 
5.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access .............................................................pg. 5 
6.0 Modifications/Amendments  ..........................................................................pg. 6 
7.0 Other Provisions.............................................................................................pg. 6 
            Approvals .......................................................................................................pg. 11 
 

 
Attachments 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Services & Performance Measures…………………… pg. 12  
Attachment B – Fee Schedule……………………………………………………   pg. 36 
Attachment C – Insurance Requirements………………………………………….pg. 40 
Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit including: ………………………………….......pg. 43 
 Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons………………………………pg. 44 
 Exhibit 2 – Disclosure ……………………………………………………. .pg. 46 
Attachment E – Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
                          Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts……………………  pg. 47 

 Attachment F – Proposal ……………………………………………………… …pg. 49 
  



    
 

 

II.  DEFINITIONS 
 

1.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

 In this Agreement, 
 

1.1 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court.  
 

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.  
  

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor. 
 

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and/or Contractor.  
 

 1.5   “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean: 

 

 1.5.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more 

than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or property 

interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

 

 1.5.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, or goods or otherwise creating or having in 

existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

 

but does not include: 

 

  1.5.3 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a “Key Contracting Person” at a  posted, 

published, or marked price available to the general public; 

 

1.5.4 Any financial services product sold to a “Key Contracting Person” for personal, family or 

household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated and individuals 

with similar risks as determined by “Contractor” in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 

1.5.5 A transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 

“Contractor” if “Contractor” is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or other 

representative of  “Contractor” who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have 

known about the Contract. 

 

 1.6 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavit   

 attached to this Contract and marked Attachment D. 

  

2.0 TERM 
 

2.1 Initial Term.  The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by 

all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2013, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.   

 

2.2 Renewal Term(s).  Option to Extend: County may unilaterally extend this Contract for (i) two  (2) 

additional one (1) year periods and (ii) three (3) additional one (1) month periods (individually, an 

“Option to Extend” and collectively, the “Options to Extend”), and all provisions of this Contract, 

except the term, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  County shall exercise an Option to 

Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the then current term.  The total term of 

this Contractshall not exceed thirty-nine (39) months.  County shall have the right to exercise all or a 

portion of the Option to Extend in any combination it deems necessary. 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 1



    
 

 

2.3  Termination.  COUNTY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving CONTRACTOR  

written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination. 

 

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
 3.1 Scope of Services.  CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and 

activities described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is 

expressly incorporated herein and made a part hereof.   

 

 3.2 Ethical Standards.  CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary 

powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and her best professional 

judgment. 

  

3.3 Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is prohibited 

from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the CONTRACTOR’S 

obligations under this Agreement.   

  

 3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities 

pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans 

with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933].   

 

3.5  Legal Compliance.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws, 

rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the 

performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently 

delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector. 

 

3.7   Insurance Requirements  CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in 

Attachment C, "Insurance Requirements", which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part 

hereof. 

 

3.8  Federal Funds.  CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 

will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to 

influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal 

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 

cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual 

information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES and may rely on all factual information supplied by the TRAVIS 

COUNTY DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES in response to these requests.   However TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any 

elected official of County for any other purpose than conveying factual information. 

 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 2



3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has 
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services 
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS 
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done 
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the 
services in CONTRACTOR'S proposal. 

4.0 COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT 

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the 
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR's compliance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the 
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof. 

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: As needed Basis 
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None. 

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any 
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY'S satisfaction and given COUNTY'S 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY'S obligation to make any payment to 
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and 
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR' S profession. 

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the 
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of 
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code 

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall invoice County on a monthly basis for services rendered 
pursuant to this Contract. Each invoice shall include the following information: 

4.4.1 the contract Reference Number; 
4.4.2 the client reference Number, (client name) 
4.4.3 type of service in accordance with Attach. B. 
4.4.4 the total amount being requested 
4.4.5 date of collection 

Original invoices shall be sent to: 	 See Part II, Section D, for the list of County 

Department addresses. 


4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to 
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to 
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days 
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with 
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30) 
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to 
CONTRACTOR 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 3



4.6 CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue 
Form W-9 Request for Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 

with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of status in 
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable. 

4.7 Notwithstanding anything to the the 
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment taxes at the time invOlcmg, 

hereby any to made hereunder to the 
Assessor-Collector the payment of said delinquent taxes. 

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt. 

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of Local Government Code, notice of 
indebtedness been filed with County Auditor or County evidencing the 
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not 

drawn on a COUNTY fund in of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or of 
CONTRACTOR until: 

4.8.1.1 the County notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the IS 

outstanding; and 
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid. 

includes delinquent and indebtedness arising from 
agreements with the COUNTY. 

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply funds COUNTY owes 

balance of debt for which notice is made under 

statement that 

the outstanding 


4.9 Certification under this 

"Government-wide and Suspension." CONTRACTOR, signing this Contract, 
hereby certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its principles: 

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or 

rpF'_'N~"'" period preceding Contract convicted of or had a civil 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction or records, making false statements, or 

stolen property; 

(c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly by a governmental entity 
(Federal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 

period preceding Contract one or more transactions 
for cause or default. 

4.8.1.1 if 
amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may 

outstanding 
includes a 

applied to 

for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, 

judgment rendered 

(d) have not within a 
or local) 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 4



    
 

 Where CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 6.9, CONTRACTOR 
 shall provide an explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's 
 consideration and evaluation with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract 
 by County. 

 
 4.10 Exemption From County Purchasing Act.  Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT  CODE 

ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the 
requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services or meets other requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 

 
4.11 Period of Services.  COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by 
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement. 

 
 4.12    Funding Out.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and 

adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of 
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice 
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 
 

5.0       RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS  
 

5.1 Confidentiality.  CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of 
records and other information relating to Parent Coaching & Assessments Services in accordance with 
the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical 
standards.  This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client 
information.  Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR 
agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY’S monitoring 
and evaluation duties in any way.   
 

 5.2 Records Maintenance.  CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shall make 
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and 
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any litigation 
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR 
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost 
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

  
 5.3      Access to Records.  COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and 

all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and 
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their 
authorized representatives. 

 

 5.4 Right to Contractual Material.   All work products produced under this Agreement including 
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries, 
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR will become property of the 
COUNTY.  

 
 
 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 5



    
 

6.0  AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS  
 

6.1    General.  Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this 
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party.  IT IS 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 
 
6.2 Requests for Changes.   CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of 
this Agreement or any attachment to it to the County Department with a copy to the Purchasing Agent. 
 
6.3       Purchasing Agent Authority.  Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has 
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County 
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, 
as approved by the Commissioners Court.  Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve 
Amendment requests under this Contract.   The Purchasing Agent will advise CONTRACTOR as to 
such authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may 
submit any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the 
Purchasing Agent to sign the Amendment. 
 

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS: 
 

7.1     INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, 
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT 
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH  OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY 
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING 
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS 
CONTRACT. 
 
7.2 Warrants.  CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable copyrights, patents, 
licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials used in this 
Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any infringement of those 
rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this Agreement.  Consultant 
shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes 
of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees for 
damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 
existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement. 
 
7.3 Claims Notification.  If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an 
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against 
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being 
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that 
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or 
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, 
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against 
whom this claim is being made or threatened.  This written notice shall be given in the manner provided 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 6



    
 

herein.  Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent 
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions. 

 
7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may, 
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold 
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein. 

 
7.5 Non-Waiver of Default 
 
 7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of 

any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist. 
 
 7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment, 

act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it.  Any 
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy 
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or 
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

  
7.6     Forfeiture of Contract   If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person 
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business 
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to 
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and 
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value 
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this  Agreement, provided, however, that this 
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics 
Policy. 

 
7.7 Entire Agreement.  All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement related 
to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this Agreement have 
been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies and procedures approved 
by Commissioners Court for County.   Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations 
not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect. 

 
7.7.1 Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a 
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance 
with all the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

7.7.1.1             Attachment A – Scope of Services  
7.7.1.2             Attachment B – Fee Schedule 
7.7.1.3   Attachment C – Insurance Requirements 
7.7.1.4  Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit 
7.7.1.5  Attachment E -  Debarment 
7.7.1.6  Attachment F -  Proposal 

 
7.8 Notices: 
 

7.8.1 Written Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by 
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given 
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom 
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 7



postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the 
party at the address herein specified. 

 
7.8.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be: 
 

     Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.; CPPO (or her successor) 
     Travis County Purchasing Agent 
     P. O. Box 1748 
     Austin, Texas 78767 
 

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
  
    Travis County Departments 

 
7.8.3 Contractor Address.  The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this 

Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be: 
 
      Phamatech Laboratories & Diagnostics 
      10151 Barnes Canyon Rd. 
      San Diego, CA 92121 

 
7.9 Change of Address.  Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice 
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8.  Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen 
(15) days of the change. 

 
7.10 Authority: The Department designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement.  The Department designee shall have complete authority to 
interpret and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S 
services.  The Department designee may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive 
information. 
 
7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent.   When the CONTRACTOR and/or County 
have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract, the CONTRACTOR or 
County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing  Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with written 
notice of the dispute.  Such notice shall contain a specific written description of  the issues involved as well as 
the CONTRACTOR's requested resolution of the dispute and any other relevant information which 
CONTRACTOR desires to include.  As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing 
Agent will act as the County representative in any further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in 
relation to the described dispute.  Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or 
correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not issued  by or to the Purchasing Agent is void.  
If the CONTRACTOR does not agree with any document, notice  or correspondence relating to the 
dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the CONTRACTOR must submit a 
written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Department designee within ten (10) calendar days 
after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  The 
Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the final resolution of the dispute to the CONTRACTOR within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of  dispute by the Purchasing Agent.  If this final resolution 
does not resolve the dispute to the CONTRACTOR's  satisfaction, CONTRACTOR may submit a written 
Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The  Purchasing Agent will 
provide a copy of such response to the Department designee. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within 
ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the  unsatisfactory  final resolution. CONTRACTOR then has the 
right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the  Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on 
the Commissioners Court agenda.  

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 8



that 

an 
COUNTY, or gam any against 

7.15.2 =::.:..-:=-:...== 

7.12 CONTRACTOR is not satisfied with the of the dispute pursuant to 
Section 7.11, CONTRACTOR notify the mediation is acceptable to both 

will not 

the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties to use the Dispute Resolution 
as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in CIV. PRAC. 

AND Section 154.023. both Parties are satisfied with the 
a final and binding of the All 

mediation shall confidential as described TEX. ClV. 
154.073, unless in writing, to waive confidentiality. 

7.13 CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with 
staff and CONTRACTORs as reasonable and necessary and as required by the 
Departments/Offices. 

14 The parties 
CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, operating solely 
of rights, obligations and liabilities to him as 

shall not considered an employee 
COUNTY pursuant to COUNTY'S personnel policies. 

agreement and of any of terms or provisions, as well as 
shall governed by laws of the State of 

7.15 validity of 
the parties 

7.15.1 
by a court of 

invalidate, or nullify the 
the 

1<'"'1"",,",, provision, or 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or 

of this but the 

All obligations under this Agreement shall performable in 
any litigation concerning Agreement shall in City of 

7.15.3 party may any of the rights or duties created by Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR 

no agent, or representative of COUNTY has any authority to 
part of this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court. 

7 .16 Notwithstanding any prOVIsIOn this Agreement, this 
binding upon and inure to benefit of COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and 

executors, 
sublet, or transfer his 

of the other party hereto. 

COUNTY nor the 

shall 

7. I 7 a part it is that 
CONTRACTOR is free to provide outside as it sees fit at those times which 
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is understood COUNTY is free to have more 
than one contractor providing the type of included this Agreement. 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 9



fTrPPtTIPnT on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and 
or they have duly 

7.18 Conditions covenants of this which by their terms are performable 
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or 
end and remain fully performable. 

7. I 9 Interpretational Guidelines 

When period of is stated this time 
day and include last of period. If the last day 

COUNTY has declared a holiday for 
computation. 

7.19.2 Words any gender in this Agreement shall construed to 
include any other gender and words in either number shall construed to include the other 
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise. 

shall computed to exclude the 
of any 
employees, these 

on a Saturday, Sunday or a day 
shall be omitted 

this 
by that "',",""VA 

If by Chapter 176, Local Government Code, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and 
the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., 
Austin, Texas 78751. The CONTRACTOR shall update this Questionnaire by September 1 each 

the duration this Contract, as required by Chapter I of the Local Government Code. In addition, 
if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the CONTRACTOR 

submit an updated Questionnaire. CONTRACTOR should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to a Questionnaire on the official County Internet website. 

on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or 

by CONTRACTOR to this on behalf 
CONTRACTOR to bind CONTRACTOR validly and to all 
provisions this 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 10





A TTACHMENT A 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SECTION A- TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS-ALCOHOL TESTING 

CONTRACTOR MUST: 

1.1 	 Provide trained breath alcohol technician(s) (BAT) to conduct evidential breath 
testing (EBT), including random selection for EBT, in compliance with 
Department of Transportation (DOT) regulations and 49 CFR, Parts 40 and 382, 
as amended. 

1.2 	 Use EBT devices which are listed on the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA) Conforming Products List (CPL) and meet the 
requirements for confirmation testing. 

1.3 	 Provide in-clinic facilities that afford visual and aural privacy to the individual 
being tested, sufficient to prevent unauthorized persons from seeing or hearing 
test results and ensure that individuals tested at the specified Travis County on
site locations listed in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 2.17 are afforded similar 
pnvacy. 

1.4 	 Provide all necessary equipment, personnel, and materials for EBT at the 
Contractor's location where testing is conducted and at the specified Travis 
County on-site testing locations. 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 12



PART II - SECTION B - TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS - DRUG TESTING 


1.0 
provided for this contract, the quality of all services rendered under it must confonn to 
the highest standards in the relevant profession, trade or field of endeavor. All 
must be rendered or supervised directly individuals fully qualified the relevant 
profession, or field, and holding any required by law or regulation. 
regulations under which this is to be performed are provided (taken from the 
Department of Health and Human (DHHS) "Mandatory Guidelines for Federal 
Workplace Program," the ofTransportation (DOT) 
"Mandatory Guidelines Commercial Driver's (CDL)", as published and 
"1-'\.,,,,,...,,-, In this document are to as "DHHS 
Guidelines" and "DOT " 

TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS 
following definitions are adopted: 

2.1 	 ALIQUOT - A portion a specimen used testing. 

A group consisting of samples, calibrators, controls, and blind quality 
that is run in the same time frame under the identical 

the and instruments. 

2.3 	 is a metabolite of that is identified and quantified 
Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry 	(GC/MS) confirmation test 
metabolites. 

of 

BATCH -
control 

2.4 CALIBRATORS -
drug and drug metabolites 

CHAfN-OF-CUSTODY FORM - An approved DHHS or DOT external chain-of
custody document that tracks the handling and of forensic 
speCImen of collection to final disposition and includes 
documenting printed name that clear and original of 
person, purpose for handling or transfer specimens or aliquots for 
into whose custody IS 

2.6 	 CONFIRMATORY - A second analytical procedure to identify 
presence of a drug or metabolite which is independent of the initial test 
and which uses a different technique and chemical principle from that the 

test order to ensure reliability and accuracy. (At this time GC/MS or 
LCIMS are only confinnation method for marijuana, 
opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine.) 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 13



listed in Section 6.0. 

human 
precision and 

amounts of drug or drug metabolites spiked into a 
which are used to validate calibration of an instrument, 
of the and of the technician. 

- Delta-9-Tetrahydrocannabinol-9Carboxylic Acid is a metabolite delta-
9-tetrahydrocannabinol major psychoactive compound of marijuana) that is 
identified and in the GC/MS confirmation test manJuana 
metabolites. 

2.9 - An immunoassay 	 "negative" urine 
from 	 and positive specimens 

may use the Enzyme Multiple Immuno Technique. 

2.10 	 (3) standard deviations more than the mean 
result analyzing at least 12 negative unne and 
standard deviation of values for 

2.11 	 LIMIT QUANTITATION - The mean of the of 
12 unne and calculating the standard deviation 
for each specimen. 

2 	 MRO - A review officer who is a licensed physician responsible for 
receiving laboratory results generated by Travis County drug testing 
who knowledge of substance abuse disorders appropriate medical 
training to and evaluate test with medical history and 

biomedical information person who provided the 

INITIAL 

for further testing 

at 

other 

2.13 	 drug alcohol screens for County 
Sheriff's Travis County Drug Diversion not required by, or 
conducted DHHS or DOT guidelines. Non-DOT includes Non

pre-employment Drug Diversion Court Non-
DOT Pretrial Testing and HHSD/CPS. 

2.14 	 NON-DOT PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING - A test for 10 specified 
and/or metabolites. These tests will be administered before employment in 

safety-sensitive positions 	 the County Sheriff's The 
drugs to tested and their respective presumptive cut-off levels are 

2.15 NON-DOT DRUG DIVERSION COURT TESTING - These tests are of two 
Type each 5 specified drugs and/or their metabolites. Type I 

the Type I and Type II tests will as a condition of probation 
p'!",,·....,,·rI adjudication as ordered by Travis County Drug Diversion 

drugs to tested for and their respective presumptive cut-off 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 14



for both Type I and Type II tests are listed in Section 6.0. (on fee schedule items 7 
& 8). 

2.16 	 NON-DOT PRETRIAL SERVICES TESTING - These tests are of two types, 
Type I and Type II, each for five (5) specified drugs and/or their metabolites. 
Both the Type I and Type II tests will be administered as condition of pretrial 
releases ordered by the Travis County Pretrial Services department. The specific 
drugs to be tested for an their respective presumptive cut-off levels for both Type 
I and Type II tests are listed in section 6.0 (on fee schedule items 12 & 13) 

2.17 	 SECRETARY - The Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Secretary of 
Transportation in regards to issues which affect their respective drug testing 
programs. The Secretary may designate an individual from a recognized 
organization (to include a Contractor) to act on herlhis behalf in the 
implementation of these DOT or DHHS Guidelines. 

2.18 	 TRAVIS COUNTY ON-SITE TESTING LOCATIONS - Random drug and 
alcohol screening tests will be regularly conducted by the Contractor at the 
following Travis County locations: 

2.18.1 	 TNR Satellite One Office - 9301 Jolumy Morris Road, Austin, TX 78724 

2.18.2 	TNR Westside Service Center - 1405 FM 620 North, Austin, TX 78732 

2.18.3 	TNR Satellite Four Office - 5412 Lockhart Highway, Austin, TX 78744 

2.18.4 Travis County Jail- 1000 San Antonio Street, Austin, TX 78701 

2.18.5 Travis County Correctional Complex - 3614 Bill Price Road, Del Valle, 
TX 78617 

3.0 	 SCOPE OF WORK: 

3.1 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform the initial test for the detection of marijuana metabolites and cocaine 
metabolites on all urine specimens submitted, and additionally perform the initial 
test for opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines on individually requested 
specimens. 

3.2 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform GC/MS confirmation tests on all specimens that are screened positive by 
the initial test. 

3.3 	 The Contractor must provide a method for identifying interfering substances 
which prevent the initial test, such as contaminants, adulterants, or other masking 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 15



agents; and provide any special testing necessary to support the laboratory's 
results. 

3.4 	 The Contractor must conduct additional GC/MS testing to identify 6 
methamphetamine and Dextros and Levo when consistent with DHHS and/or 
DOT guidelines. 

3.5 	 All laboratory analysis will be provided in accordance with all DOT regulations 
and the DHHS procedures and 49CFR, Parts 40 and 382. 

3.6 	 Urinalysis will be conducted with an initial test to eliminate negative unne 
specimens from further analysis. 

3.7 Positive initial test results will be confirmed by conducting GCIMS method of 
analysis. 

3.8 	 The initial test and positive confirmatory test will be done by the same laboratory. 
Where a Travis County employee requests additional testing following a positive 
confirmatory test, such testing on another aliquot will be conducted by a different 
laboratory, certified by the DHHS, and as directed by the MRO. 

3.9 	 Remaining aliquots must be retained in frozen storage for 60 days after the date 
on which the laboratory acquires it. 

3.10 	 The Contractor must provide an MRO. 

3.11 	 Contractor will provide a scientific method for random selection of County 
commercial drivers for drug and alcohol testing. Data for input into the random 
selection data base will be provided by the County. Random lists must be 
generated and distributed to the County at least monthly or on a more frequent 
basis as requested. 

3.12 	 Contractor must provide to the County copies of records, and databases developed 
and maintained by the Contractor as part of the activities under the contract and 
must deliver them to the County quarterly or upon request. The records and 
databases must be provided both in paper form and in Excel electronic format. 

3.13 	 Contractor and subcontractors must accommodate the identification procedures 
required by the various county departments utilizing the Contractor services to 
verify identity of the person that gives the specimen. 

3.14 	 The Contractor is required to maintain and use a system of safeguarding County 
records which identify County personnel and any other information received in 
the performance of this contract, to ensure the highest level of privacy for County 
employees. Contractor shall provide all services required in a manner that would 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 16



comply with the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.c. 552a and Section 503 of Public Law 100
71, if Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws. 

The Contractor and its employees shall not hold any discussion or release any 
information or data pertaining to the Travis County Alcohol and Drug Testing 
Program without the prior written approval of the Coordinator. This restriction 
applies to all releases of information to the public, industry, or government 
organizations. 

3.15 	 The principal and other key personnel responsible for the project and named in 
the Contractor's proposal may not be removed from the program or have their 
time substantially decreased without prior approval of the County. Replacement 
personnel must have equivalent qualifications to the persons named and are 
subject to approval by the County. 

3.16 	 Contractor must, upon request, pick up urine specimens collected by the Travis 
County Sheriffs Office within two hours of a request at 1000 San Antonio Street, 
Austin, Texas 78701. 

3.17 	 THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT AND 
THE JUVENILE DRUG COURT will require Confirmation Test only. Initial 
screens are provided by the Departments personnel. Chain of custody procedures 
and forms must be provided to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT. THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT personnel will adhere to the Chain of Custody 
Procedures and deliver specimen to the Contractor for confirmation testing. 

Contractor shall report results to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT within 72 hours of delivery, by fax which must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 
the results and a certified copy ofthe chain of custody form. 

The Family Drug Treatment Court will occasionally require a Confirmation 
Test only. 

3.18 	 CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and 
each invoice shall contain the name of each Client served by CONTRACTOR, 
the type of Service provided by CONTRACTOR, the total tests provided by 
CONTRACTOR, the hourly fee assessed for each Service provided by 
CONTRACTOR (expert witness), the name of the Provider and the total amount 
of payment requested for each Client. Each invoice submitted by 
CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR's 
representative. A list of County Departments which invoices should be sent 
can be found in Part II, Section D, Attachment D. 

4.0 	 PROCEDURE MANUAL 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 17



4.1 	 The laboratory must have a procedure manual which includes the principles of 
each test; preparation of reagents, calibrators and controls; methods used to 
determine limit of detection, limit of quantization, and linearity; calibration 
procedures; derivation of results; linearity of methods; cutoff values, mechanisms 
for reporting results; controls; criteria for unacceptable specimens and results; 
remedial actions to be taken when the test systems are outside of acceptable 
limits; reagents and their expiration dates; and references. Copies of all 
procedures and dates on which they are in effect must be maintained as part of the 
manual. 

4.2 	 Laboratory calibrators and controls must be prepared with pure drug reference 
standards, whenever possible from two different sources, or from at least two 
different lot numbers. The labels on these reagents must contain the following 
information: preparer; content; concentration; date when received, opened, 
prepared; content and concentration; and expiration date. The analytical data used 
to certify calibrators, controls, and human negative urine must be available for 
inspection. 

4.3 	 Instruments and equipment: 

4.3.1 	 Volumetric pipettes and measuring devices must be calibrated and 
certified for accuracy or be checked by gravimetric, colorimetric, or other 
verification procedure. Automatic pipettes and dilutors must be checked 
for accuracy and reproducibility before being placed in service and 
checked periodically after that. 

4.3.2 	 There must be written procedures for certification of new instruments, 
procedures for instrument set-up and normal operation, a schedule for 
checking critical operating characteristics for all instruments, tolerance 
limits for acceptable function checks, and instructions for major trouble 
shooting and repair. Contractor must maintain records on preventive 
maintenance and make these records available upon request. 

4.4 	 There must be written procedures for the actions, remedial and otherwise, to be 
taken when systems are out of acceptable limits, or discrepancies or errors are 
detected. There must be documentation in the form of Memorandum for the 
Record that these procedures are followed and that all necessary corrective 
actions are taken. 

4.5 	 The laboratory must have at least one qualified, experienced, and established 
forensic toxicologist to provide expert testimony in Travis County legal, 
administrative or disciplinary proceedings involving urinalysis cases. 

5.0 	 SPECIFIC TESTING Specimens submitted must be initially tested for THC, BZE, 
opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines. When conducting either initial or confirmatory 
tests, every batch must contain an appropriate number of standards for calibrating the 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 18



instrumentation and a minimum of 10 percent controls. Both internal blind quality control 
and external blind performance test samples must be true blind samples and not 
discernible to laboratory analysts. 

6.0 	 INITIAL DRUG TEST PROCEDURES 

6.1 	 For the DOT program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the DOT program must be screened 
for the following 5 drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Cannabinoids (THC) 50 nglml 
Benzodiazephines (BZE) 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.2 	 For the Non-DOT pre-employment testing program, all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT pre-employment testing program must be screened for the following 10 
drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further 
confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug 
metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Methadone 300 nglml 
Ethanol 10 ngldl 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 19



The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.3 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT Program) Direct Observation 
testing - Type I program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court 
Type I testing program must be screened for the following 4 drugs and the results 
are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if 
the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above 
the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS 	or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.4 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT program) and the Juvenile 
Probation Department, pirect Observation testing - Type II program, all 
specimens must be screened using approved immunoassays that meet the 
requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following 8 drugs and the results are considered 
presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen 
shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the 
statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 20



6.6 

by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, ..... P'I'TH1.n 

drug(s) andlor 

The at which a """un"", occurs is subject to the 
DHHS or the as """",n,r..", in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these at other ""'"£'''''' 

the Non-DOT Juvenile and other miscellaneous Travis County 
Unobserved testing all specimens must be approved 
immunoassays meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 

commercial distribution. All initial tests must conducted 

custody 


under Non-DOT 
Unobserved testing program must screened for the following 8 
Ethanol and results are considered presumptive positive and subject to Mu~h"... 

confirmation testing specimen shows the presence 
metabolite(s) at or above statistically determined indicated below: 

1,000 nglml 
200 
200 

Cocaine 300 
Opiates nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

Non-Dot 

initial 

must be 
of the Food and 

Type I program, all 
that meet the 

distribution. 
tests must under procedures, as 

specified DHHS guidelines stated in Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under Non-DOT Type I testing 

must be following 
results are considered positive and subject to further 
testing the specimen the presence drugs (s) andlor drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 


300 

300 


Cannabinoids (THC) nglml 

and Ethanol the 

6.7 For the Non-Dot Pretrial Services Unobserved testing - Type II program, all 
must be approved meet 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 21



requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in PART II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Pretrial Services - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following four (4) drugs and Ethanol and the 
results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation 
testing if the specimen shows the presence of drugs (s) and/or drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

6.8 	 For the Non-DOT Countywide Unobserved testing - all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT Countywide Unobserved testing program must be screened for the following 
8 drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

7.0 	 CONFIRMATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

7.1 	 All confirmation testing must be performed usmg GC/MS, applying the 
procedures for each drug and/or metabolite(s) outlined in this section. All 
confirmation testing must be by quantitative analysis. Concentrations that exceed 
the linear region of the standard curve value may be diluted. If diluted, the 
dilution factor must be considered when calculating the actual drug content of the 
specimen. If the specimen is not diluted, the concentration of the specimen will 
be the actual determined value of the specimen. Limit of detection should be 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 22



7.3 

determined for GC/MS instrument. The limit of quantization should be 
determined for each GC/MS instrument. 

The Cannabinoids confirmation test must meet the additional following 

1 The target compound is 

7.2.2 A deuterated with a confirmed by the 
laboratory is the internal standard, and 

on a forensically accepted technique 
of in a concentration than or 

The run must include two blind 
n'-"'<oPt"'P 

on the GC/MS test. 
quality control specimens, one negative and one positive. 

(BZE) confirmation test employed must meet the 

.1 target compound is 

.2 	 A BZE with certified purity confirmed the laboratory 
is the internal standard, and 

.3 	 A positive is based on a forensically accepted GC/MS technique 
which indicates a concentration greater or 
equal to 150 ng/ml on the run must include two blind 
quality control one other positive. 

7.4 	 The amphetamines confirmation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.4.1 The compounds for amphetamines are amphetamine, 
methamphetamine, or both, 

7.4.2 	 A deuterated amphetamine and deuterated methamphetamine with 
purity confirmed by the laboratory is the standard, and 

A positive report is on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates the of amphetamine and/or methamphetamine at 
a concentration greater than, or equal 500 Any 
methamphetamine positive must indicate the of 
amphetamine greater than, or to, 200 ng/ml. Any methamphetamine 
positive sample must be to identify and quantitative the & L 

np'EU""'" and 
run must include two blind quality control one 

other 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 23



opiates confinnation test employed must meet following7.5 

1 	 target compound for are morphine and codeine, 

A deuterated morphine and codeine with certified purity 
confinned the laboratory is the standard, and 

7.5.3 positive report i,s based on a forensically accepted 
indicates presence morphine and/or 

concentration of 300 nglml or Any positive a 
concentration equal to or greater than 4,000 nglml must also be to 
detennine presence of 6-Monoaceytalmorphine at a concentration 
10 nglml or The run must two blind quality control 

one and the positive. 

7.6 	 phencyclidine (PCP) confinnation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.6.1 compound is PCP (Parent Drug), 

A deuterated phencyclidine analog with certified con finned the 
laboratory is internal standard, and 

7.6.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates of a concentration to 
or than 25 The run must include two blind quality control 
specimens, one negative the other positive. 

Barbiturates confinnation test employed 

7.8 	 Cocaine confinnation test employed 

Propoxyphene confinnation test employed 

Testing procedures for the DOT testing must follow the 
requirements specified in II, Section Paragraph 1.0. If exists 
between these requirements and the DOT Regulations as published in the 

Register, guidance in DOTs Regulations governs. 

8.0 
Contractor must be 

maintain certification in accordance with the applicable DHHS and DOT 
the Federal ,n,.... ' ...",...... 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 24



maintain 
maintain quality control testing; 

validity, reliability, accuracy, 

9.0 

management of drug 
overall 

9.1 	 The laboratory must have a qualified individual to assume professional, 
organizational, educational, and administrative responsibility 	 the laboratory's 

facility who is the 

individual must be ill for day-to-day 
laboratory even where another individual has 

an entire multi- specialty laboratory. 

9.3 must ensure that are personnel with adequate 
'"''',-,,,...... ''' to supervise and conduct work of drug 

laboratory. He or she must ensure the continued competency of laboratory 
personnel by documenting 	 training, work 

'and their 

9.4 	 individual must ensure the laboratory has a procedure manual which is 
complete, up-to-date, available for personnel performing tests, and followed by 
those personnel. procedure manual must be reviewed, signed, dated by 
this responsible individual whenever procedures are first placed into use or 
changed or a new individual assumes responsibility for management of the 
drug testing laboratory. of all procedures dates on which they are in 

must be maintained. 

9.5 	 This individual must maintain a 

test and test system. 

9.6 	 This individual must take all remedial actions to maintain satisfactory 
operation and performance of the laboratory in response to quality control 

not being within performance specifications, errors in result reporting or 
in analysis of results. This individual must ensure that 
sample results are not reported until all corrective actions have been and he 
or she can assure that test results provided are accurate reliable. 

9.7 obtain specimens under the Type I or Type II Programs for 
Diversion testing contractor is responsible for the 

collection of the urine The contractor must ensure that any 
factors any attempts on part of the being to 

manipulate the test do not contaminate the specimens. lab staff is used 
to observe individuals urine specimens, must have the necessary 

and 	 integrity of the urine tests. At a minimum, 
following 	 for the of and reporting 
testing 

reporting of all 
all and 

of 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 25



9.7.1 	 For storage of urinalysis supplies, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.1.1 store al1 urinalysis supplies in a secure area with access limited to 
employees involved in the collection process; and 

9.7.1.2 prevent client access to the secure storage areas. 

9.7.2 For observation of urine specimens, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.2.1 secure the collection area; 

9.7.2.2 provide gender appropriate 	 staff who shall be present in the 
lavatory to observe individuals giving the urine specimens; and 

9.7.2.3 ensure that the staff observing individuals giving urine specimens 
have adequate training to safeguard the collection process from 
fraudulent attempts to alter the urine specimens and/or 
envirorunental factors that would affect the validity of the test 
results. 

10.0 	 TEST VALIDATION The laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have a 
designated certifying scientist who reviews al1 pertinent data and quality control results to 
attest to the validity of the laboratory's test reports. A laboratory may designate more 
than one person as a certifying scientist. The certifying scientist(s) may be any employee 
who is qualified to be responsible for day-to-day management or operation of the drug 
testing laboratory. 

11.0 	 DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS AND SUPERVISION OF ANALYSTS The 
laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have an individual to be responsible for day
to-day operations and to supervise the technical analysts. This individual must have at 
least a bachelor's degree in the chemical or biological sciences or medical teclmology or 
equivalent. This individual must have training and experience in the theory and practice 
of all methods and procedures used in the laboratory, a thorough understanding of quality 
control practices and procedures; a thorough understanding of the review, interpretation, 
and reporting of test results; knowledge of chain-of-custody procedures; and experience 
providing prompt remedial actions to be taken in response to test results out of acceptable 
range or detecting aberrant test or quality control results. 

12.0 	 OTHER PERSONNEL Other teclmicians or non teclmical staff must have the 
necessary training and skills for the tasks assigned. 

13.0 	 WITNESSES 

13.1 	 Contractor persolU1el may be required to appear personally at administrative 
hearings to explain their laboratory procedures. The Contractor must have at least 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 26



one person available in each of the following categories on a full-time basis to 
testify at administrative hearings: 

13.l.1 	 Category A: An expert in forensic toxicology drug testing issues who is 
capable of discussing Contractor's laboratory procedures and who has the 
following minimum qualifications: 

13.l.l.1 	 Certification as a laboratory director by the State In 

forensic or clinical laboratory toxicology; or 

13 .1.l.2 A Ph.D. in one of the natural sciences with an adequate 
undergraduate education In biology, chemistry, 
pharmacology, or toxicology, 

13.1.1.3 	 Training and experience comparable to a Ph.D. in one of 
the natural sciences, such as a medical or scientific degree 
with additional training and laboratory/research experience 
in biology, chemistry, and pharmacology or toxicology, 

13.1.1.4 	 Appropriate experience in analytical forensic toxicology 
including experience with the analysis of biological 
material for drugs of abuse, and 

13.1.1.5 	 Appropriate training and/or experience In forensic 
applications of analytical toxicology, e.g., publications, 
court testimony, research concerning analytical toxicology 
of drugs of abuse, or other factors which qualify the 
individual as an expert witness in forensic toxicology. 

13.1 .2 Category B: A person fully knowledgeable on the procedural aspects of 
urine drug testing at the Contractor's laboratory. 

13.1.3 	 Category C: A processing technician who is a qualified and trained 
laboratory technician that handles testing of Travis County specimens on a 
day-to-day basis. 

14.0 	 TRAINING The laboratory must have a manual and maintain records reflecting the 
training and certification of personnel, describing the procedures for initial and annual 
certifications. Procedures must also be in place which describe the decertification 
process and any remedial training required for recertification. 

15.0 	 FILES Laboratory personnel files must include resume of training and experience; 
certification or license, if any; references; job descriptions, records of performance 
evaluation and advancement; incident reports; and results of tests which establish 
employee competency for the position he or she holds, such as test for color blindness, if 
appropriate. ' 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 27



16.0 

16.1 

Any testing used by Contractor this contract must 
have a quality assurance which all the 
process including but not limited to specimen acquisition, accessioning, 
ali quoting, chain-of-custody, and reporting of results, initial and 
confirmatory testing, and validation analytical procedures. Quality assurance 
procedures must be implemented, and reviewed to monitor the conduct 
of each the process of for 

16.2 LABORATORY QUALITY CONTROL REQUIREMENTS INITIAL 

16.2.1 analytical run of specimens to screened must include: 

16.2.1.1 Urine certified to contain no drug, 

16.2.1.2 specimens fortified with known standards, and 

1 1.3 controls with drug or at or near 
presumptive positive level. 

In addition, with batch samples a 
must be included to ensure and the linearity 

number of "....uu.... 

the assay 
over in the area cutoff. acceptable 
are obtained for known standards, those values will be used to 
calculate sample data. Implementation procedures to ensure that 
carryover not contaminate the testing an individual's specimen 
must be documented. A minimum of 10 percent of all test samples must 

quality control Laboratory blind quality control 
prepared from spiked urine specimens determined concentration must 
be included in each run and should appear as normal samples to laboratory 
analysts. percent of run, with minimum of at least one 
sample, must the laboratory's own blind quality control samples. 

CONFIRMATION TEST: 

run for the GC/MS will contain no more than and The 
run must contain a minimum of urine quality control specimens: one 
certified standard at concentration, one certified sample at 40% of cut
off, one negative specimen, and one positive 
specimen at or near the cutoff. Two of the four must 
blind. The and of must periodically 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 28



documented. Implementation of procedures to ensure that carryover does not 
contaminate the testing of an individual's specimen must also be documented. 
The calibrators must quantitative wi~hin 10% of the target value when the 
calibrators are certified, as required by DHHS and DOT guidelines. The 
concentration of all quality control specimens must assay within + or - 20% of 
their certified value. For only the Electron Impace GC/MS methods, the retention 
time of the drug must be within 2% of the extracted sample at the cutoff 
concentration and the ion ratios must be within + or - 20% of the extracted sample 
at the 	cutoff. The calculated concentration of the negative quality control 
specimens must not exceed the established limit of detection of the instrument for 
the drug being tested. All quality control samples must be within the acceptable 
range and meet all chromatographic criteria with all ion ratios within + or - 20% 
before reporting any sample results in that run. The chromatography of an 
internal standard from the negative specimen must meet the retention time and ion 
ratio requirements. 

17.0 	 SPECIMEN HANDLING AND RECEIVING REQUIREMENTS 

17.1 	 The Contractor must utilize an appropriate system to ship the specimens, if 
required . If not shipped via the U.S. Postal Service, then the Contractor must 
ensure that there is sufficient security to ensure the physical security and integrity 
of the specimen, the chain-of-custody, and shipping container. 

17.2 	 The Contractor must provide specimen kits containing a kit box, urine specimen 
container, specimen bottle seal, protective seal, label, sealable plastic bag to hold 
the container, and foam insert. The urine containers must hold 100 mI., be made 
of inert materials that will not absorb or adsorb drugs, or drug metabolites, and 
meet DHHS and DOT standards. The cap liner must be made of inert material 
that will not absorb or adsorb drugs or drug metabolites from the specimen. The 
containers' temperature strip must be inside (unless prohibited by DHHS or DOT 
regulation) and be occluded. The occlusion must show tampering and allow for 
ready viewing by authorized persOlU1eI. The shipping containers must at least 
meet U.S. Postal Service standards and be pre-addressed and prepaid for shipment 
to the Contractor's laboratory. The Contractor must ship with the specimen kits at 
least one chain-of-custody forms for each specimen kit. 

17.3 	 Upon receipt of specimens, the Contractor must record the condition of the 
shipping container, including information about damage in shipment, evidence of 
suspected specimen tampering, or other unusual conditions. The Contractor must 
compare information on specimen bottles to the information on the accompanying 
chain-of-custody forms. Records must be kept of the individuals that perform 
these checks. A Discrepancy Report must be generated, in accordance with Part 
II, Section B, Paragraph 21.3, and must be used to record discrepancies and 
provided to the office that collected the specimen. 

18.0 	 SECURITY OF LABORATORY AND SPECIMENS 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 29



18.1 	 The identity and integrity of the urine specimens must be maintained within the 
laboratory. All specimens must be maintained in a secure area with limited and 
controlled access throughout all phases of processing and storage from receipt to 
final disposal. 

18.2 	 Drug testing laboratories must be secure at all times. They must have in place 
sufficient security measures to control access to the premises and to ensure that no 
unauthorized personnel handle specimens or gain access to the laboratory 
processes or to areas where records are stored. Access to these secured areas 
must be limited to specifically authorized individuals whose authorization is 
documented. With the exception of personnel authorized to conduct inspections 
on behalf of Federal agencies for which the laboratory is engaged in urine testing 
or on behalf of the Secretary, any person not employed by the Contractor must be 
escorted at all times. Documentation of individuals accessing these areas, dates, 
and time of entry and purpose of entry must be maintained and kept available for 
audit. 

18.3 	 Laboratories must use chain-of-custody procedures to maintain control and 
accountability of specimens from receipt through the following processes: 

18.3.1 	 completion of testing, 

18.3.2 reporting results, 

18.3.3 during storage, and 

18.3.4 final disposition. 

18.4 	 The date and purpose must be documented on a chain-of-custody form each time 
a specimen is handled or transferred, and every individual in the chain must be 
identified. Accordingly, authorized technicians must be responsible for each 
urine specimen or aliquot in their possession and must sign and complete chain
of-custody forms for these specimens or aliquots as they are received. 

19.0 	 RETENTION OF SPECIMENS 

19.1 	 Specimens that do not receive an initial test within 7 days of arrival at the 
laboratory must be placed in secure refrigeration units. Temperatures must not 
exceed 6 degrees centigrade. An emergency power generator must be available in 
case of prolonged power failure to maintain the stability and integrity of 
specimens. 

19.2 	 All positive specimens must be placed in a limited access long-term, frozen 
storage area for a minimum of one year, and temperature must be maintained at 
20 degrees centigrade. Within this one year period Travis County may request the 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 30



laboratory to retain the specimen for an additional period of time; but, if no such 
request is received the Contractor must provide a list of those specimens and 
request permission of the Alcohol and Drug Testing Program Coordinator (the 
"Coordinator") to destroy the specimens. The Coordinator shall approve 
destruction if there is no pending litigation. If there is a legal challenge, the 
Contractor is required to maintain the specimens for an indefinite period. 

20.0 	 DRUG TEST RESULTS REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

20.1 	 The report must identify the drugs/metabolites tested for, whether positive or 
negative, and the presumptive positive level for each, the base specimen number 
assigned; the Contractor's laboratory number, and the test subject's Social Security 
number. The report must include a certified copy of the original chain-of-custody 
and must be signed by the certifying scientist. The results (positive and negative) 
for all specimens submitted on the same chain-of-custody form must be reported 
back to the MRO at the same time. 

20.2 	 The laboratory must report as negative all specimens which are negative on the 
initial test or negative on the confirmatory test. Only specimens confirmed 
positive for a specific drug or class of drug are reported positive for that specific 
drug. 

20.3 	 The MRO may request quantization of test results from the laboratory, and the 
laboratory must provide quantization of test results. 

20.4 	 Results must be transmitted in a secured manner so as to ensure confidentiality of 
the information. If the County approves a manner as one that is sufficiently 
secure, the laboratory may transmit results to the MRO by various electronic 
means. Results cannot be provided by telephone under any circumstances. The 
laboratory must ensure the security of the data transmission and limit access to 
any data transmission, storage, and retrieval system. 

20.5 	 The laboratory must send only to the MRO a certified copy of the original chain
of-custody form signed by the individual responsible for day-to-day management 
of the drug testing laboratory or the individual for attesting to the validity of the 
test results. 

20.6 	 The Contractor shall report to Travis County, by fax, Non-DOT negative or 
positive results of initial tests within twenty-four (24) hours from the date of 
collection. Fax notification of negative and positive initial test results must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing a certified copy of the chain-of
custody form. 

The Contractor shall provide to Travis County Pretrial Services a list of all 
Pretrial Services clients (individuals) who at the end of the business day did not appear at 
the collection facility to submit a sample as referred by the agency. 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 31



response to 
longer due to circumstances which are nfr,,",,'''' 

Fax notification of positive initial test must 

p.m. 

shall report to 
hours from if collection is 

72 (seventy-two) hours 4:00 p.m. by fax. 
notification of negative initial test results must followed with notification via 

regular mail containing the certification of the negative results and a certified 
copy the chain-of custody form. 

"',...>,.,.",.. shall to County confirmatory 

tests within 72 (seventy-two) and 96 (ninety-six) 

collection fax, on the 

cases reporting 


federal regulations. 
followed notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 

positive results a certified of chain-of custody form. 

21.0 

21.1 	 In appropriate DHHS and/or DOT Guidelines, 
must send to County (listed on 
monthly summary report. Initial and confirmation data must be included from 
test results reported within that month. Normally this summary must be 
forwarded by registered mail not more than 14 calendar days the end the 
month covered by the summary. following 
information: 

21.1.1 Initial test reports must include following information: 

21 1.1.1 	 Number of 

21.1.1 	 Number 

21.1.1.3 	 of manJuana 
metabolites, cocaine metabolites, opiate metabolites, 
phencyclidine, and amphetamines 

21.1 	 Confilmatory rpY"'T1rC must the following information: 

21.1 	 Number of OJ"..... uu"u.;} received for confirmation, and 

21.1 	 of confirmed for: 
metabolite, cocaine metabolite, morphine, codeine, 
phencyclidine, amphetamine, and methamphetamine. 

a 

and 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 32



21.2 	 On a monthly basis the Contractor must supply to the Travis County Coordinator, 
the following information on specimens completed since the last report: 

21.2.1 	 Identification number, 

21.2.2 Laboratory Accession Number, 

21.2.3 	Date Specimen Received in Laboratory, 

21.2.4 Drugs Screened For, 

21.2.5 Confirmation Tests Conducted, 

21.2.6 Final Report (Positive or Negative), 

21.2.7 Date Report Sent to Travis County, and 

21.2.8 Specimen Turnaround Time. 

21.3 	 No later than the 10th working day after the end of the calendar month, the 
Contractor must submit a discrepancy report to Travis County 
Departments/Offices (listed on Attachment 5) with the following data: 

21.3.1 	 Reporting Month; 

21.3.2 For each 	 submitting location sending specimens during the reporting 
month, the total number of specimens received; and 

21.3.3 	 For each department submitting specimens during the reporting month, the 
total number of specimens discarded, broken down into the following 
categories: 

BU - Box unsealed or no signature or date on box seal 
NHHS - No DHHS chain-of-custody-form 
DOT - No DOT chain-of-custody form 
ISSN - Incomplete social security number 
ISPN - Incomplete base specimen number 
NCOC - No chain-of-custody form 
QNS - Volume in bottle is less than 30 ml 
LSSN 	- Social Security number on specimen label does not match the 

social security on the chain-of-custody form 
LAX - Laboratory Accident 

22.0 	 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR DHHS AND DOT DRUG TESTING 
PROGRAM 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 33



must be accounted 
(listed on 

Attachment 5). 

23.0 

24.0 	 Unless otherwise instructed by the DHHS in writing, all 
to a given urine specimen must be retained by the drug testing 

laboratory a minimum 2 years. Upon request from Travis County, the 
must provide any information or documents pertaining to procedures used at its 
laboratory for performance of contract. of procedures chain-of
custody, protocols, quality control, procedures manual 
County reserves the to Contractor to a procedure 
is not consistent with current DHHS or DOT 

reporting. 

25.0 	 GENERAL LITIGATION SUPPORT Depositions and interrogatories of Contractor 
personnel must by Contractor in conjunction with performed 
under this contract when requested by Travis County. County will endeavor, 
where feasible to limit these requests to written interrogatories. Contractor must 
establish procedures to insure timely and appropriate responses to requests for litigation 
support packages, discovery requests, and other inquiries. Where testimony is required in 
support drug testing the Contractor must provide witnesses as required. The 

must also provide expert testimony in support information contained in the 
Litigation Support Package, when requested. 

26.0 

26.1 	 Contractor must provide within ten (l0) business documentary 
in form a litigation support to used by County at an 
administrative proceeding in conjunction with testing performed under this 
contract. 

litigation support IJ~~'''~'_'' must consist of the following: 

26.2.1 	 Certification and authentication by appropriate laboratory 
containedhaving custody of the original documents that the 

the litigation support package are true and accurate copies of the 
documents maintained by laboratory as part regularly 

26.2.2 Laboratory Report form; 

26.2.3 Explanatory Affidavit, to include test 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 34



26.2.4 All data from 	 initial test results including all standards controls run 
with the 

All data including chromatographs and quantization 
GC/MS including and run with 

26.2.6 Copies all chain-of-custody documents; and 

26.2.7 Summary qualifications 	 all personnel who appear on the chain-of
custody documents. 

the 

27.0 

Contractor must provide containers to transport all from Travis 
County. must provide transportation to the 
laboratory. 

The must provide all U.S. Postal approved packaging material 
for the transportation unne other of transportation is 
chosen, appropriate packaging material must provided by the Contractor. 
The shipping costs First Class shipping of the specimens from the to the 
laboratory shall prepaid by the Contractor. 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 35



ATTACHMENT B 


4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 36



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 37



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 38



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 39



ATTACHMENT C 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have, 
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of 
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards.  Depending on 
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate 
insurance options shall be imposed as follows: 
 
I.  General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors' Insurance.   
 
The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities 
pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning 
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and  subcontractor(s): 
 
 A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the 
duration of the Contract. 
 
 B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating 
of B+ VIII or higher. 
 
 C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier.   A copy of the Certificate of 
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract. 
 
 D. Certificates of Insurance  shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent  within ten (10) working days  of execution of the contract by both 
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first.  The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis 
County contract number and all endorsements by number. 
 

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall 
be considered primary for all claims. 
 

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. 
 

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements. 
 

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and 
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded. 
 

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during  any term of this 
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.  
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention.  All deductibles and 
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance. 
 

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit 
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s). 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 40



3. ~,~~~~~ 
of 

H. Specific Requirements 

A. 

1. 	 Coverage be with outlined Texas Workers' 
Compensation Act. 

2. Employers' Liability limits are: 

$500,000 bodily injury each accident 

$500,000 bodily injury disease 

$500,000 policy limit 


shall to of Texas and include following 
County City of Austin: 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) day of Cancellation (Form 420601) 

B. 

1. Minimum 
$500,000* 
$1,000,000 

and B a 

2. 	 The shall contain or be endorsed as 
a. 	 Blanket contractual liability this Contract 
b. 	 Independent Contractor 

3. 	 The Policy shaH include following endorsements favor Travis County 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Form 2404) 

Thirty (30) Notice of Cancellation 


c. 	 Travis County named as additional insured 

c. 

for is provided, coverage all and 
hired 

any form of 
shall maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence 

1. 

2. 	 Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor ofTravis County 
a. 	 Waiver Subrogation (Form 2046A) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) Notice Cancellation (Form 0202A) 
c. 	 as additional insured (Form IB) 

t Alternative Insurance Requirement 
NO transportation of any is provided, and use of a motor is strictly limited to to 

from work or work evidence Personal Policy coverage with limits of 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 41



$ 100,000/$300,000/$50,000 
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance 

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance 

1. Coverage shall be provided with a mImmum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000 
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and 
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services 
under this Contract. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of 
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of 
coverage and the extended reporting dates. 

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor's professional liability insurance 
shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their 
insurance policy. 

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance 

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than 
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the 
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first. 
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract 
expires or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date. 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 42



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 43

http:Affiant:------lB~IJ..~~:.Jl


November 2, 2012 

CURRENT 
Name of Individual Name of Business 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe 


Executive Assistant .......................................... "....... Bro\Vn 

Executive Assistant ............................................ " ..... Melissa Velasquez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Josie Z. Zavala 

Executive Assistant... ... " .... " .............. " ...... " .... " ... " ... Cheryl Aker 


Precinct I .......................................... Ron Davis 

Precinct 1 Annie Davis 


Executive Assistant. ............................................... " .. Deone Wilhite 

Executive Assistant. ................................................... Felicitas Chavez 


Precinct 2 ......................................... Sarah Eckhardt 

Precinct 2 .... " .............. " ..... Kurt Sauer 


Executive Assistant ... " ........ " .................................... Loretta Farb 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Joe Hon 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Peter Einhorn 


Precinct 3 .......................................... Karen Huber 

Precinct 3 
 Leonard Huber 


Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Garry Brown 

Executive Assistant. .. " ... "." ... " .................................. Julie Wheeler* 

Executive Assistant. ............................... " .... "."",, ..... Jacob Cottingham 

COmnliS!HOller Precinct 4 ...... " ........... " .. " ................. Margaret Gomez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Edith Moreida 

Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Norma Guerra 

County Treasurer ....................................................... Dolores Ortega-Carter 

County Auditor ......................................................... Nicki Riley* 

County Administrative ............................. Vacant 

County & Leslie Browder* 


l::m:efj~.en<:y Services .................... Danny Hobby 
l::xlecultlvle, HealthlHuman Services ............... Sherri E. Fleming 

Justice & Public 
TNR ........................................... Steven M. Manilla, P.E.* 


............... Jefferies 

............................... EI Khoury, M.S., P.E. 


Interim ChiefInformation Officer.............. ........... .... Acevedo 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Rod Bro\VTI 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Walter Lagrone 


Steve Capelle 

Executive ....................... James Collins 


Land Use Division ...................................... Tom Nuckols 

Land Use Division ..................................... Julie Joe 

Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore 

Transactions Division ................................ John Hille 

Transactions Division ................................ Vacant 


Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Elizabeth Winn 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Mary Etta Gerhardt 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Barbara Wilson 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Jim Connolly 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Tenley Aldredge 

Director, Health Services Division ............................ Beth Devery 

Attorney, Health Services Division ........................... Pre rna Gregerson 


...................................................... Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 


Records & Communications ........ Steven Hn'lh"ra 

............................................ David Escamilla 

Seton 

Daffer McDaniel, LLP 

Retired 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 44



Assistant Purchasing Agent .. .. .... ....... .......... .... .... ..... Marvin Brice, CPPB 

Assistant Purchasing Agent .......... ... .......... ........ ..... ... Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ....... ..... ... ......... ...... CW Bruner, CTP 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ... ..... ........ ..... .. .. .... ... Lee Perry 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. .... ... ..... ......... ..... Jason Walker 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ... ... .. .. ..... ..... ... ..... .. .... Richard Villareal 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... .. .. .. ... .. ........ ......... Patrick Strittmatter* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ .. .. .. ... .. ...... .. ....... Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....... ....... .... ......... .... ... Scott Wilson, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .. .. .. ..... ... ........ .......... Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ....... ................... Loren Breland, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ ...... ....... .. ........... John E. Pena, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ................................ Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ..... ... .. .......... ...... Angel Gomez* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ... ..... ..... ... ............. Shannon Pleasant, CTPM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ... ... .... .... .... ................ David Walch 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .................. ........ Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ....... ... ........... ........ Nancy Barchus, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ................. .. ...... .. ....... Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .... .... .................. Sydney Ceder* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. ..... ...... .. ... .... ..... Vacant 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .......... .......................... Jayne Rybak, CTP* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 11.. .. ... .... ................. .. .. .... L. Wade Laursen* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .. ... .. .. ............ ..... ... .. ..... Sam Francis* 

HUB Coordinator ...... ........... ... .. ..... .. ..... .... ............. .. . Sylvia Lopez 

HUB Specialist... ........ ..... ................. .. .. .. ...... .. ........ .. . Betty Chapa 

HUB Specialist ..... ... .. ..... .. .. .......... ... .. ..... ..... .. ..... ..... .. Jerome Guerrero 

Purchasing Business Analyst.. ............ .. .. .. .......... ... .... Scott Worthington 

Purchasing Business Analyst .. ......... .. ........ .. .............. Jennifer Francis 


FORMER EMPLOYEES 

Name ofIndividual 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ......... .. .... .... .. ......... Diana Gonzalez .................... ...... ... ... .. ........ 12116112 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. .. ....................... Elizabeth Corey, C.P .M.......... .. ... ...... ......... 03114113 

Attorney, Transactions Division .. .. . .. ......... ..... .. ......... Tamara Annstrong .................. .. ..... .. ........... 03/30113 

Executive Assistant... ..... ... ............. .. .......... .. ............. Lori Duarte ....................................... .. .... ... 06115113 

ChiefInforma tion Officer. .... ........... .. .. ..... .. ...... .. ...... Joe Harlow .................. ................ .. ............. 07/31113 

County Auditor ........... .. .... .. .................................... Susan Spataro, CPA .................................... 08/31113 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... ... .... .... .... .. ........... George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P ....... .. ...... 09/26/ 13 


* - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 45



2 
DISCLOSURE 

acknowledges Offeror is doing or has business the 365 day 
period immediately to the date on which contract is with the following key 
contracting persons and warrants that are the only key contracting persons: 

no one IS warrants Offeror is not doing and has not done 
business during 365 day immediately prior to on which Request for 

response is made with any key contracting person. 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 46



ATTACHMENT E 


4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 47



shall not 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY 

EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 


Federal Executive Order 12549 Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has 
a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary 
exclusion. Each covered contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors. 

In this certification "contractor" refers to both contractor and subcontractor; "contract" refers to both contract and subcontract. 

By and submitting this celrtilllcllti4~n, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms: 

1. 	 The certification herein below is a material of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous in addition 
to other remedies available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including 
and/or debarment. 

2. 	 The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any 
time the potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason 
of changed circumstances. 

3. 	 The words "covered contract," " "suspended," " "participant," " "principle," "proposal," and 
excluded," as used in this certification have based upon materials in the Definitions and 


sections of federal rules Executive Order 12549. 

4. 	 The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it 

enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
palrtl(:lp,atU)n in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travi" 

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? __YES 

5. 	 The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, 	 Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts "without 

in all covered subcontracts"; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts. 
6. 	 A contractor may upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, or 

VOluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a 
minimum, obtain certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each subcontract's initiation and upon each renewal. 

7. 	 Nothing contained in all the shall be construed to establishment of a system of records in order to render in 
good faith the certification required by this certification document The knowledge and information of a contractor is not 

to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the 
8. 	 for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract 

a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, 
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency andlor Travis County may 
pursue available andlor debarment. 

course of business 

or voluntarily excluded from palrtlclp,ltIo!n 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING UI:..D&:run "'''''''J'l,.INELIGIBILlTY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION 
FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement to the covered contractor/potential contractor: 

D 111e contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is 
debarred, proposed for debarment, declared or voluntarily excluded from 

any federal or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County. 

The contractor is unable to to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, 
the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make 
certification. Attach the explanation(s) to this certification. 

Name of Contractor 	 Vendor 1.0. or Social Security No. 

of Authorized Representative Date 	 Name & Title of Authorized 

4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 48



ATTACHMENT F 


PROPOSAL 


4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 49



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 50



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 51



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 52



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 53



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 54



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 55



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 56



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 57



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 58



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 59



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 60



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 61



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 62



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 63



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 64



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 65



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 66



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 67



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 68



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 69



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 70



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 71



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 72



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 73



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 74



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 75



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 76



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 77



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 78



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 79



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 80



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 81



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 82



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 83



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 84



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 85



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 86



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 87



4400001191 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 87



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
A

 

 

 

 

 

 

Trav

ROFE
AGRE

DRUG 

CON

vis Co

ESSION
EMEN

BE

TRAVI

PRO

AND AL

NTRACT

ounty 

NAL S
NT/CO
ETWEEN

IS COUN

AND 

RESULT
 

FOR 

LCOHOL
 

T NO. 44

Purc

SERV
ONTR

NTY 

TS 

L SERVI

40000119

hasin

VICES 
RACT 

ICES 

94 

ng Off

 

fice 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

1.0 Definitions......................................................................................................pg. 1 
2.0 Term ...............................................................................................................pg. 1 
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities  ........................................................................pg. 2 
4.0 Compensation, Billing and Payment ..............................................................pg. 3 
5.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access .............................................................pg. 5 
6.0 Modifications/Amendments  ..........................................................................pg. 6 
7.0 Other Provisions.............................................................................................pg. 6 
            Approvals .......................................................................................................pg. 11 
 

 
Attachments 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Services & Performance Measures…………………… pg. 12  
Attachment B – Fee Schedule……………………………………………………   pg. 36 
Attachment C – Insurance Requirements………………………………………….pg. 40 
Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit including: ………………………………….......pg. 43 
 Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons………………………………pg. 44 
 Exhibit 2 – Disclosure ……………………………………………………. .pg. 46 
Attachment E – Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
                          Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts……………………  pg. 47 

 Attachment F – Proposal ……………………………………………………… …pg. 49 
  



    
 

 

II.  DEFINITIONS 
 

1.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

 In this Agreement, 
 

1.1 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court.  
 

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.  
  

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor. 
 

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and/or Contractor.  
 

 1.5   “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean: 

 

 1.5.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more 

than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or property 

interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

 

 1.5.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, or goods or otherwise creating or having in 

existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

 

but does not include: 

 

  1.5.3 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a “Key Contracting Person” at a  posted, 

published, or marked price available to the general public; 

 

1.5.4 Any financial services product sold to a “Key Contracting Person” for personal, family or 

household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated and individuals 

with similar risks as determined by “Contractor” in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 

1.5.5 A transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 

“Contractor” if “Contractor” is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or other 

representative of  “Contractor” who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have 

known about the Contract. 

 

 1.6 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavit   

 attached to this Contract and marked Attachment D. 

  

2.0 TERM 
 

2.1 Initial Term.  The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by 

all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2013, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.   

 

2.2 Renewal Term(s).  Option to Extend: County may unilaterally extend this Contract for (i) two  (2) 

additional one (1) year periods and (ii) three (3) additional one (1) month periods (individually, an 

“Option to Extend” and collectively, the “Options to Extend”), and all provisions of this Contract, 

except the term, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  County shall exercise an Option to 

Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the then current term.  The total term of 

this Contractshall not exceed thirty-nine (39) months.  County shall have the right to exercise all or a 

portion of the Option to Extend in any combination it deems necessary. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 1



    
 

 

2.3  Termination.  COUNTY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving CONTRACTOR  

written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination. 

 

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
 3.1 Scope of Services.  CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and 

activities described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is 

expressly incorporated herein and made a part hereof.   

 

 3.2 Ethical Standards.  CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary 

powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and her best professional 

judgment. 

  

3.3 Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is prohibited 

from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the CONTRACTOR’S 

obligations under this Agreement.   

  

 3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities 

pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans 

with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933].   

 

3.5  Legal Compliance.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws, 

rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the 

performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently 

delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector. 

 

3.7   Insurance Requirements  CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in 

Attachment C, "Insurance Requirements", which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part 

hereof. 

 

3.8  Federal Funds.  CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 

will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to 

influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal 

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 

cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual 

information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES and may rely on all factual information supplied by the TRAVIS 

COUNTY DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES in response to these requests.   However TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any 

elected official of County for any other purpose than conveying factual information. 

 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 2



3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has 
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services 
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS 
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done 
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the 
services in CONTRACTOR'S proposal. 

4.0 COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT 

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the 
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR's compliance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the 
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof. 

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: As needed Basis 
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None. 

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any 
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY'S satisfaction and given COUNTY'S 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY'S obligation to make any payment to 
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and 
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR' S profession. 

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the 
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of 
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code 

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall invoice County on a monthly basis for services rendered 
pursuant to this Contract. Each invoice shall include the following information: 

4.4.1 the contract Reference Number; 
4.4.2 the client reference Number, (client name) 
4.4.3 type of service in accordance with Attach. B. 
4.4.4 the total amount being requested 
4.4.5 date of collection 

Original invoices shall be sent to: 	 See Part II, Section D, for the list of County 

Department addresses. 


4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to 
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to 
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days 
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with 
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30) 
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to 
CONTRACTOR 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 3



4.6 CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue 
Form W-9 Request for Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 

with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of status in 
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable. 

4.7 Notwithstanding anything to the the 
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment taxes at the time invOlcmg, 

hereby any to made hereunder to the 
Assessor-Collector the payment of said delinquent taxes. 

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt. 

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of Local Government Code, notice of 
indebtedness been filed with County Auditor or County evidencing the 
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not 

drawn on a COUNTY fund in of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or of 
CONTRACTOR until: 

4.8.1.1 the County notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the IS 

outstanding; and 
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid. 

includes delinquent and indebtedness arising from 
agreements with the COUNTY. 

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply funds COUNTY owes 

balance of debt for which notice is made under 

statement that 

the outstanding 


4.9 Certification under this 

"Government-wide and Suspension." CONTRACTOR, signing this Contract, 
hereby certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its principles: 

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or 

rpF'_'N~"'" period preceding Contract convicted of or had a civil 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction or records, making false statements, or 

stolen property; 

(c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly by a governmental entity 
(Federal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 

period preceding Contract one or more transactions 
for cause or default. 

4.8.1.1 if 
amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may 

outstanding 
includes a 

applied to 

for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, 

judgment rendered 

(d) have not within a 
or local) 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 4



Where CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 6.9, CONTRACTOR 
shall provide an explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's 
consideration and evaluation with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract 
by County. 

4.10 Exemption From County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the 
requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services or meets other requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 

4.11 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by 
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement. 

4.12 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and 
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of 
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice 
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS 

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of 
records and other information relating to Parent Coaching & Assessments Services in accordance with 
the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical 
standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client 
information. Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR 
agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY'S monitoring 
and evaluation duties in any way. 

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shaH make 
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and 
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any liotigation 
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR 
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost 
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

5.3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and 
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and 
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their 
authorized representatives. 

5.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement including 
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries, 
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR will become property of the 
COUNTY. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 5



6.0 AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS 


6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this 
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY A TT ACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of 
this Agreement or any attachment to it to the County Department with a copy to the Purchasing Agent. 

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has 
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County 
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOVT CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, 
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve 
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise CONTRACTOR as to 
such authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may 
submit any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the 
Purchasing Agent to sign the Amendment. 

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS: 

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, 
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT 
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY 
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING 
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS 
CONTRACT. 

7.2 Warrants. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable copyrights, patents, 
licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials used in this 
Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any infringement of those 
rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this Agreement. Consultant 
shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes 
of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees for 
damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 
existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement. 

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an 
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against 
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being 
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that 
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or 
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, 
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against 
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 6



 
herein.  Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent 
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions. 

 
7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may, 
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold 
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein. 

 
7.5 Non-Waiver of Default 
 
 7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of 

any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist. 
 
 7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment, 

act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it.  Any 
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy 
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or 
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

  
7.6     Forfeiture of Contract   If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person 
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business 
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to 
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and 
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value 
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this  Agreement, provided, however, that this 
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics 
Policy. 

 
7.7 Entire Agreement.  All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement related 
to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this Agreement have 
been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies and procedures approved 
by Commissioners Court for County.   Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations 
not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect. 

 
7.7.1 Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a 
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance 
with all the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

7.7.1.1            Attachment A – Scope of Services  
7.7.1.2            Attachment B – Fee Schedule 
7.7.1.3  Attachment C – Insurance Requirements 
7.7.1.4  Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit 
7.7.1.5  Attachment E -  Debarment 
7.7.1.6  Attachment F -  Proposal 

 
7.8 Notices: 
 

7.8.1 Written Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by 
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given 
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom 
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 7



postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the 
party at the address herein specified. 

 
7.8.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be: 
 

     Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.; CPPO (or her successor) 
     Travis County Purchasing Agent 
     P. O. Box 1748 
     Austin, Texas 78767 
 

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
  
    Travis County Departments 

 
7.8.3 Contractor Address.  The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this 

Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be: 
 
      ProResults 
      7801 North Lamar, Suite B-159 
      Austin, TX 78757  

 
7.9 Change of Address.  Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice 
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8.  Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen 
(15) days of the change. 

 
7.10 Authority: The Department designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement.  The Department designee shall have complete authority to 
interpret and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S 
services.  The Department designee may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive 
information. 
 
7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent.   When the CONTRACTOR and/or County 
have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract, the CONTRACTOR or 
County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing  Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with written 
notice of the dispute.  Such notice shall contain a specific written description of  the issues involved as well as 
the CONTRACTOR's requested resolution of the dispute and any other relevant information which 
CONTRACTOR desires to include.  As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing 
Agent will act as the County representative in any further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in 
relation to the described dispute.  Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or 
correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not issued  by or to the Purchasing Agent is void.  
If the CONTRACTOR does not agree with any document, notice  or correspondence relating to the 
dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the CONTRACTOR must submit a 
written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Department designee within ten (10) calendar days 
after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  The 
Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the final resolution of the dispute to the CONTRACTOR within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of  dispute by the Purchasing Agent.  If this final resolution 
does not resolve the dispute to the CONTRACTOR's  satisfaction, CONTRACTOR may submit a written 
Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The  Purchasing Agent will 
provide a copy of such response to the Department designee. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within 
ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the  unsatisfactory  final resolution. CONTRACTOR then has the 
right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the  Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on 
the Commissioners Court agenda.  

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 8



that 

an 
COUNTY, or gam any against 

7.15.2 =::.:..-:=-:...== 

7.12 CONTRACTOR is not satisfied with the of the dispute pursuant to 
Section 7.11, CONTRACTOR notify the mediation is acceptable to both 

will not 

the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties to use the Dispute Resolution 
as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in CIV. PRAC. 

AND Section 154.023. both Parties are satisfied with the 
a final and binding of the All 

mediation shall confidential as described TEX. ClV. 
154.073, unless in writing, to waive confidentiality. 

7.13 CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with 
staff and CONTRACTORs as reasonable and necessary and as required by the 
Departments/Offices. 

14 The parties 
CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, operating solely 
of rights, obligations and liabilities to him as 

shall not considered an employee 
COUNTY pursuant to COUNTY'S personnel policies. 

agreement and of any of terms or provisions, as well as 
shall governed by laws of the State of 

7.15 validity of 
the parties 

7.15.1 
by a court of 

invalidate, or nullify the 
the 

1<'"'1"",,",, provision, or 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or 

of this but the 

All obligations under this Agreement shall performable in 
any litigation concerning Agreement shall in City of 

7.15.3 party may any of the rights or duties created by Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR 

no agent, or representative of COUNTY has any authority to 
part of this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court. 

7 .16 Notwithstanding any prOVIsIOn this Agreement, this 
binding upon and inure to benefit of COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and 

executors, 
sublet, or transfer his 

of the other party hereto. 

COUNTY nor the 

shall 

7. I 7 a part it is that 
CONTRACTOR is free to provide outside as it sees fit at those times which 
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is understood COUNTY is free to have more 
than one contractor providing the type of included this Agreement. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 9



fTrPPtTIPnT on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and 
or they have duly 

7.18 Conditions covenants of this which by their terms are performable 
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or 
end and remain fully performable. 

7. I 9 Interpretational Guidelines 

When period of is stated this time 
day and include last of period. If the last day 

COUNTY has declared a holiday for 
computation. 

7.19.2 Words any gender in this Agreement shall construed to 
include any other gender and words in either number shall construed to include the other 
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise. 

shall computed to exclude the 
of any 
employees, these 

on a Saturday, Sunday or a day 
shall be omitted 

this 
by that "',",""VA 

If by Chapter 176, Local Government Code, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and 
the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., 
Austin, Texas 78751. The CONTRACTOR shall update this Questionnaire by September 1 each 

the duration this Contract, as required by Chapter I of the Local Government Code. In addition, 
if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the CONTRACTOR 

submit an updated Questionnaire. CONTRACTOR should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to a Questionnaire on the official County Internet website. 

on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or 

by CONTRACTOR to this on behalf 
CONTRACTOR to bind CONTRACTOR validly and to all 
provisions this 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 10



------- Samuel T. Biscoe 

be ",,,,,,boor! by both •
This will in duplicate 

Contractor Travis County 

By: By: 
Name and Title (Printed) County 

Approved as to Legal Fonn By: 
Assistant County Attorney 

Funds Verified By: 
County Auditor 

Approved by 
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO, Agent 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 11



A TTACHMENT A 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SECTION A- TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS-ALCOHOL TESTING 

CONTRACTOR MUST: 

1.1 	 Provide trained breath alcohol technician(s) (BAT) to conduct evidential breath 
testing (EBT), including random selection for EBT, in compliance with 
Department of Transportation (DOT) regulations and 49 CFR, Parts 40 and 382, 
as amended. 

1.2 	 Use EBT devices which are listed on the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA) Conforming Products List (CPL) and meet the 
requirements for confirmation testing. 

1.3 	 Provide in-clinic facilities that afford visual and aural privacy to the individual 
being tested, sufficient to prevent unauthorized persons from seeing or hearing 
test results and ensure that individuals tested at the specified Travis County on
site locations listed in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 2.17 are afforded similar 
pnvacy. 

1.4 	 Provide all necessary equipment, personnel, and materials for EBT at the 
Contractor's location where testing is conducted and at the specified Travis 
County on-site testing locations. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 12



PART II - SECTION B - TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS - DRUG TESTING 


1.0 
provided for this contract, the quality of all services rendered under it must confonn to 
the highest standards in the relevant profession, trade or field of endeavor. All 
must be rendered or supervised directly individuals fully qualified the relevant 
profession, or field, and holding any required by law or regulation. 
regulations under which this is to be performed are provided (taken from the 
Department of Health and Human (DHHS) "Mandatory Guidelines for Federal 
Workplace Program," the ofTransportation (DOT) 
"Mandatory Guidelines Commercial Driver's (CDL)", as published and 
"1-'\.,,,,,...,,-, In this document are to as "DHHS 
Guidelines" and "DOT " 

TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS 
following definitions are adopted: 

2.1 	 ALIQUOT - A portion a specimen used testing. 

A group consisting of samples, calibrators, controls, and blind quality 
that is run in the same time frame under the identical 

the and instruments. 

2.3 	 is a metabolite of that is identified and quantified 
Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry 	(GC/MS) confirmation test 
metabolites. 

of 

BATCH -
control 

2.4 CALIBRATORS -
drug and drug metabolites 

CHAfN-OF-CUSTODY FORM - An approved DHHS or DOT external chain-of
custody document that tracks the handling and of forensic 
speCImen of collection to final disposition and includes 
documenting printed name that clear and original of 
person, purpose for handling or transfer specimens or aliquots for 
into whose custody IS 

2.6 	 CONFIRMATORY - A second analytical procedure to identify 
presence of a drug or metabolite which is independent of the initial test 
and which uses a different technique and chemical principle from that the 

test order to ensure reliability and accuracy. (At this time GC/MS or 
LCIMS are only confinnation method for marijuana, 
opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine.) 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 13



listed in Section 6.0. 

human 
precision and 

amounts of drug or drug metabolites spiked into a 
which are used to validate calibration of an instrument, 
of the and of the technician. 

- Delta-9-Tetrahydrocannabinol-9Carboxylic Acid is a metabolite delta-
9-tetrahydrocannabinol major psychoactive compound of marijuana) that is 
identified and in the GC/MS confirmation test manJuana 
metabolites. 

2.9 - An immunoassay 	 "negative" urine 
from 	 and positive specimens 

may use the Enzyme Multiple Immuno Technique. 

2.10 	 (3) standard deviations more than the mean 
result analyzing at least 12 negative unne and 
standard deviation of values for 

2.11 	 LIMIT QUANTITATION - The mean of the of 
12 unne and calculating the standard deviation 
for each specimen. 

2 	 MRO - A review officer who is a licensed physician responsible for 
receiving laboratory results generated by Travis County drug testing 
who knowledge of substance abuse disorders appropriate medical 
training to and evaluate test with medical history and 

biomedical information person who provided the 

INITIAL 

for further testing 

at 

other 

2.13 	 drug alcohol screens for County 
Sheriff's Travis County Drug Diversion not required by, or 
conducted DHHS or DOT guidelines. Non-DOT includes Non

pre-employment Drug Diversion Court Non-
DOT Pretrial Testing and HHSD/CPS. 

2.14 	 NON-DOT PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING - A test for 10 specified 
and/or metabolites. These tests will be administered before employment in 

safety-sensitive positions 	 the County Sheriff's The 
drugs to tested and their respective presumptive cut-off levels are 

2.15 NON-DOT DRUG DIVERSION COURT TESTING - These tests are of two 
Type each 5 specified drugs and/or their metabolites. Type I 

the Type I and Type II tests will as a condition of probation 
p'!",,·....,,·rI adjudication as ordered by Travis County Drug Diversion 

drugs to tested for and their respective presumptive cut-off 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 14



for both Type I and Type II tests are listed in Section 6.0. (on fee schedule items 7 
& 8). 

2.16 	 NON-DOT PRETRIAL SERVICES TESTING - These tests are of two types, 
Type I and Type II, each for five (5) specified drugs and/or their metabolites. 
Both the Type I and Type II tests will be administered as condition of pretrial 
releases ordered by the Travis County Pretrial Services department. The specific 
drugs to be tested for an their respective presumptive cut-off levels for both Type 
I and Type II tests are listed in section 6.0 (on fee schedule items 12 & 13) 

2.17 	 SECRETARY - The Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Secretary of 
Transportation in regards to issues which affect their respective drug testing 
programs. The Secretary may designate an individual from a recognized 
organization (to include a Contractor) to act on herlhis behalf in the 
implementation of these DOT or DHHS Guidelines. 

2.18 	 TRAVIS COUNTY ON-SITE TESTING LOCATIONS - Random drug and 
alcohol screening tests will be regularly conducted by the Contractor at the 
following Travis County locations: 

2.18.1 	 TNR Satellite One Office - 9301 Jolumy Morris Road, Austin, TX 78724 

2.18.2 	TNR Westside Service Center - 1405 FM 620 North, Austin, TX 78732 

2.18.3 	TNR Satellite Four Office - 5412 Lockhart Highway, Austin, TX 78744 

2.18.4 Travis County Jail- 1000 San Antonio Street, Austin, TX 78701 

2.18.5 Travis County Correctional Complex - 3614 Bill Price Road, Del Valle, 
TX 78617 

3.0 	 SCOPE OF WORK: 

3.1 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform the initial test for the detection of marijuana metabolites and cocaine 
metabolites on all urine specimens submitted, and additionally perform the initial 
test for opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines on individually requested 
specimens. 

3.2 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform GC/MS confirmation tests on all specimens that are screened positive by 
the initial test. 

3.3 	 The Contractor must provide a method for identifying interfering substances 
which prevent the initial test, such as contaminants, adulterants, or other masking 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 15



agents; and provide any special testing necessary to support the laboratory's 
results. 

3.4 	 The Contractor must conduct additional GC/MS testing to identify 6 
methamphetamine and Dextros and Levo when consistent with DHHS and/or 
DOT guidelines. 

3.5 	 All laboratory analysis will be provided in accordance with all DOT regulations 
and the DHHS procedures and 49CFR, Parts 40 and 382. 

3.6 	 Urinalysis will be conducted with an initial test to eliminate negative unne 
specimens from further analysis. 

3.7 Positive initial test results will be confirmed by conducting GCIMS method of 
analysis. 

3.8 	 The initial test and positive confirmatory test will be done by the same laboratory. 
Where a Travis County employee requests additional testing following a positive 
confirmatory test, such testing on another aliquot will be conducted by a different 
laboratory, certified by the DHHS, and as directed by the MRO. 

3.9 	 Remaining aliquots must be retained in frozen storage for 60 days after the date 
on which the laboratory acquires it. 

3.10 	 The Contractor must provide an MRO. 

3.11 	 Contractor will provide a scientific method for random selection of County 
commercial drivers for drug and alcohol testing. Data for input into the random 
selection data base will be provided by the County. Random lists must be 
generated and distributed to the County at least monthly or on a more frequent 
basis as requested. 

3.12 	 Contractor must provide to the County copies of records, and databases developed 
and maintained by the Contractor as part of the activities under the contract and 
must deliver them to the County quarterly or upon request. The records and 
databases must be provided both in paper form and in Excel electronic format. 

3.13 	 Contractor and subcontractors must accommodate the identification procedures 
required by the various county departments utilizing the Contractor services to 
verify identity of the person that gives the specimen. 

3.14 	 The Contractor is required to maintain and use a system of safeguarding County 
records which identify County personnel and any other information received in 
the performance of this contract, to ensure the highest level of privacy for County 
employees. Contractor shall provide all services required in a manner that would 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 16



comply with the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.c. 552a and Section 503 of Public Law 100
71, if Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws. 

The Contractor and its employees shall not hold any discussion or release any 
information or data pertaining to the Travis County Alcohol and Drug Testing 
Program without the prior written approval of the Coordinator. This restriction 
applies to all releases of information to the public, industry, or government 
organizations. 

3.15 	 The principal and other key personnel responsible for the project and named in 
the Contractor's proposal may not be removed from the program or have their 
time substantially decreased without prior approval of the County. Replacement 
personnel must have equivalent qualifications to the persons named and are 
subject to approval by the County. 

3.16 	 Contractor must, upon request, pick up urine specimens collected by the Travis 
County Sheriffs Office within two hours of a request at 1000 San Antonio Street, 
Austin, Texas 78701. 

3.17 	 THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT AND 
THE JUVENILE DRUG COURT will require Confirmation Test only. Initial 
screens are provided by the Departments personnel. Chain of custody procedures 
and forms must be provided to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT. THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT personnel will adhere to the Chain of Custody 
Procedures and deliver specimen to the Contractor for confirmation testing. 

Contractor shall report results to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT within 72 hours of delivery, by fax which must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 
the results and a certified copy ofthe chain of custody form. 

The Family Drug Treatment Court will occasionally require a Confirmation 
Test only. 

3.18 	 CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and 
each invoice shall contain the name of each Client served by CONTRACTOR, 
the type of Service provided by CONTRACTOR, the total tests provided by 
CONTRACTOR, the hourly fee assessed for each Service provided by 
CONTRACTOR (expert witness), the name of the Provider and the total amount 
of payment requested for each Client. Each invoice submitted by 
CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR's 
representative. A list of County Departments which invoices should be sent 
can be found in Part II, Section D, Attachment D. 

4.0 	 PROCEDURE MANUAL 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 17



4.1 	 The laboratory must have a procedure manual which includes the principles of 
each test; preparation of reagents, calibrators and controls; methods used to 
determine limit of detection, limit of quantization, and linearity; calibration 
procedures; derivation of results; linearity of methods; cutoff values, mechanisms 
for reporting results; controls; criteria for unacceptable specimens and results; 
remedial actions to be taken when the test systems are outside of acceptable 
limits; reagents and their expiration dates; and references. Copies of all 
procedures and dates on which they are in effect must be maintained as part of the 
manual. 

4.2 	 Laboratory calibrators and controls must be prepared with pure drug reference 
standards, whenever possible from two different sources, or from at least two 
different lot numbers. The labels on these reagents must contain the following 
information: preparer; content; concentration; date when received, opened, 
prepared; content and concentration; and expiration date. The analytical data used 
to certify calibrators, controls, and human negative urine must be available for 
inspection. 

4.3 	 Instruments and equipment: 

4.3.1 	 Volumetric pipettes and measuring devices must be calibrated and 
certified for accuracy or be checked by gravimetric, colorimetric, or other 
verification procedure. Automatic pipettes and dilutors must be checked 
for accuracy and reproducibility before being placed in service and 
checked periodically after that. 

4.3.2 	 There must be written procedures for certification of new instruments, 
procedures for instrument set-up and normal operation, a schedule for 
checking critical operating characteristics for all instruments, tolerance 
limits for acceptable function checks, and instructions for major trouble 
shooting and repair. Contractor must maintain records on preventive 
maintenance and make these records available upon request. 

4.4 	 There must be written procedures for the actions, remedial and otherwise, to be 
taken when systems are out of acceptable limits, or discrepancies or errors are 
detected. There must be documentation in the form of Memorandum for the 
Record that these procedures are followed and that all necessary corrective 
actions are taken. 

4.5 	 The laboratory must have at least one qualified, experienced, and established 
forensic toxicologist to provide expert testimony in Travis County legal, 
administrative or disciplinary proceedings involving urinalysis cases. 

5.0 	 SPECIFIC TESTING Specimens submitted must be initially tested for THC, BZE, 
opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines. When conducting either initial or confirmatory 
tests, every batch must contain an appropriate number of standards for calibrating the 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 18



instrumentation and a minimum of 10 percent controls. Both internal blind quality control 
and external blind performance test samples must be true blind samples and not 
discernible to laboratory analysts. 

6.0 	 INITIAL DRUG TEST PROCEDURES 

6.1 	 For the DOT program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the DOT program must be screened 
for the following 5 drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Cannabinoids (THC) 50 nglml 
Benzodiazephines (BZE) 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.2 	 For the Non-DOT pre-employment testing program, all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT pre-employment testing program must be screened for the following 10 
drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further 
confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug 
metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Methadone 300 nglml 
Ethanol 10 ngldl 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 19



The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.3 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT Program) Direct Observation 
testing - Type I program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court 
Type I testing program must be screened for the following 4 drugs and the results 
are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if 
the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above 
the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS 	or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.4 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT program) and the Juvenile 
Probation Department, pirect Observation testing - Type II program, all 
specimens must be screened using approved immunoassays that meet the 
requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following 8 drugs and the results are considered 
presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen 
shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the 
statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 20



6.6 

by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, ..... P'I'TH1.n 

drug(s) andlor 

The at which a """un"", occurs is subject to the 
DHHS or the as """",n,r..", in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these at other ""'"£'''''' 

the Non-DOT Juvenile and other miscellaneous Travis County 
Unobserved testing all specimens must be approved 
immunoassays meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 

commercial distribution. All initial tests must conducted 

custody 


under Non-DOT 
Unobserved testing program must screened for the following 8 
Ethanol and results are considered presumptive positive and subject to Mu~h"... 

confirmation testing specimen shows the presence 
metabolite(s) at or above statistically determined indicated below: 

1,000 nglml 
200 
200 

Cocaine 300 
Opiates nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

Non-Dot 

initial 

must be 
of the Food and 

Type I program, all 
that meet the 

distribution. 
tests must under procedures, as 

specified DHHS guidelines stated in Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under Non-DOT Type I testing 

must be following 
results are considered positive and subject to further 
testing the specimen the presence drugs (s) andlor drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 


300 

300 


Cannabinoids (THC) nglml 

and Ethanol the 

6.7 For the Non-Dot Pretrial Services Unobserved testing - Type II program, all 
must be approved meet 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 21



requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in PART II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Pretrial Services - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following four (4) drugs and Ethanol and the 
results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation 
testing if the specimen shows the presence of drugs (s) and/or drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

6.8 	 For the Non-DOT Countywide Unobserved testing - all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT Countywide Unobserved testing program must be screened for the following 
8 drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

7.0 	 CONFIRMATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

7.1 	 All confirmation testing must be performed usmg GC/MS, applying the 
procedures for each drug and/or metabolite(s) outlined in this section. All 
confirmation testing must be by quantitative analysis. Concentrations that exceed 
the linear region of the standard curve value may be diluted. If diluted, the 
dilution factor must be considered when calculating the actual drug content of the 
specimen. If the specimen is not diluted, the concentration of the specimen will 
be the actual determined value of the specimen. Limit of detection should be 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 22



7.3 

determined for GC/MS instrument. The limit of quantization should be 
determined for each GC/MS instrument. 

The Cannabinoids confirmation test must meet the additional following 

1 The target compound is 

7.2.2 A deuterated with a confirmed by the 
laboratory is the internal standard, and 

on a forensically accepted technique 
of in a concentration than or 

The run must include two blind 
n'-"'<oPt"'P 

on the GC/MS test. 
quality control specimens, one negative and one positive. 

(BZE) confirmation test employed must meet the 

.1 target compound is 

.2 	 A BZE with certified purity confirmed the laboratory 
is the internal standard, and 

.3 	 A positive is based on a forensically accepted GC/MS technique 
which indicates a concentration greater or 
equal to 150 ng/ml on the run must include two blind 
quality control one other positive. 

7.4 	 The amphetamines confirmation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.4.1 The compounds for amphetamines are amphetamine, 
methamphetamine, or both, 

7.4.2 	 A deuterated amphetamine and deuterated methamphetamine with 
purity confirmed by the laboratory is the standard, and 

A positive report is on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates the of amphetamine and/or methamphetamine at 
a concentration greater than, or equal 500 Any 
methamphetamine positive must indicate the of 
amphetamine greater than, or to, 200 ng/ml. Any methamphetamine 
positive sample must be to identify and quantitative the & L 

np'EU""'" and 
run must include two blind quality control one 

other 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 23



opiates confinnation test employed must meet following7.5 

1 	 target compound for are morphine and codeine, 

A deuterated morphine and codeine with certified purity 
confinned the laboratory is the standard, and 

7.5.3 positive report i,s based on a forensically accepted 
indicates presence morphine and/or 

concentration of 300 nglml or Any positive a 
concentration equal to or greater than 4,000 nglml must also be to 
detennine presence of 6-Monoaceytalmorphine at a concentration 
10 nglml or The run must two blind quality control 

one and the positive. 

7.6 	 phencyclidine (PCP) confinnation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.6.1 compound is PCP (Parent Drug), 

A deuterated phencyclidine analog with certified con finned the 
laboratory is internal standard, and 

7.6.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates of a concentration to 
or than 25 The run must include two blind quality control 
specimens, one negative the other positive. 

Barbiturates confinnation test employed 

7.8 	 Cocaine confinnation test employed 

Propoxyphene confinnation test employed 

Testing procedures for the DOT testing must follow the 
requirements specified in II, Section Paragraph 1.0. If exists 
between these requirements and the DOT Regulations as published in the 

Register, guidance in DOTs Regulations governs. 

8.0 
Contractor must be 

maintain certification in accordance with the applicable DHHS and DOT 
the Federal ,n,.... ' ...",...... 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 24



maintain 
maintain quality control testing; 

validity, reliability, accuracy, 

9.0 

management of drug 
overall 

9.1 	 The laboratory must have a qualified individual to assume professional, 
organizational, educational, and administrative responsibility 	 the laboratory's 

facility who is the 

individual must be ill for day-to-day 
laboratory even where another individual has 

an entire multi- specialty laboratory. 

9.3 must ensure that are personnel with adequate 
'"''',-,,,...... ''' to supervise and conduct work of drug 

laboratory. He or she must ensure the continued competency of laboratory 
personnel by documenting 	 training, work 

'and their 

9.4 	 individual must ensure the laboratory has a procedure manual which is 
complete, up-to-date, available for personnel performing tests, and followed by 
those personnel. procedure manual must be reviewed, signed, dated by 
this responsible individual whenever procedures are first placed into use or 
changed or a new individual assumes responsibility for management of the 
drug testing laboratory. of all procedures dates on which they are in 

must be maintained. 

9.5 	 This individual must maintain a 

test and test system. 

9.6 	 This individual must take all remedial actions to maintain satisfactory 
operation and performance of the laboratory in response to quality control 

not being within performance specifications, errors in result reporting or 
in analysis of results. This individual must ensure that 
sample results are not reported until all corrective actions have been and he 
or she can assure that test results provided are accurate reliable. 

9.7 obtain specimens under the Type I or Type II Programs for 
Diversion testing contractor is responsible for the 

collection of the urine The contractor must ensure that any 
factors any attempts on part of the being to 

manipulate the test do not contaminate the specimens. lab staff is used 
to observe individuals urine specimens, must have the necessary 

and 	 integrity of the urine tests. At a minimum, 
following 	 for the of and reporting 
testing 

reporting of all 
all and 

of 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 25



9.7.1 	 For storage of urinalysis supplies, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.1.1 store al1 urinalysis supplies in a secure area with access limited to 
employees involved in the collection process; and 

9.7.1.2 prevent client access to the secure storage areas. 

9.7.2 For observation of urine specimens, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.2.1 secure the collection area; 

9.7.2.2 provide gender appropriate 	 staff who shall be present in the 
lavatory to observe individuals giving the urine specimens; and 

9.7.2.3 ensure that the staff observing individuals giving urine specimens 
have adequate training to safeguard the collection process from 
fraudulent attempts to alter the urine specimens and/or 
envirorunental factors that would affect the validity of the test 
results. 

10.0 	 TEST VALIDATION The laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have a 
designated certifying scientist who reviews al1 pertinent data and quality control results to 
attest to the validity of the laboratory's test reports. A laboratory may designate more 
than one person as a certifying scientist. The certifying scientist(s) may be any employee 
who is qualified to be responsible for day-to-day management or operation of the drug 
testing laboratory. 

11.0 	 DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS AND SUPERVISION OF ANALYSTS The 
laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have an individual to be responsible for day
to-day operations and to supervise the technical analysts. This individual must have at 
least a bachelor's degree in the chemical or biological sciences or medical teclmology or 
equivalent. This individual must have training and experience in the theory and practice 
of all methods and procedures used in the laboratory, a thorough understanding of quality 
control practices and procedures; a thorough understanding of the review, interpretation, 
and reporting of test results; knowledge of chain-of-custody procedures; and experience 
providing prompt remedial actions to be taken in response to test results out of acceptable 
range or detecting aberrant test or quality control results. 

12.0 	 OTHER PERSONNEL Other teclmicians or non teclmical staff must have the 
necessary training and skills for the tasks assigned. 

13.0 	 WITNESSES 

13.1 	 Contractor persolU1el may be required to appear personally at administrative 
hearings to explain their laboratory procedures. The Contractor must have at least 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 26



one person available in each of the following categories on a full-time basis to 
testify at administrative hearings: 

13.l.1 	 Category A: An expert in forensic toxicology drug testing issues who is 
capable of discussing Contractor's laboratory procedures and who has the 
following minimum qualifications: 

13.l.l.1 	 Certification as a laboratory director by the State In 

forensic or clinical laboratory toxicology; or 

13 .1.l.2 A Ph.D. in one of the natural sciences with an adequate 
undergraduate education In biology, chemistry, 
pharmacology, or toxicology, 

13.1.1.3 	 Training and experience comparable to a Ph.D. in one of 
the natural sciences, such as a medical or scientific degree 
with additional training and laboratory/research experience 
in biology, chemistry, and pharmacology or toxicology, 

13.1.1.4 	 Appropriate experience in analytical forensic toxicology 
including experience with the analysis of biological 
material for drugs of abuse, and 

13.1.1.5 	 Appropriate training and/or experience In forensic 
applications of analytical toxicology, e.g., publications, 
court testimony, research concerning analytical toxicology 
of drugs of abuse, or other factors which qualify the 
individual as an expert witness in forensic toxicology. 

13.1 .2 Category B: A person fully knowledgeable on the procedural aspects of 
urine drug testing at the Contractor's laboratory. 

13.1.3 	 Category C: A processing technician who is a qualified and trained 
laboratory technician that handles testing of Travis County specimens on a 
day-to-day basis. 

14.0 	 TRAINING The laboratory must have a manual and maintain records reflecting the 
training and certification of personnel, describing the procedures for initial and annual 
certifications. Procedures must also be in place which describe the decertification 
process and any remedial training required for recertification. 

15.0 	 FILES Laboratory personnel files must include resume of training and experience; 
certification or license, if any; references; job descriptions, records of performance 
evaluation and advancement; incident reports; and results of tests which establish 
employee competency for the position he or she holds, such as test for color blindness, if 
appropriate. ' 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 27



16.0 

16.1 

Any testing used by Contractor this contract must 
have a quality assurance which all the 
process including but not limited to specimen acquisition, accessioning, 
ali quoting, chain-of-custody, and reporting of results, initial and 
confirmatory testing, and validation analytical procedures. Quality assurance 
procedures must be implemented, and reviewed to monitor the conduct 
of each the process of for 

16.2 LABORATORY QUALITY CONTROL REQUIREMENTS INITIAL 

16.2.1 analytical run of specimens to screened must include: 

16.2.1.1 Urine certified to contain no drug, 

16.2.1.2 specimens fortified with known standards, and 

1 1.3 controls with drug or at or near 
presumptive positive level. 

In addition, with batch samples a 
must be included to ensure and the linearity 

number of "....uu.... 

the assay 
over in the area cutoff. acceptable 
are obtained for known standards, those values will be used to 
calculate sample data. Implementation procedures to ensure that 
carryover not contaminate the testing an individual's specimen 
must be documented. A minimum of 10 percent of all test samples must 

quality control Laboratory blind quality control 
prepared from spiked urine specimens determined concentration must 
be included in each run and should appear as normal samples to laboratory 
analysts. percent of run, with minimum of at least one 
sample, must the laboratory's own blind quality control samples. 

CONFIRMATION TEST: 

run for the GC/MS will contain no more than and The 
run must contain a minimum of urine quality control specimens: one 
certified standard at concentration, one certified sample at 40% of cut
off, one negative specimen, and one positive 
specimen at or near the cutoff. Two of the four must 
blind. The and of must periodically 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 28



documented. Implementation of procedures to ensure that carryover does not 
contaminate the testing of an individual's specimen must also be documented. 
The calibrators must quantitative wi~hin 10% of the target value when the 
calibrators are certified, as required by DHHS and DOT guidelines. The 
concentration of all quality control specimens must assay within + or - 20% of 
their certified value. For only the Electron Impace GC/MS methods, the retention 
time of the drug must be within 2% of the extracted sample at the cutoff 
concentration and the ion ratios must be within + or - 20% of the extracted sample 
at the 	cutoff. The calculated concentration of the negative quality control 
specimens must not exceed the established limit of detection of the instrument for 
the drug being tested. All quality control samples must be within the acceptable 
range and meet all chromatographic criteria with all ion ratios within + or - 20% 
before reporting any sample results in that run. The chromatography of an 
internal standard from the negative specimen must meet the retention time and ion 
ratio requirements. 

17.0 	 SPECIMEN HANDLING AND RECEIVING REQUIREMENTS 

17.1 	 The Contractor must utilize an appropriate system to ship the specimens, if 
required . If not shipped via the U.S. Postal Service, then the Contractor must 
ensure that there is sufficient security to ensure the physical security and integrity 
of the specimen, the chain-of-custody, and shipping container. 

17.2 	 The Contractor must provide specimen kits containing a kit box, urine specimen 
container, specimen bottle seal, protective seal, label, sealable plastic bag to hold 
the container, and foam insert. The urine containers must hold 100 mI., be made 
of inert materials that will not absorb or adsorb drugs, or drug metabolites, and 
meet DHHS and DOT standards. The cap liner must be made of inert material 
that will not absorb or adsorb drugs or drug metabolites from the specimen. The 
containers' temperature strip must be inside (unless prohibited by DHHS or DOT 
regulation) and be occluded. The occlusion must show tampering and allow for 
ready viewing by authorized persOlU1eI. The shipping containers must at least 
meet U.S. Postal Service standards and be pre-addressed and prepaid for shipment 
to the Contractor's laboratory. The Contractor must ship with the specimen kits at 
least one chain-of-custody forms for each specimen kit. 

17.3 	 Upon receipt of specimens, the Contractor must record the condition of the 
shipping container, including information about damage in shipment, evidence of 
suspected specimen tampering, or other unusual conditions. The Contractor must 
compare information on specimen bottles to the information on the accompanying 
chain-of-custody forms. Records must be kept of the individuals that perform 
these checks. A Discrepancy Report must be generated, in accordance with Part 
II, Section B, Paragraph 21.3, and must be used to record discrepancies and 
provided to the office that collected the specimen. 

18.0 	 SECURITY OF LABORATORY AND SPECIMENS 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 29



18.1 	 The identity and integrity of the urine specimens must be maintained within the 
laboratory. All specimens must be maintained in a secure area with limited and 
controlled access throughout all phases of processing and storage from receipt to 
final disposal. 

18.2 	 Drug testing laboratories must be secure at all times. They must have in place 
sufficient security measures to control access to the premises and to ensure that no 
unauthorized personnel handle specimens or gain access to the laboratory 
processes or to areas where records are stored. Access to these secured areas 
must be limited to specifically authorized individuals whose authorization is 
documented. With the exception of personnel authorized to conduct inspections 
on behalf of Federal agencies for which the laboratory is engaged in urine testing 
or on behalf of the Secretary, any person not employed by the Contractor must be 
escorted at all times. Documentation of individuals accessing these areas, dates, 
and time of entry and purpose of entry must be maintained and kept available for 
audit. 

18.3 	 Laboratories must use chain-of-custody procedures to maintain control and 
accountability of specimens from receipt through the following processes: 

18.3.1 	 completion of testing, 

18.3.2 reporting results, 

18.3.3 during storage, and 

18.3.4 final disposition. 

18.4 	 The date and purpose must be documented on a chain-of-custody form each time 
a specimen is handled or transferred, and every individual in the chain must be 
identified. Accordingly, authorized technicians must be responsible for each 
urine specimen or aliquot in their possession and must sign and complete chain
of-custody forms for these specimens or aliquots as they are received. 

19.0 	 RETENTION OF SPECIMENS 

19.1 	 Specimens that do not receive an initial test within 7 days of arrival at the 
laboratory must be placed in secure refrigeration units. Temperatures must not 
exceed 6 degrees centigrade. An emergency power generator must be available in 
case of prolonged power failure to maintain the stability and integrity of 
specimens. 

19.2 	 All positive specimens must be placed in a limited access long-term, frozen 
storage area for a minimum of one year, and temperature must be maintained at 
20 degrees centigrade. Within this one year period Travis County may request the 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 30



laboratory to retain the specimen for an additional period of time; but, if no such 
request is received the Contractor must provide a list of those specimens and 
request permission of the Alcohol and Drug Testing Program Coordinator (the 
"Coordinator") to destroy the specimens. The Coordinator shall approve 
destruction if there is no pending litigation. If there is a legal challenge, the 
Contractor is required to maintain the specimens for an indefinite period. 

20.0 	 DRUG TEST RESULTS REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

20.1 	 The report must identify the drugs/metabolites tested for, whether positive or 
negative, and the presumptive positive level for each, the base specimen number 
assigned; the Contractor's laboratory number, and the test subject's Social Security 
number. The report must include a certified copy of the original chain-of-custody 
and must be signed by the certifying scientist. The results (positive and negative) 
for all specimens submitted on the same chain-of-custody form must be reported 
back to the MRO at the same time. 

20.2 	 The laboratory must report as negative all specimens which are negative on the 
initial test or negative on the confirmatory test. Only specimens confirmed 
positive for a specific drug or class of drug are reported positive for that specific 
drug. 

20.3 	 The MRO may request quantization of test results from the laboratory, and the 
laboratory must provide quantization of test results. 

20.4 	 Results must be transmitted in a secured manner so as to ensure confidentiality of 
the information. If the County approves a manner as one that is sufficiently 
secure, the laboratory may transmit results to the MRO by various electronic 
means. Results cannot be provided by telephone under any circumstances. The 
laboratory must ensure the security of the data transmission and limit access to 
any data transmission, storage, and retrieval system. 

20.5 	 The laboratory must send only to the MRO a certified copy of the original chain
of-custody form signed by the individual responsible for day-to-day management 
of the drug testing laboratory or the individual for attesting to the validity of the 
test results. 

20.6 	 The Contractor shall report to Travis County, by fax, Non-DOT negative or 
positive results of initial tests within twenty-four (24) hours from the date of 
collection. Fax notification of negative and positive initial test results must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing a certified copy of the chain-of
custody form. 

The Contractor shall provide to Travis County Pretrial Services a list of all 
Pretrial Services clients (individuals) who at the end of the business day did not appear at 
the collection facility to submit a sample as referred by the agency. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 31



response to 
longer due to circumstances which are nfr,,",,'''' 

Fax notification of positive initial test must 

p.m. 

shall report to 
hours from if collection is 

72 (seventy-two) hours 4:00 p.m. by fax. 
notification of negative initial test results must followed with notification via 

regular mail containing the certification of the negative results and a certified 
copy the chain-of custody form. 

"',...>,.,.",.. shall to County confirmatory 

tests within 72 (seventy-two) and 96 (ninety-six) 

collection fax, on the 

cases reporting 


federal regulations. 
followed notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 

positive results a certified of chain-of custody form. 

21.0 

21.1 	 In appropriate DHHS and/or DOT Guidelines, 
must send to County (listed on 
monthly summary report. Initial and confirmation data must be included from 
test results reported within that month. Normally this summary must be 
forwarded by registered mail not more than 14 calendar days the end the 
month covered by the summary. following 
information: 

21.1.1 Initial test reports must include following information: 

21 1.1.1 	 Number of 

21.1.1 	 Number 

21.1.1.3 	 of manJuana 
metabolites, cocaine metabolites, opiate metabolites, 
phencyclidine, and amphetamines 

21.1 	 Confilmatory rpY"'T1rC must the following information: 

21.1 	 Number of OJ"..... uu"u.;} received for confirmation, and 

21.1 	 of confirmed for: 
metabolite, cocaine metabolite, morphine, codeine, 
phencyclidine, amphetamine, and methamphetamine. 

a 

and 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 32



21.2 	 On a monthly basis the Contractor must supply to the Travis County Coordinator, 
the following information on specimens completed since the last report: 

21.2.1 	 Identification number, 

21.2.2 Laboratory Accession Number, 

21.2.3 	Date Specimen Received in Laboratory, 

21.2.4 Drugs Screened For, 

21.2.5 Confirmation Tests Conducted, 

21.2.6 Final Report (Positive or Negative), 

21.2.7 Date Report Sent to Travis County, and 

21.2.8 Specimen Turnaround Time. 

21.3 	 No later than the 10th working day after the end of the calendar month, the 
Contractor must submit a discrepancy report to Travis County 
Departments/Offices (listed on Attachment 5) with the following data: 

21.3.1 	 Reporting Month; 

21.3.2 For each 	 submitting location sending specimens during the reporting 
month, the total number of specimens received; and 

21.3.3 	 For each department submitting specimens during the reporting month, the 
total number of specimens discarded, broken down into the following 
categories: 

BU - Box unsealed or no signature or date on box seal 
NHHS - No DHHS chain-of-custody-form 
DOT - No DOT chain-of-custody form 
ISSN - Incomplete social security number 
ISPN - Incomplete base specimen number 
NCOC - No chain-of-custody form 
QNS - Volume in bottle is less than 30 ml 
LSSN 	- Social Security number on specimen label does not match the 

social security on the chain-of-custody form 
LAX - Laboratory Accident 

22.0 	 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR DHHS AND DOT DRUG TESTING 
PROGRAM 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 33



must be accounted 
(listed on 

Attachment 5). 

23.0 

24.0 	 Unless otherwise instructed by the DHHS in writing, all 
to a given urine specimen must be retained by the drug testing 

laboratory a minimum 2 years. Upon request from Travis County, the 
must provide any information or documents pertaining to procedures used at its 
laboratory for performance of contract. of procedures chain-of
custody, protocols, quality control, procedures manual 
County reserves the to Contractor to a procedure 
is not consistent with current DHHS or DOT 

reporting. 

25.0 	 GENERAL LITIGATION SUPPORT Depositions and interrogatories of Contractor 
personnel must by Contractor in conjunction with performed 
under this contract when requested by Travis County. County will endeavor, 
where feasible to limit these requests to written interrogatories. Contractor must 
establish procedures to insure timely and appropriate responses to requests for litigation 
support packages, discovery requests, and other inquiries. Where testimony is required in 
support drug testing the Contractor must provide witnesses as required. The 

must also provide expert testimony in support information contained in the 
Litigation Support Package, when requested. 

26.0 

26.1 	 Contractor must provide within ten (l0) business documentary 
in form a litigation support to used by County at an 
administrative proceeding in conjunction with testing performed under this 
contract. 

litigation support IJ~~'''~'_'' must consist of the following: 

26.2.1 	 Certification and authentication by appropriate laboratory 
containedhaving custody of the original documents that the 

the litigation support package are true and accurate copies of the 
documents maintained by laboratory as part regularly 

26.2.2 Laboratory Report form; 

26.2.3 Explanatory Affidavit, to include test 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 34



26.2.4 All data from the initial test results including all standards and controls run 
with the batch; 

 
26.2.5 All data including chromatographs and quantization reports from the 

GC/MS analysis including the standards and controls run with the batch; 
 

26.2.6 Copies of all internal chain-of-custody documents; and 
 

26.2.7 Summary qualifications of all personnel who appear on the chain-of-
custody documents. 

 
 
27.0 CONTRACTOR FURNISHED MATERIAL 
 

27.1 The Contractor must provide containers to transport all specimens from Travis 
County.  Containers must provide leak proof transportation to the Contractor's 
laboratory. 

 
27.2 The Contractor must provide all U.S. Postal Service approved packaging material 

for the transportation of urine specimens or, if other type of transportation is 
chosen, the appropriate packaging material must be provided by the Contractor.  
The shipping costs for First Class shipping of the specimens from the sites to the 
laboratory shall be prepaid by the Contractor. 

 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 35



4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 1004400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 36



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

NON-DOT UNOBSERYED 


12. 	 TYPE 1- Amphetamines, Carmabinoids, Cocaine, Opiates $ 26.00 
and Ethanol 

13. 	TYPE II -(Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Carmabinoids, $ 26.00 
Opiates, Ethanol) 

HHSD/Child Protective SeD'ices Testing OBSERVED 

14. (Amphetamines, Cocaines, Opiates, Carmabinoids, $ 32.00 
Benzodiazepines, Barbiturates, Phencyclidine, Phropoxyphene, · 
2nd (GUMS) and another LAB and MRO, Ethanol) 

MISCELLANEOUS TESTING 

15. Eye Scarming (PassPoint or equal) 	 $ See Addendum 

16. Hair Testing 	 $ See Addendum 

17. Oral Fluid Testing 	 $ 47.00 

18. Nail Testing 	 $ See Addendum 

19. Drug Patch 	 $ See Addendum 

20. ETGIETS Testing 	 $ 52.00 

21. K2/Spice Testing 	 $ 66.00 

22. Bath Salt Testing 	 $ 81.00 

23. 	 Ambien Testing $ 189 (unless combined 
with other standard County 
test ing then $69.00 

CONFIRMATION TESTING 

21. Amphetamine Confinnation Test (GCIMS) 	 $ 30.50 

22. Barbiturate Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 	 $ 30.50 

23. Benzodiazepines (BZE) Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 	 $ 30.50 

24. Cocaine Confinnation Test (GC/MS) 	 $ 30.50 

43 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 37



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

25. 	Opiate Confirmation Test (OCIMS) 

26. 	Phencyclidine Confirmation Test (OCIMS) 

27. Cannabinoids (THC) Confirmation Test (OC/MS) 


28 Phropoxyphene Confirmation Test (OC/MS) 


29. 	Ethanol (Alcohol) 

30. 	2nd (OCIMS) & another LAB and MRO 

TRAVEL TO PERFORM ON-CALL TESTING 

31. 	Between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday 
through Friday (non Holiday weekdays) or Holidays 
and weekends 24 hour emergency on-site response 

EXPERT WITNESS 

32. Expert Witness (Hourly Rate) 

MISCELLANEOUS REOUIREMENTS FOR "SHORT PROGRAM" 

33. 	SPANISH Speaking Interpreter on-site while Testing Center Open 
Per Hour Rate between the hours of7:00 - 6:00 (for the Short 
PrograrnlDrug Diversion Court Only) 

34. 	Notification via daily sign-in sheets faxed to the following two 
Departments ONLY: SHORT PrograrnlDrug Diversion Court 
And Pretrial Services Program. Daily cost for each department 
NO CHARGE 

$ 30.50 


$ 30.50 


$ 30.50 


$ 30.50 


$ 30.50 


$ 102.00 


$ 100.00 hourly 

$ 125.00 

$ See Addendum 

Whenever open, will have h.2.th the required qualified man and required qualified woman for direct observed 
testing on their respective counterparts? 0 X YES 0 No 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Certified Laboratory used? 
o 	XYES D No 

Location, contact person, phone number and address of all available clinics and hours of service at each location: 

ProResults DNA & Drug Testing 
7801 North Lamar, Suite B-159 
itustin, TX 78701 Contact: Sandi or Douglas Reinlie (512) 374 9977 

44 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 38



4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 39



ATTACHMENT C 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have, 
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of 
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards.  Depending on 
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate 
insurance options shall be imposed as follows: 
 
I.  General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors' Insurance.   
 
The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities 
pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning 
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and  subcontractor(s): 
 
 A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the 
duration of the Contract. 
 
 B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating 
of B+ VIII or higher. 
 
 C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier.   A copy of the Certificate of 
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract. 
 
 D. Certificates of Insurance  shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent  within ten (10) working days  of execution of the contract by both 
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first.  The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis 
County contract number and all endorsements by number. 
 

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall 
be considered primary for all claims. 
 

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. 
 

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements. 
 

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and 
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded. 
 

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during  any term of this 
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.  
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention.  All deductibles and 
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance. 
 

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit 
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s). 
 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 40



II. Specific Requirements   
 
The following requirements (II.A - II.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) performing 
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the 
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s): 
 
     A. Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance 

 
1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers' 
Compensation Act. 

 
2. Employers' Liability limits are: 
 

   $500,000 bodily injury each accident 
   $500,000 bodily injury by disease  
   $500,000 policy limit 
 

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin: 

   a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) 
   b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601) 
 
 B. Commercial General Liability Insurance 
 
  1. Minimum limit: 
   $500,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a  
   $1,000,000 policy aggregate 
 
  2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows: 
   a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract 
   b. Independent Contractor Coverage 
 

3.  The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County 
 
4.  a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404) 

   b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205) 
c.  Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010) 

 
 C. Business Automobile Liability Insurance† 
 

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and 
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence 

 2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County  
   a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A) 
   b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A) 
   c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B) 
 
†  Alternative Insurance Requirement 
 If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to 
and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of  

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 41



   $ 100,000/$300,000/$50,000  
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance 
 

D.  Professional Liability/E & O Insurance 
 

 1. Coverage shall be provided with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000 
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and 
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services 
under this Contract. 

 
 2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 

this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first.  Coverage shall include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated.  Certificate of 
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of 
coverage and the extended reporting dates. 

 
 3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor’s professional liability insurance 

shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their 
insurance policy. 

  
 E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance 
 

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than 
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the 
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances. 

   
  2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 

services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.   
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract 
expires or is terminated.  Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date. 

 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 42



""-

orth Lamar, Suite B-159 

Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS# 1208-005-ML 

ATTACHMENT 1. 

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
STATE OF TEXAS} 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS} 

Date: 10107/20 12 
Name of Affiant: Sandra Reinlie 
Title of Affiant: President 
Business Name of Offeror: ProResults CSandad Inc.) 
County of Offeror: Travis 
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true: 

1. 	 Affiant is authorized by Offeror to make this affidavit for Offeror. 
2. 	 Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit. 
3. 	 Affiant can read the English language. 
4. 	 Offeror has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this Request for 

Services which is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit A. 
5. 	 Affiant has personally read Exhibit A to this Affidavit. 
6. 	 Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit A with whom Offeror is 

doing business or has done business during the 365 day period immediately before the date of 
this a davit whose n e is not disclosed in Exhibit B. 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by ______on tlM- /6' ,20L7
Notary Public, State of Texas 

PAmE tot. lEACH 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 


AprI24,2013

My commission ex~:;:;;~____.....__~;;;;;;;;;;;;:;;;.a 

*4-/13 
7 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 43

http:Affiant:------lB~IJ..~~:.Jl


November 2, 2012 

CURRENT 
Name of Individual Name of Business 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe 


Executive Assistant .......................................... "....... Bro\Vn 

Executive Assistant ............................................ " ..... Melissa Velasquez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Josie Z. Zavala 

Executive Assistant... ... " .... " .............. " ...... " .... " ... " ... Cheryl Aker 


Precinct I .......................................... Ron Davis 

Precinct 1 Annie Davis 


Executive Assistant. ............................................... " .. Deone Wilhite 

Executive Assistant. ................................................... Felicitas Chavez 


Precinct 2 ......................................... Sarah Eckhardt 

Precinct 2 .... " .............. " ..... Kurt Sauer 


Executive Assistant ... " ........ " .................................... Loretta Farb 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Joe Hon 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Peter Einhorn 


Precinct 3 .......................................... Karen Huber 

Precinct 3 
 Leonard Huber 


Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Garry Brown 

Executive Assistant. .. " ... "." ... " .................................. Julie Wheeler* 

Executive Assistant. ............................... " .... "."",, ..... Jacob Cottingham 

COmnliS!HOller Precinct 4 ...... " ........... " .. " ................. Margaret Gomez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Edith Moreida 

Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Norma Guerra 

County Treasurer ....................................................... Dolores Ortega-Carter 

County Auditor ......................................................... Nicki Riley* 

County Administrative ............................. Vacant 

County & Leslie Browder* 


l::m:efj~.en<:y Services .................... Danny Hobby 
l::xlecultlvle, HealthlHuman Services ............... Sherri E. Fleming 

Justice & Public 
TNR ........................................... Steven M. Manilla, P.E.* 


............... Jefferies 

............................... EI Khoury, M.S., P.E. 


Interim ChiefInformation Officer.............. ........... .... Acevedo 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Rod Bro\VTI 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Walter Lagrone 


Steve Capelle 

Executive ....................... James Collins 


Land Use Division ...................................... Tom Nuckols 

Land Use Division ..................................... Julie Joe 

Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore 

Transactions Division ................................ John Hille 

Transactions Division ................................ Vacant 


Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Elizabeth Winn 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Mary Etta Gerhardt 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Barbara Wilson 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Jim Connolly 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Tenley Aldredge 

Director, Health Services Division ............................ Beth Devery 

Attorney, Health Services Division ........................... Pre rna Gregerson 


...................................................... Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 


Records & Communications ........ Steven Hn'lh"ra 

............................................ David Escamilla 

Seton 

Daffer McDaniel, LLP 

Retired 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 44



Assistant Purchasing Agent .. .. .... ....... .......... .... .... ..... Marvin Brice, CPPB 

Assistant Purchasing Agent .......... ... .......... ........ ..... ... Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ....... ..... ... ......... ...... CW Bruner, CTP 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ... ..... ........ ..... .. .. .... ... Lee Perry 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. .... ... ..... ......... ..... Jason Walker 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ... ... .. .. ..... ..... ... ..... .. .... Richard Villareal 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... .. .. .. ... .. ........ ......... Patrick Strittmatter* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ .. .. .. ... .. ...... .. ....... Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....... ....... .... ......... .... ... Scott Wilson, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .. .. .. ..... ... ........ .......... Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ....... ................... Loren Breland, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ ...... ....... .. ........... John E. Pena, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ................................ Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ..... ... .. .......... ...... Angel Gomez* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ... ..... ..... ... ............. Shannon Pleasant, CTPM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ... ... .... .... .... ................ David Walch 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .................. ........ Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ....... ... ........... ........ Nancy Barchus, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ................. .. ...... .. ....... Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .... .... .................. Sydney Ceder* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. ..... ...... .. ... .... ..... Vacant 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .......... .......................... Jayne Rybak, CTP* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 11.. .. ... .... ................. .. .. .... L. Wade Laursen* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .. ... .. .. ............ ..... ... .. ..... Sam Francis* 

HUB Coordinator ...... ........... ... .. ..... .. ..... .... ............. .. . Sylvia Lopez 

HUB Specialist... ........ ..... ................. .. .. .. ...... .. ........ .. . Betty Chapa 

HUB Specialist ..... ... .. ..... .. .. .......... ... .. ..... ..... .. ..... ..... .. Jerome Guerrero 

Purchasing Business Analyst.. ............ .. .. .. .......... ... .... Scott Worthington 

Purchasing Business Analyst .. ......... .. ........ .. .............. Jennifer Francis 


FORMER EMPLOYEES 

Name ofIndividual 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ......... .. .... .... .. ......... Diana Gonzalez .................... ...... ... ... .. ........ 12116112 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. .. ....................... Elizabeth Corey, C.P .M.......... .. ... ...... ......... 03114113 

Attorney, Transactions Division .. .. . .. ......... ..... .. ......... Tamara Annstrong .................. .. ..... .. ........... 03/30113 

Executive Assistant... ..... ... ............. .. .......... .. ............. Lori Duarte ....................................... .. .... ... 06115113 

ChiefInforma tion Officer. .... ........... .. .. ..... .. ...... .. ...... Joe Harlow .................. ................ .. ............. 07/31113 

County Auditor ........... .. .... .. .................................... Susan Spataro, CPA .................................... 08/31113 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... ... .... .... .... .. ........... George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P ....... .. ...... 09/26/ 13 


* - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 45



2 
DISCLOSURE 

acknowledges Offeror is doing or has business the 365 day 
period immediately to the date on which contract is with the following key 
contracting persons and warrants that are the only key contracting persons: 

no one IS warrants Offeror is not doing and has not done 
business during 365 day immediately prior to on which Request for 

response is made with any key contracting person. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 46



ATTACHMENT E 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 47



shall not 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY 

EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 


Federal Executive Order 12549 Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has 
a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary 
exclusion. Each covered contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors. 

In this certification "contractor" refers to both contractor and subcontractor; "contract" refers to both contract and subcontract. 

By and submitting this celrtilllcllti4~n, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms: 

1. 	 The certification herein below is a material of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous in addition 
to other remedies available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including 
and/or debarment. 

2. 	 The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any 
time the potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason 
of changed circumstances. 

3. 	 The words "covered contract," " "suspended," " "participant," " "principle," "proposal," and 
excluded," as used in this certification have based upon materials in the Definitions and 


sections of federal rules Executive Order 12549. 

4. 	 The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it 

enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
palrtl(:lp,atU)n in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travi" 

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? __YES 

5. 	 The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, 	 Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts "without 

in all covered subcontracts"; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts. 
6. 	 A contractor may upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, or 

VOluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a 
minimum, obtain certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each subcontract's initiation and upon each renewal. 

7. 	 Nothing contained in all the shall be construed to establishment of a system of records in order to render in 
good faith the certification required by this certification document The knowledge and information of a contractor is not 

to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the 
8. 	 for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract 

a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, 
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency andlor Travis County may 
pursue available andlor debarment. 

course of business 

or voluntarily excluded from palrtlclp,ltIo!n 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING UI:..D&:run "'''''''J'l,.INELIGIBILlTY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION 
FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement to the covered contractor/potential contractor: 

D 111e contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is 
debarred, proposed for debarment, declared or voluntarily excluded from 

any federal or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County. 

The contractor is unable to to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, 
the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make 
certification. Attach the explanation(s) to this certification. 

Name of Contractor 	 Vendor 1.0. or Social Security No. 

of Authorized Representative Date 	 Name & Title of Authorized 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 48



ATTACHMENT F 


PROPOSAL 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 49



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

Solicitation 1208-00S-ML 


Drug and Alcohol Testing 


Travis County 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 50



~ ProREsults 
"""" Drug and DNA Testing 

RFS#1208-005-ML 
10107/2012 

SUBJECT: Request for Services 


TO: Travis County Purchasing Office 


TRANSMITTAL LETTER 

ProResults offers the following proposal to all Travis County departments requiring drug-testing 
services. 

RELIABILITY 
ProResults is committed to giving our customers consistent, professional and rapid results. The 
same calibrators and controls that are specifically designed for our contractor's equipment are 
used for every test series. The same reagents are used for every batch. Consistency and quality 
are as important to us as giving our customers the absolute best service possible. 

EXTENDED HOURS 
We understand the difficulty associated with scheduling a job in one part of Austin and making it 
to an appointment before closing when traffic is congested. This is why we have hours of 
operation from 8:30 AM to 5:30 PM, Monday thru Friday, with no appointment necessary. We are 
happy to accommodate alternate hours, however an appointment is required. We have also, on 
occasion, stayed in the office after hours for the occasional customer that has called while on the 
way but was delayed by traffic. While this isn't our normal protocol, we try to be as 
accommodating as possible for the convenience of our customers and their caseworkers. 

RAPID RESULTS 
ProResults works with numerous certified labs, and this gives us access to STAT tests results for 
some tests, if an emergency arises. We understand that getting results fast is of great 
importance to all departments. We provided superior customer service & will gladly help in way. 

EXPERIENCE 
We have been in business for more than seven years, balanced by our management staff with a 
combined technical and business background spanning over 30 years. We currently provide drug 
and alcohol-testing services for businesses and rehabilitation programs in Austin and our track 
record with the county speaks for itself, with the departments we have serviced in the previous 
contract period while this RFS process is being conducted. We have a direct record with Travis 
County of more than six years. 

LOW PRICES 
We understand that pricing is an issue for the county, just as it is for the private sector. Our 
commitment to make drug screening as affordable as possible extends to the county. Our pricing 
allows our clients to select testing types and quantities appropriate to their needs, while 
maximizing the effectiveness of their budget dollars. 

COMMITMENT 
ProResuJts understands that the services we provide impact the lives of people we test in a 
serious and sometimes dramatic way. Standard and DOT drug testing are designed to determine 
whether an individual has ingested an illegal substance, however the levels can vary. This is 
where our understanding of Travis County requirements is crucial. Observed collections are 
required to prevent individuals from adulterating or tampering with samples. Detection cut-off 
levels must be within the requirements of the county to make certain the various programs are 
being adhered to. Our commitment to this effort stems from a driven pursuit of professional 
excellence, and a principled obligation to help our community in a quantifiable manner. 

Best Regards, 

Sandi Reinlie, 
President, ProResults 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 51



~ ProResults 

" Drug and DNA Testing 

RFS#1208-005-ML 
10107/2012 

DETAILED PROPOSAL 
PART I, SECTION B - REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 

2.3.2 -	 Contractor has been providing professional drug and alcohol testing services since 2003 . 
2.3.3 -	 Offeror has been providing drug and alcohol testing services for more than seven years. 
2.3.4 - ProResults uses certified, subcontracted labs to perform all chemical analysis & GC/MS 
confirmation of specimens. ProResults' employees are certified to perform collections of 
specimens, not limited to: urine, hair, nail, breath, & saliva. ProResults has been a long-time 
member of DATIA (Drug and Alcohol Testing Industry Association). Subcontractor Labs include: 
ATN , Quest, MedTox, LabCorp, Norchem, Expertox & Chromosomal Labs (SEE PROPOSER 
QUALI FICATIONS). 

REFERENCES: 
The Cole Group (Employment Services) Donald Cole 
5151 Katy Freeway, Suite 204 713-880-9494 
Houston, TX 77007 
Services provided: pre-employment drug screening for their clients located in Austin, TX. 
The Cole Group has been our client since 2003. 

Austin Drug and Alcohol Abuse Program Dan Davey 
7801 N Lamar, Suite D-109 512-454-8180 
Austin , TX 78752 
Services provided : rehabilitation program for ADAAP's clients & DOT testing for ADAAP's employees. 
ADAAP has been our client for more than six years. 

The Milner Law Firm Joe or Scott Milner 
4210 Spicewood Springs Rd ., Suite 210 512-420-0555 
Austin, TX 78759 
Services provided: E.t.G. Alcohol testing, hair & urine drug testing & court testimony. 
The Milner Law Firm has used our services for more than five years. 

2.5 -	 ProResults provides the following services: 
DNA & forensic testing 
Drug testing using the following types of specimens: urine, hair, saliva, & nails 
Alcohol testing via urine (E.t.G. or immunoassay in conjunction with GC/MS), saliva & 

breath 

ProResults has 4 employees to provide specimen collections both on-site & off-site, with our 
office centrally located in Austin, TX. 
2.6 -	 ProResults representatives may be reached by calling our main phone # 512-374-9977 

Sandi Reinlie - President 
Doug Reinlie - Lab Consultant 
Gina Faulkner - Office Manager 
Mila Reinlie - Receptionist 

PART II - SCOPE OF SERVICE 
SECTION A - TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS - ALCOHOL TESTING 
1.0-1.4 
ProResults utilizes a PBA-3000 for breath alcohol testing . This device is approved by the DOT 
and NHTSA and meets all requirements set forth in the RFS. This device is portable with and 
uses a portable printer. ProResults uses a private area for all testing. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 52



ORIGINAL 

~ProResults 

"""1 Drug and DNA TEsting 
RFS#1208-005-ML 
10107/2012 

PART II - SCOPE OF SERVICE 
SECTION B - TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS - DRUG TESTING 

1.0 Required Standard of Workmanship 
ProResults and its subcontractors meet all criteria described within the Required Standard of 
Workmanship. 

2.0-2.18 Technical Definitions 
ProResults acknowledges and confirms the understanding and intent of the Technical Definitions 
and confirms compliance with said criteria. . 

3.0- 3.18 Scope of Work 
ProResults and its subcontractors understand the requirements set forth in the RFS and currently 
comply with these requirements. ProResults and its subcontractors are governed by and adhere 
to State and Federal regulation pertaining to the technical requirements of Travis County. 

4.0-12.0 
Cited requirements are compliant with existing industry standards, which ProResults and its 
subcontractors adhere to. 

13.0 -13.1.3 
Expert witness testimony as set forth in this section is available as required . 

14.0 -15.0 
ProResults maintains complete training and personnel files for all staff members. 

16.1 -16.3 
ProResults and its subcontractors follow all required quality assurance measures. 

17.0 - 20.7 
ProResults and its subcontractors adhere to the current standards set forth by Federal , State and 
County requirements set-forth in the cited paragraphs. 

21.0 - 27.2 
ProResults and its subcontractors current reporting standards are in compliance with the 
requirements of Travis County. We understand the standards of the litigation support package 
requirements and have processes in place to support these measures. 

PART II - SCOPE OF SERVICE 

SECTION C - ATTACHMENT 4: FEE SCHEDULE 

See corresponding section of this proposal labeled ADEN DUM & Attachment of Fee Schedule. 

PART II - SCOPE OF SERVICE 
SECTION D - ATTACHMENT 5: DEPARTMENT INVOICE CONTACTS 
We have made note of these contacts and will keep them on file. 

PART III- Professional Services Agreement 
ProResults understands and agrees to all issues in this section and shall add the required Form 
W-9 to the list of required documents for submittal with this proposal. Please note that ProResults 
has a current W-9 filed with Travis County. SEE ATTACHED. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 53

http:3.0-3.18
http:2.0-2.18


~ProResults
""'1 Drug and DNA Testing 

RFS#1208-005-ML 
10107/2012 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
ProResults understands the requirements of this section and agrees to comply with all insurance 
requirements associated with the services provided to Travis County. 

ProResults understands and agrees to the terms and conditions set forth in this section of the 
RFS. This agreement is evidenced by the signature of ProResults duly authorized agent. 

PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS 

RESUMES 
See corresponding section of this proposal labeled BIOGRAPHIES. 

NAMES OF LABORATORIES AND CERTIFICATIONS 
ATN (Advanced Toxicology Network) - SAMHSA 

Expertox - CLlA, CAP-FUDT 

LabCorp - SAMHSA 

MedTox - SAMHSA 

USDTL - CAP-FUDT, CLiA 

OMEGA - CLlA, Federal Voluntary Hair Proficiency Testing Program 

Quest Diagnostics - SAMHSA, CAP-FUDT 

Chromosomal Laboratories - AABB certified 


DESCRIPTION OF COMPANY 
ProResults is a seven-year old, locally owned drug and DNA testing company, open from 8:30AM to 
5:30PM, Monday thru Friday with no appointment necessary. We are happy to accommodate alternate 
hours, however an appointment is required. For employee qualifications, please refer to the section of 
this proposal labeled BIOGRAPHIES. ProResults will provide the county with drug and alcohol testing 
services conducted, tested or collected in our office as prescribed by the RFS. Our office is located at 
7801 N Lamar Blvd, Suite B-159. We are located on the Southeast corner of the intersection of Hwy 183 
and Lamar. This is a heavily traveled, and recognized intersection in Austin, easily accessible by public 
transportation. Our location is diagonally located on the opposite side of the intersection from the North 
Lamar Transfer Station, which is a major hub for Austin METRO (Austin Transit System). 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 54



~ ProResults 

) Drug and DNA Testing 

RFS#1208-005-ML 
10107/2012 

BIOGRAPHIES 

Doug Reinlie 

Doug holds has an undergraduate degree in Business and Marketing. His career has spanned 39 years 
and includes expertise in owning and managing multiple businesses in private and franchise 
environments. Prior to his current position with ProResults, he attended training for the maintenance and 
operation of chemical analyzers and obtained certifications for Department of Transportation drug and 
alcohol collection and testing methodologies. After being trained on all of the equipment and collection 
procedures, he began performing administrative functions as the Government Contracts Manager. In 
this position he is directly responsible for the operations of the ProResults drug-screening office in 
Austin and performs the duties of Lab Manager. 

Sandi Reinl ie 

Sandi graduated Magna Cum Lade with a Bachelor of Arts from Texas State University in 2001 . After 
graduation, she worked as a business manager for a multimillion-dollar local corporation, with national 
sales and distribution. Currently, Sandi manages the Billing and Operations aspects of ProResults. She 
is responsible for taking collections, observed collections, and DOT collections. Additionally, Sandi 
attended training for the maintenance and operation of chemical analyzers and obtained certifications for 
Department of Transportation drug and alcohol collection and testing methodologies. 

Gina Faulkner 

Gina has been a star employee of ProResults (Sandad Inc.) for almost three years. She has completed 
training & received certification on the procedure of specimen collections for urine & hair samples. She 
is responsible for the collection of specimens, completing Chain of Custody forms, maintaining clients 
relations & invoicing. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 55



~ ProResults 
""'1 Drug and DNA TEsting 

RFS#1208-005-ML 
10107/2012 

ADENDUM 

REQUEST FOR SERVICES 
PROFESSIONAL DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES 

RFS NUMBER: S0602S2-ML 

PART II, SECTION C, FEE SCHEDULE 

1. Items #10 and #11 - Expedited results do not conform to DOT or H HS standards and cannot be 
confirmed within the time allotted. Negative results may be obtained within the time allotted , 
however, positive results would require confirmation, which would exceed the time allotted. 

2. 	 Item #15 - ProResults will agree to provide Eye Scanning for Travis County, utilizing the PassPoint 
system, under the following criteria . Travis County will disclose a pre-set total number of clients 
(minimum and maximum) that will be in the Pass Point program. This agreement is contingent upon 
Travis County committing to a one year term for the use of the PassPoint system. Further, Travis 
County must agree to a minimum weekly billing of $1000 as an access fee in the event that the 
weekly volume of eye scans falls below 150 scans. Due to the requirements of the PassPoint 
system and the overall nature of eye scanning as related to drug testing, ProResults can only offer 
this program to Travis County, with the understanding of Travis County, that once a client is entered 
into the PassPoint system, the client must test on the same PassPoint machine each time. The 
PassPoint System can perform up to three hundred tests per day after baselines on all participants 
have been established. ProResults will waive the standard $15 per baseline fee for Travis County 
With these terms and conditions agreed to by Travis County, ProResults submits the following fee 
schedule for use of the PassPoint system. 

PassPoint Fee Schedule 
• 	 0 - 84 Eye Scans per week - $1000 Flat Rate Access Fee 
• 	 85 - 149 Eye Scans per week - $13 per scan 
• 	 150 - 199 Eye Scans per week - $11 per scan 
• 	 200 - 274 Eye Scans per week - $9 per scan 
• 	 275 - 374 Eye Scans per week - $8 per scan 
• 	 375 - 499 Eye Scans per week - $7 per scan 
• 	 500+ Eye Scans per week - $6 per scan 
• 	 Observed Collection Urinalysis Confirmation (9 panel + ETOH) of "High Risk" results - $7 

each 

3. 	 Item #16 - ProResults offers four types of Hair Testing. Standard time frame is 90 days. 
5 Panel Hair Tests (Amphetamines/Methamphetamines, Cocaine, THC, Opiates, PCP) $88 
7 Panel Hair Tests (Amphetamines/Methamphetamines, Cocaine, THC, Opiates, 
Benzodiazepines, and Barbiturates) $168 
10 Panel Hair Tests (Amphetamines/Methamphetamines, Cocaine, THC, Opiates, PCP, 
Benzodiazepines, Propoxyphenes, Barbiturates and Methadone) $179 
EtG (habitual abuse of alcohol) 
BODY HAIR - may be collected if no head hair is present - the sample tests back approximately 
6 months -- $35 additional 

4. 	 Item # 18 - ProResults offers three types of Nail Testing . 

Standard time frame is 6 months. (uses nail clippings and scrapings) 

5 Panel Nail Test (Amphetamines/Methamphetamines, Cocaine, THC, Opiates, PCP) $155 

10 Panel Nail Test (Amphetamines/Methamphetamines, Cocaine, THC, Opiates, PCP, 

Benzodiazepines, Propoxyphenes, Barbiturates and Methadone) $218 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 56



~ ProResults 

~ Drug and DNA Testing 

RFS#1208-005-ML 
10107/2012 

Standard Time frame is 2 - 4 weeks (use nail clipping only, not scrapings) 

EtG (habitual abuse of alcohol) $194 


5. 	 Item #19 Drug Patch-ProResults will agree to provide the drug, sweat patch for the purpose of 
monitoring drug use & would require a minimum of 10 patches per individual tested. The cost for 
each drug patch is $60. 

6. 	 Item # 33 - Spanish Speaking Interpreter-Requires minimum of 4 hours notice for an on-site 
interpreter. ProResults has a Russian interpreter on-site in the afternoon. 

7. 	 Additional Service #1 - Extended Adulteration Panel 
Additional adulteration test for Creatinine, Nitrite, Gluteraldehyde, pH , Specific Gravity and 
Oxidants - $15 

8. 	 Additional Service # 2 - E.t.G. Alcohol urine screen (Ethyl Glucuronide) 
Detects as little as 1 drink for up to 80 hours. 

9. 	 Additional Service #3 - Comprehensive 18 Panel adds 8 items to existing 9 Panel plus alcohol. 
Items include Meperidine, Ketamine, Tramadol, Pentazodine, Oxycodone, Butorphanol , GHB and 
LSD. - $62 

10. 	 Additional Service #4-Limit of Detection: No Charge 

II. 	Additional Service #5-Designer Drugs/Synthetics 
Kratom--$120.00 
Psychoactive Comprehensive Designer Drug Panel--$170.00 
Salvia Divinorium (plant)--$90.00 
Benzylpiperazines--$120.00 
Bromo-Dragon Fly--$90.00 
Phenethylylamines--$130.00 
Psilcoin & lVIescaline--$150.00 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 57

http:lVIescaline--$150.00
http:Phenethylylamines--$130.00
http:Fly--$90.00
http:Benzylpiperazines--$120.00
http:plant)--$90.00
http:Panel--$170.00
http:Kratom--$120.00


Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

Bid 1208-00S-ML 
Drug and Alcohol Testing 

Bid Number 1208-005-ML 

Bid Title Drug and Alcohol Testing 

Bid Start Date Oct 2, 2012 10:57:38 AM CDT 

Bid End Date Oct 10, 2012 3:00:00 PM CDT 

Question & Answer 
End Date 

Oct 3, 2012 4:30:00 PM CDT 

Bid Contact Mike Long 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III 

512-854-4850 

mike.long@co.travis.tx.us 

Contract Duration 

Contract Renewal 

Prices Good for 

90 days 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Standard Disclaimer 

Bid Comments 

Unless otherwise noted, there is no fee charged to the vendor to participate in an electronic 
solicitation issued by Travis County. 
Travis County reserves the right to reject any or all bids, in whole or in part, to waive any 
informality in any bid, and to accept that bid which, in its discretion, is in the best interest of 
Travis County. 

September 19,2012 

You are invited to submit your proposal in accordance with the requirements in this REQUEST 
FOR SERVICES (RFS) #1208-005-ML, DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES for Travis 
County. 
Proposals must be submitted with an ORIGINAL (MARKED "ORIGINAL") AND NINE (9) 
COPIES to the Travis County Purchasing Agent, 700 Lavaca, 8th Floor, Austin, Texas 78701, 
no later than 3:00 P.M. CST ON October 10, 2012. 
Or you may upload your proposal to Travis County's third party online procurement website, 
www.bidsync.com. no later than 3:00 p.m. CST on October 10, 2012. 
*Please upload only one pdf document. If you submit your proposal online, there is no need 
to submit an original and nine (9) hard copies. 
FOR ANY INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS RFS, PROPOSERS MAY ONLY CONTACT CYD 
GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, PURCHASING AGENT; MARVIN BRICE, CPPB, ASSISTANT 
PURCHASING AGENT; OR MICHAEL LONG, CPPB, PURCHASING AGENT ASSISTANT AT (512) 
8549700. CONTACT WITH ANY OTHER PERSON ASSOCIATED WITH THIS RFS MAY RESULT 
IN DISQUALIFICATION OF THE PROPOSAL. 
During this procurement process, potential proposers shall not contact individual members 
of the Travis County Commissioners Court regarding this solicitation. Any such contact may 
result in disqualification of the proposal . 

All proposals shall be submitted to the Travis County Purchasing Agent in a sealed envelope 
marked: 
REQUEST FOR SERVICES 
RFS #1208-005-ML 
DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES 
DO NOT OPEN IN MAILROOM 
Your consideration of this Request for Services is appreciated. 
Sincerely, 

Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Purchasing Agent 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 58



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

Item Response Form OR~ 
Item 1208-00S-ML--Ol-0l - Drug and Alcohol Testing 

Quantity 1 each 

Prices are not requested for this item. 

Delivery Location Travis County 
No Location Specified 

Qty 1 

Description 
Pricing for this RFS shall be submitted on Part II, Section C, Fee Schedule, and uploaded with your Proposal. 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 59



Travis County 

TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING OFFICE 
Cyd V Grimes CP.M, CPPO, Purchasing Agent 

700 Lavaca Street, Ste.800 0 Austin, Texas 78701 0 (512) 854-9700 0 Fax (512) 854-9185 

September 19,2012 

You are invited to submit your proposal in accordance with the requirements in this REQUEST FOR 
SERVICES (RFS) #1208-005-ML, DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES for Travis 
County. 

Proposals must be submitted with an ORlGINAL <MARKED "ORlGINAL") AND NINE (9) 
COPIES to the Travis County Purchasing Agent, 700 Lavaca, gth Floor, Austin, Texas 78701, no later 
than 3:00 P.M. CST ON October 10,2012. 

Or you may upload your proposal to Travis County's third party online procurement website, 
www.bidsync.com. no later than 3:00p.m. CST on October 10, 2012. 

*Please upload only one pdf document. If you submit your proposal online, there is no need to submit 
an original and nine (9) hard copies. 

FOR ANY INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS RFS, PROPOSERS MAY ONL Y CONTACT CYD 

GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, PURCHASING AGENT; MARVIN BRICE, CPPB, ASSISTANT 

PURCHASING AGENT; OR MICHAEL LONG, CPPB, PURCHASING AGENT ASSISTANT AT 

(512) 854 9700. CONTACT WITH ANY OTHER PERSON ASSOCIATED WITH TIDS RFS MAY 

RESULT IN DISQUALIFICA nON OF THE PROPOSAL. 

During this procurement process, potential proposers shall not contact individual members of the 
Travis County Commissioners Court regarding this solicitation. Any such contact may result in 
disqualification of the proposal. 

All proposals shall be submitted to the Travis County Purchasing Agent in a sealed envelope marked: 

REQUEST FOR SERVICES 

RFS #1208-005-ML 

DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES 

DO NOT OPEN TI\f MAILROOM 

Your consideration of this Request for Services is appreciated. 

Sir> Y' 
c;Jv Grimes, C.P.M.; CPPO 
Purchasing Agent 

1 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 60

http:www.bidsync.com


Travis County 

PART I 

SECTION A 

SECTION B 

SECTION C 

SECTION D 

PART II 

SECTION A 

SECTION B 

SECTION C 

SECTION D 

PART III 

REQUEST FOR SERVICES 

DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES 


RFS NO. 1208-005-ML 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


GENERAL REOUIREMENTS 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 

ATTACHMENT 1 - ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
EXHIBIT A - LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING 

PERSONS 
EXHIBIT B - DISCLOSURE 

ATTACHMENT 2 - HUB DECLARATION OF 
ELIGIBILITY AND LIST OF CERTIFIED HUB 
SUBCONTRACTORS 

ATTACHMENT 3 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

NEGOTIATIONS 

SCOPE OF SERYICES 

TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS ALCOHOL TESTING 

TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS DRUG TESTING 

FEE SCHEDULE 

TRAVIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT CONTACTS 


DRAFT PROFESSIONAL SERYICES AGREEMENT 


RFS# 1208-005-ML 


PAGE 

3-5 

5-6 

7 
8-9 

10 

11-16 

17-19 

20 

21 

22 

23-41 

42-45 

46 

47 

2 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 61



Travis County 

RFS# 1208-00S-ML 


REQUEST FOR SERVICES 


DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES 


RFS # 1208-00S-ML 


PART I - GENERAL REOUIREMENTS 


PART I, SECTION A - GENERAL INFORMATION 


1.0 PURPOSE: 

The Travis County Purchasing Agent, acting on behalf of the Travis County Commissioners 
Court, is requesting proposals from qualified finns, agencies or individuals interested in 
providing Drug and Alcohol Testing. 

2.0 INCURRED EXPENSES: 

There is no expressed or implied obligation for Travis County to reimburse offerors for any 
expense incurred in preparing proposals in response to this request, and Travis County will not 
reimburse anyone for these expenses. Travis County will consider proposals from all qualified, 
responsible offerors. 

3.0 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL: 

Telegraphic and faxed proposals will not be considered; however, proposals may be modified 
by telegraphic or faxed notice provided such notice is received prior to the time and date set for 
the proposal opening and specific proposal prices are not exposed by such amendment. 

4.0 LATE PROPOSALS OR MODIFICATIONS: 

Proposals and/or modifications to proposals received after the time set for the proposal 
submission will not be considered, and will be returned to sender unopened. 

5.0 WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS: 

A proposal may not be withdrawn by the offeror without the pennission of Travis County for a 
period of ninety (90) days following the date designated for the receipt of proposals, and an 
offeror agrees to this by submitting a proposal. 

6.0 POINTS OF CONTACT: 

Infonnation regarding the purchasing process, the contents of this RFS, or questions concerning 
the Scope of Services in Part II may be obtained from the Travis County Purchasing Office. 

3 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 62



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

OR~ WAL 

RFS# 1208-005-ML 

When requesting information or submitting questions, please refer to the RFS number at the top 
of this page. 

7.0 CLARIFICATION OR OBJECTION TO PROPOSAL SPECIFICATION: 

If any Offeror contemplating submitting a proposal for this contract is in doubt as to the true 
meaning of the specifications or other documents or any part thereof, a request for clarification 
should be submitted to the Purchasing Agent on or before SEVEN (7) DAYS PRIOR to the 
scheduled opening of the proposals. All such requests for information shall be made in writing 
and the person submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery. Any 
interpretation of the RFS will be made only by an RFS Amendment duly issued. A copy of 
such RFS Amendment will be mailed or faxed to each person receiving a solicitation. 

8.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS: 

Offeror represents that the requirements, schedule, instructions and all other RFS documents 
have been thoroughly examined and that all investigations necessary to be thoroughly informed 
regarding delivery of the services as required by the RFS conditions have been conducted. 

9.0 QUALIFICATIONS: 

The minimum required qualifications include: 

Licensed/certified/credentialed personnel and facilities to provide drug and alcohol testing 
services in accordance with all applicable County, Texas State, and Federal statutes, 
rules/guidelines and regulations . 

*The Juvenile Probation Department and Family Drug Treatment Court will only accept 
those Jabs that are currently SAMSHA certified and meet the standards of Subpar C of 
the Mandatory Guidelines for Federal Drug Testing Programs. * 

10.0 OTHER CONDITIONS: 

10.1 The Offeror agrees that all uses of Travis County facilities, utilities and supplies shall be 
solely with the prior approval of Travis County and solely for the benefit of Travis 
County and directly related to the Offeror's actions under this contract. 

10.2 Insurance Requirements 	CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements 
set out in Attachment 3 "Insurance Requirements" which is incorporated herein by 
reference and made a part hereof. 

10.3 The offeror shall provide a facility located in Austin, Texas which operates between 
7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. The purpose of such hours is to 
collect urine specimens and conduct alcohol and drug testing. 

4 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 63



Travis County 

RFS# 1208-005-ML 


The offeror shall provide a qualified Male for Non DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION (DOT) Direct Observed Male testing and a qualified Female for 
Non-DOT Direct Observed Female testing at the above facility. 

Offeror shall also provide HRMD/TNR Departments coverage twenty-four (24) hour, 
seven (7) days a week, including Weekend and Holiday coverage. Monday through 
Friday from 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. on non-holiday days. On Holidays and Weekends, 
twenty-four (24) hour coverage for on-site emergency service. 

PART I, SECTION B -REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 

1.0 	 The documentation required for submittal with the Offeror's proposal is described In the 
following paragraphs. Paragraph 2.0 describes documentation that will be used in the 
evaluation of the Offeror's proposal. Paragraph 3.0 lists other documents that must be 
submitted. Please note this Section B may not address all documentation required by the 
RFS. The offeror is cautioned to read the entire RFS to determine all requirements. 
TRAVIS COUNTY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT A PROPOSAL THAT 
DOES NOT CONTAIN ALL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THIS RFS. 

2.0 	 To achieve a uniform review process and to obtain a maximum degree of comparability, 
Travis County requires that proposals be submitted with an original (marked "original") 
and nine (9) copies. They are to include the following: 

2.1 	 Title Page - The Title page must show the RFS subject and number; the Offeror's name; 
the name, address, and telephone number of a contact person; and the date of the 
proposal. 

2.2 	 Transmittal Letter - Submit a signed letter briefly addressing the Offeror's 
understanding of the work to be done, the commitment to do the work detailed within 
this RFS and a statement explaining why the offeror believes itself to be best qualified 
to do the required work. 

2.3 	 Detailed Proposal - The detailed proposal must address the ability to provide services 
for each requirement set forth in this RFS, including but not limited to, responses to the 
following items: 

2.3.1 	 The detailed proposal must address the ability to provide each requirement as set 
forth in this RFS. See especially Part I, Section C, item 2.0 Evaluation Factors 
and Award Criteria for information required. 

2.3 .2 	 How long has Offeror been providing drug and alcohol testing services? 

2.3.3 	 Does your company intend to subcontract any of the work to be performed 
under the Scope of Services to another company? If so, what part, what 
percentage, and to whom? 

5 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 64



Travis County 

RFS# 1208-00S-ML 


2.4 	 Offeror References - The Offeror must furnish references for at least three (3) 
organizations for which you or your firm has provided similar services during the past 
five (5) years. These references must include (a) a description of the service and 
location of the contract and (b) the name, address and telephone number of at least one 
(1) person that represents the Offeror's customer and a detailed description of the key 
issues worked on for those organizations. Travis County may contact or visit any of the 
listed customers to evaluate the services proposed in response to this RFS. 

2.5 	 Description of Offeror - The description must include services the Offeror provides 
(including licensing authorities if applicable), the number of employees both inside and 
outside of Travis County, and the location of service facilities. 

2.6 	 Offeror Representative - Include the name of the designated individual, along with 
respective telephone numbers, who will be responsible for answering technical and 
contractual questions with respect to the proposal. 

2.7 	 Cost Proposal - Offerors shall complete the fee schedule as indicated in Part II Section 
C- Fee Schedule. Include an estimate and description of anticipated miscellaneous 
expenses, if applicable. These expenses may be reimbursed at cost plus a negotiated 
fee. Offerors shall propose the fee. 

3.0 	 Offerors must complete and return the following documents with their proposal: 

3.1 * 	 Ethics Affidavit (Attachment 1), including the accompanying Exhibits A and B; 

3.2* 	 HUB Declaration and List of Certified HUB Subcontractors (Attachment 2); and 

3.3 	 All other information required by this RFS. 

*These documents are included as Attachments to this Part I, Section B. 

4.0 	 Offeror must submit the following documents after contract award: 

4.1 	 Insurance documentation within ten (10) days and before beginning work; 

4.2 	 All other information required in this RFS. 

5.0 	 Conflict of Interest 

If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code, the Contractor shall complete and 
file the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 
Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751. The Contractor shall update this Questionnaire by 
September 1 of each year for the duration of this Contract, as required by Chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code. In addition, if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes 
incomplete or inaccurate, the Contractor shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The Contractor 
should note that the law requires the County to provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the 
official Travis County Internet website. 

NOTE; FAILURE TO PROVIDE ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED MAY RESULT IN 
DISQUALIFICATION OF THE PROPOSAL. 

6 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 65



""-

orth Lamar, Suite B-159 

Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS# 1208-005-ML 

ATTACHMENT 1. 

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
STATE OF TEXAS} 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS} 

Date: 10107/20 12 
Name of Affiant: Sandra Reinlie 
Title of Affiant: President 
Business Name of Offeror: ProResults CSandad Inc.) 
County of Offeror: Travis 
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true: 

1. 	 Affiant is authorized by Offeror to make this affidavit for Offeror. 
2. 	 Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit. 
3. 	 Affiant can read the English language. 
4. 	 Offeror has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this Request for 

Services which is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit A. 
5. 	 Affiant has personally read Exhibit A to this Affidavit. 
6. 	 Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit A with whom Offeror is 

doing business or has done business during the 365 day period immediately before the date of 
this a davit whose n e is not disclosed in Exhibit B. 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by ______on tlM- /6' ,20L7
Notary Public, State of Texas 

PAmE tot. lEACH 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 


AprI24,2013

My commission ex~:;:;;~____.....__~;;;;;;;;;;;;:;;;.a 

*4-/13 
7 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 66



Travis County 

RFS# 1208-005-ML 


EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS 

September 10. 2012 

CURRENT 

Position Held 
Name of Individual 
Holding Office/Position 

Name of Business 
Individual is Associated 

County Judge ................. ...... ... .................................. Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge (Spouse) ....... ... ................................... Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe 

Executive Assistant ...... .... .. ..... ................ ........... ...... Cheryl Brown 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Melissa Velasquez 

Executive Assistant.. ................................................. Josie Z. Zavala 

Executive Assistant.. ................................................. Cheryl Aker 

Commissioner, Precinct I .. ....... .......... ...... ................ Ron Davis 

Commissioner, Precinct I (Spouse) ...... ...... .............. Annie Davis 

Executive Assistant.. .............. .. ................................. Deone Wilhite 

Executive Assistant .... ............ .... .................. .......... ... Felicitas Chavez 

Commissioner, Precinct 2 ............ ........ .............. ...... Sarah Eckhardt 

Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) .. ...................... .. Kurt Sauer 

Executive Assistant ............................ ............... .. ..... Loretta Farb 

Executive Assistant .... ......... ...................... ..... .......... Joe Hon 

Executive Assistant .. ...... .......................................... Peter Einhorn 

Commissioner, Precinct 3 ......................................... Karen Huber 

Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) .......................... Leonard Huber 

Executive Assistant.. .............. ...... ........................ ..... Garry Brown 

Executive Assistant ............ ............ ............ ............... Julie Wheeler* 

Executive Assistant .......... ......................................... Jacob Cottingham 

Commissioner, Precinct 4 ..................... ... ...... ........... Margaret Gomez 

Executive Assistant.. ............ ..... .. .... ...... .. ...... ..... ....... Edith Moreida 

Executive Assistant .............. .. ........... ............... ......... Norma Guerra 

County Treasurer ................. ...... ...................... ........ .. Dolores Ortega-Carter 

County Auditor ...... ............ .................... .... .. .. .......... Nicki Riley* 

County Executive, Administrative ............................ Vacant 

County Executive, Planning & Budget ..................... Leslie Browder* 

County Executive, Emergency Services ...... .. ........... Danny Hobby 

County Executive, HealthlHuman Services .... .. ........ Sherri E. Fleming 

County Executive, TNR ............ ...... ............ ............ . Steven M. Manilla, P.E.* 

County Executive, Justice & Public Safety ............... Roger Jefferies 

Director, Facilities Management.. ...... .. .. .. ................. Roger EI Khoury, M.S., P.E. 

Interim Chief Information Officer ............ ................ Tanya Acevedo 

Interim Chieflnformation Officer ............................ Rod Brown 

Interim Chief Information Officer .............. .... .......... Walter Lagrone 

Director, Records Mgment & Communications ........ Steven Broberg 

Travis County Attorney .................. .. ....................... David Escamilla 

First Assistant County Attorney ...... .... ..................... Steve Capelle 

Executive Assistant, County Attorney ...................... James Collins 

Director, Land Use Division .................... .. .. .... ......... Tom Nuckols 

Attorney, Land Use Division ....... ............ ... .. .... ........ Julie Joe 

Attorney, Land Use Division ......... ........................... Christopher Gilmore 

Director, Transactions Division ........ ....................... John Hille 

Attorney, Transactions Division ............................... Vacant 

Attorney, Transactions Division .. ......... .... ............... . Daniel Bradford 


8 

Seton Hospital 

Daffer McDaniel, LLP 

Retired 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 67



Travis County 

RFS# 1208-005-ML 


Attorney, Transactions Division ... ........ ....... ........ .. ... Mary Etta Gerhardt 

Attorney, Transactions Division ...... ....... ........ .......... Barbara Wilson 

Attorney, Transactions Division ......... ... .......... ..... .... Jim Connolly 

Attorney, Transactions Division ... ........ ...... ......... ... .. Tenley Aldredge 

Director, Health Services Division .. .... ......... ........ ..... Vacant 

Attorney, Health Services Division .... .......... .... ..... .... Prema Gregerson 

Purchasing Agent ...... ..... ...... .... ............ .. ........... ...... . Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 

Assistant Purchasing Agent ........... .. ......................... Marvin Brice, CPPB 

Assistant Purchasing Agent... .................................... Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ... .......... ...... .......... .. .. Vacant Purchasing 

Agent Assistant IV ........................... .. .... Lee Perry Purchasing Agent 

Assistant IV .......... ..... ......... .. ....... Jason Walker Purchasing Agent 

Assistant IV ................................. Richard Villareal Purchasing Agent 

Assistant [V ................................. Patrick Strittmatter* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... ...... ......... ...... ...... Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant [V .. ............................... Scott Wilson, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant [V ........ .. ............. .. ........ Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ......... ...... ...... ........ George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P. 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..... ........ ..... ...... .. ....... John E. Pena, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant [V ................................. Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 111... ... ..... .......... .... ........ . Shannon Pleasant, CTPM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 111... ............................... David Walch 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III .................................. Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 111... .. .. .. ........... ...... ........ Loren Breland, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 111... .. ......................... .. .. Nancy Barchus, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant TIL .......... .... ................. Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 111... ...... .......... ...... ........ . C. W. Bruner, CTP 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II ................................... Jayne Rybak, CTP* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II ..... .......... .... .......... .... .. L. Wade Laursen* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant [1.. .... ....... ....... ... .. .. ........ Sam Francis* 

HUB Coordinator .... .. ............. ...... ............ .... ......... .... Sylvia Lopez 

HUB SpeciaIist... .... ... .... ........... .... ......... .... ....... ....... .. Betty Chapa 

HUB Specialist... .............. ......................................... Jerome Guerrero 

Purchasing Business Analyst ............ .... .... ... ...... ...... . Scott Worthington 

Purchasing Business Analyst ...... ....... ..... ......... .... ..... Jennifer Francis 

Domestic Relations Office ......... .. ............. ........... Roslynn Pitre 

Pretrial Services ...................................................... .. Larry Spacek 

Drug Diversion Court.......... ....... ............................... Sharon Caldwell-Hernandez 

Sheriffs Office ... ........ ....... .......... ..... ....... ...... ........... Maria Wedhorn 

Human Resources Risk Mgt... ... ......... .......... ... ........ .. John Brady 

Juvenile Court ........ ...... ...................................... .... ... Sylvia Mendoza 

Juvenile Court ................ ..... ........... .... ....................... Emmit Hayes, Director of Probation Services Div. 

Family Drug Treatment Court ...... .... ........ .... .......... ... Michelle Kimbrough 


FORMER EMPLOYEES 
Name of Individual 


Position Held Holding OfficelPosition Date of Expiration 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ... ....... ........ ...... ..... Diana Gonzalez .... .... ....... ...... ........ ........ ...... 12/ 16/ 12 

Director, Health Services Division ............................ Beth Devery ................... . ............ .... .... ........ 03 /09113 

Purchasing Agent Assistant Ill. ......... ........ ...... .... ...... Elizabeth Corey, C.P.M...... ........ .... ........ ...... 03/14113 

Attorney, Transactions Division ............................... Tamara Armstrong .... ......... ..... .......... .... ....... 03/30/ 13 

Executive Assistant.. ....... ..... ...................... .... ........ .. . Lori Duarte ..................................... ............. 06/ 15/13 

Chieflnformation Officer .. .......... ... ......... .... .......... .. . Joe Harlow .................................................. 07/31113 

County Auditor ... .. .. .... ....... ...... ....... ...... ....... .... ....... Susan Spataro, CPA ......... ....... ....... .... ......... . 08/31113 


*Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

9 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 68



Travis County 

RFS# 1208-005-ML 

EXHIBIT B 

DISCLOSURE 


Offeror acknowledges that Offeror is doing business or has done business during the 365 day period 
immediately prior to the date on which this contract is made with the following key contracting persons and 
warrants that these are the only such key contracting persons: 

NONE 

If no one is listed above, Offeror warrants that Offeror is not doing business and has not done business 
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date on which this Request for Services response is made 
with any key contracting person. 

10 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 69



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

ATTACHMENT 2 

HUB PROCUREMENT PROGRAM: 
10.1 	 Pursuant to the Travis County Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Procurement 

Program, the Travis County Commissioners Court adopted goals for Certified HUB 
Subcontractor participation in the Non-Professional Services category with an Overall 
14.1 % Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE) goal and an Overall 15 .0% Women
Owned Business Enterprise (WBE) goal (Sub-goals: 2.5% African-American, 9.9% 
Hispanic, 1.7% Native/Asian-American) to be observed by the County in its award of 
contracts and subcontracts to certified HUBs. 

10.2 	 It is the policy of Travis County that HUBs shall have the maximum opportunity to 
participate in the performance of county contracts and subcontracts. Contractors shall 
make a "good faith effort" to take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure HUBs 
maximum opportunity to participate as subcontractors. Failure by a contractor or 
subcontractor to carry out the County HUB Procurement Program shall constitute a 
breach of contract, and after notification of such breach by the Purchasing Agent, may 
result in termination of this contract. 

10.3 	 For purposes of HUB participation, Travis County shall count the dollar amount of all 
firm fixed price/fixed quantity contracts, or the dollar amount of Purchase Orders placed 
against "Estimated" or "Not to Exceed" contracts. 

10.4 	 The following section identifies the specific procedures to be followed with 
respect to this solicitation for proposals in compliance with the HUB Procurement 
Program. 

10.5 	 SECTION 1 - HUB PURCHASES 

10.5.1 To be eligible under this program, HUB Proposers and subcontractors must: 

10.5.1.1 	 Be certified as HUB, MlWBE or DBE source by: 

(A) 	 City of Austin Municipal Government, 

(B) 	 Texas Unified Certification Program, or 

(C) 	 State of Texas 

10.5.1.2 	 Those who have an interest with conducting business with Travis 
County must register on line with the County's third-party vendor 
database system, BidSync at www.co.travis.tx.us/purchasing. 

10.5.1.3 	 Identify the certifying agency and Item/Service for which is certified. 

10.5.1.4 	 Obtain county approval of all proposed HUB subcontractors through 
the Purchasing Agent. 

10.5.1.5 	 Complete the HUB Declaration form in this RFS package. 

11 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 70

www.co.travis.tx.us/purchasing


Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB) PROGRAM SUBCONTRACTING DECLA I. 
The HUB Program policies and Minority and Woman-Owned Business subcontracting goals shall be applicable to the eligible iprocureme 
spent in the areas of Construction, Commodities, Services, and Professional Services. 

[fOMMODITIES Overall MBE Goal: 3.5% Sub-goals: 
0.3% African-American 
2.5% Hispanic 
0.7% AsianlNative-American 

Overall WBE Goal: 6.2% 

[f0NSTRUCTION Overall MBE Goal: 13.7% Sub-goals: 
1.7% African-American 
9.7% Hispanic 
2.3% Asian/Native-American 

Overall WBE Goal: 13.8% 

~ERV1CES Overall MBE Goal: 14.1% Sub-goals: 
2.5% African-American 
9.9% Hispanic 
1.7% AsianlNativE7-American 

Overall WBE Goal: 15.0% 

ROFESSIONAL SERVICES Overall MBE Goal: 15.8% Sub-goals: 
1.9% African-American 
9.0% Hispanic 
4.9% Asian/Native-American 

Overall WBE Goal: 15.8% 

DYes ONO 
Indicate Gender &Ethnicity: 

receiving contracts in accordance with the HUB Program policies and the Minority and Woman-owned Business (MIWBE) goals adopted 
Travis 
County Commissioners Court. Travis County encourages all Bidders to register as a County vendor through the County's online vendor 
registration. 

"Prime Contractors who are awarded contracts with the County are required to make a "Good Faith Effort" to 

Check the box that applies to the Bidder: 

o We are able to fulfill all subcontracting opportunities with our own resources. If circumstances necessitate the use of any subs, I 
agree to seek 

the timely authorization by the County and adhere to the submission of any required documentation. (Complete Sections 5, 6 and 8) 

o We plan to subcontract some or most of the opportunities of thi~Pioject and meet or exceed the set goals. (Complete Sections 3, 4, 6' 
and 8) 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 71



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

~m.~~~~~mOO:~~~----------,~~~H'I '~m'irnJl~11. 
j' r f' Yll 'f!11I ~:::[ljll'liI!I DISCLOSURE OF CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS ~ 

Travis County exercises the right to verify subcontractors listed on this project. It is the County's practice to consider ethnicity before 
gender when distinguishing HUB certifications and calculating goal achievement. 

Note: To be considered "certified" with the State of Texas, City of Austin or the Texas Unified Certification Program, 
please attach a current and v certificate. Sub-goals are included to assist you in diversifying your subcontractors. 

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#: 

Address: City: State: Zip Code: 

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail: 

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work 

Is your company a certified HUB? 

oYes [jJo 
Indicate Gender & Ethnicity: 

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): [j3tate of Texas (HUB) cFity of Austin 

(MIWBE) 

oTexas Unified Certification Program 

(TUCP) (DBE) 

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#: 

Address: City: State: Zip Code: 

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail: 

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work: 

Is your company a certified HUB? 

[]Yes [jJo 
Indicate Gender & Ethnicity: 

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): [j3tate of Texas (HUB) [fity of Austin 

(MIWBE) 

oTexas Unified Certification Program 

(TUCP) (DBE) 

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#: 

Address: City: State Zip Code: 

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No. : E-mail: 

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work: 

Is your company a certified HUB? 

oYes [jJo 
Indicate Gender & Ethnicity: 

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): [j3tate of Texas (HUB) cFity of Austin 

(MIWBE) 

oTexas Unified Certification Program 

(TUCP) (DBE) 

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#: 

Address: City: State: Zip Code: 

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail: 

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work: 

Is your company a certified HUB? 

Or'es 00 
Indicate Gender & Ethnicity: 

13 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 72



:z~r 

S1D"'UII DISCLOSURE OF NON-HUB SUBCONTRACTORS (Duplicate :~~ Travis County . 11JjJ~ I: t/Travis County exercises the right to verify subcontractors listed on this project. 

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#: RFS#lYoA-605~ f 
Address: City: State: Zip Code: 

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail: 

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work: 

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#: 

Address: City: State: Zip Code: 

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail: 

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work: 

Sub Company Name: State of Texas VID#: 

Address: City: State: Zip Code: 

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail: 

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work: 

Sub Company Name: State ofTexas VID#: 

Address: City : State: Zip Code: 

Contact: Phone No.: Fax No.: E-mail: 

Subcontract Amount: Percentage: Description of Work: 

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable): o State ofTexas (HUB) o City of Austin 

(MiWBE) 

o Texas Unified Certification Program 

(TUCP) (DBE) 

NON-COMPLIANT FOR MEETING SET HUB GOALS CHECKLIST 

If you were unable to meet the set goals for this project, select the box by the response(s) that best fits your situation. 

c:tll subs to be utilized are "Non-HUBs." [j1UBs solicited did not respond. 

cj1UBs solicited were not competitive. cj1UBs were unavailable for the following trade(s): 

14 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 73



Travis County 

DETERMINATION OF "GOOD FAITH EFFORr' (GFE) CHECKLIST 

The following checklist shall be completed by the Bidder and returned with the response. This list contains the minimum efforts that should be put forth by 
the Bidder when attempting to achieve or exceed the HUB goals. The Bidder may go beyond the efforts listed below. If additional information is needed, 
the Bidder will be contacted by the HUB Program Staff. Select the box that describes your efforts. 

o Divide the contract work into the smallest feasible portions to allow for maximum HUB Subcontractor participation, consistent with standard and prudent 

industry practices. 


n Notify HUBs of work that the prime contractor plans to subcontract, allowing sufficient time for effective participation? 
ihe HUB Program encourages that three or more HUBs be notified per scope of work and given no less than five working days to respond. 


(The notification should contain adequate information about the project i.e . plans, specifications, and scope of work; Bonding and insurance 

requirements of the HUB subcontractor; and a point of contact within the Bidders organization.) 


rlf a bid was requested from a HUB and then rejected, was a written rejection notice detailing the reasons why they were not selected issued? 

'----jf yes, provide a copy of the rejection letter. 


rfrovide notices of opportunities to minority or women trade organizations or development centers to assist in identifying potential HUBs by disseminating 

'----jhe information to their members/participants? If yes, attach correspondence. 


OBidder has (0) zero HUB partiCipation. Provide an explanation 

RESOURCES 

www.abcatx.com 

unism@sbcglobal.net784-1891 255-1451Austin Metropolitan United Black Contractors 

476-8337 

Natl. Assoc. of Women in Construction 


476-5534 

922-0507 374-1421 www.ushca-austin.com 
US Hispanic Cont. Assoc. de Austin 

CERTIFYING AGENCIES 
CERTIFYING AGENCIES TRAVIS COUNTY RECOGNIZES VENDOR DATABASE WEBSITES 

www.cpa.state.lx.us/business.html CMBL includes 
HUBs. 

City of Austin Minority Vendor Database 

State of Texas Centralized Master Bidders List 

Certified Vendors Directory 

15 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 74

www.cpa.state.lx.us/business.html
http:www.ushca-austin.com
mailto:unism@sbcglobal.net
http:www.abcatx.com


Travis County 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 

~:(lII[']~I:1 AFFIRMATION 

As evidenced by my signature below, I certify that all the information provided is correct to the best of my knowledge. I am an authorizec 
representative of the Bidder listed in SECTION 1, and that the information and supporting documentation submitted with HUB Forms are correct anc 
true to the best of my knowledge. 

Bidder understands and agrees that, if awarded any portion of the solicitation: 

• 	 The Bidder must either utilize Travis County HUB Programs Vendor Tracking System (VTS) to report payments to sub
contractors on a monthly basis or submit monthly Payment Reports as requested by the HUB Program Coordinator. 


• 	 The Bidder must seek pre-approval from the HUB Program Coordinator prior to making any modifications to their HUB Sub
contracting Plan. The Bidder must complete a HUB SubcontractorlSubconsultant Change Form obtained from the HUB Program 
Staff. Return form via fax to 512-854-9185 or email hubstaff@co.travis.tx.us. 

· Travis County HUB Program Staff will perform a Good Faith Effort (GFE) Review, documenting the efforts put forth by the Bidder. 

Name and Title: Date: 

E-mail Address: Signature: 

Provide contact information for the individual in your office who will handle invoicing for this project: 
._--_ ... 

Name and Title: E-mail Address: 

Phone No.: Fax No.: 

Please be reminded that Travis County is not party to your agreement executed with the subcontractors and subconsultants. 

16 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 75

mailto:hubstaff@co.travis.tx.us


Travis County 

RFS# 1208-005-ML 


ATTACHMENT 3 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 


I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors' Insurance. 

The following requirements (A-J) apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) of every tier 
performing services or activities pursuant to the terms of this contract. Contractor acknowledges and 
agrees to the following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and Contractor's 
subcontractor(s): 

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the 
duration of the contract. 

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating 
ofB+ VIII or higher. 

C. Prior to commencing work under this contract, the required insurance shall be in force as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of 
Insurance shall be forwarded to County Purchasing Agent immediately upon execution of this contract, but 
no more than ten (10) days from the date of execution of this contract. 

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent no later than ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by 
all parties. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis County contract number and all endorsements by 
number. 

E. Insurance required under this contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall 
be considered primary for all claims. 

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. 

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements. 

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the contract and 
to require that Contractor makes reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded. 

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during any term of this 
contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode Qr otherwise be reduced. 
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles 
and self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance. 

17 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 76



Travis County 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 

1. Insurance coverage specified in this contract are not intended and will not be interpreted to limit 
the responsibility or liability ofthe Contractor or subcontractor(s). 

II. Specific Requirements 

The following requirements (II.A - II.D, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) of 
every tier performing services or activities pursuant to the terms of this contract. Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and 
Contractor's subcontractor( s): 

A. Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance 

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers' 
Compensation Act. 

2. 	 Employers' Liability limits are 

$250,000 bodily injury each accident 

$250,000 bodily injury by disease 

$500,000 policy limit 


3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) 
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601) 

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance 

1. 	 Minimum limits: 

$500,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a 

$1,000,000 policy aggregate 


2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows: 
a. Blanket contractual liability for this contract 
b. Products and Completed Operations 
c. Independent Contractor Coverage 

3. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404) 
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205) 
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010) 

C. Business Automobile Liability Insurancet 

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, 
and hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $1 ,000,000* per occurrence 

18 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 77



L Travis County 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A) 
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A) 
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901 B) 

t Alternative Insurance Requirement 
If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to 
travel to and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of 

$ 100,000/$300,000/$50,000 

may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance 

D. Professional Liability Insurance 

1. Coverage shall be provided with a minimum limit of $1 ,000,000 per claim/$3,000,000 
aggregate to cover injury to a client while the client is in the care of the Contractor or Subcontractor and 
to cover negligent acts, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services under this contract. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the 
date this contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of 
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of coverage 
and the extended reporting dates. 

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance 

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than 
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the 
contract or the amount of scheduled advances. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the 
date services begin under this contract or the effective date of this contract, whichever comes first. 
Coverage shall include a three (3) year extended reporting period from the date this contract expires or 
is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the 
retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date. 

19 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 78



Travis County 

PART I. SECTION C - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

1.0 	 PROPOSAL DISCLOSURE: Proposals will be opened in a manner so as to avoid 
disclosure of the contents to competing Offerors. They will be kept secret during the 
evaluation process; however, all proposals will be open for public inspection after award 
except for information that qualifies as trade secrets or other confidential information 
under the Texas Public Information Act, if such information is identified by the Offeror 
in its proposal. 

2.0 	 EV ALUA TION FACTORS: Points will be assigned based on information submitted 
by Proposers. In reviewing responses to this RFS, Travis County will consider the 
following evaluation factors (listed in order of their respective importance) and their 
corresponding weights, as well as any other information that comes to the County's 
attention that the County deems relevant. 

1. 	 Demonstrated Expertise of Personnel: 35% 
Demonstrated training, expertise and experience of key personnel to provide the services 
proposed. 

2. Demonstrated Experience of the Firm: 25% 
Demonstrated experience of the firm in providing drug and alcohol testing services. This 
includes a description of the Proposer's ability to meet all requirements of the RFS . 

3. 	 Fee Proposal: 20% 
Proposer shall provide a fee schedule giving a fixed rate for Basic Services and listing of 

hourly rates for any additional services. 

4. 	 Proposed Approach to Providin2 Services: 20% 
Proposer must have adequate current full-time staff, both registered professionals in an 
applicable field and technical and administrative support staff, to competently and 
efficiently perform the work. Travis County will consider the following evaluation 
factors which are listed in order of importance: 

3.0 	 EVALUATION PROCESS: An evaluation committee supervised by the Purchasing 

Agent and comprised of County staff with expertise in drug and alcohol testing will 

review and evaluate the submission as follows. Written submissions will be evaluated 

using the Evaluation Criteria listed. The scores received will be used to identify a "short 

list" of the respondents. Those selected may be asked to make oral presentations to the 

evaluation committee and lor the Commissioners Court. 


Plus any other information that comes to the County's attention that County deems 
relevant. 

4.0 	 METHOD OF AWARD: The award of a contract shall be based on the demonstrated 
competence, experience and qualifications of the offeror( s) whose offer is determined to 
be the best-value, resulting from negotiations, taking into consideration the relative 
importance of price and other evaluation factors as listed above. Travis County reserves 
the right to make award to more than one Offeror. 

20 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 79



Travis County 

PART I. SECTION D - NEGOTIATIONS 

1.0 NEGOTIATIONS: 

1.1 	 If such negotiations are deemed necessary, the Purchasing Agent shall superVise the 
same. 

1.2 	 Travis County reserves the right to negotiate the price and any other terms with 
the Offeror. 

1.3 	 Offerors may be required to submit additional data during the process of any negotiations. 

2.0 DEVIATIONS: 

Requirements stated in this RFS become part of the contract resulting from this RFS unless the 
offeror requests a deviation. Any requests for deviations from these requirements must be 
specifically defined by the offeror in its proposal. If accepted, the deviation becomes part of the 
contract. Travis County reserves the right to modify the requirements of this RFS. 

3.0 RESERVATION OF RIGHTS: 

3.1 	 County expressly reserves the right to: 

3.1.1 waive any defect, irregularity or informality in any proposal; 

3.1.2 waive any noncompliance with the requirements of this RFS 

3.1.3 reject or cancel any proposal or parts of any proposal; 

3.1.4 accept proposals from one or more offerors; or 

3.1.5 procure the services in whole or in part by other means. 

4.0 PROTESTS: 

Protests before award must be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Agent not later than six (6) 
calendar days after proposal opening, and protests after award must be submitted within ten (10) 
days after award by the Travis County Commissioners Court. The Purchasing Agent shall rule 
on the protest in writing within ten (10) days from date of receipt. Any appeal from the 
Purchasing Agent's decision must be made within ten (10) days after receipt thereof and 
submitted to the Purchasing Agent, who shall present the matter for final resolution to County 
Commissioners Court. Appellant shall be notified of the time and place the appeal is to be 
heard by County Commissioners Court and afforded an opportunity to present evidence in 
support of the appeal. 

21 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 80



Travis County 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 

NOTE: THE FOLLOWING SCOPE OF SERVICES, ALONG WITH THE OFFEROR'S PROPOSAL, 
AND ANY DEVIATION TO WHICH TRAVIS COUNTY HAS AGREED, IN WRITING, WILL 
BECOME PART OF THE CONTRACT. 

PART II 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SECTION A- TECHNICAL REOUIREMENTS-ALCOHOL TESTING 

(NOTE: This Scope of Services will become Attachment A to the Professional Services Agreement at the 
time ofConlract Award) 

CONTRACTOR MUST; 

1.1 	 Provide trained breath alcohol technician(s) (BAT) to conduct evidential breath testing (EBT), 
including random selection for EBT, in compliance with Department of Transportation (DOT) 
regulations and 49 CFR, Parts 40 and 382, as amended. 

1.2 	 Use EBT devices which are listed on the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 
(NHTSA) Conforming Products List (CPL) and meet the requirements for confirmation testing. 

1.3 	 Provide in-clinic facilities that afford visual and aural privacy to the individual being tested, 
sufficient to prevent unauthorized persons from seeing or hearing test results and ensure that 
individuals tested at the specified Travis County on-site locations listed in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 2.17 are afforded similar privacy. 

1.4 	 Provide all necessary equipment, personnel, and materials for EBT at the Contractor's location 
where testing is conducted and at the specified Travis County on-site testing locations. 

22 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 81



Travis County 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

PART II - SECTION B - TECHNICAL REOUIREMENTS - DRUG TESTING 

1.0 	 REOUIRED STANDARD OF WORKMANSHIP Unless otherwise specifically provided for in this 
contract, the quality of all services rendered under it must conform to the highest standards in the 
relevant profession, trade or field of endeavor. All services must be rendered or supervised directly by 
individuals fully qualified in the relevant profession, trade or field, and holding any licenses required by 
law or regulation. The regulations under which this testing is to be performed are provided (taken from 
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) "Mandatory Guidelines for Federal Workplace 
Drug Testing Program," and the Department of Transportation (DOT) "Mandatory Guidelines for 
Commercial Driver's License (COL)", as published and updated in the Federal Register. In this 
document these rules are referred to as "DHHS Guidelines" and "DOT Guidelines." 

2.0 	 TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS For purposes of these Technical Requirements the following 
definitions are adopted: 

2.1 	 ALIQUOT - A portion of a specimen used for testing. 

2.2 	 BATCH - A group consisting of samples, calibrators, controls, and blind quality control 
specimens that is run in the same time frame under the identical assay conditions, including the 
technician, reagents, and instruments. 

2.3 	 BZE - Benzoylecgonine is a metabolite of cocaine that is identified and quantified in the Gas 
ChromatographyfMass Spectrometry (GC/MS) confirmation test for cocaine metabolites. 

2.4 	 CALIBRA TORS - A certified negative human urine containing known quantities of drug and 
drug metabolites used to calibrate the relevant laboratory instruments. 

2.5 	 CHAfN-OF-CUSTODY FORM - An approved DHHS or DOT external chain-of-custody 
document that tracks the handling and storage of each forensic urine specimen from time of 
collection to final disposition and includes entries documenting date, printed name that is clear 
and legible, original signature of person, purpose for handling or transfer of specimens or 
aliquots for every person into whose custody the specimen is transferred. 

2.6 	 CONFIRMATORY TEST - A second analytical procedure to identify the presence of a specific 
drug or metabolite which is independent of the initial test and which uses a different technique 
and chemical principle from that of the initial test in order to ensure reliability and accuracy. (At 
this time GCfMS or LCfMS are the only authorized confirmation method for cocaine, marijuana, 
opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine.) 

2.7 	 CONTROLS - Known amounts of drug or drug metabolites spiked into a certified human 
negative urine which are used to validate calibration of an instrument, precision and accuracy of 
the procedure, and the performance of the technician. 

2.8 	 THCA - Delta-9-Tetrahydrocannabinol-9Carboxylic Acid is a metabolite of delta-9
tetrahydrocannabinol (the major psychoactive compound of marijuana) that is identified and 
quantified in the GCfMS confirmation test for marijuana metabolites. 

23 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 82



Travis County 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

2.9 	 INITIAL TEST - An immunoassay screening test to eliminate "negative" urine specimens from 
further testing and identifies "presumptive" positive specimens for further testing and may use 
the Enzyme Multiple Immuno Technique. 

2.10 	 LIMIT OF DETECTION - Three (3) standard deviations more than the mean value of the result 
of analyzing at least 12 negative urine specimens and calculating the standard deviation of the 
values for each specimen. 

2.11 	 LIMIT OF QUANTIT ATION - The mean value of the result of analyzing at least 12 negative 
urine specimens and calculating the standard deviation of the values for each specimen. 

2.12 	 MRO - A medical review officer who is a licensed physician responsible for receiving laboratory 
results generated by the Travis County drug testing program who has knowledge of substance 
abuse disorders and has appropriate medical training to interpret and evaluate positive test result 
with the medical history and any other relevant biomedical information of the person who 
provided the specimen. 

2.13 	 NON-DOT TESTING - Special drug and alcohol screens for Travis County Sheriffs Office 
and Travis County Drug Diversion Court not required by, or conducted under, DHHS or DOT 
guidelines. Non-DOT testing includes Non-DOT pre-employment testing, Non-DOT Drug 
Diversion Court testing, Non-DOT Pretrial Services Testing and HHSD/CPS. 

2.14 	 NON-DOT PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING A test for 10 specified drugs and/or their 
metabolites. These tests will be administered before employment in certain safety-sensitive 
positions within the Travis County Sheriffs Office. The specific drugs to be tested for and their 
respective presumptive cut-off levels are listed in Section 6.0. 

2.15 	 NON-DOT DRUG DIVERSION COURT TESTING - These tests are of two types, Type I and 
Type II, each for 5 specified drugs and/or their metabolites. Both the Type I and Type II tests 
will be administered as a condition of probation or deferred adjudication as ordered by the Travis 
County Drug Diversion Court. The specific drugs to be tested for and their respective 
presumptive cut-off levels for both Type I and Type II tests are listed in Section 6.0. (on fee 
schedule items 7 & 8). 

2.16 	 NON-DOT PRETRIAL SERVICES TESTING - These tests are of two types, Type I and Type 
II, each for five (5) specified drugs and/or their metabolites. Both the Type I and Type II tests 
will be administered as condition of pretrial releases ordered by the Travis County Pretrial 
Services department. The specific drugs to be tested for an their respective presumptive cut-off 
levels for both Type I arid Type II tests are listed in section 6.0 (on fee schedule items 12 & 13) 

2.17 	 SECRETARY - The Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Secretary of Transportation 
in regards to issues which affect their respective drug testing programs. The Secretary may 
designate an individual from a recognized organization (to include a Contractor) to act on herlhis 
behalf in the implementation of these DOT or DHHS Guidelines. 

2.18 	 TRAVIS COUNTY ON-SITE TESTING LOCATIONS - Random drug and alcohol screening 
tests will be regularly conducted by the Contractor at the following Travis County locations: 

2.18.1 	 TNR Satellite One Office - 9301 Johnny Morris Road, Austin, TX 78724 

24 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 83



Travis County 

2.18.2 	TNR Westside Service Center - 1405 FM 620 North, Austin, TX 78732 

2.18.3 	TNR Satellite Four Office - 5412 Lockhart Highway, Austin, TX 78744 

2.18.4 Travis County Jail - 1000 San Antonio Street, Austin, TX 78701 

2.18.5 Travis County Correctional Complex - 3614 Bill Price Road, Del Valle, TX 78617 

3.0 	 SCOPE OF WORK; 

3.1 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to perform the initial 
test for the detection of marijuana metabolites and cocaine metabolites on all urine specimens 
submitted, and additionally perform the initial test for opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines 
on individually requested specimens. 

3.2 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to perform GCIMS 
confirmation tests on all specimens that are screened positive by the initial test. 

3.3 	 The Contractor must provide a method for identifying interfering substances which prevent the 
initial test, such as contaminants, adulterants, or other masking agents; and provide any special 
testing necessary to support the laboratory's results. 

3.4 	 The Contractor must conduct additional GCIMS testing to identify 6 methamphetamine and 
Dextros and Levo when consistent with DHHS and/or DOT guidelines. 

3.5 	 All laboratory analysis will be provided in accordance with all DOT regulations and the DHHS 
procedures and 49CFR, Parts 40 and 382. 

3.6 	 Urinalysis will be conducted with an initial test to eliminate negative urine specimens from 
further analysis. 

3.7 	 Positive initial test results will be confirmed by conducting GCIMS method of analysis. 

3.8 	 The initial test and positive confirmatory test will be done by the same laboratory. Where a 
Travis County employee requests additional testing following a positive confirmatory test, such 
testing on another aliquot will be conducted by a different laboratory, certified by the DHHS, 
and as directed by the MRO. 

3.9 	 Remaining aliquots must be retained in frozen storage for 60 days after the date on which the 
laboratory acquires it. 

3.10 	 The Contractor must provide an MRO. 

3.11 	 Contractor will provide a scientific method for random selection of County commercial drivers 
for drug and alcohol testing. Data for input into the random selection data base will be provided 
by the County. Random lists must be generated and distributed to the County at least monthly or 
on a more frequent basis as requested. 

25 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 84



Travis County 

3.12 	 Contractor must provide to the County copies of records, and databases developed and 
maintained by the Contractor as part of the activities under the contract and must deliver them to 
the County quarterly or upon request. The records and databases must be provided both in paper 
form and in Excel electronic format. 

3.13 	 Contractor and subcontractors must accommodate the identification procedures required by the 
various county departments utilizing the Contractor services to verify identity of the person that 
gives the specimen. 

3.14 	 The Contractor is required to maintain and use a system of safeguarding County records which 
identify County persolU1el and any other information received in the performance of this 
contract, to ensure the highest level of privacy for County employees. Contractor shall provide 
all services required in a malU1er that would comply with the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.C. 552a and 
Section 503 of Public Law 100-71, if Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws. 

The Contractor and its employees shall not hold any discussion or release any information or 
data pertaining to the Travis County Alcohol and Drug Testing Program without the prior written 
approval of the Coordinator. This restriction applies to all releases of information to the public, 
industry, or government organizations. 

3.15 	 The principal and other key persolU1el responsible for the project and named in the Contractor's 
proposal may not be removed from the program or have their time substantially decreased 
without prior approval of the County. Replacement persolU1el must have equivalent 
qualifications to the persons named and are subject to approval by the County. 

3.16 	 Contractor must, upon request, pick up urine specimens collected by the Travis County Sheriffs 
Office within two hours of a request at 1000 San Antonio Street, Austin, Texas 78701. 

3.17 	 THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT AND THE 
JUVENILE DRUG COURT will require Confirmation Test only. Initial screens are provided 
by the Departments persolU1el. Chain of custody procedures and forms must be provided to the 
THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT. THE TRAVIS COUNTY 
JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT persolU1el will adhere to the Chain of Custody 
Procedures and deliver specimen to the Contractor for confirmation testing. 

Contractor shall report results to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION 
DEPARTMENT within 72 hours of delivery, by fax which must be followed with notification 
via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of the results and a certified copy of the 
chain of custody form. 

The Family Drug Treatment Court will occasionally require a Confirmation Test only. 

3.18 	 CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and each invoice shall 
contain the name of each Client served by CONTRACTOR, the type of Service provided by 
CONTRACTOR, the total tests provided by CONTRACTOR, the hourly fee assessed for each 
Service provided by CONTRACTOR (expert witness), the name of the Provider and the total 
amount of payment requested for each Client. Each invoice submitted by CONTRACTOR to 
COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR's representative. A list of County 
Departments which invoices should be sent can be found in Part II. Section D. Attachment 
11 

26 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 85



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

4.0 	 PROCEDURE MANUAL 

4.1 	 The laboratory must have a procedure manual which includes the principles of each test; 
preparation of reagents, calibrators and controls; methods used to determine limit of detection, 
limit of quantization, and linearity; calibration procedures; derivation of results; linearity of 
methods; cutoff values, mechanisms for reporting results; controls; criteria for unacceptable 
specimens and results; remedial actions to be taken when the test systems are outside of 
acceptable limits; reagents and their expiration dates; and references. Copies of all procedures 
and dates on which they are in effect must be maintained as part of the manual. 

4.2 	 Laboratory calibrators and controls must be prepared with pure drug reference standards, 
whenever possible from two different sources, or from at least two different lot numbers. The 
labels on these reagents must contain the following infonnation: preparer; content; 
concentration; date when received, opened, prepared; content and concentration; and expiration 
date. The analytical data used to certify calibrators, controls, and human negative urine must be 
available for inspection. 

4.3 	 Instruments and equipment: 

4.3.1 	 Volumetric pipettes and measuring devices must be calibrated and certified for accuracy 
or be checked by gravimetric, colorimetric, or other verification procedure. Automatic 
pipettes and dilutors must be checked for accuracy and reproducibility before being 
placed in service and checked periodically after that. 

4.3.2 	 There must be written procedures for certification of new instruments, procedures for 
instrument set-up and nonnal operation, a schedule for checking critical operating 
characteristics for all instruments, tolerance limits for acceptable function checks, and 
instructions for major trouble shooting and repair. Contractor must maintain records on 
preventive maintenance and make these records available upon request. 

4.4 	 There must be written procedures for the actions, remedial and otherwise, to be taken when 
systems are out of acceptable limits, or discrepancies or errors are detected. There must be 
documentation in the fonn of Memorandum for the Record that these procedures are followed 
and that all necessary corrective actions are taken. 

4.5 	 The laboratory must have at least one qualified, experienced, and established forensic 
toxicologist to provide expert testimony in Travis County legal, administrative or disciplinary 
proceedings involving urinalysis cases. 

5.0 	 SPECIFIC TESTING Specimens submitted must be initially tested for THC, BZE, opiates, 
phencyclidine and amphetamines. When conducting either initial or confinnatory tests, every batch must 
contain an appropriate number of standards for calibrating the instrumentation and a minimum of 10 
percent controls. Both internal blind quality control and external blind performance test samples must be 
true blind samples and not discernible to laboratory analysts. 

27 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 86



INITIAL DRUG TEST PROCEDURES 
6.0 

6.1 

6.2 

Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

For the DOT program, all specimens must be screened using approved immunoassays that meet 
the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial 
tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the DOT program must 
be screened for the following 5 drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug 
metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Cannabinoids (THC) 50 ng/ml 
Benzodiazephines (BZE) 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the DHHS or the 
DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant identification of these 
substances at other concentrations. 

For the Non-DOT pre-employment testing program, all specimens must be screened using 
approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Dnlg Administration for 
commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, 
as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens 
submitted under the Non-DOT pre-employment testing program must be screened for the 
following 10 drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further 
confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at 
or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 ngjml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Methadone 300 nglml 
Ethanol 10 ng/dl 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the DHHS or the 
DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant identification of these 
substances at other concentrations. 

For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT Program) Direct Observation testing - Type I 
program, all specimens must be screened using approved immunoassays that meet the 
requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests 
must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated 

28 

6.3 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 87



Travis County 

in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion 
Court - Type I testing program must be screened for the following 4 drugs and the results are 
considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen 
shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined 
level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 

Cocaine 300 nglrnl 

Opiates 300 nglml 

Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 


The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the DHHS or the 
DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant identification of these 
substances at other concentrations. 

6.4 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT program) and the Juvenile Probation 
Department, Direct Observation testing - Type II program, all specimens must be screened using 
approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for 
commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, 
as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens 
submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court - Type II testing program must be screened 
for the following 8 drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and subject to 
further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug 
metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglrnl 

Barbiturates 200 nglml 

Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 

Cocaine 300 nglrnl 

Opiates 300 nglml 

Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglrnl 

Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

Propoxyphene 300 nglml 


The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the DHHS or the 
DOT, 	 as advances in technology or other considerations warrant identification of these 
substances at other concentrations. 

6.5 	 For the Non-DOT Juvenile and other miscellaneous Travis County Offices, Unobserved testing 
all specimens must be screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the 
Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted 
under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Countywide Unobserved testing 
program must be screened for the following 8 drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered 
presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the 
presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

29 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 88



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

Amphetamines 1,000 ng/ml 

Barbiturates 200 ng/ml 

Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 ng/ml 

Cocaine 300 ng/ml 

Opiates 300 ng/ml 

Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 ng/ml 

Cannabinoids (THC) 20 ng/ml 

Propoxyphene 300 ng/ml 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 ng/ml 


6.6 	 For the Non-Dot Pretrial Services Unobserved testing - Type I program, all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug 
Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in PART II, Section B, Paragraph 
1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Pretrial Services - Type I testing program must 
be screened for the following four (4) drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered 
presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the 
presence of drugs (s) and/or drug metabolites(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 ng/ml 

Amphetamines 1,000 ng/ml 

Cocaine 300 ng/ml 

Opiates 300 ng/ml 

Cannabinoids (THC) 20 ng/ml 


6.7 	 For the Non-Dot Pretrial Services Unobserved testing - Type II program, all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug 
Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in PART II, Section B, Paragraph 
1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Pretrial Services - Type II testing program must 
be screened for the following four (4) drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered 
presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the 
presence of drugs (s) and/or drug metabolites(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 ng/ml 

Barbiturates 200 ng/ml 

Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 ng/ml 

Opiates 300 ng/ml 

Cannabinoids (THC) 20 ng/ml 


6.8 	 For the Non-DOT Countywide Unobserved testing - all specimens must be screened using 
approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for 
commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, 
as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II , Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens 
submitted under the Non-DOT Countywide Unobserved testing program must be screened for 
the following 8 drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered presumptive positive and 

30 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 89



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drU'EU1'J;fI'HY:i'NJ.. 
metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 ng/ml 
Barbi turates 200 ng/ml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 ng/ml 
Cocaine 300 ng/ml 
Opiates 300 ng/ml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 ng/ml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 ng/ml 
Propoxyphene 300 ng/ml 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 ng/ml 

7.0 	 CONFIRMATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

7.1 	 All confirmation testing must be performed using GC/MS, applying the procedures for each drug 
and/or metabolite(s) outlined in this section. All confirmation testing must be by quantitative 
analysis. Concentrations that exceed the linear region of the standard curve value may be 
diluted. If diluted, the dilution factor must be considered when calculating the actual drug 
content of the specimen. If the specimen is not diluted, the concentration of the specimen will be 
the actual determined value of the specimen. Limit of detection should be determined for each 
GCIMS instrument. The limit of quantization should be determined for each GC/MS 
instrument. 

7.2 	 The Cannabinoids (THC) confirmation test must meet the additional following parameters: 

7.2.1 	 The target compound is THC, 

7.2.2 	 A deuterated analog of THC with a certified purity confirmed by the laboratory is the 
internal standard, and 

7.2.3 	 A positive report based on a forensically accepted GCIMS technique which indicates the 
presence of THC in a concentration greater than or equal to 15 ng/ml on the GC/MS test. 
The run must include two blind quality control specimens, one negative and one positive. 

7.3 	 The Benzodiazepines (BZE) confirmation test employed must meet the following additional 
parameters: 

7.3.1 	 The target compound is BZE, 

7.3.2 	 A deuterated BZE analog with certified purity confirmed by the laboratory is the internal 
standard, and 

7.3.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted GCIMS technique which indicates 
the presence of BZE in a concentration greater than or equal to 150 ng/ml on the GC/MS 
test. The run must include two blind quality control specimens, one negative and the 
other positive. 

7.4 	 The amphetamines confirmation test employed must meet the following additional parameters: 

31 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 90



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 


7A.1 !4l 
7A.2 	 A deuterated amphetamine and deuterated methamphetamine with certified purity 

confirmed by the laboratory is the internal standard, and 

7A.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted GCIMS technique which indicates 
the presence of amphetamine and/or methamphetamine at a concentration greater than, or 
equal to, 500 nglml. Any methamphetamine positive must also indicate the presence of 
amphetamine greater than, or equal to, 200 ng/ml. Any methamphetamine positive 
sample must also be tested to identify and quantitative the 0 & L isomer. The run must 
include two blind quality control specimens, one negative and the other positive. 

7.5 	 The opiates confirmation test employed must meet the following additional parameters: 

7.5.1 	 The target compound for opiates are morphine and codeine, 

7.5.2 	 A deuterated morphine and deuterated codeine with certified purity confirmed by the 
laboratory is the internal standard, and 

7.5.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted GC/MS technique which indicates 
the presence of morphine and/or codeine at a concentration of 300 nglml or greater. Any 
morphine positive with a concentration equal to or greater than 4,000 nglml must also be 
tested to determine the presence of 6-Monoaceytalmorphine at a concentration of 10 
nglml or greater. The run must include two blind quality control specimens, one negative 
and the other positive. 

7.6 	 The phencyclidine (PCP) confirmation test employed must meet the following additional 
parameters: 

7.6.1 	 The target compound is PCP (Parent Drug), 

7.6.2 	 A deuterated phencyclidine analog with certified purity confirmed by the laboratory is the 
internal standard, and 

7.6.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted GCIMS technique which indicates 
the presence of phencyclidine in a concentration equal to or greater than 25 ng/ml. The 
run must include two blind quality control specimens, one negative and the other 
positive. 

7.7 	 Barbiturates confirmation test employed 

7.8 	 Cocaine confirmation test employed 

7.9 	 Propoxyphene confirmation test employed 

Testing procedures for the DOT drug testing programs must follow the requirements specified in 
Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. If variation exists between these requirements and the DOT 

32 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 91



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 

Final Regulations as published in the Federal Register, the guidance specifieft 
Regulations governs. 

8.0 	 CERTIFICATION OF LABORATORIES ENGAGED IN URINE DRUG TESTING FOR 
FEDERAL AGENCIES The Contractor must be certified and maintain certification in accordance 
with the applicable DHHS and DOT Guidelines in the Federal Register. 

9.0 	 DAY-TO-DAY MANAGEMENT 

9.1 	 The laboratory must have a qualified individual to assume professional, organizational, 
educational, and administrative responsibility for the laboratory's urine drug testing facility who 
is named in the proposal. 

9.2 	 This individual must be engaged in and responsible for the day-to-day management of the drug 
testing laboratory even where another individual has overall responsibility for an entire multi
specialty laboratory. 

9.3 	 This individual must ensure that there are enough personnel with adequate trammg and 
experience to supervise and conduct the work of the drug testing laboratory. He or she must 
ensure the continued competency of laboratory personnel by documenting their in-service 
training, reviewing their work performance, and verifying their skills. 

9.4 	 This individual must ensure that the laboratory has a procedure manual which is complete, up
to-date, available for personnel performing tests, and followed by those personnel. The 
procedure manual must be reviewed, signed, and dated by this responsible individual whenever 
procedures are first placed into use or changed or when a new individual assumes responsibility 
for management of the drug testing laboratory. Copies of all procedures and dates on which they 
are in effect must be maintained. 

9.5 	 This individual must maintain a quality assurance program to assure the proper performance and 
reporting of all test results; maintain acceptable analytical performance for all controls and 
standards; maintain quality control testing; and assure and document the validity, reliability, 
accuracy, precision, and performance characteristics of each test and test system. 

9.6 	 This individual must take all remedial actions necessary to maintain satisfactory operation and 
performance of the laboratory in response to quality control systems not being within 
performance specifications, errors in result reporting or in analysis of performance testing 
results. This individual must ensure that sample results are not reported until all corrective 
actions have been taken and he or she can assure that the test results provided are accurate and 
reliable. 

9.7 	 To obtain specimens under the Type I or Type II Programs for the Non-DOT Drug Diversion 
Court testing the contractor is responsible for the integrity of the collection of the urine 
specimens. The contractor must ensure that any environmental factors and/or any attempts on the 
part of the person being tested to manipulate the test results do not contaminate the specimens. If 
lab staff is used to observe individuals giving urine specimens, they must have the necessary 
training and skills to ensure the integrity of the urine tests. At a minimum, the following 
procedures must be used for the collection of urine and the reporting of testing results: 

33 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 92



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

9.7.1 For storage of urinalysis supplies, the contractor shall: 

9.7.1.1 store all urinalysis supplies in 	a secure area with access limited to employees 
involved in the collection process; and 

9.7.1.2 prevent client access to the secure storage areas. 

9.7.2 	 For observation of urine specimens, the contractor shall: 

9.7.2.1 secure the collection area; 

9.7.2.2 provide gender appropriate staff who shall be present 	in the lavatory to observe 
individuals giving the urine specimens; and 

9.7.2.3 ensure that the 	staff observing individuals giving urine specimens have adequate 
training to safeguard the collection process from fraudulent attempts to alter the 
urine specimens and/or environmental factors that would affect the validity of the 
test results. 

10.0 	 TEST YALIDATION The laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have a designated certifying 
scientist who reviews all pertinent data and quality control results to attest to the validity ofothe 
laboratory's test reports. A laboratory may designate more than one person as a certifying scientist. The 
certifying scientist(s) may be any employee who is qualified to be responsible for day-to-day 
management or operation of the drug testing laboratory. 

11.0 	 DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS AND SUPERVISION OF ANALYSTS The laboratory's urine drug 
testing facility must have an individual to be responsible for day-to-day operations and to supervise the 
technical analysts. This individual must have at least a bachelor's degree in the chemical or biological 
sciences or medical technology or equivalent. This individual must have training and experience in the 
theory and practice of all methods and procedures used in the laboratory, a thorough understanding of 
quality control practices and procedures; a thorough understanding ofthe review, interpretation, and 
reporting of test results; knowledge of chain-of-custody procedures; and experience providing prompt 
remedial actions to be taken in response to test results out of acceptable range or detecting aberrant test 
or quality control results. 

12.0 	 OTHER PERSONNEL Other technicians or non technical staff must have the necessary training and 
skills for the tasks assigned. 

13.0 	 WITNESSES 

13.1 	 Contractor personnel may be required to appear personally at administrative hearings to explain 
their laboratory procedures. The Contractor must have at least one person available in each of 
the following categories on a full-time basis to testify at administrative hearings: 

13.1.1 	 Category A: An expert in forensic toxicology drug testing issues who is capable of 
discussing Contractor's laboratory procedures and who has the following minimum 
qualifications: 

34 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 93



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 


13.1.1.1 	 Certification as a laboratory director by the State in fo e 
laboratory toxicology; or 

13.1.1.2 	 A Ph.D. in one of the natural sciences with an adequate undergraduate 
education in biology, chemistry, pharmacology, or toxicology, 

13.1.1.3 	 Training and experience comparable to a Ph.D. in one of the natural 
sciences, such as a medical or scientific degree with additional training 
and laboratory/research experience In biology, chemistry, and 
pharmacology or toxicology, 

13.1.1.4 	 Appropriate experience in analytical forensic toxicology including 
experience with the analysis of biological material for drugs of abuse, and 

13.1.1.5 	 Appropriate training and/or experience in forensic applications of 
analytical toxicology, e.g., publications, court testimony, research 
concerning analytical toxicology of drugs of abuse, or other factors which 
qualify the individual as an expert witness in forensic toxicology. 

13.1.2 Category B: 	 A person fully knowledgeable on the procedural aspects of urine drug 
testing at the Contractor's laboratory. 

13.1.3 Category C: 	 A processing technician who is a qualified and trained laboratory 
technician that handles testing of Travis County specimens on a day-to-day basis. 

14.0 	 TRAINING The laboratory must have a manual and maintain records reflecting the training and 
certification of personnel, describing the procedures for initial and annual certifications. Procedures 
must also be in place which describe the decertification process and any remedial training required for 
recertification. 

15.0 	 FILES Laboratory personnel files must include resume of training and experience; certification or 
license, if any; references; job descriptions, records of performance evaluation and advancement; 
incident reports; and results of tests which establish employee competency for the position he or she 
holds, such as test for color blindness, if appropriate. 

16.0 	 OUALITY ASSURANCE AND OUALITY CONTROL 

16.1 	 GENERAL: 

Any drug testing laboratories used by the Contractor under this contract must have a quality 
assurance program which encompasses all aspects of the testing process including but not limited 
to specimen acquisition, accessioning, aliquoting, chain-of-custody, security and reporting of 
results, initial and confirmatory testing, and validation of analytical procedures. Quality 
assurance procedures must be designed, implemented, and reviewed to monitor the conduct of 
each step of the process of testing for drugs. 

16.2 	 LABORATORY QUALITY CONTROL REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TESTS: 

16.2.1 	 Each analytical run of specimens to be screened must include: 

35 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 94



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005·ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

16.2.l.1 Urine specimens certified to contain no drug, 

16.2.1.2 	 Urine specimens fortified with known standards, and 

16.2.1.3 	 Positive controls with the drug or metabolite at or near the presumptive 
positive level. 

16.2.2 	 In addition, with each batch of samples a sufficient number of standards must be included 
to ensure and document the linearity of the assay method over time in the concentration 
area of the cutoff. After acceptable values are obtained for the known standards, those 
values will be used to calculate sample data. Implementation of procedures to ensure that 
carryover does not contaminate the testing of an individual's specimen must be 
documented. A minimum of 10 percent of all test samples must be quality control 
specimens. Laboratory blind quality control samples, prepared from spiked urine 
specimens of determined concentration must be included in each run and should appear 
as normal samples to laboratory analysts. One percent of each run, with the minimum of 
at least one sample, must be the laboratory's own blind quality control samples. 

16.3 	 CONFIRMATION TEST: 

A run 	for the GCIMS will contain no more than 25 specimens and controls. The run must 
contain a minimum of four urine quality control specimens: one certified standard at the cutoff 
concentration, one certified sample at 40% of cut-off, one certified negative urine specimen, and 
one certified positive urine specimen at or near the cutoff. Two of the four quality control 
samples must be blind. The linearity and precision of the method must be periodically 
documented. 	 Implementation of procedures to ensure that carryover does not contaminate the 
testing of an individual's specimen must also be documented. The calibrators must quantitative 
within 10% of the target value when the calibrators are certified, as required by DHHS and DOT 
guidelines. The concentration of all quality control specimens must assay within + or - 20% of 
their certified value. For only the Electron Impace GCIMS methods, the retention time of the 
drug must be within 2% of the extracted sample at the cutoff concentration and the ion ratios 
must be within + or - 20% of the extracted sample at the cutoff. The calculated concentration of 
the negative quality control specimens must not exceed the established limit of detection of the 
instrument for the drug being tested. All quality control samples must be within the acceptable 
range and meet all chromatographic criteria with all ion ratios within + or - 20% before reporting 
any sample results in that run. The chromatography of an internal standard from the negative 
specimen must meet the retention time and ion ratio requirements. 

17.0 	 SPECIMEN HANDLING AND RECEIVING REQUIREMENTS 

17.1 	 The Contractor must utilize an appropriate system to ship the specimens, if required. If not 
shipped via the U.S. Postal Service, then the Contractor must ensure that there is sufficient 
security to ensure the physical security and integrity of the specimen, the chain-of-custody, and 
shipping container. 

17.2 	 The Contractor must provide specimen kits contammg a kit box, urine specimen container, 
specimen bottle seal, protective seal, label, sealable plastic bag to hold the container, and foam 
insert. The urine containers must hold 100 ml., be made of inert materials that will not absorb or 

36 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 95



Travis County 	 Bid 120B-005-ML 

adsorb drugs, or drug metabolites, and meet DHHS and DOT standards. The cap liner 
made 	of inert material that will not absorb or adsorb drugs or drug metabolites from the 
specimen. The containers' temperature strip must be inside (unless prohibited by DHHS or DOT 
regulation) and be occluded. The occlusion must show tampering and allow for ready viewing 
by authorized personnel. The shipping containers must at least meet U.S. Postal Service 
standards and be pre-addressed and prepaid for shipment to the Contractor's laboratory. The 
Contractor must ship with the specimen kits at least one chain-of-custody fonns for each 
specimen kit. 

17.3 	 Upon receipt of specimens, the Contractor must record the condition of the shipping container, 
including infonnation about damage in shipment, evidence of suspected specimen tampering, or 
other unusual conditions. The Contractor must compare infonnation on specimen bottles to the 
infonnation on the accompanying chain-of-custody fonns. Records must be kept of the 
individuals that perfonn these checks. A Discrepancy Report must be generated, in accordance 
with Part II, Section B, Paragraph 21.3, and must be used to record discrepancies and provided to 
the office that collected the specimen. 

18.0 	 SECURITY OF LABORATORY AND SPECIMENS 

18.1 	 The identity and integrity of the urine specimens must be maintained within the laboratory. All 
specimens must be maintained in a secure area with limited and controlled access throughout all 
phases of processing and storage from receipt to final disposal. 

18.2 	 Drug testing laboratories must be secure at all times. They must have in place sufficient security 
measures to control access to the premises and to ensure that no unauthorized personnel handle 
specimens or gain access to the laboratory processes or to areas where records are stored. 
Access to these secured areas must be limited to specifically authorized individuals whose 
authorization is documented. With the exception of personnel authorized to conduct inspections 
on behalf of Federal agencies for which the laboratory is engaged in urine testing or on behalf of 
the Secretary, any person not employed by the Contractor must be escorted at all times. 
Documentation of individuals accessing these areas, dates, and time of entry and purpose of 
entry must be maintained and kept available for audit. 

18.3 	 Laboratories must use chain-of-custody procedures to maintain control and accountability of 
specimens from receipt through the following processes: 

18.3.1 	 completion of testing, 

18.3.2 reporting results, 

18.3.3 	 during storage, and 

18.3.4 final disposition. 

18.4 	 The date and purpose must be documented on a chain-of-custody fonn each time a specimen is 
handled or transferred, and every individual in the chain must be identified. Accordingly, 
authorized technicians must be responsible for each urine specimen or aliquot in their possession 
and must sign and complete chain-of-custody fonns for these specimens or aliquots as they are 
received. 

37 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 96



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 


19.0 	 RETENTION OF SPECIMENS 

19.1 	 Specimens that do not receive an initial test within 7 days of arrival at the laboratory must be 
placed in secure refrigeration units. Temperatures must not exceed 6 degrees centigrade. An 
emergency power generator must be available in case of prolonged power failure to maintain the 
stability and integrity of specimens. 

19.2 	 All positive specimens must be placed in a limited access long-term, frozen storage area for a 
minimum of one year, and temperature must be maintained at -20 degrees centigrade. Within 
this one year period Travis County may request the laboratory to retain the specimen for an 
additional period of time; but, if no such request is received the Contractor must provide a list oj 
those specimens and request permission of the Alcohol and Drug Testing Program Coordinator 
(the "Coordinator") to destroy the specimens. The Coordinator shall approve destruction if there 
is no pending litigation. If there is a legal challenge, the Contractor is required to maintain the 
specimens for an indefinite period. 

20.0 	 WllLG TEST RESULTS REPORTING REOUIREMENTS 

20.1 	 The report must identify the drugs/metabolites tested for, whether positive or negative, and the 
presumptive positive level for each, the base specimen number assigned; the Contractor's 
laboratory number, and the test subject's Social Security number. The report must include a 
certified copy of the original chain-of-custody and must be signed by the certifying scientist. 
The results (positive and negative) for all specimens submitted on the same chain-of-custody 
form must be reported back to the MRO at the same time. 

20.2 	 The laboratory must report as negative all specimens which are negative on the initial test or 
negative on the confirmatory test. Only specimens confirmed positive for a specific drug or class 
of drug are reported positive for that specific drug. 

20.3 	 The MRO may request quantization of test results from the laboratory, and the laboratory must 
provide quantization of test results. 

20.4 	 Results must be transmitted in a secured manner so as to ensure confidentiality of the 
information. If the County approves a manner as one that is sufficiently secure, the laboratory 
may transmit results to the MRO by various electronic means. Results cannot be provided by 
telephone under any circumstances. The laboratory must ensure the security of the data 
transmission and limit access to any data transmission, storage, and retrieval system. 

20.5 	 The laboratory must send only to the MRO a certified copy of the original chain-of-custody form 
signed by the individual responsible for day-to-day management of the drug testing laboratory or 
the individual for attesting to the validity of the test results. 

20.6 	 The Contractor shall report to Travis County, by fax, Non-DOT negative or positive results of 
initial tests within twenty-four (24) hours from the date of collection. Fax notification of negative 
and positive initial test results must be followed with notification via regular mail containing a 
certified copy of the chain-of-custody form. 

38 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 97



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

The Contractor shall provide to Travis County Pretrial Services a list of all Pretrial 
clients (individuals) who at the end of the business day did not appear at the collection facility to 
submit a sample as referred by the agency. 

20.7 	 Contractor shall report to County l!QI negative results of initial tests within 48 (forty-eight) 
hours from the date of collection if the collection is before 4:00 p.m. and 72 (seventy-two) hours 
if collection is after 4:00 p.m. by fax. Fax notification of negative initial test results must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of the negative 
results and a certified copy of the chain-of custody form. 

Contractor shall report to County l!QI confirmatory positive test results of initial tests within 72 
(seventy-two) hours and 96 (ninety-six) hours from the date of collection by fax, depending on 
the employee's response to the MRO. In some cases the reporting time may take longer due to 
circumstances which are governed by federal regulations. Fax notification of positive initial test 
results must be followed with notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 
the positive results and a certified copy of the chain-of custody form. 

21.0 	 SUMMARY REPORTING REOUIREMENTS 

21 .1 In accordance with the appropriate DHHS and/or DOT Guidelines, the Contractor must send to 
Travis County Departments/Offices (listed on Attaclunent 5) a monthly summary report. Initial 
and confirmation data must be included from test results reported within that month. Normally 
this summary must be forwarded by registered mail not more than 14 calendar days after the end 
of the month covered by the summary. The summary report must contain the following 
information: 

21.1.1 	 Initial test reports must include the following information: 

21.1.1.1 	 Number of specimens received, 

21.1.1.2 	 Number of specimens reported out, and 

21.1.1.3 	 Number of specimens screened positive for: marijuana metabolites, 
cocaine metabolites, opiate metabolites, phencyclidine, and amphetamines 

21.1.2 Confirmatory testing reports must include the following information: 

21.1.2.1 	 Number of specimens received for confirmation, and 

21.1.2.2 	 Number of specimens confirmed positive for: marijuana metabolite, 
cocaine metabolite, morphine, codeine, phencyclidine, amphetamine, and 
methamphetamine. 

21.2 	 On a monthly basis the Contractor must supply to the Travis County Coordinator, the following 
information on specimens completed since the last report: 

21.2.1 	 Identification number, 

21.2.2 	Laboratory Accession Number, 


39 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 98



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 

21 .2.3 Date Specimen Received in Laboratory, 

21.2.4 Drugs Screened For, 

21.2.5 Confirmation Tests Conducted, 

21.2.6 Final Report (Positive or Negative), 

21.2.7 Date Report Sent to Travis County, and 

21.2.8 Specimen Turnaround Time. 

21.3 	 No later than the 10th working day after the end of the calendar month, the Contractor must 
submit a discrepancy report to Travis County Departments/Offices (listed on Attaclunent 5) with 
the following data: 

21.3.1 Reporting Month; 

21.3.2 	For each submitting location sending specimens during the reporting month, the total 
number of specimens received; and 

21.3.3 	 For each department submitting specimens during the reporting month, the total number 
of specimens discarded, broken down into the following categories: 

BU - Box unsealed or no signature or date on box seal 
NHHS - No DHHS chain-of-custody-form 
DOT - No DOT chain-of-custody form 
ISSN - Incomplete social security number 
ISPN - Incomplete base specimen number 
NCOC - No chain-of-custody form 
QNS - Volume in bottle is less than 30 ml 
LSSN - Social Security number on specimen label does not match the social security on 

the chain-of-custody form 
LAX - Laboratory Accident 

22.0 	 REPORTING REOUIREMENTS FOR DUUS AND DOT DRUG TESTING PROGRAM 
Activity in support of the DHHS and DOT drug testing program must be accounted for and reported 
separately by Contractor to Travis County Departments/Offices (listed on Attaclunent 5). 

23.0 	 SUBSTANTIATION The Contractor must make available copies of all drug testing analytical results, 
including all certification specimen results, open performance test results, all quality control sample 
results and all personnel training and certification records when requested by Travis County 
Coordinator. 

24.0 	 RECORD RETENTION Unless otherwise instructed by the DHHS in writing, all records pertaining 
to a given urine specimen must be retained by the drug testing laboratory for a minimum of2 years. 
Upon request from Travis County, the Contractor must provide any information or documents 
pertaining to the procedures used at its laboratory for performance of this contract. Examples of 

40 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 99



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

procedures include chain-of-custody, testing protocols, quality control, procedures manua 

reporting. The County reserves the right to require the Contractor to change a procedure if the 

procedure is not consistent with current DHHS or DOT Guidelines. 


25.0 	 GENERAL LITIGATION SUPPORT Depositions and interrogatories of Contractor personnel must 
be provided by the Contractor in conjunction with testing performed under this contract when requested 
by Travis County. Travis County will endeavor, where feasible to limit these requests to written 
interrogatories. The Contractor must establish procedures to insure timely and appropriate responses to 
requests for litigation support packages, discovery requests, and other inquiries. Where testimony is 
required in support of drug testing results, the Contractor must provide witnesses as required. The 
witness must also provide expert testimony in support of information contained in the Litigation Support 
Package, when requested. 

26.0 	 URINALYSIS DRUG TESTING LITIGATION SUPPORT PACKAGE 

26.1 	 The Contractor must provide within ten (10) business days documentary evidence in the form of 
a litigation support package to be used by Travis County at an administrative proceeding in 

conjunction with testing performed under this contract. 

26.2 	 The litigation support package must consist of the following: 

26.2.1 	 Certification and authentication by the appropriate laboratory official having custody of 
the original documents that the documents contained in the litigation support package are 
true and accurate copies of the original documents maintained by the laboratory as part of 
its regularly conducted laboratory activities; 

26.2.2 Laboratory Report form; 

26.2.3 	 Explanatory Affidavit, to include interpretation of test results; 

26.2.4 	 All data from the initial test results including all standards and controls run with the 
batch; 

26.2.5 	 All data including chromatographs and quantization reports from the GC/MS analysis 
including the standards and controls run with the batch; 

26.2.6 Copies of all internal chain-of-custody documents; and 

26.2.7 Summary qualifications of all personnel who appear on the chain-of-custody documents. 

27.0 	 CONTRACTOR FURNISHED MATERIAL 

27.1 	 The Contractor must provide containers to transport all specimens from Travis County. 
Containers must provide leak proof transportation to the Contractor's laboratory. 

27.2 	 The Contractor must provide all U.S. Postal Service approved packaging material for the 
transportation of urine specimens or, if other type of transportation is chosen, the appropriate 
packaging material must be provided by the Contractor. The shipping costs for First Class 
shipping of the specimens from the sites to the laboratory shall be prepaid by the Contractor. 

41 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 100



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

PART II. SECTION C. FEE SCHEDULE 

DOT Testing UNOBSERYED 	 Cost per TestLSeQ'ice 

In Clinic: 

1. 	Split sample urine drug screen (CaIU1abinoids, Benzodiazepines, $ 47.00 
Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines) 

2. 	Breath alcohol test $ 27.00 

On Site: 

3. 	Split sample urine drug screen (CaIU1abinoids, Benzodiazepines, $ 52.00 
Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines) 

4. 	Breath alcohol test $ 52.00 

NON-DOT Pre-Employment Testing 

5. 	(Amphetamines, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, $ 32.00 
Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, CaIU1abinoids, Propoxyphene, 
Methadone and Ethanol) 

6. 	Provider Travels to County $ 52.00 
to perform testing (fee per visit) 

NON-DOT (Direct) OBSERVED Drug Diyersion Court "SHORT" Program 

7. 	TYPE I - (Amphetamines, CaIU1abinoids Cocaine, $ 26.00 
Opiates) 

8. 	 TYPE 11- (Amphetamines, Methadone $ 30.00 
(Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates, 
Phencyclidine, CaIU1abinoids, Propoxyphene 

NON-DOT COUntywide UN-OBSERVED 

9. 	 Drugs plus Alcohol (Amphetamines, $_3:::...:2=.-"-00"---___ 
Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates, 
Phencyclidine, CaIU1abinoids, Propoxyphene, Methadone plus Ethanol) 

10. Expedited Results (4 Hours) 	 $ See Addendum 

11. Expedited Results (within 24 hours) 	 $ See Addendum 

42 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 101



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

NON-DOT UNOBSERYED 


12. 	 TYPE 1- Amphetamines, Carmabinoids, Cocaine, Opiates $ 26.00 
and Ethanol 

13. 	TYPE II -(Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Carmabinoids, $ 26.00 
Opiates, Ethanol) 

HHSD/Child Protective SeD'ices Testing OBSERVED 

14. (Amphetamines, Cocaines, Opiates, Carmabinoids, $ 32.00 
Benzodiazepines, Barbiturates, Phencyclidine, Phropoxyphene, · 
2nd (GUMS) and another LAB and MRO, Ethanol) 

MISCELLANEOUS TESTING 

15. Eye Scarming (PassPoint or equal) 	 $ See Addendum 

16. Hair Testing 	 $ See Addendum 

17. Oral Fluid Testing 	 $ 47.00 

18. Nail Testing 	 $ See Addendum 

19. Drug Patch 	 $ See Addendum 

20. ETGIETS Testing 	 $ 52.00 

21. K2/Spice Testing 	 $ 66.00 

22. Bath Salt Testing 	 $ 81.00 

23. 	 Ambien Testing $ 189 (unless combined 
with other standard County 
test ing then $69.00 

CONFIRMATION TESTING 

21. Amphetamine Confinnation Test (GCIMS) 	 $ 30.50 

22. Barbiturate Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 	 $ 30.50 

23. Benzodiazepines (BZE) Confirmation Test (GC/MS) 	 $ 30.50 

24. Cocaine Confinnation Test (GC/MS) 	 $ 30.50 

43 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 102



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

25. 	Opiate Confirmation Test (OCIMS) 

26. 	Phencyclidine Confirmation Test (OCIMS) 

27. Cannabinoids (THC) Confirmation Test (OC/MS) 


28 Phropoxyphene Confirmation Test (OC/MS) 


29. 	Ethanol (Alcohol) 

30. 	2nd (OCIMS) & another LAB and MRO 

TRAVEL TO PERFORM ON-CALL TESTING 

31. 	Between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday 
through Friday (non Holiday weekdays) or Holidays 
and weekends 24 hour emergency on-site response 

EXPERT WITNESS 

32. Expert Witness (Hourly Rate) 

MISCELLANEOUS REOUIREMENTS FOR "SHORT PROGRAM" 

33. 	SPANISH Speaking Interpreter on-site while Testing Center Open 
Per Hour Rate between the hours of7:00 - 6:00 (for the Short 
PrograrnlDrug Diversion Court Only) 

34. 	Notification via daily sign-in sheets faxed to the following two 
Departments ONLY: SHORT PrograrnlDrug Diversion Court 
And Pretrial Services Program. Daily cost for each department 
NO CHARGE 

$ 30.50 


$ 30.50 


$ 30.50 


$ 30.50 


$ 30.50 


$ 102.00 


$ 100.00 hourly 

$ 125.00 

$ See Addendum 

Whenever open, will have h.2.th the required qualified man and required qualified woman for direct observed 
testing on their respective counterparts? 0 X YES 0 No 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Certified Laboratory used? 
o 	XYES D No 

Location, contact person, phone number and address of all available clinics and hours of service at each location: 

ProResults DNA & Drug Testing 
7801 North Lamar, Suite B-159 
itustin, TX 78701 Contact: Sandi or Douglas Reinlie (512) 374 9977 

44 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 103



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 

?RIGINAl 

List kinds of identification client must bring: 

Client must bring valid State or Federal Photo ID. As a last resort a caseworker may request to ID a person over the 

phone or write a detailed physical description of the individual on their Drug Screen Release form. Example: height, 

weight, hair color, glasses or tattoos 


List method of reporting to client: 

Results are mainly emailed or faxed (if preferred)-however each department may request how result are to be sent.. 


List Corporate Office Address: 
Sandad Inc. 
DBA -ProResults 
7801 North Lamar Blvd., Suite B-159 

Austin, TX 78752 

45 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 104



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

PART II. SECTION D. TRAVIS COUNTY DEPARTMENTS TO FAX INVOICES FOR SERVICES TO 

THE FOLLOWING; 

Trayis County Domestic Relations Attn: Roslyrm Pitre 
Fax Number (512) 854-9818 Phone Number (512) 854-9236 
POBox 1495, Austin, Texas 78767 

Travis County Pretrial Services, Office T3 Attn: Larry Spacek 
Fax Number (512) 854-9018 Fax Number for Results (512) 854-3103 
Phone Number (512) 854-3103 
509 West 11th Street, Room 1.700, Austin, Texas 78701 

Travis County Drug Diversion Court Attn: Sharon Caldwell-Hernandez 
Fax Number (512) 854-4643 Phone Number - (512) 854-4898 
2201 Post Road - South Bldg. 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Travis County Sheriff Attn: Maria Wedhorn 
Fax Number (512) 854-4997 Phone Number (512) 854-4474 
501 West 11th Street 
Attn: Fiscal 3rd Floor, Austin, Texas 78701 

Travis County Human Resource Management DepartmentlRisk Management 
Attn: John Brady 
Fax Number (512) 854-7134 Phone Number (512) 854-9586 
700 Lavaca St. Rm 446, Austin, Texas 78701 

Travis County Juvenile Court Attn: Sylvia Mendoza 
Fax Number (512) 854-7093 Phone Number (512) 854-561 
2515 South Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78704 

Trayis County Child Protective ServjcesaIHS Attn: Andrea Colunga Bussey 
Fax Number (512) 854-4123 Phone Number 854-4100 
100 North IH 35, Austin, TX 78701 

Travis County Family Drug Treatment Court Attn: Michelle Kimbrough 
Fax number (512)854-5907 Phone Number 854-8876 
PO Box 1748, Austin, TX 78767 

Travis County .Juyenile Court Attn: 'Emmitt Haye , Director of Probation Services Division 
Fax Number (512) 854-7099 Phone Number 854-7031 
2512 South Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78704 

46 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 105



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

PART III 


DRAFT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 


NOTE: THIS AGREEMENT TO SERVE AS EXAMPLE ONLY. PROVISIONS MAYBE MODIFIED, 

DELETED OR ADDED AS DEEMED NECESSARY. 


CONTRACT FOR DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES 

BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND 


I. PARTIES 

This Contract ("Contract") 

is entered into by the following Parties: 


Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas ("County") and 


("Contractor") 

47 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 106



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 


II. DEFINITIONS 

1.0 DEFINITIONS 

In this Agreement, 

1.1 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court. 

1.2 "Purchasing Agent" means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor. 

1.3 "County Auditor" means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor. 

1.4 "Parties" mean Travis County and/or Contractor. 

1.5 "Is doing business" and "has done business" mean: 

1.5.1 Paying or receiving any money or other valuable thing in exchange for personal services or 
for purchase or use of any property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

1.5.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, services, or goods or otherwise creating or having in 
existence any legal obligation or debt; 

but does not include: 

1.5.3 Any payments, receipts, loans or receipts of a loan which are less than $250.00 per calendar 
year in the aggregate; or 

1.5.4 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a posted, 
published, or marked price available to the general public. 

1.6 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavit 
attached to this Contract and marked Attachment D. 

2.0 TERM 

2.1 Initial Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by 
all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2013 , unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 

48 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 107



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RF 

2.2 Renewal Term(s). Option to Extend: County may unilaterally extend this Contrac for ) 
additional one (1) year periods and (ii) three (3) additional one (1) month periods (individually, an 
"Option to Extend" and collectively, the "Options to Extend"), and all provisions of this Contract, 
except for term and price, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. County shall exercise an 
Option to Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the then current term. The total 
term of this Contract, including the Options to Extend, shall not exceed thirty-nine (39) months. County 
shall have the right to exercise all or a portion of the Option to Extend in any combination it deems 
necessary. 

2.3 Termination. COUNTY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving CONTRACTOR 
written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination. 

3.0 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.1 Scope of Services. CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely malUler, the services and 
activities described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is 
expressly incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

3.2 Ethical Standards. CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary 
powers in a malUler consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and her best professional 
judgment. 

3.3 Subcontracting. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is prohibited 
from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the CONTRACTOR'S 
obligations under this Agreement. 

3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities 
pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933]. 

3.5 Legal Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws, 
rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the 
performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently 
delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector. 

3.7 Insurance Requirements CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in 
Attachment C, "Insurance Requirements", which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part 
hereof. 

3.8 Federal Funds. CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 
will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in cOlUlection with awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

49 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 108



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual 
information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the TRAVIS COUNTY 
DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES and may rely on all factual information supplied by the TRAVIS 
COUNTY DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES in response to these requests. However TRAVIS COUNTY 
DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any 
elected official of County for any other purpose than conveying factual information. 

3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has 
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services 
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS 
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done 
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the 
services in CONTRACTOR'S proposal. 

4.0 COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT 

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the 
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR's compliance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the 
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof. 

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: As needed Basis 
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None. 

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any 
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY'S satisfaction and given COUNTY'S 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COU1\J"TY'S obligation to make any payment to 
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and 
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR'S profession. 

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the 
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of 
interest on overdue payments shall begovemed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code 

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall invoice County on a monthly basis for services rendered 
pursuant to this Contract. Each invoice shall include the following information: 

4.4.1 the contract Reference Number; 
4.4.2 the client reference Number, (client name) 
4.4.3 type of service in accordance with Attach. B. 
4.4.4 the total amount being requested 
4.4.5 date of collection 

Original invoices shall be sent to: 	 See Part II, Section D, for the list of County 

Department addresses. 


50 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 109



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which h i 
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to 
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days 
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with 
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30) 
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to 
CONTRACTOR 

4.6 Taxpayer Identification. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue 
Form W -9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in 
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable. 

4.7 Delinquent Property Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the 
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of invoicing, the 
CONTRACTOR hereby assigns any payments to be made for services rendered hereunder to the Travis 
County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes. 

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt. 

4.8 .1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, If notice of 
indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the 
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the State, the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not 
be drawn on a COUNTY fund in favor of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or assignee of 
CONTRACTOR until: 

4.8.1.1 the County Treasurer notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the debt is 
outstanding; and 
4.8.1 .2 the debt is paid. 

4.8 .2 "Debt" includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from written 
agreements with the COUNTY. 

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply any funds COUNTY owes CONTRACTOR to the outstanding 
balance of debt for which notice is made under section 4.8.1.1 above, if the notice includes a 
statement that the amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may be applied to reduce 
the outstanding debt. 

4.9 Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters. Certification under this Section 
4.9 provides for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, 
"Government-wide Debarment and Suspension." CONTRACTOR, by signing this Contract, 
hereby certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its principles: 

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or agency; 

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of 

51 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 110



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction or records, making false st~let~'ij~ I. 
receiving stolen property; 

(c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 

(d) have not within a three year period preceding this Contract had one or more public transactions 
(Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

Where CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 6.9, CONTRACTOR 
shall provide an explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's 
consideration and evaluation with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract 
by County. 

4.10 Exemption From County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the 
requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services or meets other requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 

4.11 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by 
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement. 

4.12 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and 
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of 
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice 
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS 

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of 
records and other information relating to Parent Coaching & Assessments Services in accordance with 
the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical 
standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client 
information. Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR 
agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY'S monitoring 
and evaluation duties in any way. 

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shall make 
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and 
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any litigation 
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR 
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost 
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

5.3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and 
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and 

52 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 111



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to 

authorized representatives. 


5.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement including 
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries, 
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR will become property of the 
COUNTY. 

6.0 AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS 

6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this 
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENT A TIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY A TTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of 
this Agreement or any attachment to it to the County Department with a copy to the Purchasing Agent. 

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has 
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County 
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, 
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve 
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise CONTRACTOR as to 
such authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may 
submit any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the 
Purchasing Agent to sign the Amendment. 

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS: 

7.1 fNDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL fNDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAfNST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, 
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KfND, fNCLUDfNG ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT 
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR fNJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY 
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING 
OUT OF OR fN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS 
CONTRACT. 

7.2 Warrants. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable copyrights, patents, 
licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials used in this 
Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any infringement of those 
rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this Agreement. Consultant 
shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes 
of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees for 
damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 
existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement. 

53 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 112



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including procee!f 
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against 
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being 
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that 
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or 
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, 
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against 
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the maIU1er provided 
herein. Except as otherwise directed , CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent 
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions. 

7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may, 
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold 
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement or Agreement is tenninated as provided herein. 

7.5 Non-Waiver of Default 

7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of 
any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist. 

7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment, 
act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it. Any 
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy 
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or 
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

7.6 Forfeiture of Contract If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person 
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business 
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to 
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and 
COUNTY shall retain all perfonnance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value 
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement, provided, however, that this 
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics 
Policy. 

7.7 Entire Agreement. All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement related 
to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this Agreement have 
been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies and procedures approved 
by Commissioners Court for County. Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations 
not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect. 

7.7.1 Attachments. The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a 
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised perfonnances by CONTRACTOR in accordance 
with all the provisions of this Agreement. 

7.7.1.1 Attachment A - Scope of Services 
7.7.1.2 Attachment B - Fee Schedule 

54 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 113



Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

7.7.1.3 Attachment C - Insurance Requirements 

7.8 	 Notices: 

7.8.1 Written Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by 
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given 
inunediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom 
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, 
postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the 
party at the address herein specified. 

7.8.2 	 County Address. The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be: 

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.; CPPO (or her successor) 
Travis County Purchasing Agent 
P. O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 

Travis County Departments 

7.8.3 	 Contractor Address. The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this 
Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be: 

CONTRACTOR Name 
CONTRACTOR Address 

7.9 Change of Address. Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice 
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8. Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen 
(15) days of the change. 

7.10 Authority: The Department designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement. The Department designee shall have complete authority to 
interpret and define in writing COUNTY'S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR'S 
services. The Department designee may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive 
information. 

7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent. When the CONTRACTOR ancl/or 
County have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract, the 
CONTRACTOR or County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing Agent by providing the 
Purchasing Agent with written notice of the dispute. Such notice shall contain a specific written 
description of the issues involved as well as the CONTRACTOR's requested resolution of the dispute and 
any other relevant information which CONTRACTOR desires to include. As of the receipt of such notice 
by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing Agent will act as the County representative in any further 
issuances and in the administration of this Contract in relation to the described dispute. Unless otherwise 
stated in this Contract, any document, notice or correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not 
issued by or to the Purchasing Agent is void. If the CONTRACTOR does not agree with any document, 
notice or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized 

55 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 114



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

County person, the CONTRACTOR must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agerr \ 
the Department designee within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice or 
correspondence, outlining the exact point ofdisagreement in detail. The Purchasing Agent will issue a 
written notice of the final resolution of the dispute to the CONTRACTOR within thlrty (30) days of 
receipt of the initial written notice of dispute by the Purchasing Agent. If this final resolution does not 
resolve the dispute to the CONTRACTOR's satisfaction, CONTRACTOR may submit a written Notice 
of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent will provide 
a copy of such response to the Department designee. Tills Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten 
(10) calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory final resolution. CONTRACTOR then has the right 
to be heard by Commissioners Court and the Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on the 
Commissioners Court agenda. 

7.12 Mediation. If the CONTRACTOR is not satisfied with the resolution of the dispute pursuant to 
Section 7.11, CONTRACTOR shall notify the Executive Manager, and, if mediation is acceptable to both 
Parties in resolving the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties agree to use the Dispute Resolution 
Center of Austin, Texas, as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in the TEX. CIV. PRAC. 
AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023. Unless both Parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, 
the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute. All communications withln 
the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. 
CODE, Section 154.073, lmless both Parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality. 

7.13 Cooperation and Coordination. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with COUNTY 
staff and other CONTRACTORs as reasonable and necessary and as required by the Travis County 
Departments/Offices. 

7.14 Independent CONTRACTOR. The parties expressly acknowledge and agree that 
CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all 
of the rights, obligations and liabilities applicable to him as an independent CONTRACTOR. 
CONTRACTOR shall not be considered an employee of COUNTY, or gain any rights against 
COUNTY pursuant to the COUNTY'S personnel policies. 

7.15 Governing Law. The validity of this agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as 
the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

7.15.1 Severability. Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this Agreement 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective shall not impair, 
invalidate, or nullify the remainder of this Agreement, but the effect thereof shall be limited to 
the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph or article so held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective. 

7.15.2 Law and Venue. All obligations under this Agreement shall be performable in Travis 
County, Texas. Venue for any litigation concerning this Agreement shall be in the City of 
Austin, Travis County. 

7.15.3 Assignment. No party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR 
that no officer, agent, employee or representative of COUNTY has any authority to assign any 
part of this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Com1. 

56 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 115



C"~,pU'. 

Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

7.16 Binding Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this i't~~~P,1~rfiW:l~ 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR an 
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. Neither the COUNTY nor the CONTRACTOR may 
assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent 
of the other party hereto. 

7.17 Perfonnance of Other Services. As a part of this Agreement, it is understood that 
CONTRACTOR is free to provide services outside this Agreement as it sees fit at those times which 
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is also understood that COUNTY is free to have more 
than one contractor providing the type of services included in this Agreement. 

7.18 Survival. Conditions and covenants of this Agreement which by their tenns are perfonnable 
after the tennination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such tennination, expiration, or 
end and remain fully perfonnable. 

7.19 Interpretational Guidelines 

7.19.1 Computation of Time. When any period of time is stated in this Agreement, the time 
shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period. If the last day 
of any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that COUNTY has declared a holiday for its 
employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation. 

7.19.2 Number and Gender. Words of any gender in this Agreement shall be construed to 
include any other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other 
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise. 

7.19.3 Headings. The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this Agreement 
have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or 
subsection and are not to be used in construing this Agreement. 

7.20 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire: 

If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and file 
the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., 
Austin, Texas 78751. The CONTRACTOR shall update this Questionnaire by September 1 of each year 
for the duration of this Contract, as required by Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code. In addition, 
if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the CONTRACTOR 
shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The CONTRACTOR should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the official Travis County Internet website. 

7.21 The person or persons signing this Agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or representing 
themselves as signing this agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and guarantee 
that he, she or they have been duly authorized by CONTRACTOR to sign this Agreement on behalf of 
CONTRACTOR and to bind CONTRACTOR validly and legally to all tenns, perfonnances, and 
provisions in this Agreement. 

57 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 116



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 


DUPLICATE ORIGINALS 


This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both parties. 


Contractor Travis County 

By: ---------------------------- 
Name and Title (Printed) 

Date:_______________________ 

By: Samuel T. Biscoe 
Travis County Judge 

Date:_______________ 

Approved as to Legal Form By: 
Assistant County Attorney 

Funds Verified By: 
County Auditor 

Approved by Purchasing: 
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO, Purchasing Agent 

58 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 117



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 

ATTACHMENT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 


(Part II of the RFS and changes resulting from negotiations will be inserted and made a part of this Contract at 
the time of Contract Award.) 

59 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 118



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 

ATTACHMENT B 

FEE SCHEDULE 


(Part II of the RFS and changes resulting from negotiations will be inserted and made a part of this Contract at 
the time of Contract A ward.) 

60 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 119



19305 

,
• 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MAnER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 


IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 


PRODUCER CONTACT 
NAME: CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTER 

BB&T INSURANCE SERVICES INC PHONE _ .. 
(866) 972-7378 I rffc No): (800) 455-96l1C No. ~xt"PO BOX 2248 ~ E·MAIL 

ADDRESS: BUSlNESS.CUSTOMERSERVICE@FARMERSINSURANCE.COM 
GRAND RAPIDS MI 49501-2248 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A: ASSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA 

INSURED INSURER B: 
SANDAD, LLC DBA PRORESULTS DRUG & DNA TESTING 

INSURER C: 

7801 N LAMAR BLVD STE 159B INSURER D: 

INSURERE : AUSTIN TX 78752 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER' Cart ID 107778 REVISION NUMBER' 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS. 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL I~~ .(~3M%~ (~ali\%~ LIMITSLTR IINSR POLICY NUMBER 

GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE S 1,000,000
f-

~~~~~~~YE~~;'"ncelA ~pMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY N N PAS003941533 1/5/2012 1/5/2013 $ 1,000,000 

f-
CLAIMS-MADE W OCCUR MED EXP (AnLone person) $ 10,000 

f- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 

r-- GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

n'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS· COM PlOP AGG $ 2,000,000 

POLICY n ~~2T !xl LOC S 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ~~~~;~t~INGLE LIMIT $ 1,000,000r--
A ANY AUTO N N PAS003941533 1/5/2012 1/5/2013 BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

f- ALL OWNED 
-

SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accidenl) $ 
r-- AUTOS - AUTOS 

X X 
NON·OWNED rp~?~~Rd~I~AMAGE $HIRED AUTOS AUTOSr-- -

$ 

UMBRELLA LlAB HOCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
'-

EXCESS LlAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION $ $ 

WORKERS COMPENSATION 
I T~~$r~J'¥s I IO~. 

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D 

N/A 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 

OFFICERIMEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE· EA EMPLOYEE $ 

~m~~rt-IT~ O'~~PERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE· POLICY LIMIT $ 

$ 

$ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1LOCATIONS 'I VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schodulo. If more space Is required) 
MEDICAL OFFICES / SANDAD, LLC DBA PRORESULTS DRUG & DNA TESTING IS COVERED FOR GENERAL 
LIABILITY BY THIS POLICY SUBJECT TO THE POLICY TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS. 

SANDAD , LLC DBA 
PRORESULTS DRUG & DNA TESTING 

7801 N LAMAR BLVD STE 159B AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

4 ..j>:, 
AUSTIN TX 78752 

© 1988·2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

Page 1 of 1 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 120

mailto:BUSlNESS.CUSTOMERSERVICE@FARMERSINSURANCE.COM


Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

ATTACHMENT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 


Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have, 
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of 
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on 
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate 
insurance options shall be imposed as follows: 

I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors' Insurance. 

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities 
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning 
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s): 

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the 
duration of the Contract. 

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating 
of B+ VIII or higher. 

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of 
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract. 

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both 
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis 
County contract number and all endorsements by number. 

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall 
be considered primary for all claims. 

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. 

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements. 

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and 
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded. 

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during any term of this 
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced. 
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and 
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance. 

1. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit 
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s). 

61 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 121



-
Travis County 	 Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-005-ML 

II. Specific Requirements 

The following requirements (II.A - II.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) perfonning 
services or activities pursuant to the tenns of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the 
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s): 

A. 	 Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance 

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers' 
Compensation Act. 

2. Employers' Liability limits are: 

$500,000 bodily injury each accident 

$500,000 bodily injury by disease 

$500,000 policy limit 


3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin: 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Fonn 420304) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (F onn 420601) 

B. 	 Commercial General Liability Insurance 

1. 	 Minimum limit: 

$500,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a 

$1,000,000 policy aggregate 


2. 	 The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows: 
a. 	 Blanket contractual liability for this Contract 
b. 	 Independent Contractor Coverage 

3. 	 The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County 

4. 	 a. Waiver of Subrogation (Fonn CG 2404) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Fonn CG 0205) 
c. 	 Travis County named as additional insured (Fonn CG 2010) 

C. 	 Business Automobile Liability Insurancet 

1. If any fonn of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and 
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence 
2. 	 Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County 

a. 	 Waiver of Subrogation (Fonn TE 2046A) 
b. 	 Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Fonn TE 0202A) 
c. 	 Travis County named as additional insured (Fonn TE 990IB) 

t Alternative Insurance Requirement 

62 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 122



Travis County Bid 1208-005-ML 

RFS#1208-00S-ML 

If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly lirnjt 
and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of 

$ 100,000/$300,000/$50,000 
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance 

D. Professional LiabilitylE & 0 Insurance 

l. Coverage shall be provided with a milllmUffi limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000 
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and 
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services 
under this Contract. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of 
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of 
coverage and the extended reporting dates. 

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor's professional liability insurance 
shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their 
insurance policy. 

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance 

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than 
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the 
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances. 

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first. 
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract 
expires or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date. 

63 


4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 123



Travis County 

Question and Answers for Bid #1208-00S-ML - Drug and Alcohol Testing 

OVERALL BID QUESTIONS 

There are no questions associated with this bid. If you would like to submit a question, 
please click on the "Create New Question" button below. 

Question Deadline: Oct 3, 2012 4:30:00 PM COT 

4400001194 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 123



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
A

 

 

 

 

 

 

Trav

ROFE
AGRE

SO

DRUG 

CON

vis Co

ESSION
EMEN

BE

TRAVI

OURCE 

AND AL

NTRACT

ounty 

NAL S
NT/CO
ETWEEN

IS COUN

AND 

1 SOLU
 

FOR 

LCOHOL
 

T NO. 44

Purc

SERV
ONTR

NTY 

UTIONS

L SERVI

40000119

hasin

VICES 
RACT 

ICES 

93 

ng Off

 

fice 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 


1.0 	 Definitions ..................................................................................................... pg. 1 

Term .............................................................................................................. 1 


3.0 	 Contractor's Responsibilities ....................................................................... pg. 2 

4.0 	 Compensation, Billing and Payment ............................................................. pg. 3 


Records, Confidentiality and ... .... ......... ........... .. .... .. .... ......... 5 

6.0 	 ......................................................................... pg. 6 

7.0 	 ............................................................................................ 6 


Approvals ...................................................................................................... pg. II 


Attachments 

Attachment - Scope of Services Performance Measures.......................... 12 


D - ..............................................pg.43 

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Persons ..................................... pg. 


Attachment E Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 

and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts ........................pg. 


Atttachment B Schedule. .................. .......................... . ............pg. 36 

Attachment C . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 


Exhibit 2 Disclosure.............................................................. 46 


Attachment F - Proposal.................................................................... 49 




    
 

 

II.  DEFINITIONS 
 

1.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

 In this Agreement, 
 

1.1 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court.  
 

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.  
  

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor. 
 

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and/or Contractor.  
 

 1.5   “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean: 

 

 1.5.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more 

than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or property 

interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

 

 1.5.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, or goods or otherwise creating or having in 

existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

 

but does not include: 

 

  1.5.3 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a “Key Contracting Person” at a  posted, 

published, or marked price available to the general public; 

 

1.5.4 Any financial services product sold to a “Key Contracting Person” for personal, family or 

household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated and individuals 

with similar risks as determined by “Contractor” in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 

1.5.5 A transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 

“Contractor” if “Contractor” is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or other 

representative of  “Contractor” who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have 

known about the Contract. 

 

 1.6 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavit   

 attached to this Contract and marked Attachment D. 

  

2.0 TERM 
 

2.1 Initial Term.  The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by 

all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2013, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.   

 

2.2 Renewal Term(s).  Option to Extend: County may unilaterally extend this Contract for (i) two  (2) 

additional one (1) year periods and (ii) three (3) additional one (1) month periods (individually, an 

“Option to Extend” and collectively, the “Options to Extend”), and all provisions of this Contract, 

except the term, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  County shall exercise an Option to 

Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the then current term.  The total term of 

this Contractshall not exceed thirty-nine (39) months.  County shall have the right to exercise all or a 

portion of the Option to Extend in any combination it deems necessary. 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 1



    
 

 

2.3  Termination.  COUNTY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving CONTRACTOR  

written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination. 

 

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
 3.1 Scope of Services.  CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and 

activities described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is 

expressly incorporated herein and made a part hereof.   

 

 3.2 Ethical Standards.  CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary 

powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and her best professional 

judgment. 

  

3.3 Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is prohibited 

from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the CONTRACTOR’S 

obligations under this Agreement.   

  

 3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities 

pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans 

with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933].   

 

3.5  Legal Compliance.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws, 

rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the 

performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently 

delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector. 

 

3.7   Insurance Requirements  CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in 

Attachment C, "Insurance Requirements", which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part 

hereof. 

 

3.8  Federal Funds.  CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 

will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to 

influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal 

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 

cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual 

information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES and may rely on all factual information supplied by the TRAVIS 

COUNTY DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES in response to these requests.   However TRAVIS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS/OFFICES shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any 

elected official of County for any other purpose than conveying factual information. 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 2



3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has 
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services 
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS 
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done 
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the 
services in CONTRACTOR'S proposal. 

4.0 COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT 

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the 
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR's compliance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the 
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof. 

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: As needed Basis 
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None. 

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any 
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY'S satisfaction and given COUNTY'S 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY'S obligation to make any payment to 
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and 
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR' S profession. 

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the 
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of 
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code 

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall invoice County on a monthly basis for services rendered 
pursuant to this Contract. Each invoice shall include the following information: 

4.4.1 the contract Reference Number; 
4.4.2 the client reference Number, (client name) 
4.4.3 type of service in accordance with Attach. B. 
4.4.4 the total amount being requested 
4.4.5 date of collection 

Original invoices shall be sent to: 	 See Part II, Section D, for the list of County 

Department addresses. 


4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to 
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to 
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days 
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with 
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30) 
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to 
CONTRACTOR 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 3



4.6 CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue 
Form W-9 Request for Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 

with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of status in 
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable. 

4.7 Notwithstanding anything to the the 
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment taxes at the time invOlcmg, 

hereby any to made hereunder to the 
Assessor-Collector the payment of said delinquent taxes. 

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt. 

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of Local Government Code, notice of 
indebtedness been filed with County Auditor or County evidencing the 
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not 

drawn on a COUNTY fund in of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or of 
CONTRACTOR until: 

4.8.1.1 the County notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the IS 

outstanding; and 
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid. 

includes delinquent and indebtedness arising from 
agreements with the COUNTY. 

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply funds COUNTY owes 

balance of debt for which notice is made under 

statement that 

the outstanding 


4.9 Certification under this 

"Government-wide and Suspension." CONTRACTOR, signing this Contract, 
hereby certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its principles: 

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or 

rpF'_'N~"'" period preceding Contract convicted of or had a civil 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction or records, making false statements, or 

stolen property; 

(c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly by a governmental entity 
(Federal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 

period preceding Contract one or more transactions 
for cause or default. 

4.8.1.1 if 
amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may 

outstanding 
includes a 

applied to 

for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, 

judgment rendered 

(d) have not within a 
or local) 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 4



Where CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 6.9, CONTRACTOR 
shall provide an explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's 
consideration and evaluation with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract 
by County. 

4.10 Exemption From County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the 
requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services or meets other requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 

4.11 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by 
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement. 

4.12 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and 
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of 
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice 
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS 

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of 
records and other information relating to Parent Coaching & Assessments Services in accordance with 
the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical 
standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client 
information. Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR 
agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY'S monitoring 
and evaluation duties in any way. 

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shaH make 
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and 
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this 
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any liotigation 
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR 
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost 
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

5.3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and 
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and 
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their 
authorized representatives. 

5.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement including 
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries, 
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR will become property of the 
COUNTY. 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 5



6.0 AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS 


6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this 
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY A TT ACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of 
this Agreement or any attachment to it to the County Department with a copy to the Purchasing Agent. 

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has 
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County 
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOVT CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, 
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve 
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise CONTRACTOR as to 
such authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may 
submit any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the 
Purchasing Agent to sign the Amendment. 

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS: 

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, 
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT 
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY 
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING 
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS 
CONTRACT. 

7.2 Warrants. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable copyrights, patents, 
licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials used in this 
Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any infringement of those 
rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this Agreement. Consultant 
shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes 
of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees for 
damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 
existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement. 

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an 
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against 
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being 
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that 
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or 
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, 
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against 
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 6



 
herein.  Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent 
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions. 

 
7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may, 
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold 
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein. 

 
7.5 Non-Waiver of Default 
 
 7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of 

any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist. 
 
 7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment, 

act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it.  Any 
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy 
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or 
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

  
7.6     Forfeiture of Contract   If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person 
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business 
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to 
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and 
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value 
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this  Agreement, provided, however, that this 
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics 
Policy. 

 
7.7 Entire Agreement.  All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement related 
to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this Agreement have 
been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies and procedures approved 
by Commissioners Court for County.   Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations 
not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect. 

 
7.7.1 Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a 
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance 
with all the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

7.7.1.1            Attachment A – Scope of Services  
7.7.1.2            Attachment B – Fee Schedule 
7.7.1.3  Attachment C – Insurance Requirements 
7.7.1.4  Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit 
7.7.1.5  Attachment E -  Debarment 
7.7.1.6  Attachment F -  Proposal 

 
7.8 Notices: 
 

7.8.1 Written Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by 
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given 
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom 
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 7



postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the 
party at the address herein specified. 

 
7.8.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be: 
 

     Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.; CPPO (or her successor) 
     Travis County Purchasing Agent 
     P. O. Box 1748 
     Austin, Texas 78767 
 

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
  
    Travis County Departments 

 
7.8.3 Contractor Address.  The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this 

Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be: 
 
      Source 1 Solutions 
      8500 Shoal Creek, Bldg. 2, Ste. D 
      Austin, TX 78757  

 
7.9 Change of Address.  Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice 
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8.  Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen 
(15) days of the change. 

 
7.10 Authority: The Department designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement.  The Department designee shall have complete authority to 
interpret and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S 
services.  The Department designee may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive 
information. 
 
7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent.   When the CONTRACTOR and/or County 
have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract, the CONTRACTOR or 
County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing  Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with written 
notice of the dispute.  Such notice shall contain a specific written description of  the issues involved as well as 
the CONTRACTOR's requested resolution of the dispute and any other relevant information which 
CONTRACTOR desires to include.  As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing 
Agent will act as the County representative in any further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in 
relation to the described dispute.  Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or 
correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not issued  by or to the Purchasing Agent is void.  
If the CONTRACTOR does not agree with any document, notice  or correspondence relating to the 
dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the CONTRACTOR must submit a 
written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Department designee within ten (10) calendar days 
after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  The 
Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the final resolution of the dispute to the CONTRACTOR within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of  dispute by the Purchasing Agent.  If this final resolution 
does not resolve the dispute to the CONTRACTOR's  satisfaction, CONTRACTOR may submit a written 
Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The  Purchasing Agent will 
provide a copy of such response to the Department designee. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within 
ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the  unsatisfactory  final resolution. CONTRACTOR then has the 
right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the  Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on 
the Commissioners Court agenda.  

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 8



that 

an 
COUNTY, or gam any against 

7.15.2 =::.:..-:=-:...== 

7.12 CONTRACTOR is not satisfied with the of the dispute pursuant to 
Section 7.11, CONTRACTOR notify the mediation is acceptable to both 

will not 

the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties to use the Dispute Resolution 
as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in CIV. PRAC. 

AND Section 154.023. both Parties are satisfied with the 
a final and binding of the All 

mediation shall confidential as described TEX. ClV. 
154.073, unless in writing, to waive confidentiality. 

7.13 CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with 
staff and CONTRACTORs as reasonable and necessary and as required by the 
Departments/Offices. 

14 The parties 
CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, operating solely 
of rights, obligations and liabilities to him as 

shall not considered an employee 
COUNTY pursuant to COUNTY'S personnel policies. 

agreement and of any of terms or provisions, as well as 
shall governed by laws of the State of 

7.15 validity of 
the parties 

7.15.1 
by a court of 

invalidate, or nullify the 
the 

1<'"'1"",,",, provision, or 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or 

of this but the 

All obligations under this Agreement shall performable in 
any litigation concerning Agreement shall in City of 

7.15.3 party may any of the rights or duties created by Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR 

no agent, or representative of COUNTY has any authority to 
part of this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court. 

7 .16 Notwithstanding any prOVIsIOn this Agreement, this 
binding upon and inure to benefit of COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and 

executors, 
sublet, or transfer his 

of the other party hereto. 

COUNTY nor the 

shall 

7. I 7 a part it is that 
CONTRACTOR is free to provide outside as it sees fit at those times which 
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is understood COUNTY is free to have more 
than one contractor providing the type of included this Agreement. 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 9



fTrPPtTIPnT on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and 
or they have duly 

7.18 Conditions covenants of this which by their terms are performable 
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or 
end and remain fully performable. 

7. I 9 Interpretational Guidelines 

When period of is stated this time 
day and include last of period. If the last day 

COUNTY has declared a holiday for 
computation. 

7.19.2 Words any gender in this Agreement shall construed to 
include any other gender and words in either number shall construed to include the other 
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise. 

shall computed to exclude the 
of any 
employees, these 

on a Saturday, Sunday or a day 
shall be omitted 

this 
by that "',",""VA 

If by Chapter 176, Local Government Code, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and 
the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., 
Austin, Texas 78751. The CONTRACTOR shall update this Questionnaire by September 1 each 

the duration this Contract, as required by Chapter I of the Local Government Code. In addition, 
if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the CONTRACTOR 

submit an updated Questionnaire. CONTRACTOR should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to a Questionnaire on the official County Internet website. 

on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or 

by CONTRACTOR to this on behalf 
CONTRACTOR to bind CONTRACTOR validly and to all 
provisions this 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 10





A TTACHMENT A 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SECTION A- TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS-ALCOHOL TESTING 

CONTRACTOR MUST: 

1.1 	 Provide trained breath alcohol technician(s) (BAT) to conduct evidential breath 
testing (EBT), including random selection for EBT, in compliance with 
Department of Transportation (DOT) regulations and 49 CFR, Parts 40 and 382, 
as amended. 

1.2 	 Use EBT devices which are listed on the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA) Conforming Products List (CPL) and meet the 
requirements for confirmation testing. 

1.3 	 Provide in-clinic facilities that afford visual and aural privacy to the individual 
being tested, sufficient to prevent unauthorized persons from seeing or hearing 
test results and ensure that individuals tested at the specified Travis County on
site locations listed in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 2.17 are afforded similar 
pnvacy. 

1.4 	 Provide all necessary equipment, personnel, and materials for EBT at the 
Contractor's location where testing is conducted and at the specified Travis 
County on-site testing locations. 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 12



PART II - SECTION B - TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS - DRUG TESTING 


1.0 
provided for this contract, the quality of all services rendered under it must confonn to 
the highest standards in the relevant profession, trade or field of endeavor. All 
must be rendered or supervised directly individuals fully qualified the relevant 
profession, or field, and holding any required by law or regulation. 
regulations under which this is to be performed are provided (taken from the 
Department of Health and Human (DHHS) "Mandatory Guidelines for Federal 
Workplace Program," the ofTransportation (DOT) 
"Mandatory Guidelines Commercial Driver's (CDL)", as published and 
"1-'\.,,,,,...,,-, In this document are to as "DHHS 
Guidelines" and "DOT " 

TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS 
following definitions are adopted: 

2.1 	 ALIQUOT - A portion a specimen used testing. 

A group consisting of samples, calibrators, controls, and blind quality 
that is run in the same time frame under the identical 

the and instruments. 

2.3 	 is a metabolite of that is identified and quantified 
Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry 	(GC/MS) confirmation test 
metabolites. 

of 

BATCH -
control 

2.4 CALIBRATORS -
drug and drug metabolites 

CHAfN-OF-CUSTODY FORM - An approved DHHS or DOT external chain-of
custody document that tracks the handling and of forensic 
speCImen of collection to final disposition and includes 
documenting printed name that clear and original of 
person, purpose for handling or transfer specimens or aliquots for 
into whose custody IS 

2.6 	 CONFIRMATORY - A second analytical procedure to identify 
presence of a drug or metabolite which is independent of the initial test 
and which uses a different technique and chemical principle from that the 

test order to ensure reliability and accuracy. (At this time GC/MS or 
LCIMS are only confinnation method for marijuana, 
opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine.) 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 13



listed in Section 6.0. 

human 
precision and 

amounts of drug or drug metabolites spiked into a 
which are used to validate calibration of an instrument, 
of the and of the technician. 

- Delta-9-Tetrahydrocannabinol-9Carboxylic Acid is a metabolite delta-
9-tetrahydrocannabinol major psychoactive compound of marijuana) that is 
identified and in the GC/MS confirmation test manJuana 
metabolites. 

2.9 - An immunoassay 	 "negative" urine 
from 	 and positive specimens 

may use the Enzyme Multiple Immuno Technique. 

2.10 	 (3) standard deviations more than the mean 
result analyzing at least 12 negative unne and 
standard deviation of values for 

2.11 	 LIMIT QUANTITATION - The mean of the of 
12 unne and calculating the standard deviation 
for each specimen. 

2 	 MRO - A review officer who is a licensed physician responsible for 
receiving laboratory results generated by Travis County drug testing 
who knowledge of substance abuse disorders appropriate medical 
training to and evaluate test with medical history and 

biomedical information person who provided the 

INITIAL 

for further testing 

at 

other 

2.13 	 drug alcohol screens for County 
Sheriff's Travis County Drug Diversion not required by, or 
conducted DHHS or DOT guidelines. Non-DOT includes Non

pre-employment Drug Diversion Court Non-
DOT Pretrial Testing and HHSD/CPS. 

2.14 	 NON-DOT PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING - A test for 10 specified 
and/or metabolites. These tests will be administered before employment in 

safety-sensitive positions 	 the County Sheriff's The 
drugs to tested and their respective presumptive cut-off levels are 

2.15 NON-DOT DRUG DIVERSION COURT TESTING - These tests are of two 
Type each 5 specified drugs and/or their metabolites. Type I 

the Type I and Type II tests will as a condition of probation 
p'!",,·....,,·rI adjudication as ordered by Travis County Drug Diversion 

drugs to tested for and their respective presumptive cut-off 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 14



for both Type I and Type II tests are listed in Section 6.0. (on fee schedule items 7 
& 8). 

2.16 	 NON-DOT PRETRIAL SERVICES TESTING - These tests are of two types, 
Type I and Type II, each for five (5) specified drugs and/or their metabolites. 
Both the Type I and Type II tests will be administered as condition of pretrial 
releases ordered by the Travis County Pretrial Services department. The specific 
drugs to be tested for an their respective presumptive cut-off levels for both Type 
I and Type II tests are listed in section 6.0 (on fee schedule items 12 & 13) 

2.17 	 SECRETARY - The Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Secretary of 
Transportation in regards to issues which affect their respective drug testing 
programs. The Secretary may designate an individual from a recognized 
organization (to include a Contractor) to act on herlhis behalf in the 
implementation of these DOT or DHHS Guidelines. 

2.18 	 TRAVIS COUNTY ON-SITE TESTING LOCATIONS - Random drug and 
alcohol screening tests will be regularly conducted by the Contractor at the 
following Travis County locations: 

2.18.1 	 TNR Satellite One Office - 9301 Jolumy Morris Road, Austin, TX 78724 

2.18.2 	TNR Westside Service Center - 1405 FM 620 North, Austin, TX 78732 

2.18.3 	TNR Satellite Four Office - 5412 Lockhart Highway, Austin, TX 78744 

2.18.4 Travis County Jail- 1000 San Antonio Street, Austin, TX 78701 

2.18.5 Travis County Correctional Complex - 3614 Bill Price Road, Del Valle, 
TX 78617 

3.0 	 SCOPE OF WORK: 

3.1 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform the initial test for the detection of marijuana metabolites and cocaine 
metabolites on all urine specimens submitted, and additionally perform the initial 
test for opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines on individually requested 
specimens. 

3.2 	 The Contractor must provide all labor, facilities, equipment and material to 
perform GC/MS confirmation tests on all specimens that are screened positive by 
the initial test. 

3.3 	 The Contractor must provide a method for identifying interfering substances 
which prevent the initial test, such as contaminants, adulterants, or other masking 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 15



agents; and provide any special testing necessary to support the laboratory's 
results. 

3.4 	 The Contractor must conduct additional GC/MS testing to identify 6 
methamphetamine and Dextros and Levo when consistent with DHHS and/or 
DOT guidelines. 

3.5 	 All laboratory analysis will be provided in accordance with all DOT regulations 
and the DHHS procedures and 49CFR, Parts 40 and 382. 

3.6 	 Urinalysis will be conducted with an initial test to eliminate negative unne 
specimens from further analysis. 

3.7 Positive initial test results will be confirmed by conducting GCIMS method of 
analysis. 

3.8 	 The initial test and positive confirmatory test will be done by the same laboratory. 
Where a Travis County employee requests additional testing following a positive 
confirmatory test, such testing on another aliquot will be conducted by a different 
laboratory, certified by the DHHS, and as directed by the MRO. 

3.9 	 Remaining aliquots must be retained in frozen storage for 60 days after the date 
on which the laboratory acquires it. 

3.10 	 The Contractor must provide an MRO. 

3.11 	 Contractor will provide a scientific method for random selection of County 
commercial drivers for drug and alcohol testing. Data for input into the random 
selection data base will be provided by the County. Random lists must be 
generated and distributed to the County at least monthly or on a more frequent 
basis as requested. 

3.12 	 Contractor must provide to the County copies of records, and databases developed 
and maintained by the Contractor as part of the activities under the contract and 
must deliver them to the County quarterly or upon request. The records and 
databases must be provided both in paper form and in Excel electronic format. 

3.13 	 Contractor and subcontractors must accommodate the identification procedures 
required by the various county departments utilizing the Contractor services to 
verify identity of the person that gives the specimen. 

3.14 	 The Contractor is required to maintain and use a system of safeguarding County 
records which identify County personnel and any other information received in 
the performance of this contract, to ensure the highest level of privacy for County 
employees. Contractor shall provide all services required in a manner that would 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 16



comply with the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.c. 552a and Section 503 of Public Law 100
71, if Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws. 

The Contractor and its employees shall not hold any discussion or release any 
information or data pertaining to the Travis County Alcohol and Drug Testing 
Program without the prior written approval of the Coordinator. This restriction 
applies to all releases of information to the public, industry, or government 
organizations. 

3.15 	 The principal and other key personnel responsible for the project and named in 
the Contractor's proposal may not be removed from the program or have their 
time substantially decreased without prior approval of the County. Replacement 
personnel must have equivalent qualifications to the persons named and are 
subject to approval by the County. 

3.16 	 Contractor must, upon request, pick up urine specimens collected by the Travis 
County Sheriffs Office within two hours of a request at 1000 San Antonio Street, 
Austin, Texas 78701. 

3.17 	 THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT AND 
THE JUVENILE DRUG COURT will require Confirmation Test only. Initial 
screens are provided by the Departments personnel. Chain of custody procedures 
and forms must be provided to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT. THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT personnel will adhere to the Chain of Custody 
Procedures and deliver specimen to the Contractor for confirmation testing. 

Contractor shall report results to the THE TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT within 72 hours of delivery, by fax which must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 
the results and a certified copy ofthe chain of custody form. 

The Family Drug Treatment Court will occasionally require a Confirmation 
Test only. 

3.18 	 CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and 
each invoice shall contain the name of each Client served by CONTRACTOR, 
the type of Service provided by CONTRACTOR, the total tests provided by 
CONTRACTOR, the hourly fee assessed for each Service provided by 
CONTRACTOR (expert witness), the name of the Provider and the total amount 
of payment requested for each Client. Each invoice submitted by 
CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR's 
representative. A list of County Departments which invoices should be sent 
can be found in Part II, Section D, Attachment D. 

4.0 	 PROCEDURE MANUAL 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 17



4.1 	 The laboratory must have a procedure manual which includes the principles of 
each test; preparation of reagents, calibrators and controls; methods used to 
determine limit of detection, limit of quantization, and linearity; calibration 
procedures; derivation of results; linearity of methods; cutoff values, mechanisms 
for reporting results; controls; criteria for unacceptable specimens and results; 
remedial actions to be taken when the test systems are outside of acceptable 
limits; reagents and their expiration dates; and references. Copies of all 
procedures and dates on which they are in effect must be maintained as part of the 
manual. 

4.2 	 Laboratory calibrators and controls must be prepared with pure drug reference 
standards, whenever possible from two different sources, or from at least two 
different lot numbers. The labels on these reagents must contain the following 
information: preparer; content; concentration; date when received, opened, 
prepared; content and concentration; and expiration date. The analytical data used 
to certify calibrators, controls, and human negative urine must be available for 
inspection. 

4.3 	 Instruments and equipment: 

4.3.1 	 Volumetric pipettes and measuring devices must be calibrated and 
certified for accuracy or be checked by gravimetric, colorimetric, or other 
verification procedure. Automatic pipettes and dilutors must be checked 
for accuracy and reproducibility before being placed in service and 
checked periodically after that. 

4.3.2 	 There must be written procedures for certification of new instruments, 
procedures for instrument set-up and normal operation, a schedule for 
checking critical operating characteristics for all instruments, tolerance 
limits for acceptable function checks, and instructions for major trouble 
shooting and repair. Contractor must maintain records on preventive 
maintenance and make these records available upon request. 

4.4 	 There must be written procedures for the actions, remedial and otherwise, to be 
taken when systems are out of acceptable limits, or discrepancies or errors are 
detected. There must be documentation in the form of Memorandum for the 
Record that these procedures are followed and that all necessary corrective 
actions are taken. 

4.5 	 The laboratory must have at least one qualified, experienced, and established 
forensic toxicologist to provide expert testimony in Travis County legal, 
administrative or disciplinary proceedings involving urinalysis cases. 

5.0 	 SPECIFIC TESTING Specimens submitted must be initially tested for THC, BZE, 
opiates, phencyclidine and amphetamines. When conducting either initial or confirmatory 
tests, every batch must contain an appropriate number of standards for calibrating the 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 18



instrumentation and a minimum of 10 percent controls. Both internal blind quality control 
and external blind performance test samples must be true blind samples and not 
discernible to laboratory analysts. 

6.0 	 INITIAL DRUG TEST PROCEDURES 

6.1 	 For the DOT program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the DOT program must be screened 
for the following 5 drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Cannabinoids (THC) 50 nglml 
Benzodiazephines (BZE) 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.2 	 For the Non-DOT pre-employment testing program, all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT pre-employment testing program must be screened for the following 10 
drugs and the results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further 
confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug 
metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Methadone 300 nglml 
Ethanol 10 ngldl 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 19



The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.3 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT Program) Direct Observation 
testing - Type I program, all specimens must be screened using approved 
immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 
for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of
custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, 
Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court 
Type I testing program must be screened for the following 4 drugs and the results 
are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if 
the specimen shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above 
the statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

The level at which a presumptive positive occurs is subject to change by either the 
DHHS 	or the DOT, as advances in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these substances at other concentrations. 

6.4 	 For the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court (SHORT program) and the Juvenile 
Probation Department, pirect Observation testing - Type II program, all 
specimens must be screened using approved immunoassays that meet the 
requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Drug Diversion Court - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following 8 drugs and the results are considered 
presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen 
shows the presence of drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the 
statistically determined level indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 20



6.6 

by DHHS guidelines stated in Part II, ..... P'I'TH1.n 

drug(s) andlor 

The at which a """un"", occurs is subject to the 
DHHS or the as """",n,r..", in technology or other considerations warrant 
identification of these at other ""'"£'''''' 

the Non-DOT Juvenile and other miscellaneous Travis County 
Unobserved testing all specimens must be approved 
immunoassays meet the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration 

commercial distribution. All initial tests must conducted 

custody 


under Non-DOT 
Unobserved testing program must screened for the following 8 
Ethanol and results are considered presumptive positive and subject to Mu~h"... 

confirmation testing specimen shows the presence 
metabolite(s) at or above statistically determined indicated below: 

1,000 nglml 
200 
200 

Cocaine 300 
Opiates nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) nglml 
Cannabinoids 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

Non-Dot 

initial 

must be 
of the Food and 

Type I program, all 
that meet the 

distribution. 
tests must under procedures, as 

specified DHHS guidelines stated in Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under Non-DOT Type I testing 

must be following 
results are considered positive and subject to further 
testing the specimen the presence drugs (s) andlor drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Amphetamines 1,000 


300 

300 


Cannabinoids (THC) nglml 

and Ethanol the 

6.7 For the Non-Dot Pretrial Services Unobserved testing - Type II program, all 
must be approved meet 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 21



requirements of the Food and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. 
All initial tests must be conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as 
specified by DHHS guidelines stated in PART II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. 
Specimens submitted under the Non-DOT Pretrial Services - Type II testing 
program must be screened for the following four (4) drugs and Ethanol and the 
results are considered presumptive positive and subject to further confirmation 
testing if the specimen shows the presence of drugs (s) and/or drug metabolites(s) 
at or above the statistically determined level indicated below. 

Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 

6.8 	 For the Non-DOT Countywide Unobserved testing - all specimens must be 
screened using approved immunoassays that meet the requirements of the Food 
and Drug Administration for commercial distribution. All initial tests must be 
conducted under chain-of-custody procedures, as specified by DHHS guidelines 
stated in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 1.0. Specimens submitted under the Non
DOT Countywide Unobserved testing program must be screened for the following 
8 drugs and Ethanol and the results are considered presumptive positive and 
subject to further confirmation testing if the specimen shows the presence of 
drug(s) and/or drug metabolite(s) at or above the statistically determined level 
indicated below: 

Amphetamines 1,000 nglml 
Barbiturates 200 nglml 
Benzodiazepines (BZE) 200 nglml 
Cocaine 300 nglml 
Opiates 300 nglml 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 25 nglml 
Cannabinoids (THC) 20 nglml 
Propoxyphene 300 nglml 
Ethanol (Alcohol) 10 nglml 

7.0 	 CONFIRMATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

7.1 	 All confirmation testing must be performed usmg GC/MS, applying the 
procedures for each drug and/or metabolite(s) outlined in this section. All 
confirmation testing must be by quantitative analysis. Concentrations that exceed 
the linear region of the standard curve value may be diluted. If diluted, the 
dilution factor must be considered when calculating the actual drug content of the 
specimen. If the specimen is not diluted, the concentration of the specimen will 
be the actual determined value of the specimen. Limit of detection should be 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 22



7.3 

determined for GC/MS instrument. The limit of quantization should be 
determined for each GC/MS instrument. 

The Cannabinoids confirmation test must meet the additional following 

1 The target compound is 

7.2.2 A deuterated with a confirmed by the 
laboratory is the internal standard, and 

on a forensically accepted technique 
of in a concentration than or 

The run must include two blind 
n'-"'<oPt"'P 

on the GC/MS test. 
quality control specimens, one negative and one positive. 

(BZE) confirmation test employed must meet the 

.1 target compound is 

.2 	 A BZE with certified purity confirmed the laboratory 
is the internal standard, and 

.3 	 A positive is based on a forensically accepted GC/MS technique 
which indicates a concentration greater or 
equal to 150 ng/ml on the run must include two blind 
quality control one other positive. 

7.4 	 The amphetamines confirmation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.4.1 The compounds for amphetamines are amphetamine, 
methamphetamine, or both, 

7.4.2 	 A deuterated amphetamine and deuterated methamphetamine with 
purity confirmed by the laboratory is the standard, and 

A positive report is on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates the of amphetamine and/or methamphetamine at 
a concentration greater than, or equal 500 Any 
methamphetamine positive must indicate the of 
amphetamine greater than, or to, 200 ng/ml. Any methamphetamine 
positive sample must be to identify and quantitative the & L 

np'EU""'" and 
run must include two blind quality control one 

other 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 23



opiates confinnation test employed must meet following7.5 

1 	 target compound for are morphine and codeine, 

A deuterated morphine and codeine with certified purity 
confinned the laboratory is the standard, and 

7.5.3 positive report i,s based on a forensically accepted 
indicates presence morphine and/or 

concentration of 300 nglml or Any positive a 
concentration equal to or greater than 4,000 nglml must also be to 
detennine presence of 6-Monoaceytalmorphine at a concentration 
10 nglml or The run must two blind quality control 

one and the positive. 

7.6 	 phencyclidine (PCP) confinnation test employed must meet the following 
additional parameters: 

7.6.1 compound is PCP (Parent Drug), 

A deuterated phencyclidine analog with certified con finned the 
laboratory is internal standard, and 

7.6.3 	 A positive report is based on a forensically accepted technique 
which indicates of a concentration to 
or than 25 The run must include two blind quality control 
specimens, one negative the other positive. 

Barbiturates confinnation test employed 

7.8 	 Cocaine confinnation test employed 

Propoxyphene confinnation test employed 

Testing procedures for the DOT testing must follow the 
requirements specified in II, Section Paragraph 1.0. If exists 
between these requirements and the DOT Regulations as published in the 

Register, guidance in DOTs Regulations governs. 

8.0 
Contractor must be 

maintain certification in accordance with the applicable DHHS and DOT 
the Federal ,n,.... ' ...",...... 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 24



maintain 
maintain quality control testing; 

validity, reliability, accuracy, 

9.0 

management of drug 
overall 

9.1 	 The laboratory must have a qualified individual to assume professional, 
organizational, educational, and administrative responsibility 	 the laboratory's 

facility who is the 

individual must be ill for day-to-day 
laboratory even where another individual has 

an entire multi- specialty laboratory. 

9.3 must ensure that are personnel with adequate 
'"''',-,,,...... ''' to supervise and conduct work of drug 

laboratory. He or she must ensure the continued competency of laboratory 
personnel by documenting 	 training, work 

'and their 

9.4 	 individual must ensure the laboratory has a procedure manual which is 
complete, up-to-date, available for personnel performing tests, and followed by 
those personnel. procedure manual must be reviewed, signed, dated by 
this responsible individual whenever procedures are first placed into use or 
changed or a new individual assumes responsibility for management of the 
drug testing laboratory. of all procedures dates on which they are in 

must be maintained. 

9.5 	 This individual must maintain a 

test and test system. 

9.6 	 This individual must take all remedial actions to maintain satisfactory 
operation and performance of the laboratory in response to quality control 

not being within performance specifications, errors in result reporting or 
in analysis of results. This individual must ensure that 
sample results are not reported until all corrective actions have been and he 
or she can assure that test results provided are accurate reliable. 

9.7 obtain specimens under the Type I or Type II Programs for 
Diversion testing contractor is responsible for the 

collection of the urine The contractor must ensure that any 
factors any attempts on part of the being to 

manipulate the test do not contaminate the specimens. lab staff is used 
to observe individuals urine specimens, must have the necessary 

and 	 integrity of the urine tests. At a minimum, 
following 	 for the of and reporting 
testing 

reporting of all 
all and 

of 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 25



9.7.1 	 For storage of urinalysis supplies, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.1.1 store al1 urinalysis supplies in a secure area with access limited to 
employees involved in the collection process; and 

9.7.1.2 prevent client access to the secure storage areas. 

9.7.2 For observation of urine specimens, the contractor shal1: 

9.7.2.1 secure the collection area; 

9.7.2.2 provide gender appropriate 	 staff who shall be present in the 
lavatory to observe individuals giving the urine specimens; and 

9.7.2.3 ensure that the staff observing individuals giving urine specimens 
have adequate training to safeguard the collection process from 
fraudulent attempts to alter the urine specimens and/or 
envirorunental factors that would affect the validity of the test 
results. 

10.0 	 TEST VALIDATION The laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have a 
designated certifying scientist who reviews al1 pertinent data and quality control results to 
attest to the validity of the laboratory's test reports. A laboratory may designate more 
than one person as a certifying scientist. The certifying scientist(s) may be any employee 
who is qualified to be responsible for day-to-day management or operation of the drug 
testing laboratory. 

11.0 	 DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS AND SUPERVISION OF ANALYSTS The 
laboratory's urine drug testing facility must have an individual to be responsible for day
to-day operations and to supervise the technical analysts. This individual must have at 
least a bachelor's degree in the chemical or biological sciences or medical teclmology or 
equivalent. This individual must have training and experience in the theory and practice 
of all methods and procedures used in the laboratory, a thorough understanding of quality 
control practices and procedures; a thorough understanding of the review, interpretation, 
and reporting of test results; knowledge of chain-of-custody procedures; and experience 
providing prompt remedial actions to be taken in response to test results out of acceptable 
range or detecting aberrant test or quality control results. 

12.0 	 OTHER PERSONNEL Other teclmicians or non teclmical staff must have the 
necessary training and skills for the tasks assigned. 

13.0 	 WITNESSES 

13.1 	 Contractor persolU1el may be required to appear personally at administrative 
hearings to explain their laboratory procedures. The Contractor must have at least 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 26



one person available in each of the following categories on a full-time basis to 
testify at administrative hearings: 

13.l.1 	 Category A: An expert in forensic toxicology drug testing issues who is 
capable of discussing Contractor's laboratory procedures and who has the 
following minimum qualifications: 

13.l.l.1 	 Certification as a laboratory director by the State In 

forensic or clinical laboratory toxicology; or 

13 .1.l.2 A Ph.D. in one of the natural sciences with an adequate 
undergraduate education In biology, chemistry, 
pharmacology, or toxicology, 

13.1.1.3 	 Training and experience comparable to a Ph.D. in one of 
the natural sciences, such as a medical or scientific degree 
with additional training and laboratory/research experience 
in biology, chemistry, and pharmacology or toxicology, 

13.1.1.4 	 Appropriate experience in analytical forensic toxicology 
including experience with the analysis of biological 
material for drugs of abuse, and 

13.1.1.5 	 Appropriate training and/or experience In forensic 
applications of analytical toxicology, e.g., publications, 
court testimony, research concerning analytical toxicology 
of drugs of abuse, or other factors which qualify the 
individual as an expert witness in forensic toxicology. 

13.1 .2 Category B: A person fully knowledgeable on the procedural aspects of 
urine drug testing at the Contractor's laboratory. 

13.1.3 	 Category C: A processing technician who is a qualified and trained 
laboratory technician that handles testing of Travis County specimens on a 
day-to-day basis. 

14.0 	 TRAINING The laboratory must have a manual and maintain records reflecting the 
training and certification of personnel, describing the procedures for initial and annual 
certifications. Procedures must also be in place which describe the decertification 
process and any remedial training required for recertification. 

15.0 	 FILES Laboratory personnel files must include resume of training and experience; 
certification or license, if any; references; job descriptions, records of performance 
evaluation and advancement; incident reports; and results of tests which establish 
employee competency for the position he or she holds, such as test for color blindness, if 
appropriate. ' 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 27



16.0 

16.1 

Any testing used by Contractor this contract must 
have a quality assurance which all the 
process including but not limited to specimen acquisition, accessioning, 
ali quoting, chain-of-custody, and reporting of results, initial and 
confirmatory testing, and validation analytical procedures. Quality assurance 
procedures must be implemented, and reviewed to monitor the conduct 
of each the process of for 

16.2 LABORATORY QUALITY CONTROL REQUIREMENTS INITIAL 

16.2.1 analytical run of specimens to screened must include: 

16.2.1.1 Urine certified to contain no drug, 

16.2.1.2 specimens fortified with known standards, and 

1 1.3 controls with drug or at or near 
presumptive positive level. 

In addition, with batch samples a 
must be included to ensure and the linearity 

number of "....uu.... 

the assay 
over in the area cutoff. acceptable 
are obtained for known standards, those values will be used to 
calculate sample data. Implementation procedures to ensure that 
carryover not contaminate the testing an individual's specimen 
must be documented. A minimum of 10 percent of all test samples must 

quality control Laboratory blind quality control 
prepared from spiked urine specimens determined concentration must 
be included in each run and should appear as normal samples to laboratory 
analysts. percent of run, with minimum of at least one 
sample, must the laboratory's own blind quality control samples. 

CONFIRMATION TEST: 

run for the GC/MS will contain no more than and The 
run must contain a minimum of urine quality control specimens: one 
certified standard at concentration, one certified sample at 40% of cut
off, one negative specimen, and one positive 
specimen at or near the cutoff. Two of the four must 
blind. The and of must periodically 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 28



documented. Implementation of procedures to ensure that carryover does not 
contaminate the testing of an individual's specimen must also be documented. 
The calibrators must quantitative wi~hin 10% of the target value when the 
calibrators are certified, as required by DHHS and DOT guidelines. The 
concentration of all quality control specimens must assay within + or - 20% of 
their certified value. For only the Electron Impace GC/MS methods, the retention 
time of the drug must be within 2% of the extracted sample at the cutoff 
concentration and the ion ratios must be within + or - 20% of the extracted sample 
at the 	cutoff. The calculated concentration of the negative quality control 
specimens must not exceed the established limit of detection of the instrument for 
the drug being tested. All quality control samples must be within the acceptable 
range and meet all chromatographic criteria with all ion ratios within + or - 20% 
before reporting any sample results in that run. The chromatography of an 
internal standard from the negative specimen must meet the retention time and ion 
ratio requirements. 

17.0 	 SPECIMEN HANDLING AND RECEIVING REQUIREMENTS 

17.1 	 The Contractor must utilize an appropriate system to ship the specimens, if 
required . If not shipped via the U.S. Postal Service, then the Contractor must 
ensure that there is sufficient security to ensure the physical security and integrity 
of the specimen, the chain-of-custody, and shipping container. 

17.2 	 The Contractor must provide specimen kits containing a kit box, urine specimen 
container, specimen bottle seal, protective seal, label, sealable plastic bag to hold 
the container, and foam insert. The urine containers must hold 100 mI., be made 
of inert materials that will not absorb or adsorb drugs, or drug metabolites, and 
meet DHHS and DOT standards. The cap liner must be made of inert material 
that will not absorb or adsorb drugs or drug metabolites from the specimen. The 
containers' temperature strip must be inside (unless prohibited by DHHS or DOT 
regulation) and be occluded. The occlusion must show tampering and allow for 
ready viewing by authorized persOlU1eI. The shipping containers must at least 
meet U.S. Postal Service standards and be pre-addressed and prepaid for shipment 
to the Contractor's laboratory. The Contractor must ship with the specimen kits at 
least one chain-of-custody forms for each specimen kit. 

17.3 	 Upon receipt of specimens, the Contractor must record the condition of the 
shipping container, including information about damage in shipment, evidence of 
suspected specimen tampering, or other unusual conditions. The Contractor must 
compare information on specimen bottles to the information on the accompanying 
chain-of-custody forms. Records must be kept of the individuals that perform 
these checks. A Discrepancy Report must be generated, in accordance with Part 
II, Section B, Paragraph 21.3, and must be used to record discrepancies and 
provided to the office that collected the specimen. 

18.0 	 SECURITY OF LABORATORY AND SPECIMENS 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 29



18.1 	 The identity and integrity of the urine specimens must be maintained within the 
laboratory. All specimens must be maintained in a secure area with limited and 
controlled access throughout all phases of processing and storage from receipt to 
final disposal. 

18.2 	 Drug testing laboratories must be secure at all times. They must have in place 
sufficient security measures to control access to the premises and to ensure that no 
unauthorized personnel handle specimens or gain access to the laboratory 
processes or to areas where records are stored. Access to these secured areas 
must be limited to specifically authorized individuals whose authorization is 
documented. With the exception of personnel authorized to conduct inspections 
on behalf of Federal agencies for which the laboratory is engaged in urine testing 
or on behalf of the Secretary, any person not employed by the Contractor must be 
escorted at all times. Documentation of individuals accessing these areas, dates, 
and time of entry and purpose of entry must be maintained and kept available for 
audit. 

18.3 	 Laboratories must use chain-of-custody procedures to maintain control and 
accountability of specimens from receipt through the following processes: 

18.3.1 	 completion of testing, 

18.3.2 reporting results, 

18.3.3 during storage, and 

18.3.4 final disposition. 

18.4 	 The date and purpose must be documented on a chain-of-custody form each time 
a specimen is handled or transferred, and every individual in the chain must be 
identified. Accordingly, authorized technicians must be responsible for each 
urine specimen or aliquot in their possession and must sign and complete chain
of-custody forms for these specimens or aliquots as they are received. 

19.0 	 RETENTION OF SPECIMENS 

19.1 	 Specimens that do not receive an initial test within 7 days of arrival at the 
laboratory must be placed in secure refrigeration units. Temperatures must not 
exceed 6 degrees centigrade. An emergency power generator must be available in 
case of prolonged power failure to maintain the stability and integrity of 
specimens. 

19.2 	 All positive specimens must be placed in a limited access long-term, frozen 
storage area for a minimum of one year, and temperature must be maintained at 
20 degrees centigrade. Within this one year period Travis County may request the 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 30



laboratory to retain the specimen for an additional period of time; but, if no such 
request is received the Contractor must provide a list of those specimens and 
request permission of the Alcohol and Drug Testing Program Coordinator (the 
"Coordinator") to destroy the specimens. The Coordinator shall approve 
destruction if there is no pending litigation. If there is a legal challenge, the 
Contractor is required to maintain the specimens for an indefinite period. 

20.0 	 DRUG TEST RESULTS REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

20.1 	 The report must identify the drugs/metabolites tested for, whether positive or 
negative, and the presumptive positive level for each, the base specimen number 
assigned; the Contractor's laboratory number, and the test subject's Social Security 
number. The report must include a certified copy of the original chain-of-custody 
and must be signed by the certifying scientist. The results (positive and negative) 
for all specimens submitted on the same chain-of-custody form must be reported 
back to the MRO at the same time. 

20.2 	 The laboratory must report as negative all specimens which are negative on the 
initial test or negative on the confirmatory test. Only specimens confirmed 
positive for a specific drug or class of drug are reported positive for that specific 
drug. 

20.3 	 The MRO may request quantization of test results from the laboratory, and the 
laboratory must provide quantization of test results. 

20.4 	 Results must be transmitted in a secured manner so as to ensure confidentiality of 
the information. If the County approves a manner as one that is sufficiently 
secure, the laboratory may transmit results to the MRO by various electronic 
means. Results cannot be provided by telephone under any circumstances. The 
laboratory must ensure the security of the data transmission and limit access to 
any data transmission, storage, and retrieval system. 

20.5 	 The laboratory must send only to the MRO a certified copy of the original chain
of-custody form signed by the individual responsible for day-to-day management 
of the drug testing laboratory or the individual for attesting to the validity of the 
test results. 

20.6 	 The Contractor shall report to Travis County, by fax, Non-DOT negative or 
positive results of initial tests within twenty-four (24) hours from the date of 
collection. Fax notification of negative and positive initial test results must be 
followed with notification via regular mail containing a certified copy of the chain-of
custody form. 

The Contractor shall provide to Travis County Pretrial Services a list of all 
Pretrial Services clients (individuals) who at the end of the business day did not appear at 
the collection facility to submit a sample as referred by the agency. 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 31



response to 
longer due to circumstances which are nfr,,",,'''' 

Fax notification of positive initial test must 

p.m. 

shall report to 
hours from if collection is 

72 (seventy-two) hours 4:00 p.m. by fax. 
notification of negative initial test results must followed with notification via 

regular mail containing the certification of the negative results and a certified 
copy the chain-of custody form. 

"',...>,.,.",.. shall to County confirmatory 

tests within 72 (seventy-two) and 96 (ninety-six) 

collection fax, on the 

cases reporting 


federal regulations. 
followed notification via regular mail containing the MRO's certification of 

positive results a certified of chain-of custody form. 

21.0 

21.1 	 In appropriate DHHS and/or DOT Guidelines, 
must send to County (listed on 
monthly summary report. Initial and confirmation data must be included from 
test results reported within that month. Normally this summary must be 
forwarded by registered mail not more than 14 calendar days the end the 
month covered by the summary. following 
information: 

21.1.1 Initial test reports must include following information: 

21 1.1.1 	 Number of 

21.1.1 	 Number 

21.1.1.3 	 of manJuana 
metabolites, cocaine metabolites, opiate metabolites, 
phencyclidine, and amphetamines 

21.1 	 Confilmatory rpY"'T1rC must the following information: 

21.1 	 Number of OJ"..... uu"u.;} received for confirmation, and 

21.1 	 of confirmed for: 
metabolite, cocaine metabolite, morphine, codeine, 
phencyclidine, amphetamine, and methamphetamine. 

a 

and 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 32



21.2 	 On a monthly basis the Contractor must supply to the Travis County Coordinator, 
the following information on specimens completed since the last report: 

21.2.1 	 Identification number, 

21.2.2 Laboratory Accession Number, 

21.2.3 	Date Specimen Received in Laboratory, 

21.2.4 Drugs Screened For, 

21.2.5 Confirmation Tests Conducted, 

21.2.6 Final Report (Positive or Negative), 

21.2.7 Date Report Sent to Travis County, and 

21.2.8 Specimen Turnaround Time. 

21.3 	 No later than the 10th working day after the end of the calendar month, the 
Contractor must submit a discrepancy report to Travis County 
Departments/Offices (listed on Attachment 5) with the following data: 

21.3.1 	 Reporting Month; 

21.3.2 For each 	 submitting location sending specimens during the reporting 
month, the total number of specimens received; and 

21.3.3 	 For each department submitting specimens during the reporting month, the 
total number of specimens discarded, broken down into the following 
categories: 

BU - Box unsealed or no signature or date on box seal 
NHHS - No DHHS chain-of-custody-form 
DOT - No DOT chain-of-custody form 
ISSN - Incomplete social security number 
ISPN - Incomplete base specimen number 
NCOC - No chain-of-custody form 
QNS - Volume in bottle is less than 30 ml 
LSSN 	- Social Security number on specimen label does not match the 

social security on the chain-of-custody form 
LAX - Laboratory Accident 

22.0 	 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR DHHS AND DOT DRUG TESTING 
PROGRAM 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 33



must be accounted 
(listed on 

Attachment 5). 

23.0 

24.0 	 Unless otherwise instructed by the DHHS in writing, all 
to a given urine specimen must be retained by the drug testing 

laboratory a minimum 2 years. Upon request from Travis County, the 
must provide any information or documents pertaining to procedures used at its 
laboratory for performance of contract. of procedures chain-of
custody, protocols, quality control, procedures manual 
County reserves the to Contractor to a procedure 
is not consistent with current DHHS or DOT 

reporting. 

25.0 	 GENERAL LITIGATION SUPPORT Depositions and interrogatories of Contractor 
personnel must by Contractor in conjunction with performed 
under this contract when requested by Travis County. County will endeavor, 
where feasible to limit these requests to written interrogatories. Contractor must 
establish procedures to insure timely and appropriate responses to requests for litigation 
support packages, discovery requests, and other inquiries. Where testimony is required in 
support drug testing the Contractor must provide witnesses as required. The 

must also provide expert testimony in support information contained in the 
Litigation Support Package, when requested. 

26.0 

26.1 	 Contractor must provide within ten (l0) business documentary 
in form a litigation support to used by County at an 
administrative proceeding in conjunction with testing performed under this 
contract. 

litigation support IJ~~'''~'_'' must consist of the following: 

26.2.1 	 Certification and authentication by appropriate laboratory 
containedhaving custody of the original documents that the 

the litigation support package are true and accurate copies of the 
documents maintained by laboratory as part regularly 

26.2.2 Laboratory Report form; 

26.2.3 Explanatory Affidavit, to include test 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 34



26.2.4 All data from 	 initial test results including all standards controls run 
with the 

All data including chromatographs and quantization 
GC/MS including and run with 

26.2.6 Copies all chain-of-custody documents; and 

26.2.7 Summary qualifications 	 all personnel who appear on the chain-of
custody documents. 

the 

27.0 

Contractor must provide containers to transport all from Travis 
County. must provide transportation to the 
laboratory. 

The must provide all U.S. Postal approved packaging material 
for the transportation unne other of transportation is 
chosen, appropriate packaging material must provided by the Contractor. 
The shipping costs First Class shipping of the specimens from the to the 
laboratory shall prepaid by the Contractor. 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 35



ATTACHMENT B 


4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 36



 

 

 

 

PART II, SECTION C, FEE SCHEDULE 
 

           

DOT Testing UNOBSERVED                    Cost per 

Test/Service  
 

In Clinic:  

1.  Split sample urine drug screen (Cannabinoids, Cocaine,   $55.00 

 Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines) 

 

2.  Breath alcohol test        $35.00 

 

On Site: 

3.  Split sample urine drug screen (Cannabinoids, Cocaine,   $75.00 

 Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines) 

 

4.  Breath alcohol test        $45.00  

NON-DOT Pre-Employment Testing 

 

5.  (Amphetamines, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines,    $41.00 

 Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene,  

Methadone and Ethanol) 

 

6.  Provider Travels to County        $75.00 

 to perform testing (fee per visit)     

 

NON-DOT (Direct) OBSERVED Drug Diversion Court “SHORT” Program 

 

7.  TYPE I -   (Amphetamines, Cannabinoids, Cocaine,    $40.00 

  Opiates) 

 

8.  TYPE II –  (Amphetamines, Methadone     $40.00 

Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates,  

Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene) 

 

NON-DOT Countywide UN-OBSERVED 

 

9.   Drugs plus Alcohol (Amphetamines,      $41.00 

 Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates, 

Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene, Methadone plus Ethanol) 

 

10.   Expedited Results (4 Hours)      $N/A 

 

11.   Expedited Results (within 24 hours)     $N/A 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 37



 

 

 

NON-DOT UNOBSERVED 

 

12.   TYPE I – Amphetamines, Cannabinoids, Cocaine, Opiates  $41.00 

          and Ethanol 

 

 13.  TYPE II -(Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cannabinoids,   $41.00 

                         Opiates, Ethanol)       

       

HHSD/Child Protective Services  Testing OBSERVED 

 

14. (Amphetamines, Cocaines, Opiates, Cannabinoids,     $41.00(testing) 

Benzodiazepines,  Barbiturates, Phencyclidine, Phropoxyphene,   

2
nd

 (GC/MS) and another LAB and MRO, Ethanol) $250.00(2nd lab) 

           

MISCELLANEOUS TESTING 

 

15.  Eye Scanning  (PassPoint or equal)      $N/A 

 

16.  Hair Testing         $80.00 

 

17. Oral Fluid Testing        $36.00 

 

18. Nail Testing         $N/A 

 

19. Drug Patch         $N/A 

 

20. ETG/ETS Testing $95.00 

 

21. K2/Spice Testing N/A 

 

22. Bath Salt Testing $192.90 

 

23. Ambien Testing $55.00 

 

CONFIRMATION TESTING 
  

24.  Amphetamine Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $40.00 

 

25.  Barbiturate Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $40.00 

  

26.  Benzodiazepines Confirmation Test (GC/MS)    $40.00 

 

27.  Cocaine Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $40.00 

 

28.  Opiate Confirmation Test (GC/MS)      $40.00 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 38



 

 

 

29.  Phencyclidine Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $40.00 

 

26.  Cannabinoids (THC) Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $ 40.00 

 

27  Phropoxyphene Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $ 40.00 

 

28.  Ethanol (Alcohol)        $ 40.00 

   

29.  2nd
 (GC/MS) & another LAB and MRO     $250.00  

 

TRAVEL TO PERFORM ON-CALL TESTING 

 

30.  Between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday     $N/A 

 through Friday (non Holiday weekdays) or Holidays 

and weekends 24 hour emergency on-site response  

      

EXPERT WITNESS 

 

31.  Expert Witness (Hourly Rate)      $350.00 

  3 hr. min. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS REQUIREMENTS FOR “SHORT PROGRAM” 

 

32.  SPANISH Speaking Interpreter on-site while Testing Center Open $N/A 

Per Hour Rate between the hours of 7:00 – 6:00  (for the Short  

Program/Drug Diversion Court Only) 

 

33.  Notification via daily sign-in sheets faxed to the following two $N/A 

        Departments ONLY: SHORT Program/Drug Diversion Court  

        And Pretrial Services Program. Daily cost for each department 

 

34. Medical Review Officer Fee $45.00 

 

35. Litigation Package $375.00 

 

 

Whenever open, will have both the required qualified man and required qualified woman for direct 

observed testing on their respective counterparts?       Yes         No 

 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Certified Laboratory 

used? 

   Yes       No   Certification # 0325 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 39



ATTACHMENT C 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have, 
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of 
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards.  Depending on 
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate 
insurance options shall be imposed as follows: 
 
I.  General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors' Insurance.   
 
The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities 
pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning 
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and  subcontractor(s): 
 
 A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the 
duration of the Contract. 
 
 B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating 
of B+ VIII or higher. 
 
 C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier.   A copy of the Certificate of 
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract. 
 
 D. Certificates of Insurance  shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent  within ten (10) working days  of execution of the contract by both 
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first.  The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis 
County contract number and all endorsements by number. 
 

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall 
be considered primary for all claims. 
 

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. 
 

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements. 
 

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and 
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded. 
 

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during  any term of this 
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.  
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention.  All deductibles and 
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance. 
 

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit 
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s). 
 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 40



II. Specific Requirements   
 
The following requirements (II.A - II.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) performing 
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the 
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s): 
 
     A. Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance 

 
1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers' 
Compensation Act. 

 
2. Employers' Liability limits are: 
 

   $500,000 bodily injury each accident 
   $500,000 bodily injury by disease  
   $500,000 policy limit 
 

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin: 

   a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) 
   b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601) 
 
 B. Commercial General Liability Insurance 
 
  1. Minimum limit: 
   $500,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a  
   $1,000,000 policy aggregate 
 
  2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows: 
   a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract 
   b. Independent Contractor Coverage 
 

3.  The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County 
 
4.  a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404) 

   b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205) 
c.  Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010) 

 
 C. Business Automobile Liability Insurance† 
 

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and 
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence 

 2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County  
   a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A) 
   b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A) 
   c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B) 
 
†  Alternative Insurance Requirement 
 If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to 
and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of  

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 41



   $ 100,000/$300,000/$50,000  
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance 
 

D.  Professional Liability/E & O Insurance 
 

 1. Coverage shall be provided with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000 
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and 
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services 
under this Contract. 

 
 2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 

this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first.  Coverage shall include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated.  Certificate of 
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of 
coverage and the extended reporting dates. 

 
 3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor’s professional liability insurance 

shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their 
insurance policy. 

  
 E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance 
 

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than 
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the 
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances. 

   
  2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 

services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.   
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract 
expires or is terminated.  Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date. 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 42



RFS#1208-005-ML 

 

 
 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 43

http:Affiant:------lB~IJ..~~:.Jl


November 2, 2012 

CURRENT 
Name of Individual Name of Business 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe 


Executive Assistant .......................................... "....... Bro\Vn 

Executive Assistant ............................................ " ..... Melissa Velasquez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Josie Z. Zavala 

Executive Assistant... ... " .... " .............. " ...... " .... " ... " ... Cheryl Aker 


Precinct I .......................................... Ron Davis 

Precinct 1 Annie Davis 


Executive Assistant. ............................................... " .. Deone Wilhite 

Executive Assistant. ................................................... Felicitas Chavez 


Precinct 2 ......................................... Sarah Eckhardt 

Precinct 2 .... " .............. " ..... Kurt Sauer 


Executive Assistant ... " ........ " .................................... Loretta Farb 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Joe Hon 

Executive Assistant ................................................... Peter Einhorn 


Precinct 3 .......................................... Karen Huber 

Precinct 3 
 Leonard Huber 


Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Garry Brown 

Executive Assistant. .. " ... "." ... " .................................. Julie Wheeler* 

Executive Assistant. ............................... " .... "."",, ..... Jacob Cottingham 

COmnliS!HOller Precinct 4 ...... " ........... " .. " ................. Margaret Gomez 

Executive Assistant... ................................................. Edith Moreida 

Executive Assistant.. .................................................. Norma Guerra 

County Treasurer ....................................................... Dolores Ortega-Carter 

County Auditor ......................................................... Nicki Riley* 

County Administrative ............................. Vacant 

County & Leslie Browder* 


l::m:efj~.en<:y Services .................... Danny Hobby 
l::xlecultlvle, HealthlHuman Services ............... Sherri E. Fleming 

Justice & Public 
TNR ........................................... Steven M. Manilla, P.E.* 


............... Jefferies 

............................... EI Khoury, M.S., P.E. 


Interim ChiefInformation Officer.............. ........... .... Acevedo 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Rod Bro\VTI 

Interim ChiefInformation Officer ............................. Walter Lagrone 


Steve Capelle 

Executive ....................... James Collins 


Land Use Division ...................................... Tom Nuckols 

Land Use Division ..................................... Julie Joe 

Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore 

Transactions Division ................................ John Hille 

Transactions Division ................................ Vacant 


Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Elizabeth Winn 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Mary Etta Gerhardt 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Barbara Wilson 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Jim Connolly 

Attorney, Transactions Division ................................ Tenley Aldredge 

Director, Health Services Division ............................ Beth Devery 

Attorney, Health Services Division ........................... Pre rna Gregerson 


...................................................... Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 


Records & Communications ........ Steven Hn'lh"ra 

............................................ David Escamilla 

Seton 

Daffer McDaniel, LLP 

Retired 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 44



Assistant Purchasing Agent .. .. .... ....... .......... .... .... ..... Marvin Brice, CPPB 

Assistant Purchasing Agent .......... ... .......... ........ ..... ... Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ....... ..... ... ......... ...... CW Bruner, CTP 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ... ..... ........ ..... .. .. .... ... Lee Perry 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. .... ... ..... ......... ..... Jason Walker 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ... ... .. .. ..... ..... ... ..... .. .... Richard Villareal 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... .. .. .. ... .. ........ ......... Patrick Strittmatter* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ .. .. .. ... .. ...... .. ....... Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....... ....... .... ......... .... ... Scott Wilson, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .. .. .. ..... ... ........ .......... Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ....... ................... Loren Breland, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........ ...... ....... .. ........... John E. Pena, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. ................................ Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ...... .. ..... ... .. .......... ...... Angel Gomez* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ... ..... ..... ... ............. Shannon Pleasant, CTPM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ... ... .... .... .... ................ David Walch 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .................. ........ Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..... ....... ... ........... ........ Nancy Barchus, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ................. .. ...... .. ....... Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ...... .. .... .... .................. Sydney Ceder* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. ..... ...... .. ... .... ..... Vacant 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .......... .......................... Jayne Rybak, CTP* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant 11.. .. ... .... ................. .. .. .... L. Wade Laursen* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .. ... .. .. ............ ..... ... .. ..... Sam Francis* 

HUB Coordinator ...... ........... ... .. ..... .. ..... .... ............. .. . Sylvia Lopez 

HUB Specialist... ........ ..... ................. .. .. .. ...... .. ........ .. . Betty Chapa 

HUB Specialist ..... ... .. ..... .. .. .......... ... .. ..... ..... .. ..... ..... .. Jerome Guerrero 

Purchasing Business Analyst.. ............ .. .. .. .......... ... .... Scott Worthington 

Purchasing Business Analyst .. ......... .. ........ .. .............. Jennifer Francis 


FORMER EMPLOYEES 

Name ofIndividual 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .... ......... .. .... .... .. ......... Diana Gonzalez .................... ...... ... ... .. ........ 12116112 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....... .. .. ....................... Elizabeth Corey, C.P .M.......... .. ... ...... ......... 03114113 

Attorney, Transactions Division .. .. . .. ......... ..... .. ......... Tamara Annstrong .................. .. ..... .. ........... 03/30113 

Executive Assistant... ..... ... ............. .. .......... .. ............. Lori Duarte ....................................... .. .... ... 06115113 

ChiefInforma tion Officer. .... ........... .. .. ..... .. ...... .. ...... Joe Harlow .................. ................ .. ............. 07/31113 

County Auditor ........... .. .... .. .................................... Susan Spataro, CPA .................................... 08/31113 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .. .... ... .... .... .... .. ........... George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P ....... .. ...... 09/26/ 13 


* - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 45



2 
DISCLOSURE 

acknowledges Offeror is doing or has business the 365 day 
period immediately to the date on which contract is with the following key 
contracting persons and warrants that are the only key contracting persons: 

no one IS warrants Offeror is not doing and has not done 
business during 365 day immediately prior to on which Request for 

response is made with any key contracting person. 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 46



ATTACHMENT E 


4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 47



shall not 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY 

EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 


Federal Executive Order 12549 Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has 
a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary 
exclusion. Each covered contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors. 

In this certification "contractor" refers to both contractor and subcontractor; "contract" refers to both contract and subcontract. 

By and submitting this celrtilllcllti4~n, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms: 

1. 	 The certification herein below is a material of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous in addition 
to other remedies available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including 
and/or debarment. 

2. 	 The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any 
time the potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason 
of changed circumstances. 

3. 	 The words "covered contract," " "suspended," " "participant," " "principle," "proposal," and 
excluded," as used in this certification have based upon materials in the Definitions and 


sections of federal rules Executive Order 12549. 

4. 	 The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it 

enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
palrtl(:lp,atU)n in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travi" 

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? __YES 

5. 	 The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, 	 Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts "without 

in all covered subcontracts"; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts. 
6. 	 A contractor may upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, or 

VOluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a 
minimum, obtain certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each subcontract's initiation and upon each renewal. 

7. 	 Nothing contained in all the shall be construed to establishment of a system of records in order to render in 
good faith the certification required by this certification document The knowledge and information of a contractor is not 

to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the 
8. 	 for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract 

a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, 
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency andlor Travis County may 
pursue available andlor debarment. 

course of business 

or voluntarily excluded from palrtlclp,ltIo!n 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING UI:..D&:run "'''''''J'l,.INELIGIBILlTY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION 
FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement to the covered contractor/potential contractor: 

D 111e contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is 
debarred, proposed for debarment, declared or voluntarily excluded from 

any federal or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County. 

The contractor is unable to to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, 
the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make 
certification. Attach the explanation(s) to this certification. 

Name of Contractor 	 Vendor 1.0. or Social Security No. 

of Authorized Representative Date 	 Name & Title of Authorized 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 48



ATTACHMENT F 


PROPOSAL 


4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 49



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Travis County 
 

Request for Services (RFS) 

#1208-005-ML 
Drug & Alcohol Testing 

 

 

 

 

 

Source 1 Solutions 
8500 Shoal Creek Blvd. 

Bldg. 2, Ste. D 
Austin, TX 78757 

Contact: Dana Richie 
Ph: (512) 918-3400 

Toll Free: (866) 770-1706 
Fax: (512) 918-3403 

dana@source1-solutions.com 
 
 

October 10, 2012 

 
 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 50



RFS#1208-005-ML 

 

 

    

   

 

October 10, 2012 

Travis County Purchasing Department 

Attn: Cyd Grimes  

700 Lavaca Street, Suite 800 

Austin, Texas 78701 

 
Dear Travis County Purchasing Agents,  

 

I would like to take this opportunity to introduce our company, Source 1 Solutions. Source 1 is a Third 

Party Administration Company specializing in Substance Abuse Testing and Background Research. After 

reviewing RFS # 1208-005-ML, Source 1 Solutions feels that we can meet and exceed your expectations 

for an efficient Professional Drug & Alcohol Testing Program. Source 1 will accomplish this by utilizing 

trained professionals in a professional environment suitable for the collection of specimens. We realize the 

importance of our profession and we take every step to insure the integrity & consistency of each collection 

or test. Our mission is to provide the highest quality and most up-to-date technology in substance abuse 

testing along with the most reliable background information, all backed with excellent customer service. 

Source 1 Solutions was created through the vision of Drug Testing professionals who took their knowledge 

of the industry and listened to the needs of the Human Resource & Safety Professionals, then built a 

company tailored for those needs. Source 1 is an employee owned HUB Certified Vendor and a member 

of DATIA (Drug & Alcohol Testing Industry Association). I hope you find this information to be insightful 

and we look forward to continuing working with Travis County in fulfilling your Substance Abuse Testing 

needs. Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or would like additional information regarding 

our services. Thank you again for your time and I look forward to talking with you soon.  

  

 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 
 

Dana Richie 

President 

Source 1 Solutions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 51



RFS#1208-005-ML 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RFS #1208-005-ML 

 

PART I - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

PART I, SECTION A - GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

1.0 PURPOSE:   

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 1.0.  

 

2.0 INCURRED EXPENSES:  

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 2.0 

 

3.0 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL:  

Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 3.0. 

 

4.0 LATE PROPOSALS OR MODIFICATIONS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 4.0. 

 

5.0 WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 5.0.  

 

6.0 POINTS OF CONTACT: 

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 6.0. 

 

7.0 CLARIFICATION OR OBJECTION TO PROPOSAL SPECIFICATION: 

Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 7.0.  

 

8.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS:   

Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 8.0.  

 

9.0 QUALIFICATIONS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 9.0  

 

10.0 OTHER CONDITIONS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read, understands all statements in 10.1 – 10.3. 

Source 1 Solutions is unable to provide 24 hour, seven days a week, including weekend and holiday 

coverage, including hours from 6:00pm to 7:00am and 24 hours coverage for onsite emergency 

service. 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 52



RFS#1208-005-ML 

 

 

 

 

 

PART I, SECTION B -REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 

 

1.0 Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 1.0. 

 

2.0 Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 2.0. 

 

 

2.1: See Attached. 

2.2: See Attached. 

2.3: Source 1 Solutions was formed in December of 2001 by Industry professionals with an  

additional 2 years previous experience as Vice President/Operations, Compliance/Investigations and 

Marketing/Sales of a similar company.   

Source 1 Solutions does not intend to subcontract any work performed to another company. 

 

 

2.4 Offeror References 

Roberts Trucking Ph:   806-457-2149 Renee Alaniz DOT testing-Austin 

Travis Co. Ph.   512-834-3366 Katy Reyes Non-DOT/Hair testing-Austin 

DFPS Ph:   512-834-3240 Tim Fadell Non-DOT, Hair, & Oral Fluids 

    (Bell, Travis & Wmsn Co.) 

 

2.5 Source 1 Solutions is a Third Party Administration Company specializing in Drug Testing & 

Background Checks. Source 1 Solutions facilitates drug testing programs for corporate and 

state entities along with providing testing for the legal and private community. Source 1 offers 

a vast array of drug testing including some of the most up to date technology available such as 

the Oral Fluids Intercept testing device. Source 1 Solutions is a Woman owned business that 

employs four Full time employees and another 40 contract collectors at it’s other designated 

collection facilities across Central Texas. Source 1 Solutions corporate office is located at 

8500 Shoal Creek Blvd. and has one other satellite office located in Temple at 1005 

Marlandwood Rd.  Source 1 Solutions utilizes Quest Diagnostics. Quest Diagnostics’s 

SAMHSA# is 0325. 

 

 

 

 

 

Dana Richie – President/CFO 

Dana Richie is one of the founders of Source 1 Solutions and brings with her vast experience in the field of 

Drug Screen Collections and Background Checks. As the owner of Source 1 Solutions, in addition to being a 

Certified Breath Alcohol Technician and a Certified Oral, Urine and Hair Collector, Dana manages and 

performs all aspects of Background Verification, Random Testing and Statistical Reporting. This includes 

establishing and maintaining the relationships and the online database memberships required for Nationwide 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 53



RFS#1208-005-ML 

 

 

Criminal Background research, Motor Vehicle Reports, Credit Reports, Previous Employment, Social 

Security Number and Education Verifications.  

Dana manages the scheduling and performing of on-site drug testing. Dana also administers the development 

and implementation of Randomware, a random-list generating software that is used to manage the random 

drug testing programs of our customers. This experience gives her invaluable insight into the implementing 

of Random Drug Testing programs, the requirements to remain DOT compliant, and providing customers 

with required and requested monthly, quarterly and annual reporting.  

Dana’s experience as a Compliance Coordinator has highlighted her skills of attention to detail, organization 

and timeliness. Dana regularly verifies that her contacts and relationships with each company that Source1 

utilizes as a provider remain intact so as to offer only the highest level of service and preferred pricing. Dana 

uses these abilities and experience to manage the Investigations and Compliance Departments. Dana also 

assists in the Marketing & Sales and Operations departments, as well as in training, billing and accounting. 

 

Connie Higginbotham – Collector 

Connie Higginbotham joined Source1 in February 2005 and brings with her experience in the field of 

medical testing and Drug Screen Collections in the Bell County area. Connie has met and been certified in 

DOT and Non-DOT Urine Collections along with receiving training in Alternative specimen collections such 

as the Oral Fluids tests and Hair Follicle collection. Connie has also met DOT requirements to act as a Saliva 

Testing Technician. Conniespends her day interacting with Clients and individuals and performing 

collections as needed along with assisting with the coordination of on-site testing. 

 

Kathy Richie – Collector 

Kathy Richie joined Source1 in July 2006 Kathy has met and been certified in DOT and Non-DOT Urine 

Collections along with receiving training in Alternative specimen collections such as the Oral Fluids tests 

and Hair Follicle collection. Kathy has also met DOT requirements to act as a Saliva Testing Technician. 

Kathy spends her day interacting with Clients and individuals and performing collections as needed along 

with assisting the company accounting. 

 

Cody Higginbotham – Collecter 

Cody Higginbotham joined Source 1 Solutions in 2007 and has been certified in DOT, Non-DOT, Hair, and 

oral fluids testing. Cody handles client calls and performs drug screen collections. 

 

2.6 Offeror Representative  Dana Richie – 512-918-3400 
 

2.7 Cost Proposal - See Part C- Fee Schedule (Attachment 4)  
 

3.0-3.3 See Attached  
 

4.0 Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 4.0 

 

5.0 Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 5.0 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 54



RFS#1208-005-ML 

 

 
 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 55



RFS#1208-005-ML 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

DISCLOSURE 
 

 

 

Offeror acknowledges that Offeror is doing business or has done business during the 365 day period 

immediately prior to the date on which this contract is made with the following key contracting persons and 

warrants that these are the only such key contracting persons: 

 

Mike Long 

                                        

            Cyd Grimes 

 

Michelle Kimbrough 

 

 

 

 

If no one is listed above, Offeror warrants that Offeror is not doing business and has not done business 

during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date on which this Request for Services response is made 

with any key contracting person. 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 56



 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 57



 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 58



 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 59



 

 

 

PART 1 – SECTION C – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

 

1.0 PROPOSAL DISCLOSURE: 

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 1.0.  

 

2.0 EVALUATION FACTORS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 2.0.  

 

3.0 EVALUATION PROCESS 

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 3.0 

 

4.0 METHOD OF AWARD: 

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 4.0.  

 

 

 

PART 1 – SECTION D – NEGOTIATIONS 

 

1.0 NEGOTIATIONS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 1.0.  

 

2.0 DEVIATIONS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read, understands and will comply with all statements in 2.0.  

 

3.0 RESERVATIONS OF RIGHTS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 3.0.  

 

4.0 PROTESTS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all statements in 4.0. 

 

PART II – SCOPE OF SERVICE 

 

 

SECTION A – TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS – ALCOHOL TESTING 

 

A. Source 1 Solutions will provide three full-time Saliva Testing Technicians (STT) 

utilizing DOT approved alcohol screening devices that are listed on the NHTSA 

conforming products list (CPL). Source 1 Solutions will utilize our current random 

selection software, Randomware, for the random selection process. This program is 

currently in use and we have personnel with over three years experience running the 

Randomware program. This program has proven to be an efficient and user friendly 

program that allows us to import list directly form an excel format. 

 

B. All positive Screening Tests will be confirmed by EBT in accordance with the DOT 

guidelines. 

 

C. Source 1 Solutions will provide facilities that afford visual and aural privacy to the 

individual being tested which will be sufficient to prevent unauthorized persons from 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 60



 

 

 

seeing or hearing test results. In addition, we will provide all necessary equipment and 

personnel when conducting testing at the specified Travis County on-site testing locations 

as referenced in Part II, Section B, Paragraph 2.17. 

 

D. Source 1 Solutions will provide all necessary equipment, personnel, and materials for 

EBT at the Contractor’s location and at the specified Travis County on-site location. 

 

 

 

PART II – SCOPE OF SERVICE 

 

SECTION B – TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS – DRUG TESTING 

 

1.0 REQUIRED STANDARD OF WORKMANSHIP: 

Source 1 Solutions has insured that every Collector, BAT and STT has received proper training 

on the use of equipment, collection process, problem collection training, Chain of custody 

requirements, and the steps to insure the integrity during the process. Each collector has 

demonstrated the knowledge and proficiency of the collection process by meeting the guidelines 

as set forth by the Department of Transportation. All collectors have also been trained in Non-

Mandated testing procedures. Each collector has a certificate stating that they have met these 

requirements for each procedure they have been trained in. 

 

2.0 TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS: 

Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all definitions as stated in 2.1 – 2.18.5. 

 

3.0 SCOPE OF WORK: 

 

Re: 3.1 – 3.18 

Source 1 Solutions in conjunction with Quest Diagnostics will provide all 

necessary labor, facilities, equipment and material to perform the initial test and 

GC/MS confirmation for all specimens in accordance with DHHS and/or DOT 

guidelines and as set forth in paragraphs 3.1-3.18. 

 

Re: 3.10 

Source 1 Solutions currently has a relationship and will provide MRO services 

through Austin based MRO, James Hefner, MD.  

 

Re: 3.11 

Source 1 Solutions will utilize our current random selection software, 

Randomware, for the random selection process. This program is currently in use 

and we have personnel with over ten years experience running the Randomware 

program. This program has proven to be an efficient and user friendly program 

that allows us to import list directly form an excel format. The program allows for 

multiple pools with multiple departments an can be set-up to run Daily, Monthly, 

Quarterly or Yearly depending on the needs of the client. This program also keeps 

a history of each pull and allows for statistical reports.  

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 61



 

 

 

Re: 3.12 

All records and databases will be available upon the request of authorized 

personnel and can be prepared electronically, in paper and in Excel format.  

 

 

Re: 3.13 

Source 1 Solutions will accommodate the various county departments in the 

identification process. We routinely require a State issued ID, such as a Drivers 

License, Military ID, Picture ID. We realize that some individuals may not have 

any valid picture ID and we will work with the county to help identify such 

individuals via telephone and visual ID or descriptions if necessary.  

  

Re: 3.14 

Source 1 Solutions maintains the strictest of confidentiality. We do this by 

maintaining all records in password and firewall protected computer systems 

along with keeping Chain of custodies and paperwork in locked file cabinets. All 

useless and dated material is shredded. 
 

Re: 3.15 

Source 1 Solutions agrees and will comply with this request.  
 

Re: 3.16 

All specimens will be picked up at the county’s request the same day. In the case 

where there are an adequate number of specimens on a routine/daily basis, a 

courier can be arranged to pick up specimens at an arranged time on a daily basis 

if needed at no additional cost to the county. 

 

 Re: 3.17 

Source 1 Solutions agrees and will comply with this request.  

 

Re: 3.18       

Source 1 Solutions agrees and will comply with this request. 

 

4.0 PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

 Re: 4.0  

Quest Diagnostics meets or exceeds all of Travis County’s requirements for 

procedure manual. 

 

5.0      SPECIFIC TESTING   

Quest Diagnostics meets or exceeds all of Travis County’s requirements for 

specific testing. 

 

6.0 INITIAL DRUG TEST PROCEDURES 

 Source 1 Solutions has read and understands all requirements as stated in 6.1 – 6.8 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 62



 

 

 

7.0 CONFIRMATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

 

Re: 7.1 – 7.9  

Quest Diagnostics meets or exceeds all of Travis County’s requirements for 

confirmatory test procedures in accordance with DHHS and DOT Guidelines. 

 

8.0 CERTIFICATION OF LABORATORIES ENGAGED IN URINE DRUG 

TESTING FOR FEDERAL AGENCIES  Quest Diagnostics is SAMHSA, CAP AND CLIA 

Certified 

Quest Diagnostics's toxicology lab is held up to the highest standards in the industry. In 1994, 

Quest Diagnostics received its Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 

(SAMHSA) Certification from the Department of Health and Human Services. Quest 

Diagnostics maintains all required state and federal certifications. 

 

Internal Proficiency Testing Programs to Ensure Accuracy 
Accreditation requires that Quest Diagnostics be enrolled with several agencies which provide 

proficiency testing specimens to our laboratory.  

Following are the programs that submit specimens to the Substance Abuse Testing Division: 

 

 National Laboratory Certification Program (SAMHSA)  

 Forensic Urine Drug Testing (CAP)  

 New York State Proficiency Testing  

 Pennsylvania Proficiency Testing for Drugs of Abuse  

 Florida Proficiency Testing for Drugs of Abuse  

 

9.0 DAY-TO-DAY MANAGEMENT 

 

Re: 9.1 – 9.7 

Quest Diagnostics exceeds all of Travis County’s requirements for day-to-day 

management.  Quest Diagnostics enjoys the unique position of having several 

responsible persons and as well as alternates all completely qualified to meet the 

day-to-day management requirements. 

 

Re: 9.7.1 – 9.7.2.3 

Source 1 Solutions agrees to perform all collection in accordance with the 

requirements of the county. Source 1 Solutions further assures the county that all 

collectors have been trained and the appropriate staff will be utilized for each 

collection, observed or unobserved.  

 

10.0 TEST VALIDATION   

Re: 10.0 

See attached exhibit “D” 

 

11.0 DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS AND SUPERVISION OF ANALYSTS   

  Re: 11.0  

   See attached exhibit “D” 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 63



 

 

 

12.0 OTHER PERSONNEL   

  Re: 12.0 

   See attached exhibit “D” 

13.0 WITNESSES   

 

Re: 13.1.1 – 13.1.1.5 

Quest Diagnostics’s Director of Laboratory Operations, Barbara Rowland, and 

Dawn Hahn, Laboratory Operations Manager, meet all the requirements for 

Category A. Barbara Rowland is responsible for the toxicology laboratory at 

Quest Diagnostics.  She has considerable experience in managing the operations 

of a drug testing laboratory and is also a recognized expert in the area of forensic 

toxicology.  She also serves as a laboratory inspector for the College of American 

Pathologists’ Forensic Urine Drug Testing Program and the National Laboratory 

Certification Program.  Her resume is attached. 

 

Re: 13.1.2 

In addition to Barbara Rowland and Dawn Hahn, Anne Roberts and Mark Wuest 

are alternate responsible persons and can fulfill the requirements for Category B. 

 

Re: 13.1.3 

All technical employees on Quest Diagnostics’s staff are fully training and 

qualified to meet State and Federal requirements 

 

14.0 TRAINING   

Quest Diagnostics meets or exceeds all of Travis County’s requirements for 

training. 

 

15.0 FILES   

  Quest Diagnostics meets or exceeds all of Travis County’s requirements for files. 

 

16.0 QUALITY ASSURANCE AND QUALITY CONTROL 

 

Re: 16.1 

Quest Diagnostics exceeds Travis County’s requirements for quality assurance 

and quality control. The accuracy of testing results is the number one priority at 

Quest Diagnostics. To ensure this, we undergo the most stringent quality 

assurance programs in the industry.  Every aspect of the testing process is 

monitored and evaluated to ensure maximum accuracy and performance. Quest 

Diagnostics’s quality control program exceeds the requirements of the Health and 

Human Services certification program, and includes open and blind controls, our 

internal Superblind® program, and external proficiency testing.   

 
Open and Blind Controls 

Open and blind controls are included with immunoassay and GC/MS batches. 

During immunoassay initial testing, open controls are included with every batch, 

a 75% and a 125% cut-off control. If these controls fail pre-designated acceptance 

criteria, the specimens in that screening batch are re-tested. At least one blind 

control is inserted into every batch. These blinds are either positive or negative 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 64



 

 

 

and their identity is known only to the Quality Control Supervisor and to the 

certifying scientists.  

 

Within each confirmation run by GC/MS, controls at 40% and 125% of the 

commonly used cut-offs are used to monitor the calibration.  All GC/MS batches 

include a blind negative. All blind controls that are positive at screening are taken 

through to confirmation.  At that point, their quantitation is uses to monitor assay 

performance. The determined concentration for all these controls has to be within 

20% of the mean concentration for that pool. If they do not satisfy this 

requirement, the batch is re-aliquoted and re-extracted for GC/MS. 
 

 

Superblind® Testing Program 

Quest Diagnostics has developed a Superblind quality improvement program that 

challenges every aspect of our testing process, from account setup, specimen 

collection and transportation, to reporting and billing.  

 

Our quality improvement specialists send approximately 1,500 challenges through 

our Superblind system each month, specifically for drug testing. Our specialists 

prepare the control specimens and document all expected results. Each specimen 

is assigned an ID number, a fictitious client name and a custody control form is 

completed. The Superblind samples are packaged in the standard Quest 

Diagnostics format and some are submitted directly with the incoming specimens. 

Others are shipped to specimen collection sites to be transported to the laboratory 

with their incoming specimens.  The predetermined results of the Superblind 

controls are compared with those produced in the laboratory, and any 

discrepancies are analyzed and addressed.  

 
Proficiency Testing 

In addition to the internal quality improvement programs, Quest Diagnostics 

performs external proficiency testing for certification purposes, including 

programs required by Health and Human Services and the College of American 

Pathologists (CAP), New York State Department of Health, Florida Agency for 

Health Care Administration, and the Pennsylvania Department of Health. 

 

Re: 16.2 – 16.2.2 

Quest Diagnostics meets or exceeds all Travis County quality control 

requirements for initial tests. 

 

Re: 16.3 

Quest Diagnostics fully complies with all DHHS and DOT guidelines for 

calibrations  The confirmation test requirements for Travis County differs from 

Quest Diagnostics practices in that Quest Diagnostics uses 36 controls instead of a 

maximum of 25, and also two of the four quality control samples must not be 

blind. 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 65



 

 

 

17.0 SPECIMEN HANDLING AND RECEIVING REQUIREMENTS 

 

Re: 17.1 

Source 1 Solutions meets or exceeds all Travis County requirements for shipping 

of specimens. 

 

Re: 17.2 

Source 1 Solutions meets or exceeds all Travis County requirements for materials 

necessary for collection. 

 

Re: 17.3 

Quest Diagnostics meets or exceeds all Travis County requirements for receipt of 

specimens. 

 

18.0 SECURITY OF LABORATORY AND SPECIMENS 

 

Re: 18.0 – 18.4 

Source 1 Solutions in conjunction with Quest Diagnostics meet or exceed all 

Travis County requirements for security of laboratory and specimens. 

 

19.0 RETENTION OF SPECIMENS 

 

Re: 19.1 

Quest Diagnostics meets all Travis County requirements for specimen holding. 

 

Re: 19.2 

Quest Diagnostics meets all Travis County requirements for positive retention 

with the exception that Travis County must notify Source 1 Solutions of any 

litigation so that the specimen can be moved to the proper indefinite storage area. 

 

20.0 DRUG TEST RESULTS REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

 

Re: 20.0 – 20.7 

Source 1 Solutions in conjunction with Quest Diagnostics fully comply with 

DHHS and DOT reporting requirements and meet or exceed all Travis County 

requirements for drug test results reporting. 

 

21.0 SUMMARY REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

Source 1 Solutions has read and will comply with all requirements as stated in 21.0 – 

21.3.3. 

 

22.0 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR DHHS AND DOT DRUG TESTING 

PROGRAM   
Source 1 Solutions has read and will comply with all requirements as stated in 22.0. 

 

23.0 SUBSTANTIATION   

Source 1 Solutions has read and will comply with all requirements as stated in 23.0. 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 66



 

 

 

24.0  RECORD RETENTION: 

Source 1 Solutions in conjunction Quest Diagnostics handles all records consistent with 

DOT guidelines and meets or exceeds these requirements. 

 

25.0 GENERAL LITIGATION SUPPORT   

Source 1 Solutions has read and will comply with all requirements as stated in 25.0. 

Furthermore, all laboratory records, including custody control forms, quality control 

records and analytical data are stored for at least two years in a secured area with 

restricted access. Upon request, a litigation package can be produced, which contains all 

the information relating to a particular specimen. When necessary, Quest Diagnostics will 

make available an expert witness to testify on these records and their interpretation. 

Barbara Rowland has had extensive experience in testifying in support of laboratory data 

and has been qualified as an expert in forensic toxicology.  There is a charge for expert 

testimony and litigation packages. 

 

26.0 URINALYSIS DRUG TESTING LITIGATION SUPPORT PACKAGE 

 

Upon request Source 1 Solutions in conjunction with Quest Diagnostics will provide a litigation 

packet that will be available within 7-10 days.  There is an additional charge for litigation 

packets. The packet includes  

 

 certification and affidavit of accuracy 

 copies of original chain of custody form and laboratory report 

 Initial testing description and results with calibration and controls 

 Confirmation testing description and results with calibration and controls 

 Vitae of technical staff including certifying scientists 

 

27.0 CONTRACTOR FURNISHED MATERIAL 

Source 1 Solutions has read and will comply with all requirements as stated in 27.1 – 

27.2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 67



 

 

 

 

PART II, SECTION C, FEE SCHEDULE 
 

           

DOT Testing UNOBSERVED                    Cost per 

Test/Service  
 

In Clinic:  

1.  Split sample urine drug screen (Cannabinoids, Cocaine,   $55.00 

 Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines) 

 

2.  Breath alcohol test        $35.00 

 

On Site: 

3.  Split sample urine drug screen (Cannabinoids, Cocaine,   $75.00 

 Opiates, Phencyclidine, Amphetamines) 

 

4.  Breath alcohol test        $45.00  

NON-DOT Pre-Employment Testing 

 

5.  (Amphetamines, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines,    $41.00 

 Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene,  

Methadone and Ethanol) 

 

6.  Provider Travels to County        $75.00 

 to perform testing (fee per visit)     

 

NON-DOT (Direct) OBSERVED Drug Diversion Court “SHORT” Program 

 

7.  TYPE I -   (Amphetamines, Cannabinoids, Cocaine,    $40.00 

  Opiates) 

 

8.  TYPE II –  (Amphetamines, Methadone     $40.00 

Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates,  

Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene) 

 

NON-DOT Countywide UN-OBSERVED 

 

9.   Drugs plus Alcohol (Amphetamines,      $41.00 

 Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cocaine, Opiates, 

Phencyclidine, Cannabinoids, Propoxyphene, Methadone plus Ethanol) 

 

10.   Expedited Results (4 Hours)      $N/A 

 

11.   Expedited Results (within 24 hours)     $N/A 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 68



 

 

 

NON-DOT UNOBSERVED 

 

12.   TYPE I – Amphetamines, Cannabinoids, Cocaine, Opiates  $41.00 

          and Ethanol 

 

 13.  TYPE II -(Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines, Cannabinoids,   $41.00 

                         Opiates, Ethanol)       

       

HHSD/Child Protective Services  Testing OBSERVED 

 

14. (Amphetamines, Cocaines, Opiates, Cannabinoids,     $41.00(testing) 

Benzodiazepines,  Barbiturates, Phencyclidine, Phropoxyphene,   

2
nd

 (GC/MS) and another LAB and MRO, Ethanol) $250.00(2nd lab) 

           

MISCELLANEOUS TESTING 

 

15.  Eye Scanning  (PassPoint or equal)      $N/A 

 

16.  Hair Testing         $80.00 

 

17. Oral Fluid Testing        $36.00 

 

18. Nail Testing         $N/A 

 

19. Drug Patch         $N/A 

 

20. ETG/ETS Testing $95.00 

 

21. K2/Spice Testing N/A 

 

22. Bath Salt Testing $192.90 

 

23. Ambien Testing $55.00 

 

CONFIRMATION TESTING 
  

24.  Amphetamine Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $40.00 

 

25.  Barbiturate Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $40.00 

  

26.  Benzodiazepines Confirmation Test (GC/MS)    $40.00 

 

27.  Cocaine Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $40.00 

 

28.  Opiate Confirmation Test (GC/MS)      $40.00 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 69



 

 

 

29.  Phencyclidine Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $40.00 

 

26.  Cannabinoids (THC) Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $ 40.00 

 

27  Phropoxyphene Confirmation Test (GC/MS)     $ 40.00 

 

28.  Ethanol (Alcohol)        $ 40.00 

   

29.  2nd
 (GC/MS) & another LAB and MRO     $250.00  

 

TRAVEL TO PERFORM ON-CALL TESTING 

 

30.  Between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday     $N/A 

 through Friday (non Holiday weekdays) or Holidays 

and weekends 24 hour emergency on-site response  

      

EXPERT WITNESS 

 

31.  Expert Witness (Hourly Rate)      $350.00 

  3 hr. min. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS REQUIREMENTS FOR “SHORT PROGRAM” 

 

32.  SPANISH Speaking Interpreter on-site while Testing Center Open $N/A 

Per Hour Rate between the hours of 7:00 – 6:00  (for the Short  

Program/Drug Diversion Court Only) 

 

33.  Notification via daily sign-in sheets faxed to the following two $N/A 

        Departments ONLY: SHORT Program/Drug Diversion Court  

        And Pretrial Services Program. Daily cost for each department 

 

34. Medical Review Officer Fee $45.00 

 

35. Litigation Package $375.00 

 

 

Whenever open, will have both the required qualified man and required qualified woman for direct 

observed testing on their respective counterparts?       Yes         No 

 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Certified Laboratory 

used? 

   Yes       No   Certification # 0325 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 70



 

 

 

Location, contact person, phone number and address of all available clinics and hours of service at 

each  location:       

Dana Richie 

8500 Shoal Creek Blvd., Bldg. 2, Ste. D 

Austin, TX  78757 

512-918-3400 

M-F/8-5 

 

Connie Higginbotham 

1008 Marlandwood Road, Ste. 114 

Temple, TX 76502 

254-770-1706 

M-F/8-5 

 

 

List kinds of identification client must bring:   

Drivers License, State Issued ID, Military ID 

 

List method of reporting to client:   

Autofax 
Source 1 Solutions provides results transmission directly to a client’s fax machine. This fax should 

be in a limited access area for security reasons. 

 

List Corporate Office Address:   

8500 Shoal Creek Blvd., Bldg. 2, Ste. D 

Austin, TX  78757 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 71



 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 
 

Curriculum Vitae 

 

DAWN M. HAHN 
Quest Diagnostics, Inc. 

10101 Renner Boulevard 

Lenexa, KS  66219 

(913) 577-1632; Fax: (913) 888-1692 

E-mail: dawn.m.hahn@questdiagnostics.com 

 

 
EDUCATION 

 

1984 Bachelor of Arts; Medical Technology 

Northwestern College; Orange City, Iowa 

 

 
EXPERIENCE 

   

September 2010 - 

Present 
Laboratory Operations Manager and Responsible Person 

Quest Diagnostics, Inc.; Lenexa, KS  
Responsibilities include: preparing and maintaining standard operating 

procedures for drug testing;, establish training protocol for personnel; 

ensure training is complete, ensure analytical methods are validated;  

establish acceptable performance limits on QC; ensure the laboratory 

follows HHS Guidelines for regulated testing; ensure all appropriate 

corrective action is implemented for any PT or inspection issue assisting; 

assisting in maintaining toxicology budget; and interfacing with 

inspection teams 

 

November 2005 – 

September 2010 
Manager of Toxicology 

Quest Diagnostics, Inc.; Lenexa, KS  

 

August 2006 -  

Present 
Responsible Person, Laboratory Manager 

Quest Diagnostics, Inc.; Lenexa, KS  

 

November 2005 -  

August 2006 
Alternate Responsible Person 

Quest Diagnostics, Inc.; Lenexa, KS (formerly LabOne, Inc.) 

 

November 2000 - 

November 2005 
Alternate Responsible Person 

LabOne, Inc.; Lenexa, KS 

 

July 1999 – January 

2007 

 

Director of Toxicology 

LabOne, Inc.; Lenexa, KS 

  

November 1997 - 

June 1999 
Manager of Toxicology 

LabOne, Inc.; Overland Park, KS 

 

January 1995 - 

November 1997 
SAT Lab Coordinator 

LabOne, Inc.; Overland Park, KS 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 72

mailto:dawn.m.hahn@questdiagnostics.com


 

 

 

 

February 1990 - 

December 1994 
GC/MS Operator/Certifying Scientist Forensic Drug 

Testing Laboratory 

LabOne, Inc.; Overland Park, KS 

 

October 1987 - 

February 1990 
 Generalist, Blood Laboratory  

 Home Office Reference Laboratory; Overland Park, KS 

       

 November 1984 - 

 September 1987   
 Medical Technologist 

 Terrell Community Hospital; Terrell, TX 

       

June 1984 - 

November 1984 
 Medical Technologist 

 Newburn Memorial Hospital; Jacksonville, TX 

       

 

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS AND MEMBERSHIPS 

 

Diplomate Forensic Toxicologist Certification Board (FTCB) 

     Forensic Drug toxicology 

 

Inspector National Laboratory Certification Program (Team Leader) 

 

Inspector College of American Pathologists 

     Forensic Urine Drug Testing Program 

Member Society of Forensic Toxicologists (SOFT) 

 

Member Midwest Association for Toxicology and Therapeutic Drug 

Monitoring 

     Vice President 2005 - 2006 

     President 2006 – 2007 

 

Lab Supervisor New York State Department of Health 

 

Lab Supervisor Nevada State Department of Health 

 

Lab Technical Supervisor College of American Pathologists (CAP) 

 

Medical Technologist American Society of Clinical Pathologists (ASCP) 

 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 73



 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS 

 

October 2010 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Richmond, VA 

 

October 2009 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Oklahoma City, OK 

 

October 2008 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Phoenix, AZ 

 

October 2007 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

RTP, NC 

 

April 2007 Midwest Association for Toxicologists and Therapeutic Drug  

Monitoring Annual Meeting  

Indianapolis, IN 

 

May 2006 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Nashville, TN  

 

October 2005 Midwest Association for Toxicology and Therapeutic Drug  

Monitoring Annual Meeting 

Kansas City, MO 

 

May 2005 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Washington, D.C. 

 

August 2004 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Portland, OR 

 

October 2003 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Dearborn, MI 

 

October 2002 Midwest Association for Toxicology & Therapeutic Drug Monitoring 

Annual Meeting; Kansas City, MO 

 

May 2000 National Laboratory Certification Program, NLCP Workshop 

Research Triangle Park, NC 

 

April 1999 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Salt Lake City, UT 

 

 

 

 

PUBLICATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 74



 

 

 

2003 William Seiter, Russell Robinson, Tiffany Porter, Barbara 

Rowland, Dawn Hahn, Michael Lehrer, Lance Presley.  Opiate 

Prevalence in Oral Fluid.  Poster Presentation, SOFT, Oct. 2003 

Annual Meeting; Portland, OR. 

 

2003 Lance Presley, Michael Lehrer, William Seiter, Dawn Hahn, 

Barbara Rowland, Melissa Smith, Keith Kardos, Dean Fritch, Sal 

Salamone, R. Sam Niedbala, Edward Cone. High Prevalence of 

6-acetylmorphine in Morphine-Positive Oral Fluid Specimens, 

Forensic Science International, 133: 22 – 25 (2003). 

 

April 2003 Lance Presley, Michael Lehrer, William Seiter, Dawn Hahn, 

Barbara Rowland, Melissa Smith, Keith Kardos, Dean Fritch, Sal 

Salamone, R. Sam Niedbala, Edward Cone. High Prevalence of 

6-acetylmorphine in Morphine-Positive Oral Fluid Specimens, 

Forensic Science International, 133: 22 – 25 (2003). 

 

October 1997 Dawn M. Hahn, Alan E. Davis; Semi-Automated Urine 

Extraction by a Hamilton 2200 Microlab Extraction Unit; Society 

of Forensic Toxicologists, Oral Presentation, Annual Meeting; 

Salt Lake City, UT 

 

 

 

References available upon request. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 75



 

 

 

 

Curriculum Vitae 

BARBARA JO ROWLAND 

Quest Diagnostics, Inc. 

10101 Renner Boulevard 

Lenexa, KS  66219 

(913) 577-1828; Fax: (913) 859-6932 

E-mail: barbara.rowland@labone.com 

 

 

EDUCATION 
 

1988 Master of Public Administration, Health Services Administration 
University of Memphis  

 

1982 Bachelor of Science; Medical Technology 
University of Tennessee 

 

 

EXPERIENCE 

Feb. 2006 - 

Present  
Director, Laboratory Operations and Responsible Person 

Quest Diagnostics, Inc.; Lenexa, KS (formerly LabOne, Inc.) 

Responsibilities include: preparing and maintaining standard 

operating procedures for drug testing (including urine, oral fluids 

and hair);  establish training protocol for personnel;  ensure 

analytical methods are validated;  establish acceptable 

performance limits on QC; ensure the laboratory follows HHS 

Guidelines for regulated testing; Responsible for  corrective 

actions implemented for proficiency testing  or inspection issues; 

Responsible for  toxicology budget.   

 

Sept 2001 - 

Feb. 2006  
Vice-President and Responsible Person, Toxicology 

LabOne, Inc.; Lenexa, KS 

Responsible for daily operations of forensic urine drug testing laboratory.  

Product Manager for LIS and Web Stats/Results. 

 

May 2001- 

Sept 2001 
Laboratory Director-General Manager 

Laboratory Corporation of America; Research Triangle Park, NC 

 

1996 – May 2001 Laboratory Director and Responsible Person  

Laboratory Corporation of America; Memphis, TN 

 

1992 – 1996 Laboratory Manager 

Laboratory Corporation of America; Southaven, MS 

Quality Control Manager & Certifying Scientist 

 

1990 – 1992 Extraction/Derivatization Supervisor 

Med Express/ National Laboratory Center; Memphis, TN 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 76

mailto:barbara.rowland@labone.com


 

 

 

1982 – 1990 Assistant Supervisor 

Clinical Chemistry Laboratory LeBonheur 

Children’s Medical Center; Memphis, TN 

 

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS AND CERTIFICATIONS 

  
Inspector National Laboratory Certification Program  (Team Leader) 

 
Inspector College of American Pathologists 

    Forensic Urine Drug Testing Program (Team Leader) 

    Clinical Laboratory Accreditation Program 

 
Member Department of Health and Human Services 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 

(SAMHSA) 

Center for Substance Abuse Prevention 
Drug Testing Advisory Board (DTAB) 

 

Member Society of Forensic Toxicologists (SOFT) 

 

Member Midwest Association for Toxicology and Therapeutic Drug Monitoring (MATT) 

President 2004 – 2005 

Vice President 2003 – 2004 

 

Toxicological Chemist National Registry of Certified Chemists (NRCC) 

 

Lab Supervisor New York City Department of Health 

 

Lab Supervisor Nevada State Department of Health 

 

Medical Technologist American Society of Clinical Pathologists (ASCP) 

 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS 

  

October 2010 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Richmond, VA 

 

October 2009 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Oklahoma City, OK 

 

October 2008 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

Phoenix, AZ 

 

October 2007 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

RTP, NC 

 

October 2005 Society of Forensic Toxicologists, Annual Meeting 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 77



 

 

 

Nashville, TN  

 

May 2005 Midwest Association for Toxicology and Therapeutic Drug  

Monitoring Annual Meeting 

Kansas City, MO 

 

August 2004 Society of Forensic Toxicology, Annual Meeting 

Washington, DC 

 

October 2003 Society of Forensic Toxicology, Annual Meeting 

Portland, OR 

 

 

 

April 2003 Midwest Association for Toxicology and Therapeutic Drug 

Monitoring, Annual Meeting 

Lansing, MI 

 

February 2003 American Academy of Forensic Science, Annual Meeting  

Chicago, IL 

 

October 2002 Society of Forensic Toxicology, Annual Meeting 

Dearborn, MI 

 

February 2002 American Academy of Forensic Science, Annual Meeting  

Atlanta, GA 

 

 

PUBLICATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 

2005 

 

Presenter, Developments in Oral Fluids Analysis, Special 

Session, Annual Meeting of the American Academy of Forensic 

Sciences, New Orleans. 

 

2003 William Seiter, Russell Robinson, Tiffany Porter, Barbara 

Rowland, Dawn Hahn, Michael Lehrer, Lance Presley.  Opiate 

Prevalence in Oral Fluid.  Poster Presentation, SOFT, Oct. 2003 

Annual Meeting; Portland, OR. 

 

2003 Lance Presley, Michael Lehrer, William Seiter, Dawn Hahn, 

Barbara Rowland, Melissa Smith, Keith Kardos, Dean Fritch, Sal 

Salamone, R. Sam Niedbala, Edward Cone. High Prevalence of 

6-acetylmorphine in Morphine-Positive Oral Fluid Specimens, 

Forensic Science International, 133: 22 – 25 (2003). 

 

1999 Barbara J. Rowland, Dale Gabrielson, William R. Lynn, Lance 

Presley, Elizabeth S. Keith. 1999.  Effect of Implementation of 

2000 ng/mL Opiate Cutoff for DHHS Regulated Specimens.  

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 78



 

 

 

 

1999 Childs, Paula, Ph.D., Barbara J. Rowland, MPA, Elizabeth S. 

Keith, Ph.D., William R. Lynn, Ph.D., Roger R. Rutter, BS, 

William B. Keith, Ph.D., Effect of 300 vs 2000 ng/mL Opiate 

Cutoff on DHHS Urine Specimens Reported Positive, Oral 

Presentation, AAFS, Feb. 1999 Annual Meeting; Orlando, FL. 

 

1998 Lynn, W. R., E. S. Keith, R. L. Rutter, B. Rowland, and W. B. 

Keith.  1998.  Timeline Comparison of GC/MS values for THCA 

in DHHS Regulated Specimens 1994 vs. 1997.  Therapeutic Drug 

Monitoring and Clinical Toxicology Division – Newsletter 

American Association for Clinical Chemistry, 13:6-8. 

 

 

1996 E. S. Keith, W. R. Lynn, B. Rowland J. Irving, and W. B. Keith.  

1996.  GC/MS Values for THCA in DHHS Regulated 

Specimens.  Poster Presentation, Society of Forensic Toxicology 

Annual Meeting; 

Denver, CO. 

 

1994 Rowland B. J., J. Irving, and E. S. Keith, 1994.  Increased 

Detection of Marijuana Usage with a 50 ng/mL Cutoff.  Journal 

of Clinical Chemistry, 40:2114-2115. 

 

 

 

References available upon request. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 79



 

 

 

CURRICULUM VITAE 

 

 

NAME:  ANNE K. ROBERTS 

 

ADDRESS:  10101 Renner Boulevard 

   Lenexa, KS 66219 

   913-888-1770 

 

EDUCATION: Bachelor of Science, Major – Biology, Minor – Chemistry  

   University of Missouri, Kansas City, MO, 1987 

 

EXPERIENCE: 

 

 

September 2010 to Quest Diagnostics, Inc., formerly LabOne, Inc., Lenexa, KS  

   Present   Responsible Person/ Lab Manager- Certification 

 

Responsible for daily operations of forensic urine drug testing laboratory.  

Focus on negative and non-negative certification. 

 

August 2010 to Quest Diagnostics, Inc., formerly LabOne, Inc., Lenexa, KS  

   September 2010  Responsible Person / Non-negative Certification Supervisor 

 

   Responsible for daily operations of forensic urine drug testing laboratory.  

Focus on non-negative certification. 

 

August 2006 to Quest Diagnostics, Inc., formerly LabOne, Inc., Lenexa, KS  

   August 2010  Alternate Responsible Person/ Non-negative Certification Supervisor 

 

Responsible for daily operations of forensic urine drug testing laboratory. 

Focus on non-negative certification.  

 

Mar 2004 to  Quest Diagnostics, Inc., formerly LabOne, Inc., Lenexa, KS 

   August 2006  Section Supervisor of Certification 

 

Responsibilities include evaluation of non-negative certifying scientists, co-

ordination of area procedures and certifying data for drugs of abuse. Also 

responsible for evaluation of negative certifying scientist supervisors and 

non-negative certifying scientist team-lead.  

 

Jan 2001 to  LabOne, Inc., Lenexa, KS 

   Mar 2004  Supervisor of Non-Negative Certifying Scientists 

 

Responsibilities include evaluation of non-negative certifying scientists, co-ordination of 

area procedures and certifying data for drugs of abuse. 

 

May 1999 to  LabOne, Inc., Overland Park, KS 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 80



 

 

 

   December 2000 Certifying Scientist 

 

Responsibilities as certifying scientist involve reviewing and certifying the screening and 

confirmation data for drugs of abuse. 

 

December 1994 to LabOne, Inc., Overland Park, KS 

   April 1999  GC/MS Operator / Certifying Scientist 

 

Responsibilities as GC/MS Operator/Certifying Scientist include data review and gas 

chromatography/mass spectrometry maintenance on HP 5970 and HP 5971 with 

Pascal and UNIX; certify and review Federal / Non-Federal urine samples. 

 

October 1993 to LabOne, Inc., Overland Park, KS 

   December 1994 Screening Analyst/Extraction Tech 

 

Responsibilities as screening analyst involve screening of drugs of abuse 

for the toxicology department.  Performed various methods of extraction 

for analysis of drugs of abuse on the GC/MS as an extraction tech. 

 

October 1987 to  LabOne, Inc., Overland Park, KS 

   October 1993 Senior Lab Technologist 

 

Responsibilities as senior lab technologist involved performing various 

urinalysis testing and oversight of quality control for those tests. Also 

supervised production and time management of benches as well as 

personnel assigned to those areas. 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL SKILLS: 
 

• Trained and experienced on many automated chemistry devices including the Chem 1, 

Olympus AU5000, Olympus Reply, and TDX instruments. 

• Able to perform extraction methods for all NIDA five drugs of abuse. 

• Good experience with chains of custody and specimen integrity. 

• Extensive experience in ELISA and various other testing methods. 

 

 

 

TRAINING, CONTINUING EDUCATION AND CONFERENCE PARTICIPATION: 

 

October 2002  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,      Dearborn, MI 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

October 2007  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,  Research Triangle Park, NC 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 

October 2008   S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,  Phoenix, AZ 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 81



 

 

 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 

October 2009  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,  Oklahoma City, OK 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 

October 2010  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,  Richmond, VA 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 

October 2011  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,  San Francisco, CA 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 

 
PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS: 

 
 Diplomate – Forensic Toxicologist Certification Board (FTCB) 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 82



 

 

 

Curriculum Vitae 

NAME:  MARK WUEST 
 

ADDRESS:  Quest Diagnostics, Inc. 

10101 Renner Blvd 

   Lenexa, KS  66219 

   913-895-2471 
 

EDUCATIONBachelor of Science, Major - Microbiology 

The Ohio State University - Columbus, Ohio 
 

EXPERIENCE: 

 

September 2010 to  Laboratory Manager, Confirmations Department 

  Present  Quest Diagnostics, Inc. – Lenexa, KS (formerly LabOne) 
 Manage supervisors and testing personnel in the extraction and GC/MS areas. 
 Write and revise SOP’s for the department, method validations, coordinate testing and 

evaluation of proficiency testing surveys, oversee training of confirmation staff, certify 

screening and confirmation data as needed. 

 

August 2010 to  Responsible Person 

  Present Quest Diagnostics, Inc. - Lenexa, KS (formerly LabOne) 
 Responsible for daily operations of forensic drug testing laboratory. 

 Laboratory tests for drugs of abuse in urine, oral fluids and hair.  
 

August 2006 to  Alternate Responsible Person 

  August 2010  Quest Diagnostics, Inc. - Lenexa, KS (formerly LabOne) 
 Responsible for daily operations of forensic drug testing laboratory. 

 

June 2007 to   Supervisor, Confirmations Department  

  September 2010 Quest Diagnostics, Inc. – Lenexa, KS (formerly LabOne) 
 Manage supervisors and testing personnel in the extraction and GC/MS areas. 
 Write and revise SOP’s for the department, method validations, coordinate testing and 

evaluation of proficiency testing surveys, oversee training of confirmation staff, certify 

screening and confirmation data as needed. 

 

January 2005 to  Supervisor, Non-Negative Certifying Scientists  

  July 2007  Quest Diagnostics, Inc. - Lenexa, KS (formerly LabOne) 
 Review and certify test results of initial screen and confirmation tests of urine drug 

screens, oral fluid drug screens and blood alcohols. 
 Provide technical oversight to the Non-Negative Certification area. 
 Consult with clients and physicians regarding testing and results. 

 

June 2004 to   Team Lead, Non-Negative Certifying Scientists 

   January 2005  LabOne, Inc. – Lenexa, KS 
 Review and certify test results of initial screen and confirmation tests of urine drug 

screens, oral fluid drug screens and blood alcohols. 
 Provide technical leadership and direct workflow in the Non-Negative Certification 

area. 
 Consult with clients and physicians regarding testing and results.

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 83



RFS#S060252-ML 

 

November 2000 to Responsible Person (RP)/Chief Certifying Scientist 

  April 2004  Alliance Laboratory Services- Cincinnati, Ohio 
 Manage daily operations of HHS/SAMHSA certified forensic urine drug testing laboratory. 

 Write and revise SOP manual.  

 Oversee training and education of personnel; quality assurance/quality control; analytical 

methods and method validation. 
 Serve as expert witness for urine drug testing and blood alcohol cases.  

 Perform duties of certifying scientist and quality control coordinator. 

 Assumed RP duties June 2000. 

 

December 1999 to Alternate RP/Certifying Scientist 

November 2000 Alliance Laboratory Services- Cincinnati, Ohio 
 Supervisor of accessioning staff, positive and negative certifying scientists. 

 Perform duties of certifying scientist and quality control coordinator.  

 

June 1997 to  Certifying Scientist/Quality Control Coordinator 

December 1999 Alliance Laboratory Services- Cincinnati, Ohio 
 Certify positive and negative drug screens in HHS/SAMHSA certified laboratory. 

 Supervise GC/MS and immunoassay testing.  

 Supervise the quality control program for the forensic drug testing. 

 Consult with clients and physicians regarding testing and results. 

 

January 1993 to Toxicology Supervisor 

June 1997  Jewish Hospital Laboratory - Cincinnati, Ohio    

(Lab changed name to Alliance Laboratory Services, Health Alliance 1/97) 
 Supervise 2

nd
 shift operation of forensic drug testing (accessioning, screening and 

confirmations) in HHS/SAMHSA certified laboratory and clinical toxicology laboratory. 

 Certify negative drug screens. 

 Review results of clinical toxicology tests. 

 

March 1989 to  Laboratory Manager/Technical Supervisor 

December 1992 Toxicology Associates, Inc. - Columbus, Ohio 
 Manage daily operations of clinical/forensic toxicology lab. 

 Review results and reports of testing. 

 Supervise quality control and quality assurance. 

 Supervise technical, clerical and support personnel.   

 

September 1987 to Laboratory Technologist  

March 1989  Toxicology Associates, Inc. – Columbus, Ohio 
 Perform drug screens and quantitative drug analysis on blood and urine specimens using 

GC/MS, GC, TLC, HPLC, FPIA, EMIT and Spectrophotometry. 

 

TRAINING, CONTINUING EDUCATION AND CONFERENCE PARTICIPATION: 

 

April 1992  Varian Instruments - Wood Dale, Illinois  

 Saturn GC/MS Operation - theory and practice 

 

March 1998  Olympus - Irving, Texas 

 AU600 Operation 

 

2001 to 2004  Drug and Poison Information Center (DPIC) 

   Cincinnati Children’s Hospital Medical Center (CHMC) 
 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 84



RFS#S060252-ML 

 

Weekly Toxicology C. E. and Case Conferences with CHMC and University Hospital ER 

physicians, toxicologists and Pharm. D.’s. 

 

October 2001  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting, New Orleans, LA 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP)  

 Herbal Medicine 

 Urine Testing and Human Performance 

 Expert Witness Testimony 

 Adulterant Testing 

 

October 2002  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting, Dearborn, MI 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 SPE Scientific Theory and Applications 

 MS/MS: Ion Traps or Triple Quads – How to Decide 

 

October 2003  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,  Portland, OR 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 Practical Applications for LCMS in Routine Toxicology 

 Forensic Toxicology of Methadone 

 Developments in Federally Regulated Drug Testing 

 Toxicology in the Emergency Room 

 

October 2007  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,  Research Triangle Park, NC 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 

October 2008   S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,  Phoenix, AZ 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 Overview of Biomarkers of Alcohol Testing 

 Applications of LC-MS in Human and Veterinary Toxicology 

 

 
PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS: 

 
 Diplomate – Forensic Toxicologist Certification Board (FTCB) 

 Society of Forensic Toxicologists (SOFT) 

 Midwest Association for Toxicology and Therapeutic Drug Monitoring (MATT) 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 85



RFS#S060252-ML 

 

CURRICULUM VITAE 
 

 

NAME:  M. SHANE MORRIS 
 

 

ADDRESS:  10101 Renner Blvd 

   Lenexa, KS  66219 

   800-877-7484 
 

 

EDUCATION: Bachelor of Science, Cellular Biology 

   University of Kansas, Lawrence, KS 1997 
 

EXPERIENCE: 

 

Feb 2012 to  Alternate Responsible Person  

    Present  Quest Diagnostics, Lenexa, KS 

 

Nov 2010 to  Non-Negative Certification Supervisor  

   Present  Quest Diagnostics, Lenexa, KS 

Responsibilities include evaluation of non-negative certifying scientists, co-

ordination of area procedures and certifying data for drugs of abuse. 

 

Dec 2009 to  Non-Negative Certifying Scientist, Forensic Drug Testing 

Nov 2010 Quest Diagnostics, Lenexa, KS 

   Responsibilities as certifying scientist involve reviewing/certifying   

  the screening, confirmation (GC/MS) and specimen validity data    

 for drugs of abuse 

 

June 2008 to  Technical Supervisor  

    Nov 2009  Oncimmune LLC, DeSoto, KS 

Supervise laboratory, which includes scheduling, writing SOPs, performance 

reviews, staffing, insuring CLEA guidelines are followed, as well as resolving 

technical issues with ELISA assays. 

 

Aug 2007 to  Research Scientist, Research & Development  

   June 2008  Quest Diagnostics, Lenexa, KS 

Assay development and Reagent production, which includes optimizing assays and trouble 

shooting assay problems as they occur.  Prepare reagents and coat EIA plates along with 

QC before releasing to clinical lab for production. 

 

June 2004 to  Non-Negative Certifying Scientist, Forensic Drug Testing  

Aug 2007  LabOne, Inc./Quest Diagnostics, Lenexa, KS 

 

 

April 2003 to  GCMS Operator, Forensic Drug testing Laboratory  

   May 2004  Clinical Reference Lab, Lenexa, KS 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 86



RFS#S060252-ML 

 

December 2001 to  Laboratory Technologist  

   April 2003  LabOne, Inc., Lenexa, KS 
 

 

July 1997 to Lead Tech in Research and Development 

   Dec 2001 Osborn Laboratories, Olathe, KS 

 

 

TRAINING, CONTINUING EDUCATION AND CONFERENCE PARTICIPATION: 

 

October 2011  S.O.F.T. Annual Meeting and Workshops,  San Francisco, CA 

Workshops 

 HHS/NLCP Lab Director and Inspector (by NLCP) 

 

 

CERTIFICATIONS/MEMBERSHIPS: 

 

Diplomate of Forensic Toxicologist Certification Board (FTCB) 

     Forensic Drug Toxicology 

 

State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services 

     Specialty Technologist-Chemistry/Toxicology 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 87



RFS#S060252-ML 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DUPLICATE ORIGINALS 

 

This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both 

parties. 

 

       Travis County 

 

  

  

By: Dana Richie – President     By:  Samuel T. Biscoe 

      Name and Title (Printed)                Travis County Judge 

 

Date:October 10, 2012   Date:     

 

 

Approved as to Legal Form By: _________________________________ 

                Assistant County Attorney 

 

Funds Verified By:              _________________________________ 

                County Auditor 

 

Approved by Purchasing:             _________________________________ 

                 Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., Purchasing Agent 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 88



RFS#S060252-ML 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

(Part II of the RFS and changes resulting from negotiations will be inserted and made a part of this 

Contract at the time of Contract Award) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 89



RFS#S060252-ML 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

(Part II of the RFS and changes resulting from negotiations will be inserted and made a part of this 

Contract at the time of Contract Award) 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 90



RFS#S060252-ML 

 

CONTRACTOR:   

 

By: __ ____________________________________                                                                           

Its Duly Authorized Agent 

 

Printed Name:  Dana Richie        

                                                   

Title:President       Date:   October 10, 2012 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

 

By: _______________________________________  Date:________________                                                                                                                            

Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge    

 

County Approvals: 

As to Legal Form: 

 

________________________________________ 

Assistant County Attorney     Date:__________ 

 

Funds Certified By: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Susan Spataro, County Auditor    Date:__________ 

 

Purchasing: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent    Date:__________ 

 

4400001193 Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Page 90



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Patrick Strittmatter, 4-1183  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language: APPROVE CONTRACT AWARD FOR TRAVIS 
COUNTY CORRECTIONAL COMPLEX BUILDING 140 ROOF 
REPLACMENT, IFB NO. 1210-001-PS, TO THE LOW BIDDER, QA 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This project primarily consists of a roof replacement for Building 140 in 
the Travis County Correctional Complex. 

Subject IFB was opened November 7, 2012, with four (4) bids received 
in response to the solicitation. The Sheriff’s Office has reviewed the bids 
and recommends, and Purchasing concurs with the award of the 
contract to the low bidder, QA Construction Services, Inc. for a total of 
$538,745.00. The total consists of the base bid of $485,000.00, the 
Alternate 1 bid of $26,995.00 (Apply joint sealant at exterior windows), 
and the Alternate 2 bid of $26,750.00 (Pressure wash and seal exterior 
masonry). 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Award Amount: $538,745.00    
Contract Type: Construction   
Contract Period: 120 working days   

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 12



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 
Modification Amount:   
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 
Solicitations Sent: 41  Responses Received: 4  
HUB Information: No*  % HUB Subcontractor: 0.00%  

 *Contractor is not a HUB and will be self-performing the project work 
with materials being supplied by non-HUB subcontractors. 

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart in SAP: 1000002102 
  Cost Center(s): 1378000001 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 



GREG HAMILTON
TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF

P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

(512) 854-9770
www.tcsheriff.org

JAMES N. SYLVESTER
Chief Deputy

MEMORANDUM

DARREN LONG
Major - Corrections

PHYLLIS CLAIR
Major - Law Enforcement

MARKSAWA
Major - Administration & Support

TO: Patrick Strittmatter, Construction A & E Procurement Specialist

Marvin Brice, CPPB,Assistant Purchasin

Mark Stefanov, P.E. 1;(( //
November 14, 2012 /

Via:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT: Award Recommendation Memo for 121O-001-PS

This is the Award Recommendation for the TCCC 8140 (2) Roof Replace. It should be awarded to the low bidder, QA
Construction Services, Inc. This recommendation includes the base bid and alternates #1 and #2 for a total of
$538,745.00. The contingency should cover the probable additional unit costs and will be addressed via change order.
If additional funding is found, a change order may be created to cover Alternate #3. The liquidated damages for not
meeting substantial completion will be $100 per day.

Square Feet:
TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET:

Design:
Testing

Repairs:
4% Contingency

Construction+ 4%:
Contingency used

$/Sq.Ft.:

Sheriff's Office Work Order number:
Sheriff's Office MicroMain Request number:
Shopping Cart number:
Cost Center:
Estimated schedule:

37,100
$605,000
$39,954
$5,000

$538,745
$21,301
$560,046

$0
$605,000

$16

235261
5738
1000002102
1378000001
120 Days

Please contact me with any questions at 45321. Your assistance in this matter will be greatly appreciated.

cc: Sheriff's Office Engineer's File
Ron Rizzato (memo only)
Major Long (memo only)

Safety, Integrity, Tradition of Service

\\Pear\\voll \Users\StefanM\Proiects\20 12\TCCC B 140 (2) Roof ReolacexConstruction'Purchasinu Process\Award Recommendation TCee B 140 (2) Roof Replace .doc



Bid #1210-001-PS - Travis County Correctional Complex (TCCC) B140 (2) 
Roof Replacement

 
Creation Date  Oct 8, 2012 End Date Nov 7, 2012 2:00:00 PM CST

Start Date Oct 17, 2012 7:46:50 AM CDT Awarded Date  Not Yet Awarded

 1210-001-PS--01-01   TCCC B140 (2) Roof Replacement Base Bid 

 Supplier Unit Price  Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

QA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. First Offer - $485,000.00   1 / lump sum $485,000.00    Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: 
Total Amount Text: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: 
 

A.D. WILLIS CO., INC. First Offer - $539,320.00   1 / lump sum $539,320.00    Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: 
Total Amount Text: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: 
 

CS ADVANTAGE USAA, INC. [Ad]  First Offer - $670,000.00   1 / lump sum $670,000.00    Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: 
Total Amount Text: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: 
 

Rain Seal Master Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc.  First Offer - $785,500.00   1 / lump sum $785,500.00   Y Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Seven Hundred Eight Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
Total Amount Text: Seven Hundred Eighty Five Thousand Five Hundred 
Dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: Base Bid Amount
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: Seven Hundred Eighty Five 
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
 

Rain Seal Master Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc.  Alt 4 - $8.50  1 / lump sum $8.50   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Eight Dollars and Fifty Cents
Total Amount Text: Eight Dollars and Fifty Cents
Agency Notes: Is 1 of 3 Bid Unit Prices. Vendor did not submit Bid Proposal 
Worksheet. 

Supplier Product Code: U1-Unit Price 1
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: Eight Dollars and Fifty Cents
Replacement of Damaged Existing Wood 
Nailers   

Rain Seal Master Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc.  Alt 6 - $9.50  1 / lump sum $9.50   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Nine Dollars and Fifty Cents
Total Amount Text: Nine Dollars and Fifty Cents
Agency Notes: Is 1 of 3 Bid Unit Prices. Vendor did not submit Bid Proposal 
Worksheet. 

Supplier Product Code: U3-Unit Price 3
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: Nine Dollars and Fifty Cents
REplacement of Water Damaged Insulation 
on Area #1   

Rain Seal Master Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc.  Alt 5 - $65.00  1 / lump sum $65.00   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Sixty Five Dollars
Total Amount Text: Sixty Five Dollars
Agency Notes: Is 1 of 3 Bid Unit Prices. Vendor did not submit Bid Proposal 
Worksheet. 

Supplier Product Code: U2-Unit Price 2
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: Sixty Five Dollars
Replacement of Damaged Concrete Decking   

Rain Seal Master Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc.  Alt 2 - $25,500.00  1 / lump sum $25,500.00   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Twenty Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
Total Amount Text: Twenty Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
Agency Notes: Is 1 of 3 Bid Alternates. Vendor did not submit Bid Proposal 
Worksheet. 

Supplier Product Code: A2-Alternate #2
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: Twenty Five Thousand Five Hundred 
Dollars
Pressure wash and seal masonry   

Rain Seal Master Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc.  Alt 1 - $28,500.00  1 / lump sum $28,500.00   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Twenty Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
Total Amount Text: Twenty Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
Agency Notes: Is 1 of 3 Bid Alternates. Vendor did not submit Bid Proposal 
Worksheet. 

Supplier Product Code: A1-Alternate #1
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: Twenty Eight Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars
Joint Sealant at exterior windows   

Travis County

Nov 7, 2012 3:19:55 PM CST p. 1



Rain Seal Master Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc.  Alt 3 - $59,000.00  1 / lump sum $59,000.00   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Fifty Nine Thousand Dollars
Total Amount Text: Fifty Nine Thousand Dollars
Agency Notes: Is 1 of 3 Bid Alternates. Vendor did not submit Bid Proposal 
Worksheet. 

Supplier Product Code: A3-Alternate #3
Supplier Notes: Type Bid Amount in 
Words: Fifty Nine Thousand Dollars
Furnish and Install Rolling Overhead Security 
Door   

Supplier Totals

 QA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. $485,000.00    

Bid Contact MARCOS GUTIERREZ 
mg@qasystems.com
Ph 512-637-6120   
Fax 512-637-8811 

Address 5811 Blue Bluff Road
AUSTIN, TX 78724 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

 A.D. WILLIS CO., INC. $539,320.00    

Bid Contact BENNY OGLE 
benny.ogle@adwillis.com
Ph 512-385-3993   

Address 4266 FELTER LANE
AUSTIN, TX 78744 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

 CS ADVANTAGE USAA, INC. [Ad]  $670,000.00    

Bid Contact OSCAR GALVAN 
o_ggalvan@hotmail.com
Ph 210-771-0720   
Fax 210-579-2157 

Address P.O. BOX 12407
COLLEGE STATION, TX 77842 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

 Rain Seal Master Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. $785,500.00    

Bid Contact Juan Lozano, Sr. 
ramon@rsminc1.com
Ph 361-576-0926   

Address 2306 Port Lavaca Dr.
Victoria, TX 77901 

Qualifications  CISV   HUB   MBE   SB   TX   

Bid Notes  Please look at the Alternate Amounts individually. If any are taken. 
Please disregard the Alternate Base price Differential calculations, bidsync system calculates the 
alternates in a different manor. 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
Please look at the Alternate Amounts individually. If any 
are taken. 
Please disregard the Alternate Base price Differential 
calculations, bidsync system calculates the alternates in a 
different manor. 

**All bids/proposals submitted for the designated project are reflected on this tabulation sheet. However, the listing of the bid/proposal 

on this tabulation sheet shall not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid/proposal or as any indication that the 
agency accepts such bid/proposal as being responsive. The agency will make a determination as to the responsiveness of the vendor 
responses submitted based upon compliance with all applicable laws, purchasing guidelines and project documents, including but not 
limited to the project specifications and contract documents. The agency will notify the successful vendor upon award of the contract and, 

as according to the law, all bid/proposal responses received may be available for inspection at that time.

Travis County

Nov 7, 2012 3:19:55 PM CST p. 2



AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
GoNTRACT NO. 4400001 088

This Agreement for Construction Services (the "Construction Contract") is entered into by and
between Travis County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (the "Owne/'), and QA
Construction Services. Inc. (the "Contractor").

WHEREAS, the Owner desires to enter into the Construction Contract for the Travis County
Correctional Complex Building 140 Roof Replacement (the "Project") in accordance with the provisions of
the state statutes and in conformance with the Notice to Proceed (as issued by the Travis County
Purchasing Office or its designee), the Contractor's Proposal, General Conditions, Supplementary
Conditions, and the Specifications, which term shall include the Drawings and/or attached Plans, and
Specifications; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has been engaged in and does comparable work and represents that
it is fully equipped, competent and capable of performing the above-desired work, and desires to perform
such work in accordance with the provisions of the Construction Contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions stated herein, the
Owner and the Contractor agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

ln addition to such other terms as may be specifically defined herein, the capitalized terms
referenced herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the General Conditions.

The written notice to proceed as issued by the Travis County Purchasing Agent (the "Notice to
Proceed"), the Contractor's Bid as accepted by the Travis County Commissioners Court, the
General Conditions, the Supplementary Conditions, the Specifications (which term shall include
the Drawings and/or attached Plans, and Specifications marked "Travis County Correctional
Complex (TCCC) 8140 (2) Roof Replacement"), IFB No. 1210-001-PS are all incorporated in the
Construction Contract as if set out at length.

The Contractor agrees to perform the work described in this Construction Contract and any and
all documents incorporated therein (the "Work"). The Contractor shall commence the Work upon
issuance of the Notice to Proceed, and subject to authorized adjustments, shall achieve
substantial completion of the Work within 120 calendar davs of such issuance (the "substantial
C o m p | e t i o n D a i e , ' ) - A | | t i m e t i m i t s s t a t / o r t h e C o n t r a c t
Documents are of the essence. The Substantial Completion Date will not be modified, extended,
or othenruise revised except because of rain or other adverse weather conditions, and the
Contractor acknowledges that it may be required to work on weekends or holidays in order to
achieve substantial completion by the Substantial Completion Date. All time limits stated in the
construction contract and/or contract Documents are of the essence.

lf the Contractor fails to achieve substantial completion of the Work by the Substantial Completion
Date, the Contractor, by execution of this Construction Contract, specifically acknowledges that
the Owner will sustain damages for each day the Work extends beyond the Substantial
Completion Date. Because of the impracticality ind extreme difficutty of fixing and ascertaining
the Owneds actual damages, the Contractor agrees $100.00 per calendar dav shall be retained
b y t h e o w n e r f r o m a n y a m o u n t s d u e t h e c o n t r @ t h e C o n t r a c t o r ' s
performance of the work extends beyond the substantial completion Date.

4 1
t .  t

1 .2

1 .3

1 . 4

COPY



2.1

2.2

2.5

2.6

2.3

2.4

ARTICLE II

For and in consideration of the Contractor's performance of the Work, the Owner shall pay the
Contractor, in the manner provided for in Article I of Section 00700 of the General Conditions, the
total sum of $538.745.00 (the "Contract Sum"). The Contract Sum is comprised of
(i) $3{5.445.00 for materials to be incorporated into the Project or completely consumed at the
job site and services required by or integral to the performance of this Construction Contract and
(ii) $223.300.00 for all other charges, including the cost of other services, overhead, and
materials which do not become part of the finished project or are reusable. This division of the
Contract Sum is made to reflect sales tax purposes only. lnvoices and payments need not reflect
this division. However, Contractor shall maintain internal records to verify. Contractor shall make
these records available upon request of the Travis County Auditor.

lf at any time during the performance of this Construction Contract the Travis County
Commissioners Court (i) fails to provide funding for this Construction Contract during the following
fiscal year of Travis County, Texas, (ii) does not adopt a budget for expenditures, or (iii) is able
only to partially fund the expenditures required by this Construction Contract, then the Owner
may, upon giving the Contractor written notice of such failure to fund and termination, terminate
this Construction Contract, or a part thereof, without any further liability, effective thirty (30) days
after the Owner notifies the Contractor in writing of such failure to fund and termination. The
Owner shall pay the Contractor for any portion of the Work completed up to the effective date.
The Contractor shall have no recourse as to sums beyond those for any portion of the Work
performed up to the effective date, including without limitation any recovery for lost profits
anticipated to be made hereunder.

This Construction Contract may be amended only by a Travis County construction .Change

Order" form signed by the Travis County Sheriff's Office, the Contractor, and necessary
representatives designated by the Owner.

The Owner may terminate this Construction Contract if it is found that the Contractor offered or
gave gratuities to any employee of the Owner with the intent to influence the purchasing process
in any manner, either before or after the award of this Construction Contract. The Travis County
Commissioners Court shall determine if the Contractor used gratuities to influence the process. lf
so determined and the Owner terminates this Construction Contract, the Owner shall be entitled
to (i) pursue the same remedies against the Contractor as it could pursue if this Construction
Contract were breached by the Contractor, and (ii) collect exemplary damages in an amount
determined by the Travis County Commissioners Court which shall be not less than three nor
more than ten times the amount given to any officer or employee of the Owner. The rights and
remedies in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law.

The Contractor represents and warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or
retained to solicit or secure this Construction Contract upon an understanding for a commission,
percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bonafide employees and established
commercial selling agencies maintained by the Contractor to secure business. lf the Contractor
breaches this warranty, then the Owner shall have the right to terminate this Construction
Contract without liability, or in its discretion to deduct from the amount due to the Contractor from
the Owner, or otherwise recover, the full amount of commission, percentage, brokerage, or
contingent fee.

No action or failure to act by the Owner or the Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or
duty afforded either of them under this Construction Contract, nor shall any such action or failure
to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be
specifically agreed in writing.

COPY



The effective date of this Construction Contract shall for all purposes be the date of the execution of the
last to sign, whether the Owner or the Contractor.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Construction Contract as of the date(s)
set forth below.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SamuelT. Biscoe
Travis County Judge
Date:

Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO,
Travis County Purchasing Agent

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY:

County Attorney

FUNDS VERIFIED BY:

County Auditor COPY



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Slaughter Lane 
Goodnight Phase I Project, IFB No. B1208-004-JW, to the low bidder, 
DNT Construction, LLC. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 The Slaughter Lane Goodnight Phase I project consists of a two-lane 
extension of Slaughter Lane from its current terminus at Bluff Springs 
Rd., eastward approximately 4,450 feet to the intersection of the 
proposed extension of Vertex Blvd., including all earthwork, paving and 
drainage facilities.   

 Subject IFB opened on September 28, 2012, with five (5) bids received 
in response to the solicitation.  The apparent low bidder is DNT 
Construction, LLC with a base bid of $3,485,162.14.  

 TNR is recommending for contract award DNT Construction, LLC for the 
Base Bid amount of $3,485,162.14.  

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Award Amount: $3,485,162.14    
Contract Type: Construction   
Contract Period: 218 working days after issuance of notice-to-
proceed. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 13



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

  
 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 
Solicitations Sent: via Bidsync  Responses Received: 5  
HUB Information: Vendor is not a HUB  % HUB Subcontractor: 5.3%  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been notified. 
  Comments:  N/A 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000183 
  Fund Center(s): 1490190000  
  Comments:  

 



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

411 W. 13thSt. 
Eleventh Floor 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9383 
FAX (512) 854-4626 

November 2,2012 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Marvin Brict¥" A sistant Purchasing Agent 

, County Executive-TNR 

Subject: Sl g ter ane-Goodnight Roadway Construction Project, Phase One, 2005 Bond, 
Contract #B 1208-004-JW, Construction Contract Award 

TNR Public Works Division has reviewed the bids submitted by five contractors that responded 
to the bid solicitation request for the construction of Phase One of the project, and recommends 
award of the contract to the apparent low bidder, DNT Construction, Inc. for a total of 
$3,485,162.14. 

The bid proposal includes two items, totaling $39,642.70 that are the responsibility of the 
developer, AGR, who is building the other two lanes, through a public, private partnership 
agreement with the County. The developer has already reimbursed the County for this amount. 

The financial infoffi1ation pertaining to this project is as follows: 

WBS Element: RDCN.149.000004 
FRD: 0300000183 
Fund: 4054 
Fund Center: 1490190000 
GIL: 521040 

Required authorizations: 
Jessica Rio, PBO 

Attachments: 
Bid tabulation form 
Project Location Map 

CC: 	 Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent 
Jason Walker, Purchasing 
Steve Sun, Mo Mortazavi, Donna Williams-Jones, Tawana Gardner 

C:\Users\barretc\AppData\Local\Microsoft\ Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\AOBBM8EI\Bid Award Request for Slaughter 
Lane-Goodnight (2).doc, 1 0/9/20 12 8:31 :00 AM 

http:39,642.70
http:3,485,162.14


Cl 
o o 
o 
z 
Cl 
I 
-i 

[Tl 
)( 
-i 
[Tl 
Z 
If) 

HANRAHAN. PRfTCHARD ENGINEERING, INC. 
CONBtt..11NG eK:1#EERS

SLAUGHTER LANE GOODNIGHT 

PHASES 1 & 2 


EXHIBIT B 


rrx PE FRI fEQ. t41tJJ 

8333 0'0. Parle Drlve 

AUS1IY. 7EXA8 711754 


OFRCE: 512.45QC:U FAX: 5f24511.47S2 

H~com 

HPE 

SHEET 

01 of 01 



l'IWJEcr: SL,\UGIITEII LA N'£ E,\ST GOOf)NIGIiT PHASE I, fl'8 NU"'BER 111208-004-JW 
MID TAMULATION 

DAlt ['rtpnrrtl: 3-0<1-12 

24 
~ 
~ 

43: 
450 2026 
4622011 
~ 
-'-6:

f>O 
5062001 
6082016 
506 2041 

5292004 

5312015 

5402001 
~ 

550 200' 
6182024 

844 
662 
668 

IEIID ALTERNATE 
6 1 1322006 

OOT 

00 

001 
iiJi 
i01 

fffi 

1642S 

Preparing ROW, comp: 
Remove TetnpOI'ery As 

REFl P} 
6' C·900 
e-c-\lO 
112 ' <::~ 

Doscrlpllon 

TYPE 

~andln p:ac& 

;Ymbo!!(tOO '-"L!. 
~OOMI~1.D 

L _ 

AUSI 

QTY unl~r;lc. Amounl BId unl~i;IC. - ~;;';';n~BId I fr~~::1 unl~~'t.- Anlounl Bid I "~~:Y." -Unf~~jco Amounl Bid fr~mV:;I. un'~ir'co Amounl Bid rr~~::1 unl~it· Amounl Bid Ifr~~~; , 
28 5 2,000.00 558,000.00 S 1,557.54 543,611 .12 ·22% 5 5,200.00 5145,600.00 1 60~ $ 1,600.00 M2,OOO.00 ,25',(, $ 2 45000 $68,600.00 23'(, S 3 500.00 . $98.000.00 

2911 $ 14.40 541 .910.40 S 3.18 511 ,003.58 -74% S 7.00 520.377.00 -51% S 5.00 514,555.00 -65". $ 6.00 $17.466.00 -58 \~ S 6.00 $17. ~. 00 

4se8 5 MO 523,440.00 5 2.1>2 513,688.00 -42 ,~ $ 7.00 532.81600 40l~ $ 2.00 59,378.00 .QOl\ $ 8.00 $37.504.00 6011 $ 8,00 $37.504.00 - .. 
12642 5 3.00 $37.926.00 5 4.14 SS2.337.88 38% $ 5.00 $63.210.00 87% 5 8.00 51 01,1 38.00 181<\ $ 4.30 554.380.60 431', $ 4.40 555.624 80 47% 
12642 S 3.50 H 4.247.00 S 2.14 527.053.88 -39~, $ 3.60 545511 .20 3V, 5 7.00 $88.4 94.00 10011 5 430 554 ,380.60 231'. $ 1.90 $24.019.80 --4 6% 
6S80 7 $ 10.00 !.S68.070.00 5 6 .94 5463,640.58 -31 !1> 5 9.00 $801.283.00 ·10l1 S 7.50 5501,052 50 -25\ \ 5 1800 51202.628.00 8Of. $ 7.30 5487.691 .10 ·27% 

108676 S 1.00 S108.676.00 S 0.80 593,461.36 -14~j, S o.eo 565.205.60 -~OY~ S 0.50 S54,338.OO -50~ S 1.10 5119.543.60 1n!lll. tc " ... " ot..t"l.A7nAn .r.nv. 

25297 5 4.00 5101,168.00 5 0.9< 523.179.18 -77% S 1.00 $25-'97.00 ·75% S 1.20 530.300.40 .70;~ 5 1.20 S30.356.~0 

30596 5 7.00 !SI,192.00 5 1.83 5SS,990.68 -9% 5 1.00 530,69600 -50;~ 5 0.30 59.178.80 -85% 5 0.50 515.298.00 
29 " 5 12.00 534 .032.00 5 n.66 527,829.18 ·20% 5 12.00 534,932.00 0 * 5 13.00 537.84300 8l~ 5 16 .50 548.031.50 ~ " R. ..._ __'._'''. . - .. 

2'23 S 9.00 52,007.00 S 17.24 53,84~ . 52 92% 5 11 .00 52.453.00 22 * 5 20.00 5H60.00 122% $ 11.25 52.508.76 25'11 IS 13.00 52,899.00 • • '" 
~ $ 17.00 S52O.132.OO $ 13,01 S.~_22,S3~~~Q~ _ $ 1~, OO $489,5036.00_ ___ :§r.__ s _ 17.00 ~J~_ ~~~._ -~r---+-~~~ ..... s.•. a· .AtVI er. ... n.,"1l 1Vl &.~ I. 

~ 5,ros.44 I 421. Is 620 1'5189.695.20 I 38%_ 1 5 4.75 L.!!45,331 .0D 1 0% 15__ 4,SO j $131682.00 
,0191]'5 13.40T 5337,559.40 T5 13.seT 5349.651.08 4% $ " .00 5277,101.00 -18~ 5 1225 5308,569.75 -9;'. S lUO 5307.330.20 

)5: 
:] 

175J 5 8.10 51 ,417.50 . 5 18.87 53,30225 133% 5 11 .00 52.915.00 110 :~ 5 19.00 53,325.00 135',; 5 18.40 53.220.00 

28102H5 11.90 5334.413.80 i 5 11.10 $3~.::: ;;;;~ ! ~: 5iI
7 
:::: ;;,~~ ~ ~:: 55~:~0~\~) ~:;~: ~ ~:~ $5~:~~~~ j ;~'7ilL,~: : I 

1.855.92 11% S 1.00 51 , ~noo 0% S 1.00 $1 ,672.00 0\\ S 1.00 51,672.00 - - -
- 224 7% $ 13.00 $18.92800 113% 5 7.00 $10192.00 15% S 12.50 518,200.00 

3.60 ·52;\ S 25. 00 59.125.00 -$5% S 200.00 $73.000.00 2640/, S 50 00 _5.18,2~ "" 
-.70 1 ·421> I s 23.00 1 54 ,255 .00 I --45\~ Is 90.00 I 516,650.00 111m Is 19.00 I ~5J5.00 
5.00 .13% $ 13.00 54 .836.00 30~, S 15.00 55,580.00 5OY, S 12.SO 54.650.00 

~,649oo -33% S 00.00 523.850 00 ·10% 5 150.00 515,900.00 ·40;\ S 64.00 516,960.00 T .3&% Ts 6500T SI7,22?00 
4,455.26 -36% 5 310.00 $138.710.00 · 16'~ S 256.00 5112.896.00 ·3m S 390.00 5171 ,990.00 5'1', IS 360.00 SI58,7S{).OO ~ .• 

31 
4C 
3< 
:}! 

~ 

~ 

..1E. 

7J 

2.

.~1! 

72: 
~ 

.B 
13 

45 

~ 

2.OC 

2!! 

11 

2,96500 ·.3% 5 370.00 5170.200.00 --41~, S 4eo.00 522Q.800.00 -31% S 555.00 5255,300.00 -2 m ft 5 540.00 5248.400.00 ·23;1 

~ .; 1 .~~~ o~~j~58~4 :~~:; ~ 4,: : 5~!~~ -:;:~ ~ 2, ~::: 5~:=: '!':; ~ 7,~:: S:,~'3S:~ i~;~ -I-~ 6: : 5;,72~=::: ;~~~ 
t 1$ 1,180.35 $3,559.05 1il8Y, S 3,750,00 511,25000 525~/~ S 1,600.00 $.4 ,500.00 150Y') S 1260.00 53,780.00 -l 11 0;~ -Il.s 1.~nnlV\ C'At: tV'ot\n U :/ 'I7<. 

• - •• •• ... '".~ <no< - 63.00 522,239.00 58% S 42.00 SI4.826.00 W. 5 60.00 517,6SO.00 

)10,000.00 

550,000.00 
528,000.00 
52. If>O 00 
550.000.00 

5685.00 
5~,QOOOC 

~572 25 
~65.00 
;463.58 

Stl,020.oo 
58.225.00 
54.620.00 

527,000.00 

" 

1, 

1,09 

45 

2. 

--- .. ..... ~ ........ .. ... ~. - .. .. .....""........,.. .. -.." .. ........... .. ................... 

3, 

1.1 

1:00 

.1 

h..<,~ 
S~, OQQ 

S 

00 

00 
5950.00 

53.338.00 

;7SO.OO 
;550.00 

Sl.CY.lO.OO 
56,192.00 

',755.00 
SS.I84.oo 

S45.000.00 

;4C 

~ 

1.11 

2, 

4! 

,74 

50! 

~ 

~1_9.000,OQ. 
5100,000.00 
552.978,71 
$2,21, .38 

5400.000.00 
5500.00 

5900.00 

5700.00 
$346.~O 

S9OO:iiO 
54,472 .00
58,225.00 
$5,940.00 

538.250,00 

"- ', 
:::Ii 

2.1 

~ 

~ 

~ 

..P:Q 51,000.00 
51,224.00 
$11,750.00 
57.656.1 
569,7 50 00 

t-

.2 

6. 

~ 

40 

~ 

~ 

51 
51 

B~:,!ld I 53,982,373.44 I B;';!ld I $1,485,162.14 I ·120/, I B~:,~" I 5)'767,182.60 B~;I~ld I $3,789,827.21 I ·5~. I B~~!ld 1. .54,847,203.25 I 1 7~1I I 8~c~!IU I $3.671,338.00 

cv r~ 350 1 -$233,824.~O 15 2.97 1 5196,4 10.79 -15% i s 6.601 54J.4 .2~5:sO -J 86% - 1 5 '!()()J -5267 228.00 1 4\~ IS 5.00 1 $394,161.30 ~ S387.438 50 

.,. . - .··....~-· -I IAlltrn,'eOldl I 9~ JAII.mal. Bld l I \' I AII.mal. Bld l ......:1;'" OF J"~'I . ... _ $I,lo,n""4 Tota.l m _ 53,219,938.35' m _Tol., .. . _ $3,600,161.10 1 , 8~ Tol.l 53,168,015.40 

•••*"··;"YIl""'t 
"\r·." •••" .- .,.- .. 

CERTIFIED AS TRUE AND CORREC~~; 4K ~ ~ <Q 
, It ••••• \ ...II.. 'll.It ~ 

j"'LAWREHCEU:iWiiWfAN']'lr....··s8474..··..'i'Jjf
l.O·.:9~ fc,<v••• ~~ 
f.~ ••• ?ISTE~... ,~.# ., S~ ........ ~c. 


\\./OhA!-_~ 
"'''-



4400001214

STATE OF TEXAS § “‘ ‘

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §
This Agreement for Construction Services (the “Construction Contract” or
“Contract”)) is made and entered into this day by and between Travis County,
Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (the “County”) and DNT
Construction. LLC (the “Contractor”) and will be binding upon their respective
executors, administrators, heirs, successors, and assigns.

WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a contract for the construction
of SLAUGHTER LANE GOODNIGHT PHASE I in Travis County, Texas, in
accordance with the provisions of state statutes and conforming to the
Contractor’s Notice of Construction, Bid Proposal (including the Bidding
Documents, Bid Form, and any Addenda or Amendments thereto), General
Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and the Specifications and Plans marked
SLAUGHTER LANE GOODNIGHT PHASE I (B1208-004-JW). all of which are
incorporated herein.

WHEREAS, the Contractor has been engaged in and now does
comparable work and represents that it is fully equipped, competent, and capable
of performing the above- desired and outlined work, and is ready and willing to
perform such work in accordance with all provisions of the abovementioned
Specifications and Plans marked (BI 208-004-JW).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the County’s promise to pay the
amount below as totaled in the Bid Proposal hereto attached and made part of
this Contract, the Contractor agrees to do at his own proper cost and expense all
the work necessary for the construction of SLAUGHTER LANE GOODNIGHT
PHASE I in Travis County, Texas in accordance with the provisions of the
aforementioned Contractor’s Notice of Construction, the Bid Proposal as
awarded by the Commissioners Court, and the Specifications and Plans marked
(B1208-004-JW) to the satisfaction of the County Executive of the Transportation
and Natural Resources Department of Travis County, Texas.

This contract document, the Contractor’s Notice of Construction, the Bid
Proposal (including the Bidding Documents, the Bid Form, and any Addenda or
Amendments thereto), and the Specifications and Plans marked (B1208-004-JW)
represents the entire and integrated contract between the County and the
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either oral or written. This Contract may be amended only by
written instrument signed by both the County and the Contractor.

The said Contractor further agrees to be available for work within 14
calendar days, and to complete the work within 218 workinci days, after receiving
a written “Notice to Proceed”.

Travis County, Texas, in consideration of the full and true performance of
the said work by said Contractor, hereby agrees and binds itself to pay to said
Contractor the total contract amount of $3485162.14 consisting of
$3A6O211.14 for materials to be incorporated into the Project or completely
consumed at the job site and services required by or integral to the performance
of the contract and $24,951.00 for all other charges, including the cost of other
services, overhead, materials which do not become part of the finished project or
are reusable, and machinery or equipment and its accessory, repair, or
replacement parts, and in the manner provided for, within 30 calendar days from
the receipt of an acceptable invoice. This division of the contract amount is

walkerj
Draft



4400001214

made for sales tax purposes only. The Contractor must maintain internal records
to verify the division. The Contractor must make these records available upon the
request of the Travis County Auditor.

This contract will be construed according to the laws of the State of Texas.
The performance for this Contract must be in Travis County, and venue for any
action will lie in Travis County, Texas. The Contractor warrants that the
completed project must be adequate for the purposes intended.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if Contractor is delinquent
in payment of taxes at the time of invoicing, Contractor hereby assigns any
payments to be made for service rendered under this Contract to the Travis
County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes.

NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF THE
COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, TO
AMEND THIS CONTRACT, EXCEPT SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY
BE GRANTED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF THE COUNTY.

The forfeiture provisions of the contract imposed pursuant to the Travis
County Ethics Policy may be waived in whole or in part by the Travis County
Commissioners Court.

EXECUTED THIS DAY OF YEAR_______

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS ONEr r4ôs1

BY:

TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED:

TRAVIS COUNTY ATTORNEY COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

CERTIFIED FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE

BY:

frce4 C,Eo

TRAVIS COUNTY AUDITOR

walkerj
Draft



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language: AUTHORIZE PURCHASING AGENT TO 
COMMENCE NEGOTIATIONS WITH THE MOST HIGHLY QUALIFIED 
FIRM, LJA ENGINEERING, INC. FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES IN 
RESPONSE TO RFQ NO. Q120156-JW, FM 969 IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT (TNR). 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs  
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 This project is for the necessary improvements and widening for FM 969 
in two (2) phases.  The first phase (approximately 2.1 miles) will begin 
from FM 3177 (Decker Ln.) to FM 973 and will expand the existing 4-
lane road to include a continuous left turn lane, paved shoulders, and a 
sidewalk on one side of the road from FM 3177 to FM 973.  The second 
phase (approximately 1.9 miles) will continue from FM 973 on to Hunters 
Bend Rd. and will widen the existing 2-lane road to a 4-lane road plus a 
continuous left turn lane, paved shoulders, and a sidewalk on one side 
of the road.     

 As a result of a Pass Through Toll Finance Agreement between the 
County and the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDoT) executed 
on January 17, 2012, TxDoT will reimburse the County a portion of the 
project expenses. 

 On September 12, 2012, twelve (12) proposals were received for the 
design of FM 969 Improvements project, in which TNR staff evaluated 
and rated the qualifications of each firm using a standard rating form, as 
developed by TNR. The three (3) highest rated firms, LJA Engineering, 
Inc, H. W. Lochner, Inc. (Lochner), URS Corporation were then 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 14



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

interviewed on October 19, 2012. 

 As a result of the interviews, TNR recommends the highest rated firm, 
LJA Engineering, Inc., for this project, and requests authorization to 
commence negotiations.  Attached is TNR's corroborating memo with 
the necessary matrix showing point totals for each firm.    

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Award Amount: $TBD    
Contract Type: A/E   
Contract Period: 480 calendar days from issuance of NTP   

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 
Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 
Solicitations Sent: 43  Responses Received: 12  
HUB Information: N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: 22%  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000323 
  Fund Center(s): 1490190000 
  Comments:   

 
 
 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

____ Approved ____ Disapproved 

 

__________________________________ _____________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe Date 
Travis County Judge 



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E. , COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

411 W. 13th St. 
Eleventh Floor 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9383 
FAX (512) 854-4626 

November 2,2012 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 

FROM: ~ounty Executive-TNR 

SUBJECT: Proposed FM 969 Pass Through Project 
RFQ# Q120156-JW 
Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Design 

The following information is for your use in preparing an agenda item for Commissioners 

Court action. Please contact either me at ext. 4-9383 or Miguel Villarreal, P.E., Project 

Manager at ext. 4-7586 if you have any questions or need additional information. 


Proposed Motion: 

Consider and take appropriate action on TNR's request to negotiate a professional Services 

Agreement for FM 969 Pass Through Toll Project, in Precinct One with LJA Engineering, 

Inc. 


Summary and Staff Recommendations: 

On January 17,2012, Commissioners Court approved a Pass Through Toll Finance 

Agreement with TXDOT for widening and improving existing FM969 from FM 31 77 to 

Hunters Bend Road. Purchasing, together with TNR Public Works, developed an RFQ for 

engineering design services and on September 12, 2012, received proposals from twelve (12) 

firms. Three TNR staff members evaluated and rated the qualifications of each firm and 

determined LJA Engineering, Inc., as the highest rated and the n10st qualified firm for this 

project. 


The professional services agreement will be for the development of construction PS&E and 

bidding documents for the FM 969 widening and improvements located in East Travis County 

Precinct One (see attached map). The project includes engineering design for widening 

existing FM 969 in two phases. The first phase begins on FM 969 from FM 3177(Decker 

Lane) to FM 973 and the second phase begins on FM 969 from FM 973 to Hunters Bend 

Road. The design will be coordinated with TxDOT and other stakeholders. 


TNR Staff scored the SOQ's submitted by 12 firms and interviewed the three top rated firms. 

Purchasing c0111bine the scores and determined that LJA Engineering, Inc., is the highest 

rated. TNR Staff recommends approving Purchasing and TNR to negotiate a Professional 




Services Agreement (PSA) with LJA. TNR and Purchasing will present the PSA to Court for 
approval after completion of negotiations. 

Budget and Fiscal impact: 
Funding for this project will come fron1 bonds issued per the Pass Through Toll Finance 
Agreement entered into by the County and TxDOT. The total amount allocated to cover this 
phase of services is 1,140,000.00. The source of funding is as follows: 

Funds Reservation: 0300000323 
Fund: 4075 
Fund Center: 1490190000 
GIL: 580060 

Issues and Opportunities: 
This project will widen and reconstruct existing FM 969 from FM 3177 to Hunters Bend Road 
in two phases. Phase one will begin from FM 3177 to FM 973 and will expand the existing 4 
lane FM 969 to include a continuous left tum lane with a sidewalk on one side. Phase Two 
will begin from FM 973 to Hunters Bend Road and will widen FM 969 from a 2 lane road to a 
4 lane road plus a continuous left tum lane with a sidewalk on one side. 

Attachment: 	 Evaluation Result 
Vicinity map 

cc: 	 Cynthia McDonald, Donna Williams-Jones, Tawana Gardner, TNR Financial Services 
Steve Sun, P.E., Assistant Public Works Director TNR 
Mike Crawford, Auditor's Office 
Miguel Villarreal, P.E., TNR Project Manager 

http:1,140,000.00


SOQs 

AECOM 

Baker-Aicklen 

Binkley Barfield 

CEC 

CP&V 

Dannenbaum 

UA 

Lochner 

Pape Dawson 

Solary 

Steger Bizzell 

URS 

Interviews 

UA 

Lochner 

URS 

Total 

UA 

Lochner 

URS 

Evaluator A 

3.25 

2.7 

3.8 

3.25 

3.35 

2.9 

3.9 

3.9 

3.35 

2.8 

3.35 

3.9 

4 .65 

3.75 

4 .4 

8.55 

7.65 

8.3 

Evaluator B 

3.9 

2.5 

3.05 

2.85 

3.35 

3.15 

4.75 

3.35 

3.25 

2.3 

2.3 

4 

4.65 

3.5 

4 .5 

9.4 

6.85 

8.5 

Evaluator C 

3.35 

2.7 

3.8 

3.3 

3.45 

2.6 

3.9 

3.8 

3.45 

2.45 

2.8 

3.55 

4 

3.4 

4 

7.9 

7.2 

7.55 

Evaluator D Avg. 

3.50 

2.63 

3.55 

3.13 

3.38 

2.88 

4.18 

3.68 

3.35 

2.52 

8.62 

7.23 

8 .12 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language: AUTHORIZE PURCHASING AGENT TO 
COMMENCE NEGOTIATIONS WITH THE MOST HIGHLY QUALIFIED 
FIRM, KLOTZ ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES IN 
RESPONSE TO RFQ NO. Q120157-JW, FM 1626 IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT (TNR). 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs  
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 This project is for the necessary reconstruction and widening of FM 
1626 from 1,100’ west of Brodie Ln. to FM 2304.   From 1,100’ west of 
Brodie Ln. to the Bear Creek Bridge, the road will be a 5-lane section 
including a continuous left turn lane and 10’ shoulders.  From Bear 
Creek Bridge to FM 2304, the road will be a 5-lane section including 
curb and gutter with 6’ shoulders.  Additionally, in this section a sidewalk 
will be on one (1) side of the road.  The total project length is 
approximately 1.11 miles.       

 As a result of a Pass Through Toll Finance Agreement between the 
County and the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDoT) executed 
on January 17, 2012, TxDoT will reimburse the County a portion of the 
project expenses. 

 On August 22, 2012, ten (10) proposals were received for the design of 
FM 1626 Improvements project, in which TNR staff evaluated and rated 
the qualifications of each firm using a standard rating form, as 
developed by TNR. The two (2) highest rated firms, Klotz Associates, 
Inc., and CP & Y, Inc. were then interviewed on October 4, 2012. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 15



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 As a result of the interviews, TNR recommends the highest rated firm, 
Klotz Associates, Inc., for this project, and requests authorization to 
commence negotiations.  Attached is TNR's corroborating memo with 
the necessary matrix showing point totals for each firm.    

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Award Amount: $TBD    
Contract Type: A/E   
Contract Period: 480 calendar days from issuance of NTP   

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 
Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 
Solicitations Sent: 71  Responses Received: 10  
HUB Information: N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: 13%  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000323 
  Fund Center(s): 1490190000 
  Comments:   

 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

____ Approved ____ Disapproved 

 

__________________________________ _____________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe Date 
Travis County Judge 



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

411 W. 13th St. 
Eleventh Floor 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9383 
FAX (512) 854-4626 

November 2, 2012 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 	 , . ., ounty Executive-TNR 

SUBJECT: 	 Proposed FM 1626 Pass Through Project 
RFQ# Q120157-JW 
Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Design 

The following information is for your use in preparing an agenda item for Commissioners 

Court action. Please contact either me at ext. 4-9383 or Tony Valdez, P.E., Project Manager at 

ext. 4-7567 if you have any questions or need additional information. 


Proposed Motion: 

Consider and take appropriate action on TNR's request to negotiate a professional Services 

Agreement for FM 1626 Pass Through Project, in Precinct Three with Klotz & Associates. 


Summary and Staff Recommendations: 

On August 10,2012, TNR requested the Purchasing Office to obtain professional consulting 

services for engineering design for the FM 1626 Improvement project. Purchasing, together 

with TNR Public Works, developed an RFQ for these services and on August 22, 2012 

received proposals from ten (l0) firms. Three TNR staff members evaluated and rated the 

qualifications of each firm and determined Klotz Associate as the highest rated and the most 

qualified firm for this project. 


The professional services agreement will be for the development of designed construction 

PS& E documents for the FM 1626 Improvement located in South West Travis County 

Precinct Three (see attached map). The proj ect includes realignment and engineering design 

of existing FM 1626 Improvement from 1100 feet west of Brodie Lane to FM 2304 where it 

will connect to existing FM 1626. The design will be coordinated with TxDOT and other 

stakeholders. 


TNR Staff scored the SOQ, submitted by 10 firms and provide them Purchasing. Purchasing 

combine the scored and determined that Klotz Associate was the highest rated. TNR Staff 

recommends approving Purchasing and TNR to negotiate a Professional Services agreement 

with Klotz & Associates. TNR and Purchasing will present the PSA to Court for approval 

after completion of negotiations. 




Budget and Fiscal impact: 
Funding for this project will come from certification of obligation road bonds that will issued 
in over several years for the TX DoT pass through program. The total amount approved for 
this project is $12.1 million. The source of funding for this design contract is as follows: 

Funds Center: 1490190000 
Fund: 4075 
GL Account: 522040 
Funds Reservation Number: 300000323 
Internal Order: 600143 
Amount Issued FY 2012 and Available: $1,732,500 

Issues and Opportunities: 
This project will realign FM 1626 to improve sharp curves and connect to existing FM 1626. 
This improvement from a two lane to five lane road will increase capacity to provide 
connectivity in the transportation system, enhance safety, reduce traffic congestion and will 
allow for traffic in and out of the subdivisions. 

Attachment: 	 Evaluation Result 
Vicinity map 

cc: 	 Cynthia McDonald, Donna Williams-Jones, Tawana Gardner, TNR Financial Services 
Steve Sun, P.E., Assistant Public Works Director, TNR 
Mike Crawford, Auditor's Office 
Tony Valdez, TNR Project Manager 



SOQs 

AECOM 

Baker-Aicklen 

Brown & Gay 

CEC 

CP&Y 

Dannenbaum 

Klotz & Assoc 

Solary Eng 

Steger & Bizzel 

Unintech 

Interviews 

CP&Y 

Klotz & Assoc 

Total 

CP&Y 

Klotz & Assoc 

Evaluator A 

4.05 

3.45 

4.8 

4.35 

4.15 

4.1 

4.75 

3.5 

4.25 

4.35 

4.75 

3.7 

8.9 

8.45 

Evaluator B 

3.45 

2.6 

3.15 

2.95 

4 

2.6 

4.95 

2.25 

2.3 

4.2 

3.2 

4.3 

7.2 

9.25 

Evaluator C 

4.3 

3.5 
4.55 

4 

4.85 

3.5 

5 

3.15 

3.5 

3.9 

4.5 

4.25 

9.35 

9.25 

Evaluator D Avg. 

3.93 

3.18 

4.90 

2.97 

3.35 

4.15 

8.48 

8.98 



 
ID# 7600 
 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 854-1181 / 
Marvin Brice, CPPB 854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes C.P.M. CPPO 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve FY2013 Renewal (Modification No. 8) to 
Interlocal Agreement No.4400000367 (HTE Contract No. IL060040RE), 
Austin Community College for Early Childhood Mentoring (Teacher TRAC). 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  This Interlocal 
Agreement was previously included on a list of certain Health and 
Human Services and Veteran Services contracts (Attachment A) 
approved by Commissioners Court on September 25, 2012, Agenda 
Item No. 35. Due to HHSVS work backlog the contracts were not 
completed prior to the start date. 

 Through this agreement Travis County will provide funds for tuition and 
books for childcare teachers and childcare center directors to take 
college level child development courses at Austin Community College in 
pursuit of a Child Development Associate credential or an Associate 
Degree in Child Development. The contract also provides for small cash 
bonuses for those teachers and directors who complete their 
coursework with a grade of C or better. ACC staff provides life coaching 
and support to teachers and directors who enroll to increase the odds of 
success.  

Qualifications needed to enroll in the program are as follows: teachers 
and directors must live in Travis County, must be working a minimum of 
30 hours per week in a state licensed or regulated childcare facility, 
must complete their coursework with a grade of C or better, and commit 
to remain at their current childcare center for at least one year 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 16



 
ID# 7600 
 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 Modification No. 8 will renew the agreement for an additional twelve-
month period, from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013. The 
not to exceed amount for this renewal period is $56,758. 

Modification No. 7 renewed the agreement for an additional twelve-
month period, from October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2012. The 
not to exceed amount for this renewal period was $56,758. 

Modification No. 6 renewed the agreement for an additional twelve-
month period, from October 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011. The 
not to exceed amount for this renewal period was $56,758. 

Modification No. 5 renewed the agreement for an additional twelve-
month period, from October 1, 2009 through September 30, 2010. The 
not to exceed amount for this renewal period was $56,758. 

Modification No. 4 renewed the agreement for an additional twelve-
month period, from October 1, 2008 through September 30, 2009. The 
not to exceed amount for this renewal period was $56,758. In addition to 
amending Section 4.2 the Renewal Term Work Statement and 
Performance Measure and Budget. 

Modification No. 3 renewed the agreement for an additional twelve-
month period, from October 1, 2007 through September 30, 2008. The 
not to exceed amount for this renewal period was $56,758. In addition to 
amending Section 4.2 the Renewal Term Work Statement and 
Performance Measure and Budget. 

Modification No. 2 increased the contract funds by $10,000 for the 
October 1, 2005 through September 30, 2006 renewal period. In 
addition to renewing the contract for a twelve-month period from October 
1, 2006 through September 30, 2007.  The contract not to exceed 
amount was $54,055.  

Modification No. 1 increased the contract funds by $13,574 for a total 
not to exceed amount of $81,055.  In addition to amending Attachment 
A, the Work Statement, Performance Measure and Budget. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $56,758has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 



 
ID# 7600 
 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $67,481.00   

Contract Type: Interlocal Cooperation Agreement  

Contract Period: October 1, 2005 through September 30, 2006  

 Contract Modification Information:  

Modification Amount: $56,758   

Modification Type: Bilateral     

Modification Period: October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013  

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  

HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations:  N/A 

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 

  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 
notified. 

  Comments:   

 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: 

  Funding Account(s): 511440 

  Comments: Cost Center 1580540001 

 

 

 
 
 



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

OF

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012
Prepared BylPhone Number: Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 854-1181/
Marvin Brice, CPPB 854-9765
ElectedlAppointed OfficiallDept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language: Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Request to
Renew List Of Certain Health and Human Services and Veterans Services
Social Service Contracts which Expire September 30, 2012.

Travis County Health and Human Services and Veteran Services
Department has requested the Purchasing Office to place on the Court’s
Agenda the attached list of Social Services Contracts which will expire
September 30, 2012. HHS & VS is currently working with the County
Attorney’s office on finalizing the Statement of Work and funding of these
contracts; and as such they were not ready for presentation to the Court at
the time of this agenda preparation. Once the contracts are finalized, and
funding secured, they will be presented to the Court for signature.
However, in order to prevent contract expiration, the attached list
(Attachment A) is being presented for Court approval.

REQUESTED ACTION:

APPROVE (L) DISAPPROVE ()

-r q - -

Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge Date

Contract-Related Information: See Attachment A

ID #7168

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge’s office, CheryAker(coiravis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week’s meeting.



TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH and HUMAN SERVICES
and VETERANS SERVICE
502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.

P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive

for TCHHSVS
(512) 854-4100

Fax (512) 279-1608

DATE: September 18, 2012

TO: Cy rimes, Travis County Purchasing Office

FROM:

______________________

Shem E. Fleming
County Executive for Travis County ealth and Human Services
and Veterans Service

SUBJECT: Contract renewals and modifications

Proposed Motions:
1) Consider and take appropriate action to approve certain TCHHSVS contract

renewals whose drafting will not be completed prior to the start date of the
renewal; and

2) Consider and take appropriate action to approve certain TCHHSVS contract
modifications whose drafting will not be completed prior to the start date of the
modification.

Summary and Staff Recommendations:
Drafting of the following TCHHSVS contract renewals and modifications will riot be
completed prior to their start dates due to a work backlog:

jJ Encomoass Medical Manacement, Inc. (RenewaI
Contract Number: 4400000683
Contract Period: 9/30/12 — 9/29/13
Contract Amount: Read paragraph below.
Grant Number: 800079
I/O Number: 100148



2

Account Number: 511890

Funded through the Parenting in Recovery (PIR) grant, this contract provides datamanagement, monitoring and processing services as well as training for the PIR project.FY’12 is the fifth and final year of the initial PIR grant. TCHHSVS has applied for a one-year no-cost extension to use an estimated $120,483 in unspent grant funds from FY’12in FY’13 as well as a two-year extension providing an additional $500,000 each year inFY’13 and FY’14. The grantor should respond by 9/28/12. The budget for the newEncompass contract will be either $10,000 or $85,000 depending on whetherTCHHSVS receives the one-year no-cost extension or the two-year extension, If neitherrequest is approved then TCHHSVS will not execute this contract.

Foundation Communities (Renewal)
Contract Number: 4400000694
Contract Period: 9/30/12 — 9/29/13
Contract Amount: $15,144
Grant Number: 800079
I/O Number: 100148
Account Number: 511441

Also funded through the Parenting in Recovery (PIR) grant, this contract provides casemanagement for PIR clients. This contract is in a similar situation to the one forEncompass. However, it will only be funded if the two-year extension is approved by thegrantor. If the two-year grant extension is not approved then TCHHSVS will not executethis contract.

) ATCIC SAMSO (Renewal)
Contract Number: 4400000372
Contract Period: 10/1/12 — 9/30/13
Contract Amount: Read paragraphs below.
Grant Number: 800079
I/O Number: 100148
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511124

Travis County, the City of Austin and Austin Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC) havea three-way interlocal agreement for the provision of substance abuse treatmentservices. Under the agreement, ATCIC manages a network which providescomprehensive clinical assessment, intervention services, residential treatment, daytreatment, detoxification, and outpatient and continuing care services. Clients are linkedor referred to case management and other support services as part of the treatmentprocess.

Travis County is providing $611,799 from the General Fund for the new contract. TheCity of Austin is in the process of determining its funding level. The Parenting inRecovery (PIR) grant could also provide funding depending on whether or not



3

TCHHSVS receives the one-year no-cost extension or the two-year extension it hasapplied for from the grantor. The grantor should respond by 9/28/12. The one-year no-cost extension will provide $8,224 in PIR funds and the two-year extension will provide$106,100. If neither request is approved then the contract will not include any PIRfunds.

4 ATCIC System of Care (Renewal)
Contract Number: 4400000374
Contract Period: 10/1/12 — 9/30/13
Contract Amount: Read paragraphs below.
Grant Number (Milbum Trust): 800080
I/O Number: 100147
Grant Number (The Children’s Continuum): 800190
I/O Number: 100081
Grant Number (Parenting in Recovery): 800079
I/O Number: 100148
Cost Center: 1580190001
Account Number: 511300

Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans Service (TCHHSVS) uses acontract with Austin Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC) to fund a variety of programs,known as the System of Care, for children and their families experiencing mental andbehavioral challenges. ATCIC acts as the managed services organization, overseeingthe services provided by a network of vendors. The contract also serves clients enrolledin the grant funded Parenting in Recovery (PIR) project and The Children’s Continuum(TCC).

The FY’13 contract has money from three confirmed sources:
$515,000 in General Fund money;
$36,523 from the Milbum Trust; and
$49,863 from The Children’s Continuum grant.

The contract could also have PIR grant money depending on whether or not TCHHSVSreceives the one-year no-cost extension or the two-year extension it has applied forfrom the grantor. The grantor should respond by 9/28/12. The no-cost extension willprovide $102,259 in PIR funds and the two-year extension will provide $126,000. Ifneither request is approved then the contract will not include any PIR funds.

) Court ApQointed SDecial Advocates (CASA) (Renewal)Contract Number: 4400000996
Contract Period: 10/1/12 — 9/30/13
Contract Amount: $11,930
Grant Number: 800190
I/O Number: 100081
Account Number: 518120



4

Funded through The Children’s Continuum (TCC) grant, this contract provides 25% ofthe funding for a Child Advocate position to work as court-appointed guardian ad litemfor children whose parents are involved with the Travis County Family Drug TreatmentCourt. The grant funds for this contract are in place.

) ATCIC Child Theragist and Surervisor (Renewal)Contract Number: 4400001018
Contract Period: 10/1/12 — 9/30/13
Contract Amount: $65,845
Grant Number: 800190
I/O Number: 100081
Account Number: 518120

Funded through The Children’s Continuum grant, this contract funds 100% of a ChildTherapist position and 5% of a supervisor’s position at ATCIC. The therapist works withchildren whose parents are involved with the Travis County Family Drug TreatmentCourt. The grant funds for this contract are in place.

fl Austin Community College Teacher TRAC (Renewal)Contract Number: 4400000367
Contract Period: 10/1/12 — 9/30/13
Contract Amount: $56,758
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511440

Provides funds for tuition and books for childcare teachers and childcare centerdirectors to take college level child development courses at ACC in pursuit of a ChildDevelopment Associate credential or an Associate Degree in Child Development. Thecontract also provides for small cash bonuses for those teachers and directors whocomplete their coursework with a grade of C or better. ACC staff provides life coachingand support to teachers and directors who enroll to increase the odds of success.Qualifications needed to enroll in the program are as follows: teachers and directorsmust live in Travis County, must be working a minimum of 30 hours per week in a statelicensed or regulated childcare facility, must complete their coursework with a grade ofC or better, and commit to remain at their current childcare center for at least one yearafter completing their coursework.

Travis County ESD #4— Firefighter Academy (Renewal)Contract Number: 4400000349
Contract Period: 10/1/12 — 9/30/13
Contract Amount: $96,000
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511440

This contract addresses both public safety and workforce development needs in TravisCounty. Cadets receive training that prepares them to take the state firefighter



5

certification test. They also receive training that allows them to become a certifiedEmergency Medical Technician (EMT). The program is designed to put young minorityadults on a career path and increase the supply of qualified firefighters and EMTpersonnel in rural parts of Travis County.

ai Workforce Solutions Childcare Local Match ContributionContract Number: 4400000819
Contract Period: 10/1/12—9/30/13
Contract Amount: $223,741
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511441

As the local agent for the Texas Workforce Commission, Workforce Solutionsdistributes state and federal child care funding for low-income working families in TravisCounty. Workforce Solutions utilizes local contributions to draw down additional federalfunds for child care. Under the proposed contribution agreement, Travis County willtransfer $223,741 of General Fund money earmarked for child care to WorkforceSolutions so the organization can leverage an additional $1,105,978 in federal childcare funds to produce a total of $1,329,719 to provide child care for low-income familiesin Travis County.

Q)ATCIC CAN Coordinator (Policy Forum Modification)Contract Number: 4400000347
Modification Period: 9/1/12 - 10/31/12
Modification Amount: $2,900
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511440
Shopping Cart Number: 1000009842

With the goal of addressing growing inequities in the Austin/Travis County community,CAN will be convening a full-day forum to educate over 200 participants on current andfuture economic, political, community engagement, and demographic trends that willimpact our community in future years, and learn about and identify cross-cutting,collaborative strategies and associated barriers that need to be overcome to move thecommunity in the right trajectory and towards greater equity and opportunity for allpeople.

fl Austin ISD After Collaborative After School ProQram (Modification)Contract Number: 4400000354
Contract Period: 10/1/11 - 12131/12
Contract Amount: $706,000
Cost Center: 1580270001
Account Number: 511441

Administrative correction to the amendment approved by the court on 4/17/12.



6

j) Planned Parenthood of Austin Family Plannino. Inc. (Modification)Contract Number: 4400000747
Contract Period: 1/1/12 — 12/31/12
Contract Amount: $29,601
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511441

Organization changed its name to Planned Parenthood of Greater Texas FamilyPlanning and Preventive Health Services.

13) Public Health Interlocal

Contract Number: 4400000389
Contract Period: 10)1/12 — 09/30/2013
Contract Amount: $2,825,297

City and County have historically operated to collaboratively provide public health andhuman services throughout Travis County and the City of Austin. Travis County hascontracted with the City of Austin for the provision of Public Health Services for manyyears. The lnterlocal Agreement was reviewed by City and County staff to improve theefficiency and benefits for both parties. The portion to fund the animal services wasremoved from the Public Health Interlocal and is now presented as a separate interlocalagreement between the city and county.

14) Animal Services Public Health Interlocal Aareement

Contract Number: New Contract
Contract Period: 10/1/12 — 09/30/2013
Contract Amount: $ 888,883

Travis County has contracted with the City of Austin for the provision of Public HealthServices for many years. The current Interlocal agreement was reviewed by City andCounty staff to improve the efficiency and benefits for both parties. The portion to fundthe animal services was removed from the Public Health Interlocal and is nowpresented as a separate inteiiocal agreement between the city and county.

TCHHSVS staff recommends approving these renewals and modifications.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact:
This information is included with each contract listed above. Some of these contractshave Shopping Cart numbers at this point and some do not.

Issues and Opportunities:



7

All of the services provided by these contracts need to be continued while the renewalsor modifications are drafted. Those contracts funded solely by grant money will not beexecuted if the grants are not renewed.

Background:
TCHHSVS is working with the Travis County Attorney’s Office to get these renewalsand modifications drafted as soon as possible.

Cc: Mary Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney
Leslie Browder, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget OfficeDiana Ramirez, Analyst, Planning and Budget OfficeCyd Grimes, C.P.M., Travis County Purchasing AgentShannon Pleasant, Assistant Purchasing Agent, Travis County PurchasingOffice



1
e
a
1

t
h

an
d

{

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

N
O

)E
S

C
R

P
1T

IO
N

h
fl

P
E

R
IO

D
‘1

JN
D

1N
G

4
C

G
N

T
N

O

G
ra

nt
N

um
be

r:
80

00
79

1/
0

N
um

be
r:

10
01

48

44
00

00
06

83
E

nc
om

pa
ss

M
ed

ic
al

M
an

ag
em

en
t,

In
c.

(R
en

ew
al

)
9/

30
/1

2
—

9/
29

/1
3

A
cc

ou
nt

N
um

be
r:

51
18

90

G
ra

nt
N

um
be

r
80

00
79

1/
0

N
um

be
r:

10
01

48

44
00

00
06

94
ou

nd
at

io
n

C
om

m
un

iti
es

(R
en

ew
al

)
9/

30
/1

2
—

9/
29

/1
3

A
cc

ou
nt

N
um

be
r:

51
14

1

G
ra

nt
N

um
be

r:
80

00
79

I/O
N

um
be

r:
10

01
48

C
os

tC
en

te
r:

15
80

54
00

01

44
00

00
03

72
A

us
tin

T
ra

vi
s

C
ou

nt
y

In
te

gr
al

C
ar

e
-

SA
M

SO
(R

en
ew

al
)

10
/1

/1
2

—
9/

30
/1

3
A

cc
ou

nt
N

um
be

r:
51

11
24

G
ra

nt
N

um
be

r
(M

ilb
um

T
ru

st
):

80
00

80
1/

0
N

um
be

r:
10

01
47

G
ra

nt
N

um
be

r
(T

he
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s
C

on
tin

uu
m

):
80

01
90

I/O
N

um
be

r:
10

00
81

G
ra

nt
N

um
be

r
(P

ar
en

tin
g

in
R

ec
ov

er
y)

:
80

00
79

I/O
N

um
be

r:
10

01
48

C
os

tC
en

te
r:

15
80

19
00

01
44

00
00

03
74

A
us

tin
T

ra
vi

s
C

ou
nt

y
In

te
gr

al
C

ar
e-

Sy
st

em
of

C
ar

e
(R

en
ew

al
)

10
/1

/1
2

—
9/

30
/1

3
A

cc
ou

nt
N

um
be

r:
51

13
00

G
ra

nt
N

um
be

r:
80

01
90

I/O
N

um
be

r:
10

00
81

44
00

00
09

96
C

ou
rt

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
Sp

ec
ia

lA
dv

oc
at

es
(C

A
SA

)
(R

en
ew

al
)

10
/1

/1
2

—
9/

30
/1

3
A

cc
ou

nt
N

um
be

r:
51

81
20

G
ra

nt
N

um
be

r:
80

01
90

I/O
N

um
be

r:
10

00
81

44
00

00
10

18
A

T
C

IC
C

hi
ld

T
he

ra
pi

st
an

d
Su

pe
rv

is
or

(R
en

ew
al

)
10

/1
/1

2
—

9/
30

/1
3

A
cc

ou
nt

N
um

be
r:

51
81

20

C
os

tC
en

te
r:

15
80

54
00

01
44

00
00

03
67

A
us

tin
C

om
m

un
ity

C
ol

le
ge

T
ea

ch
er

T
R

A
C

(R
en

ew
al

)
10

/1
/1

2
—

9/
30

/1
3

A
cc

ou
nt

N
um

be
r:

51
14

40

C
os

tC
en

te
r:

15
80

54
00

01
44

00
00

03
49

T
ra

vi
s

C
ou

nt
y

ES
D

#4
—

Fi
re

fi
gh

te
rA

ca
de

m
y

(R
en

ew
al

)
10

/1
/1

2
—

9/
30

/1
3

A
cc

ou
nt

N
um

be
r:

51
14

40

C
os

tC
en

te
r:

15
80

54
00

01
44

00
00

08
19

W
or

kf
or

ce
So

lu
tio

ns
C

hi
ld

ca
re

L
oc

al
M

at
ch

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
10

/1
/1

2
—

9/
30

/1
3

A
cc

ou
nt

N
um

be
r:

51
14

41

C
os

tC
en

te
r:

15
80

54
00

01
A

cc
ou

nt
N

um
be

r:
51

14
40

44
00

00
03

47
A

T
C

IC
C

A
N

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

(P
ol

ic
y

Fo
ru

m
M

od
if

ic
at

io
n)

9/
1/

12
-

10
/3

1/
12

sh
op

pi
ng

C
ar

tN
um

be
r:

10
00

00
98

42

C
os

tC
en

te
r:

15
80

27
00

01

44
00

00
03

54
A

us
tin

IS
D

A
ft

er
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e

A
ft

er
Sc

ho
ol

Pr
og

ra
m

(M
od

if
ic

at
io

n)
10

/1
/1

1
-

12
/3

1/
12

A
cc

ou
nt

N
um

be
r:

51
14

41

C
os

tC
en

te
r:

15
80

54
00

01
44

00
00

07
47

V
la

nn
ed

Pa
re

nt
ho

od
of

A
us

tin
Fa

m
ily

P
ls

ni
üg

,
In

c.
(M

od
if

ic
at

io
n)

1/
1/

12
—

12
/3

1/
12

A
cc

ou
nt

N
um

be
r:

51
14

41

44
00

00
03

89
C

ity
of

A
us

tin
Pu

bl
ic

H
ea

lth
In

te
rl

oc
al

10
/1

/1
2

-
9/

30
/1

3
To

be
de

te
rm

in
ed

la
te

rb
y

H
H

S
&

V
S

N
ew

C
on

tr
ac

tt
o

be
de

te
nn

in
ed

C
ity

of
A

us
tin

A
ni

m
al

Se
rv

ic
es

Pu
bl

ic
H

ea
lth

In
te

rl
oc

al
A

gr
ee

m
en

t
10

/1
/1

2
-

9/
30

/1
3

To
be

de
te

rm
in

ed
la

te
rb

y
H

H
S

&
V

S



Pagelof4ti
MODIFICATION OF CONTCT NrJE1: 4400000367 (ILO6004ORE) - Early Childhood Mentoring (Feacher TRAC)

ISSUED BY: PURCING AGENT ASST: Shannon Pleasant DATE PREPARED:
Travis County Purchasing Office TEL. NO: (512) 854-1181
700 Lavaca St., SuIte 800 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185 October 30, 2012
AustI,TX78701

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF
ORIGINAL CONTRACT:

Austin Community College 8
Highland Business Center October 1, 2005
5930 MIddle PIskvllle Road
Austin, TX 78752-4390

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES; O.ber I. 2005- Sev(effib5r 30. 2006 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 1. 20I2-Scote&,er 30. 2013

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:
Oiigüml Contract Amount: $67411 Current Modified Amount: 156.751

DESCRIPTION OF CHANCES: Except as provided herein, ll terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore
modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

The above referenced contract is hereby modified to reflect the following changes, as well as those more completely set forth in
the attachment:

1. The Interlocal Agreement is renewed for an additional twelve-month period, from October 1, 2012 through September
30,2013.

2. The not to exceed contract amount for the renewal period is $56,758.

The Contract is amended according to the tenns of the attachment to this Modification, all of which is hereby made a part of the
Contract and constitutes promised performances by the Contractor in accordance with all terms of the Contract, as amended.

Nuts to.Vead.WCM7 •.
.-‘...

JX mphai sad execute (alp) yosrp,rtk of lbs ,lpai’jr. rJ1 rf .fl g i,i. ‘IZJ
.

—.‘—-- -U—’—

I I DO NOT execute and returu to Travis County Reish tsr your records.
I ‘ .c

D

:TlON

0 TURE COThER

BY: Richard M; Rhodes, Ph.D.
PRINT NAME DATE ,

TITLE: President/CEO
ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

TRAVIS CfUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:_____________________________________________

CYD V. GRIMES. C.P.M,. CPPO TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, DATE

BY:
SAMUEL T. BlSO0€ TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page2of46

2013 RENEWAL AND AMENDMENT OF INTERLOCAL COOPERATION
AGREMENT BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND
AUSTIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE (“ACC”) FOR

TEACHER AN]) DIRECTOR TRAC SERVICES

This 2013 Renewal and Amendment (“2013 Renewal”) of the Interlocal Agreement
(“Agreement”) is entered into by the following Parties: Travis County, a political subdivision of
the State of Texas (“County”) and Austin Community College, a state agency (“ACC”).

County and ACC entered into an agreement (“Original Agreement”), the Agreement Term of
which began October 1, 2005, and terminated September 30, 2006.

ACC agreed to provide personal and professional services and activities for indigents and other
qualified recipients and/or for public health education and information, in accordance with the
terms of the Agreement, thus providing services which further a public purpose.

The Agreement provided for amendment and renewal of the agreement by the written agreement
of the Parties.

Pursuant to the Agreement terms, the Parties have previously amended the Agreement and have
renewed the Agreement for additional one-year terms continuing through September 30, 2012
(“2012 Renewal Term”).

County and ACC desire to amend the Agreement again to reflect certain mutually agreed upon
changes in the Agreement and to renew the Agreement for an additional one-year period.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits received by these changes, and
other good and adequate consideration as specified herein, the Parties agree to amend the
Agreement as follows:

1.0 AGREEMENT PERIOD

1.1 2013 Renewal Term. The Parties agree to extend the Agreement for an
additional one-year term, beginning October 1, 2012, and terminating September 30, 2013 (“2013
Renewal Term”).

1.2 Additional Renewals. The Parties agree that, unless sooner terminated pursuant to
the terms of this Agreement, and upon approval of funding by the Commissioners Court during the
budget process relating to any Renewal Term, this Agreement may be renewed, as evidenced by
written approval of the Parties, for as many additional one year terms as the Parties desire to
approve, prior to each renewal, or for any time period agreed to in writing by the Parties. The
exercise of any option to renew under this provision shall be with the understanding that all terms
and conditions, including the negotiated rates, remain unchanged and in full force and effect, unless
this Agreement is specifically amended pursuant to Section 3.0 of this Agreement to make any
changes in those terms. Non-competitive renewal shall be based upon the Contractor’s positive
performance and County’s continuing need for the services.



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 3 of 46

2.0 MAXIMUM FUNDS

2.1 Maximum Funds -2013 Renewal Term. The Parties agree to amend
Section 13.1.1 to add the following:

13.1.1(2013) 2013 Renewal Term Maximum Amount. Subject to other applicable
provisions of this Agreement, as amended, in consideration of full and satisfactory
performance of the services and activities provided under the terms of this
Agreement during the 2013 Renewal Term, as determined by County, County shall
provide funds not to exceed the following amount:

Base Trainin2 TOTAL
$ 56,758.00 $ -0- $ 56,758.00

3.0 ACC SERVICES

3.1 Services and Activities. The Parties acknowledge and agree that ACC shall
perform, either directly or indirectly through Subcontracts, in a satisfactory maimer as determined
by County, through Department, services and activities in accordance with the terms and conditions
stated in this Agreement as amended in this 2013 Renewal.

3.2 Insurance. The Parties agree that the requirements for insurance for the 2013
Renewal Term will continue as set forth in the original Agreement. ACC agrees to provide
current 2013 documentation of such insurance as required under the Agreement.

3.3 Limitations. Unless otherwise specifically stated herein, the performances
required under this 2013 Renewal are performable only during the 2013 Renewal Term, and
performances required under any other Agreement Term(s) were performable only during the
applicable Term. Performance requirements and payment shall not carry over from one
Agreement Term to another.

3.4 2013 Update. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this 2013 Renewal, ACC
agrees to provide Department, with a copy to the Purchasing Agent, current updates of all
policies, materials, and other information required under the Agreement, including, but not
limited to, the following as described under the Agreement:

3.4.1 Proof of Insurance
3.4.2 Update of any Policies and Procedures
3.4.3 Updated W-9 Taxpayer Identification Form
3.4.4 Updated IRS 990 Form
3.4.5 Change of Identity Information (Name, Address, etc.)

3.5 Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters. By signing this
2013 Renewal, ACC certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its principles
continue to meet compliance requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, “Government-wide Debarment
and Suspension” requirements as set forth in the Agreement.

3.6 Certification and Warranty. By signing this 2013 Renewal, ACC certifies and
warrants that all certifications and warranties under the Agreement continue to be in full force
and effect. ACC also acknowledges and agrees that it has read all terms and provisions of the



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 4 of 46

Agreement and understands and agrees that, to the extent not specifically changed by this 2013
Renewal, those terms and conditions remain in full force and effect for the 2013 Renewal Term.

4.0 ATTACHMENTS.

4.1. Attachments -2013 Renewal Term. ACC and County agree that, as to the
2013 Renewal Term, section 4.2, “Attachments,” is amended to add the following:

4.2-2013 2013 Attachments. The attachments enumerated and
denominated below and attached to this 2013 Renewal as Exhibit 1 are hereby made a part
of this 2013 Renewal, and constitute promised performances by Contractor in accordance
with all terms of the Agreement as amended:

(i) 2013 Form #2 Program Cover Page
(ii) 2013 Form #3 Program Work Statement
(iii) 2013 Form #4 Program Budget
(iv) 2013 Form #5 Program Budget Narrative
(v) 2013 Form #6 Total Staff Positions and Time
(vi) 2013 Form #7 Program Funding Summary
(vii) 2013 Form #9 Performance Report Definition Tool
(ix) 2013 Financial Reports/Forms

(a) Request for Payment and Status of Fund Report
* (b) Monthly Expenditure Report

(c) Compliance Certification Form
(d) Agreement Budget Revisions Request Form
(e) Thirteenth Payment Request Form
(x) 2013 Insurance Requirements

The Parties acknowledge and agree that, where an Attachment listed above and included in this
2013 Renewal contains specific agreement as to terms which conflict with the general provisions of
the Agreement, to the extent that there is such conflict, the terms of the attachment will prevail. At
all times, every effort will be made to comply with the tenns of both sections.

5.0 INCORPORATION

5.1 County and ACC hereby incorporate the Agreement into this 2013 Renewal.
Except for the changes made in this 2013 Renewal, County and ACC hereby ratifS’ all the terms
and conditions of the Agreement, as amended. The Agreement with the changes made in this
2013 Renewal constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes any prior
undertaking or written or oral agreements or representations between the Parties.

6.0 EFFECTWE DATE

6.1 This 2013 Renewal is effective October 1, 2012, when it is approved and signed
by both of the Parties. This Agreement, as amended, shall remain in effect until further modified
or terminated in writing by the Parties, or until the termination date.



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 5 of 46

Form # 2: PROGRAM COVER PAGE Date prepared: 8/3/20 12

for 2013 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

1. Agency Name as provided in Articles of Incorporation: 2. Tax ID Number: 1-74-1742046-5
Austin Community College District

3. Program Name: Teacher and Director TRAC

4. a) Physical Street Address (Street, City, State, Zip): 5. Board President/Chair:
Austin Community College District - Eastview Campus Name: Dr. Barbara Mink
3401 Webberville Road
Austin, TX 78702 Address: Austin Community College District
4. b) Mailing Address (if different from above): Highland Business Center
Austin Community College District 5930 Middle Fiskville Road
Highland Business Center Austin, TX 78752-4390
5930 Middle Fiskville Road
Austin, TX 78752-4390
4. c) Payee Address (if different from above): Email: rfenner@austincc.edu
ACC Business Services
ACC Service Center Phone: 512-223-7613
Attn: Cashier
9101 Tuscany Way
Austin, Texas 78754
This is the maiinu address for the business offices of ACC.

6. Agency Executive Director (name): 7. Name oferson authorized to sign contracts for Agency:
Richard M. Rhodes, Ph.D. Richard M. Rhodes, Ph.D.
Phone: (512) 223-7598 Phone: (512) 223-7598
Fax: (512) 223- 7185 Fax: (512) 223- 7185
Email: rrhodes@austincc.edu Email: rrhodes@austincc.edu

8. Program Director (name): 9. Agency Financial Officer (name):
Linda Welsh, Ph.D. Ben Ferrell, V.P. Business Services
Phone: 512-223-5222 Phone: 512-223-1099
Fax: 512-225-5219 Fax: 512-223-1066
Email: lwelsh@austincc.edu Email: bferrell@austincc.edu
10. Contact person for PROGRAM issues (name): 11. Contact person for FINANCIAL issues (name):
Linda Welsh, Ph.D. Sally Gomez, Grant Accountant
Phone: 512-223-5222 Phone: 512-223-1114
Fax: 512-225-5219 Fax: 512-223-1902
Email: lwelsh@austincc.edu Email: sgomez@austincc.edu

12. Primary contact for Quarterly Program Performance 13. Person responsible for submitting Quarterly Program
Report issues (name): Performance Reports (name):
Linda Welsh, Ph.D. Linda Welsh, Ph.D.
Phone: 512-223-5222 Phone: 512-223-5222
Email: lwelsh@austincc.edu Email: lwelsh@austincc.edu
14. Program funding amounts by source: 15. Primary contact person for this contract packet (name):

Travis County Social Linda Welsh, Ph.D.
Service Contract

56 758
Position Title: Department Chair, Child Development

“_______

‘ Phone: 512-223-5222
All OTHER Sources + Fax: 5 12-225-52 19

. $ 152,071 Email: lwelsh@austincc.edu
TOTAL Program Fundmg -

$ 208,829

Travis County Form #2 updated July 2012



Conact No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 6 of 46

Form #3: PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT
for 2013 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Date prepared: 07/25/2012

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to oniy those programs and
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community.

Agency: Austin Community College District Program: Teacher and Director TR.AC

1. Program goals and objectives:
Briefly describe the goals and objectives ofthe services purchased by Travis County in this contract.

The goal of Teacher TRAC is to increase the number ofprofessionally trained early care and education
workers in Travis County.

The goal of Director TRAC is to improve the qualifications of Travis County child care directors,
permitting directors to meet Texas Department of Family and Protective Services Minimum Standards and
Texas Rising Star Director Standards through college credit coursework.

2. Program clients served:
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component ofthe program (for
example: Travis County residency, income level, age).

City and County Criteria:
Early care and education employees working and/or living in Austin and/or Travis County who have at
least 3 months experience working in a child care setting directly with young children and who have a
family income below 200% of Federal Poverty Guidelines are eligible for Teacher TRAC services
funded by the City of Austin or Travis County.

Priority for Enrollment:
To be eligible for jjj! priority, students must be:

• Child care professionals working full-time (30 hours per week or more) who live and/or work
fulltime in the City of Austin or Travis County with a family income below 200% of the FPL.

Students who meet the eligibility for first priority will then be enrolled based on the following list of
priorities:

1. Continuing Teacher TRAC participants have priority over new students. Current students
will be grandfathered related to these new priorities.

2. . Teachers who work in a child care center working with a mentor that is a part of the
QC3 project;

3. Teachers who work at a center that is a part of the Texas or Austin Rising Star System;
4. Teachers who work in a child care center enrolled in other Travis County or City of

Austin funded projects;
5. Teachers who work in a child care center in Austin or Travis County.

• Teachers who work part-time (29 hours or less per week) in the City of Austin or Travis County with
a family income below 200% of the FPL will be enrolled in the same priority order as listed above
for full-time teachers, if funding is available.

Workforce Solutions Child Care Services (CCS Criteria:
Early care and education employees who work for Worlcforce Solutions CCS centers or family day
homes or for QC3 Mentor Centers are eligible. Income eligibility requirements do not apply to students
funded by Workforce Solutions CCS.

Travis County Form #3 updated July 2012 pg. 1 of 5



Priority enrollments for Workforce Solutions CCS:

Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 7 of 46

First priority goes to students working for QC3 Mentor Centers Workforce Solutions and CCS Texas
Rising Star Providers. Special initiatives may identify other priority enrollments.

City and County Criteria:

Program Eligibility for Director TRAC

Child care center directors working in or living in Austin and/or Travis County and who have at least 3
months experience as a director or assistant director are eligible for Director TRAC services. Director TRAC
participants must meet the same income eligibility as Teacher TRAC participants. Client eligibility is
documented on the Partnership Contract.

Priority for Enrollment:
To be eligible for flrpriority, students must be:

• Child care directors or assistant directors working full-time (30 hours per week or more) who live
and/or work fulltime in the City of Austin or Travis County with a family income below 200% of the
FPL.

Directors and assistant directors who meet the eligibility for first priority will then be enrolled based on the
following list of priorities:

1. Continuing Teacher TRAC participants have priority over new students. Current students will be
grandfathered related to these new priorities.

2. Directors and assistant directors who work in a child care center working with a mentor through the
QC3 project.

3. Directors and assistant directors who work in a child care center participating in the Texas or Austin
Rising Star system.

4. Directors and assistant directors who work in a child care center enrolled in other Travis County or
City of Austin funded project.

5. Directors and assistant directors who work in a child care center in Austin or Travis County.

Directors and assistant directors who are working part-time (29 hours or less per week) who meet income
eligibility will be enrolled in the same priority levels as listed above for full-time directors and assistant
directors, if funding is available.

3. Program services and delivery:
Describe the Travis Countyfunded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide enough detail so
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehetzsive understanding ofyour services and how they are
delivered to clients.
Teacher and Director TRAC program service delivery model is as follows:

Recruitment and Application Process:
Recruitment of currently employed early care and education workers and directors employed in licensed
child care centers or registered homes in Travis County through mail outs, coordination with Workforce
and QC3 mentors for recommendations, and visits to child care centers. Interested early care and
education workers or directors submit an application and Teacher TRAC contract signed by the
individual and his or her director in the case of early care and education workers or the director and
owner or board president of the child care center for director’s applications.

Enrollment process
Eligible early care and education workers and directors are assisted in the registration and advising
processes to enroll in approved courses. Students are enrolled in courses that meet their degree plan
requirements.

Travis County Form #3 updated July 2012 pg. 2 of 5



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 8 of 46

Ongoing support
Participants are assisted in successfully completing college courses by assisting students in accessing
student success services at ACC, monitoring of students’ progress in courses and contacting students to
discuss student success strategies, including life coaching, as needed.

Stipends
Child care employees receive a $75 bonus after the completion of their first ACC course with a “C” or
above and additional bonuses of $100 after each additional 12 hours completed with a “C” or above.

Child care center directors receive a bonus of $100 after the completion of 6-9 hours with a “C” or
above.

Child Development Associate (CDA) Credential Process
Support is provided to students completing three course CDA sequence to complete the CDA application
process; the $325 application fee is paid for eligible students.

Maintain Project files and reporting systems
Files with participant’s name, address, place of employment, degree plan, Teacher TRAC contract and
record of services rendered are maintained.

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies:
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how
the agency collaborates with other agencies. Ifyou are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what is
your planfor increasing collaboration?
Quarterly planning for delivery of services to early care and education employees, including Teacher and
Director TRAC services has been ongoing through the QC3 Collaborative Mentoring Project.
Participants include leadership from Child, mc, Success by Six, Workforce Solutions Child Care
Services and AISD Careful attention is devoted to optimal delivery of services through collaboration
and coordination.

The Child Development Department of Austin Community College District and, therefore, the staff of
Teacher and Director TRAC have a long history of community collaboration. Collaborative planning for
the needs of young children, their families and their teachers has resulted in long term collaborative
partnerships and projects between ACC’s Child Development Department (and Teacher TRAC) and
other agencies regarding Teacher TRAC and the needs of early care and education providers.

Collaborative funding efforts exist between Child, Inc. and Workforce Child Care Solutions and Teacher
TRAC as well as the City of Austin and Travis County. Child Inc. provides scholarships for tuition to its
staff; Workforce Child Care Solutions gives funds to Teacher TRAC to provide scholarships to early
care and education workers employed in Rising Star vendor centers

5. OUTPUT Performance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts):
Please enter the output performance measures to be reportedforyourprogram. You must report the number of
unduplicated clients served byfunding source and at least one other output. Actual g!g] program performance
datafor these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports.

Travis All Other TOTAL
OUTPUT # 1 County Fundinc Sources (Travis County

Annual Annual Goal + All Other)
Goal Annual Goal

Number of early childhood care and education 44 116 160
teachers enrolled in college courses. (Includes
Teacher and Director TRAC participants)

Travis County Form #3 updated July 20i2 pg. 3 of 5



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 9 of 46

Travis All Other TOTAL
OUTPUT #2 County Funding Sources (Travis County

Annual Annual Goal + All Other)
Goal Annual Goal

Number of children served by early 522 1398’ 1920
childhood care and education teachers
attending college courses through Teacher
TRAC

(Ifapprovedfor additional Output measures, copy andpaste the blocks above and re-number accordingly)

6. OUTCOME Performance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual

wording of your measures’ numerators, denominators, and outcome rates):
Please enter the outcome performance measures to be reportedfor your program. For any outcome which will tzi
have a percentage rate, use only thefirst (numerator) row and edit as needed In the middle column’s shaded
blocks, include the corresponding 12-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. iLit
Outcome will NOT be reported every quarter in the right column bidiLalefor wluLh quarterly report(s) you
WILL be reportinii that measure (for example, you might reportfor Q2 and Q4 only)

Total Program lf reported

Total Program Performance — OUTCOME # 1 Annual Goal yy Quarter, in
which Quarter(s)?

Number of college courses completed with a “C” or better (numerator) 256 1s1, 3rd & 4th

Total number of college courses enrolled in Fall 2012, Spring 2013 and 320
Summer 2013 (denominator)
Percentage of courses successfully completed with a C or better (outcome rate) 80%

Total Program Performance — OUTCOME #2

Number of Teacher TRAC students who complete their CDA Marketable
Skills Award (12 college credit hours (numerator)
Th’.Tiimhet of Teacher TRAC vfntpntv enrolled in CDA in Fall 2012
(denominator)
Per nti of Teacher TRAC CDA who earn their t1h1 Skills
Award (outcome rate)

Total Program
Annual Goal

42

52

81%

If not reported
yry Quarter, in
which Ouarter(s)?

& jh Q

Total Program If reported

Total Program Performance — OUTCOME #3 Annual Goal Quarter, in
which Quarter(s)?

Number of Director TRAC participants who successfully complete two college 10
rd lb

courses (numerator) 3 & 4 Q

Number of Director TRAC participants enrolled in Summer 2012, Fall 2012. 12
and Spring 2013 (denominator)
Percentage of Director TRAC participants who complete two college level 83%
courses (outcome rate)

(Ifapprovedfor additional Outcome measures, copy andpaste the blocks above and re-number accordingly)

7. Community planning activities:
Describe your agency’s involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided
under this contract

Community planning for Teacher and Director TRAC is completed by the Teacher TRAC Advisory
Committee, which meets at least one time per year to review the program. Currently the committee members

Travis County Form #3 updated July 2012 pg. 4 of 5



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 10 of 46

represent our partners such as Workforce Child Care Solutions and Child Inc., directors of general child care
program and program participants. Additional planning for Teacher and Director TRAC is done in
conjunction with overall community planning efforts for young children, their families and their teachers

8. Program Evaluation Plan
• Performance evaluation:

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program ‘s performance in achieving program goals. Note: jfany
survey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation ofthe program or its performance, please provide a brief
description ofsurvey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom).

Teacher TRAC participants complete the annual Child Development Program Evaluation Survey which
records responses on a Likert Scale to determine instructional effectiveness and satisfaction with the Teacher
TRAC Project. Teacher TRAC participants participate in evaluation of their faculty every Fall Semester.
Participants who withdraw from courses complete a Teacher TRAC follow-up survey to determine reasons
for their withdrawal. Additionally, anecdotal reports to the Teacher TRAC coordinator and faculty are
compiled for a very “personal” view of the Project. The results of the above are presented to the Teacher
TRAC Advisory Committee and programmatic changes are made as needed. Additionally, the program is
evaluated on the achievement of stated outputs and outcomes.

• Oualitv improvement:
Describe the processfor identfyingproblems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome
these problems, andfollowing up to ensure corrective actions have been effective.

Quality improvement plans will be implemented on an as needed basis as determined by the program’s
performance in achieving Teacher and Director TRAC’s goals, as well as ratings and feedback received in
the annual Child Development Program Evaluation Survey. The Teacher TRAC Community Advisory
Committee and the Child Development Department Chair review information about the program’s
performance and make recommendations for needed quality improvement.

Travis County Form #3 updated July 2012 pg. 5 of 5

J



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 11 of 46

Date prepared: 712512012

FORM #4: PROGRAM BUDGET
for 2013 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Agency: Austin Comm unity College District Program: Teacher and Director TRAC

Instructions: Provide whole dollar amounts for each applicable line item. IMPORTANT: DO NOT INCLUDE ANY PROGRAM INCOME.

ON THIS PAGE. Note that the line items with asterisks
**

will require prior approval - Refer to your Contract Language.

IMPORTANT: All $ amounts must be whole dollars only (no cents)

Administrative Salaries Overtime

Direct Service Salaries - Overtime

Benefits

Other (specify) Books 13,000

.27.2%

2,500 15,500

-3,,

PERSONNEL

Administrative Salaries - Regular Time

Direct Service Salaries . Regular Time

r ?mountFund

OPERATING EXPENSES

General Operating Expenses 4,541 3,780 8,321

Insurance/Bonding 0

Audit Expenses (provide details for this line item in the 0
Subcontracted Expenses form)

Consultants/Contractual (provide details for this line 0
item in the Subcontracted Expenses form)

Staff Travel - within Travis County 0

Conferences/Seminars/Training - within Travis County 0

**
Staff Travel - out of County

Conferences/Seminars -

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

Food/Beverage for Clients (NOTE: Alcoholic beverage 0 0 0
expenditures are not eligible or allowable)
Financial Assistance for Clients (Completion incentives -

$3150 County/$1 800 other; CDA credential fees $3900 39,217 57,295 96,512
County;$1,625 other; Tuition $32,167 County/53,870
other

GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C

PERCENT SHARE of Total

56,758 152,0.

4-HHS 2013 Program Budget.xls

72.8%



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 12 of46

FORM #5: Program Budget Narrative
for 2013 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Agency: Austin Community College District

Date prepared: 8/3/2012

Program: Teacher and Director TRAC

Instructions: Add details below (not to exceed 20 words per line item) to justify proposed expenses from your Program Budget
form. DO NOT INCLUDE ANY DOLLAR AMOUNTS OR PERCENTAGES ON THIS PAGE. Delete the examples below
and replace them with your narrative.

PERSONNEL C: NARRATIVE .

Do not provide staff detail hero- use Total Program Staff Positions
Salaries - Regular tme md Time form #5 instead

Salaries — Overtime NA

Benefits Includes FICA, Retirement, Health Benefits

•• 44

General Operating Expenses accounting Services for Grant Management

insurance/Bonding VA

udit Expenses NA

onsultantsIContractual

Staff Travel VA

onferences/SeminarslTrng VA

Staff Travel - out of County VA

* Conferences/SeminarslTmg. — out of County VA
JIRECT ASSISTANCE ir
FoodlBeverage for Clients (NOTE: Alcoholic
everage expenditures are not eligible or

illowable) NA
Students receive scholarships to pay for tuition and cetification

Financial Assistance for Clients (e.g. rent, ées; incentives for completing first course and for completing 12
nortgage, utilities) redit hours

Other (specify) Cost of books required for courses

** These line items require prior approval — Refer to your Contract Language.

Travis County Form #5 updated July 2012



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 13 of46

Form #6: Total Program Staff Positions & Time
for 2013 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

(c

Agency: Austin Community College District
Program: Teacher and Director TRAC_

Date prepared: 08/03/2012

TOTAL PROGRAM STAFF: INDIVIDUAL POSITIONS & TIME ASSIGNED

AGENCY: List below all program staff individually by their position titles only (do not include their
names), indicate whether each is direct service staff or administrative staff and indicate the percentage of
their total time which is assigned to this specific program. IMPORTANT: If two or more staff
members with the same pnifnn title work on this prnorm, be sure to list each position separately,
with their individual percentages of total time for this program.

:. : Percent o Time
list ALL Program Positions Indrdually by Titles for this Program
Faculty Program and Grant Coordinator (Direct and Administrative) .42
Administrative Assistant III (Direct Services) 1.00

Travis County Form #6 updated July 2012



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 14 of 46

Contributions

Program Income!
Fees

p.

I I
I P

Si 5S

:.

FORM #7: PROGRAM FUNDING SUMMARY

for 2013 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Date prepared: 81312012

[ Agency Name: Austin Community College District Program Name: Teacher and Director TRAC

Funding Sources Grant/Contract Name Funding Period Funding Amount

Travis County Social Service Contract (Travis County prgm. budget) 10/1/2012 -9130/2013 $56,758

Travis County

Travis County

City of Austin Social Service Contract (City of Austin prgm. budget) 1O/112012-9130I2013 $46,000

City of Austin

City of Austin

Federal

Federal

State

State

United Way

Other (Specify) Workforce Solutions: Child Carç Services 101112012-913012013 $40,000

Other (Specify) Austin Community College

Other (Specify)

Other (Specify)

I TOTAL PROGL

$66,071

$208,829

Travis county Form #7 updated July 2012



Contract No. 4400000367

Form #9: Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans ServIce Departme5°8
2013 Performance Report Definition Tool

Austin Community College: Teacher and Director TRAC

Date Repoit was Generated: 8103/12

To assist you in completing this form, the red triangles located in the upper right-hand side of some cells provide additional instructions related to the information requested.

Ip1. *afiiwui.i-
‘A’Ailr!i1l7I[.i

)UTPUT MEASURES .

Students are counted one time based on the
Payment letters are

A small number of the Teacher TRAC -

Number of early childhood care and initial semester enrolled (Spring 2013,
generated for each enrolled

students have tuition paid by Child,
Chartene Nickels

education teachers enrolled In Summer 2013, or Fall 2013). Students may
student from the Filemaker

Incorporated, but Teacher TRAC provides
Administrative

Output #1 . Pro Teacher TRAC Database Assistant Ill with
college courses. (Includes Teacher enroll for more than one semester. A list of books. These students are In the
and Director TRAC partIcIpants) students enrolled each semester is pulled and sent to Business database. A letter is sent by Child Inc.

review by Linda Welsh
Services and Restricted Department Chair

from the Teacher TRAC Database with all of their funded students.
Accounting for processing.

. iris number will be counted upon Chariene Nickels
Number of chIldren served by early

Children in the classrooms isv ht b each
Application completed by application. The number of children

Adchniatrative
childhood care and education

g
Teacher TRAC student served bye Teacher who is in a floater

Output #2 Teacher TRAC student will be counted one . Assistant Ill with
teachers attending college courses includes data on the number position will be an average of the number

review b Linde Welsh
through Teacher TRAC ‘ of chtdren in their classroom of children In the classes in which they

D Ch Ir
orovifte unnort

epa a

)UTcOME MEASURES
,rades of i. or better are counted for each Charlene Nickels

enrolled student for each Teacher TRAC , The outcome rate will include students
Outcome #1 a Number of college courses funded course. Grades for students in Fail

Datatel (ACC s database for
enrolled in Fail 2012 who are reported in

Adniniatrative

(numerator) completed wIth a “C” or better 2012 are reviewed in January, Spring 2013
gre dofcoi-ds

the output measure for the previous iWelsh
are reviewed in May and Summer 2013 in contract period. “ambenl Chair
September.

. Charlene Nickels
. Classes enrolled in by Teacher TRAC

Total number of college courses Number of courses enrolled in by Teacher . Administrative
Outcome #lb

enrolled in Fall 2012, SprIng 2013 and TRAC students in Fall 2012, Spring 2013
Fllemaker Pro Teacher TRAC funded students for Fall 2012, Spnng

Assistant Ill with
(denominator)

Summer 2013 and Summer 2013 semesters,
database (sea output 1) 2013. and Summer 2013 are included in

review by Linda Welsh
thIs calculation. Department Chair

Outcome Rate Percentage of courses successfully .

Calculated in Excel: 2012-13 Linda Welsh,
ic completed with a C or better

numerator divided by denominator Teacher TRAC Report, Q Department Chair

Charlane Nickels

Outcome #2a
Number of Teacher TRAC students

Teacher TRAC students enrolled in CDA I
Teacher TRAC Filemaker Pro

CDA students are AdminIstratIve
who complete their CDA Marketable Database and Datatel course Assistant Ill with

(numerator)
Skills Award (12 college credit houra)

II, or Ill In Fall 2012 semester
rolls,

takes at least three semesters to review by Linda Welsh
complete the CDA sequence.

Department Chair

Chartene Nickels
Number of Teacher TRAC students who

Outcome #2b Number of Teacher TRAC students successfully complete the three course ODA
Administrative

(denominator) enrolled In CDA courses in Fall 2012 sequence (Grades of C or better for CDA I,
Datatel student records Assistant Ill with

II & Ill)
review by Linda Welsh

, Department Chair



Contract No. 4400000367
MQUiUCUOfl P 8

Outcome Rate
Percentage of Teacher TRAC CDA Calculated in Excel: 2012-13

Page 16 of 46 linda Welsh,
students who earn their Marketable numerator divided by denominator Teacher TRAC Report, ° Department Chair2c

34)kllls Award
Chailene Nickels

Number of Director TRAC students enrolled Administrative
Outcome #3a

Number of Director TRAC
in Summer 2012. Fall 2012 and Spring 2013

Datatel student records Assistant Ill withparticIpants who complete two who successfully complete two college level review by Linda Welsh(numerator)
college level courses courses Department Chair

Charlene Nickels
Administrative

Outcome #3b
Teacher TRAC Filemaker Pro

Students complete a Director TRAC
Assistant Ill with

Number of Director TRAC
Students enrolled in Director TRAC in

Database and Datatet course
application and are track in the database

review by Linda Welsh
particIpants enrolled In Summer

Summer 2012, Fall 2012, Spring 2013
rolls.(denominator)

2012, Fall 2012, and Spring 2013
Department Chair

Percentage of Director TRAC Calculated in Excel: 2012-13 Linda Welsh,Outcome Rate
3c participants who complete two numerator divided by denominator Teacher TRAC Report, Depaent Chair

3&4)olleoe ‘evel courses
LlEMGRAPblC, AND ZIPCODE REPORT

Ctiarterie Nickels
Teacher TRAC initial or Students submit an application each

AdministrativeExcel spreadsheet is created via the
renewal Application which is semester which includes updated

Assistant ill withGender, Race, Number of unduplicated dients by their
Teacher TRAC Filernaker Pro Database:

then put in the Teacher TRAC demographics. Students are counted one
review by Linda Welshand Ethnicity gender, race, mid ethnicity 2012-13 Teacher TRAC Report, Q (1-4)

Database time per year only Department Cheir

Ctiarlene Nickels
Teacher TRAC initial or Students submit an application each

AdministrativeNumber of unduplicated clients by their Excel spreadsheet is created via the
renewal Application which is semester which includes updated Assistant Ill withge age at start of program and grouped Teacher TRAC Filemaker Pro Database:
then put in the Teacher TRAC demographics. Students are counted one

review by Linda Welshinto age categories 2012-13 Teacher TRAC Report, 0 (1-4)
Database time peryear only peeet Chair

. Chartene Nickels
Teacher TRAC initial or Students submit en application each AdministrativeNumber of unduplicated clients by their Excel spreadsheet is created via the
renewal Application which is semester which includes Updated income

Assistant ill withincome Status income status at start of program and Teacher TRAC Fitemaker Pro Database:
then put in the Teacher TRAC Information Students are counted one

review by Linda Welshgrouped into income categories 2012-13 Teacher TRAC Report, Q (1-4)
Database time peryear only Department Chair

Charlene Nickels
Teacher TRAC initial or Students submit an application each AdministrativeExcel spreadsheet is created via the
renewal Application which is semester which indudes updated

Assistant lit withNumber of undupticated clients by their
Teacher TRAC Filemaker Pro Database:

then put in the Teacher TRAC address. Students are counted one time
review by Linda Welsh

Zi Code
zip coda at start of program

2011-12 Teacher TRAC Report, Q (1-4)
Database per year only Department Chair

I,.

1 .;::
‘: , S

‘S

I’ I
I -,—,— ‘S

I
J

I I



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 17 of 46

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have,
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate
insurance options shall be imposed as follows:

I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors’ Insurance.

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the
duration of the Contract.

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating
of B+ VIII or higher.

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis
County contract number and all endorsements by number.

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall
be considered primary for all claims.

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of
policies and endorsements.

H. county reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded.

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during y term of this
Contract. Contractor shall not pennit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance.

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s).

Travis County Insurance Requirements Page 1 of 3



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 18of46

II. Specific Requirements

The following requirements (II.A - II.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) performing
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’
Compensation Act.

2 Employers’ Liability limits are

$500,000 bodily injury each accident
$500,000 bodily injury by disease
$500,000 policy limit

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin:

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance

1. Minimum limit:
$500,000 per occurrence for coverage A and B with a
$1,000,000 policy aggregate

2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows:
a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract
b. Independent Contractor Coverage

3. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

4 a Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010)

* Supplement Insurance Requirement If child care, or housing arrangements for clients is provided,
the required limits shall be:

$ 1,000,000 per occurrence with a
$ 2,000,000 policy aggregate

Travis County Insurance Requirements Page 2 of 3



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 19 of 46

C. Business Automobile Liability Insurancet

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence
2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B)

t Alternative Insurance Requirement
If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to

and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of
$1 00,000/$300,000/$50,000

may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance

1. Coverage shall be provided with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services
under this Contract.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3)
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of
coverage and the extended reporting dates.

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor’s professional liability insurance
shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their
insurance policy.

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract
expires or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and hll
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date.

Travis County Insurance Requirements Page 3 of 3



INSTRUCTIONS for TRAVIS COUNTY INVOICING:

Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 20 of 46

Using the Payment Rsquestl Expenditure Report and related forms for Social Service Contracts

MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT (Comolete this form F1RSTt

1) In the “Oct Exp Rpt” spreadsheet tab, review and If needed add/correct the appropriate program and agency Information near the top. Be
sure to Include your agencs contact person name/phone/extension.

2) For the Approved Budget column F, review and if needed, contact your TRAVIS COUNTY Contract Specialist for necessary changes. Note

that all subtotals and totals will calculate automatically. The resulting bottom line total In fne 21 (cell F42) should equal the corresponding total

COUNTY-only program budget amount for the current contract term.

3) Then in the Expenditures October 2012 column. Input the actual amount for each eligible expenditure line Item (total for the October 1st

through October 31st period). Then check all amounts on the sheet for accuracy, and make sure that the correct amounts and other

Information are carded forward Info the remaining monthly “...Exp Rpr spreadsheets. As each new month Is completed In the contract term,

you will repeat this step for the corresponding month’s Expenditure Report. Be sure to verify the accuracy of all calculations and cumulative

imounts. every time you invoice.

(Check/correct this form only AFTER comoletlna the Exoendlture Reoort

These spreadsheets are designed so that the amounts in each of the 12 Payment Request omimatically calculate dfrectlyfromn the

Icorresponding Expenditure Report— this means that the two January forms are lInked, as IrOEebruary forms. etc. In addition, all of

Ithe “...Exp Rpt” and “...Pay R0q forms are linked so that the correct cumuiative arnoui, j*mabcaiiy be carded forward into the

Iaropte cells for subsequent months. IMPORTANT; MI amounts bi th. PaymentpØIhuId be calculated automatically -

main task for Payment Requests is to ygjfy that all of the amOunts greeekäIItkfldPibted correctly.

15) Verify that each “...Pay Req” spreadsheet Includes a unique lnvoló Number In hi iaded block near the top - this number Is also linked tot
Ithe Invoice number of the corresponding month’s Exp Rpt form This Number lee ä(,I,iipiieenting your agency and program, the month

Unvoiced, and ends In” 1 “to Indicate It lathe first or original invoice for any reason vou la submit a different

kpvlsed or corrected etc Invoice for that same month (which reolaces IIsiInvoice) change th.endlng number to 2
[Othat second Invoice then to 3 on the third one as needed etc

mlnder for steps 6 7 and 8 below Most Items on the Pavoient Reau4IIIOUldbI hor earrectad he sst edluitina the

4ffjqondlna ilnked data In that month s Excienditure Reoort

,Next review and (if needed) add/correct the appropriate agency and program informabon In section I IncludIng the Payment Request

I5’11ount for the month being Invoiced

7) Check and correct (if needed) the amounts in Section Ii ensunng that they are consistent with the corresponding amounts in the monthly

‘ Exp Rpt’ spreadsheets

8) Review the other “...Pay Req” spreadsheets to ensure that all of the Information Is accurately carried forward also.

ja) Toinvoice for each upcoming month rope steps 3and 5-8 listed above for the appropriate paW of monthly sheets

I

Tr.vb Co..ray HeaAh arid Ri.mian Services Veterar Services DepailrnerZ IratrucUons end forms revised Jan 2010 for Counily-Ordy use

j

“ IMPORTANT Please carefully read and follow the sleDs below In the order indicated to prepare and submit monthly invoices
ç(h electronIc Invoicin spreadsheet forms located In the adjacent tabs of this file -S-

GENERAL INFORMATION. This file contains the following spreadsheet tabs, listed from left to right:
Tab 1. ThIs InstructIons page - please pent this and refer to it often as you prepare your Invoices;

Tab 2, Budget Revision Request form, which must be completed and submItted any time such revision is needed;

Tab 3. Compliance Certification form - this completed form must be submitted with every invoice; and

Tabs 4 & abovi, The Expenditure Reports and Payment Requests (follow the detailed Instructions below ), comprised of 24 linked monthly

spreadsheet tabs (12 “Exp Rpr 8 12 “Pay Req”), beginning wIth October. NOTE: (Subject to any changes In County requirements) if you

have any unexpended funds remaining after your last regular monthly Invoice and for which you will request payment, there wilt be a

Supplemental “13th payment request” form provided separately, along with your Contract Annual Summary (formerly Close-Out)
forms.

MAiNTAINING the INTEGRITY of FORMS! LINKS: The cell formulas and embedded links among the forms have been carefully constructed
do NOT change them without consulting us first. The forms may also be password-protected, allowing you to input required data Into
appropriate cells only. If your Invoice forms need any changes, please contact your Travis County Contract Specialist for assistance:

ladonna.brazeil@co.fravis.tx.us or by phone (512) 854-7875 or sanjuana.gonzales@co.travls.fx,us or by phone at 854-4122.

Supploñ IyTnnt”i
iwfll meatiest oasnentthOapproptal

trwlse you will release any remaining unexr
any known as ‘Ciose-Out”) process



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 21 of 46

BUDGET REVISION REQUEST - SOCIAL SERVICES CONTRACTS

Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Services Department

Agency Name: Revision for TRAVIS COUNT Fund Onv
AGENCY Refer to eny

Program Name ettactiment(.) when u.In

Revision Number Contract Term Octobe 14Q12 - 80t.nthIr3O.. 2013

Eftectve Date for Revlion: (date to be effective)

Notice: the line items In this form are NOT dire - monthly ...E R”1qifls you must still Input your revised
budget line Items (when approved) Into thon• ...Exp :fãntasjiiul

iY:UU W IflU

Un. Item
Ajuaqm.ntAmt. Revised

Required? (IndcJ.+or-) Bud.t

PERSONNEL .
,‘

I Salazles-REGULARtIme . :, 0.00
2 SaIal1esIERTIME(Trav.Co.pmj*

. 4 . S 0.00

..ç . .. . .:, .. .
j.:.

:., . 0.00

.. YES 0.00

,A SUB1Qf; . — 0.00 0.00

I
.,,

0o

‘

VAL 4
! L I: Stiff T .

.

jj
12 öowy I I

13 Other(à .
J. I

14 0 ‘ 0.00

S SUBTOTAL O’fft. E4ES 000 000 I
.DIRfCTAIWANCE .1

.

15 Foodi Ba . - : .

.

I

C SUB 0.0 j’ 0.00
Jcs%LoUrI..AY . y,::.,i

19 LIst eqülpintlcaplt.)
20 0 . >. 0.00
D SU$J1QPMTJCAP,TAL .r . .OOiI.’,:’, o.oolF o.oo

., .. I

21 kTALS (A+B+il 0.00 0 00’ 000

Prepare?s Signature

.

.. :thorlz.dsliclature . : .

I I —.

.5.

. :. i

.5 . S

I
S-i

HHSD bni revl.ed f& Travis Co -ONLY use Dec 2006 p*ed 10128!2012 12:35 PM



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 22 of 46

Agen

Payment requested: month: , 20 Payment requested from: . TRAVIS COUNTY

The foowing items must be Itemized In the current approved program budget, OR written prior approval by TCHHSVS
Executive Director regarding these items must be attached to the Payment Request (Mask any that apply to this month)

— Purchase of any non-expendable propy *

* (agency must abc complete the Equipment Purchased labia, below)
— Alteration or relocation of facilities
— Out of County Travetl Conferences! Sembiars! Training
— Consultantlprofesslonal services or subcontracts
— Budget transtera over the 10% rule per contract
— None of the above apply to this month

— Compliance with Special Conditional Corrective Action Plan
— Overtime expendituree If any followed contract requirements
— Audit expenditures If any were allocated per agency funding sources per contract
— Annual Audit submitted by Service Agency p.r contract.

Transfer of Fund&Budget adjustments less than 10% made by gecy’5

(agency must attach Budget Revision request form)

Equipment Purchased:
Purchase Model
Date item Cost Number Serlsl Number Location

Travis County Purchasing Office employee, was notified of above purchases on

__________

(date)

Executive Director

For TC1IHSVS use only:
— County funds calculated accurately (to two decimals)
— County program budget not over-spent, per contract
— Fiscal ‘iar limitation not over-spent, per contract (75% Rule)
— Anm di bmisslon by S.Mce Agency p.r contract has bean verified
— CompaiiQ5Ip.cIal Conditional Corrective Action Pipn is confirmed

Attach copies of the (oliolbing lo ft.diNtIfld mark all that eppI
Pa’,nWg Rqpei. (vEdfled and eppd)
ElpdfldKIa)Oi (verified end appreved)

L. Budget•Ri4iiin form (If applicable)
‘: Rvliedl Modified Payment Riquest (If applicable)
i. Any required prior approval docwnente

I certify the Information reported herein arid attached hereto Is true, correct, and complete.
Please procefl the attached payment(s). (CertifIcation required for processing ofpayment.)

TCHHSVS Program Manager__________________________ Dale

__________

TCHHSVS Division Director______________________________ Date

___________

For TCHHSVS use only:

— Service has been received in the HTE system

— Payment Request reviewed for 1) reportIng accuracy 2) expenditures verified and 3) contract compliance.

— Annual Aurt submission by Service Agency per contract has been verified

Date

. E’

I herycetW’ that the Informabon reported on tiNe i ice o.i1o.Iqn form by parties le u. correct and complete
I ia.Ja(.d that Iii. legality ctihe pánpntl dWlei . 1 the .ccwacr(orthee. statements Please Recess the
#ti.ddpW,m.ne(s) (Pfoase note p p b edlt*h0 thu aed w1at ai’tamd to requ.si for payment)

..

.
.

. .;...::.. Date

_________________

Salgneei.cICow4 Executive Health & i4 Services led Qeiena Service)

I form revised July 2005 AudrI

Compliance Certification form — Social Service Contracts
tMPQRTANT this completed form must be submitted with each monthly Invoice

I certify the Information reported herein and attached hereto is true correct and complete
Please process the attached payment(s). (Certification required forprocessbig ofpayment.)



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 23 of 46

Agency:
Agency contact:
E-mail:

TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
trw. #1 TI 20C I I Report Period: October 2012

Program:
Phone:

Fax:
Current contract term:

Oct 1,2012 Sept.30, 2013

1 Salale
(1 rav.co.

4)

eflts
er (Specify)
TOTAL - PERSONNEL

OPERATING EXPENSES

rieral Operating Expenses

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

IC
or*renceISemlnars1Tmg.
Travis Co. 0.00

12
Conferences!SemlnarslTng out of
Travis County

0.00 0.00

14

15

0.00 0.00

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES
DIRECT AS8ISTANCE.

FodlBevege-fordients

0.00 0.00

.>md Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance

Line lb Approved Expenditures Cumulative I Budget

Budget October 2012 Expendlturos1, Balance
r:

odo coo

000
r 0.00

.. oool
,

0

-

‘ L “‘

urance!Bondlng 000 000 . LO
It Expenses (for Travis Co

7 funds Indude pro-rata share only) 000 000 0 00

8 Consultants I Contractual 000 0 00 0 00

9 Staff Travel - within Travis County 000 000 000

11 StaffTraveI-j.fTravlsCo. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ‘‘

13 Other tsoeciM 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1
0,00 0.00 0.001
o.oo o.oo

I__________________ 009 000 o4
inanclal Assistance for Clients 6

16 Comptetionlncentlves-S3150 0.00

17 Other (Specify) Books 0.00 :0:00 0.00 .[
18 000 000 000

SUBTOTAL DIRECTASSIST I 000 000 000

‘ EQUIPMTJCAPITAL OUTLAj ‘

I
6 -.

Ust Items (specify equipmt/cepit .oOO 00 000
000 000 000

“

t SUBTOTAL-EQPI(T./CAPtTAL 0.00 QQO. 0.00
RECORAfAN

6

.. PAVMEN1S
6

SIJSTOTAL.: ROitRED ,. ‘‘1’j
(00 000

. 0.00 I 0OOI1: 0.00

I - àxImunAIIóWbil
6

oo}

. .,. . •. •

Pra.’sSInitUp:
,..

. . .: Date:

Authorized SIgnaturE Date

SEONL..Y
edy Date

l I

1

‘
.

•.
.:. .•. )66.6. ...I..,...4 lflCif4 flt*

6
66

1
6

1

rravlsCo.U

•i,,. i-.. . q



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 24 of 46

Travis County Social Services Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Invoice Number:I TI 20C- I

IMPORTANT: Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance CortIfIc.tIon.fnn must be provided with this Invoice

r-; .

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYM4DATA ‘.

:: : ‘:. :, Monthear
)

October2012
Jf .

ContrIotTm PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUN1 ‘

;:

.: Octl,2012-Sept3O,2013 .,._$
:‘ . . ,. ,.

-—
,1

U

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAY’ Y

Item ravls cOUFUnds
I TRAVIS COUNTY-Funded Pro,IflQ I )
2 PrevIous Payments $O?
3 AMOUNTQTHISPAYMENTRQ4 $90

.) 4, n2pIU#hfl3) t $0 00

. . .
Fr. .

“t ,

I SECTION III - CERTWICATION. .. and the coponding ExpenRórt aordance with the
4(i* Of the dQntract I also erlfy that all Information the amounts are not In

.•.1 Jpnature TIi Date
, I.

E
k

Ig, Date

1 I

I dji•1

TNHS &V*Inancl 4Qy and Title AJI9fl4 4PPROVED
. .

. 1 . . .
II

..
. •1 . .:...c:... .1.:.:

Ceunty Account NUmb.r + laLi. Aia Vundo4umbIr rpuj4rNumber

: .;‘r”7’,’. :.: . ••;ff.

I /

1_14 -.— III —III I ILj III I ..-,-. II -.—

.,, . . :. . :,.: . .

HHSD form revised for Travis Co -ONLY use - Dec. 2006 I printed 10/26/2012 1235 PM

: £

.



Agency 2
Agency contact:
E-rnaH: 2

Program: 2
0 Phone: 0

Fax: 0
Current contract tenn:

Oct. 1,2013 - Sept. 30. 2013

Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 25 of 46

TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
mv. #:I T12NV 0 1 I Report Period: November 2012

Approved Budqet
itemLine

F

1

I

Approved
Budqet

Actual Expenditures & Balance

Expenditures Cumulative Budget
November 2012 ExpendItures Balance

- q.

0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00
, .

- 0.00 0.00 0.00 j 0.00

0.00 boo o.oo I 0.00
- 0.00 Zoo o.ppi ..., 0.00

0.00 . 0
—

........J

1 0.00

Co.

0.00

000 E
--. -1 :.Q0O 0.00 0.00 I 0.00

0.00 o.oo
. .-,Q00 0.00 0.00

j-.-.

J ooo 0.00 0.00

‘1 ;oo o.ooI 0.00

0.00
0.00
•0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

F

C,,

orn
II..

II..

• Authorized

r

Date:

__________

Date:____________

‘ ... fl,;
• • •

Date:

____________

...6..4 4flflnn.t, 4fl.nr n.j



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 26 of 46

Travis County Social Services Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST
Invoice Number[ TI2NV- 0 1 1

IMPORTANT Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice
SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

Aqency Program MOnthlYsar

November 2012

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

,Ieted by Contractor)
‘thavebee

ationi..,, .,4lscorrectandtha

h
— I_

______

I

0

0
0

0

Oct. 1 30, 2013

PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

1. TRAVISCOUNTY-’

2. Previous

SECTION II- PROGRAM BUDG AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

$0.00

3.

4. Total Payments I

5. Balance (Item 1, ii

Travis County Funds

$0.00

$0.00

SECTION III - C

—F

I certify that this Payment Request and
terms and conditions of the Contract I also cei
excess of current needs

with the
its are not in

-. .I$ & VS Financial 4

‘-

)VED

I •__

..: _ “.

I.
.

. .
HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY use- Dec. 2006 . .•. printed 10126/2012 12:35 PM

1



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 27 of 46

TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
mv. #:L T12O Report PerIod: December 2012

AgencyQ Program: Q
Agency contact: 0 Phone: 0 Current contract tenn:
E-mati: 2 Fax: 0 Oct. 1. 2012- Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved Expenditures Cumulative Budget

Budget December 2012 ExpendItures Balance
PERSONNEL

1 Salaries - REGULAR time 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

]
3 Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 Other (Specify) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
..

OPERATING EXPENSES

Genera Operating Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6 Insurance/Bonding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Audit Expenses (for Trarsis Co.

.2 . funds, Include pro-rata share only) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 Consultants I Contractual 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Staff Travel - within Travis County 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ConferencelSernlnars/Tmg. withIn

.iP . Travis Co. .0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

.ii . Staff TraveI-jTravIs Co. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ConferenceslSemlnarslTng out of

12 Travis County 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other (specify) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

14 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

:.,.:.:,. 0.00 0.00 . 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

0.00 . 0.00 0.00 1.00

Note: any amounts on line E must be Input as negative dollars (reimbursed

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

..• 0.00 0.00 . .._ 0.00 0.00

Preparer’s Signature:

Authorized Signature:

L00

Date:

Date:

IJl.IQr f...,, f,. ..fW.lI V. i... r....

Travis Co. USE ONLY: :
.

RevIewed & approved by: ,. . :... Date:

_._._a .nlnofln*n 4fl,-nc• n.j



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 28 of 46

Travis County Social Services Confract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Invoice Number TI 2DC- 0 1 1

IMPORTANT: Both an.Expehditure Report and acompllance Certification fo•must be provided with this Invoice
SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

Agency Program MonthiYoar

0 0 December2012

0 Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

10 Oct 1, 2012 - Sept 30, 2013 $0 00

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Item Travis County Funds
I TRAVIS COUNTY-Funded Program Budget $000

2 Previous Payments Requested (excludes Advance) $0 00

3 AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST $000

4 Total Payments Requested (Item 2 pIus Item 3) $000

5. Balance (Item 1, mInus Item 4) $0.00

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor)
I certify’ that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Contract I also certify that all information provided Is correct and that the amounts are not in
excess of current needs.

Authorized Signature Title Date

Preparer’ a Signature Title Date

SECTION &-I’AYMENT APPROVAL- (TRM7S CO. Staff)
Contract Manager’s SInsture Name and Title Date

IUbIU fl a

Contract Specialist

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL - (Travis County FINANCE)
TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Name and Title Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Vendor ID Number Purchase Order Number

Staff Comments:

‘‘

HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY use - Dec. 2006 pnnted 10/26/2012 12::35 PM



TRAVIS 4CItY QONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
lrw. #:I TI3JA 0 :1 Report Period: January 2013

Agency: 0
Agency contact:
E-mail: Q

n - -

..0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

r

• 0.00

OO ;:
‘

0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

• U

0

Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 29 of 46

Program: 2
Phone: 0

Fax: 0

PERSONNEL

Current contract term:
Oct. 1,2012-Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved Expenditures Cumulative Budget

Budget January 2013 Expenditures Balance

..n,,-REGULAR time
V — — .4_n,.

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0. •,.• 0.00
0 O00

0.00

1

:40

________

— ,OQ 0.00

_____________

I 0.00 0.00

Co.

vi
0.00
0.00

0.00

•1
ft Travel -

iferencesi,3emlnarsl
‘i County

0.00

.1
0.00

(specify)

•0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

_____

0.00

0.00

I

I.

0.00
tf -

I Tf1

Preparer’s Signature:

Authorized Slgflatu$)

0.00

Date:

____________

Date:

Trils Co SNLY
+

1

‘ & I Date -I
..,. . .

.... rn flfl . .‘..a 4flCI’4’ ri a



.

: .. . . . . . .
..; . ...

Contact No. 4400000367
. . . . . . . . . . . : Modification No. 8

. . , . . . . ...
: :. :. .

Page 30 of 46

Travis County Social Services Contract

.::. :. PAYMENT REQUEST
I.nvoicemer:I . TI3JA-O ... I I

IMPORTANT.: Both an Ex n ‘ e c and a Corn Ilance Ceilificatlon form must be rovldecf with this invoice

. .
.

:.:: ECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

.
en p ram MonthlYear ,,

0 .-..J” .;.., . .

. ?
I Janu ) k

‘ — 4_ . L•1

;O j I CbntractTerm 1• C

. “ ‘

, ..‘

1r
: . : : i 2012 — Sept 30, 201 3 : , $O ,

:,
: ,

: ECTION II - PR GET AND PAYME

\
. Item funds

TRAV1SCtflfriiunded Prog Rudget

2 Prevlou tRqusstod Mvanc.)

3 AMOU MErT T so
4 Total P (Itiói2pIu$Itim 3) $0 00

5 Balan - . i) ‘
$ooQ

ION iii :; rW ust be corn IetØb) Contr1cto
certify that this uest an CQrres IturO RportJiaVe been made in a with the

S and cond Contract ) .ertlfy A j1Uopmvlded t cowect and that the jnunts are not in

- ofcurr
)‘ ; k tho zod I nature ‘ I T •

4 4 1 t\4’
I * 4 ‘ ‘ . I?

,.

. i, r .. i

, nature i II II
I

;. , .

:•..

. : : ;, j... .

i
:

1h

. . : . .. , . . ••4• .i..i. ii: .

i I
1t . I

I. 4IL .

. I

I
II 14

II III IL cc,iti’ac:S
I I I I

I

JI
II II I I 1.11 •IIJ.I, rI ii I II 1)1

ENTAPPROWL- ravisCou
rn HH$8’ V Nanie and The AMOUNT *PPVED

I 1
I

•1
i c.::..:; .1.1 :.:1i,,’ I::

:.:.
.

.: .. ... .‘:.... 1.

C thEnbir Isu Area I ümbe P Order Umber

I

I j rir r

:.

:.
..

.1

j I

HHSD form revised for Travis Co ONLY use Dec 2006 pnnted 10/26/2012 1235 PM

c.

11 .111’

.,. . . 1II1ii.



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 31 of46

TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
mv. #:1 TI 3F8O:: I I Report Period: February 2013

Agency 0 Program:
Agency contact: 0 Phone: 0 Current contract term:
E-ñail: 0 Fax: o Oct. 1.2012-Sept302013

Approved Budget

item

• PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

IIv, ; i

Benefits

s Co.

Actual Expenditures & Balance

Expenditures Cumulative Budget
February 2013 Expenditures Balance

: 0.00
.. 0a0

0oO••

0.00

—

•r*’

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

4 Other (Specify) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

N

. OPERATING EXPENSES

___________ __________ ___________ __________

. neral Operating Expenses

____________ ____________ _____________ ____________

nce/Bondlng

__________ __________ __________ __________

I

enses (for Travi
• . • udepro-taaha,.,,4y’

____________ ___________ ____________ ___________

ts I Contractual

_____________ ____________ ______________ ____________

91: T

_________ _________ _________

-.

__________ __________ _________

4

__________ ___________ __________

4_1i. .

___________ ___________ __________

UY

__________ __________ ___________ _______

ecify)

_____ _____

--

___

0
;y 0.00 0.00 0.00

______

•UBJftAL-OP.EXPENSES 0.00 0.00

_____

: .

ECT ASSISTANCE

__________ ___________ ______

15 Fnt4teverage - for dierits 0 00 0 00 0 00

_______
•

•
Fisesnce tor cien

I cnipIkJcenuves - $3150 04)0 000 0 00

_______

1i dbo 0001 000

_____

.1’ O’! ..j:;N . .0O 0.021
TASSlS7 0.00 0100’ 1

_______________________________

I_

_______

Lt Items (specify equlpmtIcaplt) 0 00

________ ____________

.;IL Q 0

_______ _______

.7,’. ‘ TAL-EQPMTJc4Pf74J.
- L 0

_________ _________

•‘‘ ‘‘

1 4 Not. any Wnounts on mincE mtNb. kut as negative dollars (velflwsed)

PAYIdENT$ 1 000 000, 000 041
‘N________

I oo ooq

M8XI ‘is PlIowabIo:.]’ OOo . 0.00

,,

... ‘,:‘ .. ‘:. •..

Preparer’s Signature

_______________________________

Date “

AuorIzed Signature

______________________________

Date

___________

TIavls C. UE ONLY I

N)

ReJ9wed & appivved by______________________________________ patE N—

I
• :.

... r......i. r tiui ••
•• •••

I” a”

Line

1
2
3

Approved
Budget

.

-o.OO
0.00

0.00

‘

‘

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

“

0.00

0.00

• 0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

‘

00
. .‘0.00

••. 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
c’i;4i.

0.00

0.00,,

.o..oo

‘I,

0.00
0.00



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 32 of 46

Invoice Number:I T12’ 0
àndaCr.

N?IYesr

February 2013

-

PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

wWi the
*nts are not in

a

-

1,

Travis County Social Services Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST
I

-C,.
tf bó provided with this invoice

A

t TRAVI

/

5. Balance

.3GETPJ

et

Advance)

ARY

F

______

County Funds

$0.00

.im 2 plus Item 3)

• .••

r’4)

.1
$0.00
$0.00

)
I

eCompI

certifytha

Ii

• .: •

I

ilL

HHSDmresedforTravisco.-ONLY use-Dec2OO6 • • p,intedWl26I2Ol2 12:35PM

H • • 1 • .:i • • •.
i



.
-
.
.

-
-

_
_

-
.
:

_
_

_

-4
-

I
I Q

G)

I:

I 3 g IC C
, IC m

rn
>

>
—

a
— —

I
w

-

-

a
3

.
’

J

C
1
Q

W
Co

.

0
Ii

i

0

) 4

0 I
m CD 0 z z ‘I

I
F

11
11

ff

0

3

,-. 0
0
.

•
:

.

.:
•

: .
-. ...

0
.•

’
:
.
.

2
0

o
-
ó

ó
o

.
a

a
a
o
o

c
o

0
0
0

b
o
o
o
o

0
Q

0
:
.
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

L ) 3 3 3

0 a 0

0 a 0

0 8
0 a 0

p 0 0

0 0

0
0
9

b
o
o

0
0
0

p.
.

I.
--

0 0 0

0 0 0

0
9

9
9

0
0
0
0

.0
0

0
0

0
0

0
..

0
0

0
.

o
b
b
b
o

D
.
0

0
0

0
0

e4
-r

0 8

—I

-
, 0 z

g
O

n
•T

I

—
I
w W

<
(

o —
.

z p

o
o a’

m
—
. 0

0 0

0 0 0

0 8
0 0 0

I

0
9
9
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

Jr
0 0 0

in

0 0

0
0

0
0

0

.
8

8
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

‘1
0

0
1

0

0 0 0 c.-
)

C
,

C 3 C 0

I
0 0

0 8
-
-

0 8
0 0 0

0 0 0

0 8

1-
‘
-
:
;

—

0 8
op 00 00

U
I

CD CD

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

b
o
o
c
o

0
0

0
0
0
0
0



0
o.

• 1. •...

2.PrE

•

4

Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 34 of 46

Travis County Social Services Confract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Invoice Number:I; T’
IMPORTANT:_Both an Exoendlture Reaort and a Co

0

•MR-O 1 1
&,Ilance Certlflâltlon form must be nrovlded with this lnvolco

. SEC. ON I - NT
Agency Prm Month/Year

Oct. 1,

0. •.;
•••.. March2013

ri REQUEST AMOUNT
4r

,,2013 $0.00

)

...ntsRoqU.i

Itrn 1 minus

•,. .: County Funds
::; $0.00

$0.00

•._...it.m3)
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

tbOconipI.tödby Contractor)

nation
been made In accordance with the

ad Is correct and that the amounts are not In

I

_______• _______

ber

HHSD form revised for Travis Co -ONLY use Dec. 2006 punted 10/26/201212:35 PM



Agency: 2
Agency contact
E-mail:

Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 35 of 46

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved Expenditures Cumulative Budget

Budget AprIl 2013 ExpendItures Balance
PERSONNEL

I Salarles-REGULARtIme o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00:: 0.00 0.00 0.00
Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4 Other (Specify) 0.00 . 0.00 0.00 0.00
A SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

OPERATING EXPENSES
5 General Operating Expenses 0 00 0 00 0 00 000
6 insuranceiBonding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Audit Expenses (for Travis Co.
.

funds, indude pro-rata share only) 0.00 . 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 Consultants / Contractual 0.00 . 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 Staff Travel

- wffiIp TravIs County 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
. onrerence?t1ihsi img.

.

10 Travis Co. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 Staff Travel - out of Travis Co. ., : o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00
Conferences/SeminarsiTng out:

12 TravIs County ::.:::. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 Other (specify) : :.::

.
0.00 0.00 .. . 0.00. . 0.00

14 0 000 000 000 000
SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 000 0.00

...-

.. DIRECT ASSISTANCE . . . ... . . ..

15 Food/Beverage-forclients .. .

. 0.00:. 0.00 0.00
inanclal Assistance for Clients:

.18 Completion Incentives
- $3150 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 :0.00

:17 Other (Specify) Books . 0.00 0.00 - 0.00 0.00
. 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C SUBTOTAL: DIRECTASSIST. : 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00z: EQUIPMTJCAPITAL OUTlAY . . ... . .

.19 List items (specify equlpmt/caplt.)
. 0.00 0.00 . . . 0.00 0.00

0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
SUBTOTAL-EQPMTJCAPITAL . . 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 . 0.00

—

. RECOVERED ADVANCE
PAYMENTS Note: any amounts on line E must be Input as negative dollars (reimbursed)

: :: SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED . .

ADVANCE PA YMENTS 0.00 .0.00 .. 0.00 0.00

. OT$A++D+E)4 . 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 . 0.00.

Maximums Allowable 0.00 0.00

Preparers Signature: -

Authorized Signature:

Date:

Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: . Date:

TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
lnv. #:I TI3AP 0 1 I Report Period: April 2013

Program: 2
0 Phone: 0

Fax: 0
Current contract term:

Oct. 1,2012-Sept. 30 2013

I4I4r fn,in r*A,I f.’, ‘rroul. Cn JlM • . •flf• DII



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 36 of 46

Travis County Social Services Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST
Invoice Number:[. .• .:T1 3AP- 0 I

IMPORTANT: Rnth n FvnAnr1if,m #.nrH nd a Comiliance Ce4lflcatlon form must be orovided with this Invoice

Il-CURRENT PAYMENT DATA
Agency Program MonthlYear

0 0 AprIl2013

C) Contract Temi PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT
‘I

Oct 1,2012- Sept 30, 2013 t $0 00

SECTION ii - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Itm Travis County Funds
I TRAVIS COUNTY-Funded Program Budget $000
2. Previous Payments Requested (excludes Advance) $0.00
3 AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST $000

--

4. Total Payments Requested (item 2 plus Item 3) $0.00
5.. Balance (item 1, mInus Item 4) . $0.00

.,

F SECTION III - CERTIFICATH.,.
L

be completed by Contractor)
Ji certify that this Payment Request and the corresponcllture Report have been made In accordance with the
teunsandconditionsofthe Contract I also certify tht Ihftrrfltion provided is correct and that the amounts are not in

.

‘I
: JtIe . .. Date .

r

:

__

L
I.. SECTION V - PAYMENTPROVty FINAj’ .

rC HHS & VS Financial Approval Name I
— — II I ..

..CountMcONiflbár .::.. .jsUWArft . .; .

I 1t
. .& .—q

‘ii.uUI u i17T V

..‘....
......v

. ::.. . . . . .
.—

HHSO form revised for Travis Co -ONLY use Dec 2006
‘‘

pnnted 10126/2012 1235 PM



Agency
Agency contact:
E-mail: 2

• Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 37 of 46

0.c
I———”——

0.00
0.00
0.00

it as negative dollars (reimbursed)

Authorized Signetur.

___________________________

TravlsCb USE’ONLY
Rb)ewed approved by:

i.ii.ir 1...,.., ,.A..A (.. T...... (‘.. r,.u ., . ..,. r •••_.._4 4flnflflSfl4 *1 A flat vi.. -

TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
lnv.#:I TI3MA 0 1 I Report Period: May2013

Program:
0 Phone: 0

Fax: 0
Current contract term:

Oct. 1, 2012-Sept. 30,2013

‘I

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Une Item Approved Expenditures Cumulative Budget

Budget May 2013 Ires Baiàñce

[ PERSONNEL
Saries-REGULARtime 000 000 000 000

IIV)c IdV.4J. n r

C )

0.00

C

ii

)

0.00 0.00
0.0Q. - 0.O0 0.00
0 06- . •. . 0.00 0.00

Oo:r o0Q o.oo

—

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00)
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

Pt

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

3

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

flflR

0.00
0.00

;:.
,i.—::i

0.00
0.00
0.00

0:00 0.00

0

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

)

)
1

0.00 I o.oö



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 38 of 46

Travis County Social Services Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

• rr

Invoice Number:I TI 3MA- 0 I

IMPORTANT: Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance CertIfl4atIOhbrm must be provided with th!4nvoice
SECTO4J- CURRENT PAYMENTDATA .‘.

Agency Programf :. ‘ MonthlYoar ‘ “

0 0 :t May2013
I Q’1fi

0 Contract PAYMENT REQEJEST AMOUNT
0

4 -;1 ,.,. t

Oct 1 2012 - 2013 $0 00
II ii

.a.,,;,,.,,., ,..

SEcTIQNflr.PRoRAM 3uDotANpp1MØartJMMARY

______________________________________

Travis Cou,4yUnds
I TRAVIS COUNTYF1_p1)Qram Budget

_________________________

44 ‘.

2 Previous Payments udes Advance) ..

3 AMOUNT OF THIS PAYME QUEST $
4 Total Payments Requested (hem 2 pIus Item 3) $0 od ‘j

S Balance (item 1, mInus Item 4) $0 QQt

SECTION Ill - CERTIFICATION (*stbe completed by Contractor
Payment Request and the corresponding jeport have been made IflXafl(ith the

tenns alidpo Wons of the Contrect I also certify that all InformatIn PMided Is correct and that Omornfs are not in

/

,

. ., ,. .

tiil iiij4ç I44II
.11 I .1.1.11’ I ‘‘‘‘ I

Càu CE)
TC HHS4 flflan4ilAPpioval Nai.d flu. I, . 1 iPiOWrr APPROVED

.

.

. .....,

Number b$uiAiu. 1 PUHOer Number
i :

,.

Staff Comments WI

T

HHSD form revised for Travis Co ONLY use - Dec. 2006 prInted 1012612012 1235 PM

4
,

1 1.



Agencyg
Agency contact:
EmaII: Q

Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 39 of 46

Current contract term:

Oct. 1, 2012- Sept 30,2013

1.;’.

:. Reviewed. provea L

WI-Nfl In,,., ,u..a4 In, Tr.. (‘n JIMI V ... -

U

a

Date:

Date:’ ,‘

i,
‘I .. ...a.J •aflofln4fl 4t.’e flu

TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
mv. #1 T32JN 0 1 Report Period: June 2013

Program: Q
0 Phone: 0

Fax: 0

Approved
Budget

Actual Expenditures & Balance

Expenditures
Jun. 2013

Cumulative
Expenditures

Budget
Balance

1



Travis County Social Services Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST
Invoice Number:I. TI 3JN- 0 ‘1

- 1

Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 40 of 46

IMPORTANT: Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification fdnn must be provided with this Invoice

SECTION I- CURRENT PAYMENT DATA
Agency Program MonthiYear

0 0 June2013

0 Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

10 Oct. - Sept. 30,2013 $0.00

SECTION II - PROGR$I BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

item Travis County Funds

I TRAVIS COUNTY-Funded Prograi* Budget $000

2. PrevIous Payments Requested (excludes Advance) $0.00

3. AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST $0.00

4 Total Payment. Requested (Item 2 pIus Item 3) $of
5. Balance (Item 1, mInus Item 4)

SECTION III - C3i CATION (Must be completed by Contractor)

I certify that this Payment Request and th . ponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the

terms and conditions of the Contract. I aIcöitIfy that all information ppJded Is correct and that the amounts are not In

excess of current needs.
AuthorIzed SIgnature . TI*. Date

____

Date

___

CO. staff)

I

‘
lit!. Date

peciahst

i .. i;:
SECNV - PAYMENT 4J1sJunty FINANCE)

TC I* S VS Financial 4vI Nd Title - Date APPROVED

CuntyccpuntNumbor IiauIAr’ Vend clbkumb.r UihsiOrderNumb.r

____

I A

HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY use - Dec. 2008 . . printed 10126/2012 12:35 PM



Agency
Agency Contact
E-mail: Q

Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page4lof46

TRAVIS C9UNTYCON RACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
lnv.#: TI3JLO :i:.j •c•ReportPeriod:Juiy2013

Program: &
0 Phone:0

FaxO
Current contract term:

Oct. 1,2012- Sept. 30,2013

2
3

Approved Budget
-

. ,. Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved’ Expmiciltures Cumulative Budget

Budget .. J$ 013 Expenditures Balance
z:i PERSONNEL ..

J Salar1esREGULARtJme O.óO. . 0.00 0.00 0.00
aIii—,v I IIVI I

B

•

...

3•••

. 0.00 . . o.oo
000 000

__________

0.00 . :1 .: 0.00

____________

0.00 . 0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

: .

0.00.. : 0.00

r Travis Co.
:0.00

•1.

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

)

0.00

..0q00.

0.00

0’oa

F
)

0.00
0.00

:.:::.; 0.00
0.00

0.00
••.. 0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

n r 0.00

.•.c
0.00

) )

QO.

r

[., ,. iaxlmums AIlowa._,’[

)

I—

11

Preparer’s Signature

______________________________ ___________

Authorized Signature - - ‘ I Date

__________

- win fnr,n tAs,kDd frw ntJi V - n- . ..

Date: • .‘

;;:::

::: . .•
•.. .;:...!.....

RVewed & approved by

_______________________________

Date

____________

lfll)CI’)fl4 4).W *



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 42 of 46

Travis County Social Services Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST
Invoice Numberf TI 3JL- 0

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA
AQency Progrwi MonthiYear

July 2013

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

Oct. 1, 2012- Sept. 30, 2013 $0.00

. .

Travis qojay Funds

IMPORTANT: Both an E.pend(tureRebótf and a Compliance Certification fonnniust be provided with this invoice
I

0’

0’,

0

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

I.—.

I TRAVIS COUNTY-Funded I

2 i knit I ayments
3.L_...__..

4. Total Payn

nce)

5.

Icertify!
ltm5

.,...-—J

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

Contract. I also carl

‘

.j

ctor)
de in accordance with the
that the amounts are not in

Date

HHSD form revised for Travis Co -ONLY use - Dec. 2008 pnnted 10/26/2012 1235 PM



udIt Expenses (for Travis Co.L....ds Indudepro-rata share onM

eminarsi ‘mg.

TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT

mv. #:[ TI3AG 0 1 I Report Period: August2013

Agency 0 Program:
Agency contact: 0 Phone: 0 Current contract term:

E-maü: Q Fax: 0 Oct. 1, 2012- Sept. 30, 2013

Contract No. 4400000367 N

Modification No. 8
Page 43 of46

Approved Bud Actual Expenditures & Balance

Line Item Approved Expenditures Cumulative Budget

‘
.‘ August 2013 ExpenditUres Balance

PERSONNEL
.,.:,

.:.:.. ‘

I Salaries - REGULAR tIme 000 000 000 000

i: 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 Benefits 0O0 000 000 000

1 bther (Specify) .“‘ô0Qi: ‘; 0.00 0.00 0.00

SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL . 0.00 ‘f’.
. 0.00 0.00 0.00

OPERATING EXPENSES

: neml Operating Expenses L 0.00: ‘ 0.00 0.00 0.00

6 Insurance/Bonding .0.00 0.00’ 0.00 0.00

0.00

-.....
..,O.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

:)Q 0.00 0.00 0.00

••. 0.00 00 —

: 1 Isuants / Contractual b.oo
,

‘ 91 :, Staff Travel - within

‘ .
1’

.
Conference/S 1 IUhii.

. . ,.

‘
Travis Co.

, ,..

. ‘fj StaffTraveI-utofTravIsCo. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

.

.

ConferencesISeminarVtng
‘. 4 12J Travis County .. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

‘Qther(specIfy) 4)00 000 000, 000

J.41 000 000[ 000

. -. .. . OTAL - OP. EXPENSESF 0.00 .
0.00

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

, ,
. . oøo/ Bevera9e - for diente 0.00

al Assistance for Clients
tion Incentives - $3150 O.QO 000 1 0 00

-.,.

‘ 0.0”. 0.00

: . x.’.. o.O’ , . o.W o.ooj. “ o.oo

, A AIRECTASST. ‘‘j’ 0. . 0.00 o*1, . 0.00

t .:‘‘
. ,

,
kuia 0 o 0° 0 00

‘:: . :‘

‘ ‘ 0.00 ‘,‘:

‘‘

ooOi
SMBT’4Lr 14Pl1’4 000 000 000

SUBTOT
MENTS Nob aiI8On nEmust be Input as

i
ADVANCEI 000 000 000j

: 21 c. ‘:: .:oQp

“.. .
. 0,00 , ooo [

Mthemu,,s 000 000

:.,
. ..

Pr.par.r’s Signature Date

.: ,

.. :‘..

. ‘V’E

Authorlzd Slgnaturr Date
.

. :;:•.‘. “;:.. ‘ . .. ....

rra1s Co. USE ONLY:
R4Wed & approved by Date

‘ uwr (..... f..,. T.,.... (“ kIl V ••__, ‘ q.V* ‘ •‘ . “
. :‘ .“ ,

‘‘ : 4flfrOSfl%4 4 ‘I.’t

( c



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 44 of 46

Date

Travis County Social Services Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Invoice Number:I TI 3AG- 0 1 I
IMPORTANT: Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this Invoice

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA
Agency Program MonthlVear

0 0 August2013

0 Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

lo
Oct. 1, 2012 - Sept. 30, 2013 $0.00

L______

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET ANóPiYMENT SUMMARY

Itn, .7ravIs County Funds
I TRAVIS COUNTY-Funded Program Budget . : $000

2 PrevIous Payments Requested (excludes Advance) $000

3 AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST $0 00
4 Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)

5. Balance (Item 1, mInus Ite4)
.

I SECTION III - CERfl{GAliON (Must be áompleted WCintractcr)
Ifirtlfy that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the

j$and,conditions

of the Coact. I also cek that all Informaon proved Is corre and that the amounts are not In

IOe9otcuflent needs

________________ _____ __________ ____________________

Signature —

:..:Piiparer’ s

____ ____ __________ ______

Date

R0VED

I r H;—

______________________________

I

HHSD form reised for Travis Co -ONLY use Dec 2008 printed 1012612012 1235 PM

,



Contract No 4400000367
Modflcation No 8
Page45of46

TRAVIS C fl(OTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
mv #1 TI3SP 0

___________

Report Period September 2013

Agency: 0
Agency contact:
E-mail: 2

0
Program: 2

Phone: 0
Fax: 0

Approved
4Budet

Current contract term:
Oct. 1,2012- Sept 30, 2013

ExpendliurOs CumutatIve:..
SeMembe! 2013 EXDOfldftUrOI.?

S.

,J_•_____

-

.[:::.:O.O0
• :.

0.00

0.00

,.,

. .. 0.00

only) .1 0.00

...

.ooo:t

-.

0.QO

,.-p;’ ,i.. .
4:11’ 0.00

..

0.00

0.00
0.00.

:t 0.00

0.00

.0a
0.00

.5

—

0
;k1i

0.00

0.00

! 0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

I I Budget Actual ExpendIWI08&BSjince

I Line Item

1- i L PERSONNEL c.. E ;R

I I jades - REGULAR time %‘ 5 0 00 0 00 1 0’00

U 21 ;‘ ob0 oool 0 000

Ih1flts 0 00 022,1 0 000

. ,. . ..,. : 4!: k
S $TAL - PEASo(

T-T9:I r DkTING

I!

t 6WhBo
. ,

::‘
:ien898 5I_.

. : Indude pro-rata shari . .
—

.
5! ‘ICOnsuitants I Contractual

I

I IerenceIemlfla1 mg..
101 jTraIsCo.

iii IStaffTravel2VfTra5c0.
I I

• ., 121 ITri$øi 0.00 0O. 0.00 0.00

0OQ. 000

f I & ogç O.0OI o.o. oo

S€ö’ EXPENSES 000 0,001 0Q 0

. .

,,,.I . “I .;
:..

.

. .,

.. .... ,. — -i-l5F 000 000 0 000
5

16 4350 000 0 0 0 OO
ooGl# Q00 ooO go
IO 000 0

i 0 00. o.oo pr

: ..
.
,.

, - 1,. . 1 9 .
1

.‘ 5 II 1’I

iJ*t ifl* 000,. II 00(L I’ 000

.: :y,.:

: ::a:hi.j, e6 I
‘. .5

t SU8tO1AL f4L 000 000 I 000
• .

. ,:, . -
. .

. . . . ,. .

.-

I

21
j

Mote

MaxIImSAIóWil1

. Q,OO

Preparer’s Slgnatur:____________________________
Date —

AuthO1ZOdSI9flátU11 I
Dat.,

TraVIS Co UONLY.’ I

I Rev4ed &
r

I
—

. I.:.
&1 wwqn MI V ,.. I’ i’I :;.. ., i... . .. . .*

I

I.

:....
.



Contract No. 4400000367
Modification No. 8
Page 46 of 46

September 2013

PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$000

Travis County Social Services Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST
Invoioe Number:l TI3SP- 0 1 I

0

0

IMPORTANT:. Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form mustbe provided with this invoice

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA
Agency Program Month/Year

.‘

0

Contract Term

Oct. 1, 2012 - Sept 30,2013

1. TRAVIS COUNTY-Funded Pr

- .:..SCTIoN fl-PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAMUfr8üMAfy.

I5

item Y4#W(ounty Funds

2. PrevIous Payments Reque

3. AMCUNTOFTH)SPA
S .a.. L_.._....._. _.....L.._ fl —

-.4

ST

Advance)

__________________________________________

[jis Item 3)

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

atedby Contractor)
a been made In accordance with the
:t:t and that the amoüñts are not In

I

____ ____

:
I

411

HHSD form revised for Travis Co -ONLY use Dec 2006 pnnted 10(26/2012 1235PM

1
. .. •. i ,. .• . . . •‘.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, November 27, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve twelve-month extension (Modification 
No. 12) to Contract No. 4400000011 (HTE Contract No. 03T00058OJ), 
Alliance Work Partners, for the Employee Assistance Program for 
Travis County employees. 

 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

The contract provides the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) for 
Travis County employees.  The Commissioners Court approved the 
contract for the EAP on November 19, 2002. 
 
This Modification No. 12 will extend the contract for the EAP with 
Alliance Work Partners for an additional twelve months, through 
November 30, 2013.  The contract rate will remain $1.13 per employee 
per month, with up to five (5) visits per incident, and includes 50 hours of 
training per year.  HRMD estimates headcount to be 4500 employees for 
this contract. 

Modification No. 11 extended the contract period for an additional twelve 
months, through November 30, 2012.  It was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on November 22, 2011. 

Modification No. 10 extended the contract period for an additional twelve 
months, through November 30, 2011.  It was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on November 30, 2010. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 17



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

Modification No. 9 extended the contract period for an additional twelve 
months, through November 30, 2010.  It was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on October 20, 2009. 

Modification No. 8 extended the contract period for an additional twelve 
months, through November 30, 2009.  It was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on November 11, 2008. 

Modification No. 7 extended the contract period for an additional twelve 
months, through November 30, 2008.  It was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on November 27, 2007. 

Modification No. 6 extended the contract period for an additional twelve 
months, through November 30, 2007.  It was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on October 16, 2006. 

Modification No. 5 extended the contract period for an additional twelve 
months, through November 30, 2006.  It was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on November 22, 2005. 

Modification No. 4 extended the contract period for an additional twelve 
months, through November 30, 2005. It was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on September 21, 2004. 

Modification No. 3 incorporated an Assignment of Contract that changed 
the contractor’s company name from Workers Assistance Program to 
Alliance Work Partners. It was approved by the Commissioners Court on 
June 29, 2004. 

Modification No. 2 extended the contract period for an additional twelve 
months, through November 30, 2004. It was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on October 14, 2003. 

 Administrative Modification No. 1 was issued on December 10, 2002, to 
correct the contract number. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last twelve (12) months $54,240.00 
has been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: $61,020.00 (Estimated amount) 

Modification Type: Requirements   

Modification Period: December 1, 2012 to November 30, 2013 
 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart # / Funds Reservation #: 300000432 

  Funding Account(s):  

  Comments: 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

DATE:  October 19, 2012       

TO:  Cyd Grimes, County Purchasing Agent 
  C.W. Bruner, CTP, Purchasing Agent Assistant IV 
VIA:  Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
FROM:  Diane Poirot, HRMD Director 

SUBJECT: Contract No. 4400000011 (H.T.E. Contract # 03T00058OJ) 

  Employee Assistance Program 
 
 
The Human Resource Management Department (HRMD) has reviewed and evaluated the above 
referenced contract. It has been determined that the professional services related to the Employee 
Assistance Program, Contract Number 4400000011, have been provided at a level that merits the 
contract’s extension.  The contract rate will remain $1.13 per employee per month, with up to five 
(5) visits per incident; and, includes 50 hours of training per year.  We anticipate a change in the 
contract amount based on the increase in employee headcount from 4000 to 4500.   

Travis County employees and managers continue to benefit from the quality of counseling, 
mediation, and training services.  In addition, the availability to access the EAP for 5 visits per 
incident/issue helps to reduce the claims to the group health benefit.  Therefore, please initiate the 
extension of this contract to the next option year ending November 30, 2013.  The contract will 
continue to be funded from the fourteen digit account number 001-1130-522-6401 and service has 
been included in the FY12 budget. 

 
cc: Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 

Kim Austin-Smith, HR Manager 
   
  
/krn 

 

HRMD 

Human Resources Management Department 

  700 Lavaca, 4
th
 Floor P.O. Box 1748 Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX (512) 854-4203 • • • 

 



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: 03T00058OJ Employee Assistance Program (EAP)            Page 1  of 1  

Page  

                                                     (SAP # 4400000011) 
 
ISSUED BY: 

 

PURCHASING OFFICE 

700 LAVACA STREET, 8TH FLOOR 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST: 

 

CW Bruner 

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9760 

FAX NO:    (512) 854-4211 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

 

November 19, 2012 

 
ISSUED TO:                       1000003797 

Alliance Work Partners 

Attn: Terrence R. Cowan 

2525 Wallingwood Dr., Bldg. 5 

Austin, Texas 78746 

MODIFICATION NO.:  

12 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 

CONTRACT:  

 

November 19, 2002 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  December 1, 2002 - November 

30, 2003 

CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  December 1, 2012 - November 

30, 2013 
 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY: Original Contract Amount: $49,971.00 Current Modified Amount $61,020.00. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document 

referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  
 

Recitals 

County Commissioners Court has reviewed the services provided under this contract and found that the services are 

professional services.  On September 5, 2006, Commissioners Court ordered this contract exempt from the County Purchasing 

Act as professional services.   In modification 6 the contract was amended to allow County to exercise annual options. 
 

Agreement 

County exercises its tenth option to extend this contract for one additional year. The tenth option commences December 1, 

2011.  During the tenth option year, County selects five as the maximum number of visits allowed per incident. 
During the tenth option year, County shall pay Contractor $1.13 per employee per month for the full Employee Assistance 

Program Services with up to five (5) visits per incident for 4,500 employees and 50 hours of training.  In Addition the County 

shall have included and receive at no extra cost Help Net Standard. 
 

County and Alliance Work Partners hereby incorporate this amendment into the Alliance Work Partners Services 

Agreement, County and Alliance Work Partners hereby ratify all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement as 

amended. 
 

Upon execution of this modification, the Contract as previously amended is modified effective December 1, 2012. 
 
Note to Vendor:  

[ X ] Complete and sign your portion of the signature block section below for all originals and return all signed originals to Travis County. 

[    ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:  Alliance Work Partners    

 

     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 

     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 

 

TITLE:            

            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT  

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

     BY:            
            CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT  

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

     BY:            

 
DATE: 



            SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE 

 



Travis County Commissioners Court Aaenda Reauest 


Meeting Date: November 27,2012 
Prepared By: Steve Sun Phone #: 854-A6~ 
Division Director/Managep:~!:'Wvrt Public Works Director 

Department HeadlTitle: Steve . Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests: 
A) Approval of the Amended Guidelines for Public/Private Partnerships for Circle 
Drive at US 290 Intersection Improvements project; 
B) Approval of an Advance Funding Agreement with Texas Department of 
Transportation for Circle Drive at US 290 Intersection Improvements project; and 
C) Approval of a Resolution supporting the Advance Funding Agreement with Texa 
Department of Transportation for intersection improvements at Circle Drive at US 
290. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Circle Drive at US 290 Intersection Improvements is a voter approved 2011 Bon 

project. It is a safety improvements project for the intersection. The scope of wor 

includes: realignment of Spring Valley Road to match Circle Drive at US 290, addin 

paved shoulders, acquisition of additional Right-of-Way, and construction of rigt 

turn lanes. Per this Advance Funding Agreement, Texas Department ( 

Transportation will conduct a traffic signal warrant study after County's completion ( 

the road realignment works at the intersection. If the traffic meets the sign, 

warrants, Texas Department of Transportation will design and construct the traffi 

signal at the State's costs. The Guidelines for Public/Private Partnerships f( 

Transportation Projects approved for 2011 Bond projects has been modified for thi 

project. This modification is necessary so that this project can enter into a 

agreement with Texas Department of Transportation to meet the covenants of th 

2011 bond projects. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

TNR and County Attorney's Office recommend approval of a) the Amende 

Guidelines for Public/Private Partnerships for Transportation Projects, b) Enterin 

into the Advance Funding Agreement with Texas Department of Transportation f( 

the intersection improvements at Circle Drive at US 290, and c) a Resolutio 

supporting the Advance Funding Agreement with Texas Department ( 

Transportation for intersection improvements at Circle Drive at US 290. 


zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 18



ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

Construction plans for the intersection improvements have been completed an 

Texas Department of Transportation has issued an access permit for construction ( 

these improvements. Acquisition of Right-of-Way is underway_ These intersectio 

improvements along with future traffic signals will improve the safety of this segmer 

of roadway. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

County will be responsible for design, construction and maintenance ( 

improvements on the local roads while Texas Department of Transportation will b 

responsible for design, construction and maintenance of traffic signals an 

associated works within the state highway system. Funding for County's intersectio 

improvements is available from the 2011 bond funds for US 290/Circle Driv 

Intersection Improvements project. State highway access permit fee has been pai( 

Funds reservation for construction of the intersection improvements will be mad 

after a successful bid is accepted and recommended for Commissioners Cou 

approval. 


EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 

Amended Guidelines for Public/Private Partnerships for Transportation Projects 

Advance Funding Agreement 

Resolution 

Location Map 


REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 


Cynthia McDonald 
Steve Manilla 
Tom Nuckols 

Financial Manager 
County Executive 
County Attorney 

TNR 
TNR 
Attorney's Office 

854-4239 
854-9429 
854-9415 

Jessica Rio Budget Director PBO 854-4455 

cc: 

I Steve Sun Assistant PW Director TNR 854-4660 
I Donna Williams-Jones Financial Analyst Sr TNR 854-7677 
Tony Valdez Sr Engineer TNR 854-7567 

0101 - Administrative Svs



RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, Travis County and the Texas Department ofTransportation desire for 
certain improvements to be made at the intersection ofU.S. Highway 290 West and Circle 
Drive; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Travis County Commissioners Court approves the 
attached Advance Funding Agreement (US 290 Wat circle Drive). 

Approved on the ____ day _______, 2012. 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge 


Ron Davis Sarah Eckhardt 
Commissioner, Precinct One Commissioner, Precinct Two 

Karen Huber Margaret Gomez 
Commissioner, Precinct Three Conunissioner, Precinct Four 

111160-1 234. 



11/20/2012 Proposed Amendment 

2011 TRAVIS COUNTY GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS: 

GUIDELINES FOR PUBLIC/PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS 
FOR TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS 

Overview 

In a public/private partnership, a private party may contract for the engineering and 
construction of a road segment and be reimbursed by the County for a share of the costs; 
or the County may contract for the engineering and construction of the road segment and 
pay for a share of the costs with funds contributed by a private party. 

Milestones 

County bond funding for each project will be conditioned on that project meeting certain 
milestones. If a project fails to make progress towards completion according to the 
milestones, the County may withdraw funding and re-direct it to another project. 

Land Ownership & Security for Private Share of Costs 

Private parties are expected to arrange for the donation to the County of all property 
interests required for the project, including rights-of-way and easements for slopes, sight 
distances, stormwater, etc. Therefore, private parties should own, control, or be able to 
acquire all the land within a project's limits. In a limited number or unique cases, the 
County may be willing to use eminent domain to acquire outparcels, provided the private 
parties bear the ultimate cost. 

Also, the private share of project funding must be secured by a cash deposit, bond, letter 
of credit, public improvement district assessment, special district tax or assessment, 
restrictive covenant, or other form of funding or security acceptable to the County in its 
discretion. 

Securing right-of-way and the private party's financial commitment at an early date will 
be two of the key milestones on which bond funding is conditioned. This ensures that the 
County will be able to proceed with the project regardless of either a change in ownership 
of the land or a negative change in the financial status of the land owner. 

General Criteria 

1. 	 All candidate projects must be arterials in the current CAMPO ~ Plan. 

2. 	 All candidate projects must result in construction of a viable segment of roadway 
that, standing alone, is fully functional and usable by the public even if no 
subsequent segment is added in the future. 

Page 1 of 3 



11/20/2012 Proposed Amendment 

3. 	 County bond funding may not be used to pay for the portion of a project that a land 
owner is obligated to pay for or build as a requirement of being granted 
development entitlements for the land. 

4. 	 Projects must not result in additional traffic loads being directed onto existing road 
segments that are substandard. 

5. 	 The County will consider the phased construction of a multi-lane projects. 
However, the first phase must result in at least two lanes being completed for the 
full length of the ultimate project. Also, requirements for securing the private share 
of the project cost may be more stringent for phased projects. 

6. 	 The County will pay no more than half of all engineering and construction costs. 
Construction costs will include bridges, utility relocation, road-related storm water 
detention and water quality ponds, landscaping, and pedestrian and bicycle 
facilities. The County will pay up to 80% of the cost of bridges and box culverts if 
County design standards require them to be 100 feet or longer, measured along the 
centerline of the road. 

7. 	 The County will define the project engineering design standards; define and 
approve the scope and terms of the engineering contracts, including the amount and 
coverage of professional errors and omissions insurance; and review and approve 
the engineering construction plans and specifications. 

8. 	 If a private party contracts for engineering and construction, procurement processes 
substantially similar to the County's procurement processes must be followed. The 
project engineer must be selected based on qualifications rather than low bid. The 
construction contractor must be selected based on a competitive bidding process. 
The County's goals for Historically Underutilized Businesses must be met in for 
both engineering and construction procurement. Final selection of the project 
engineer and construction contractor are subject to County approval. 

9. 	 A candidate project is expected to include city participation if any part of it is 
inside the city limits, an area included in a three year municipal annexation, an area 
subject to an annexation agreement, or a "near-term annexation areas" of the City 
of Austin under §30-1-21 (5), AustinlTravis County Subdivision Regulations. City 
funding should be roughly proportional to the relative portion of the road segment 
that is in anyone of these areas. The cost of any unique features or design 
requirements that result from special city requirements must be born entirely by the 
city or the private party. Written commitments from a city will be required prior to 
the Commissioners Court vote to call the bond election. 

10. 	 In lieu of the foregoing cost sharing, the County and a private or public partner 
may agree that the County will make certain improvements to County maintained 
transportation facilities in exchange for the partner making certain improvements to 
related non-county public transportation facilities. The improvements must 
combine to provide enhanced level of service, safety, congestion relief, or access to 

Page 2 of 3 



11/20/2012 Proposed Amendment 

schools, parks, affordable housing, transit oriented development, alternative 
transportation modes, or similar community benefits. The level of each party's 
contribution to the project must be proportionate to the level of enhancement it 
contributes to overall project functionality. The private or public partner's 
improvements need not be to facilities in the current CAMPO Plan. 

Page 3 of 3 



~ 
N 

g .
' > 

~ 
9 

t 
3 
~ 
8 

~ 
~ 

~ 

CIRCLE DRIVE/US 290 

INTERSECTION SAFElY IMPROVEMENTS 


30 M.P.H. DESIGN SPEED AASHTO e=4.00%(MAX.) 
TRAVIS COUNlY PRECINCT 3 

AT US 290 
INDEX OF SHEETS 

1 CO\IlOR SHEET 
2·3 TYPICAl. SECTIONS 
'I GENERAL Nones 

NET LENGTH OF PROJECT = 875 FEET 
5·10 STORMWATEI'I. POll.U1'lON PREVENTION PlI\N 

11 SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES 
12 SITE LAYOUT 
13 SEQUENCE 01' MRI( 110 TYPICIIL SECTIONS 
14 TAAFFIC CON1ROlPLAH 

CONSTRUcnON PLANS 

FOR THE REAUGNING OF SPRING VALLEY ROAD TO THE INTERSECT10N OF 
15 HORIZONTIILIILIGNMENT DATA 

US 290/0RCLE DRIVE, ACQUIRING ADDmONAL ROW, RE-CONSTRUcnON 1(\·11 TREELOCilTlONPLAN 
lB.l0 REMOVAL PlANOF EXISTING ROADWAY, CONSTRUCTlNG RIGHT-TURN LANE, ADDING PAVED 20·24 ROACWAY PLAN' PROFILE 
2~ INTERSECTION OETAILS 
28 DRIVEWAY OETAILS 
27 TRAFFIC SIGNAL LAYOUT 
28 ORAINAGEAREA MAP EXISTING 
29 ORAINAGEAAEA MAP PROPOseD 
30 CULVERT PLAN &PROFILE 

31·32 STORMIMITER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN LAYOUT 

SHOULDERS, DRAINAGE AND LANDSCAPING. 

33.34 	 SIGNING 110 STRIPING PlI\N 
35 EXIS"NG UTILITIES LAYOUT 

36·39 CROSS seCTIONS 
STANDARDS'DETAILS: 

40·51 T.ooT BC{IHl7 niRU ac(12)~7 
52 WZ(TO)-03 
53 Tel' (1·I}·sa 
54 TE(HMAC}ll 

55·57 EO {I)-OJ niRU EO(3)-03 

SIGNATURE BLOCK: POR TXDOT, 

TEXASnEPAR:fMENT'oi'TRANSPORTAnON 511 [IITY' 

DATE 
 59 SETTYlI 

eo SETp·PD 
81 00111(1)·10 


SIGNATURE AND PERMIT BLOCK. FOR. TRAVIS COUNTY, 
 lI2 ooM(2)-114 
e3 PM(1l-03 
eo! PM(2}-10 
65 SMO(ClEN)~8 
!16 SMO (SLIP"l~ 

REVIBW!)) BY, 

TRA:VISCOUN'Ty"TRANSPORTATION AND"NA'rifilAL'RBSOUaCBs 67 SMO{SLlNHlB 
86 TSR(4)-C6 
60 EC(1}-09 
70 F.C(2H13 

DATE 

flEvitWPMENTP£RMiTNUMBEk 
DATE 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE TRANSPORTATION AND 
COUNTY JUDGE 

NATURAL RESOURCES 

RON DAVIS 	 SARAH ECKHARDT 
STEVEN MANILLA, PEt COUNTY EXECUTIVECOMMISSIONER PCT.! COMMISSIONER PCT.2 
...lPAI,IO POl!P\1IUC' woap DlV1'IION 

tIHi'lflSof1111 

'~'u .....·~ 
KAREN HUBER MARGARET GOMEZ nCPAIED lY$!U JUVIII.A A.tIOC1A.TU.un::. 

COMMISSIONER PCT.3 COMMISSIONER PCT.-4 JIG lOX lOla, A.VrrIH~nx...s """ 
,",'11 N~U.K 

1"H& 1NQ1NU" WHO ."DAI\8:D THUI PL4HI 11 IS.$PON'111L1 POll 
T'HID& ADmVACt'. DC A.....OvtNQ TtfUII M.4NJ.:n.A VIS Cf)tJ}ItTt 
Mtl1T liLY UPON THI ADIQUACT 0It "1111 'OIU: 00, ntl 'DUIGN 

PIOINUk-	 JUL Y 201 1 

LOCATION MAP 
N,T-$ • 

Vl..; 
< '" '"X~ ~ 
W~I- ... 
I- ",2 V ' ZW 1/1 

.. "i! 15 ~ 
)- cO: ~;:; 

'Z ~fu n )( 
:::>0 0 '"0- .... 
U~~ .... ~u IX) 

Vl 5'5 I • :;: 
;:51~ I!i ~ 
~~~ !i; ~ 
I- I- i::i N 

jl 
~! 

~ 

~ 
C/) 

~ 
UJ 
::t 
UJ 
> 
a:tu 0 

0.W 

I 
 ~ 
en ~ 

N 

W 
~ 

C/) 

>0:a: 0 ~ U 1i: 
C 
UJ 
--I 
U
ex: 
(3 

·~l i:i ! 6'1 
:!th'!;!'~;';~~h<: .. 
~rlt~ -~hl
55a~ ~~ .~i~~ 
i~ ur~t ~ 

NO, I 

II' 70 

http:A.tIOC1A.TU.un


~ 

o 
N 

c 

i 
<> 
"0 

u 
./ 

"0 

~ 
~ 

1 
f 

o "" :;; 

~ 
100!l0, 
~ , ./ SCALE ,,,, f'EET , ./ 

, ./, 
./, <./ 


, 6J
'/a \('EXIST ROW , 0' \,,,' \. 
\~ ~\. \ , . \ 

FRED H. DICKERSON ,<9O'}-:, rli US 290\ 
AND BETTY JEAN DICKERSON 'OOY \, . . 

BIZ PARK 290 W. 
" X.~ \ 

CONTROL , ~«>~..9. \ POINT 
\ <9.9&0 112 

°0' ~ , rBEGIN CIRCLE OR 
[ CONSTRUCTION, \ ~~ \ Sa 55'70.15 , y\ 

AND 
.). HARVEY 

.•~ _ _ _ ,'91;1 
6EGIN SPRING 

\ , ~1- --r'ONTROlVALLEY RD .%\.~. ~~INT \ - "-. 
CONSTRUCT ION \ 
sa 50'00.00 \ '% ......., END DR
CIRCLE. 

CONS TRUC TI ON\ , \ """, STA 58- 75. 00 


\ END SPRING VALLEY RD JiI~>~,

CONSTRUCTION DENN I S B. BOHL SAND


\ STA 55*00.73 SHERRE l. BOHLS
00' \ (' 

\ , WH [TEAKER AND A >( \ ,W. WH ITEAKER 
\

\ \ ./.9...~ 
\ \ ././ %,SUSAN COPELAND , ./,./ \./ \ ./, ./ ~\ \ ./

./ \ ./
\ ./ '/

./ ..Il.$'X 
./ 

/ 
, 

°0\ 
./ \ 

\ ~ 
\ \ 

\ 

SHEET NO. 

:)~ 

Ill .... ~ 
X~I-
<[< 

I.&./I- z ~ ... 
I- ~~ 

(I) '" .-oti; !l! 
~ ~o: ~~ X 
ZZW -c( 
:::JOO I.<. 

o ;:Vl ,.., 
U"'w • '" t- u t. r-'"l 

o::CX:: .1 !'!' en 
III O~ I.~ I

;; BiW :Q ~ 
<[ ~lr lIt Q') 

g: f: i:i N 

I 
::::l 
o 
~ 
W 

0: I 
'" m 

,~> 

'" 

~ 
Z w 
:! 
w 
>o 
0:: 
(L 

~ 

~ 
(f) 

f5 
>
iX 
o 
~ 
~ 
1.3 

.~~ i;i )1 6~ 
~Ja'OI-;;;~~2~;!i
ffi "I"=~;" @ ~a8 
~ h!~~~ !ll?~
it UI &!; ~ 
i i r i i ~ Ii! 

http:55*00.73
http:50'00.00
http:55'70.15


x 

1,125 

1,120, 

1,1151 

I, 10~J 

ROW 
'" \/EXIST 

" \ , , L PROP ROW \ 

--------  ~ 

§~INC " r....... ><4(( l" 

'. '<'~,I/.D,. <""" "::::-0....... _. _ f _. 
-. . "54/00 .  .  .  .  . 

, 

~ 
~ o 

~ 
~ 

.0\ ......... 
<[;,\ ~ 

\ ~ n 
\ 1

<bot' ~ '. .-.-;
'j" VI __ .--

AIj' '3E,.:.2 -  \ IJ'
N \6:....,.--.. I U'. 

I\:'::'"'-;;'VI( END SPRING VALlE~, RD '(; 
CONSTRUCTION \ '0 
STA 55,00. 73 0 

\ 

\ 
ct. us 290~'\ 

.~ 

~ 
() 10 10 
!wee 

SCAlE IN FEET 

, \-' 
,p. 

PI STATION 
DELTA 
DEGREE OF CURVE 
TANGENT 
LENGTH 
RAD IUS 
PC STAT10N 
PT STAT ION 

, , , , , , , 

\~ 

\~. 
\'f'" 

\" ---  ---------, 
(LT)-_ _---  - \ r• 53'91. 89 

• 48' 52' 05.23" 
• 28' 38' 52. ~O" 
• 90.87 
• 110,56 
• 200,00 

53'01.02 
• 54 '11. E,1 

0 
0 

d 
ill 
+ 

1"'1 
illl-l'I~<OOee- ~ 

PROP ROW \/ 
NOTE: 
I. SEE INTERSECTION DETIlILS SHEET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMIlTlON 

EXIST WATER LINE TO~BE REMOVED BY OTHERS 

EXIST WATER LINE TO 

.... BERE~~VED BEY
X~;;jEpR{~........... ' ................................. . 

(-)1.0000 % ,:."'-S.. ...... ... 

\ 
\ 
\ 

OF THE INTERSECT ION OF SPR ING VAtLEY RD AND US 290. 
EXIST1NG UTILITIES ARE SHOWN ON EXiSTING UTILITIES LAYOUT 
SHEET. 

stALE 
HORZ.: I" • 20' 
VERT.: I" • 10' 

o 
o 

EXIST CROUN.D.. ,. . 0 
AT RT ROW .. ~. _ ~ 

STA • 550OS. 00-' ...... :g
El • 1. II 1. 11' I'; ~ 0000 :< /-) 2. 0000 

~ 
-  _. ROAD Ii 

EXIST DITCH 

·_PROP DITCH If. 
R.O.W. 

---IIiI.... TRAFF IC FLOW 
---,.... DIRECTION 

gll,1101 l-"" I/) 

L1J z 
..J 

:J: 

U 

I 

:I "" 

........ ~I 

~ 
Q. 

53-50 54+00 

i:)i~Oo004 S,J.A·.5S:~O:O() ;:l:!~ ..~o Yo . PROP PGL • El • I. 111. 81' IJ1 

PROP 16 CMPJ' ~EX[ST w 
AT LT 3 

..J 
:J: 
U 

...J I 

..... 
~ 

'" 
 ." 


'" 

-
54-SO 55+00 55+50 

I, 1~5 

',120 

1,115 

1,110 

1,105 

1,100 

1,095 

1,090 

til...! :e 
xO:"""" ~w2~ ...I- ~I.I.J ~ trl 

<0.. ,,~ I, 
~ 5~ ;~z ZW fLO 

~ ::::>0 0 

o ;:V"I 1'1'1
U .. I.I.J a:) 

o-U 1'1'1 
.A 0: 0: ~ : c:n.." o~ 
_11. 0 .!li ..;.
>V"I'" I-:f ~ 
..... ;;:w 
...... 0: 
0::0:
1-0- ;~~ ; 

(/J 
I 

~ ffi 

~ ~ c:r: 0 
Q. ex:: 

cd ~ ~ 
ZO <;

I")m 

I- N 
W (/J 
W ~ 

~ 
a: ~~ W 

~ ~ ~ "',.. 0 .... 
~; « ~ 
~~.~, ~ c3 
~~j,J ex: 

1f.1 l5 ::;;: U 
.~, f:i B :~ 

,.c~'i;I!;;'~-~~~!II.
§ ;nl.;~ 2;~&~="h~!~£~ !~g.~a
s~ it! 6t u~ 

SHEET NO. 22 

or 70 



X 

'\' .... 
\ 

\ 
\ 

~ 
J_. 

~-, 

~ 

z::::s 1 C'Jij;;;i;r

~" 

o PI 

Ii :~C~~D~~"-'-
S?foo ' _ 

E SAWCUT 

NOT ASJE.~Aa:TfF 

...... ...... ...... PI STATION 
...... ...... DELTA 

nn,occ I'tC 

1ww 
0 10 20 

"'" ". Y.,EXIST ROW 
SCALE Iii HET 

• 56+70.92 
• 44' 32' 2B.21" (RTI

CURVE • 38' II' 49. 87' 
61.43 

:~3:M 
• 56-09.49 

57. 26. IDe: ~ i ~~ N 

'"'I' .~ ~~ 

~ 
ill Z 
...J W- ~ u. w o > 
(t: 0 
a. 0::: 

SAWC PAY iTEM. NOTE: C!5~ ~ -.. EDGE UT EXISTING 1. SEE INTERSECTiON FOR ADOI TlONAl Zo -.. AS DIREg~EDDRBrVEWAY INFORMATION OF THE INTERSECT ION OF CIRCLE DRIVE. AND US 290. :5 "It g'" Y THE 2. EXISTlNG UTllITlE.S ARE SHOWN ON EXISTINC UTILtTIES lAYOUT 

EXIST ROW -.. '" ENGINEER. SHEET. a. m~~ 3. ROADWAY SUBJECT TO TRAV IS COUNTY CHAPTER 84 UNACCEPTED >- ij5 ~ 0:
SUI3STANDARD ROADWAY SPECIFICATiONS. IX: ~ ~ 

Vl...J ~ 
xgs ~ 
«< 

~~~ ... 
z::l If) 

(iOi6 
~w::::~~ 

I- 00- ,~ 
ZZw « 
::>£~ "
8~w ~:;; 

:r~ ~:;l 
VlO:::l ;_:. • 

;: ~~ ~~ ~ 
« «0: !!~! 

',12S 

1,120 

1,115 

iko 

i I1.105 

~ 

~ 11,100 
,; 
8 
~ ~95 
.~ 
; U.090 

.s.CAl...E 
HORZ.: I" • 20' 

VERT.: 1" • 10' 


EXIST GROUND~ -P1S.JlOQ02-EXIST:'GL~.AT RT ROW~" _' 
STA • 51 
EL • I. 

"- PROP PGlg 
g STA • 55.75 00 sa . 

EL •+ "2.0000L.E L_".LII':II'
If) ,,-, ,-, 
If) 
 , ""-EXIST 

AT LT
(')2.0000 % \.15,1;00 

« 
l 

V') 


w PROP IS" CMPJ
Z 

..J 
:l: 
(,) 
I 

~ 

.. ..,,...... 
'" 
 <q<.; 
'" 
... 
N'~I ~ 

'" 

~ .: .: 

55·50 56+00 56+50 51+00 

o o 
o 
If'). 
/'<
If') 

.q 
l 
V') 

W 
Z 

..J 
:l: 
(,) 
I 
.q 
::I 

"',..., o ~ 
LliiliD .. C§ ~ 

''-.'25 
- • - • ROAD Ii 

EXIST DITCH 

~ 

Ii:.;: 
(t: ~ 

1J 
.. _PFlOP DITCH \. 

!'rt- o ..
!! fi:rZ if 

1 • 1201 R. o. 'fl. !i~;!r..~ij:~;!l 
---IIIr... TRAFnc FLOW ~§lll!a~~~!i~F~ 
---,... DIRECTION ,~Pi3i"E:'§'ii

!,115 fLo £Si ,- ,'i, 

SHEET NO.2 

_IL! 10 

1,105 

1,100 

1,095 

1,090 

OF 70 

http:56-09.49
http:56+70.92


CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

ADVANCE FUNDING AGREEMENT 
ForA 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT ON & OFF SYSTEM 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through the Texas 
Department of Transportation called the "State", and the County of Travis, acting by and through 
its duly authorized officials, called the "Local Government." 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, federal law establishes federally funded programs for transportation improvements to 
implement its public purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Code, Sections 201.103 and 222.052 establish that the 
State shall design, construct and operate a system of highways in cooperation with local 
governments; and 

WHEREAS, federal and state laws require local governments to meet certain contract standards 
relating to the management and administration of State and federal funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Commission passed Minute Order Number 112824, 
authorizing the State to undertake and complete a highway improvement generally described as 
the installation of a traffic signal, called the "Project"; and, 

WHEREAS, the Local Government has agreed to comply with the access permit process; and, 

WHEREAS, the State has agreed to conduct and comply with the signal warrant study; and, 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Local Government has approved entering into this 
agreement by resolution or ordinance dated , 20_, which is attached to and 
made a part of this agreement as Attachment "A" for the improvement covered by this agreement. 
A map showing the Project location appears in Attachment "B," which is attached to and made a 
part of this agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties, to be by them respectively kept and performed as set forth in this 
agreement, it is agreed as follows: 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 1 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

AGREEMENT 

1. 	Period of the Agreement 
This agreement becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes the 
agreement fully executed. This agreement shall remain in effect until the Project is completed 
or unless terminated as provided below. 

2. 	 Scope of Work 
The State will conduct and comply with a traffic signal warrant study when warrants meet at 
US 290 at the intersection of Circle Drive and Spring Valley Road as shown on Attachment 
"B". The Local Government shall comply with the access permit process. 

3. 	 Local Project Sources and Uses of Funds 
A. The total estimated cost of the Project is shown in the Project Budget - Attachment "C", 

which is attached to and made a part of this agreement. The expected cash contributions 
from the Federal or State government, the Local Governments, or other parties is shown in 
Attachment "e". The State will pay for only those project costs that have been approved by 
the Texas Transportation Commission. The State and the Federal Government will not 
reimburse the Local Government for any work performed before the federal spending 
authority is formally obligated to the Project by the Federal Highway Administration. After 
federal funds have been obligated, the State will send to the Local Government a copy of 
the formal documentation showing the obligation of funds including federal award 
information. The Local Government is responsible for 1000/0 of the cost of any work 
performed under its direction or control. before the federal spending authority is formally 
obligated. 

B. If the Local Government will perform any work under this contract for which reimbursement 
will be provided by or through the State, the Local Government must complete training 
before federal spending authority is obligated. Training is complete when at least one 
individual who is working actively and directly on the Project successfully completes and 
receives a certificate for the course entitled Local Government Project Procedures 
Qualification for the Texas Department of Transportation. The Local Government shall 
provide the certificate of qualification to the State. The individual who receives the training 
certificate may be an employee of the Local Government or an employee of a firm that has 
been contracted by the Local Government to perform oversight of the Project. The State in 
its discretion may deny reimbursement if the Local Government has not designated a 
qualified individual to oversee the Project. 

C. This Project cost estimate shows how necessary resources for completing the Project will 
be provided by major cost categories. These categories may include but are not limited to: 
(1) costs of real property; (2) costs of utility work; (3) costs of environmental assessment 
and remediation; (4) cost of preliminary engineering and design; (5) cost of construction 
and construction management; and (6) any other local project costs. 

D. The State will be responsible for securing the Federal and State share of the funding 

required for the development and construction of the local Project. If the Local 

Government is due funds for expenses incurred, these funds will be reimbursed to the 

Local Government on a cost basis. 


AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 2 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

E. The Local Government will be responsible for all non-federal or non-state participation 
costs associated with the Project, includ ing any overruns in excess of the approved local 
project budget unless otherwise provided for in this agreement or approved otherwise in an 
amendment to this agreement. 

F. 	 Prior to the performance of any engineering review work by the State, the Local 
Government will pay to the State the amount specified in Attachment C. At a minimum, 
this amount shall equal the Local Government's funding share for the estimated cost of 
preliminary engineering for the Project. At least sixty (60) days prior to the date set for 
receipt of the construction bids, the Local Government shall remit its remaining financial 
share for the State's estimated construction oversight and construction cost. 

G. 	In the event that the State determines that additional funding by the Local Government is 
required at any time during the Project, the State will notify the Local Government in 
writing. The Local Government shall make payment to the State within thirty (30) days 
from receipt of the State's written notification. Not applicable to this Project 

H. 	Whenever funds are paid by the Local Government to the State under this agreement, the 
Local Government shall remit a check or warrant made payable to the "Texas Department 
of Transportation Trust Fund." The check or warrant shall be deposited by the State in an 
escrow account to be managed by the State. Funds in the escrow account may only be 
applied to the State Project. 

I. 	 Upon completion of the Project, the State will perform an audit of the Project costs. Any 
funds due by the Local Government, the State, or the Federal government will be promptly 
paid by the owing party. If, after final Project accounting, excess funds remain in the 
escrow account, those funds may be applied by the State to the Local Government's 
contractual obligations to the State under another advance funding agreement with 
approval by appropriate personnel of the Local Government. 

J. 	The State will not pay interest on any funds provided by the Local Government. 
K. 	If a waiver has been granted, the State will not charge the Local Government for the 

indirect costs the State incurs on the local Project, unless this agreement is terminated at 
the request of the Local Government prior to completion of the Project. 

L. 	 If the Project has been approved for a "fixed price" or an "incremental payment" non
standard funding or payment arrangement under 43 TAC §15.52, the budget in Attachment 
C will clearly state the amount of the fixed price or the incremental payment schedule. 

M. 	If the Local government is an Economically Disadvantaged County and if the State has 
approved adjustments to the standard financing arrangement, this agreement reflects 
those adjustments. 

N. The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds from 
the State directly under this contract or indirectly through a subcontract under this contract. 
Acceptance of funds directly under this contract or indirectly through a subcontract under 
this contract acts as acceptance of the authority of the state auditor, under the direction of 
the legislative audit committee, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with 
those funds. An entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation must provide the state 
auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers relevant to the 
investigation or audit. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 3 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

o. 	Payment under this contract beyond the end of the current fiscal biennium is subject to 
availability of appropriated funds. If funds are not appropriated, this contract shall be 
terminated immediately with no liability to either party. 

P. 	The Local Government is authorized to submit requests for reimbursement by submitting 
the original of an itemized invoice in a form and containing all items required by the State 
no more frequently than monthly, and no later than ninety (90) days after costs are 
incurred. If the Local Government submits invoices more than ninety (90) days after the 
costs are incurred, and if federal funding is reduced as a result, the State shall have no 
responsibility to reimburse the Local Government for those costs. 

Q. 	The State will not execute the contract for the construction of the Project until the required 
funding has been made available by the Local Government in accordance with this 
agreement. 

4. 	 Termination of this Agreement 
This agreement shall remain in effect until the project is completed and accepted by all 
parties, unless: 
A. The agreement is terminated in writing with the mutual consent of the parties; 
B. 	The agreement is terminated by one party because of a breach, in which case any cost 

incurred because of the breach shall be paid by the breaching party; 
C. The Local Government elects not to provide funding after the completion of preliminary 

engineering, specifications, and estimates (PS&E) and the Project does not proceed 
because of insufficient funds, in which case the Local Government agrees to reimburse the 
State for its reasonable actual costs incurred during the Project; or 

D. The Project is inactive for thirty-six (36) months or longer and no expenditures have been 
charged against federal funds, in which case the State may in its discretion terminate this 
agreement. 

5. 	 Amendments 
Amendments to this agreement due to changes in the character of the work, terms of the 
agreement, or responsibilities of the parties relating to the Project may be enacted through a 
mutually agreed upon, written amendment. 

6. 	 Remedies 
This agreement shall not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy for any agreement 
default, but all remedies existing at law and in equity may be availed of by either party to this 
agreement and shall be cumulative. 

7. 	 Utilities - Not applicable to this Project 
The Local Government shall be responsible for the adjustment, removal, or relocation of utility 
facilities in accordance with applicable State laws, regulations, rules, policies, and procedures, 
including any cost to the State of a delay resulting from the Local Government's failure to 
ensure that utility facilities are adjusted, removed, or relocated before the scheduled beginning 
of construction. The Local Government will not be reimbursed with federal or state funds for 
the cost of required utility work. The Local Government must obtain advance approval for any 
variance from established procedures. Before a construction contract is let, the Local 
Government shall provide, at the State's request, a certification stating that the Local 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 4 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

Government has completed the adjustment of all utilities that must be adjusted before 
construction is completed. ' 

8. 	 Environmental Assessment and Mitigation - Not Applicable to this Project 
Development of a transportation project must comply with the National Environmental Policy 
Act and the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, which require environmental clearance 
of federal-aid projects. 
A. The local Government is responsible for the identification and assessment of any 

environmental problems associated with the development of a local project governed by 
this agreement. 

B. The local Government is responsible for the cost of any environmental problem's 
mitigation and remediation. 

C. 	The local Government is responsible for providing any public meetings or public hearings 
required for development of the environmental assessment. Public hearings will not be 
held prior to the approval of project schematic. 

D. 	The local Government is responsible for the preparation of the NEPA documents required 
for the environmental clearance of this Project. 

E. 	 Before the advertisement for bids, the local Government shall provide to the State written 
documentation from the appropriate regulatory agency or agencies that all environmental 
clearances have been obtained. 

9. 	 Compliance with Texas Accessibility Standards and ADA 
All parties to this agreement shall ensure that the plans for and the construction of a" projects 
subject to this agreement are in compliance with the Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) 
issued by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation, under the Architectural Barriers 
Act, Article 9102, Texas Civil Statutes. The TAS establishes 'minimum accessibility 
requirements to be consistent with minimum accessibility requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (P.l. 101-336) (ADA). 

10. 	Architectural and Engineering Services 
The State has responsibility for the performance of architectural and engineering services of 
the traffic signal installation. The engineering plans shall be developed in accordance with the 
applicable State's Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, 
Streets and Bridges and the special specifications and special provisions related to it. For 
projects on the state highway system, the design shall, at a minimum conform to applicable 
State manuals. For projects not on the state highway system, the design shall, at a minimum, 
conform to applicable American Association of State Highway and Transporlation Officials 
design standards. In procuring professional services, the parties to this agreement must 
comply with federal requirements cited in 23 CFR Part 172 if the project is federally funded 
and with Texas Governnlent Code 2254, Subchapter A, in all cases. Professional contracts 
for federally funded projects must conform to federal requirements, specifically including the 
provision for participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs), ADA, and 
environmental matters. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 5 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

11. 	Construction Responsibilities 
A. The State will advertise for construction bids, issue bid proposals, receive and tabulate the 

bids, and award and administer the contract for construction of the Project. Administration 
of the contract includes the responsibility for construction engineering and for issuance of 
any change orders, supplemental agreements, amendments, or additional work orders that 
may become necessary subsequent to the award of the construction contract. In order to 
ensure federal funding eligibility, projects must be authorized by the State prior to 
advertising for construction. 

B. The State will use its approved contract letting and award procedures to let and award the 
construction contract. 

C. Prior to their execution, the Local Government will be given the opportunity to review 
contract change orders that will result in an increase in cost to the Local Government. 

D. Upon completion of the Project, the party constructing the Project will issue and sign a 
"Notification of Completion" acknowledging the Project's construction completion. 

E. 	 For federally funded contracts, the parties to this agreement will comply with federal 
construction requirements cited in 23 CFR Part 635 and with requirements cited in 23 CFR 
Part 633, and shall include the latest version of Form "FHWA-1273" in the contract bidding 
documents. If force account work will be performed, a finding of cost effectiveness shall 
be made in compliance with 23 CFR 635, Subpart B. 

12. Maintenance 
The Local Government shall be responsible for maintenance of locally owned roads after 
completion of the work and the State shall be responsible for maintenance of state highway 
system after completion of the work if the work was on the state highway system, unless 
otherwise provided for in existing maintenance agreements with the Local Government. 

13. 	Right of Way and Real Property -Not Applicable to this Project 
The State is responsible for the provision and acquisition of any needed right of way or real 
property. 

14. 	Notices 
All notices to either party shall be delivered personally or sent by certified or U.S. mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed to that party at the following address: 

Local Government: 

County of Travis 
Attn: County Judge 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

State: 

Director of Contract Services 
Texas De~artment of Transportation 
125 E. 11 h Street 
Austin, Texas 78701 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date delivered in person or deposited in the mail, 
unless otherwise provided by this agreement. Either party may change the above address by 
sending written notice of the change to the other party. Either party may request in writing that 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 6 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

notices shall be delivered personally or by certified U.S. mail, and that request shall be carried 
out by the other party. 

15. Legal Construction 

If one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be held 

invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability 

shall not affect any other provisions and this agreement shall be construed as if it did not 

contain the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision. 


16. Responsibilities of the Parties 

The State and the Local Government agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or 

employee of the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and 

deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and 

agents. 


17. 	Ownership of Documents 
Upon completion or termination of th is agreement, all documents prepared by the State shall 
remain the property of the State. All data prepared under this agreement shall be made 
available to the State without restriction or limitation on their further use. All documents 
produced or approved or otherwise created by the Local Government shall be transmitted to 
the State in the form of photocopy reproduction on a monthly basis as required by the State. 
The originals shall remain the property of the Local Government. At the request of the State, 
the Local Government shall submit any information required by the State in the format directed 
by the State. 

18. 	Compliance with Laws 
The parties shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in 
any manner affecting the performance of this agreement. When required, the Local 
Government shall furnish the State with satisfactory proof of this compliance. 

19. Sole Agreement 
This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties and supersedes 
any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the agreement's subject 
matter. 

20. 	Cost Principles 
In order to be reimbursed with federal funds, the parties shall comply with the Cost Principles 
established in OMB Circular A-87 that specify that all reimbursed costs are allowable, 
reasonable, and allocable to the Project. 

21. 	Procurement and Property Management Standards 
The parties shall adhere to the procurement standards established in Title 49 CFR §18.36 and 
with the property management standard established in Title 49 CFR §18.32. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 7 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

22. 	Inspection of Books and Records 
The parties to this agreement shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting 
records, and other documentation relating to costs incurred under this agreement and shall 
make such materials available to the State, the Local Government, and, if federally funded, 
the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and the U.S. Office of the Inspector General, or 
their duly authorized representatives for review and inspection at its office during the contract 

. 	period and for four (4) years from the date of completion of work defined under this contract or 
until any impending litigation, or claims are resolved. Additionally, the State, the Local 
Government, and the FHWA and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to all 
the governmental records that are directly applicable to this agreement for the purpose of 
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

23. Civil Rights Compliance 
The Local Government shall comply with the regulations of the United States Department of 
Transportation as they relate to non-discrimination (49 CFR Part 21 and 23 CFR Part 200), 
and Executive Order 11246 titled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive 
Order 11375 and supplemented in the Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Part 60). 

24. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program Requirements 
A. The parties shall comply with the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program 


requirements established in 49 CFR Part 26. 

B. The Local Government shall adopt, in its totality, the State's federally approved DBE 

program. 
C. 	The Local Government shall set an appropriate DBE goal consistent with the State's DBE 

guidelines and in consideration of the local market, project size, and nature of the goods or 
services to be acquired. The Local Government shall have final decision-making authority 
regarding the DBE goal and shall be responsible for documenting its actions. 

D. 	The Local Government shall follow all other parts of the State's DBE program referenced in 
TxDOT Form 2395, Memorandum of Understanding Regarding the Adoption of the Texas 
Department of Transportation's Federally-Approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise by 
Entity, and attachments found at web address 
http://txdot.gov/business/businessoutreach/mou.htm. 

E. 	 The Local Government shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or 
sex in the award and performance of any U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT)
assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 
CFR Part 26. The Local Government shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 
49 CFR Part 26 to ensure non-discrimination in award and administration of DOT-assisted 
contracts. The State's DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by 
DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program is a 
legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this 
agreement. Upon notification to the Local Governnlent of its failure to carry out its 
approved program, the State may impose sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR Part 26 
and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 
the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.). 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 8 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 

http://txdot.gov/business/businessoutreach/mou.htm


CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

F. 	 Each contract the Local Government signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the 
prime contractor signs with a sub-contractor) must include the following assurance: The 
contractor, sub-recipient, or sub-contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry 
out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT
assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material 
breach of this agreement, which may result in the termination of this agreement or such 
other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate. 

25. 	Debarment Certifications 
The parties are prohibited from making any award at any tier to any party that is debarred or 
suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance 
Programs under Executive Order 12549, "Debarment and Suspension." By executing this 
agreement, the Local Government certifies that it is not currently debarred, suspended, or 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Programs under Executive 
Order 12549 and further certifies that it will not do business with any party that is currently 
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal 
Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549. The parties to this contract shall require 
any party to a subcontract or purchase order awarded under this contract to certify its eligibility 
to receive federal 'funds and, when requested by the State, to furnish a copy of the 
certification. 

26. 	Lobbying Certification 
In executing this agreement, each signatory certifies to the best of that signatory's knowledge 
and belief, that: 
A. 	No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the parties 

to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
federal agency, a Menlber of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal 
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into 
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

B. 	If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with federal contracts, grants, loans, or cooperative agreements, 
the signatory for the Local Government shall complete and submit the Federal Standard 
Form-~LL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 

C. The parties shall require that the language of this certification shall be included in the 
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and 
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and all sub-recipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by Title 31 U.S.C. §1352. Any person 
who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 9 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

·27. Insurance 
If this agreement authorizes the Local Government or its contractor to perform any work on 
State right of way, before beginning work the entity performing the work shall provide the State 
with a fully executed copy of the State's Form 1560 Certificate of Insurance verifying the 
existence of coverage in the amounts and types specified on the Certificate of Insurance for 
all persons and entities working on State right of way. This coverage shall be maintained until 
all work on the State right of way is complete. If coverage is not maintained, all work on State 
right of way shall cease immediately, and the State may recover damages and all costs of 
completing the work. 

28. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Requirements 
A. Any recipient of fund~ under this agreement agrees to comply with the Federal Funding 

Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) and implementing regulations at 2 CFR Part 
170, including Appendix A. This agreement is subject to the following award terms: 
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf and 
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/201 0-22706. pdf. 

B. 	The Local Government agrees that it shall: 
1. 	 Obtain and provide to the State, a Central Contracting Registry (CCR) number 

(Federal Acquisition Regulation, Part 4, Sub-part 4.1100) id this award provides more 
than $25,000 in Federal funding. The CCR number may be obtained by visiting the 
CCR website whose address is: https:llwww.bpn.gov/ccr/default.aspx; 

2. 	 Obtain and provide to the State a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number, 
a unique nine-character number that allows Federal government to track the distribution 
of federal money. The DUNS may be requested free of charge for all businesses and 
entities required to do so by visiting the Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) on-line registration 
website http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform; and 

3. 	 Report the total cOlTlpensation and names of its top five (5) executives to the State if: 
i. 	 More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and 

those revenues are greater than $25,000,000; and 
ii. 	The compensation information is not already available through reporting to the U.S. 

Securities and Exchange Commission. 

29. Single Audit Report 
A. 	The parties shall comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, P.L. 98

502, ensuring that the single audit report includes the coverage stipulated in OMB Circular 
A-133. 

B. 	 If threshold expenditures of $500,000 or more are met during the Local Government's 
fiscal year, the Local Government must submit a Single Audit Report and Management 
Letter (if applicable) to TxDOT's Audit Office, 125 E. 11 th Street, Austin, TX 78701 or 
contact TxDOT's Audit Office at http://www.txdot.gov/contactus/audit.htm. 

C. 	 If expenditures are less than $500,000 during the Local Government's fiscal year, the Local 
Government must submit a statement to TxDOT's Audit Office as follows: "We did not 
meet the $500,000 expenditure threshold and therefore, are not required to have a single 
audit performed for FY " 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 10 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 

http://www.txdot.gov/contactus/audit.htm
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
https:llwww.bpn.gov/ccr/default.aspx
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/201
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf


CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

D. 	For each year the project remains open for federal funding expenditures, the Local 
Government will be responsible for filing a report or statement as described above. The 
required annual filing shall extend throughout the life of the agreement, unless otherwise 
amended or the project has been formally closed out and no charges have been incurred 
within the current fiscal year. 

30. Signatory Warranty 
Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this agreement 
on behalf of the entity represented. 

THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED by the State and the Local Government in duplicate. 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

Signature 

Typed or Printed Name 

Title 

Date 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

Janice Mullenix 
Director of Contract Services 
Texas Department of Transportation 

Date 

AFA-AFA_LongGen 	 Page 11 of 11 Revised 05/04/2012 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION OR ORDINANCE 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 1 of 1 Attachment A 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

ATTACHMENT B 
LOCATION MAP SHOWING PROJECT 

CIDIIt 
VI.IJ.EY' 

/ 

\ 

\ 
.............. -

l 

AFA-AF~LongGen Page 1 of 1 Attachment B 



CSJ #0914-00-292 
District #14 - AUS 
Code Chart 64 #50227 
US 290 W at Circle Drive 
Federal Highway Administration 
CFDA #20.205 
Not Research and Development 

ATTACHMENT C 

PROJECT BUDGET 


The Local Government will be responsible for 100%) of the costs of the work off the State system. 
The State will be responsible for 100% of the costs of the work on the State system. 

Direct State 
Cost for 

Preliminary
Engineering ~~~--""""-~----I----I--~-I----I---~--I-----1-------I 
= $14,000 

Initial payment by the Local Government to the State: $0 
Payment by the Local Government to the State before construction: $0 
Estimated total payment by the Local Government to the State: $0. 
This is an estimate. The final amount of Local Government participation will be based on actual 
costs. 

AFA-AFA_LongGen Page 1 of 1 Attachment C 



zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 20















zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 21

















zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 22



















zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 23

















zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 24







Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: November 27,2012 Executive Session 
Prepared By: Greg Chico Phone #: ext. 44659 
Division Director/Ma~~tre~~ ~anilla, P.E. 

Department Head: ~~\tW.(Pl., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Eckhardt, Precinct Two 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on an offer-to-sell 
Parcels #4 and #4E from Butler Broadcasting Co., Ltd. -- needed for right-of-way in 
the Wells Branch Parkway Improvement Project (CIP Bond Program) located in 
Precinct Two. 
(Note 2: EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO GOV'T. CODE ANN 551.072, REAL 
PROPERTY). 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

TNRCynthia McDonald Financial Manager 854-4239 
County Executive TNRSteve Manilla 854-9429 

cc: 

1 1 1Steve Sun, P.E. Acting Public Works TNR 1854-9383 

zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 28



Director 
Chiddi N'Jie, P.E. Project Manager TNR 854-9383 
Greg Chico Real Estate Manager TNR 854-4659 
Mike Martino Rea I Estate Rep. TNR 854-7646 

SM:GC:gc 

3105 - Public Works/ROW- Wells Branch Parkway; Butler Broadcasting Co., Ltd. 




zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 29



zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 30



zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 31



zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 32



zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM 33



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: November 27,2012 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins Phone #: 854-7619 ~ 

Division Director/Mana,g,,er: An,na B,tWlin, Division Director of Development 
Services and Long Ra~~, lann',ng 11


' " r:vJ 
Department Head: Steven . anilla, .E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, December 

18, 2012 to receive comments regarding a request to authorize the filing of an 

instrument to vacate two five foot wide public utility easements located along the 

common lot line of Lots 1471 and 1472 of Apache Shores, Section Three Amended 

- Precinct Three. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR staff has received a request to vacate two five foot wide public utility easements 

(PUEs) located along the common lot line of Lots 1471 and 1472 of Apache Shores 

Section Three Amended. The PUEs are dedicated per plat note. The subject lots 

front on Indian Creek Trail, a street maintained by Travis County. 


The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 

vacating the subject easements. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation requests 

meets all Travis County standards. As such, TNR staff recommends setting the 

public hearing. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

According to the request letter the property owners request the vacation of the 

easement for the purpose of building a home centered over the subject lots' common 

lot line. Vacating the subject easements will allow the property owner to move 

forward with their plans without encroaching on said easement. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

None. 


zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM C3



ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes 
Request Letter 
Utility Statements 
Maps 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director TNR 854-7561 

cc: 


SM:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services - Apache Shores, Section Three Amended 



ORDER OF VACATION 


STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

WHEREAS, the property owners request the vacation of two five foot wide public utility 
easements located along the common lot line of Lots 1471 and 1472 of Apache Shores, Section 
Three Amended as recorded in Volume 50, Page 81 of the Travis County Plat Records; 

WHEREAS, all utility companies known to be operating in the area have indicated they 
have no need for the easements requested to be vacated as described in the attached field notes and 
sketch; 

WHEREAS, the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

recommends the vacation of the easements as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 


WHEREAS, the required public notice was posted and the Travis County Commissioners 
Court held a public hearing on December 18, 2012 to consider the proposed action; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, by unanimous vote, the Commissioners Court of Travis County, 
Texas, orders that the two five foot wide public utility easements located along the common lot 
line of Lots 1471 and 1472 ofApache Shores, Section Three Amended, as shown on the attached 
sketch and described in the attached field notes, are hereby vacated. 

ORDERED THIS THE ___ DAYOF_______ 2012. 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE, COUNTY JUDGE 

COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS COMMISSIONER SARAH ECKHARDT 
PRECINCT ONE PRECINCT TWO 

COMMISSIONER KAREN HUBER COMMISSIONER MARGARET GOMEZ 
PRECINCT THREE PRECINCT FOUR 



EXHIBIT "__" 3,648 SQUARE FOOT 
PARTIAL RELEASE OF 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

EXHIBIT "A" 

BEING 3,648 SQUARE FEET OF LAND, BEING A PORTION OF LOTS 1471 AND 1472, 
APACHE SHORES SECTION THREE AMENDED, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN VOLUME 
50, PAGE 81, PLAT RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A PORTION OF THE 
5 FOOT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT RUNNING ALONG BOTH SIDES OF THE COMMON 
LINE OF SAID LOTS, SAME BEING THAT CERTAIN ROGER GALPIN TRACTS RECORDED 
IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS 2008205534 AND 2009148223, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, 
TRA VIS COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID 3,648 SQUARE FEET OF LAND TO BE MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING at a point in the common line of said Lots 1471 and 1472, for a point in the northerly line hereof, from 
which a Mag nail found at the common northerly corner of said Lots 1471 and 1472 bears, North 55 degrees 21 
minutes 21 seconds West, 6.87 feet; 

THENCE North 63 degrees 48 minutes 00 seconds East, through said Lot 1471,5.73 feet to a point, for the northeast 
corner hereof; 

THENCE South 55 degrees 21 minutes 21 seconds East, continuing through said Lot 1471,362.07 feet to a point, for 
the southeast corner hereof; 

THENCE South 35 degrees 17 minutes 00 seconds West, continuing through said Lot 1471,5.00 feet to a point in the 
common line of said Lots 1471 and 1472, for a point in the southerly line hereof, from which an iron rod found at the 
common southerly corner of said Lots 1471 and 1472 bears, South 55 degrees 21 minutes 21 seconds East, 10.00 feet; 

THENCE through said Lot 1472, the following calls, 
1. 	 South 35 degrees 17 minutes 00 seconds West, 0.91 feet to a point at the beginning of a curve to the left having a 

radius of258.64 feet, 
2. 	 along aid curve to the left whose chord bears, South 35 degrees 49 minutes 52 seconds West, 4.09 feet to a point, 

for the southwest corner hereof; 

THENCE North 55 degrees 21 minutes 21 seconds West, continuing through said Lot 1472,367.49 feet to a point, for 
the northwest corner hereof; 

THENCE North 63 degrees 48 minutes 00 seconds East, continuing through said Lot 1472,5.73 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

DATE 10-22-2012 

DWARD C. RUMSEY, TX. RPLS #5729 
ALL STAR LAND SURVEYING 
9020 ANDERSON MILL ROAD 


AUSTIN, TEXAS 78729 

JOB # AI003212 


TCAD PROP ID# 1470731147074 

AUSTIN GRID-Z-32 


PAGEIOF2 


http:1472,5.73
http:1472,367.49
http:of258.64
http:1471,5.00
http:1471,362.07
http:1471,5.73


3,648 SQUARE FOOT PARTIAL RELEASE OF PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 


61 %\l) 

LOT 1322 01\<t:~, ~ ......8%\l~ 6' \J \ <.. (:;0- "", ... "'" 
\!" ' °b,'T;; v;.""''''
~6' ..."" 

\;,'J.. ,.,"

61~\l) ,{iJ~
6,0\)<t:~' 6%~''''''''''(.<"'''-' 

~ ob,<t)~'''''''''''
~6'''''''''''''''''

8'................. P.O.B. 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
BEING 3,648 SQUARE FEET OF LAND, 

BEING A PORTION OF LOTS 1471 AND 
5'PUE1472, APACHE SHORES SECTION 

(VOL. 50, PG. 81,THREE AMENDED, A SUBDIVISION 
VOL. 3822, PG. 1757)RECORDED IN VOLUME 50, PAGE 81, 

PLAT RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AND BEING A PORTION OF THE 
5 FOOT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 
RUNNING ALONG BOTH SIDES OF THE 
COMMON LINE OF SAID LOTS, SAME 
BEING THAT CERTAIN ROGER GALPIN 
TRACTS RECORDED IN DOCUMENT 
NUMBERS 2008205534 AND 2009148223, 
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID 3,648 SQUARE 
FEET OF LAND TO BE MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY 
METES AND BOUNDS IN EXHIBIT "A", 
ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A 
PART HEREOF. 

YDATE IOCTOBER22,2012 

TITLE CO. 

G.F.NO. 

JOB NO. AlOO3212 

EDWARD RUMSEY 10f18/2012FIELDED BY 
EDWARD RUMSEY 10118/2012CALC. BY 
ROGER CARDONA 10118/2012DRAWN BY 

EDWARD RUMSEY 1012212012RPLSCHECK 

LEGEND 

CALCULATED POINT ~~n~S!!!I 
-9- MAG NAIL FOUND 

LINE TABLE CURVE TABLE 
Ll - N 63°48'00" E, 5.73' CI - RADIUS (258.64') 

L2 - N 55°21'21" W, 6.87' ~ (N 54°36' W) ARC 4.09' 
L3 - N 63°48'00" E, 5.73' CH S 35°49'52" W, 4.09' 

L4 S 35° 17'00" W, 5.00' ; (S 35°24' W) 
L5 - S 55°21'21" E, 10.00' ; (N 54°36' W) 

L6 - S 35°17'00" W, 0.91'; (S 35°24' W, 1.04') 

3,648 
SQUARE 

FEET SCALE 1n= 50' 

LOT 1471 

5'PUE 

(VOL. 50, PG. 81, 


LOT 1472 VOL. 3822, PG. 1757) 


~ 
t$ 
~ 

~/
< ~ 


~ 9020 ANDERSON MILL RD 
PUE PUBLIC UTILITY ESMT 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78729 
( ) RECORD INFORMATION ~ (512) 249-8149 PHONE 

P.O.B. POINT OF BEGINNING 
(512) 331-5217 FAX 

WWW.AILSTARLANDSURVEYING.COM 

PAGE20F2 

http:WWW.AILSTARLANDSURVEYING.COM


Roger A. Galpin 

James R. Sharp 

5318 Acorn Ct. 

league City, TX 77573-3183 

(281}332-2709 

Transportation and Natural Resources 

411 W. 13th St. 

Austin, TX. 78701 

Subject: Evacuation of Easement between lots 1471 and 1472 Indian Creek Rd, Apache Shores, 

Section 3, Austin, TX 78734 
RECEIVED 

Attn: Right of Way Maps SEP 2 8 2012 
TRAVIS COUNTY • TNR 
PERMITS DEPARTMENT 

We request evacuation of the easement between these two lots for purpose of building a home 

centered over existing utility easement that runs between the two lots. 

Enclosed are surveys of the two lots, floor plan of a house we plan to build, and affidavits from 

all affected utilities (AT&T, Time Warner Cable, Austin Energy, and Travis County Water Control 

and I mprovement District #17) agreeing to evacuate their claim to the easement. 

Signed, 

~(t~'levJ
Roger A. Galpin / Da d 

9-dG" (:J-. 



~at&t 


SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY 

RELEASE OF EASEMENT 

THIS RELEASE OF EASEMENT, entered into by SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE 
COMPANY, a Missouri corporation, GRANTOR, AND Roger A. Galpin, GRANTEE, wherein GRANTOR 
in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, does by these presents ABANDON, RELEASE, RELINQUISH AND DISCLAIM to 
GRANTEE, as is, all or ' a specific portion of certain easements for telecommunication purposes 
hereinafter described that affects land owned by GRANTEE situated in Travis County, Texas, and 
described as follows: 

Lot 1471, Apache Shores, Section Three (3) (Amended), Deed of record in Document 2009148223, 
Property Records of Travis County, Texas 

Said land of GRANTEE being subject to: 

Easements recorded in Volume 50, Page 81, Plat Records of Travis County, Texas, 

The portion of said easements to be hereby released is described as follows: 

All of the 5 foot PUE along the southwest property line of said Lot 1471, described above, 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD same, together with all rights and appurtenances to the same 
belonging, unto GRANTEE, their heirs, successors and assigns forever. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF t1'GRANTOR has caused this Release of Easement to be executed by 
its duly authorized officers this ~ day of AU. k U1i"f , 20-'-'

SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY 

6Se~-d 
c::-:;> / c:=::r-, 

Name: r:;~HA~ LAINe t::~ 

Title: AIA~AG67?-= Gf'G/A/~~s/GIV' 
THE STATE OF reYA,:;, 
COUNTY OF +iltH; IS 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on t~lis day personally 
appeared HU.. lL- If(:'E?D ' known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing Instrument as Manager, Engineering-Design of Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company, a Missouri corporation , and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same for purposes 
and considerations therein expressed in the ~apa~ity statftq, and as the a . ~ and deed of ai co[oration. 

Given under my hand and seal of office thiS the _,Vt_""_ day,,€) :.' ,20 '2..-.. 
/ ' ,,' 

o t tateof~ 

xpires~ I'-I".p...a 13 

,\,\t'U'",/ 

~~~~~'A-~~~;~: REBECCA K. HOGUE 
g f·~·r.:·>·:" ':; ~htary Public, State of Texas 
;. . " .:f My Commission Expires 

January 16, 2013 



~at&t 


SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY 

RELEASE OF EASEMENT 

THIS RELEASE OF EASEMENT, entered into by SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE 
COMPANY, a Missouri corporation, GRANTOR; AND Roger A. Galpin and James Robert Sharp, 
GRANTEE(S), wherein GRANTOR in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable 
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does by these presents ABANDON, RELEASE, 
RELINQUISH AND DISCLAIM to GRANTEE(S), as is, all or a specific portion of certain easements for 
telecommunication purposes hereinafter described that affects land owned by GRANTEE(S) situated in 
Travis County, Texas, and described as follows: 

Lot 1472, Apache Shores, Section Three (3) (Amended), Deed of record in Document 2008202534, 
Property Records of Travis County, Texas 

Said land of GRANTEE(S) being subject to: 

Easements recorded in Volume 50, Page 81, Plat Records of Travis County, Texas, 

The portion of said easements to be hereby released is described as follows: 

All of the 5 foot PUE along the northeast property line of said Lot 1472, described above, 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD same, together with all rights and appurtenances to the same 
belonging, unto GRANTEE(S), their heirs, successors and assigns forever. 

IN WITNESS WHEREi~RANTORk;s caused this Release of Easement to be executed by 
its duly authorized officers this day of (;.u..9C , 20L~ 

N BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY 

/ 
Name : %o-I/litb !..AIN~~ 
Title: /,;fJ/~4GE:7C- 6-;C/AIQ;'7UK6=r:d;,S'IG A../ 

THE STATE OF ..-r~ 
COU NTY OF =nu.v l$. 

BEFORE ME, undersi ned authority, on this day personally 
appeared , known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to th foregoing instrument as Manager, Engineering-Design of Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company, a Missouri corporation, and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same for purposes 
and considerations therein expressed in the capacity sta:;jLand as the an d of said c oration. 

Given under my hand and seal of office this the day 0 01i: 

\\\IIIU"" 

!1"~~~.v~r.~~\ 
~: ; , 
~/'i\~~!~ 

, ...: 11\\ 

j 
~ 

REaECCA 1(. HOGUE 
Notary public. State of T 

My Commission Exp;r:: 
as 

January 16. 201 J 

,
t 



~TIME WARNER N.,a'!1fAi"'~I'0mIHe .. 
'" CABLE 

12012 N. Mopac Expressway Austin, TX 78758 
512/485-6417 (Laurie Schumpert) 512'/485-1485 (Fax) 

EASEMENT RELEASE STATEMENT FOR VACATION OF PROPERTY 

A request for release of the P.U.E. easement(s) has been made on the property legally described as: 

Subdivision or Section: APACHE SHORES SECTION 3 AMENDED 


Lot and Block Numbers: LOTS 1471 AND 1472 


Street Address: INDIAN CREEKRD, AUSTIN, TX 78734 


Property Owner: JAMES R. SHARP AND ROGER A. GALPIN 


STATEMENT 

X 	 Time Warner Cable does not have a need for an easement on the property as described in 
the accompanying document. 

Time Warner Cable does have a need for an easement on the property as described in the 
accompanying document. 

Time Warner Cable 

State ofTexas 

County ofTravis 


This instrument was acknowledged before me on ~ 1'1 31. 2 0 11-	 by 

BR~~()ru;) 

BECKY EULER DANa 

MY COMMISSION"EXPiRES 
SepIamber 22, 2012 

Notary Public 



X 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

S1JMiN M MANILLA P E COIlNIY wmglTI\1B 

411 West 13th Street 
Executive Ofi"lCC Building 
POBox 1748 
Austil\ Texas 78767 
(512) 854·9383 
PAJ«S12)8S4-4649 

EASEMENT REQUIREMENT STATEMENT FOR VACATION OF PROPERTY 

An application is being made to Travis County for the vacation of property 
at N/A (address) and/or 
Lots 1471 & 1472 Apache Shores Section 3 .. Amended, Vol 50, Pg. 81 (legal description) 
and as described on the enclosed drawing or document. An action of the Commissioners! Comt 
ofTravis County is pending your return of this statement. Your prompt repJy is requested. 

STATEMENT 

We do not have need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 
document. 

We do have a need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 
document. A description ofthe required easement is attached. 

~7~ 

Please return this completed fOlm to: 

Printed Name 
Mgr., PIRES 

Title 
Austin Energy 

Utility Company or District 
August 2, 2012 

Date 

James R. Sharp 
Name 
5318 Acorn Ct. 
Address 
League City, TX 77573 
City/State/Zip 

Email: irsharp19SS@comcast.net 

mailto:irsharp19SS@comcast.net


TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL 


AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 17 

lIl1 Eck Laue • AaJtla. Ten. 7B734 

• PItoe (511) 266-1111 • FaI (Sll) 266-1790 

UTILITY EASEMENT RELEASE APPLICATION 
Date: 7- 2. ~ - Got 2

A re ..... of the following utility easement(s) Is hereby requested. 
($30.00 fee Is required) 
~~~ . 
Address: AeACH SHoR¢:S .I,u()L~1J CR.66« RD. 
Legal Description: LOT 	tJ UMB6R.. i l.f 1\ AND ll{: '1 '2

f 

o 	
I 

Pus . tAU. ~.W€€~ 
IiIIII ...J..' r'<1 ( J -cf (4-12. 

Applicant Name: 3A~~ 'R .. St!A~ )""RO<etR A. .. G~LPtsU 
Address: 53[8 Acof?.!U Cr. 

L.EAG:. U~ ColT;[ ,Tx ((573 
Reason for Request: .:s,N <A, LC; FAM (L~ Re,s I 9€N CG 

AWater District 17 DOES NOT have a need for an easement on the property as described in 

the accompanying document. The easement(s) is (are) hereby released. 

__Water District 17 DOES have a need for an easement on the property as described in the 

accompanying document A description of the required easement is attached. 

~~2?1.'L~ 
~~ Date Signature Date 


Reviewer: dfiJ/lJ..,( WM~I~ =-De_bo~ra::.:..h.=S.:...;:G~e:;:.:.m=e=-s______ 


/ 	 Printed Name 

General Manager 

Title 

Please retum this completed fonn to: 


Name 


Phone: 28(-33Z- 2. '701 5,3{S AeoRJ) e.T 
Fax: "leC -3S 2.. - 2.109' Address 

email: J BSHtl.flP I'iSSt6J LGAc"U6 Ctr'10); 77~13 
c..oM.CA~:rr .. NE,-	 City/State/Zip 



Page 1 ot 1 

PORCH 
69'.0" x 8'.0" 

8EDROOM#3/
BEDROOM tI-2 '::.. .._.... .. .OPT.STUDY 
12'-6" x 14'-6" 

• b',i
;1 J: ~ ~ )(i: 0 

J
' i }
l: ! Q. b 

to.. 
i' 
H:i 

, 
BREAKFAST AREA'., Ii i 16'''(y x 8'-6

Ii .. 
':, 
:1 
.,( PORCHPORCH'I 

• 
 •
i ',
20'-0)( 12"-0"h 24'-&" x 12"-0" 

" ,--:.--, '- ":.: -:,-."~-~'-.-"..-:,,-. -:: "'~ :'::. -.. -.::, . " " " 'W':.::" ,:;--:~,~~ ': : ':: :: ;.. .. 

S () ~Jrr 'J'""ll l\ N I) 

ITCHEN 

1~~.x, )15'-6" 
) 

";". .-t. ~ 

Lis 

, ' 

DINING 
ROOM 

12'-6- x 20'.0-

GREAt ROOM 
25'-0" x 22'-a" 

r"'1:~ 
TO 

1oI)'{V[ 

BATH 

''' (:)''! ,O 

10'.()" x 14'-6" 
MASTER 

BATH 

MASTER 
BEDROOM 

16'·0")( 19'·6" 

I U t. . 1-1 t') ;V' I, '\ 
OECK 


(365 SOFT) 


httn:llwww.southlandloQhomes.com/files/09007R2 RROC,HTJRR First FloorjnQ 9/26/2012 



/
/' 

i· . 
I 

I 

Ii 
• I 

I! 
Ii 
I! 
Ii 

I 

i. 1 .. 



TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY 
OF LOT 1472, 

APACHE SHORES SECTION 
(AMENDED), RECORDED II 

VOLUME 50, PAGE 81, 
PLA T RECORDS. 

TRA VIS COUNTY. TEXAS 
Indian Creek Road 

H~/ 

" . . / 
/ 

The .~ does a.-a.... cer'1if 
~..=-~~ J....~~'1!~t=::• correct. ciid that ttwe en :no viii 

. bocMary~1ine conflctt. encr~ 
-~ eo....... or roocJ.oYs. ex?IPtthat .ad ~ he. CICCeII to CIId froM 
except ai IhO.n hereon. . 

cIe.c:rbed hereon is not Iodated iI a ~ 
CI'lIO. acc:ordiIg to..., DCIMII 481026 02 

June 16. 1993 FIOoCf ~ Rate 
ravis County, Texas. 





Legend 

- Stall ... 

- '- PIi"'Roed 

--=- 1ncoIpofale(J 

--1,."" ~ Malnt.Nd 

- - Not ...~ 

-- PIMa. 

--~~ otDedicaIon 

thIdediI:a'-CI, PrMs. 

~3 

. "'ftiVli'countYl.OCitiafil.., / ' 
1 --- - . .. 

Hays County 

Source(s): City of Austin Roads - COA 2011 , 
Unincorporoted Roads - Travis County 
812011, Toll Road - various sources, 
Creeks- NHD 2005, Perla; - Trovis County 
2011 , Commissioner Precinc1s - Travis County 
Voter Registrar 2002 , 

Map Disclaimer. The data is provided 
Map Prepared by: Travis County, 

"as is" with no warranties of any kind. 
Dept. of Transportation &N.lUrol 

I Resources, Date: 81912011 
MilesTravis County Roadways, Map D 

http:Malnt.Nd


Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: November 27,2012 _KYJ 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins Phone #: 854-7619 ~'/ 
Division Director/Manager: owlin, Division Director of Development Anna 
Services and Long R~ ing 

Department Head: ste/ n . Mani I ,P.E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, December 

18, 2012 to receive comments regarding a request to authorize the filing of an 

instrument to vacate two five foot wide public utility easements located along the 

common lot line of Lots 43 and 44 of Cardinal Hills Estates Unit 14 - Precinct Three. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR staff has received a request to vacate two five foot wide public utility easements 

(PUEs) located along the common lot line of Lots 43 and 44 of Cardinal Hills Estates 

Unit 14. The PUEs are dedicated per plat note. The subject lots front on RR 620, a 

highway maintained by the State of Texas. 


The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 

vacating the subject easements. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation requests 

meets all Travis County standards. As such, TNR staff recommends setting the 

public hearing. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

According to the request letter the property owner constructed a building directly 

over the subject easements. Vacating the subject easements will allow the property 

owner to clear up some title and encroachment issues. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

None. 


zavalaj
Typewritten Text
ITEM C4



ORDER OF VACATION 


STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

WHEREAS, the property owners request the vacation of two five foot wide public utility 
easements located along the common lot line of Lots 43 and 44 of Cardinal Hills Estates Unit 14 
as recorded in Volume 53, Page 36 of the Travis County Plat Records; 

WHEREAS, all utility companies known to be operating in the area have indicated they 
have no need for the easements requested to be vacated as described in the attached field notes and 
sketch; 

WHEREAS, the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Departnlent 

recommends the vacation of the easements as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 


WHEREAS, the required public notice was posted and the Travis County Commissioners 
Court held a public hearing on December 18, 2012 to consider the proposed action; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, by unanimous vote, the Commissioners Court of Travis County, 
Texas, orders that the two five foot wide public utility easements located along the common lot 
line of Lots 43 and 44 of Cardinal Hills Estates Unit 14, as shown on the attached sketch and 
described in the attached field notes, are hereby vacated. 

ORDERED THIS THE ___ DAY OF ______ 2012. 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE, COUNTY JUDGE 

COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS COMMISSIONER SARAH ECKHARDT 
PRECINCT ONE PRECINCT TWO 

COMMISSIONER KAREN HUBER COMMISSIONER MARGARET GOMEZ 
PRECINCT THREE PRECINCT FOUR 



HOLT CARSON, INC. 

PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYORS 

1904 FORTVIEW ROAD 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78704 

TELEPHONE: (512) 442-0990 
October 10, 2012 

FJELD NOTE DESCRIPTION FOR THE RELEASE OF A PORTION OF THOSE 5 

FOOT WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS DEDICATED PER PLAT WHICH LIE ON 

EACH SIDE OF THE COMMON LOT LINE OF LOTS 43 AND 44, CARDINAL HILLS 

UNiT 14, A SUBDIVISION IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, ACCORDING TO THE MAP 

OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN VOLUME 53 PAGE 36 OF THE PLAT 

RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID LOTS HAVING BEEN CONVEYED 

TO PRESTIGE INVESTMENTS LLC. BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 

2002024289 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, 

AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS 

FOLLOWS: 


BEGINNING for reference at a % inch iron rod found in the west line of Lot 79, Cardinal 

Hills Unit 14 , a subdivision in Travis County. Texas, according to 'the map or plat 

thereof recorded in Volume 53 Page 36 of the Plat Records of Travis County, Texas, 

and being at the east common comer of Lots 44 and 45 of said Cardinal Hills Unit 14, 

and from which a ~ inch iron rod found in the east right-of-way line of R.M. Highway 

620 at the west common corner of said Lots 44 and 45 bears N 83 deg. 441 48 ft W 

2,99.98 ft.; 


THENCE with the common line of said Lots 44 and 79, S 07 deg. 24' 00" W 100.11' 'ft. 

to a calculated point at the east common corner of Lots 43 and 44 of said Cardinal HiUs 

Unit 14, 'and ·from··which a Y2 inch iron rod found' at the west co'mrh6h 'cartier of lots 79 

and 80 of said Cardinal Hilts Unit 14 bears S 07 deg. 24' 00" W 39.79 ft.; 


THENCE with the common line of said Lots 43 and 44, N 83 deg. 42' 36" W 5.00 ft. to a 

point in the west line of a 5 foot wide public utility easement dedicated per plat of said 

Cardinal Hills Unit 14 at the PLACE OF BEGINNING of the herein described area for 

release; 


THENCE with the west line of said 5 foot wide public utifity easement on a course 5 feet 

from and parallel to the common line of said Lots 43 and 797 S 07 deg. 241 00" W 5.00 

ft. to a point in the south line of a second 5 foot wide public utility easement dedicated 

per plat of said Cardinal Hills Unit 14, and being at the southeast corner of this area for 

release; 


THENCE crossing the interior of said Lot 43 with the south line of said second 5 foot 

wide public utility easement, on a course 5 feet from and parallel to the common line of 

said Lots 43 and 44, 

N 83 deg. 42' 36" W 281.59 ft. to a calculated point n the east right ...of-way line of R.M. 

Highway 620 at the southwest corner of this area for release; 




page 2 of2 
partial refease of public utility easements 

THENCE with the east right-af-way line of R. M. Highway 620, 10.05 ft. along the arc of 
a curve to the left, having a radius of 2941.79 ft, and chord bearing N 00 deg. 231 58" E 
10.05 ft., to a calculated point at the intersection of the north line of a third 5 foot wide 
public utifity dedicated per plat of said Cardinal Hills Unit 14, and being at the northwest 
corner of this area for release; 

THENCE crossing the interior of said Lot 44 with the north line of said third 5 foot wide 
easementt on a course 5 ft. from and parallel to the common line of said Lots 43 and 
44, S 83 deg. 42' 36" E 282.81 ft. to a point in the west line of the 5 foot wide public 
utility easement first described herein, and being at the northeast corner of this area of 
release; 

THENCE with the west line of said 5 foot wide public utility easement first described 
herein, S 07 deg. 24' 00" W 5.00 ft. to the Place of Beginning, containing 2,820 square 
feet of land. 

PREPARED: October 10, 2012 

BY: 


~1e ' 
.Anne Thayer 

Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5850 


see sketch 761054 



30' 

Point of Reference 

I~ ~ 

SCALE: 1". = 
LOT 45 

BearIng 80sls 
:J'''''- NBS44'48W 299.9EY----------:;.·.::..:...t:....~QI 

1S'electric ----____ _ 
\ .---' and telephone - - ____ 


" ~ easement per

f?{ l Doc. No. 2001.055688 


t::) ~ I 
(:Iq I 
1".0 ~ , CARDINAL HILLS 
>.. ~ \ ESTATES UNIT 14 gIb 

~ ~ 0,\ VOLUME 53 PAGE 36 LOT 44 I~; 
~ ~ ~ I~~ 

(5)\ / . " ~ ~ 1\ Public Utility ILO ~ 
~ ~ Easement <:::s g'.... till Prestige Investments LLe 10 be released I Vj.~§ "'I:t , Document No. 2002024289 2.820 square feet. .. ,_ 

.~i\ ~ ~ 

~1~~+=~~~~~::~=-----__----~~S8.~~~4c~·:~~-~~
'Ii 5' P • r'l,lIlr"nnr---;-.---I-_ 

LOT 48 

-- --;;-.~;:- ---: - - _·V·E. ''''':<;'1 '-Jln r .1 

SKETCH TO ACCOMPANY FIELD NOTES FOR E~ ~/I?:?!
!''V 'it- Q)THE RELEASE OF A PORTION OF THOSE; 5 FOOT --- .......NO-- ~~ LOTWIDE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS DEDicATED ~ 

@ J.;. Iron Rod Found ~I 79PER PLAT WHICH LIE ON EACH SIDE OF THE 
$ Calculated Point

COMMON LOT LINE OF LOTS 1.3 AND LL. CARDINAL 

HILLS UNIT 11., A SUBDIVISION IN TRAVIS :COUNTY. 

TEXAS, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLA T THEREOF 

RECORDEO IN VOLUME 53 PAGE 36 OF THE PLAT 

RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS, SAID LOTS
~ HAVING BEEN CONVEYED TO PRESTIGE 

INVESTMENTS LLC~ BY oeeo RECORDED IN 

DOCUMENT NO. 2002021.289 OF THE OFFICIAL 

PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS. 


Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5850 

HOL T CARSON, INC. 

190' FORTVIEW ROAD 


AUSTIN, TX 7870' (512J"2 .. 0990 
 76105' 

Anne Thayer .~~ 

I 
I~ 
,q 
~ 

~ 
l.r) 
r.... 
i.:!s: 

LOT 
80 



Prossner and Associates, Inc. 

Consulting Engineers 2601 Chitina Court 

Cedar Park/' Texas 78613 
(512) 918-3343 

RECEIVED 
October 9,2012 

OCT 1 f 2012 
TravisCounz 1NR 
411 West 13 Street 
P.O. Box 1748 

TRAVIS COUNTY • TNR 
PERMITS DEPARTMENT 

Austin, Texas 78767 

Re: Request for a PUE release for Prestige Centre - 2209 RR 620 North 

Sirs, 

This correspondence is being sent as a request for the release of two (2) parallel 5 
foot PUE~s located along the common property line between Lots 43 and 44, Cardinal 
Hills Estates Unit 14. The site is located at 2209 RR 620 North and is fully developed. 
During development a building was erected without the benefit of survey staking and it 
resulted in the structure being placed directly over the existingPUE's as shown on the 
attached sketch. The structure is currently being served water by WC&ID No. 17 and 
electric service is from Austin Energy. Wastewater is on site septic and gas is on site 
propane. To our knowledge there are no other utilities with the exception of 
telephone/cable which we assume is on the existing overhead electric service poles. 

We would appreciate your consideration of this request such that the Owner can 
clear up some Title issues. Should you require any additional information, please contact 
our office. 

M. Prossner, P .E. 
President 

cc: Mr. Paul Milsap 

file:prestige/easement release letter. doc 

file:prestige/easement


p.1 Oct 26 12 03:00p Prossner and Associates 	 512-918-2431 

Ool17 12 11 :438. Pr05sner and Assoo~tes 	 512-918--2431 

TRANSPORTATION.AND NATURAL RESOlJRCES 

411 'W'tslllth stn:et 
~veOfflccBu1cf'llg
POD. t14a 
Auati~ 'total:S "11767 
(5J2) &$4-93&3 
fA'X(51l}8~9 

E.A.SEMliNT REOumEME'NI STAIJ!'iMENI' FOR VACATION OF;mOPERTY 

An appllcawn is being ma.de to TMis- COU1lty for thav4catioQ ofproperty at 2209 RR 020 North 
wbich is the common Jot Me betweett Lo19 43 BOd 44 of the Cardlul Hills EstJt§§ Uni!14 
Subdivision and as descr.ibed on tbe enclosed drawing ot doCl.llll.ellt. An action of the 
Oo.mnlissioners' Court of Tmvis C;;l1nty is pe1lding your rciurn Qf this slate:mo11t. Yaut prempt 
reply is requested. 

STATEMENT 

x 	 We do not have need for an easemtmt on the -property as dcsocitw..d in tbe accompanying 
document. 

We do have a need. for an eas~ent on the property as desoribed in the accom 
document. A description ()rtbe reqm~d easement is at1:adled. 

Mgr. PIRES 

Title 
Austin Energy 

UtD1ty Com or District 
October ~2012 

Date 
Please .retum this completed form to: 

Pt~S8l1erand Assbaiates, Inc. 
13377 Pond.Sp.rinss Road, Suite 104 
Austin, Texas 1R729 
512..918-2431 fax or 
oondai@§wbell.net email 

http:oondai@�wbell.net


Prossner and Associates, Inc. 

From: "Engler, Tommie" <tommie.engler@pecLcom> 
To: <pandai@swbell.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 23,20128:09 AM 
Attach: Cardinal HiII- Req Release.pdf 
Subject: Release of Easement 
We found these on a random fax. We have no facilities in this area. Electric utilities 
would be Austin Energy. 

Tommie J. Engler 
Legal Administrator 

Pedemales Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

P. O. Box 1 
Johnson City, Texas 78636 
(830) 868-4941 office 
(830) 868-5018 fax 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The information contained in this e-mail, including any 
attachments, is confidential and may be legally privileged; it is intended only for the use 
of the intended recipient or recipients. If the reader of this message is not the intended 
recipient, you are notified that any dissemination, distribution, or use of this information 
is strictly prohibited. If you have received this comrnunication in error, please contact us 
immediately at the telephone number or e-mail address set forth above and destroy all 
copies of the original message. 

10/23/2012 


mailto:pandai@swbell.net
mailto:tommie.engler@pecLcom


p.6Oot 17 12 12:24p Prossrter and Assooiates • 512-918-2431 -

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
STEVEN M MA!SlU.A P Ii COUNTY E~'EqmYE 

411 West 13th Stn:cl 
Executive Office Buildmg 
POBo'¥ 1748 
Austin. Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9383 
FAX (S l2) 854-4649 

EASEMENT REQUIREMENT STATEMENT FOR VACATION OF PROPERTY 

An application is being made to Travis County f~~ the vaca~A9I.1 ofproperty at 2209 RR 620 North 
which is the " " " - - jO .. 

an as described on the enclosed drawing or document. An action of the 
ommissioners' Court of Travis County is pending your retum of this statement. Your prompt 

reply is requested. 

STATEMENT 

We do not have need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 
docwnent. 

__ We do have a need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying

AhA~M;;Z:Rd~ernent is &mC4.:::!~~~~r:;t;t~.~~===:..___ 

t.~.tbi ~ H;:;;~1eJ
/tJ.~. I d

'Travis CountyWCID #17 
3812 Eck Lane 
Austin, TX 78734 

Please return this completed fonn to: 

S~J;;;a~ s. G'eH.eS 
Printed Name 

G'eA<e,.{ 1/rlllAy 
TTWi2 c.-/:. lAc-I 0 I:} 
Uill' C 't.. 

lty ompany or District 
. trJ.~3. L~ 

Date /tJ!l8jt!IPI "-
Prossner and Associates, Inc. 
13377 Pond Springs Road, Suite 104 
Austin, Texas 78729 
512-918-2431 fax or 
pandai~s\\;ben.net email 

http:pandai~s\\;ben.net


SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY 

RELEASE OF EASEMENT 

THIS RELEASE OF EASEMENT, entered into by SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE 
COMPANY, a Missouri corporation, GRANTOR, AND Prestige Investments, LLC, GRANTEE, wherein 
GRANTOR in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, does by these presents ABANDON, RELEASE, RELINQUISH AND DISCLAIM to 
GRANTEE, as is, all or a specific portion of certain easements for telecommunication purposes 
hereinafter described that affects land owned by GRANTEE situated in Travis County, Texas, and 
described as follows: 

Lots 43 and 44, Cardinal Hills Estates, Unit 14, Deed of record in Document 2002024289, Property 
Records of Travis County, Texas 

Said land of GRANTEE being subject to: 

Easements recorded in Volume 53, Page 36, Plat Records of Travis County, Texas, 

The portion of said easements to be hereby released is described as follows: 

All of the 5 foot PUE along either side of the common property lines of said Lots 43 and 44, described 
above, 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD same, together with all rights and appurtenances to the same 
belonging, unto GRANTEE, their heirs, successors and assigns forever. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, GRANTOR has caused this Release of Easement to be executed by 
its duly authorized officers this~ day of ~ib"e.. , 20L"Z..

SOU~ANY 

Name: Z.t!:I'I~kmeb-sD 
Title: &.Nllc,.of?:- hC//(E€ftIH6U.5IC")J.-/ 

THE STATE OF -r,.."fW; 
COU NTY OF =rae t\v,S 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority. on this day personally 
appeared 'RlC~ ~et'-t> ,known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument as Manager, Engineering-Design of Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company, a Missouri corporation, and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the sa . r purposes 
and considerations therein expressed in the capacity stated, and as the d deed 0 sai corporation. 

Given under my hand and seal of office this the~ day 20 f 'Z

~~t:.;.v~:~~/~ REBECCA K. HOGUE 
~ ....(~~"'i~t'i Notary Public, State of Texas 
\~~~~i My CommiSSion Expires 
~tf,R~I\\'V January 16. 2013 



p.6512-918-2431Oct 171212:45p Prossner and Associates 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
!';TF.Ve, M MANILLA r E COUNTy EXUClJTIV€ 

411 west 13th Street 
Exceulivc Office Buildiog 
POBox 1748 
Austin. Texas 78161 
(512) 8S4-9383 
FAX (512) gS4--4649 

EASEl\fENT REQUIREMENT STATEl\1ENT FOR VACATION OF PROPERTY 

An application is being made to Travis County for the vacation ofproperty at 2209 RR 620 North 
which is the common lot line between Lo1s 43 and 44 of the Cardinal Hills Estates Unit 14 
Subdivision and as described on the enclosed drawing or document. An action of the 
Commissioners' Court of Travis County is pending your retum of this statement. Your prompt 
rep Iy is requested. 

, 	 STATEMENT 

/ 	 We do not have need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 

document. 


We do have a need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 
document. A description ofthe required easement is atta~.. 

d:!WNj/;;;J~~Erture I>lJV:ie., 2cHV t-vttxd : 
P~tedDC
.r:.~f2i~ ~1er 

Please return this completed fonn to: 
Prossner and Associates, Inc. 
13377 Pond Springs Road:! Suite 104 
Austin, Texas 78729 
512-918-2431 fax: or 
gandaif@.s\.vbell.net email 

http:gandaif@.s\.vbell.net


p.6512~18-2431Oct 171212:17p Prossner and Assooiates 

TRA.~SPORTATIONM"D NATVllAL RESOURCES 
Snr!gN M, WehlLl,A PA cQUNTY exec:u:rM 
411 west 13th Street 
SXccafi\'C Office Buitlltns 
POBex 1748 
A_itt., TCXIII78167 
(512) .501-«J383 
F~(512)BS4~9 

EASEMENT aQUlREMENT STAtEMENJ: F2R VACATION OF fRQl!ERTY 

An application is being made to Travis Couoty fat the vaetdion ofproperty at 2209 RR. 620 North 
wbich is the common lot Ij~ between t4! 43 and 44 of the CardioalJIm, Estates Un.it 14 
bbdivision and as described on the el1Cl06ed drawing or document. An action or the 
Commissioners' Court ofTravis County is pending your return of this staten1f!J\t. Your prompt 
repl)' ig. requested. 

STATEMENr 

/we do not bave Ileed for an easement on the property as dcscribDd in the aa:ompanying 
document. 

We do have a need for 8D easement on tbe property as described .in the accompanying 
document. A description oftfle !eCJui",d _I is attac~ ~ 

<~ 

Please return this completed fonn to! 

Prossner ad Assodates, Inc. 
13377 Pond Springs Road, Suite 104 
Anmn, TP."Ir.q 711110 
512-918-2431 fax or 
mmdai@swbell,net email 



p.6Oct 17 1211 :51a Prossnerand Associates 512-918-2431 

1'-133 


TRANSPORTATION ANn NATURAL RESOURCES 

~litil~'Mtl.A.e.Es,q>WW;¥:E~xggrrty;E 

4] I Wcst,J3thStrcet 
Executive.OillCcBtJildlng 
POD~1148 
Aust~TtnS 78767 
(5l2) 8S4-ga83 
FAX (512)1544649 

EASEMENTREOU1REMENTSTATE~ENTFOR,rACATION.OF PROPERTY 

Anapplicationj$befugina~e 'to Travis C()untyf'qrthe vacation ofproperty at 2~09&&620 North 
wbichisthe .'CQmtnPtt ,.&I.,fjnebetw.u.Lf,1:t$.4.3.;an~;,~4.()f·:tb!_"Hi·U$·.tattJtln,it];4 
Subdivision and,· as described on the enclosed draWing or document.. An action 'ot the 
CommissionersfCourt ofTravis County is' pending' your return of this statement Your prompt 
reply istequesred. 

_"STATEMENT

/We do notbave need:for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 
document. 

We do have a need for an easement on the property as described in theacoompanying 
document. A description ofthe required easement is attached. 

t'i!1~ 
Printed Name 

DIAL 1-800-DIQ..;TESS, AT :~t~ 
LEAST 48 HOURS PRtOR TO 
ANY EXCAVATION, TO HAVE 
GAS LINES LOCATED. Utility Company or District 

/O-3l-12..
Date . 

Please return this completed fonn to: 
Prossner and Associates, Inc. 
13377 Pond Springs Road,. Suite 104 
Austin, Texas 78729 
512-918-2431 fax or 
pandai(~s\.vbel Lnet email 

---,,' -"--. 

http:EASEMENTREOU1REMENTSTATE~ENTFOR,rACATION.OF


1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 
i3 


9 1 


1 


1 


1 


1 

.p ~ 
-[ 9
1 
I.ti 
::( 
G. 

~ 
~ 

5 

(!? 
w ..0
!¢ M 
I- W 
t3 ... ~ 
(1)"'0.al-('Il

2 10 
X;::)W 

~ ~ 
Ii :> 
< u 

1 


1 


1 


1 


L 1
! 
~ 
n.:: 1 

U, 


1 


1 


1 


~ 

IS 
..J 



LOT 45 

5' P.IJ.£. per .plo.t 
sw.u·4IJ-Z 

>e 
I 

~ 
.:.. a:; 
o 
~ 
~ 

i 

, 

8. 
<& 
.. JIll

'eI',\;-,-,...: 
\, -~~ 

f.., 

LOT 44 
g 

S' P.U£. Pff plo.t 


5' P.IJ£. per plo.t 


LOT 43 

V40'49-" nl.A' 

NW4/J'4IJ-IflB.49'  I 

(NlJr.u'rllJ.4G) 3.7 
5' P.w::. pef' plo:t 

LOT 42 

SURVEY DrLOTS 43.44 AND 79, CARDINAL HILLS UNIT 14, 
A SUBDIVISION IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS. 
ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOr 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 53 pAGE 36 or THE 
PLAT RECORDS or TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS. 
LOCATED ON R.M. 620. 

U' 
c(lll\CNrW"" 

http:NlJr.u'rllJ.4G
http:NW4/J'4IJ-IflB.49


TRAVIS COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY 


**TO BE VALID, BOTH THIS PERMIT AND A COUNTY ISSUED 
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT MUST BE POSTED ON THE SITE** 

RECEIPT NUMBER: 4312 
PERMIT NUMBER: 2004-OS-0600 

FILE BAR CODE NUMBER: 4989753 
SITE ADDRESS: 2209 Ranch Road 620 North JURIS: 03 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lots 43 & 44~Cardinal Hills Unit 14 TRMT: 02 
OWNER'S NAME: Prestige Investments, LLC DISP: 09 
PERMITTED FLOW: 32gpd WELL: No 
STRUCTIJRE TYPE: 900 square foot office MA1NT: I Yes 

TIllS PERMIT IS HEREBY ISSUED TO CONSTRUCT AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY ON THE ABOVE 
DESCRIBED PROPERTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLAN PREPARED BY Jim Bettridge, RS. (registration 
#3516) WITH THE FOLLOWING COrvfPONENTS: 

1. 	 One Norweco Model 950 wlPC (500 gpd) aerobic treatment unit with built-in trash tank, 997 gallon pump tank, 
Sta-Rite Model20DOM05121 pump, 100 micron filter 

2. 	 One drip irrigation drainfield with a total of 192 linear feet of Netafnn Bioine drip tubing with 0.6 gph emitters 
spaced on 2' centers, total effective area of 384 sq. ft 

STANDARD REQUIREMENTS 

1. 	 See the letter ofreview accompanying this Pemrit for special requirements. 

2. 	 Construct per designer's plan and the letter of review. If for any reason construction cannot proceed 
exactly as specified, STOP CONSTRUCTION, contact the On-Site Wastewater Program at (512)854
9383 and have the designer submit a revised plan for review and issuance of a new Permit. All 
appropriate fees must be submitted with the revised plan, and a 30-day review period may be required. 

3. 	 Be advised that tmder Texas Water Law, an owner of real property who changes the quantities and/or velocities of 
stormwater runoff onto downstream property may be strictly liable in damages for any damages caused by such changed 
stormwater runoff. 

4. 	 This property may be located within the habitat boundaries of the Golden-Cheeked Warbler, an endangered species. 
Issuance of this Permit to Construct an On-Site Sewage Facility does not assure compliance with the Endangered 
Species Act. For information, please call Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department, (512) 
854-9383. 

5. 	 The issuance of this Pemrit is not verification that this tract of land has been subdivided in accordance with the laws and 
regulations governing subdivision of land. It is also not, therefore, a guarantee of future provision of other utility 
services to this tract of land. 

6. 	 A License to Operate this system will not be issued until a final inspection is passed. It is unlawful to use this on
site sewage facility until a License to Operate has been issued. 

7. 	 All installation work must be performed by a Texas Commission for Environmental Quality Registered Installer. If this 
system requires a maintenance contract, the maintenance company must meet the requirements as defined in 30 TAC, 
Chapter 285. 

8. 	 The use of explosives is not pemritted for the construction of this on-site sewage facility. 

This on-site sewage facility must meet all of the requirements of the Rules Of Travis County, Texas For On-Site 
Sewage Facilities. 

THIS PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT SHALL EXPIRE TWELVE MONTHS FROM ISSUE DATE. 

-.b),i§ilaltv-signed by Rodney Sherrill 
Date: 2012.07.3007:35:28 CDT 	 Date: July 30,2012 



! j
~ 

Ol 
< (.J 

0 (J1 

CD 00 

§ 

~ 
~ 
fj 

RANCH ROAD 620 


SHEET DESCRIPTION: PROJECT: 
JIM BETTRIDGE . R .S. 

2209 RANCH ROAD 620 N 128 HIGHLANDER
OSSF DESIGNLOTS 43 AND 44 
 AUSTIN , TX 78734 


CARDINAL HILLS UNIT 14 
 (512) 261-4295 




~\!f ~~9~~ ~\" lO~=m LOT 44 ; 

~l"il" "-'- - '--' - \ ~~ \ ' · 
sill LOT 43 \\\~ \ 

~I II \ ~ ~\ .1fJ1 

.. I .1 \ \ ! ~ 1 ......... . -. 


~i Ii ENTIRE SITE SEEMS\OEO AT~TOPAA~iNf3'~NO MATERIALS 

~: Ii TANKJ\NDJ;,~tOAEA'~UST B~ ~E~CED
l ill , .. ..... · TO PROT~T IT ROM TRAR,Flf IZ ! ,! \ --\ ; ~ r. 

L·· ·I+ · ·· \ \ 
"I ill \ \ , ! l 


, j' \ \ . : !


IiI \ ~"i 
i !i \ ~ 
i !i ! 


i !i VACUUM BREAKER \ 

· I' \
1 .1 '\ 

· " \
I .\ 
i !i \ 
, I' \ 

! i! \

I ,I ' 
j !i \\ 
I' ".1 \ 
, \' \I . 1:::£ RISERS MUST EXTEND ALL TANK i


i !iU ACCESS PORTS SO THAT THEY ARE ABOVE )


!~ !! ~ FINAL GRADE AND EASILY ACCESSIBLE 


In.. !u

i In !i~ 

i !i~ 

I ,I

! 
· 

Ii
I' 

)) {J 
i! NORWECO 960-500GPD W/PC ; SCdUR VAlVE · ' .' 

i! (USE ~N~Y~EN'F'LUSHING FIELD) 


II 
.1 

4~:aS~~::~~:~:R
~ 

. 
l!, 25'·SET8ACK F~OM BREAK . .z--!{f.~~9r~l~~!~'i,~---
. - ~.' ~U' " 

\...I, ·· THIS PROPERTY DOES NOT LIE WITHIN THE 100 YEAR FLOO~~~;~:.~;.~.••••".~•••. 
I Ij ; ~~\ 3516 /~ . . ,

i~.-.-.- .-.- .-.-.- .-.-,-.-.-.-,-.-.-.-._._._._._._._._._ . . ' .: ~ ,....IIr"..-# 
; ·- · -·--- ·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- ·-·R:OCK·WJSJ.:..[,·-·-·-·-·-·=·~:=::;:=::: : =5: ;::P:=U'~I ·. ~~1lj!.,~ :=::....-=:=:= 
~_"' __.. . . .. e \&, ONAL n>--- - . ,.- ,.- ..... .~-.- . -. - ._. ._ .- .. .__.__. ,- _. _ ._.. .._-- . .... ~..- ........ -.'-.- .- . ---" c.4i4i._,_ ,_._,_. __._ . _~ 


i ~!1i 

(}I 
c... c.> 
0 01 
to ()) 

~ 

~ 
~ 
iG 

PROJECT: SHEET DESCRIPTION: 
~ 

2209 RANCH ROAD 620 N
f\) .... .: 

. ~ ~.. . LOTS 43 AN D 44 OSSF DESIGNo 
. . 

~ 
CARDINAL HILLS UNIT 14"T1 N 

f\) ~ 
, 

JIM BETTRIDGE, R .S . 
128 HIGHLANDER 
AUSTIN, TX 78734 
(512) 261-4295 



_. . .,.... . ,d. 
e ·,. ' .. 1- ..--. -'"....,..r_ r. 

··· 4.. -.l1li- -_. '-'.JIIo'- . , ~;. ::~.., '== .§ 
M'* ... Ir" 

_.. . 
~I.· 

IR/II.I# ,-~ #1.",.- _ .....- --- - ~~ 

"...,. 
. 
-_. -- --

.&N 
_#r 

I#A~' 
61&.14'-., ,,. --_., -',' ,..- -- .... "I' 

,.-- .....",' 
' ....,... " .,...."."#1' -9\ 

p _.. . _ .. -"'.
" . _ 4·",.... ......... _17... ...... _ _a

_40' 
' --_ ... ...
T - ,.."". ...- " .#' #0'_--- -..- :t= -- ---- ....... ,,' aT _.
....1' 

'IS- --' 
~.-_. ...,.,.. ......

Ir+' ~."" ....... _... ..".n' . ,,' 

ft.,. · -- n.l7 ' --' _. ,.,...,. 

-~. 

' ..-.I 
' 4 .....·(b ,.... _ ? . _ 

_.
w· 
' --' _.. - ,-"-_.' . ' 

IJII. ... .... · --N -_N' ' -- ".,.",. .-?' -- CARDINAL HILLS 
ND7% 1 Cc.I"..•• 4Nrr."*~N..UO.".,..-...,

:::':/w7'::r~::-;:.::r;;~;=:,~,.-; ~~~. 
, 

ESTATES 

Unit 14 

" 
~ ~~~~ 

j INti 
t,: 

C8-70-9 





/ 
i 
) 

f 
j " 

r 
; 

r 
[ < .....," 
~A~; 

i 
! 
r---
l--. 

--...~~ ... 

--~ 

Legend 

- su .. ~ 

-- PultROed 

. ,-- Incotpoqt.d 

-- T..... Count1 l1ain1U1ec1 

-- Nol "'~ 

-- Prime 

-- RejIdon ofOedQton 

'"~ --' ~"".~ 

- ] PrecInc13 

'T ... Coldy LOCation MaP / 0
J -_~~ __ 

Hays County 
Source(s): City of Austin Roads - COA 2011. 
Unincorporated Roads - Travis County 
812011, Tol Road - various sources, 
Creeks- NHD 2005. ParI<s - Travis County 
2011 . Commissioner Precincts - Travis County 
Voter Registrar 2002. 

Map Disclaimer: The data is prOYided 
"as is" wi1h no wamonties of any kind. Map Prepond by: Travis County, 

Dept of Tr8Mpor1lltion & Nn..,. 
I Resources. Date: 81912011 

MilesTravis County Roadways, Map D 8 


	ITEM 02
	Agenda Request Form PY 2011 CAPER Approval of DRAFT CAPER_vfinal.pdf
	Meeting Date:  November 27, 2012
	Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:
	Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
	AGENDA LANGUAGE:
	Consider and take appropriate action on items related the Program Year 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant provided by HUD:
	A. Receive a summary of the annual performance report;
	B. Approve the draft of the Program Year 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report to post for public comment.
	BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
	STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
	FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:
	REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:


	ITEM 03
	COH Agenda Request 112712
	COH Update Agenda Item 112712.pdf
	COH Agenda Request 112712
	COH Update Agenda Item 112712.pdf
	COH Overview
	COH Board Membership 100512
	COH Projects Short
	COH Presentation



	ITEM 04
	ITEM 05
	ITEM 06
	ITEM 07
	ITEM 08
	ITEM 09
	ITEM 10
	7452 : Water Treatment Services Mod 5 to add SMART
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Garratt Callahan Co. Mod 5 to add SMART
	Department Memo Mod 5 Garratt Callahan
	Quote from Garratt Callahan to add SMART


	ITEM 11
	7457 : Drug Testing Services 1208-005-ML
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	dept recommendation memos
	contract concentra
	Contact ProMed
	Matrix for fees
	4400001190, Contract Arcpoint
	Contract Phamatech
	Contract ProResults
	contract Source 1


	ITEM 12
	7544 : Bid No. 1210-001-PS, TCCC Building 140 Roof Replacement
	Award Recommendation MemoTCCC B140 Roof Replacement
	Bid Tabulation, TCCC B140 Roof Replacement
	Contractor Signed Agreement, Bldg 140 Roof Repl


	ITEM 13
	7596 : 4400001214 Slaughter Lane Goodnight Phase I Award
	Dept Memo
	4400001214 Contract Draft


	ITEM 14
	7597 : Q120156-JW FM 969 Commence Negotiations
	Q120156-JW Dept Memo


	ITEM 15
	7598 : Q120157-JW FM 1626 Commence Negotiations
	Q120157-JW Dept Memo


	ITEM 16 
	7600 : Interlocal Agreement No. 4400000367 - Austin Community College
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Court Agenda Sept 25, 2012 approving FY13 renewals
	FY2013 Renewal - Modification No. 8


	ITEM 17
	7623 : Renewal 03T00058OJ, EAP Mod # 12, Alliance Work Partners
	Employee Assistance Program - Executive Summary PAM Modification # 12 for Contract # 03T00058OJ
	EAP Contract Renewal Memo 101712
	Modification Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 03T00058OJ Mod # 12 - Final


	ITEM 18
	ITEM 20
	ITEM 21
	ITEM 22
	ITEM 23
	ITEM 24
	ITEM 28
	ITEM 29
	ITEM 30
	ITEM 31
	ITEM 32
	ITEM 33
	ITEM C3
	ITEM C4



